The Ohio State University

Board of Trustees

November 2017 Board Meeting - November Board Meeting

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING SCHEDULE

9:00-2:00pm

8:00-9:45am

8:00-9:45am
10:00-11:30am
10:00-11:30am
11:30am-2:45pm

3:00-4:45pm

3:00-4:45pm

5:00-6:00pm

8:30-9:45am

10:00am

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2017

RICHARD M. ROSS HEART HOSPITAL
452 W. 10TH AVENUE

Wexner Medical Center Board Meeting (Ross Auditorium)

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017

RECREATION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY CENTER (RPAC)
337 ANNIE AND JOHN GLENN AVENUE

Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting (Meeting Rooms 1-2,
B255/B257)

Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting (Dave Griner Room, B247)
Advancement Committee Meeting (Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257)
Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting (Dave Griner Room, B247)
Lunch and Executive Session (Room B145)

Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee Meeting (Meeting Rooms 1-2,
B255/B257)

Finance Committee Meeting (Dave Griner Room, B247)

Student Reception (Members Lounge Room, B245)

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2017

LONGABERGER ALUMNI HOUSE
2200 OLENTANGY RIVER ROAD

Governance Committee Meeting (Mount Leadership Room)

Board Meeting Reconvenes (Sanders Grand Lounge)

November 3, 2017




' W THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY Board of Trustees

-

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1321

Phone (614) 292-6359
Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

AGENDA SUMMARY

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2017 (ROSS HEART HOSPITAL)

9:00am-2:00pm Wexner Medical Center Board Meeting (Ross Auditorium)

Leslie H. Wexner, Janet B. Reid, W. G. Jurgensen, Cheryl L. Krueger, Abigail S. Wexner, David B.
Fischer, Stephen D. Steinour, Robert H. Schottenstein, Alex Shumate (ex officio, voting), Michael V.
Drake (ex officio, voting), Geoffrey S. Chatas (ex officio, voting), Bruce A. McPheron (ex officio,
voting), K. Craig Kent (ex officio, non-voting), L. Arick Forrest (ex officio, non-voting), David P.
McQuaid (ex officio, non-voting), Mark E. Larmore (ex officio, non-voting), Andrew M. Thomas (ex
officio, non-voting), Elizabeth O. Seely (ex officio, non-voting), Susan D. Moffatt-Bruce (ex officio,
non-voting), Mary A. Howard (ex officio, non-voting), Michael A. Caligiuri (ex officio, non-voting),
Martha C. Taylor (ex officio, non-voting), Amanda N. Lucas (ex officio, non-voting)

Approval of August 23, 2017 Wexner Medical Center Board Meeting Minutes - Mr. Wexner
Team-Based Learning - Dr. Kent, Dr. Graham

College of Medicine Report (verbal) - Dr. Kent

Wexner Medical Center Report - Mr. McQuaid

Health System Financial Summary - Mr. Larmore

Authorizations Regarding Professional Services - Mr. Kasey

Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety and Service Plan - Ms. Krueger, Dr. Gonsenhauser
Executive Session

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017 (RECREATION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY CENTER [RPAC])

8:00-9:45am Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting (Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257)
Alexander R. Fischer, James D. Klingbeil, Brent R. Porteus, Alan A. Stockmeister, H. Jordan
Moseley, Robert H. Schottenstein, Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Physical Environment Scorecard - Mr. Kasey

Major Project Update - Ms. Readey

Capital Projects Annual Report: Fiscal Year 2017 - Ms. Readey

Advanced Materials Corridor: Phase 1 Design Review - Mr. Myers

Programing Studies Updates (verbal) - Mr. Myers

Authorizations Regarding Professional Services - Ms. Readey

Approval for Fiscal Year 2018 Utility System Capital Improvement Projects - Ms. Readey

Acceptance of Gift of Unimproved Real Property: 352 West Dodridge Street - Mr. Myers

Acceptance of Gift of Improved Real Property and Approval of Sale of Improved Real Property -
Mr. Myers

Executive Session



' W THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

-

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017 (RECREATION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY CENTER [RPAC]))

8:00-9:45am

10:00-11:30am

10:00-11:30am

11:30am-2:45pm

Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting (Dave Griner Room, B247)
W. G. Jurgensen, Janet B. Reid, Michael J. Gasser, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Hiroyuki Fujita, John W.
Zeiger, Lydia A. Lancaster, Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Susan Basso Introductory/Remarks (verbal) - Ms. Basso

Student Employment Overview - Ms. Basso, Mr. Fuzer, Dr. Adams-Gaston
Key Critical Searches (verbal) - Ms. Basso

Personnel Actions - Ms. Basso

Presidential Review and Compensation - Mr. Jurgensen

Approval of Presidential Goals - Mr. Jurgensen

Executive Session

Advancement Committee Meeting (Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257)

Erin P. Hoeflinger, Alan VanderMolen, Clark C. Kellogg, Cheryl L. Krueger, Brent R. Porteus,
Alexander R. Fischer, Abigail S. Wexner, Alan A. Stockmeister, Lydia A. Lancaster, Nancy J. Kramer,
Craig S. Bahner, Barbara J. Tootle, Georganne M. Shockey, James F. Dietz, Gifford Weary, Alex
Shumate (ex officio)

Connect Engage Foster: The Ohio State Alumni Magazine - Ms. Shockey, Ms. Tootle
Partnerships in Philanthropy (verbal) - Dr. Weary, Mr. Dietz

Mirror Lake Restoration - Ms. Keyes

Advancement Scorecard and Marketing Dashboard - Mr. Eicher and Ms. Nazon

University Foundation Report - Mr. Eicher

Naming of the Evan Turner Hallway - Mr. Bergfeld

Naming of Spaces in the Pre-Clinic - Mr. Bergfeld

Naming of Internal Spaces: William T. and Jane C. McConnell Residence Hall - Mr. Bergfeld
Naming of CTL Engineering Lab - Mr. Bergfeld

Executive Session

Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting (Dave Griner Room, B247)

Timothy P. Smucker, W. G. Jurgensen, Michael J. Gasser, Jeffrey Wadsworth, Hiroyuki Fujita, John
W. Zeiger, H. Jordan Moseley, James D. Klingbeil, Lawrence A. Hilsheimer, Amy Chronis, Craig S.
Morford, Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Approval to Submit Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (Draft) to the Auditor of State -
Ms. Devine, Ms. Dewire

External Audit Update - Ms. Dewire

Compliance and Integrity Program Update - Mr. Culley, Mr. Garrity-Rokous

Audit and Compliance Committee Scorecard - Mr. Culley, Mr. Garrity-Rokous

Executive Session

Lunch and Executive Session (Room B145)



' W THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

-

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017 (RECREATION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY CENTER [RPAC])

3:00-4:45pm

3:00-4:45pm

5:00-6:00pm

Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee Meeting (Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257)

Clark C. Kellogg, Cheryl L. Krueger, Janet B. Reid, Timothy P. Smucker, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Abigail
S. Wexner, Hiroyuki Fujita, Alan A. Stockmeister, H. Jordan Moseley, James D. Klingbeil, Richard K.
Herrmann, Alex Shumate (ex officio)

A Life in Motion: Advancing Student Success and Learning - Dr. Adams-Gaston, Dr. Stenta

Student Success: Understanding the Data and Our Path Forward - Dr. McPheron, Mr. Granger,
Ms. Hume

Digital Flagship Swift Coding - Dr. McPheron, Mr. Tressler

Faculty Personnel Actions - Dr. McPheron

Amendments to the Rules of the University Faculty - Dr. McPheron

Establishment of a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science Degree Program - Dr. McPheron

Approval to Change the Name of the Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department of Plastic
and Reconstructive Surgery - Dr. McPheron

Executive Session

Finance Committee Meeting (Dave Griner Room, B247)
Michael J. Gasser, Brent R. Porteus, W. G. Jurgensen, Jeffrey Wadsworth, Alexander R. Fischer,
John W. Zeiger, Lydia A. Lancaster, Alan VanderMolen, Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Fiscal Year 2018 Interim Financial Report - Ms. Devine

University Financial Scorecard - Ms. Devine

Regional Campus Update - Ms. Devine

Long-Term Investment Pool Update - Mr. Lane

Major Project Status Report - Ms. Readey

Authorizations Regarding Professional Services - Ms. Readey

Approval for Fiscal Year 2018 Utility System Capital Improvement Projects - Ms. Readey

Approval of 2017 Progress Report on Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency
Recommendations - Mr. Chatas

Approval for One-Time Transfer of Principal from Long-Term Operating Fund to Enterprise Project
Fund - Mr. Chatas

Approval of Discounted Rates for Summer Term Tuition and Mandatory Fees - Mr. Chatas

Authorization for Approval of Athletic Prices and Fees - Mr. Chatas

Appointment to the Self-Insurance Board - Mr. Chatas

Purchase of Real Property - Mr. Chatas

Approval of Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund - Mr. Papadakis

Executive Session

Student Reception (Members Lounge Room, B245)



' W THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

-

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2017 (LONGABERGER ALUMNI HOUSE)

8:30-9:45am

10:00am

Governance Committee Meeting (Mount Leadership Room)

Janet B. Reid, Timothy P. Smucker, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Hiroyuki Fujita, Lydia A. Lancaster, Alan
VanderMolen, Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Student Trustee Selection Process (verbal) - Dr. Lancaster

Trustee Development (verbal) - Dr. Reid, Dr. Trower

Appointment of a Charter Trustee - Mr. Shumate

Amendments to the Bylaws of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board -
Mr. Shumate

Ratification of the Appointment of Chair of the Wexner Medical Center Board - Mr. Shumate

Ratification of Committee Appointments - Mr. Shumate

Executive Session

Board Meeting Reconvenes (Sanders Grand Lounge)
Student Recognition Awards - Mr. Moseley
e Kirk Forte - College of Veterinary Medicine

Transformational Experiences that Advance Student Success - Dr. Adams-Gaston

President’'s Report

Committee Reports

Consent Agenda

1. Resolutions in Memoriam

Appointment of a Charter Trustee
Amendments to the Bylaws of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board
Ratification of the Appointment of Chair of the Wexner Medical Center Board
Ratification of Committee Appointments 2017-2018

Personnel Actions

Presidential Review and Compensation
Approval of Presidential Goals

Faculty Personnel Actions
10. Amendments to the Rules of the University Faculty
11. Establishment of a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science Degree Program
12. Approval to Change the Name of the Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department

of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery

13. University Foundation Report
14. Naming of the Evan Turner Hallway
15. Naming of Spaces in the Pre-Clinic
16. Naming of Internal Spaces: William T. and Jane C. McConnell Residence Hall
17. Naming of CTL Engineering Lab
18. Authorizations Regarding Professional Services
19. Approval for Fiscal Year 2018 Utility System Capital Improvement Projects
20. Acceptance of Gift of Unimproved Real Property: 352 West Dodridge Street
21. Acceptance of Gift of Improved Real Property and Approval of Sale of Improved Real

©CoNOOA~WN

Property

22.  Approval to Submit Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (Draft) to the Auditor of
State

23. Approval of 2017 Progress Report on Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency
Recommendations

24. Approval for One-Time Transfer of Principal from Long-Term Operating Fund to
Enterprise Project Fund

25. Approval of Discounted Rates for Summer Term Tuition and Mandatory Fees

26. Authorization for Approval of Athletic Prices and Fees

27. Appointment to the Self-Insurance Board

28. Purchase of Real Property

29. Approval of Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund

4



The Ohio State University
Wexner Medical Center Board

WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER BOARD

November 1, 2017

Leslie H. Wexner
Janet B. Reid
W. G. Jurgensen
Cheryl L. Krueger
Abigail S. Wexner
David B. Fischer
Stephen D. Steinour
Robert H. Schottenstein
Alex Shumate (ex officio, voting)
Michael V. Drake (ex officio, voting)
Geoffrey S. Chatas (ex officio, voting)
Bruce A. McPheron (ex officio, voting)
K. Craig Kent (ex officio, non-voting)
L. Arick Forrest (ex officio, non-voting)
David P. McQuaid (ex officio, non-voting)
Mark E. Larmore (ex officio, non-voting)
Andrew M. Thomas (ex officio, non-voting)
Elizabeth O. Seely (ex officio, non-voting)
Susan D. Moffatt-Bruce (ex officio, non-voting)
Mary A. Howard (ex officio, non-voting)
Michael A. Caligiuri (ex officio, non-voting)
Martha C. Taylor (ex officio, non-voting)
Amanda N. Lucas (ex officio, non-voting)

Location: Richard M. Ross Heart Hospital Time:

Ross Heart Hospital Auditorium

Public Session
1. Approval of August 23, 2017 Wexner Medical Center Board Meeting Minutes
Team-Based Learning - Dr. Kent, Dr. Graham
College of Medicine Report (verbal) - Dr. Kent
Wexner Medical Center Report - Mr. McQuaid
Health System Financial Summary - Mr. Larmore

Authorizations Regarding Professional Services - Mr. Kasey

N o o kM w N

Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety and Service Plan - Ms. Krueger,
Dr. Gonsenhauser

Executive Session

9:00am-2:00pm

9:00-9:05am
9:05-9:20am
9:20-9:30am
9:30-9:40am
9:40-9:50am
9:50-9:55am
9:55-10:00am

10:00am-2:00pm




November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Mr. Wexner called the meeting of the Wexner Medical Center Board to order on Wednesday, August 23,
2017, at 10:37am.

Present: Leslie H. Wexner, Alex Shumate, William G. Jurgensen, Cheryl L. Krueger, Abigail S. Wexner,
Robert H. Schottenstein, Michael V. Drake, Geoffrey S. Chatas, Bruce A. McPheron, K. Craig Kent, E.
Christopher Ellison, David P. McQuaid, Michael A. Caligiuri, Amanda N. Lucas, Elizabeth O. Seely and
Marti C. Taylor. Dr. McPheron, Mr. Chatas, and Janet B. Reid were late and David B. Fischer and Stephen
D. Steinour were absent.

Mr. Wexner:
Good morning. | would like to convene the meeting of the Wexner Medical Center Board.

Thank you. At this time, | move that the committee recess into executive session to consider business
sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by federal and state statutes, to discuss quality
matters which are required to be kept confidential under Ohio law, to consult with legal counsel regarding
pending or imminent litigation, and to discuss personnel matters regarding the employment, appointment
and compensation of public officials.

Dr. Thompson:

May | have a motion?
Upon motion of Mr. Wexner, seconded by Mr. Shumate, the Wexner Medical Center Board members
adopted the foregoing motion by unanimous roll call vote, cast of board members: Dr. Drake, Mr.
Schottenstein, Mrs. Wexner, Ms. Krueger, Mr. Jurgensen, Mr. Shumate, and Mr. Wexner.

Dr. Thompson:

Motion carries.

Mr. Wexner:

We are going to reconvene. | am reminding myself to turn off my phone and you should turn off yours so
we are not interrupted. The minutes of previous meeting has been circulated. | assume they can be
approved, as distributed.

So, everybody has to talk fast. We begin with Pelotonia, Mark, welcome. Tell us about what happened.
Mr. Ulman:

Good to see everybody. Thank you for the opportunity to update you on what has been another record-
breaking year for Pelotonia. Obviously, none of our success as a community and as a movement would
be possible without many of you in this room. | want to acknowledge everybody here for their investment
in the operations and their investment in riders, volunteers, and partnerships that make what we do
possible. We are eternally grateful.

We just celebrated our ninth Pelotonia weekend and it was remarkable. Not the least of which had to do
with the fact that we have had the best weather we have ever had. Seventy-five degrees and zero
humidity for August in Columbus, Ohio is pretty special; we can’t count on that going forward.

What | thought I'd do briefly is give you a quick overview. This year, our theme was The Greatest Team
Ever. The idea was that it takes every single person who is involved in Pelotonia to make it work. Often
times, you'll hear from people who say “I couldn’t ride this year” or “I couldn’t do this or that”. The reality



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

is whether you volunteer, donate, a virtual rider, or rode, it all adds up to an enormous impact. I'm going
to show you a quick video and this is the video that we showed on Friday night of Pelotonia weekend to
about 16,000 people who gathered downtown to kick off the weekend.

(Video)

Hopefully, that gives you a sense of the community spirit, the engagement, and the teamwork that it takes
to pull this off and to raise millions and millions of dollars for research here at Ohio State. We had a
record-breaking year, as | mentioned earlier. We, for the first time, had more than 8,000 riders. We had
never before crossed that threshold. We had more than 3,000 volunteers for the first time ever.
Fundraising continues until October 7th. Since the slide was created, we are now at $16.6 million. We
will end up at over 150,000-160,000 donors from, as you have seen, more than 61 countries.

While we are proud that this is based here in Columbus, it really is growing way beyond. To be honest, a
lot of that is a result of people in this room - whether it is team members from LBrands or other institutions
who are participating. This year we had rides in Hong Kong and we had an indoor ride in Bangalore. You
know, it is remarkable.

We are excited about the future. We also had a pretty special weekend where we had both former Vice
President Joe Biden and his wife Dr. Jill Biden with us. They were amazed at what they saw when they
were here. We have cancer survivor and Survivor TV show winner Ethan Zohn here to speak and ride.
We also had 17 time Tour de France rider George Hincapie here to ride. We had an incredible athlete
named Chris Waddell who joined us this year. He is a 14-time Paralympic Gold Medalist. He rode a hand
cycle 180 miles, which is one of the more remarkable things | have ever seen. His wife rides with him.
She blows by him on the uphill, then he flies by her on the downhill and then they catch up again and
again. It was just a special weekend.

As you all know, very well, the results of the weekend really are not about fundraising and the participation
numbers, they are really about impact. [It is about] what we are doing to translate that impact into new
therapies and treatments that will ultimately save tons and tons of lives. We are really proud of Mike’s
team and the leadership that he has provided that allows this work to go forward.

While we can talk about any number of these, | want to highlight the last one, which | know you all are
familiar with. | think it is inspiring to see the fact that a 50 plus hospital network has been created across
the state where we can now invest funds raised by the community to have an impact on people who may
or may not live in Columbus or who may or may not actually be treated here. [It is] where the research is
done and then we’re delivering care where they live and where they need to receive that care, which not
only improves their outcomes but also improves their quality of life.

As we go out and recruit riders and donors, one of the things we hear all the time is “tell us more about
the impact, tell us about the impact of these dollars”. Moving forward, that is going to be our focus. This
year we were focused on what we call ‘surprise and delight’. You saw some of that in the video with the
painting of barns. Thank you to the Wexner’s for allowing us to paint that beautiful barn. We have actually
had two families contact us since the ride who want to, at their own expense, paint their barns next year.
We thought that might happen, which is great, and gives visibility across the state.

We also did other things along the route. We had video boards at the hardest point in the route this year
that were playing scenes from Rocky. If you asked anybody about the ride, they will remember that
moment. The speed of riding picked up dramatically at that spot. We are excited to continue to surprise
and delight our participants next year. Next year is our 10th anniversary and we are already deep in
planning for that.

| would just mention lastly that we will be beta testing a new app this fall, starting in October, that will
allow anyone in the world, who is physically riding a bike for any purpose: commuting to work, riding with
their kids to the park, to school, et cetera, to press start and stop on an app and generate money for
cancer research. We are going to pilot it this fall and then launch it nationally and internationally in the



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

spring. Our goal is to get a couple hundred thousand people to each raise $50-$100 a year in micro
donations that would ultimately add up to $25 million or $30 million, or $40 million, or $50 million per year.
We are excited to launch that very soon, more to come on that.

Thank you for your incredible support and leadership that allows all this to be possible. With that, I'll
conclude my remarks.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)
Mr. Wexner:

The result this year, what do you guess it will be?
Mr. Ulman:

That's a great question. | believe it will be $25.5 million. It could be $26 million, but roughly speaking.
Mr. Wexner:

So, would that beat...
Mr. Ulman:

Last year was $24 million. | think it will be $25.5 million.
Mr. Wexner:

What kind of target do you have for next year then?
Mr. Ulman:

Given that we are launching this app, we would like to see a significant increase - $30 million plus. We
are not satisfied...

Mrs. Wexner:

As a Pelotonia board member, | know | speak on behalf of the board and obviously the university, but
more importantly on behalf of the community and all of us who live here, that we are truly blessed to have
someone of Doug'’s caliber leading this organization. He is tireless in his efforts and sees the very big
picture and is really galvanized an entire movement. We thank you and are appreciative.

Mr. Ulman:
Thank you very much.
Mrs. Wexner:

Oh, it's me again. Quick two second up on the strategic plan, is that where we are? Many of you know
we have completed over a yearlong process in strategic planning for the medical center. We completed
that in May and have spent the last three months having this plan tested with faculty, staff, and members
of the community. We are very excited about it. We have an aspiration to take us to the top 20 academic
medical centers in the country therefore, the world. That plan is very pivotal pillar of the university’s
strategic plan that will be discussed and reviewed more fully tomorrow. | am just sharing the excitement.



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Ms. Marsh:

A big thank you to the patients and the students that also helped us produce it.
President Drake:

OK. We are on then to the College of Medicine report.
Dr. Kent:

Excellent. | think Doug’s report on Pelotonia is a great segue into mine, because as he alluded, it is all
about the research. | would like to begin my presentation today by featuring two of our researchers at
Ohio State.

Many of you know that we, of course, are involved in great science here. Occasionally, science has the
chance of being transformational and changing people’s lives. There are two journals that, if you are a
basic scientist, you would like to publish in - one is {{The American Journal of] Science and [the Journal
of] Nature. | think everybody in the room has heard of both of those journals. We were fortunate enough
at Ohio State, over the last two months, to have an article in [The American Journal of] Science and
another one in the [Journal of] Nature by two of our investigators.

| will start with Vadim Fedorov, who is part of our cardiology group and our physiology group, and is doing
incredibly innovative research. If you look at that picture over on the left, you see a Petri dish that actually
has a portion of a human heart. This is a human heart that's not pulsing appropriately. There is a
dysrhythmia, the rhythm is not right. What he has found is that he can go in and find the cell that is
producing this dysrhythmia, ablate it to make it go away, then channel the heart in a way that the new
cell next door takes over and becomes a normal pacer. It takes over for the heart. You think of the clinical
application of this. There are literally thousands of people that need pacemakers every year because
their heart does not function well. Well, maybe there will be a day when those pacemakers go away
because we can transform the patient’s normal heart into something that works and functions well. In
fact, to that end, the next phase of Dr. Fedorov’s studies are in humans, where they are actually going to
try to mimic something that is very similar to humans. That is one of our articles.

The next slide please. Chandan Sen, who is part of our Department of Surgery and is very interested and
involved with regenerative medicine, has published a paper in Nature Nanotechnology and this is equally
innovative. What he has over in the left, you can see a mouse that has poor circulation to the leg. He has
created a microchip that has nanoparticles in it and the nanoparticles [contain] DNA (Deoxyribonucleic
acid). He puts the chip on the leg of the mouse that does not have good circulation. The nanoparticles
infiltrate the leg and go to fibroblasts, [which are the cells] just under the skin. The DNA transforms those
smooth fibroblasts into cells that then create new blood vessels. The animals have chips, good blood
vessel flow, good circulation to the legs and those that do not have the chips do not. This is
transformational. We can think about improving circulation as one part of this technology, but it’s really a
way of delivering drug and transformational cellular regeneration to any part of the body, [for example]
the brain. You can imagine the other uses of this. As you can imagine, this was a very notable paper and
something that | think that makes OSU very proud.

We just happened to have Dr.’s Sen and Fedorov in the audience. | ask that they stand and be
recognized. Thanks so much for coming.

| will use that as a segue to do a little more bragging about our research. It turns out this past year, our
overall funding in the College of Medicine is up 20%, which is amazing considering the constraints on
research funding now. NIH (National Institutes of Health) funding itself is up over 19% and the research
funding around clinical trials is up around 38%; really a great accomplishment. The question is where did
that come from? Much of it comes from faculty that have been a part of OSU for a number of years.

10



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

For those that are in research, a great accolade is to get your first NIH grant. | am proud to say that over
the past year, we have had 20 investigators at OSU that have received their first RO1. If that’s not enough
to brag about, if you look at the NIH as a total, the average age of an individual that receives their first
RO1 is 46 years old. It is amazing how you have to go that long before you receive your first federal grant.
The average age of those 20 individuals that received their first RO1 at OSU is 37. We seem a little
precocious, | am thinking. This is a very impressive accomplishment.

Update. Lang Li, my first department chair recruit arrived in July. Lang is a chair of Bioinformatics, one of
our important departments. Lang brought along with him $2.1 million worth of funding; seven grants from
a number of different institutes. We found already in his first few weeks with us he is a very collaborative
person. In fact, he has already partnered with [the College of] Arts and Sciences to recruit the next director
of the Mathematical Science Institute. That seems odd, but that person is recruited and is now going to
be part of the College of Medicine. What he has done was to create this relationship between
mathematics and behavioral biology, which then translates into medicine. Congratulations to Lang in a
very early success. We look forward to his career at OSU.

We have research recruitments underway in 16 different departments. | think many of you know from our
previous conversations we have areas of focus that are developing. One of those is diabetes in
metabolism, another Alzheimer’s disease, and a third in opioid research. There will be many others but
these are areas that we are highlighting.

We have been working on this idea around diabetes for a number of months now and | am happy to say
we have a verbal commitment from our first recruit. This is an individual by the name of Doug
Lewandowski. He is one of the world’s experts on diabetes metabolism and brings with him four RO1’s
to our institution. He is extremely well funded. It was tough competition, there was Vanderbilt, Penn, Yale,
and Ohio State, but he made the right decision, he is coming to Ohio State. We are excited about the
beginning of that recruitment.

We are also initiating a search for a new chair of immunology and infectious disease. This is a department
that has been very focused on infectious disease in the past and we are expanding it to immunology
because we see that as a very important foundation for all of the disease processes. We look forward to
seeing a number of great candidates over the next few years.

| am going to pause for a moment and highlight on the educational side that we had our White Coat
Ceremony about two weeks ago. My first class at Ohio State, 207 bright bushy tailed and excited medical
students, whose average GPA was 3.77. Their average MCAT score, which is the test to get into medical
school, was in the 90th percentile. This is a very impressive class and we are excited to bring them into
our College of Medicine.

| want to finish by highlighting a couple of individuals who are new to Ohio State. | am going to create an
award and it is called the Award for Transformational Leadership. The first person that | would like to
speak about is Mark Bechtel. He is a long-standing individual at Ohio State. About three years ago, [he]
was recruited away to Penn State to be a leader in one of the programs. He missed being a Buckeye and
we recruited him back to be chief of dermatology within the Department of Internal Medicine. Mark has
been back here at Ohio State for three months. He has taken a department that had six clinical faculty
and in three months has recruited five additional faculty; unbelievable. And, from really fantastic places
including UCSF (University of California, San Francisco).

In addition to that, he has recruited two researchers that are doing transformational work in psoriasis and
cutaneous malignancy. If that wasn’t enough, he created this telemedicine program, which is so important
now so that a family physician that has a patient with a dermatologic problem doesn’t have to send a
patient to a dermatologist but [can] take a picture and send it in by telemedicine and then the diagnosis
is made. If that is what he can do in three months, | think in a few years, it is going to be impressive.
Accolades to Mark. | asked him to come in and join us today and he said, “No, | got clinic today and I'm
double booked and | can’t come”. | guess you got some insight into his personality.

11



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

The second program that | wanted to highlight is our lung transplant program. Brian Whitson leads that
under Ken Washburn’s leadership. | will acknowledge to begin with, it is not just Brian. A lung transplant
is a large team of people from a lot of different disciplines. It turns out in 2013 we did four lung transplants
at this institution, which is just beginning. It turns out, annualized in 2017 we’ll do 41 lung transplants.
Why the growth? It is all about innovation. There is a new technique called lung perfusion, where you can
take a lung that really is not quite good enough for transplant and profuse it and then you put this magic
formula in the profusion, the lung gets better, and then all of a sudden it is ok to be transplanted. Twenty-
six of the lungs that he has done over the last year have been available because of this profusion
technique. The significance of that is interesting. Those 26 lungs could not have been used without this
technique and there would be 26 people who did not have the ability to live because of lung
transplantation. We are clearly one of the national leaders in this area and our program is growing
dramatically. Again, congratulations to Brian and all he has done. | asked Brian to join us, he was here
about 20 minutes ago, but guess what, he has a lung transplant that he needed to get back to.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)

Onward to our guests. We have two individuals that are going to be with us today. The first who is going
to present is Tim Pawlik, the chairman in our Department of Surgery. Tim was recruited here about a year
ago. Just a little bit about his pedigree, which is more than impressive, he was a graduate of Georgetown
University, went to Tufts Medical School, did his surgery at University of Michigan, and then was a
surgeon fellow at MD Anderson. After that, he joined the faculty at Johns Hopkins University where he
rose to the rank of professor of surgery and then chief of the Division of Surgical Oncology. Tim has this
thing about degrees. In addition to all of the others | have mentioned, he has a Masters in Theology at
the Harvard Divinity School and his PhD at John’s Hopkins in public health. | think he is well trained.

Tim is incredibly accomplished and very well known in the world of surgery. He has over 450 manuscripts.
That is a little young for that many manuscripts. | have never seen an individual so prolific. Leadership
roles at many of our important surgical organizations. His area of interest is Pancreatic and Liver Cancer.
He is a superb surgeon and investigator in those areas. If | were going to use a few words to describe
Tim, | would say innovative, energetic, smart, and an academic leader. Thank you Tim for joining us.
Please welcome our Chair of Surgery, Tim Pawlik.

Dr. Pawlik:

From my mother and | thank you for that introduction.
Dr. Kent:

| consulted her.
Dr. Pawlik:

I am thrilled to be here today, to share with you a little bit about what has been going on in the Department
of Surgery over the last year and give you a view into the vision and the future of the Department of
Surgery here at the Wexner Medical Center at Ohio State University.

To give you some context, the Department of Surgery is made up of nine divisions that you see here:
Cardiac, Colorectal, Transplant, and Surgical Oncology, [et cetera]. | think we have three missions. One
is clinical program building and delivery of great care to our patients, one is education, and one is
research. | am going to touch on those themes during this brief presentation.

The Department of Surgery is a wonderful department of surgery. It is rich in history. We have Dr. Ellison
here and Dr. Zollinger, who was the longest standing chair in the Department of Surgery and a true icon
and legend in American Surgery and International Surgery. We had the first female chair of surgery here
at The Ohio State University. This is a place that is steeped in history.

12



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Like any Department of Surgery, we have our challenges. We have to continue to grow our programs of
distinction when it comes to clinical care. We have to continue to retain and recruit the best faculty so we
can complete our missions in education and research and continuing to have innovative care in the clinical
arena.

| was pretty happy where | was, but | specifically decided to come to Ohio State because | think Ohio
State, and | really believe this, | think people have heard me talk, | think it is an amazing place, now and
it is poised to do even greater things. | looked at the Department of Surgery and saw the Wexner Medical
Center, an enormous clinical machine, 1,300 beds, a lot of great healthcare delivery. | saw great surgeons
who were delivering great care who had amazing quality scores, who were hitting it out of the ballpark. |
saw a program that had a large clinical mission, a large residency program, and many fellows training
next generation of surgeons. | saw amazing research being done by people like Chandan Sen, and then
| saw the university. We see here this road; | specifically picked this picture, this road that opens up into
the whole university to leverage all of those resources for the medical center and the Department of
Surgery. | think Columbus is a special town also. | think it is a great place to live for me and my four
children.

| came here not to implement my vision, but really to build the shared vision with all of you and the
members in my department. To do this, | think that we are really going to need talent. At the end of the
day, it is all about the people - it is all about people and it is all about relationships. When | look around
Ohio State and | look around at the Department of Surgery, we have some amazing people, we have
some real all-stars. At the same time, | think that we need to build our bench, we need more depth. We
need more depth throughout the entire department and | would argue the entire institution because | think
ultimately, it is going to be talent that allows us to accomplish our tripartite mission of teaching, clinical
excellence, and education.

What has occurred over the last year and what are we kind of looking for in the future? We are into clinical
program building, with some minor tweaks here and there. We have had good growth over the last year.
We have had a 5% growth in surgical cases across the board. We have had a growth in our work RVU’s
(relative value units), the metric by which we assess a surgeon’s productivity and we have also increased
our charges and our revenue in the department; | think a real success. That being said, | think we need
to be more strategic going forward.

With the help of Craig, we’ve put together specific teams. We have identified four to six different areas
that we want to focus on and that will bring together all of the different talent, if you will, from the medical
center; people from data analytics, people from outreach, people from marketing, a surgical lead, and
administrative health; to come up with a specific plan. | met with the teams yesterday and we have viewed
the visual strategy maps that we are building so we can very concretely map out the way forward with
regards to specific tactics and specific timelines about how we were going to grow these clinical programs.
That is underway and | feel very good that we are going to be able to accomplish that in the time going
forward.

We have also identified some innovative programs that we are working on. One is the Robotic Whipple.
The Whipple, as some of you may know, is one of the most complex general surgery operations where
we remove a third of the pancreas, part of the stomach, part of the biliary tree, and part of the intestines.
It is a fairly complex operation that can be associated with some morbidity and a long length of stay. We
want to do this in a minimally invasive way using a robot. This has been done at other academic medical
centers, we need to be doing it here at the Wexner Medical Center, and we are doing that. Our first
Robotic Whipple is booked for October 31. | hope its ok, it is Halloween, and | think it is going to go fine.
We are moving at this innovative space, which | think will allow us to further differentiate ourselves as
market leaders in pancreas and liver surgery.

Some other exciting things that we are doing clinically is our ECMO (Extracorporeal Membrane
Oxygenation) program. This is a program by which we can basically circulate blood outside of the body.
Our surgeons and cardiac surgery have been working with the Columbus Division of Fire. It is for those
individuals who have a cardiac arrest, or if their heart stops out on 12th Avenue and you have tried CPR

13



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

(cardiopulmonary resuscitation) but they are not coming back. We can crash them onto a machine that
will basically take the blood out of their body, act as a pump outside of their body, and then put their blood
back in and keep them alive even if their heart isn’t pumping to give them time to get to the medical center
and allow their heart to recover. This is really moving technology out of the hospital and into the field to
allow people to live long enough to get here to the Wexner Medical Center.

| think in addition to building innovative programs, we need to work on outreach. | am a huge fan of
physician-to-physician communication. In the Department of Surgery this year, with a lot of help from our
marketing team, we have put together a mobile app. | challenged all of our surgeons in the department
to provide their personal email addresses and their personal phone numbers. This app is now being sent
out to all of our referring doctors. On their phone, they can open this app, quarry by doctor name or by
specialty and then see Tim Pawlik, have my cell phone number, click my cell phone number and get me
directly. We want to make sure that we open the doors to any referring physician that they can contact
us directly and we can get their patients into the medical center.

How about research? | think that we are doing pretty well in the Department of Surgery. We are ranked
15th overall in the country amongst Departments of Surgery. There are about 140 departments of surgery
in the country and we are ranked 15th. We are not happy with that. We want to be top 10 and | think that
we are going to get there.

We have had a lot of productivity in the department, over 300 papers published, and we are doing very
well with regards to grant funding. In research, we are focused on basic science research. This is Jianjie
Ma who’s been doing some work with regards to a specific gene that acts as a molecular Band-Aid, if
you will. When there is injury, like injury to the heart after a heart attack, they can give this molecule to
help repair the heart. Just before this meeting, | heard from Jianjie that it was awarded another RO1 for
five years of funding to continue this research.

We are also interested in translational research. You heard our dean talk about the work that Dr. Whitson
and his team is doing with regards to rejuvenating and recuperating the lungs that are marginal so that
we can deliver them to our patients.

We are also interested in health services research. This is some work done by Dr. Santry, a person |
recruited, whose RO1 funded, to look at the quality access of general surgery in the country. As we know,
much of surgery is not done at major medical centers, but is done in rural settings. The federal
government has a big interest with regards to how access of care occurs outside of urban centers and
Dr. Santry has been doing some important seminal work in this area.

Education. We have had some initiatives this year that we have embarked upon. One is a global surgery
program. | think if we are going to be players and attract the best of the best residents to Ohio State,
global surgery is something people are very interested in. We have launched two programs and one is in
a high-income country. We are going to be sending a resident this year to Sydney, Australia to work there
and she will be operating there. We are also sending a resident to a low-income country, Ethiopia. We
have opportunities for our residents to experience the delivery of surgical care in both high-income and
low-income countries.

We have also started a program for medical students called CUPID (cancer in the under-privileged
indigent or disadvantaged). This is directed for underprivileged medical students. It pairs the medical
students with a mentor to give them a research opportunity in a lab, a formal didactic program, and then
the program is culminated in a visit to Washington D.C. where they go to Capitol Hill and work with the
CUPID program to lobby for cancer care for underprivileged individuals in the United States. We did very
well this year with regards to our surgical match, out of the six individuals that we matched, four were
AOA (American Osteopathic Association), which means they were in the top 15% of their medical school
class and two were from top 10 medical schools in the country.

| think faculty development is also very important. We talked about talent; it is all about recruiting and
retaining talent. This year, we had a number of great recruits. We recruited Dr. Williams from Cleveland

14



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Clinic, Dr. Cloyd and Dr. Kneuertz from MD Anderson and from Memorial Sloan-Kettering respectively.
As | have mentioned, we also recruited Dr. Santry, who is also RO1 funded and Dr. Sutherland and Dr.
Bittner who are nationally known in their specialties of trauma and mentally invasive surgery respectively.

| was a little bit nervous about putting that Michigan thing up there, but the other thing that we started this
year to create more opportunities. | engaged with my colleagues, my fellow chairs, at these institutions
to create an exchange program. Many times, junior faculty do not have an opportunity to go to another
institution to be a visiting professor because they are too young, their CV (curriculum vitae) isn’t as thick
yet. What we decided is to do is an exchange, a Big Ten exchange. We’re going to send an assistant
professor to Michigan, they’re going to send one to us and then we’re going to send an Associate’s
professor to Northwestern, they’re going to send one back to us. | think that will be a great opportunity.

The other thing that we did was we set up a specific K-Award program. This is a career development
award for young people who are trying to apply for NIH funding. | am happy to say that this year; we will
have two people reapply for their K-Award. We will have one person apply for a new career development
award, and we are going to have one individual apply for an RO1 award. When a department that when
| entered had no young surgeons and scientists who were funded, within the next year, | think, we are
going to have four or five.

The other thing that | am trying to do through philanthropy is start an emerging surgeon, scientist, scholar
professorship. This is something that | think is a relatively unique idea. Most professorships go to older
people who are rewarded for a great long career. This is an idea to endow professorship to an assistant
professor that they will hold for three years allowing them the opportunity to get their career launched.
Then, the professorship would be paid forward to a new person after three years. This way we can recruit
the very best from across the country and provide them resources that they need to launch their career.

The other thing that | think is important is, like | said, all about relationships. Last year and then this year,
we have a big party at my house. | had 180 people in my backyard two weekends ago. | think showing
faculty that we value them, not only as professionals and as surgeons but as people, is something that |
feel very passionate about.

I will conclude. As the Urban Meyer professor, | must conclude showing Urban Meyer’s book. | like this.
| have this whole idea that “I don’t do ‘very good’ well”. | come here to be very good. We want to be
exceptional and | firmly believe that we will have a top 10 surgical program within five years with the vision
that we are building and with the support that | have from Mr. McQuaid and Dean Kent. Let there be no
doubt about it that is our goal. As | have mentioned, | think the department of surgery is very, very rich in
history, has a solid foundation, and we have a very bright future. | am excited to be here. It has only been
a year and feels like we have accomplished a lot in a year. It has really been wonderful.

With that, | will conclude and | appreciate the opportunity to address all of you today.
(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)
Dr. Kent:

That was outstanding and expected. It is hard to believe that you have only been here a year, impressive.
Any questions for Tim?

Dr. Pawlik:

Everyone has been supportive already. Again, it comes back to the talent in the recruitment. One thing
that I'm focusing on is philanthropy and development because | think one thing that gives us a competitive
edge is the more endowed professorships and chairs that we have, will make us that much more
competitive to recruit the superstars and to retain the superstars. In an era where NIH funding is so tight,
we need to find other revenue streams to support our people other than clinical revenue. | think these
endowed professorships are extremely important to do that.

15



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Dr. Kent:
Excellent. Thank you Tim, that was fantastic, | really appreciate it.

Our next presentation takes a little bit of a different approach. If we are going to be successful at the
academic medical center, | mentioned earlier, it is all about the teams, right. It is not just the physicians
but it is the nurses, the physical therapists, the social workers, and everybody that works together as a
team. One of the things that | have discovered in my year at Ohio State is that we have extraordinary
teams here and extraordinary people. To tell you a story that | think you will enjoy, we have asked Larry
Jones to join us. Larry is the director of our burn unit. It turns out that our burn unit at Ohio State is the
largest in the state of Ohio. It is sort of a treasury referral center where we do all of this innovative work.
Larry has been for the last 35 years an academic leader in trauma and burn and six years ago, he joined
the Ohio State team. Larry, thank you for joining us.

Dr. Jones:

As Dr. Kent mentioned, Ohio State houses the only burn center in central Ohio that is verified by the
American College of Surgeons and the American Burn Association as meeting their very stringent criteria
for what a burn center should be. That verification is based on our clinical care and our quality of
improvement program, and it is judged by national leaders outside of Ohio.

Right now, we are treating about 1,100 patients a year. Most of those are outpatients; we have shifted
from major inpatient to outpatient. Many of our faculty members are instructors in what is called the
Advanced Burn Life Support Course, which is sponsored by the American Burn Association, and focuses
on the initial resuscitation and management of severe burns. Several of our faculty have served as
national faculty for that program.

We are recognized in the burn world as a leader and the use of colloid for resuscitation from burn shock.
We are also on the cutting edge using lasers for remolding of burn scars, and are known for our unique
approach to the management of frostbite injuries.

We recently had a very difficult case and many of you have heard of the case over the news last year or
so. This was a young lady who suffered a horrific injury. She suffered very deep burns covering a majority
of her body including her entire face, head, and neck as you saw. She was an impatient at University
Hospital for over a year and then went on to other area care facilities. We were shocked when we heard
earlier this month that she had died.

But, good things came from her case. One of the good things that came was that state legislature passed
what has become known as Judy’s Law, which prescribes very severe penalties for perpetrators of
domestic, partner, and spousal abuse. Another good thing that came from this experience was that the
nursing staff on ‘9 West Doan’, which houses the burn center, was awarded the DAISY Team award by
the Barnes Foundation and Thomas Jefferson University Hospital. It is a national award, one is given a
year. That award is designed to honor collaboration by two or more people, led by a nurse who identify
and meet patient and family needs by going above and beyond the traditional role of nursing.

Some of the examples of this particular case were making sure that Judy had some of her favorite foods
(the chili cheese fries were notorious up there), seeing that she had hair coverings, lip balm, and
bracelets. When nurses and staff had the time, they would actually sit with her and watch movies and just
talk and provide her with caring human contact, which is so vital to healing.

Not to make light of that award, but | want all of you to understand that going above and beyond traditional
nursing happens in our burn unit every day. The nurses on ‘9 West Doan’ and in the surgical intensive
care unit are richly deserving of this award. They are also deserving of our thanks for the tremendous
work that they do and for being the caring and compassionate people that they are. | have often said that
standing shoulder to shoulder with every good doctor is an even greater nurse, and | have brought two
of them with me today. Tova Wiesenthal is the Nurse Manager of ‘9 West Doan’ that houses the burn unit

10

16



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

and Cheryl Newton is a clinical nurse specialist from the Surgical Intensive Care Unit. Thanks to both of
you.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)
Dr. Kent:

Thank you Larry. That was wonderful and | think exemplary of the quality of care that we provide at Ohio
State. Thank you for your time.

President Drake:

Maybe just a quick comment. | will speak fast because | know our time here is short. | have a chance to
visit the hospital every few weeks. It tends to be when there is a bad news circumstance or when one of
our students has been injured by someone else. Many of you | see on the awards and different times
doing this work that | as | mentioned to the board is going on as we speak here today, 24/7. One of the
things that you know and my colleagues, the dean, and others know is we love the successful outcomes
that we produce. We often, and | remember this so much from my career, form the tightest relationships
with patients with whom we do not share successful outcomes. We get to the point of human care and
doing our best in circumstances that we cannot come to a miracle or a good or great finish, but what we
can do is to be there with that person and do all that we can to help him or her move forward. Something
that gives me chills, as | speak, is thinking about patients that | knew over the years, who didn’t do so
well and how grateful their families were to the effort that we put forward; how much it meant to have the
privilege of being able to work with people when they are at their weakest and most vulnerable, and to
bond with them to try to help with them move forward. | want to make sure for all of your colleagues, that
you know how much we appreciate that this work goes on every day, it makes a real difference, and it
really moves us. Thank you.

Dr. Kent:
Thank you Dr. Drake. One last notation in my report, bittersweet. | want to announce that this young
gentleman next to me, Chris Ellison, is up for retirement, is that right? We all know Chris, faculty member,
then division chief, then chair of the Department of Surgery, then leading our practice plan, and then
dean. His contributions to this organization over the past 30 years have been more than extraordinary.
It was interesting, we talked about Ken Washburn and the transplant program and Bryan Whitson, and
Tim Pawlik; Chris recruited all of them. In some ways, he is responsible for much of the great news that
we have heard about today. | would love to recognize Chris for all that he is done and we appreciate him
coming back quickly as an emeritus professor. Thank you.

Dr. Ellison:
Thank you.

Dr. Kent:
That concludes my report.

Dr. McPheron:
If | could just lean in quickly, Chris you were going to say something?

Dr. Ellison:

Yes. | would like to take this opportunity to thank the university for the privilege and honor of serving this
organization, the medical center, Department of Surgery, and the College of Medicine. | hope that my

11

17



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

efforts have made a difference for the institution. | am grateful that we have been able to work together
to recruit some great people in surgery and in other departments. | am delighted that Dr. Kent is here
taking charge of the College of Medicine. He is a fabulous leader, dean, scientist, and person. Mr.
Wexner, President Drake, thank you very much.

Dr. McPheron:

Just very quickly. | work with all 19 of the deans in my role as provost. We have heard some incredible
stories here today. Craig, thanks for bringing those folks forward and Chris thanks for your role in helping
to recruit.

The fact of the matter is that | think this illustrates the sky is the limit for this place. Most of us who are in
this room are here because of the potential for the future and Craig, we’ve asked you to do some heavy
liting here in your first year as dean. It is not often that you would bring in a leader and say well create a
strategic plan and oh by the way, create a new compensation plan and, all of the other things we have
asked you to do. | wanted to say in front of the board and your colleagues how much | have appreciated
the way you have stepped in to learn your leadership role and change your style in some cases. It has
been a real learning experience for all of us as we work closely together. As | have talked to the chairs
around the College of Medicine, they are really appreciating the work that you are doing. That sky is
within reach | think.

Mr. Wexner:
Conveniently true.
President Drake:

Absolutely. Incredible work and a real important performance across the board. We have said several
times, when we were talking of the quality of the report that we were having at the College of Medicine
the way things were going and those things don’t happen by accident. Dean Kent is about to celebrate
his first anniversary. A year of incredible progress with us, we are grateful and excited about the future
Craig, thank you and congratulations.

We are able to go onto Wexner Medical Center report, Mr. McQuaid, go ahead.
Mr. McQuaid:

Ok, | have a couple of announcements. The fiscal 2017 scorecard is in your packet. | am going to reserve
time because Mark Larmore, our chief financial officer, is going to give the financial report and Dr. Susan
Moffatt-Bruce will talk about quality so | will tend them to that. | wanted a couple announcements because
of the time.

| want to give kudos to community health day that was held June 24. This was just an outstanding day
held on the east campus with 1,400 screenings performed, 401 people were screened, and 42 exhibiters.
That was 100% increase in the number of screenings and a 65% increase in the attendees. It takes so
many people to pull that off and | am really proud of the entire team of people that came together: the
representation from the university, the different colleges, and others. Next year is going to be even bigger
and better.

| want to acknowledge that Dr. Quinn Capers, one of our interventional cardiologists, won the [Columbus]
Business First Diversity in Business, Outstanding Diversity Champion Award, which recognizes
individuals within the community who show outstanding initiative to promote diversity and inclusion either
in their organization or community, making a positive difference in other’s lives through contributions to
social justice, equality, and diversity. Kudos to Dr. Capers for his achievement.

12

18



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

We had a great meeting, roundtable discussion, coordinated by Jen Carlson in Government Affairs and
her team of people, Andy Thomas and others, and Dr. Caligiuri to host Congressman Tiberi in a Medicare
roundtable discussion on August 17. | will tell you that the engagement and feedback from that roundtable
event, focusing on cutting red tape, focusing on administrative burden, and putting more attention on
patients what he could hear from leaders, clinicians at Ohio State to lessen that burden so that we can
spend more time with patients. Also, during that event, Dr.’s Drake and Caligiuri presented the
congressman with the 2017 Congressional Champion Award from the Alliance of Dedicated Cancer
Centers for his support of medical centers that are dedicated to fighting cancer. That was a big deal and
Congressman Tiberi is a great friend of Ohio State. It was a great honor to have him here and have our
faculty and staff engage with him.

Finally, what | want to say are three things quickly. The Castle Connolly Top [Doctors] were announced
in June. We, at Ohio State, have 198 of our physicians whose names are featured in the August
Columbus Monthly [Magazine], take a look at that. | am proud of all the work that the development team
is doing, particularly around WexMed [Live] talks. You know that these are engaging presentations that
were put together of medical discoveries made by our physicians and scientists. The next one is in
Cleveland on September 7. It is going to be held at the Rock and Roll Hall of Fame at 6:30pm. We have
[many] people already RSVP’ing to that, about 150 or 160 or so. They expect probably 250 to be there.

Finally, | received this yesterday and | want to call attention to give credit to Mark Larmore and Hal Mueller
in our supply chain area. Mark, Hal, and the entire team of people received an award from Vizient. This
was the Supply Chain Management Excellence Award from Vizient for the work that they had done in the
past 12-18 months that improved the physical movement of supplies, lowered the cost of those, and
increased internal customer satisfaction. The work that Mark, Hal, and the entire team have been doing
are making a difference and Vizient has recognized the Wexner Medical Center once again.

That concludes my report.
President Drake:

Thank you very much. | appreciate the incredible work that you have done with us this last year and a
half, a great report to have. We are moving, | know we are way behind, quickly on to the Financial Report,
Mr. Larmore. The Vizient award winner, Mr. Larmore.

Mr. Larmore:

Thanks. | am just going to talk to two of the slides. The first one being the health system, which is the
hospital’s profit/loss statement. This is for the year ending June 30, 2017. [It was] a very successful year
for the health system. You can see in the middle of the page that we ended the year with a bottom line of
just about $238 million, which was $33 million better than we budgeted and $50 million increase year
over year.

The statistics on the bottom that are adjusted to mission, which is just a factor of both admissions and
ambulatory volume, grew by 6%, which is larger growth than we have seen in the past. A focus this year
was to make sure that we were growing our revenue faster than our expenses to see marginal
improvement. Our revenue grew 1.9% and our expense grew 1.6% year over year. It was a fabulous year
from the health system standpoint.

On page four, we incorporate the College of Medicine and the Practice Plan into the financials, which is
presented as the medical center. You can see both of those two enterprises had successful years. The
total bottom line, $302 million, which was $89 million better than budget and $67 million better than the
prior year. That margin of 8.8%, which last year we were at 7.7%, a good improvement year over year.
Part of that was a good financial return on the market, probably about 0.7% of that. The rest is an
improvement in the operations.

13

19



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

In the middle of the statistics is the physician encounters. These are at the practice locations. It is a huge
number, almost 2.7 million encounters, which is an 8.8% growth year over year. This is a great growth. |
think Dr. Kent reported earlier on the success we have had with recruiting physicians here and we see
that in the physician visit volume. There is more detail in the deck and | can take questions on those, if
anyone has any.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)
President Drake:

Are there any questions? This the strongest financial report that we have ever had and our best year
ever. It is not something to look at lightly. We had an incredibly aggressive budget last year. We talked in
this room about what a stretch that would be and then through the hard work of the people here. You,
David, and Craig in particular wanted to focus on hard work. Throughout this time, we actually exceeded
our goals significantly. We do acknowledge that is work every day.

We're going quickly so we’ll save applause till the end. If there are no more comments, we move to
quality. Susan?

Dr. Moffat-Bruce:

Yes, thank you. Laura if you could bring up the presentation, | just have two slides. This is the slide that
| want to show you first and foremost.

Over the past six years of the federal government, CMS (Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services),
has put at risk millions of dollars initially starting with $2 million, now up to $6 million, around quality. We
get reimbursed based on our outcomes. Over those six years, we have been able to not only improve our
quality, but also our patient experience and reduce our readmission rate. Finally, this year, we are actually
getting money back relative to our performance. While there are over $6 million at risk, we were in the
positive this year based on our outcomes. You can see here the trajectory has been positive over the
past six years. As | sais, this is a composite of readmissions, quality, and patient satisfaction and | would
anticipate continued success going forward.

The other slide that | want to show the board and team members is our U.S. News and World Report top
ranked specialties. This year, we had seven specialties ranked. The 2017 U.S. News and World Report
is a composite of reputation, safety, mortality, and structure. It reflects data from 2013-2015. However, it
gets resulted in 2017, you're always two years behind. Having said that, over the past year, these seven
specialties: Cancer, Cardiology, Diabetes, ENT (ear, nose and throat), Nephrology, Neurology, and
Pulmonary Medicine, have made tremendous increases and good movement in the rankings. We now
have these seven specialties that are moving up the board. For the others that are not yet on the
leaderboard, they are very close behind having managed structure, reputation, safety, and outcomes.

Those are the two publicly reported quality programs that | wanted to let the board know about. These
are obviously very important to us because it helps us understand our true north around quality and
outcomes and how it is reflected in others as to our performance. There is some other information in the
book and | am happy to take any questions, but those two slides summarize the public reporting of quality
outcomes for any institution.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)

President Drake:

Again, very good work. There are about 5,300 hospitals in the country and only 170 get points in even
one of these at any time. To score in seven of these categories puts us in the top .5% of hospitals.

14

20



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Dr. Moffat-Bruce:
Absolutely, there are only 38 hospitals that have seven specialties ranked, so we are at 1%.
President Drake:

| apologize, | was rounding off the .5%. We were close enough. This is a very distinguished company.
This ranks specialties that fit into the top 50 across the country. We have several that are in the 50’s.

Dr. Moffatt-Bruce:
Absolutely.
President Drake:

We have many others that are very good and | always point this out. We heard in the beginning about
the quality of our academic programs and saw the incredible work were are doing there. We saw how
successful the hospital has been financially, the most successful year ever, but this is our patient quality
and safety and we are at the top of the rung of this as well. It is important to know that all of those things
are modifying each other. Thanks very much for that report.

Dr. Moffat-Bruce:
Very good, thank you. That ends my report.
President Drake:

Great. We are now ready to move on to Approval to Enter into Professional Services and Construction
Contracts, Mrs. Taylor.

Ms. Taylor:

Thank you President Drake. Today, we are asking for approval of $5.2 million for renovation and
relocation of Histology and Immunochemistry Histology labs or IHC labs. This would be movement from
the third floor of Doan [Hall] in University Hospital to 680 Ackerman Road.

The rationale for this move is defined by a few key issues. First, our past inspections by the College of
[American] Pathologists cited these areas as having inadequate space for quality of work and personnel.
This citation was based on the fact that the IHC and Histology labs do not meet basic square-footage
requirements, being 36 inches of clear passage between work stations. Currently, these laboratories only
have 25 inches passageway between workstations. This was space that was built originally without those
requirements in place but now, over time as Doan has aged, we no longer meet those requirements.

Our own internal environment of care rounds find and manage issues ongoing in these two laboratories
of inadequate airflow and humidity issues due to the many pieces of equipment that are now being housed
in this confined space. The ventilation system in Doan simply cannot keep up with the heat that is being
thrown off from this equipment. Based on our overall patient volume growth, there is demand for this type
of work being performed in these laboratories. However, given the constraints previously outlined, there
is no ability for these areas to grow their book of business. We are beginning to see recruitment and
retention issues, both with faculty and staff because of these environment of care and facility issues.

The benefit of moving to 680 Ackerman will be to enhance the operational efficiencies, eliminate
workplace and environmental concerns, and meet our regulatory requirements. This new Ackerman

space will double in size from the current Doan footprint. The expansion will allow for clinical growth,
helping to create adequate workflows, and help with recruitment and retention of our staff and faculty.

15

21



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

The services provided by IHC and Histology are not mission critical to be on this campus, as they are
really moving to a digital platform. | think Mike and certainly, other experts in the room can talk about the
digital platform. It is no longer necessary that we have them here on the main campus - 680 Ackerman
Road is a space that we have been looking at for the past year and we are asking for the funding be
approved for this project.

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
Resolution No. 2018-05
680 ACKERMAN - IHC/HISTOLOGY LAB

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into professional services and construction contracts, as detailed in the
attached material, is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached material, the university desires to enter into professional
services and construction contracts for the following project:

Prof. Serv. Construction Total
Approval Approval Project
Requested Requested Cost
680 Ackerman - IHC/Histology Lab $0.5M $4.7M $5.2M Auxiliary funds

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves and proposes that the
professional services and construction contracts for the project listed above be recommended to the
University Board of Trustees for approval; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the president and/or senior vice president for business and finance be
authorized to enter into professional services and construction contracts for the project listed above in
accordance with established university and State of Ohio procedures, with all actions to be reported to the
board at the appropriate time.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)

*kk

Dr. Thompson:
May | ask Mr. Meyers to go ahead with his resolution?
Mr. Meyers:

Thank you. This is for the Acquisition of real property of 2001 Polaris Parkway. The university would like
to purchase 9.316 acres of improved land at 2001 Polaris Parkway. The property has been leased by the
university for its Wexner Medical Center since 2004. It contains a two-story, 72,000 square foot office
and research facility. The university currently uses the building for office space, lab medical office, and a
vivarium. We expect improvements to be made to accommodate additional labs and administrative space
for the James.

Recent appraisals of the facility put its value between $6.775 million and $6.825 million. As set forth in
the option to purchase in OSU’s lease, if the closing occurs prior to October 31, then the purchase price
will be $2,054,840. If it closes after October 31, but before February 1, then the purchase price will be
$2,075,937 million. If closing cannot occur by February 1, then the university will have the option to extend
for two 30-day periods, each costing $20,000. If the university cannot close by April 1, then its option to
purchase will be terminated.

16

22



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Money from the purchase comes from the Wexner Medical Center capital budget. Because the title would
be taking the name of the state of Ohio, this acquisition will require approval from the State Controlling
Board. The Ohio Legislature, we are prepared to appear at the board at the September 25 meeting.

ACQUISITION OF IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY
Resolution No. 2018-06
2001 Polaris Parkway
Columbus, Delaware County, Ohio 43240
Parcels 318-443-02-003-000 and 318-443-02-003-001

Synopsis: Authorization to purchase real property located at 2001 Polaris Parkway, Columbus, Delaware
County, Ohio, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University seeks to purchase improved real property located at 2001 Polaris
Parkway, Columbus, Ohio identified as Delaware County parcels 318-443-02-003-000 and 318-443-02-
003-001; and

WHEREAS the property is currently zoned as a Commercial Planned District and consists of a two-story
office and research facility occupied by The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center; and

WHEREAS the Wexner Medical Center currently leases the entire building and has determined that the
acquisition of this property will support its research and lab programs; and

WHEREAS all costs associated with the acquisition of the property will be provided by the Wexner Medical
Center:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves and proposes that the
acquisition of improved real property located at 2001 Polaris Parkway be recommended to the University
Board of Trustees for approval; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the president and/or senior vice president for business and finance be
authorized to take action required to effect the purchase of the referenced property in the name of the State
of Ohio for the use and benefit of The Ohio State University upon terms and conditions deemed to be in the
best interest of the university.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)

Dr. Thompson:

Both of these resolutions are on the consent agenda by the full board later this week. May | have a motion
to recommend the resolutions to the University Board of Trustees?

Upon motion of Mr. Schottenstein, seconded by Ms. Krueger, the Wexner Medical Center Board members
adopted the foregoing motion by unanimous voice vote.

Dr. Thompson:

The motion carries. Final item is Ms. Krueger.

17

23



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

Ms. Krueger:

Yes, thank you. QPAC (Quality and Professional Affairs Committee) met yesterday and | will be reporting
the following. Both the University Hospital System and the James Cancer Hospital are required by
regulating bodies to define in writing how they effectively manage programs, services, sights, and
departments, as well as defining in writing the nurse executive’s authority and responsibility.

OSU Wexner Medical Center accomplishes this through two plans for patient care services. One, which
encompasses all the business units under Ohio State University Medical Center, its hospital through their
CMS provider number, and the other is encompassed through all business units under the James Cancer
Hospital and Solove Research Institute CMS provider number.

The 2017 University Hospital plan was reviewed by key members of a management team for the
university hospital including representation from Dodd Rehabilitation, Brain and Spine, Ross Heart,
University Hospital East, as well as the Ambulatory services.

In addition to minor grammatical changes throughout, the changes in the 2017 University Hospital Plan
for Patient Care Services are as follows: updated role for the chief nurse to reflect the current structure
with ACNO (Associate Chief Nursing Officer) and updated appendix A to be encompassing more of any
ancillary services.

In 2017, the James Hospital plan was reviewed by key members of the management team for the James
including representation from the operations leadership, ambulatory care, as well as patient care service
leadership team.

In addition to grammatical changes throughout, changes in the 2017 James Cancer Hospital Plan for
Patient Care Services are, again, updated appendix include the addition of the clinical call center, a
telephone triage department addressing established James patient needs after hours.

That will conclude my report.
PLAN FOR PATIENT CARE SERVICES
Resolution No. 2018-07
University Hospitals
Synopsis: Approval of the annual review of the plan of care and scope of services for The Ohio State
University Hospital, Richard M. Ross Heart Hospital, Harding Hospital, and University Hospital East, is
proposed.

WHEREAS the mission of the Wexner Medical Center is to improve people’s lives through the provision of
high quality patient care; and

WHEREAS the University Hospitals plan for inpatient and outpatient care describes the integration of
clinical departments and personnel who provide care and services to patients at The Ohio State University
Hospital, Richard M. Ross Heart Hospital, Harding Hospital, and University Hospital East; and

WHEREAS the University Hospitals Plan for Patient Care Services was approved by the Quality and
Professional Affairs Committee of the Wexner Medical Center Board on June 27, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves the plan of care and scope of
services process for The Ohio State University Hospital, Richard M. Ross Heart Hospital, Harding Hospital,

and University Hospital East as outlined in the attached Plan for Patient Care Services.

(See Attachment X for background information, page XX.)

18

24



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

PLAN FOR PATIENT CARE SERVICES
Resolution No. 2018-08
Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital

Synopsis: Approval of the annual review of the plan of care and scope of services for the Arthur G. James
Cancer Hospital, is proposed.

WHEREAS the mission of the Wexner Medical Center is to improve people’s lives through the provision of
high quality patient care; and

WHEREAS the plan for inpatient and outpatient care describes the integration of clinical departments and
personnel who provide care and services to patients at the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital:

WHEREAS the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital Plan for Patient Care Services was approved by the
Quality and Professional Affairs Committee of the Wexner Medical Center Board on August 22, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves the plan of care and scope of
services process for the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital as outlined in the attached Plan for Patient Care
Services.
(See Attachment X for background information, page XX)
Dr. Thompson:

May | have a motion to approve the plan for patient care services?
Upon motion of Dr. McPheron, seconded by Dr. Reid, the Wexner Medical Center Board members adopted
the foregoing motion by unanimous roll call vote, cast by board members Dr. McPheron, Mr. Chatas, Dr.
Drake, Mr. Schottenstein, Ms. Krueger, Dr. Reid, and Mr. Shumate.

Dr. Thompson:

The motion carries.

President Drake:
Great, that just about does our meeting, for the good of the org. One more bit of information that we did
not share. If | could ask Dr. Kent to say a word about the American Board of Surgery and the recent
election that they had. | want to make sure you say it so that it done correctly.

Dr. Kent:
Well that's very kind, thank you. | have been involved for the past few years in the American Board of
Surgery. Just a month or so ago, | was elected vice chair, so | will be chair of the American Board of
Surgery this coming year. | am excited about that. | think, amongst all of the accolades of everyone in
this group, it raises OSU to another level.

Thank you again for mentioning that.

19

25



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

August 23, 2017 meeting, Wexner Medical Center Board

President Drake:

And, it's a great reflection of the esteem that you’re held in nationally by your most critical colleagues and
| think that deserves a round of applause.

That concludes our meeting, thank you again to everybody for being here; long day and great work.
Thank you.

Attest:
Leslie H. Wexner Blake Thompson
Chairman Secretary

20

26



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

Total Health and Wellness Clinic
Interprofessional Learning Experience for Students

Team Training in Primary Care




THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

Presenters

 Margaret Graham, PhD, CRNP — Vice Dean, OSU College of Nursing
« Candy Rinehart, DNP — Director, Ohio State Total Health and Wellness
« John Wegman — 4% year medical student

« Shana Straka — 3" year nurse practitioner student

« Rachel Lavelle — 4t year pharmacy student

e Elana Curry — 2"d year medical student



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

Interprofessional Collaborative Practice

e Values Ethics

* Roles/ Responsibilities
e« Communication

o Teamwork

American Association of Colleges of Nursing

American Association of Colleges of Osteopathic Medicine
American Association of Colleges of Pharmacy

American Dental Education Association

Association of American Medical Colleges

Association of Schools of Public Health

Interprofessional Education Collaborative Expert Panel. (2011). Core competencies for interprofessional collaborative
practice: Report of an expert panel. Washington, D.C.: Interprofessional Education Collaborative. 3









THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

External funding for interprofessional care: HRSA Project

1) Sustain a NP-led interprofessional collaborative practice
(IPCP) clinic located in East Columbus that integrates
primary care and mental health services to improve health
outcomes in an at-risk underserved population

2) To increase the number of health professional students
skilled in interprofessional collaborative practice



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

TEAMcare Model

Patient Centered Focus
Collaborative Goal Setting

Practical Care Planning
Consistent targeted multidisciplinary healthcare team management

improving chronic iliness outcomes in the medical home

(Katon, Lin, Von Korff, Ciechanowski, Ludman, Young, Rutter, Oliver, McGregor, 2010).



THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

Student Disciplines in Interprofessional Clinic

 Medical Dietetics
e Medicine

* Nurse Practitioners
 Pharmacy

« Social Work



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

OSU WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER - ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE SCORECARD
FY2018 September Year-To-Date Results

Strategic Priorities Champion Metric(s) FY 17 Actual s 'Tzc;f:“"e'“"e' Status FY 18 Target As:xﬁ:;‘;‘?:r;e'
. Number of Tier 3 Full census survey
Basso/ McQuaid/ Kent Medical CenterSO verall Engagement workgroups reduced by | conducted November 4.15 Top Quartile
core o
46.5% 2017.
Basso/ Kent Develop and implement a plan to N/A Plan Development in Plan Developed - NA
enhance faculty engagement Process Yes/No
TALENT & : . o : 11.8% (10th
CULTURE Basso/ McQuaid Turnover Rate - Staff 13.4% 4.3% 13.3% (25th Percentile) Percentile)
Basso/ Kent Turnover Rate - Physician 9.1% 4.3% 8.9% 8.7%
) Women and URM in Leadership Women (47.4%) Women (47.8%) Women (48.5%) Women (53.0%)
Bassol McQuaid/ Kent Positions URM (10.7%) URM (10.0%) URM (12%) URM (16.0%)
Mohler/ Kent Total Awards $232.7M $72.3M $237.4M $374.9M
RESEARCH Mohler/ Kent NIH Awards $118.3M $45.2M $112.8M $178.2M
20in FY24
Mohler/ Kent New Federally Funded Faculty 19 8 20 ey 40)
Clinchot/ Kent US News and World Reporl Best Medical 31 Update Available March 31 20
Schools Ranking
EDUCATION Clinchot/ Kent/ Holliday 9% of top students matched as residents 25.3% Data Avalatie Summer 27.0% 30.0%
Clinchot/ Kent Develop an |nter-profgsslonal health N/A Under Development Develop Curriculum - NA
sciences curriculum Yes/No

Taylor/ Seely/ Lucas/ Kipp Inpatient Admissions 61,701 16,148 64,000 77,500
Like/ Forrest New Patient V'S';:SP‘F':"‘h a Physician & 127,042 21,295 131,580 166,000
N.Ali/ E. Schumacher/ Kipp Inpatient Length of Stay Index 1.02 1.03 0.97 Top Decile
Adkins/ Steinberg Emergency Department Length of Stay 424 Minutes 431 Minutes 376 Minutes 266 Minutes
Access - Days to 1st appointment for new|
Like/ Forrest patients with a physician & APP - Primary 43 days 42 Days 41 7 Days
Care
HEALTHCARE Access - Days to 1st appointment for new|
DELIVERY Like/ Forrest patients with a physician & APP - 35 days 35 Days 32 14 Days
Specialty Care
Thomas/ Nash/ Gi iser Patient - HCAHPS? 79.30% 79.10% 80% 83%
Thomas Readmissions® 12.60% 13.58% 11.39% 7.43%
Thomas/ Gonsenhauser Mortality* 0.77 0.74 0.76 0.73
Thomas/ Gonsenhauser | @3 fom Qually Based Rei $7,000 Data Available July $300,000 $2 Million
rograms
USNWR Best Hospitals - Number of Update Available July
Thomas/ Necamp Specialties Ranked 7 2018 ® S
Larmore Integrated Net Margin $301.6M(8.8%) $66.9M (7.6%) $261.6M (7.29%) $128M (2.71%)
Larmoref Taylon Seely/ Lucas! Like! Operating Expenses per AA $20,710 $20,919 $21,111 $23,198
Larmore/ Hamilton Health Plan Per Member Per Year Costs® $5,007 $5,007 $5.168 Hoat N:"‘z";" e
RESOURCE v %
STEWARDSHIP Data available Janua
McQuaid/ Kent/ Larmore Efficiency Target N/A Yt $20M Cumulative $420M
Hill-Callahan Philanthropy $ $180.4M $48.3M $130.0M $250.0M
McQuaid/ Kent Priority facilies programming on NA Froede vl 4, 4outof 4 Al Facilties Opened
schedule and under budget N P
projects
Develop focused programs to address
" community health needs in the areas of Program Developed -
Necamp/ Blincoe/ Thomas chronic diseases, opioid addiction and N/A Under Development Yes/No N/A
infant mortality
HEALTHY " o
" Tertiary/Quaternary Critical Care Access
COMMUNITIES Blincoe/ Gluck for Patients From Regional Areas 15,388 4,133 15,865 17,825
Marsh/ Blincoe Number of patient encounters in affiiated 167,259 38,906 173,491 210,087
regional locations

Meets or Exceeds Goal A Performance Up from last Scorecard Update
Caution 4> No Performance Change from last Scorecard Update
Below Goal - Action Needed ¥ Porformance Down from last Scorecard Update

Data Pending

New Patient visits updated through August 2017
HCAHPS Updated through August 2017
Readmissions updated through July 2017

Mortaity updated through August 2017
e 12 June 2016 through May 2017

Confidential | Trade Secret | Proprietary | Do Not Copy



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

OSU WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER

FY18 ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE SCORECARD DEFINITIONS

THE OHID STATE UNIVERSITY
WERNER MEDRCAL CEMTLR

)

Metric(s) Definition

Engagement Score

Press Ganey determines the metric of workforce engagement based on employees’ response to three metrics
1. Willingness to refer OSUWMC to family, friends and colleagues for employment and healthcare

2. Pride in affiliation with OSUWMC

3. Overall, satisfaction in employment at OSUWMC

Develop and implement a plan to enhance faculty
engagement

N/A

Turnover Rate - Staff

Turnover Rate - Staff is the count of Staff members who actually exit the system, leave the Medical Center.

Turnover Rate - Physician

Turnover Rate - Physician is the count of Physicians who actually exit the system, leave the Medical Center.

Women and URM in Leadership Positions

Percent of women and underrepresented minorities in leadership positions. Underrepresented minorities: Asian,
Black, and Hispanic. Health System management positions: Director/Sr. Director/Administrative Director/Associate
Exec Director/Chief XX Officers. COM management positions: Dean, Vice Deans, Chairs, Division Directors, Vice
Chairs, Center Directors, College-level staff leaders and Department Administrators.

Total Awards

The sum of all research award funding received by the College of Medicine during the period in question.

NIH Awards

The sum of all NIH Award funding segments (less sub-Awards) received by the College of Medicine during the
period in question.

New Federally Funded Faculty

Report of faculty receiving either their first federal funding (current faculty) or new faculty with new federal funding
for OSU.

US News and World Report Best Medical Schools
Ranking

The overall rank of the medical school among all the medical schools ranked by U.S. News and World Report's
Best Medical Schools.

% of top students matched as residents

The percentage of students, residents or fellows matching to train at OSUWMC that graduate(d) from top-ranked
USNWR Best Medical Schools or has been inducted into AOA National Medical Honor Society. Top ranked is the
top 30 USNWR Best Medical Schools for that specific year.

Develop an inter-professional health sciences curriculum

N/A

Inpatient Admissions

A count of patients admitted to the Health System during the reporting period. Inpatients are defined by the patient
class assigned in IHIS. Excludes normal newborns. Excludes Observations and Outpatients in a Bed.

New Patient Visits with a Physician & APP

The number of unique new ambulatory patients seen in an OSUWMC outpatient location by a provider (physician,
NP or PA). Will be tracked monthly and report fiscal YTD figures. A “unique new ambulatory patient” is a patient
that has had no OSUWMC activity (IP or OP) in last rolling three years with a triggering event of a billable
encounter with a provider in one of our ambulatory locations. Will be calculated for all departments/divisions and
include AfterHours and the ED but will show separately. A unique patient will only be counted once.

Inpatient Length of Stay Index

The ratio of length of stay to Vizient expected length of stay for a given population and time period.

Emergency Department Length of Stay

Median time in minutes from ED arrival to ED departure for patients admitted to the facility from the ED.

Access - Days to 1st appointment for new patients with a
physician - Primary Care

The average wait time for a new patient appointment with a Physician in a Family Medicine or General Medicine
office as measured by when the appointment was requested to the scheduled date of service for the appointment.

Access - Days to 1st appointment for new patients with a
physician - Specialty Care

The average wait time for a new patient appointment with a Physician in a Specialty Care office as measured by
when the appointment was requested to the scheduled date of service for the appointment.

HCAHPS Score

Percent of inpatients who gave the hospital a rating of 9 or 10 on a scale from 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest) - across all
system hospitals including The James.

Readmissions

Esti of unplanned readmission for any cause to an acute care hospital within 30 days of discharge from a

hospitalization.

Mortality

This measure is expressed as the observed (actual) mortality in the inpatient hospital (deaths per 100 patients),
compared to the “expected” mortality rate for similar patients at academic medical centers in the United States who
participate in the University Healthsystem Consortium’s Clinical Data Base.

Gain from Quality Based Reimbursement Programs

Financial gain (penalty) from CMS based programs i.e. Value Based Purchasing, Reimbursement Reduction
Program and Hospital Acquired Conditions

USNWR Specialties Ranked

Total number of specialties OSUWMC was ranked in by U.S. News and World Report's Best Hospitals; A specialty
is ranked if it is among the Top 50 hospitals for that specialty. This applies to specialties with a data-driven ranking
methodology; for specialties that have a reputation-only methodology, the number of hospitals that make the
ranked list varies depending on the specialty.

Integrated Net Margin

Combined financial reporting represents entire financial position of the OSU Wexner Medical Center including the
OSU Health System, OSU Physicians Inc, and College of Medicine. Combined Medical Center Margin includes
operating revenues, operating expenses, and Medical Center Investments.

Operating Expenses per AA

Serves as an indicator that presents a metric that accounts for both inpatient and outpatient activities and indicates
how well expenses are in line with volumes for the health system.

Health Plan Per Member Per Year Costs

Per member per year costs (PMPY) are based on the sum of all medical/Rx costs including 90 day run out and
IBNR (incurred but not reported) factors divided by the number of members with medical coverage. It is the sum of
Net Pay PMPY for medical claims and Net Pay PMPY for pharmacy claims. PMPY will be calculated on a calendar
year to align with the benefit year and allow for the reporting lag due to 90 days claim run out.

Efficiency Target

Operational efficiency will be achieved by streamlining our core processes in order to more effectively respond to
the continually changing healthcare environment in a cost-effective manner.

In order to obtain operational efficiency, the Medical Center will evaluate ways to maximize and leverage the
resources that contribute to success and utilize the best of its workforce, technology and business processes. The
reduced internal costs that result from operational efficiency will enable the Medical Center to achieve the financial
targets required to achieve the Medical Center’s long term strategic mission to provide world class healthcare to
our patients.

Philanthropy $

This metric represents new fundraising activity comprised of Development Dollars (including OSP) including
outright gifts and pledges, planned gifts (irrevocable and revocable) and private grants (industry, foundations and
other organizations).

Priority facilities' programming on schedule and under
budget

This metric represents status of programming for the 4 priority facilities namely - Replacement Hospital, West
Campus Ambulatory Center, Interdisciplinary Research Tower, and Inter-Professional Education Center.

Develop focused programs to address community health
needs in the areas of chronic diseases, opioid addiction
and infant mortality

N,

A

# Hospital Transfers

Outside hospital/facility patient transfers for inpatients accepted as direct admissions or transfers to the Emergency
Department (Main, OSUE).

Number of patient encounters in affiliated regional
locations

Total count of patient encounters resulting from the following Outreach initiatives: OSU Physician Placement,
Clinical Service Line Development/Expansion, and Virtual Health Consulting Services. All encounters outside of
Franklin county as well as encounters identified as a virtual encounter are included in the total.

Enterprise Performance Scorecard Definitions - 2 of 2

35




9¢

.|
H31LNID TVIIAIN dINXIM
XLISYIAINM ALVLS OIHQ THL,

L102 ‘| J8quIsAoN

Alewwng |eloueul{ WalsAS yjlesH
uoIssasg 2l|gnd
pJeog Jajuan) |eoIpa|N JOUXSAN

21D Ul|eaH pPazi|euosiad ul suoneAouu| ybnoay saAl s,91doad Buinoiduw

pJeog Jsjua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /10¢Z JoquaAoN



VA

d3LNID TVIIAIN INXIM
XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

G6T I\ Joud €8L'9EY A Joud
r{1Y4 }23png 786'TISY }93png
¢0¢ |enloy 86T'vii |en)oy

Jwpy paisnipy / siH payJom SUSINd/O
88701 JA Joud 69Y'ST A Jod
8S0'TT 123png 15091 }23png
29601 |en)ay 8YT'9T |endy

%6°0- 193png
salIading suolssiwpy

/102 ‘0¢ Joquisidas :papus QLA 8y} Jo4

sjyb1ybiH |eroueul
walsAg yjjeaH Ayisianiun ajels olyo ayl

pJeog Jajua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /1 0¢Z JoquaAoN



d3LNID TVIIAIN INXIM
XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

8¢

INO89S 9°TTT dLliN Ad
IN9Z8S S°LTT LTAd ung
INT98S O°'TET |enloy

2es‘srs A Joud
€86°LSS 193png
01099 |enjoy

pueH uo yse) sheq

9suadx3 JOA0 SNUINJY SSIIXJ

959‘02SS  JA Joud
TTS'€SSS }o3png
187'S5SSS |enloy
%L'9- I\ Jold
%€ 0- 193png

$350) 3|qe||043u0)

CL0‘TL9S 1A Joud
00Z'02LS }93png
¢S6'€TLS |en1oy

anuanay Sunesadp

/10 ‘0€ Joquia)das :papus QLA ay} Jo

sybIybiH |eroueul

waysAs yjjeaH Aysiaalun aje3s olyo ayL

pJeog Jajua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /1 0¢Z JoquaAoN



6€

d3LNID TVIIAIN INXIM
XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

%EEE  TESSY $ %lY 2.2 $ €86°26 $ O0LL09 $ asuadx3 J9AO SNUAAIY JO SS9IXJ
- (1) lze - 12¢ (sesso1) suien J9Yy10
%8'G6l €86 %0'€L  GEE €16 806°C SJUBWIISAAU| WOl SWODU|
%00  (€15°L€E) %Z0-  (89) (29%°L€) (5zs°L€) SjuBWISeAU| 183U [edIPa

%L'SL 9028 %EeeT  2ZLT 1/8°C6 6666 (10w @4d) suoneiadQ wouy (sso) uren

%9'9- 566685 %E0- (2€9°1) 12 129 €56°829 asuadx3 [ejoL
%€’ 6 9zZ'CL %00 - 09g‘clL 09g‘cl peaytanQ AysiaAlun/paseys
%6°E 62001 %60 €8 €2L'6 09°6 Jsaayu|
%S"6- 860°GE %L'0  9G G6V°8¢ 6ey‘8e uonerdaidaq
%L'9- ev0‘zL %L} 918 299°L. 989, S9DIAISS
%9'8- 80.°L9 %6'¢- (2LL°2) 8v.L0L 0zs‘el sjeojjnadsewlieyd pue sbnuq
%9°€¢- 028‘v.L %v0- (082) 8ve'LL 82S5°LL salddng
%S'8- £60°G2 %C0  6S 962°.2 L€2°12 Sa2IAIaG uelIsAyd paseysind/juspisay
%9'9- 816262 %L'0  90¥ 68.°C1LE €8€CIE sjjouag pue salejeg

sasuadxg Bunesado

%L L v20CT/9 $ %S0 €6.°C $ 66L°0cL ¢ ese‘cel $ anuaAay bunesadQ [ejoL

ININILVLS ONILVYIdO

Iep % Ieap 1A % aoueLeA jabpng |enjoy
Ad Joud 1ebpng | png-ovy

(spuesnouyj ui)
/102 ‘0¢ Joquiaidag :papud QLA 8y} 404
wCO_“_m._mo_O JO JusWwiale]S palepl|losuo)

wa)sAg yjeaH AysiaAlun ajeis olyo ayL

pJeog Jajua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /1 0¢Z JoquaAoN



ov

d3LN3D TVOIA3IN J3INXIM

XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

0

%9~ 7666k $ %00 L 9z6'0z ¢ 61602 $ vV Jad asuadx3 Buijessdg
%L'S €117 $ %T0 GS veovz ¢ 609 ¢ vV Jad anuaaay BunesadQ
%6'l 21562 %€"0 18 81662 990°0¢ suoissiwpy pajsnipy
%90~  18°} %S¢~ (50°0) G8'l 08°L (IND) xapuj xiy ase)d
%ye 019 %L1~ (01°0) 029 €9 feyg jo yibua abelany
%L’ egllocy %L~ (¥8L°L) 286°LSY 861 ‘viv S)SIA JusijedinQ
%9’} 88201 %6'0-  (96) 8G0°L1 29601 saliabing
%'y 697Gl %90 16 16091 8vL ‘9l suoIssiwpy
Aoy
AYVININNS ALIALLOY @31VaITOSNOD
Iep % douelep
JeoaA 10l en)o
Ad Caac png-joy SOV

/102 ‘0¢ Joquisidag :papud QLA 8y} Jo4
Alewwing AJIAIOY palepljosuo)

wajsAs yjeaH AjisiaAlun ajels olyo ayL

pJeog Jajua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /1 0¢Z JoquaAoN



134

ILNID TWIIAIN HANXIM @

XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

pJeog Ja)ua)) [BOIPSIA JBUXBAN -

/102 ‘0¢ lequaldag :papus QLA 8y} 104
Arewwing JISIA usnedinO palepljosuo)

wajsAg yjeaH AysiaAiun ajels olyQ ayl

uies| pJeoq /10g JequisAoN

%L'T €8L9EY  %L'T- (¥8L°L) 786‘TSt 86T ‘vt SL1ISIA LN3ILYdLNO 1V1OL
%60 €8T°96 %0°9- (rv19) 9ST‘€0T 71026 saSIA uepisAyd
%YLE 02T %6 €€ 61t GET'T 59T SHSIA dO 12410
%1 6Iv'y %Y '8~ (T1P) 687 87y Adewueyd
%L'C 78559 %E T 87T 76869 8LE19 qel
%S°L €69CY %9°0 L9C ST9'SY 788'st A3ojoipey
%9°C L6T0S %6 '€~ (60T2) 96S‘€S L8V'TS S3JINIDS qeyady
%19 TI8T‘L %6°L 6SS 6502 8T9L SHSIA owdYyd
%9°T Z6T'€0T %ET- (t9g'1) T61°90T 0€8v0T SUSIA d21PO/A1ID
%6'T €LEOTT %L O- (z08) 0SC'ETT 8P CIT SMUSIA UL
%ET- vr19T %G'€- (999) 9v€‘9T 08.'ST J8430 IV
%L'T 6TLTT %€°0- (8€) 6S6°TT TC6'TT ASo|odouQ uoneipey
%0°9¢ 800°T %C 9T LLT €60°T 0LT'T ASojoipey Jeuonuaniau|
%6°L- 8499 %C'CT- (78) 069 909 qel d3
%071~ Y16 %L 0T~ (¥6) 088 98L qel yied
%€ 0- IS A0} %0°C- (s09) 896°0€ €9£°0€ sainpadoid
%E L~ 6€68C %0'T €9¢ G559 8189 SMUSIN Q3
%T'T- 0S.‘9 %L'C- (ovT) 1789 G/99 sauasing
UVA % VEDN UVA % UVA 139ang | 1vNnLv A4ODILYD
Ad HOIud 139ang | ang-Lv




d3LNID TVIIAIN INXIM
XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

4%

‘POpn|ouUl ale salnjua m:_uMC_E__O ou pue
S91}1}Ud 9say} JO Yoed Ul pasn aie spoyjaw Bununoosoe juaiayiq -sajdioulud Buunoosdy pajdasdy Ajjeiauas) O} WJIojuOoDd JOU SIOoP Juawalels siyl
%9 b- 2666l $ %00 Y2 $ 9c6'0c $ 6l6‘0C $ VvV J19d asuadx3 [ejol
%L'S €122 $ %20 GS $ veove $ 6.0 $ VvV Jad anuaAay Buneisado
%1€ 89/°0€9 %82~ (0o98‘glL) €92°6.9 €0¥°099 siajunodsuz ueisAyd dNSO
%61 zis‘ee %E"0 18 8/6‘62 990°‘0€ suoissiwpy pajsnipy
%961 %€'9 %SG 6 %20 %69 %9 abejuasiad uibiep pajeibaju)
SOI4}9I\ |eroueulq
%L 62 €6L°LS $ %Vv6 8v.‘s $ €0L°L9 $ 15899 $ asuadx3 J9A0 INUBADY JO SS9OXT
%SG 9- Zro‘gaL %80 v8r‘o GzZs‘ves L¥0°‘gLS asuadx3 [ejoL
%6 L GE9‘C %V Z- (29) 0lcC lzv‘e SJUBWIISBAU| J83UD) [edIpaN
%0°Z1L- 0SS‘L %'z 602 £€99°‘Qg vsv's asuadx3 Bunesado 18U30
%L°0L 1GS2°LL %19 299 l82°0L szL‘oL peayitan0 A)siaAlun/paseys
%E’€ rAN A" %S 0" (¥9) zzveL }:1ar A jqeqa/isesaiu]
%L LL- v09°.€ %Z'S €9€‘L geL‘sl Sl uonerdasdaq
%€9- 6£9°06 %9°S aps‘s 0,866 vZE‘96 S9oIAIRS
%8°8- osL‘0L %6°€- (zeg‘2) zov‘el v62°9. s|eonnasewleyd pue sbniqg
%2 € v¥6°08 %SG 0- (vev) vrL‘cs 896°C8 soiddng
%SG’ 8- €60°'S¢C %20 6S 962°‘.2 1212 S82IAI9S ueIDISAyd paseyoind/juspisay
%0°2- gsz‘e6ey %60 220y clce‘cop LSE‘6SY sjysuag pue saliejes
sasuadx3g Bunjeisado
%6"L 6€8°6L8 $ %L°0- (2g2) $ 0€9'688 $ €68v88 $ anuaAay BuneiadQ |ejoL
ININILVIS SNILVHIdO
1eAn o, 1epn o @oueuen
Ad qeap Joud 196png png-1ov 3obpng |enjoy

pJeog Ja)ua)) [BOIPSIA JBUXBAN -

(spuesnouyj ui)
/102 ‘0¢ Joquiaidag :papud QLA 8y} 404
mCO_”_m._mn_O JO JuswialelS paulquo)

J9JU9) |eJIP3d\l I9UXIAA NSO

uies| pJeoq /10g JequisAoN




d3LN3D TVOIA3IN J3INXIM

ALISYAAIN() ALVLS OIHQ dH], @

1997

“Pepn|oUl ale saljue bujeulwli|® ou pue saijjus 8sayj JO Yyoea ul pasn
aJe spoyjaw Bupunodsoe juasayig sajdiduld Bununoosoy pajdasoy Ajjeiduac) 0} WIoJUOoD JOoU S0P Judawalels siyl
%1 62 €6.1°LS %t 6 8v/.'G €0L‘L9 1G8°99 1N
%G 9- Zr0°'89./ %80 ¥81Y°9 G2ZS'ves L¥0°818 sosuadx3]
%6"L 6E86L8 $ %L O- (2€£2) $ 0€9‘688 ¢ £68'v88 ¢ sanuanay
1ajua [edIpaA |ejo L
%9°9G2Z 680°C %9 89 LEO‘E 6LY'Y oStL 1N
%8 /- cLv'sy %09 /0€°E 90G°GS 661°CS sosuadx3
%L '8l €050 $ %S 0- (522) $ GZ6'6S % 05965 ¢ sanuanay
SHO/INOD
%t LEL- ZlLL'Y %8 0- (o1) (662°L) (60€‘L) 18N
%Z 0lL- 060°C6 %6°€ G0Z'v #08°901 665201 sesuadx3]
%Lt 292’216 $ %OV (sLz'y) ¢ 90S‘GolL ¢ L6ZL0L $ sanuanay
dNsSo
%EE€E ZES 'S %LV 1212 £€86°,G 0L.09 1N
%6°G- 6E£S°929 %2Z 0- (820°1L) GlL2'299 €v2°'€99 sesuadx3]
%L L #2029 $ %S0 €G/1'C $ 66L02. $ zse'sz. $ sanuanay
wajsAs yjjeaH
e % dVIA WVYA % JONVINVA
Ad doldd 13asang ang-1ov —=llelnkz e

pJeog Jajua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /1 0¢Z JoquaAoN

(spuesnouyj ui)
/102 ‘0¢ Joquiaidag :papud QLA 8y} Jo4
wCO_HmLGQO JO JuswialelS paulquo)

J9JU9) |edIPd\ JIDUXIAA NSO




d3LN3D TVOIA3IN J3INXIM

XLISYIAINQ) TLVLS OIHQ TH]

0

144

‘papn|oul ale saliua Bueuiwi|d OU pue Sa}1}Ud dSdY} JO YOBd Ul pash ale

spoyjaw Bununoosoe jualaylig ‘sa|didulld Bununosdy pojdadsdy Ajjelausas 0} WIOUOD O} PBpPUIIUI JoU SI }8ays asuejeg sIyl

LYS‘6E $ | ves'vig'e $ | 18e'viI6'E $ | sjassy }aN pue sanjiqer]
(92s‘v) 126'8.LS LOv'v LS pa)oL1}SaYy - S}aSSY 19N
LvL‘6S Sv1L‘920‘C z62's80‘e pajoulsalun - S}ossy 39N
(869vL) (YANA 1] Lev'le8 192Qq wad L -6uo]
(802°L) LrL'c6 €€0°26 saniqer] Jaylo
zeeL $ zes‘eze $ veez'see $ sanigel Juaiuind
LYS‘6€ $ | ves'vig'e $ [ 18€vI6E $ | sjessy |ejoL
1959 (R A :TA4 808‘VEY sjossy 19410
(z18'G1) 200‘c0S‘L 061 L8V°L J9N - juawdinb3 3 jueld ‘Apadoid
8S zso‘sov oLL‘'sov 9s) O} se pajiwi] S}9ssy
(e22'¢) €€8'G6¢ 090°26¢€ S}assy juaiing 1dyYio
8968l yov'oLy zLe'62y S9|qeAla29Yy jJuaned }9N
ovs‘ee $ zoe'veL $ zZvs‘loL $ ysed
fune | sodumces |

(spuesnouyj ui)
/102 ‘0¢€ Jaqweydas :jo sy
JooysS =20uejeg pauiquio)

J9JU9) |eJIP3d\ 19UXaAA NSO

pJeog Jajua)) [BOIPSA JaUXB\\ - bunas|A pJeoq /1 0¢Z JoquaAoN



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into professional services contracts, as detailed in the attached materials,
is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the university desires to enter into professional
services contracts for the following project; and

Prof. Serv. Total
Approval Project
Requested Cost
Health Sciences Faculty Office university funds
and Optometry Clinic Building $0.6M $28.0M auxiliaryyfunds

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves and proposes that the
professional services contracts for the project listed above be recommended to the University Board of
Trustees for approval; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the president and/or senior vice president for business and finance be
authorized to enter into professional services contracts for the project listed above in accordance with
established university and state of Ohio procedures, with all actions to be reported to the board at the
appropriate time.

45



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Project Data Sheet for Board of Trustees Approval

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building
Project Location: West 11th Ave & Neil Ave

o approval requested and amount
professional services $0.6M

o project budget

professional services $2.8M
construction w/contingency $25.2M
total project budget $28.0M

o project funding
university debt
development funds
university funds
auxiliary funds
state funds

O
O
X
X

O

o project schedule

BoT prof serv approval 11/17
design/bidding TBD
construction TBD

o project delivery method
[ general contracting
X design/build
[ construction manager at risk

o planning framework
o project programming completed October 2017
o the FY 2018 Capital Investment Plan will be amended to include the professional services
amount

o project scope
o demolish three existing buildings at the corner of W. 11th Ave and Neil Ave
o construct approximately 93,000 GSF for optometry clinics, retail, faculty offices and support
spaces
o key enabling project for the Interdisciplinary Health Sciences Center

o approval requested
o approval is requested to amend the Capital Investment Plan accordingly
o approval is requested to enter into professional services contracts

planning team project team
university planning project manager: Rebekah Gayley university project manager:TBD
AE: Ford Architects criteria AE:TBD
CM estimator: Corna Kokosing design-builder:TBD
Office of Administration and Planning November 2017

46



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

The Ohio State University November 1, 2017
Wexner Medical Center Board

CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY AND SERVICE PLAN

Synopsis: Approval of the annual review of the Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety and Service
Plan for The Ohio State University Hospital, Richard M. Ross Heart Hospital, Harding Hospital, University
Hospital East, and the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital, is proposed.

WHEREAS the mission of the Wexner Medical Center is to improve people’s lives through the provision of
high quality patient care; and

WHEREAS the Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety and Service Plan outlines assessment and
improvement of processes in order to deliver safe, effective, optimal patient care and services in an
environment of minimal risk for inpatients and outpatients of The Ohio State University Hospital, Richard
M. Ross Heart Hospital, Harding Hospital, University Hospital East, and the Arthur G. James Cancer
Hospital; and

WHEREAS the proposed Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety and Service Plan was approved by
the Quality and Professional Affairs Committee of the Wexner Medical Center Board on October 24, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves the Clinical Quality
Management, Patient Safety and Service Plan for The Ohio State University Hospital, Richard M. Ross
Heart Hospital, Harding Hospital, University Hospital East, and the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital.

47



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

0 THE OHI10 STATE UNIVERSITY
WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER

LeEADERSHIP COUNCIL
FOR CLINICAL QUALITY, SAFETY AND SERVICE

The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center

Clinical Quality Management, Patient
Safety, & Service Plan

FY18
July 1, 2017 -dune 30, 2018

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 1

48



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Clinical Quality Management, Patient
Safety, & Service Plan

MISSION, VISION, AND VALUES ...ttt sttt sre st ssessseseeseesanes 4
DEFINITION ..ottt sttt ettt sttt ettt ettt et b b s 4
PROGRAM SCOPE ..ottt ettt sttt st st s ettt be e se e e seseee 45
PROGRAIM PURPOSE ...ttt sttt sst e ss et e s s et et s e e saeesstesneesaeesseenes 5
OBUECTIVES ...ttt ettt sttt stttk ettt be sttt sttt beneneas 5
STRUCTURE FOR QUALITY OVERSIGHT .....coitrtriririeieeeeieeneiresieie et 5
APPROACH TO QUALITY, SAFETY & SERVICE MANAGEMENT .....ccceeeienineneririneeneienee 16
CONSISTENT LEVEL OF CARE ..ottt sttt sttt e es 18
PERFORMANCE TRANSPARENCY .....cociiiiiiririeeeeeieeeeeresesesesseeesessseesesesessssessnesssssssesens 18
CONFIDENTIALITY ettt ettt sttt e st s ste st seeseesae s satesaeesaneseasssesssesnsesnsesseessens 1819
CONFLICT OF INTEREST ....ovtutietereireeieieieieseseesesesesesas e e e sasssss e esesesessssssssssansnsnsnenes 19
DETERMINING PRIORITIES .....ootietiiteieeienie ettt et st seeseeesatesaeesenesaeessesseens 1920
DATA MEASUREMENT AND ASSESSIMENT ....covtriiieiereiieenentniseereieeseseseseseeieneseeeseseens 20

Determination of data Needs........ccoee i 20

Collection Of data......ccccceeiiiieceee e 2021

ASSESSMENT Of dAta...eoiieieiieieee e 21

SUNVEIIIANCE SYSEEM ... .e it eee e e e 21
PERFORMANCE BASED PHYSICIAN QUALITY & CREDENTIALING .......ccceeuenneee. 2223
ANNUAL EVALUATION ...ttt sesebeseset et sesese e e sesesessesesesenns 24

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8

49

PAGE 2



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

ATTACHMENTS

I. PRIORITY CRITERIA....... oot s b s 25
Il. LCCQSS PRIORITIES & QUALITY & SAFTEY SCORECARD......c.cooerevieeriicrereeeererieneneas 26
I1l. PHYSICIAN PERFORMANCE-BASED PROFILE ........ooviiiiriiiiiiieccctccens 27

e
THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 3

50



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Clinical Quality Management, Patient
Safety, & Service Plan

Mission, Vision and Values

Our Mission:

To improve people’s lives through innovation in research, education and patient care

Our Values:

e Excellence

e Collaborating as One University

e Integrity and Personal Accountability
e Openness and Trust

e Diversity in People and Ideas

e Change and Innovation

e Simplicity in Our Work

e Empathy and Compassion

e Leadership

Our Vision:

Working as a team, we will shape the future of medicine by creating, disseminating and applying new
knowledge, and by personalizing health care to meet the needs of each individual

Definition

The Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety and Service Plan is the organization-wide approach to
the systematic assessment and improvement of process design and performance aimed at improving in
areas of quality of care, patient safety, and patient experience. Itintegrates all activities defined in the
Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan to deliver safe, effective, optimal patient
care and services in an environment of minimal risk.

Program Scope

The Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan includes all inpatient and outpatient
facilities in The OSU Wexner Medical Center (OSUWMC) and appropriate entities across the continuum
of care.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 4

51



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Program Purpose

The purpose of the Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan is to show measurable
improvements in areas for which there is evidence they will improve health outcomes and value of
patient care provided within The OSUWMC. The OSUWMOC recognizes the importance of creating and
maintaining a safe environment for all patients, visitors, employees, and others within the organization.

Objectives

1)  Continuously monitor, evaluate, and improve outcomes and sustain improved performance.

2) Recommend reliable system changes that will improve patient care and safety by assessing,
identifying, and reducing risks within the organization and responding accordingly when undesirable
patterns or trends in performance are identified, or when events requiring intensive analysis occur.

3)  Assure optimal compliance with accreditation standards, state, federal and licensure regulations.

4) Develop, implement, and monitor adherence to evidenced-based practice guidelines and companion
documents in accordance with best practice to standardize clinical care and reduce practice variation.

5) Improve patient experience and their perception of treatment, care and services by identifying,
evaluating, and improving performance based on their needs, expectations, and satisfaction.

6) Improve value by providing the best quality of care at the minimum cost possible.

7) Provide a mechanism by which the governance, medical staff and health system staff members
are educated in quality management principles and processes.

8) Provide appropriate levels of data transparency to both internal and external customers.
9) Assure processes involve an interdisciplinary teamwork approach.

10) Improve processes to prevent patient harm.

Structure for Quality Oversight

The Leadership Council for Clinical Quality, Safety & Service serves as the single, multidisciplinary quality and
safety oversight committee for the OSUWMC. The Leadership Council utilizes criteria [Attachment 1] to
determine annual priorities for the health system that are reported in the Quality & Safety Scorecard
[Attachment I1].

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 5

52



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

OSUWMC Quality Oversight
Medical Center Board

Clinical Care & i | Quality &

Payment Patient Safety
Committee

Transformation
Committee

OSUWMC Quality & Patient Safety Committees

I UMI0 STATE UNIVERSITY
Augas: 2018 T.. AL A, O

COMMITTEES:

Medical Center Board

The Medical Center Board is accountable to The Ohio State University Board of Trustees through the
President and Executive Vice President (EVP) for Health Sciences and is responsible for overseeing the
quality and safety of patient care throughout the Medical Center including the delivery of patient
services, quality assessment, improvement mechanisms, and monitoring achievement of quality
standards and goals.

The Medical Center Board receives clinical quality management, patient safety and service quality
reports as scheduled, and provides resources and support systems for clinical quality management,
patient safety and service quality functions, including medical/health care error occurrences and actions
taken to improve patient safety and service. Board members receive information regarding the
responsibility for quality care delivery or provision, and the Hospital’s Clinical Quality Management,
Patient Safety and Service Plan. The Medical Center Board ensures all caregivers are competent to
provide services.

Quality Professional Affairs Committee

Composition:

The committee shall consist of: no fewer than four voting members of the university Wexner medical
center board, appointed annually by the chair of the university Wexner medical center board, one of
whom shall be appointed as chair of the committee. The chief executive officer of the Ohio state
university health system; chief medical officer of the medical center; the director of medical affairs of
the James; the medical director of credentialing for the James; the chief of the medical staff of the
university hospitals; the chief of the medical staff of the James; the associate dean of graduate medical
education; the chief quality and patient safety officer; the chief nurse executive for the OSU health
system; and the chief nursing officer for the James shall serve as ex-officio, voting members. Such other

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 6

53



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

members as appointed by the chair of the university Wexner medical center board, in consultation with
the chair of the quality and professional affairs committee.

Function: The quality and professional affairs committee shall be responsible for the following specific
duties:

(1) Reviewing and evaluating the patient safety and quality improvement programs of the university
Wexner medical center;

(2) Overseeing all patient care activity in all facilities that are a part of the university Wexner medical
center, including, but not limited to, the hospitals, clinics, ambulatory care facilities, and physicians’
office facilities;

(3) Monitoring quality assurance performance in accordance with the standards set by the university
Wexner medical center;

(4) Monitoring the achievement of accreditation and licensure requirements;

(5) Reviewing and recommending to the university Wexner medical center board changes to the
medical staff bylaws and medical staff rules and regulations;

(6) Reviewing and approving clinical privilege forms;

(7) Reviewing and approving membership and granting appropriate clinical privileges for the
credentialing of practitioners recommended for membership and clinical privileges by the university
hospitals medical staff administrative committee and the James medical staff administrative committee;

(8) Reviewing and approving membership and granting appropriate clinical privileges for the expedited
credentialing of such practitioners that are eligible by satisfying minimum approved criteria as
determined by the university Wexner medical center board and are recommended for membership and
clinical privileges by the university hospitals medical staff administrative committee and the James
medical staff administrative committee;

(9) Reviewing and approving reinstatement of clinical privileges for a practitioner after a leave of
absence from clinical practice;

(10) Conducting peer review activities and recommending professional review actions to the university
Wexner medical center board;

(11) Reviewing and resolving any petitions by the medical staffs for amendments to any rule, regulation
or policy presented by the chief of staff on behalf of the medical staff pursuant to the medical staff
bylaws and communicating such resolutions to the university hospitals medical staff administrative
committee and the James medical staff administrative committee for further dissemination to the
medical staffs; and

(12) Such other responsibilities as assigned by the chair of the university Wexner medical center board.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE7

54



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Medical Staff Administrative Committees (MSACs)
Composition: Refer to Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations
Function: Refer to Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations

The organized medical staff, under the direction of the Medical Director and the MSAC(s) for each
institution, implements the Clinical Quality Management and Patient Safety Plan throughout the clinical
departments.

The MSAC(s) reviews reports and recommendations related to clinical quality management, efficiency,
patient safety and service quality activities. This committee has responsibility for evaluating the quality
and appropriateness of clinical performance and service quality of all individuals with clinical privileges.
The MSAC(s) reviews corrective actions and provides authority within their realm of responsibility
related to clinical quality management, patient safety, efficiency, and service quality activities.

Leadership Council for Clinical Quality, Safety and Service (LCCQSS):
Composition: Refer to Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations
Function: Refer to Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations

The LCCQSS is responsible for designing and implementing systems and initiatives to enhance clinical
care, outcomes and the patient experience throughout the integrated health care delivery system. The
LCCQSS serves as the oversight council for the Clinical Quality Management and Patient Safety Plan as
well as the goals and tactics set forth by the Patient Experience Council.

Evidence-Based Practice Committee (EBPC)

Composition:

The EBPC consists of multidisciplinary representatives from Hospital Administration, Medical Staff, Information
Technology, Pharmacy, and Nursing. An active member of the medical staff chairs the committee. The EBPC
reports to LCCQSS and shares pertinent information with the Medical Staff Administrative Committees. The
EBPC provides guidance and support to all committees under the LCCQSS for the delivery of high quality, safe
efficient, effective patient centered care.

Function:
1. Develop and update evidence-based guidelines and best practices to support the delivery of patient
care that promotes high quality, safe, efficient, effective patient centered care.

2. Develop and implement Health System-specific resources and tools to support evidence-based
guideline recommendations and best practices to improve patient care processes, reduce variation in
practice, and support health care education.

3. Develop processes to measure and evaluate use of guidelines and outcomes of care.

Clinical Quality and Patient Safety Committee (CQPSC)

Composition:

The CQPSC consists of multidisciplinary representatives from Hospital Administration, Medical Staff,
Information Technology, Nursing, Pharmacy, Laboratory, Respiratory Therapy, Diagnostic Testing and
Risk Management. An active member of the Medical Staff chairs the Committee. The committee
reports to Leadership Council and additional committees as deemed applicable.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 8

55



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Function:

1. Creates, aculture of safety which promotes organizational learning and minimizes individual blame
or retribution for reporting or involvement in a medical/health care error.

2. Assure optimal compliance with patient safety-related accreditation standards.

3. Proactively identifies risks to patient safety and initiates actions to reduce risk with a focus on
process and system improvement.

4. Oversees completion of proactive risk assessment as required by TJC.

5. Oversees education & risk reduction strategies as they relate to Sentinel Event Alerts from TJC.

6. Provides oversight for clinical quality management committees.

7. Evaluates and, when indicated, provides recommendations to improve clinical care and outcomes.

8. Ensures actions are taken to improve performance whenever an undesirable pattern or trend is
identified.

9. Receive reports from committees that have a potential impact on the quality & safety in delivering
patient care such as, but not limited to, Environment of Care committee, Health Safety Committee,
Clinical IHIS Steering Committee, Value Based Clinical Transformation Committee, and Infection
Prevention Committee.

Patient Experience Council

Composition:

The Patient Experience Council consists of executive, physician, and nursing leadership spanning the
inpatient and outpatient care settings. The Council is co-chaired by the Chief Nurse Executive for the
Health System, Executive Director of Patient Services and Chief Nursing Officer of The James, and Chief
Quality and Patient Safety Officer. The committee reports to the Leadership Council and reports out to
additional committees as applicable.

Function:

1. Create a culture and environment that delivers an exceptional patient experience consistent
with the OSU Medical Center’s mission, vision and values focusing largely on service quality.

2. Set strategic goals and priorities for improving the patient experience to be implemented by
area specific patient experience councils.

3. Serve as a communication hub reporting out objectives and performance to the system.

4. Serve as a coordinating body for subcommittees working on specific aspects of the patient
experience.

5. Measure and review voice of the customer information in the form of Patient and Family
Experience Advisor Program and related councils, patient satisfaction data, comments, letters
and related measures.

6. Monitor publicly reported and other metrics used by various payers to ensure optimal
reimbursement.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE9

56



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

7. Collaborate with other departments to reward and recognize faculty and staff for service
excellence performance.

Clinical Resource Utilization Committee (CRU)

Composition:

The CRU committee consists of multidisciplinary representatives from Hospital Administration, Medical Staff,
Patient Care Resource Management, Financial Services, Information Technology, and Nursing. The Utilization
Management Medical Director chairs the committee. CRU reports to LCCQSS, Health System Committee, and
shares pertinent information with the Medical Staff Administrative Committees.

Function:

1. Promote the efficient utilization of resources for patients while assuring the highest quality of
care.

2. Direct the development of action plans to address identified areas of improvement.

3. Resolve or escalate barriers related to clinical practice patterns in the health care delivery
system, which impede the efficient, appropriate utilization of resources.

4. Review patients for appropriate level of care (e.g., inpatient, observation, outpatient, extended care
facility, etc.) and for the efficiency and effectiveness of professional services rendered (physician,
nursing, lab, therapists).

5. Ensure compliance with regulatory requirements related to utilization management (ie: RAC Audits,
denial management, etc.).

6. Administration of the Utilization Management Plan.

Key areas of focus:

Availability and appropriateness of clinical resources and services
OP/IP beds appropriateness

Availability of necessary services

Timeliness of necessary services
Appropriate use of necessary services

O O O O

e Medical necessity and appropriateness of level of care and related denial management.

Clinical Care & Payment Transformation (CPPT) Governance Committee

Composition:

The CCPT Governance Committee consists of multidisciplinary representatives from Administration,
Medical Staff, Nursing, Information Technology, Financial Services, Government Affairs and the OSU
Health Plan. The Committee is co-chaired by the Chief Quality Officer and the CEO of University Hospital.
The committee reports to LCCQSS and shares pertinent information with other committees as needed.
The Committee’s charter is to “Transform our care delivery model, across the continuum. We will
accomplish this through the alignment of people, processes and technology in order to create
measurable value for the organization and the people we serve.”

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 10

57



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Function:

1. Provides strategic vision and oversight of all clinical transformation activities, which include
alternative payment model programs such as bundled payments, population health
management and care redesign.

2. Prioritizes episodes of care for transformation based on their overlap with payer initiatives,
quality improvement efforts, financial performance, consumer preferences and leadership
engagement.

3. Oversees care redesign efforts to ensure alignment across business units and holds leaders
accountable for improved quality and financial outcomes.

4. Ensures awareness of and preparation for payer-mandated alternative payment programs.

Practitioner Evaluation Committee (PEC)

Composition:

The Practitioner Evaluation Committee (PEC) is the PEER review committee that provides medical
leadership in overseeing the PEER review process. The PEC is chaired by the CQP composed of the Chair
of the Clinical Quality and Patient Safety Committee, physicians, and advanced practice licensed health
care providers from various business units & clinical areas as appointed by the CMO & Physician in Chief
at the James. The Medical Center CMO & Physician-in-Chief at the James serves Ex- Officio.

Function:

1. Provide leadership for the clinical quality improvement processes within The OSU Health
System.

2. Provide clinical expertise to the practitioner peer review process within The OSU Health System
by thorough and timely review of clinical care and/or patient safety issues referred to the
Practitioner Evaluation Committee.

3. Advise the CMO & Director of Medical Affairs at the James regarding action plans to improve the
quality and safety of clinical care at the Health system.

4. Develop follow up plans to ensure action is successful in improving quality and safety.

Health System Information Technology Steering (HSITS)

Composition:
The HSITS is a multi-disciplinary group chaired by the Chief Medical Information Officer of The Ohio State
University Health System.

Function:

The HSITS shall oversee Information Technology technologies on behalf of The Ohio State University Health
System. The committee will be responsible for overseeing technologies and related processes currently in
place, as well as reviewing and overseeing the replacement and/or introduction of new systems as well as
related policies and procedures. The individual members of the committee are also charged with the
responsibility to communicate and receive input from their various communities of interest on relevant topics
discussed at committee meetings.

Sentinel Event Team

Composition:

The OSU Health System Sentinel Event Team (SET) includes an Administrator, the Chief Quality and Patient
Safety Officer, the Associate Executive Director for Quality & Patient Safety, a member of the Physician

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 11

58



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Executive Council, a member of the Nurse Executive Council , representatives from Quality and Operations
Improvement and Risk Management and other areas as necessary.

The Sentinel Event Determination Group (SEDG)

The SEDG is a sub-group of the Sentinel Event Team and determines whether an event will be
considered a sentinel event or near miss, assigns the Root Cause Analysis (RCA) Executive
Sponsor, RCA Workgroup Leader, RCA Workgroup Facilitator, and recommends the Workgroup
membership to the Executive Sponsor. The Sentinel Event Team facilitator will attend to
support the members.

Composition:
The SEDG membership includes the CMO or designee, Director of Risk Management, and Quality
Director of respective business unit for where the event occurred (or their designee).

Function:
1. Approves & makes recommendations on sentinel event determinations and teams, and action plans
as received from the Sentinel Event Determination Group.
2. Evaluates findings, recommendations, and approves action plans of all root cause analyses.

Clinical Quality & Patient Safety Sub-Committees

Composition:

For the purposes of this plan, Quality & Patient Safety Sub-Committees will refer to any standing committee or
sub-committee functioning under the Quality Oversight Structure. Membership on these committees will
represent the major clinical and support services throughout the hospitals and/or clinical departments. These
committees report, as needed, to the appropriate oversight committee(s) defined in this Plan.

Function:

Serve as the central resource and interdisciplinary work group for the continuous process of monitoring and
evaluating the quality and services provided throughout a hospital, clinical department, and/or a group of
similar clinical departments.

Process Improvement Teams

Composition:

For the purposes of this plan, Process Improvement Teams are any ad-hoc committee, workgroup, team,
taskforce etc. that function under the Quality Oversight Structure and are generally time-limited in
nature. Process Improvement Teams are comprised of owners or participants in the process under
study. The process may be clinical (e.g. prophylactic antibiotic administration or not clinical (e.g.
appointment availability). Generally, the members fill the following roles: team leader, facilitator,
physician advisor, administrative sponsor, and technical expert.

Function:
Improve current processes using traditional Q| tools and by focusing on customer needs.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
Clinical quality management, patient safety & service excellence are the responsibilities of all staff
members, volunteers, visitors, patients and their families.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 12

59



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The CEO for the Medical Center is responsible for providing leadership and oversight for the overall
Clinical Quality Management and Patient Safety Plan across the OSUWMC.

OSUCCC - James Physician-in-Chief

The OSUCCC-James Physician-in-Chief reports to the CEO of The James Cancer Hospital and Solove
Research Institute and the Director of the Comprehensive Cancer Center. The Physician-in-Chief
provides leadership and strategic direction to ensure the delivery of high quality, cost-effective health
care consistent with the OSUCCC-James mission.

Chief Quality and Patient Safety Officer (CQPSO)

The CQPSO reports to the Medical Center CEO and provides oversight and leadership for the OSUWMC
in the conceptualization, development, implementation and measurement of OSUWMC approach to
quality, patient safety and adverse event reduction.

Associate Chief Quality and Patient Safety Officers
The Associate Chief Quality and Patient Safety Officers supports the CQPSO in the development,
implementation and measurement of OSUWMC's approach to quality, safety and service.

Chief Medical Officer (CMO)

The CMO for the Medical Center is responsible for facilitating the implementation of the overall Clinical
Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan at OSUWMC. The CMO is responsible for facilitating
the implementation of the recommendations approved by the various committees under the Leadership
Council for Clinical Quality, Safety & Service.

Medical Director/Director of Medical Affairs

Each business unit Medical Director is responsible for the implementation and oversight of the Clinical
Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan. Each Medical Director is also responsible for
reviewing the recommendations from the Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan.
Associate Medical Directors

The Associate Medical Directors assist the CQPSO in the oversight, development, and implementation of
the Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan as it relates to the areas of quality,
safety, evidence-based medicine, clinical resource utilization and service.

Health System Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The OSUWMC CEQ is responsible to the Board for implementation of the Clinical Quality Management
Patient Safety & Service Plan.

Business Unit Associate Executive Directors

The OSU Health System staff, under the direction of the Health System CEO and Hospital Administration,
implements the program throughout the organization. Hospital Administration provides authority and
supports corrective actions within its realm for clinical quality management and patient safety activities.

Clinical Department Chief and Division Directors:

Each department chairperson and division director is responsible for ensuring the standards of care and
service are maintained within their department/division. In addition, department chairpersons/division
director may be asked to implement recommendations from the Clinical Quality Management Patient

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 13

60



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Safety & Service Plan, or participate in corrective action plans for individual physicians, or the
division/department as a whole.

Medical Staff

Medical staff members are responsible for achieving the highest standard of care and services within
their scope of practice. As a requirement for membership on the medical staff, members are expected
and must participate in the functions and expectations set forth in the Clinical Quality Management,
Patient Safety, & Service Plan. In addition members may be asked to serve on quality management
committees and/or quality improvement teams.

A senior quality council with representation from each medical staff department through a faculty
quality liaison will support the overall Quality Program reporting to the Leadership Council for Clinical
Quality, Safety & Service.

House Staff Quality Forum (HQF)

The House Staff Quality Forum (HQF) is comprised of representatives from each Accreditation Council
for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME) program. HQF has Executive Sponsorship from the CQPSO and
the Associate CQPSO.

The purpose of the HQF is to provide post-graduate trainees an opportunity to participate in clinical
quality, patient safety and service-related initiatives while incorporating the perspective of the frontline
provider. HQF will work on quality, safety and service-related projects and initiatives that are aligned
with the health system goals and will report to the Clinical Quality and Patient Safety committee.

The Chair HQF will serve as a member of the Leadership Council.

Nursing Quality

The primary responsibility of the Nursing Quality Improvement and Patient Safety Department is to
coordinate and facilitate nursing quality improvement, participation/collaboration with system-wide
patient safety activities, the use of evidence-based practice (EBP) and research to improve both the
delivery and outcomes of personalized nursing care, and the submission of outcome data to the
National Database for Nursing Quality Indicators (NDNQI). The primary responsibility for the
implementation and evaluation of nursing quality improvement, patient safety, and EBP resides in each
department/program; however, the Nursing Quality Improvement and Patient Safety staff members
also serve as internal consultants for the development and evaluation of quality improvement, patient
safety, and EBP activities. The department maintains human and technical resources for team
facilitation, use of performance improvement tools, data collection, statistical analysis, and reporting.
The Nursing Quality Improvement and Patient Safety Department collaborates with the OSUWMC
Hospital Quality and Operations Department.

Hospital Department Directors

Each department director is responsible for ensuring the standards of care and service are maintained
or exceeded within their department. Department directors are responsible for implementing,
monitoring, and evaluating activities in their respective areas and assisting medical staff members in
developing appropriate mechanisms for data collection and evaluation. In addition, department
directors may be asked to implement recommendations from the Clinical Quality Management, Patient

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 14

61



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Safety & Service Plan or participate in corrective action plans for individual employees or the
department as a whole. Department directors provide input regarding committee memberships, and
serve as participants on quality management committees and/or quality improvement teams.

Health System Staff

Health System staff members are responsible for ensuring the standards of care and services are
maintained or exceeded within their scope of responsibility. The staff is involved through formal and
informal processes related to clinical quality improvement, patient safety and service quality efforts,
including but not limited to:

e Reporting events that reach the patient and those that almost reach the patient via the internal Patient
Safety Reporting System

e Suggesting processes to improve quality, safety and service

e Monitoring activities and processes, such as patient complaints and patient satisfaction participating in
focus groups

e Attending staff meetings

e Participating in efforts to improve quality and safety including Root Cause Analysis and Proactive Risk
Assessments

Quality and Operations Improvement Department:

The primary responsibility of the Quality and Operations Improvement (Q&OI) Department is to
coordinate and facilitate clinical quality management and patient safety activities throughout the Health
System. The primary responsibility for the implementation and evaluation of clinical quality
management and patient safety activities resides in each department/program; however, the Q&OI staff
also serves as an internal consultant for the development and evaluation of quality management and
patient safety activities. The Q&OI Department maintains human and technical resources for team
facilitation, use of performance improvement tools, data collection, statistical analysis, and reporting.

Patient Experience Department

The primary responsibility of the Patient Experience Department is to coordinate and facilitate a service
oriented approach to providing healthcare throughout the Health System. This is accomplished through
both strategic and program development as well as through managing operational functions within the
Health System. The implementation and evaluation of service-related activities resides in each
department/program; however, the Patient Experience staff also serves as an internal consultant for the
development and evaluation of service quality activities. The Patient Experience Department maintains
human and technical resources for interpreter services, information desks, patient relations, pastoral
care, team facilitation, and use of performance improvement tools, data collection, statistical analysis,
and reporting. The Department also oversees the Patient and Family Experience Advisor Program which
is a group of current/former patients, or their primary caregivers, who have had experiences at any OSU
Health System facility. These individuals are volunteers who serve as advisory members on committees
and workgroups, complete public speaking engagements and review materials.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 15

62



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Approach to Quality, Safety & Service Management

The OSU Health System approach to clinical quality management, patient safety, and service is
leadership-driven and involves significant staff and physician participation. Clinical quality management
patient safety and service activities within the Health System are multi-disciplinary and based on the
Health System’s mission, vision, values, and strategic plan. It embodies a culture of continuously
measuring, assessing, and initiating changes including education in order to improve outcomes. The
Health System employs the following principles of continuous quality improvement in its approach to
quality management and patient safety:

Principles
The principles of providing high quality, safe care support the Institute of Medicines Six Aims of Care:

Safe

Timely

Effective
Efficient
Equitable
Patient-centered

These principles are:
Customer Focus: Knowledge and understanding of internal and external customer needs and expectations.

Leadership & Governance: Dedication to continuous improvement instilled by leadership and the Board.

Education: Ongoing development and implementation of a curriculum for quality, safety & service for of all
staff, employees, clinicians, patients, and students.

Everyone is involved: All members have mutual respect for the dignity, knowledge, and potential contributions
of others. Everyone is engaged in improving the processes in which they work.

Data Driven: Decisions are based on knowledge derived from data. Both data as numerator only as well as
ratios will be used to gauge performance

Process Improvement: Analysis of processes for redesign and variance reduction using a scientific approach.
Continuous: Measurement and improvement are ongoing.

Just Culture: A culture that is open, honest, transparent, collegial, team-oriented, accountable and non-
punitive when system failures occur.

Personalized Health Care: Incorporate evidence based medicine in patient centric care that considers the
patient’s health status, genetics, cultural traditions, personal preferences, values family situations and
lifestyles.

Model
Systematic Approach/Model to Process Improvement

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 16

63



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

The OSU Medical Center embraces change and innovation as one of its core values. Organizational
focus on process improvement and innovation is embedded within the culture through the use of a
general Process Improvement Model that includes 1) an organizational expectation that the entire
workforce is responsible for enhancing organizational performance, 2) active involvement of
multidisciplinary teams and committees focused on improving processes and 3) a toolkit* of process
improvement methodologies and expert resources that provide the appropriate level of structure and
support to assure the deliverables of the project are met with longer term sustainability.

*The Process Improvement Toolkit

Methodology

PDCA

Rapid Cycle Improvement
DMAIC

Lean Principles

Recognizing the need for a systematic approach for process improvement, the health system has
traditionally utilized the PDCA methodology. While PDCA has the advantage of being easily understood
and applied as a systematic approach, it also has the limitation of not including a “control step” to help
assure longer term sustainability of the process improvement. To address this need for additional
structure at the end of the project, the DMAIC model was added to the toolkit. With the increased
organizational emphasis on utilizing metric-driven approaches to reducing unintended medical errors,
eliminating rework, and enhancing the efficiency/effectiveness of our work processes, the DMAIC
methodology will be instrumental as a tool to help focus our process improvement efforts.

The DMAIC Roadmap

~ B £ ~ ~

D

Define

—

M

Measure )

L

A

Analyze

Improve )

€

Control )

Develop the
charter

Determine current

performance

Develop focused
probliem

staterment

Creative poisble
sobutions for root

causes

Develop and
doCurment

standard practices

Magp the process

Refine the
problem
tatement

Explore potential
caues

Select solutions

Train teams

-

-

uUnderstand the

Plan & execute

DTSN T

a - > e Monit
voice of the dats collection determine caute & Deveiop itor
b effect WMprovement plan performance
customer (VOC) plan
salasioo o
identity the k Lummarse ar
Deafine the sptidpiss ﬂ“ Determine root o - - ‘I'!“'
problem e aiutes you Wil causes of problem L plans CoOmMmunicats
be monitoring learmings

. -f waluate benefits

Implement plans

Recomrmend
future plans

Measure resuits

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8

64




November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Consistent Level of Care

Certain elements of The OSU Health System Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety, & Service Plan
assure that patient care standards for the same or similar services are comparable in all areas
throughout the health system:

e Policies and procedures and services provided are not payer driven.

Application of a single standard for physician credentialing.

Health system monitoring tools to measure like processes in areas of the Health System.

Standardize and unify health system policies and procedures that promote high quality, safe care.

Performance Transparency

The Health System Medical and Administrative leadership, working with the Board has a strong
commitment to transparency of performance as it relates to clinical, safety and service performance.
Clinical outcome, service and safety data are shared on the external OSUMC website for community
viewing. The purpose of sharing this information is to be open and honest about OSUMC performance
and to provide patients and families with information they can use to help make informed decisions
about care and services.

Performance data are also shared internally with faculty and staff through a variety of methods. The
purpose of providing data internally is to assist faculty and staff in having real-time performance results
and to use those results to drive change and improve performance when applicable. On-line
performance scorecards have been developed to cover a variety of clinical quality, safety and service
metrics. When applicable, on-line scorecards provide the ability to “drilldown” on the data by discharge
service, department and nursing unit. In some cases, password authentication also allows for
practitioner-specific data to be viewed by Department Chairs and various Quality and Administrative
staff. Transparency of information will be provided within the limits of the Ohio law that protects
attorney —client privilege, quality inquiries and reviews, as well as peer review.

Confidentiality

Confidentiality is essential to the quality management and patient safety process. All records and
proceedings are confidential and are to be marked as such. Written reports, data, and meeting minutes
are to be maintained in secure files. Access to these records is limited to appropriate administrative
personnel and others as deemed appropriate by legal counsel. As a condition of staff privilege and peer
review, it is agreed that no record, document, or proceeding of this program is to be presented in any
hearing, claim for damages, or any legal cause of action. This information is to be treated for all legal
purposes as privileged information. This is in keeping with the Ohio Revised Code 121.22 (G)-(5) and
Ohio Revised Code 2305.251.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 18

65



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Conflict of Interest

Any person, who is professionally involved in the care of a patient being reviewed, should not
participate in peer review deliberations and voting. A person is professionally involved if they are
responsible for patient care decision making either as a primary or consulting professional and/or have a
financial interest (as determined by legal counsel) in the case under review. Persons who are
professionally involved in the care under review are to refrain from participation except as requested by
the appropriate administrative or medical leader. During peer review evaluations, deliberations, or
voting, the chairperson will take steps to avoid the presence of any person, including committee
members, professionally involved in the care under review. The chairperson of a committee should
resolve all questions concerning whether a person is professionally involved. In cases where a
committee member is professionally involved, the respective chairperson may appoint a replacement
member to the committee. Participants and committee members are encouraged to recognize and
disclose, as appropriate, a personal interest or relationship they may have concerning any action under
peer review.

Determining Priorities

The OSU Health System has a process in place to identify and direct resources toward quality
management, patient safety, and service activities. The Health System’s criteria are approved and
reviewed by the Leadership Council and the Medical Center Board. The prioritization criteria are
reevaluated annually according to the mission and strategic plan of the Health System. The leaders set
performance improvement priorities and reevaluate annually in response to unusual or urgent events.

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 19

66




November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Data Measurement and Assessment

Methods for Monitoring

Patient Safety Reporting System Accreditation & Regulatory

Requirements
\ FMEA

Sentinel Events and
Near Misses

Mortality Reviews

Patient Complaints

Benchmark Projects
Managed Care
Requirements

Public R .
Harm Score / \ ublic Reporting

Audits  Clinical Registries Requirements

PEC Referrals
Vital Signs of Performance

Determination of data needs

Health system data needs are determined according to improvement priorities and surveillance needs.
The Health System collects data for monitoring important processes and outcomes related to patient
care and the Health System’s functions. In addition, each department is responsible to identify quality
indicators specific to their area of service. The quality management committee of each area is
responsible for monitoring and assessment of the data collected.

External reporting requirements
There are a number of external reporting requirements related to quality, safety, and service. These
include regulatory, governmental, payer, and specialty certification organizations.

Collection of data
Data, including patient demographic and clinical information, are systematically collected throughout
the Health System through various mechanisms including:

o Administrative and clinical registries and databases

o Retrospective and concurrent medical record review (e.g., infection surveillance)
o Reporting systems (e.g., patient safety reporting system)
o Surveys (i.e. patients, families, and staff)

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 20

67



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Assessment of data

Statistical methods such as control charts, g-charts, confidence intervals, and trend analysis are used to
identify undesirable variance, trends, and opportunities for improvement. The data is compared to the
Health System’s previous performance, external benchmarks, and accepted standards of care are used
to establish goals and targets. Annual goals are established as a means to evaluate performance.

Surveillance system

The Health System systematically collects and assesses data in different areas to monitor and evaluate
the quality and safety of services, including measures related to accreditation and other requirements.
Data collection also functions as a surveillance system for timely identification of undesired variations or
trends in quality indicators.

Quality & Safety Scorecard

The Quality and Safety Scorecard is a set of health system-wide indicators related to those events
considered potentially preventable. The Quality & Safety Scorecard covers the areas such as, hospital-
acquired infections, falls, patient safety indicators, mortality, length of stay, readmissions, and patient
experience. The information is shared in various Quality forums with staff, clinicians, administration, and
the Boards. The indicators to be included in the scorecard are reviewed each year to represent the
priorities of the quality and patient safety program [Attachment Il].

Vital Signs of Performance

The Vital Signs of Performance is an online dashboard available to everyone in the Medical Center with a
valid user account. It shows Mortality, Length of Stay, Patient Safety Indicator, and Readmission data
over time and compared to goals and external benchmarks. The data can be displayed at the health
system, business unit, clinical service, and nurse station level.

Patient Satisfaction Dashboard

The Patient Satisfaction dashboard is a set of health system-wide patient experience indicators gathered
from surveys after discharge or visit to a hospital or outpatient area. The dashboard covers performance
in areas such as physician communication, nurse communication, responsiveness, pain management,
admitting and discharging speed and quality. It also measures process indicators, such as nurse leader
rounding, as well as serves as a resource for best practices. The information contained on the dashboard
is shared in various forums with staff, clinicians, administration, including the Boards. Performance on
many of these indicators serves as annual goals for leaders and members of clinical and patient facing
teams.

Quality, Patient Safety, and Service Educational Information

Education is identified as a key principle for providing safe, high quality care, and excellent service for our
patients. There is on-going development and implementation of a curriculum for quality, safety & service of all
staff, employees, clinicians, patients, and students. There are a variety of forums and venues utilized to
enhance the education surrounding quality and patient safety including, but not limited to:

e Online videos
e Quality & Patient Safety Simulcasts

e Newsletters

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 21

68



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

e Classroom forums

e Simulation Training

e Computerized Based Learning Modules

e  Partnerships with IHI Open School

e  Curriculum Development within College of Medicine
e Websites (internal OneSource and external OSUMC)
e Patient Safety Lessons Learned

e Patient Safety Alerts

Benchmark data
Both internal and external benchmarking provides value to evaluating performance (Attachment V).

Internal Benchmarking
Internal benchmarking uses processes and data to compare OSUMCs performance to itself overtime.
Internal benchmarking provides a gauge of improvement strategies within the organization.

External Benchmarking
The OSU Health System participates in various database systems, clinical registries and focused
benchmarking projects to compare performance with that of peer institutions. Vizient, The US News

Report, National Database of Nursing Quality Indicators, and The Society of Thoracic Surgery are
examples of several external organizations that provide benchmarking opportunities.

Design and evaluation of new processes
e New processes are designed and evaluated according to the Health System’s mission, vision,
values, priorities, and are consistent with sound business practices.

e The design or re-design of a process may be initiated by:
e Surveillance data indicating undesirable variance
e Patients, staff, or payers perceive the need to change a process

e Information from within the organization and from other organizations about potential risks to
patient safety, including the occurrence of sentinel events

e Review and assessment of data and/or review of available literature confirm the need

Performance Based Physician Quality & Credentialing

Performance-based credentialing ensures processes that assist to promote the delivery of quality and
safe care by physicians and advanced practice licensed health care providers. Both Focused Professional

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 22

69



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Practice Evaluation (FPPE) and Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) occur. Focused
Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE) is utilized on 3 occasions: initial appointment, when a Privileged
Practitioner requests a new privilege, and for cause when questions arise regarding the practitioner’s
ability to provide safe, high quality patient care. Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) is
performed on an ongoing basis (every 6 months).

Profiling Process:
e Data gathering from multiple sources

e Report generation and indicator analysis

e Department chairs (division directors as well) have online access 24/7 to physician profiles for their ongoing
review

e Individual physician access to their profiles 24/7
e Discussion at Credentialing Committee
e Final Recommendation & Approval:
o Medical Staff Administrative Committees
o Medical Director
o Hospital Board

Service-Specific Indicators

Several of the indicators are used to profile each physician’s performance. The results are included in a
physician profile [Attachment 1V], which is reviewed with the department chair as part of credentialing
process.

The definition of service/department specific indicators is the responsibility of the director/chair of each
unit. The performance in these indicators is used as evidence of competence to grant privileges in the
re-appointment process. The clinical departments/divisions are required to collect the performance
information as necessary related to these indicators and report that information to the Department of
Quality & Operations Improvement.

Purpose of Medical Staff Evaluation

e To monitor and evaluate medical staff performance ensuring a competent medical staff

e Tointegrate medical staff performance data into the reappointment process and create the foundation for
high quality care, safe, and efficacious care

e To provide periodic feedback and inform clinical department chairs of the comparative performance of
individual medical staff

¢ Toidentify opportunities forimproving the quality of care

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 23

70



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Annual Evaluation

The Clinical Quality Management, Patient Safety & Service Plan is approved by the Leadership Council,
the Medical Staff Administrative Committees, and the Medical Center Board on an annual basis. The
annual evaluation includes a review of the program activities and an evaluation of the effectiveness of
the structure.

e
THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-201-8 PAGE 24

71



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Attachment I: Priority Criteria

The following criteria are used to prioritize clinical value enhancement initiatives to ensure the appropriate
allocation of resources.

1. Ties to strategic initiatives and is consistent with hospital’s mission, vision, and values

2. Reflects areas for improvement in patient safety, appropriateness, quality, and/or medical
necessity of patient care (e.g., high risk, serious events, problem-prone)

3. Has considerable impact on our community’s health status (e.g., morbidity/mortality rate)
4. Addresses patient experience issues (e.g., access, communication, discharge)

5. Reflects divergence from benchmarks

6. Addresses variation in practice

7. s arequirement of an external organization

8. Represents significant cost/economic implications (e.g., high volume)

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-2018 PAGE 25

72



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Attachment Il: LCCQSS FY17 Priorities &
Scorecard

FY 2018 Targets - Vizient Based Data

FY 2018 Targets — Hospital Compare Data

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-2018 PAGE 26

73



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

Attachment IV: Physician Performance Based Profile

- - Practiti ion C Role (PEC)
Quality Review Processes Quallty ReV|eW Process P Review determinations from prior levels of review,
including OPPE & FPPE
G?Zpﬁs(g[omfl‘) 2. Obtain additional clinical expertise from
0 ;_ treng: £ internal/external physician
L3 Notify practitioner of any preliminary
issues/concerns & request input prior to final
Morbidity & disposition
Mortality 4. Final disposition to DMA/CMO as appropriate
Review outcome (§)
IFEC Gl s Practitioner notified
Mortality Review| PEC Chair [  Dept Chair, > > Case reviewed
single egregious ¢r reviews that case going at PEC
trends in high to PEC
severity outcome
PEC Potential <
Insurance/ Managefl Recommendations
Care Quality
Notice No action — FPPE for concerns
continue OPPE
Event Report
(single egregious| Dept Chair —
[sentinel] process
or trends) / improvement
Dept Chair — plan
observation \ T
Professionalism ‘ ! No
courcl . Notify practitioner & RegliEs .
Dept Chair — Dept. Chair recommendation
Commitiee for procoring [ DePtC to CMO/ Close case
FPPE (new privilege/ LIHP Health @riaelek
new practitioner) T
indicator outlier 1
or trends 1
/ Professionalism Dept Chair —
Dept Chair Council simulation
referral CMO initiates formal
peer review process
as outlined in Bylaws
Engage
Terry Zang, RN DMA/CMO
Quality & Operations 08.18.11 1Trigger cases follow determined processes &

Contact: Susan Moffatt-Bruce

are peer reviewed prior to forwarding to Chief
Quality & Pt. Safety Officer

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-2018 PAGE 27

74



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

P
UEECCE AT W DO AT AT A N
Pttt et by P N

oy P BT G ’
e p— Sew  Ben T e
— D
Myl | e | e
e L ]
-] e B0 - ] L= W fem
Dby s e - @ m - Dae e e
P LS mame
* ¥ pim sE| 1 v arma o e Aok ien
Vo reenten i W armn o M e
' s . oem e o E ] t 1@ reapeg
A [ st | oW wma | renn
F'T"“" =
* - K ' ar mn P Nm e
e | uDae 1w armn b | 1IN e e
Com
.é_' e 8w oy T
oWy
e A NI LY ouion B
e
n_& i
-
t—.wnm e A N Gnu Wl Ll WiDws
::-.A-_l -m.
L W R oy b L - D
.
. - B A Gt WD o D
Suwa -
pra— "
- LIl LR 1 @y b . Wi
w3
20 = TS G mnp metas| | o
ey Nebas 0P we &t w0 Gas M Mwien
* v :_‘:"; e 4w an P Melae B0 Peien
— oee e o3 0 VoA e
LR
* — S b P E A L e » T e
“ﬂh xd
* — e £ LE L o o L ume L=
Cramsmy
P
* - " e . @ v e
S e -
L
— Sk TE M - o pera C - TR L S i
“' w. D 30N . ey L= % ey B0
Py Lol - @ b Dama  MT% A
f‘ L R e e ol
Rt " e ® & | | o] b
e |
bt o * wm [ @ m | | B e e

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-2018

75

PAGE 28



November 2017 Board Meeting - Wexner Medical Center Board

.y —
[ f——

L BT TSN - az ;e N )
aea e

B Bt b o e ——

]
* — ' e . & I " em e

F-rallll CEE (VNS SRRV L Ve "

I bt Lt

™ Mo e gt @ bwn b

- MRl et 4 et Ll o
f— S e p— o — v —
= Froan w8 L math § pints 05 @ bamea e Cat
-~ Wt o iy 84 o ety

. e e T e |

R e
L T LT e u———

THE OHIO STATE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT, PATIENT SAFETY & SERVICE PLAN 2017-2018 PAGE 29

76



The Ohio State University

November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

Board of Trustees

Location:

o M DN =

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017
MASTER PLANNING AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING

Alexander R. Fischer
James D. Klingbeil
Brent R. Porteus
Alan A. Stockmeister
H. Jordan Moseley
Robert H. Schottenstein
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Recreation and Physical Activity Center (RPAC)
Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
Physical Environment Scorecard - Mr. Kasey
Major Project Update - Ms. Readey
Capital Projects Annual Report: Fiscal Year 2017 - Ms. Readey
Advanced Materials Corridor: Phase 1 Design Review - Mr. Myers

Programing Studies Updates (verbal) - Mr. Myers

ITEMS FOR ACTION
Authorizations Regarding Professional Services - Ms. Readey

Approval for Fiscal Year 2018 Utility System Capital Improvement Projects -
Ms. Readey

Acceptance of Gift of Unimproved Real Property: 352 West Dodridge Street -
Mr. Myers

Acceptance of Gift of Improved Real Property and Approval of Sale of Improved Real
Property - Mr. Myers

Executive Session

Time:

77

November 3, 2017

8:00-9:45am

8:00-8:10am
8:10-8:15am
8:15-8:30am
8:30-8:40am
8:40-8:55am

8:55-9:10am
9:10-9:15am

9:15-9:20am

9:20-9:25am

9:25-9:45am




8.

Buipuad ejeq
O-¥ Jold wouy auloap JepYy, yabiel oN- A %0L< Aq 30Bie L 390w jou saoq [l
1eAY, 19618 ON-p 10l JO %S°Z -/+ UIMM joBie] JO %01 UIYNM
O 40l d wouy panosdwi Jepny, Jobiel ON-y <7 jobie] sassedins 10 s}aapy “

*suol3oalIp Yyjoq ui sbuel MOJ|9A %G [EUOIIPPE UE YJIM ‘%G — 10 + %G8 S J9b1e) ay) ‘y, AouednooQ abeleg Bunjied "299g Jod .

aBues uaalg) ayj mojaq %0z pue anoge %0} Buipualxa abues MOJ|DA [eUOIIIPPE UB UM ‘0] - 1O + JO ,,@oUBLIBAY, }aBie],, = usalo ‘puadg weiboid Juawisanul [eyded "gg Jo4 ,

[BABL. JO BUI Je palipneun ejeq “SAS JWB H0osY ore'e %L 6L 00 295 00L sonshels swy sndweo-jo "9
[eABU}OI JO B Je pajipneun ejeq ‘sAS JWB Hooey gee %6 7L~ 6 08 06 Ainful-uoN sjuaplooy oljel] G
[eA3LI121 JO 2L Je PaYpNEUN Bleq 'SAS WG Hodey (14 %000} 9 €l 4 Aunfuj syuspiooy oel |
00:5 %2 € 00'S 05 8Ty 20103 10} s|[eQ Aolid YBIH 0} awi) asuodsay aojjod abesaay '€
[eABU}al JO S Je payipneun eje 'sAS Wb Hodey V1S %101 6171 eel 6171 (019 ‘uos.e nesse ‘Aie|bing ‘Yayy) ssw) sndwed-uQ Joley 'z
QLA Jepusied 2102 00z %S 1T 00z 151 00'L {(a1AQ) ey JuapIdY 9|qepioody SHI 'L
AL3dvsS D
09€'6€9°CL %9’ L 26.'G6Y'C ¥81°689'C 26.1'S6Y'C (WOo0USSE[D + SIONSIA + SIBURJSIT + SIOMBIA) BOUBIPNY NSOM 6
“sjuswalinbal uonepiien . ‘ .
ejep 0} 8np (PUIYS] LIUOW BUO) / |0z Jsnny yBnoiyy papiroid ejeq 00002 %0°9€6 000'G 86.°LS L¥8'L sainso|Q aoeds Bunpied Aiesodwsa | Ajieq jo wns g
%¥6 =POXIN ‘% |8 =huliad ‘%p8 =jusisuel] :%dnaoQ (das-Inr) ALA %0°58 %9'L %068 %€'98 %L°L8 «x % AouednooQ sbe.eo Bunied JNM "L
%69 =POXIN ‘%¥8 =Huiod ‘%99 =jusisuelL :%dnoo0 (1des-inf) aLA %0°G8 — %G°€- %0°G8 %0°G.L %L'6.L « % KouednooQ abeleg Buniied IV 9
‘[eAsu}al .
J0 awi Je pajipneun ejeq ‘syuswisnipe wajsAs aunbas saynol [euonppy 000°576°€ PAN %96~ 000508 Le'les 616'8LL SI9pPIY S8VO 'S
"21ep-0} |04 a)sodwiod Bay %008 — %L°9~ %0°08 %L %E L sBp|g Yyoiessay/olWapesy pauoiipuoy - % xapuj uolpuod Ajjioe |
1L A4 J8uend Yy Bumoys ‘Aluepent painsesw si oUBN N 2°86€$ NN %9°22- N Z'86€$ £'80€$ 1'2/€$ « puads weibo.d juswiysanu) [eyded ‘¢
%006 %C'6 %0°06 %€'86 %0°56 196png uo paja|dwoy sjoafold [ej0L1% ‘Z|
%006 AN %€ L~ %0°06 %888 %€E’16 awi] uo payadwo) sjoafold [ej01% |
AVNOILVY3dO "9]
SLY'v6C'reELS _! %8'L- _ £1€'290°'8€$ €92°0L1'Ge$ 9¥1'980°cE$ (spung sbuiuiez g [esous9) sesuadx3 BuneradO J0L dBY )

TIVIONVNIA V|

(QLA LLAd)
abpn [JFE)
oumm_” ._.m.: oy | LNIWNOMIANS TVOISAHd

Jold [enjoy

(196png)  [jebiel
sjuswwo) jobue] jenuuy SA
8LAd |enjoy

9)eQ-0L-1ed\ 8LAd

210z Jequieides ybnoiyl | 1A 8LA4 ALISMAAIN( HLVLS OIHQO FH ] o
Bunesyy pieog /10Z J9qWIBAON

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



6.

/.10 1I°9qUDA0ON

N0Z$ 19AQ syoslold

sajepdn 108loud Jole

ALISHHAIN() d1LVLS OIHQ HH], @

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



08

oes voson [N

c oeJ] uo daay 01 uay el 8ulaq aJe suoide — A[9so|d uiyolepn

)oes uQ Aoy

N1 6ES A, A sepelbdn wnipeis olyo

NO'S6$ 2 Juswaoe|day |eiued 83sod

NO'tv2Z$ 2 xo|dwo) uoIONPOId POOH JUSWUOIIAUT PI||0JjJU0D

N9"LG$ % % | 8SEyd — UOREI0|9Y dAlIQg uouue)d

NL65$ A’ | 8seyd — JOplIOD S[els)e|\ pSOUBAPY

INO"9Z$ % uoljeAousy/uoisuedx3 Buip 1s9M —3sB3 NSO

N8 LZ$ A, % J8jua] |[ED PSIEPIIOSUOD — UBWIBNIY 00L

NL6v$ % A Buipsaim sbujuuspiods-nin fj1erod

NO'€V$ % 2 18jua) Juswdolana a)e|uiy-juspnis Jexyewnyos

INO"09$ a % INO pling peg-¢/ — 4181ua |EJIPSIA JSUXIAA

NG LES % 2 uolsuedx3 uiB}susoyos

IN6'6S$ 2 2 uoljeAnouay s|ieH AsxQ pue suaiawod

139adng 3FNILNO 139dng uod sed 103royd

NO STVAONddY

INOZS H3INAO S1D3r0dd — LHOd3d SNIVLS 1D3r0oyd

xuisuaaing awvis oo aal. [

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON




18

m” 198png up [wi] uQ

8T0T Y2Je|Al Ul 919|dw0d 03 Pa32adXa S| 9USIBWOJ Healq J9IUIM J0) Pa|NPaYdIs
ul-aAow Yum ||eH A3|xQ ul pajjeisul 8uiaq si ainjiuing ‘Aemiapun S| uol1el01Sal
JO1J931UI/I0119IX3 pue 333|dW0I e YIOM JUdWIeqEe PUB Uo}jowa(

_uw_quuO saoeds 9y} pue wu.w_QrcOu SI UOoI1dNJISUO0I suowwo) Jaxed

31vadn 123royd
aueq|io ySiJ 1e JaSeuew UOI1INIISUOD
S9)BI1D00SSY Y200y pJ023J JO 19311YdJe
SINVLINSNOD
8T/€-ST/01 uoI32NJ3sU0d IN6'65S }3foid |e10}
v1/8 |enosdde jog NT 8YS JUOJ /M UOI1dNJISUOD
31NA3HIS 103rodd 139ang 133rodd LNJddNd

spuny a1e1s ‘spuny AJeljixne
DNIANNL 133roydd

S9JIAJISS
A¥[1qesIq 4O 32140 B3 JOj SUOWWO)D Jaxeq Ul 4S9 00S‘LT 1eAouy

SeaJe 92uUaJ94u0d/3ullPaW pue

‘s901J40 ‘sqe| Jo3ndwod ‘9oeds |euoilonJIsul/woousse|d apn|dul sadeds
‘syuswedap sa1Isin3ul] pue ‘Uy Jo AJoisiH ‘sonAjeuy eyeq/sanAjeuy
ejeq |euolle|sued) 404 s|jleH AS|XQ pue auaJawod 91eAOUdY

NOILVAON3Y ST1VH A31XO ANV IN3IHIINOJ

ALISYAAIN( ALVLIS OIHQO THL

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON




._u 198png up

4]

awil uo

ssa480.4d ul aJ4e uodNJIISU0d

Jouaul paseyd pue yJom 33is ‘919]dwod S| 91n3oNJ3s [933s uolippe Sulpjing

MO|e|\ uolieg

ragn
8T/L-LT/S uoI112NJISuU0d
ST/8 |enoidde jog

31NA3IHIS 1D3royd

31vadn 123rodd

Jsuale Jageuew UoINIISUOD
pJ05aJ JO 10911ydJe

SINVLIINSNOD

ING'TES 12loid |ej03
INO' LTS 1U02/M UO0I12NJISUOD
1395aN4g 133r0dd LN3HH¥NI

109p AusJaAlun {spuny uswdo|ansp

ONIANN4 1J3r0dd

3uip|ing ays o 1saJ4 3yl yum wAs ao130ead mau ayy usije
pue ‘AJ3ua ypou mau e 93eaud ‘Sad1440 Apn|dul ||IM uolppe 3ulp|ing ayl

suollesado

9J01S Wea} pue 321440 19213 9Y1 404 Alljeuoiouny pue A|IqISIA panosdwi
apinoJd pue s321440 wes3oid spods mau 93eaJd ‘9S1N02U0d 3y} apelddn

NOILVAON3Y 3SHNOINOIJ ANV NOISNVdX3
HLYON — 431N3D NIFLSN3ILIOHOS

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON

e -
: ,V/Jfot . ¢
N

i I8
|

ALISYAAIN( ALVIS OIHQ TH].




€8

198png up awl] up

Si00|4 ||
uo Suiwedy ||lem jo uod|dwod Suieau ‘8ul03uUo SI JJOM UOIIINIISUOD

31vadn 133rodd

pJoJ|3 J0}oeJUOD |eJ3udd
INOD3IV pJodaJ Jo 1091YydJe
SINVLINSNOD
8T//-L1/S  UOI}dNJISUOD INO'09$ }3foid |e30}
9T/1 |enosdde jog INO'€ZS  1U0d/M UOI1ONJISUOD :
e u”a.“llrli!!.lql gt
31NA3IHIS 123royd 139dN4g 1J3rodd LN3¥¥ND LS

spuny Asejjixne
ONIANN4 133rodd

juswdinba ASojouyoal
pue |eaipaw 4o} INOZS Alerewixoadde sapnjoul 198png 10afoad ay
"Spaq jualied ppe 01 S100|} ,,ZT Pue ;0T Yl uo adeds pPa||ays 1no p|ing

1NnO
aling d3ig-<Z — 431N3D TVIIAd3IIN HINXIM

ALS¥AAINA 21vas otHQ aHL [

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



¥8

198png up awl] up

9|npayds uo 3uissasdoud 109[oud peod Juadelpe
pa19|dwod Suiwedy |993s

2|NPayds uo sanuiluod uolldNJIIsuod 109loud

31vadn 133rodd ey
bLall |
1]]19sny 3514 Je J38euew uoi3dNJsuod
MOH pJodaJ Jo 1091ydJe
SINVLINSNOD
8T/0T-LT/v uoI1319NJISU0d INO'EVS }3fo.d |e10}
S1/8 |enosdde jog L LES JUO02/M UOIIONIISUOD
31NA3IHIDS 103rodd 1395aN4gd 133rodd LNJHdNd

193p AlsIaAIUN ‘spuny juswdolanap
SNIANNL 193r0Yd

J91U3) 2119|Y1y seAeH Apoopn ays jo
1S9M ay3 01 pajedo| ‘Ajljioed s381g Suiisixa ayil adejdau ||Im Anjioe) sy

(EXT PR
na o

$921440 pUE SWOO0J J3)20]| ‘W00l
juawdinba ‘swooJssed ‘eale Sululp ‘Suluoilipuod olpJed pue Suluiely
1yS1om 1o} sa111[1984 YIIM J91Ud Sululel] 2133|Yyle MU e 10NJisuo)

d431N3D LN3IINdO13A3IA
J13THLV-1N3IANLS YINVINNHIS

ALISYAAIN( ALVIS OIHQ TH]. 4

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



G8

198png up awl] up

w1} uo 3uissasdoud 109(oud peou Juadelpe
919|dw o2 s Sulwedy |991S

Aemuspun si uoi3onaisuod 3afoid

31vadn 123roydd
aueq|io 3S1J e J38euew uoI3dNJIISUod
uejoN Apoop pJ0o2aJ Jo 1991YydJe
SINVLIINSNOD
61/S-LT/9 uoI13oNJISU0d NL6YS }3(04d |e30)
S1/8 |enosdde jog NZ0YS JU02/M UO112NJISUOD
I1NA3IHIS 103r0Yd 135AaNg 113rodd LN3YUN2d

spunj Jusawdo|aAap
ONIANN4 133roydd

3ulj1saJ4/\\ S, USIAl pue ‘sa13seuwAn ‘Suidua4 S,USWONN
pue s,ud|A 40} 31s uoilRdwod awoy 3yl 3q os|e [|Im Ayj1des syl

SW0O0J JXI0| JO}SIA pue dwoy
duipnoul sweay [|eqAs||oA AliSieA S,USWONN pUe S,UdIA J0} dWOoY 3y}
SEe 9AJ3S 03 10143SIP S2119|Y1Y Y3 Ul BUDJE 1J0dS-13|NW MIU B 30NJISU0)

ALITIDV4 32110VHd ONITLSIUM ATINVA
SONINN3r / YNI¥V LYOdS-IL1ININ 1T173A0D

ALISYAAIN( ALVIS OIHQ TH].

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



98

8 198png up awl] up

JedA sy Jo pua ayl Aq paoadxa s yJom g aseyd

|e211193]3/|eDIUBYIDW
pue J03eAl|d ‘4ood ‘quawade|dau sse|d Suipnoul ‘undaq sey y4om T aseyd

sanuuod udisap 30afoad

31vadn 133royd

Suisoyoy/euto) 3S1J 18 J98euUeW U0I3INJISUOD
uolsaud g Ajjsuuo( ||9poH J491xeg pJ023aJ Jo 123311Yydie
SINVLINSNOD
6T/TT-LT/8 uo11dNIISU0d NS'TTZS 13fo.d |e10)
LT/T |enosdde jog INE'6TS 1U0J2/M UOI12NJISUO0D
31NA3HIS 1D3rodd 139an4g 123rodd LNIY¥ND

spunyj Asejjixne
ONIANNA4 1J33royd

uBWI Y

00/ ul stluswarosdwi Jueual sapn|dul z aseyd ‘swalsAs |ed14109]9/|edlueydsw
pue Jolend|d quawade|dads Jood Quawade|dads sse|d sapnjoul T aseyd

uewJaIY 009 pue
UBWIAYIY 099 104 SUOIIBAOUSI JO1J9IUI JOUIW SWOS dPN[oUl OS|[e [|IM 303[0id

doueljdwo) |eudsoH pue suoiesadQ 91e40di0) ‘Ue|d Yi|eaH ‘921AISS Jawoisn)
pue ulnpayas [eJiua) ‘sueisAyd NSO asnoy 01 uoizeaouad uipjing ||n4

d43L1N3D
11VI d3LVAITOSNOID — NVINHINDV 00L

ALISHAAIN[ d1LVLS OIHQ dH L 4 @

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON




18

198png up awl] up

Aemuapun s Suiwwesdoud 129(oid

11vadn 153royd

pJoj|3 3S1d 1e J9deuew UOIIINIISUOD
ue|oN Apooy pJ023J JO 19931ydJe
SINVIINSNOD
6T/T1-81/9 uoI32NJ3ISU0d INO'9TS 13[0ud €30}
LT/9 |enosdde jog N6'€TS 1U02/M U0I10NJISUOD
3TNAIHIS 103r0dd 135dNg 103rodd LN3d4NI

spuny AJerjixne
DNIANN4 133royd

2JU31I2dX3 |eAll e
juaned ayy 01 sjuswaaoldwi pue ‘Suidew ‘sadeds NJyd/aA11e19d0o
-94d ‘swoou 3uijesado apnjoul sadeds papuedxa pue pajeAoudy

Jamo3 |eyidsoy ay3 Jo Suim 1Sam ay3 4O 40O}
PU02J3s 3yl UO 4S5 006‘ET JO uoisuedxa pue 4S5 00S‘ZT JO UolleAoudY

RS TRRL L PR

\BART 1A Faama e

NOILVAONIY/NOISNVdX3

|
n
!
]
|
n
m
DNIM 1SIM - 1SV3 NSO .

ALISYAAIN( ALVIS OIHQ TH]. 4

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



88

O r 198png up [wi] uQ

sanuiluod JuswdolaAap udisap

1vadn 133royd
1[19SNY Jsule Jadeuew uoI1dNJlsuod
IIIM pue supjIad/uejoN Apoo P03 JO 193)IYD.E
SINVLIINSNOD
6T/71-8T/¢  UOINIISUOD INT'65$ pafoud H|_
91/6 leroudde |og INTESS U03/M Joponuis=t

I1NAIHIS 1I3r0Yd 1390N4 1J3r0¥d INIR /|

SWOOJSSE|D PUB ‘S3d1440 ‘Sqe| Youeasad -
9)eaJd 0} e BUBIUOH PUB (BT 3|40 JOWIO) 3y} JO UOIIBAOUY |

[3sVE
- ¥OQI¥Y0I STVI¥ILVIN GIINVAC

[

ALISYAAIN() ALVIS OIHQ FH], 4

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



68
_‘ _‘ 198png up - [wi] uQ

|euollesado si 921A13s 3133nys Sujied sndwed 1S3\

uoIldNnJlsuod
104 PasO|d Ssey aAlI(Q J9]1ua)) |EJIPIIA pUuB anUBAY ;¢ T UsaMla(q aAlIg uouue)

9|npayds uo pue Aemiapun aJe s3oafoad 3uljgeus
3lvadn 133royd

40310eJ41uU0d _mgwcwm

3uisoy0)
U] ‘IHING pJ023J Jo 1091ydJe
SLINVLINSNOD
6T/CT-LT/8  U0IONJISUOD N9'TSS 109/0.d |30}
9T/11 |enosdde jog NT ¥S 1U02/M U0I10NJISU0D
31N@3IHIS 113royd 139an4g 123rodd IN3¥INI

spuny AjisJaniun
DNIANNL 1L33roYdd

8uideoaspue| pue seaJe UOI}EIII [BWIOUI ‘D8P3 SIDAI BY}
JO UOI1BJ01SDJ BY) SE ||]aMm Se ‘Juawdolanap aining anias o1 Suidid 3no gnis pue
dAIIJ UOUUERD P31EJ0|3J BY) JIPUN SBUI| 9IIAIS AM[13N SPN|IUL OS|E [|IM IO

.
+ B
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

*JUDAD WI01S JedA

-00S @Y1 wouj sndwed ay3 199104d ||Im ‘DA1IQ s9AeH APOOAN 01 9ALIQ YOIII9H
WoJ} ‘Z 3seyd ‘|aA3| pooy} JeaA-00G 2yl 9A0ge SALIQ YILIISH pPUB NUBAY
gury usamiaq aALIQ uouue) asied ‘snquinjod Jo Al ay3 yum diysiauried uj

T 3SVHd — NOI1VIOO134 IAIH4A NONNVYD

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



06

N r 198png up [wi] uQ

Aemaapun sj uoi3o9|as weay ugisap

11vadn 123royd

aglL YIS 3 Ja3euew UOI3INJISUOD
adal pJ023J JO 1931YydJe
SINVLINSNOD
6T/TT-8T/8 U01INJIISUOD INO'tTS 109/0ud |e10)
L1/9 |lenosdde jog INZT'TZS  1U02/M UOI1dNJISUOD
31NA@3IHIS 133royd 135dN9 133rodd LNIJUNI

spuny Juawdojanap
ONIANN4 193r0dd

A314n23s pooj |euoilipes) pue uegJn ssaippe 03 Aljioey
soluodenbe pue xajdwod asnoyuaaJg 81N} NdI3I0Y MaU e 10NJISU0D)

X31dINOJ NOILONAOYd
dOOd4 LNJININOYIANI dITT10HLNOD

ALISHIAIN( d1LVLS OIHQ dH ],

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



16

m r 198png up [wi] uQ
Ed
un8aq aney yJom Suljgeua pue adeds Suims i , I1eH
Buinon-Buijieis
sanuuod ugdisap 3foud | |
_ IIeH
3lvadn 123royd uojjiweH
.u_JC?( .
Vil
aueq|io 3Sid e J98euew uoI3dNJIISUOD
S109}1YydJy UJ31S "\ 'V Moqoy 103)YydJe ugdisap HH _
dnoJuo udisaqg pJ023J JO 199)YydJe 5
2 auidg » uieig
SINVLINSNOD § s
b L 3SYHd
02/T-81/¥ uoI32NJ3su0d INO'S6S 33[0id |e30} 2 [
91/6 |[enosdde jog NY'S8S JUOD/M UOI32NIISUOD *
. o AT IS8 |
31NA3IHIS 133rodd 135ang 133rodd INJY4ND |- - julnjenuad  8isod
R o -]
1939p AsJaAlun spunjjuswiedap ‘suonersdoidde a1e3s ‘Juswdo|anap — :
uaay WZ1
DNIANNL 133rodd
duim 1s9Mm ay3 jo suoipod 1 :
apes3dn/ajeAoual pue Suim 1ses ayl Jo uolliod uiayinos ayi ade|day |1eH sBuiuuar
IN3INIOVId3IY 1VILHVYd 311SOd

ALISHAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ dH],

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON



c6

vl 198png up awl] up

J3QUIBAON U UOI3dNJISUOD UISaq |[IM ‘SUOIIBAOUD

930| pue ayns ‘¢ aseyd pue ‘uoseas ||eq1004 3yl Sulinp asned ||Im ‘sapesddn
[e2113039 ‘dIND 7 9seyd ‘3|npayds uo SaNUIUOI ‘SUOIIBAOU 9MNS pue
sJiedaJ 91940u02 uipnoul ‘T aseyd ay1 ‘saseyd a|diyjnw 430 SI y4om 123(oad

31vadn 123royd
MO|e|\ uolieg 3S1d e Ja8euew uoI3dNJIISU0D
8ueaui3ug uioqsQ pJ023. J0 1991YydJe
SINVLINSNOD
02/8-L1/€ uoI32NJ3sU0d INT'6€S 33[0ud |e30}
9T/v |enosdde jog NT VES 1U02/M UOI1DNJISUOD
31NA3IHIS 123rodd 135aN4g 133rodd LNIHYND

109p AusJaAlun ‘spuny Asejjixne
DNIANN4 133royd

SUOSEas [BJDASS JaAO0 paseyd a4 ||IM 3JOM UOIIINIISUO)

saxoq
280| pue $21INS JOUOP |BUOIIPPE PUE S31INS SUIISIXD JO 1BAOUD ‘Bulleas
280| Jo UoIIPPE Y3 ‘UOIIEI01SAJ pUE SUI1EOD 91340U0D ‘Sapes3dn |ed1309|9
Suipnjoul wnipels syl anoudwi pue azjuiapow 03 s193foud |BIDASS JO S1SISUOD)

S3AviSdn NNIAVLS OIHO

xuswaAinn awvis omo an. [(J

buijes|\ 88)IWWO) Sallljioe pue buiuue|d JelSe|\ - bunas| pJeog / |0z JoquIsAON




€6

/. 10¢ 1edA |BeOSIH — tOQ@W_ lenuuy

sjo9lold |enden

o~

ALISHIAIN( FLVLS OIHQ FHL @

Bunssy san1WWOD sanijoed pue Buluue|d Jo)sel - Bunesy pJeog /10g JoqUISAON



¥6

uoisuedx3 yUoON — Jojuad) uIs)suspoyos sopelbdn wnipeis olyo

Jajua) Juswdojarsq 818|yiy-luspnls Jeyewnyos BUaly LOdS-NINIA 1]|8A0D

/LA — S@9)snu] Jo pieog ay) Aq parolddy sjosloid

ALISHAAIN( ALVLS OIHQ FHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



G6

| | | | ING'89$ A A jue|d J3[[1yD |euolday ise3

_ _ _ - INP9S A A s109[0u4d Juswade|day |suung

_ _ | _ W9'LTS A A |endsoH auids pue uieug
INSTS A A |[eH Juno

| | | | APS A % |[EH BUBPY —}JEMIN
135ang JNIL 135dang uoj sad 12310dd

NO NO
S1VAOYddV

/LA ul pajajdwo)) sjoaloid panoiddy pieog

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



NG LZL LS INO'C669%

NL'ES Wy €G$ Ll vl Apmig
WNL'8LLS N9'G9P$ 891 €52 uoiONISU0Y
NL9LES N1 96€$ G8 26 Buippig/ubiseQ

N9'€8$ NG'9.$ papund/buibiaw3

pug JesA |eosld / 10z JO se sjoslold aAnoy

ALISHAAIN( ALVLS OIHQ FHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



16

sanvIYlvY
aJnjonJisesju| m
S92UBI0S Y}|BdH/|edIPSI =
Hoddng olwapeoy/olwspedy s

9JIT juspniS m

rroviiiain IN8'¥LZ$ = sainypuadx] [ejo]
L1 A4 —1ouisig Aq sainyipuadx3 [ejo)

ALISHAAIN{) FIVLS OIHQ FHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



86

LTAd 9TAd STAd PTAd €TAd CTAd TTAd OTAd 60Ad 80Ad
S
00°00T$
SanvIulY .
08'vLe$ 00°007$
alnjonJiselju|—
S9oUBID BOH/|e2IpaN—
19S U}|e|H/|edIpalN o 0SS |
Hoddng olwapeoy/olwspedy — ooz 00008
9JI7 Juspn}jS— 018264 oreles
_MH.OI_II 00°00%S
05c.€$
06 Lv¥$ 000055
or'cLs$
09'96v$
00°009$

sisAjeuy A JeaA Ol — 1ou1sIg Aq salnjipuadx3 |ejo|

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



66

wnasnp\ pue Alelqi] uooue) puejal] Ajjig pue [|eH JUBAI|INS J0J YSiy Je Jebeuej) uolonisuo)
10BJJUOD WJOJBJ UOIONJISUOD 1S.I) 01Ul SI8JUS AJISIBAIUN BY|

2102 ‘G Aey

SJUBWINDO0(] J0BNUOD YHIND PUE €G] gH Juswa|dwi 0) panss| Sa|Ny SANBASIUIWLPY

2102 ‘¢l Aeniged

abenbue| 10B11U0D puk SajnJ aAnesSIuUlWpe 8sodold pue 1Ipe ‘MaINSY .
dnoub Bunjiom saysijgelse

‘UOISSIWIWIOY) UOIJONJISUOY) Saljljioe4 OIyO puUe a1y S,|etauas) Asulony ayl yum ‘AJisIaniun ay|
sjuUsWNO0( 1oeJIU0) a)epdn pue sajny aAleJISIuIWPY Jelq

2102 ‘0l Adenuge4 — 1102 ;_3,

€ql lilg esnoH wcm_w yaolse)| JIOUIBA0L) .

L1L0Z ‘0¢ sunr

punoJb)oeg wliojay UoI}ONIISU0)

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



(/0]

Ajienp
1S0O
a|npayos
Aixajdwo)

:so1)suv)oeIey9 108loid Ag usaup poylaw AlsAle(

Bbunoenuo |eJauas) .
pling-ubiseq .

YSIY 1e Jabeugy UOIONIISUOD) .
:9pN|oul 0}

paziioyine sjosloud Juswanoidwi o1ignd Jo AlaAldg

punoJb)oeg wliojay UoI}ONIISU0)

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



ALITVNO

1S0D

1012

%81 INOS TS 98¢ Bunoesuo) [essuss
%ES'E %81 NYSY$ 19 (@) piing-ubiseq
%CC'T %G9 g99°L$ (HIND) MsiY 1e Jabeue|y uoionIsu0)

9oualJadX3 WJojay uolonJIsuo)

ALISHAAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FH]L

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



4]

sse20id ubisep Buunp ndur Aypgejonisuo)

Bunoesiuod 0] sjuswaAoldw| e wea) 108loid pajesbaju| .

SJ0JOBJIUOD UOI}2NAISU0D Buippig Yooq uadQ
|leuolssajoid 0] sYIys ysu 108lold BUIPPIq
s|esodo.d annnadwod pue uonedonied Jaumo

90lld wnuwixel\ peajuelenc) . UlIM SJojoeajuoogns paljljenb-ald

Buiseyd uononisuod snoabejueApy . }oyJew O} aWl| e

Bunewnse peoueyuy . UOI]09|9S poaseq an|e)p

dd pue HIND

paouslladx3 s)ljausag

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



€01

g9G6°2% arsL$ anje/ 108loid aAnenwng
9¢¢ XA sj09loid pale|dwon
2102-210¢ 2102-,00¢ uosuedwo) peoyIop

/102 JaquanoN ul sisbeuew josfoid gg e
LL0Z Aey ul siebeuew joofoud zGg .

ye1s Juswabeuew josloud ul uononpal 31 4 €1

1oedw| |[euoneltadQ

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



0l

%01 :IN99LE -
VAT A ZAS X SSejD / de
%7L1 -INOSCS - SO
%81 -WN00ES aInjonnseu|
%cCY -IN969S * [BOIPOIN

SONBIYIY

)SIY Je Jabeuel\ uol}oNJIsuo)

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



S0l

|EJIPSIA

sse|D / qeT

a.n]NoLby

%01 ‘NVPS o aJn)onJisedju|

9JI71 JUSpN}S

piing-ubiseQ

ALISHAAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FH]L

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



901

%L ‘INLS } uoljows(

%6 N8 e SN ET VI
%01 -INSS - | Sse|) / geT]

a4n)NoLIbY

%6¥ ‘NTYS 91NjonJIsedu|

(LAYN snuiw) pjing-ubiseQ

ALISHAAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FH]L

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



101

WD 8yj pue AjsisAiun .i1ebpnq s,jusifo . ewi uo pajs|dwod

aY] 0] XSl paonpa. .isened jje Aq ay} Jepun jno-Anq aABY p[nOM am [Njjqgnop

sanjuaoul Buipnjouj  umouy Jusjul ubiseq, aJ1us ayj, jdex WO S1 31 ‘WD 8y} Inoyip,
ad 24 006°C M005$ Jejua Buurel] DN
ad 24 000°001°1 NY9E$ 1ayN
dJND 23 000°221 N09$ ASIXO ' suUBIBWOd
dAD  40002. AL IIEH JUNOJ
dAND  M000'SZZ INOZLS 0389
dJND 24 00165 NO'LLS lejidsoH auids pue uleig
ISEVVIETq| 9zIS anjeA joaloud

sjoalold a|dwes

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



801

Hels 109loud 0] 3senbal JawoISNO WOy punoJeuln) 18jseq .
J0BJJUOD UO SWEed) J0Joelu0D palljenb-aid e
yoenuo) (o1ai) fuenp-ajuyapul-Aialjag-apuyapul .
pjoysaiy] Bulppig 10} ssas0ld plepuels .
SS820.4 0] sjuswaaoidw| ainin
108l0ud yoes J0j sjesodoud bulold aannadwo) .

Apoinb
alow s)oaloud ||lews JaAlj@p 01 siaubisap paljijenb-aid yim Jauped 0] SI0]0BJUOD SMO|Y

ss9%0l1d pjing-ubisaqg -
SS900.44 0] wHC®E®>O._QE_ jualingd

IN9'99% 1e panjeA
Z 10z 2ouls pabeuew s)ooloud ;76

000°00Z$ Jepun syosloid

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



601

sjoedwi Buiond jayJew o3 Buipe9| ||V -
sajep uonajdwod a|qixajjul aAey syoafold -
ainjonJyseqjul pue sbuipjing Builsixa Jo sallepunoq UIYy}Im palaAijap ale sjoalold -
9102 8 §L0Z Isnbny Buiuado 1H¥AN -
10 Joqueoaq buluedO d3DNM -
sieak § Jo apisul palaAlep yjog -
IN99ES - uoljewuojsuel] o1sIq [ejuapisey YUON
g1 ¢$ - 109loiq uoisuedx3 Jojuay |DIPSIA JOUXBAN e
sjoaloid-eba 1oA1j9p 0} Ajua ajels Ajuo ayj si AjIsi1aAlun ay |

11S0D) 19)Je|\ YlIm Q_cwco;m_mm_

payosalq SI Juswoaalbe uoneinp AIBAIIBP JUBAS BY) Ul paysi|gelsa ale sabewep pajepinbl] .
19s Ajjenjoeqjuod si Alaalap jesodoud JNO Joj uoneing e
s|esodoud ao11d

wnuwixe pasjueienc  uielad ajep,, bBuluinbal Ayjua ajels Ajuo ayj Ajjuauind si AjiIsidAlUN ayy] .

sy pig buibeuey
sabus|ieyn pue saniunuoddp

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



oLl

Alliqisuodsay| buideaspue] pue aoueusjuiely bulobuQ -
Kianijeq 108lodd 8joAoa)i

sndwe)) Jo abpajmou

ss900l1d AlaAla 108loid pue buiuue|d |eliden pajelbaju| uy -

oousladx3g 108loid-eba|y -

S$S920NG 0] SAaY| oAl

ALISHIAIN() HLVLS OIHQ TFHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



293

_____"_._a_m__.._u_ SendlEY 11im+sNi¥3d NVION-AGOON

ALISHAAIN(N L10Z Y39INIACN
HLVLS OIHQ FH]

J3LLININOJ S3LLITIAVA 3 ININNYId 4ILSYIN
€L6091-NSO

d0aidy09 SIVIHALYIN d3INVAQY

— \ e

.-d L e e
e
vy 20D _E- L i
i Dy ol 1
" 1
- T .

R,

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



y IE
B L

ERSEa e s S UL

W -

- ""“"r-w--.___'

=)
£
=
o}
o}
=
®
o}
=
£
£
<}
O
(%]
Q2
=
S
©
8
°
c
<
o
£
c
c
8
o
—_
<
2
17}
o
=
\
=)
£
=
o}
o}
=
2
I
o
m
N~
-
o
I
S
[}
o
£
[
>
o
z




€Ll

ey
Ny

SVTHLINS [

= s
el / /
il : v

av1oy410m
ANY NYWM3N
/r‘.X:(-. }

SH0074 &
SH0014 § Sqv1110440M

YNVINOA

@3HSI0W3a
39 0L AY4 HIIH

TIVH N4Ng¥Iv14

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



142

NV1d LIS

i
et

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



SLl

ISNOHINId v /€ 13N
— o nlu.ﬂ_ u.. : - i
; _ ooy
2 = ol fl.
™ HIRRRRARIRERRRRER NI
T3 | 3

[AENED

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



Hd

_ S8V ANV 301440

gy WANIWLINYLIA |

_._1_4.L.. .
SWOOYSSY1D

gy HO¥Y3S3y

8V HOUV3S3y

TYIINVHIIW

9Ll

WNIYLY

=E U™

[ " i 4 i A

" SIWOONSSY1D

$321440,

~ S301440

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN




LLL

TTIM+SNINY I

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



VZV1d 1S3M INILSIXT

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN




AYINT 1SIM MIN

v

-

-
-l
._.W I..llllli

-

I " e Y

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN




0clL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN



avno TYILNIAISIY HIYON WOYd M3IIA

-!. ‘.‘- ¥ .. L4h§ |
11 L g
] TEERCLIE SR
. 'i.., - -

e Y

k| J ._. .avl.t“m_rrl e ¥ | DAL 2348 e
T R

} . ! :
| il Sl -
¢
N -
R

" 4
S i e . ; ﬂ‘w&
- | . A ]

T

L




NOA MNVHL

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN




November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into professional services contracts, as detailed in the attached materials,
is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the university desires to enter into professional
services contracts for the following project:

Prof. Serv. Total
Approval Project
Requested Cost
Health Sciences Faculty Office $0.6M $28.0M university funds

and Optometry Clinic Building auxiliary funds

WHEREAS the Capital Investment Plan (CIP) outlines capital projects recommended for funding and was
approved by the BOT on August 25, 2017; and

WHEREAS the scope and cost for the Health Sciences Faculty Office and Clinic Building was not known
at the time the CIP was approved; and

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the project listed above for
alignment with all applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has reviewed the project listed above for alignment with the Capital
Investment Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the Capital Investment Plan be
amended to include professional services for the Health Sciences Faculty Office and Clinic Building; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the president and/or senior
vice president for business and finance be authorized to enter into professional services contracts for the
project listed above in accordance with established university and State of Ohio procedures, with all actions
to be reported to the board at the appropriate time.

123



November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

Project Data Sheet for Board of Trustees Approval

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building
Project Location: West 11th Ave & Neil Ave

o approval requested and amount
professional services $0.6M

o project budget

professional services $2.8M
construction w/contingency $25.2M
total project budget $28.0M

o project funding
I university debt
[ development funds
X university funds
X auxiliary funds
U state funds

o project schedule

BoT prof serv approval 11/17
design/bidding TBD
construction TBD

o project delivery method
[ general contracting
X design/build
[ construction manager at risk

o planning framework
o project programming completed October 2017
o the FY 2018 Capital Investment Plan will be amended to include the professional services
amount

o project scope
o demolish three existing buildings at the corner of W. 11th Ave and Neil Ave
o construct approximately 93,000 GSF for optometry clinics, retail, faculty offices and support
spaces
o key enabling project for the Interdisciplinary Health Sciences Center

o approval requested
o approval is requested to amend the Capital Investment Plan accordingly
o approval is requested to enter into professional services contracts

planning team project team
university planning project manager: Rebekah Gayley university project manager:TBD
AE: Ford Architects criteria AE:TBD
CM estimator: Corna Kokosing design-builder:TBD
Office of Administration and Planning November 2017

124



November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018
UTILITY SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Tunnel and Utility Systems Repairs and Upgrades
Steam Capacity Upgrades to enable Postle Hall Expansion - Design Only
Postle Hall - Utility System Infrastructure
Electrical System Upgrades

Synopsis: Authorization for Ohio State Energy Partners LLC to make capital improvements to the utility
system pursuant to terms of the Long-Term Lease and Concession Agreement for The Ohio State
University Utility System dated April 10, 2017, as amended, (“Agreement”), is proposed.

WHEREAS the concessionaire, Ohio State Energy Partners LLC, has requested approval of these utility
system capital improvement projects for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS the concessionaire has provided the detailed descriptions of the proposed -capital
improvements, supporting technical data, and analysis, pursuant to Section 4.3(c) of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the project will be delivered pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the capital expenditures for the approved utility system projects will be added to the variable
fee component of the utility fee pursuant to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the university will fund the non-utility systems portion of the improvements; and

WHEREAS the cost and scope of the university’s portion of the non-utility systems repairs and upgrades
were not known at the time the Capital Investment Plan was approved by the Board of Trustees on August
25, 2017; and

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the projects for alignment with all
applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has reviewed the projects for alignment with the Capital Investment
Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes Ohio State Energy Partners LLC to
proceed with the capital improvements to the utility system as outlined in the attached materials; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the funding for and approves
that the Capital Investment Plan be amended to include the university’s portion of the Tunnel and Utility
Systems Repairs and Upgrades project.

125



November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the terms of the long-term lease and concession agreement for the Ohio State University utility
system dated April 10, 2017; Ohio State Energy Partners LLC (OSEP) will fund and implement capital
improvements to the utility system. Capital investments made by OSEP will be tied to the variable fee
component of the annual fee structure.

Proposed capital projects are evaluated by the university and OSEP for alignment with applicable strategic,
financial and physical plans and to ensure continued reliability, safety and compliance of the utility system.

For Fiscal Year 2018, the following projects have been conceived and developed by the university prior to
the commencement of the concession agreement. These projects have been reviewed and approved by
OSEP and require approval of the Board of Trustees.

Tunnel and Utility Systems Repairs and Upgrades

Scope: Repairs and upgrades of steam pipe, domestic water lines, and utility tunnels under the Oval.
The steam pipes, associated anchors, and supports are in poor condition. The deteriorating
condition has been monitored over several years and potential failure is imminent. The tunnel
structure itself and the domestic water lines within the tunnels impacted by the project are non-
utility systems. Improvements to non-utility systems will be paid for by the university. OSEP will
deliver the entire project. Repairs and upgrades will improve the long-term reliability of this
portion of the utility system. It will also improve safety and structural integrity of these portions
of the utility system and tunnels.

Estimated Cost: $14.5M

Project Cost Breakdown Cost Funding Source
Utility Systems $10.7 M OSEP
Non-Utility Systems $ 3.8M University
Steam Capacity Upgrades to Enable Postle Hall Expansion - Design Only
Scope: Upgrade steam piping in the south Neil Tunnel to support the Postle Hall Expansion and to

enable steam supply to future buildings and building renovations noted in the Health Sciences
Site Plan. Without this project, steam demands will exceed capacities during peak heating
loads, which will negatively impact Postle, Hamilton, Starling Loving, the Ohio Union, and South
Residence Halls.

Estimated Cost:  $75,000 (design only)

Postle Hall - Utility System Infrastructure

Scope: Enabling project to install chilled water, electrical, natural gas and steam infrastructure for
Postle Hall. OSEP was approved only for the chilled water scope and the other systems were
originally approved in the Postle Hall Expansion project scope. This approval would move all
the Utility System scope to OSEP. OSEP is contracting directly with the project CM, Gilbane,
for the delivery of this scope.

Amount Previously Approved $1.6M
Project Increase for Additional Scope: $1.83M
Estimated Total Cost:  $3.43M

Electrical System Upgrades

Scope: Upgrades to a range of deferred maintenance items within the electrical distribution system
including high-voltage switches, transformers, and relays. Installation of protection around
certain equipment to prevent damage and/or unplanned outages.

Estimated Cost:  $945,000

126



November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFT OF UNIMPROVED REAL PROPERTY

.5+/- ACRES OF UNIMPROVED LAND
FRANKLIN COUNTY, OHIO

Synopsis: Authorization to accept the gift of approximately .5 acres of unimproved real property in Franklin
County, Ohio, is proposed.

WHEREAS Olentangy Village Associates V LLC desires to donate approximately .5 acres of land adjacent
to the Wilma H. Schiermeier Olentangy River Wetland Research Park at 352 West Dodridge Street,
Columbus, Ohio; and

WHEREAS pending satisfactory completion of all real estate due diligence, the appropriate university
offices believe that acceptance of this gift will be in the best interest of the university; and

WHEREAS acquisition of this property would increase the riparian protection along the east riverbank as
well as provide increased control for wetland research projects.

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that pending satisfactory evaluation of all
real estate due diligence through the standard university process, this property be accepted as a gift to The
Ohio State University from Olentangy Village Associates V LLC and that the president and/or senior vice
president for administration and planning be authorized to acquire title to this property in the name of the
state of Ohio for the use and benefit of The Ohio State University, upon such terms and conditions deemed
to be in the best interest of the university.

127




$39)SNIL Jo pieog AisiaAlun 3)els ojyQ YL
1102 ‘S¢ 19quaydag :ajeq anss|
ajejs3 |eay pue Suluue|d Jo 29140
Kyis1anun 93els o1y ayy :Ag paiedaig

0d-3

Fis 3908 ¢

oy Vel

IAY VIidvouy 3

ADAMS s

(s koNYINITO

A4 0ST1Ty 3
Y -—MIIALSTY
G4 INVINL 3

Q813871

8¢l

OIHO ‘ALNNOJ NITYNVY4 ‘SNGINN109
H3AIY AONVINITO0 JHL ONOTV 133HLS 39AIHA0A 40 HLHYON
ALISH3AINN 31VIS OIHO 3HL
0L 3I9VTITIA AONVINTTO0 INOYUd ALHId0Ud TV3YH 40 SFHIV €95° 40 NOILYNOQ

oL M
mwmv M
i IAY _Iv¥anung
nn
c
=2
=
=2
a M o
PN =
=2
e M
1S E%zoon M
IS"H1¥ON
u
2]
=
o QY-NYWETY Iy
= a10
4
o
>
=]
=
=2
D
—
o
-
gs-os
|}

quanyini M

Bunss|\ sapiwwo) saijioe pue buluue|d Jaisel - Buiesy pieog 210z JoquiaroN

R
S
woR
WERVER W
GAR
y ED

AN

44 NVWYIY OV

AN

(24

4a

SUA—WNIgVyLs

4313wy

gINO0IHINILS



November 2017 Board Meeting - Master Planning and Facilities Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFT OF IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY
AND APPROVAL OF SALE OF IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY

2011 REDLEAF DRIVE
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY

Synopsis: Authorization to accept the gift of approximately .26 acres of improved real property located at
2011 Redleaf Drive in Louisville, Kentucky and to negotiate the sale of property under terms and conditions
acceptable to the university, is proposed.

WHEREAS the gift is vested in the name of The Kevin M. Rabe Living Trust and upon the death of Mr.
Rabe was bequeathed to the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences of The Ohio State
University Secrest Arboretum for support and upkeep of its Garden of Roses; and

WHEREAS pending satisfactory completion of all real estate due diligence, the appropriate university
offices believe that acceptance of this gift and immediate sale is in the best interest of the university:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that pending satisfactory evaluation of all
real estate due diligence through the standard university process, this property be accepted as a gift to The
Ohio State University from The Kevin M. Rabe Living Trust and that the president and/or senior vice
president for business and finance be authorized to acquire title to this property in the name of The Board
of Trustees of The Ohio State University, upon such terms and conditions deemed to be in the best interest
of the university; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the president and/or senior vice president for business and finance be
authorized to sell the property upon such terms and conditions deemed to be in the best interest of the
university.

129




ocl

$93)SNIL J0 pieog AISIaalun 9)elS 01yQ YL >v_0=._.zmv_ .>._.Z—.-OQ ZOWGN-.—..—W—. .m._._ _>w_ —.-O._
‘Gz 19quialdasg : n:
et _wga_“..aw.__wn_u_ﬂh ”ew_o JAINA 4v31a3Y T10C
AISISNUN S1EIS OO oW1 A3 poecosg AL¥3d0Yd V3 40 NOILISINDIY

a3y¥IndIv 39 01 AL¥3d0Yd 7

Bunea|y seniWWO) sanijioe pue Buluueld Jsisel - Bunes|y pJeog /10Z J8qWSAON



November 2017 Board Meeting - Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017
TALENT AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE MEETING

November 3, 2017

W. G. Jurgensen
Janet B. Reid
Michael J. Gasser
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Hiroyuki Fujita
John W. Zeiger
Lydia A. Lancaster
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Location: Recreation and Physical Activity Center (RPAC)
Dave Griner Room, B247

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

1. Susan Basso Introductory/Remarks - Ms. Basso
Student Employment Overview - Ms. Basso, Mr. Fuzer, Dr. Adams-Gaston

Key Critical Searches - Ms. Basso

ITEMS FOR ACTION

4. Personnel Actions - Ms. Basso
Presidential Review and Compensation - Mr. Jurgensen

Approval of Presidential Goals - Mr. Jurgensen

Executive Session

Time:

131

8:00-9:45am

8:00-8:10am
8:10-8:30am
8:30-8:35am

8:35-8:40am
8:40-8:45am
8:45-8:50am

8:50-9:45am




cel

S304NOSdd NVIANH
ALISHHAIN() d1LVLS OIHQ HH],

Bunes|y @8nIWWO) uonesuadwod pue jusie] - Bunes|y pJeoy /10Z JoquiaoN



€el

4
uaJp|Iyo G Sem Juswjjoius
[eniu] ‘uoneanpa pooyp|iyo Alues ‘Aljenb o} sjuspnis pue
sJausuebiapuny pue ‘sisjooyosald ‘sia|ppol yeis ‘Aynoey Aq puewsap Buimolb ay) 19aw o) weiboud o)1d
‘sjuejul gz 40} Ajoeded pauiquiod B BABY SISJUSD By | B se aJed p|Iyo buiayo uebaq Alsianiun ayeis olyo ayl
uaJp|iyodo 061 0} pe|qnop juswijjoiuzg

JJB1S JO Spasu aled p|Iyo anbiun j9aw 0} paysijgelsa

ualp|iyo 1 | Auoedeo ‘syua) Alunwwo) Ajjwe Jsyuan |eaipajy yum diysiauped ‘uaipjiyo 1€ Ajoedes

abe||IA aAaxong ay] 1e peppe Sem ]IS puooss pauado Ajljioe} a1 plIyD peoy UewIa)dy a8y

1102 Aep 600z fsenuep 1861 snbny 0861 3snbny  z/61 Isnbny

AioysiH

MBIAIBAQ welboid
weboid 81ed pIYD ¥HO s e S

ALISHHAIN() HLVILIS OIHQ dHL

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON



el

€ 'JOAS| UOIJUS)aJ pue uonoee jus|e; Juenoduwi
UB SI aJed p|IYd dAallaq 9\ "UOoISSIW AJISIBAIUN JNO Y]IM JUSISISUOD Bulules)

Buoj-aJ1| Jo uonepuno) buois e sajeald pue Allunwiwod AJISIsAIuUNn JNo JO AlISIBAIP
|Bdn)ind pue oluyle ‘eoel ay) s108|jal Jey) uonejndod asiaAlp e saAles welboud 1N
:Ajlunwwo’n

‘saliunioddo youessal sjdijnw pue buluies)

‘Buiyoea) 1o} welboid aie) pliyd ayl passadoe aAey Ajlunwiwod jeuoljeanpa
sngqwinjoD ay} Jo slaqwaw pue ‘Ajnoey ‘sjuapnis g6 LL 10 |e10) e ‘eak 1sed ayj JonQ
yoleasay

‘apmuoieu swelboud pooypjiyo Aues Jo 9,01

uey) sso| Aq paAaiyoe uaaqg sey uolniubooal snoibnsald siy] (DAIVYN) ualpjiyd
BunoA JO uoneonp3 ay) JOJ UONBIDOSSY |euolieN 8yl Agq palpalooe si welboid inQO
:Ajjenp

"91eD 19|ppOo] puUe JueuUIl |[BUOlIPPE J0) puBWSp 8y} SB0pP Sk MoJb 0] Sanuiuod 1Sl
Bunjiem 1no pue ‘Ajloeded ||ny 1e ale app “S||IMS Buiajos wis|qold pue aduspuadapul
‘Wasv)sa-§|as dojaAap 0] ualp|iyo 1o} saijiunuoddo ajeald siayoes) JnQ

‘paINMNU pue aJnoas ‘ajes (98] ualp|iyo Jno jey) ainsua 0} s uoissiw Atewd JnQ

:uaIpiyo

DSRIIAO L SPE
weibolid aieQ pIiyo ¥YHO ALISYAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ AH],

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON




el

Ajligesip e yum paynuapl usag aAey oym ‘g abe 0} Yuig ‘UsIp|iyo Z| 0) papliaoid saoIes [e109dS ;
uaJp|iyo |ooyosald g 0} s80IAI8S uoleoNp3 [B108dg apiAoid 0} S|00YOS AJID SNqUIN|OD PUB 4D USBMIS] UONRIOGR||0D Y |

JyBiupiw
|nun uado aJe aled buluaas Bulsyo swelboud g8 auyl Jo 9¢ AjUNOD uIPUeI{ U]
spooyJlogybiau sawooul Jomo|
ul usyo AJo ay) Jo Led 1seayliou pue 1Sea ay] ul SI 81e0 BUIUBAS JO UOIBIUBOUOY)
aled BuluaAa sl1ayo eale AjisiaAlun ay) ul swelboud aied pjiyo
ou ]ey] suodal ‘Aousbe [easajal pue 82JnN0Sal 8Jed P[IYd B ‘ualp|iy) J0) UOIOY
AjjigejieAy alen Buiuang
NSO 1e uoneonps abs||0o
e Bbuinsind aJje oym sjpuapn)s jualed o|buls ‘owooul-mo| sisisse welbold ©
uoIsn|ou| pue AlISIaAI( 40 32140
ayl ybnouyy palajjo sadinIeg (sse0ong sjenb3 alen pliyn 01 $s820y) SSIDIY -
(z483ua) Buluiesa] Ae3 sabuosiN NSO Aq papinoid) seoinles uonuasiaul Aueg .
(,s100yas A)ID snquinjo) Aq papinoad) jooyosaud spasu |ejoads .
swielbo.d ajqejieAy
‘wd p:9— "we 00:/ :Ayjoe) abejjip ahayong
yBIupiw — “wre 00:9 :Alj10.) peoy uewia)Oy

:uonelado Jo siNoH

saJinjea{ anbiun SIDUNOSTY NVINNH
weiboid 8ied pIIyd YHO XLISYHAIN() HIVLS OIHQ FHL @

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON




o€l

(447 LTE SoT |elo] pueio

8T 9T z uapediapuly

9LT TET 1% |00Yds34d

6Vl 60T or 49|ppoL

6L 19 8T juejul

|elo] puesn Ausiaaiun  JINNSO dnoup a8y
ONNSO =
Ajsianiun =

welbold usuebiapuly] g1 .

aby [ooyosald 9/ o
SISIPPOL 677 -
Ssjueju| g/ e

JLAd umopyeaig dnouis) aby

saelje DNNSO 4. UaIP|IYd GO
sajel|iye AJIsiaAiun aJe ualp|iyo /1§
Pa]joJus USIPIIYD ZZP

pajjoJus saljiwe) i

umopyealg juawjjoius JLA4 umopyeaag juswjjoiug

JuswijjoJuy S304NOSTA NYIWNH @
weibolid aieQ pIiyo ¥YHO ALISYAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ AH],

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON



€1

L e e e gu?qwﬂi.

IN3A3 NV 1ON
S$S3004d V SI 1I

ueld
aiunwwo)
Beq) 1wadsaguy S
"o91joeld
plIOM |ead 0] Aloay) Buulj
Ul S)SISSe YdIym pash |00} y
ay] YIIM JUBLUSSSSSE JUdpn]s Ao 3 e uonsy
Jnoge uJes| J8juad ay) 1e S el
Bujiom syuapnis AlisiaAiun =
g suonsond 15y a9k)
JUDWISSASSY Y [
ININSSISSV LNIANLS

JUBWISSOSSY JuapniS S304NOSTA NYIWNH @
weibolid aieQ pIiyo ¥YHO ALISYAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ AH],

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON




8¢l

O e v @ s a0 W
oy
-~

ak - B

M pd e v Mria bed g et g #

Wl paasn sy T
. W B R

7. .— Ii\li!l!vlﬂ‘ﬂ. ﬁ a \ “

D L R ST |

.s%’ B L L i ‘. ..»
" e N g b e B
e PN W% e s o
S — .ﬂ. apana hanng ity ¢ e Rt i iells § WM o ks Sy
) B R A A B i) iy e ) VR ©
Rl -y b WA Y
B e e e L L I T [P —— e e
. s B i 107 0 0wy ) ooy R e ¥ L v Ry s By
Buluies| SIS | ... ... L e ¢ e
b NI D TR - - — s |y el s N s sy G ] |
..__msu. HDOS@DO.— r:. ®>®_£om SR p Simptay WaiA A (T wolywiatemsun 1 e D e e e e ]
. . ey sy PRy B B e bey oy g oy
Rasnopes sayemeng % spemen ¢ g iy Y e e Ly reat
usaJp|iyd sauolsajiwu jeym oy ¢ e e wae e § e ol
B el T talban pant | ue S ot oy
vcm wc_mEOU _MHCQEQO_®>®b et et e Ak ey 8 .t...l...._-.‘i.l‘...._ N e e e — ¢
vhymrge: PP Taer, ¥ b A L I L e B P e ik Y Y Ea AR LR S VR R = T o ST P
H:OQN CL mm_ WHCQUDHw Shg P8 AN ST e e ) TP Bt pris da el | W S amaat A fud s A Al ) G g )
. baweal b g s LA s B e Y - -, + -
uolnebnsaAul Jayuny CODOL | T e—— ot g, © R
- " " L L T T P ) rs-oR .I...l..u”hn ' o GO g ey ) |
e L T e Al P s e i ot vt Dol om0 e S LT e |
AT W A PAUTPeARD ) SRS ¢ e e v vy v e e,y B et S TL TR S
) 4 A ARSI A S00ty ¥ g e e e
L e e bon ey B
L LY SRT s L L R S e ot b - Al o e (. T i by S e 8 e ey |
R IE ] A W WA WELE

sulewoq Jusawssassy S,ualp|iyd S304N0S3A NVINH @
welboid a.eQ pIlYyo ¥YHO ALISYAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ dH],

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON




6El

0z

suoneyadxy spaadx3 il
suoneadx3 s12an [l suoneoadx3 PIaH APPIM - 8L0Z/LLOZ lIed

weiBoid 99 AluN Jels o1YO YL

suoneyadx3 mojag .

S304NOS3d NVINNH
ALISHHAIN() HLVILIS OIHQ dHL

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON




ovl

6 uaJp|Iyo 0} JUsWdAOW dBAIeald Buipiroid sjuspnis Jolew aouep z .

JJe1S WooJusse|o 0] uoleynsuoo buipiaold Juapnis |elojooq uoneanpg [eloadsg | .

aoualiadxa Buiyoea) Juapnis Buna|dwod sjuspnis 81e1S SNQuINI0D 2«

aousliadxa Buiyoea) Juspnis Buna|dwoo syusapnys uoneaonpg Jo SIBISBN NSO 8 -«
(sl1ajooyosaud Jo S|IMS J010|\-UBIpP|IYD

Buno, Jo sligeH bune3j-Aoeua)i] |ooyasald-qe] aAnubo)) /L A4 SaIpnis yoleasal Jusalind 47 .

JeaA olwepeoe 1se| salpn)s yoJeasal pao|dwod O

saniunuoddo Buiyoes| /yoleasay

(ssejo uoneonpas |eaisAyd paseq p|ai4)-qe] Juswdo|aAa( J0J0oN pooypiyd AlJe3 gg| .
(seol1AI8s 10041p)-("018 ‘A)Inoe4 ‘Yyoaads ‘| 4 ‘LO)S|euoissajold 00E e

(Bulyoea) Juapnis ‘suoljeAlasqQ)-sjuapnis a}els snquinjo) 07

(swoousse|) ul Bunsissy)-sjuapnig buisinN sjooyos AllD snquinjo) QL
(saniunuoddo Buiyoes) Juspnis ‘siaded yoleasay)-sjuapnis alenpels) g6 o

(9onoeud 01 Auoayy Bupjuig-suonealasqO WooIsse|))-siuapnis ajenpelbiapun 64 o

Bululea| 821A18S pue ‘ABojoIsauly pue s|[Iys J0lJoWw ‘uoneonpa pooyp|iyod AjJes se yons saiiunuoddo
Bulules| 1o} weliboid al1ed pjIyd ay) passadoe aAey s|enpiAlpul g6LL JO |elo1 e /L A4 104

"saniunjoddo
Buiyoea) pue ‘yoieasau ‘aoualiadxa pjaly siayo weliboud InQ "921AI19S pue
jJuswiabebus Jo ain}nd e BuLIv)SO} 0} pajedipap SI uoissiw s.AJIsidAIUN 9Y) JO Med

ININFOVONS LNIANLS

Ausianiun o3 enjep buippy S304NOSIY NVWNH @
welboid aieQ pIlYo ¥YHO ALISYAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ dH],

bunes|\ eeniWWOo) uoiesuadwo) pue Jus|e] - bunas|y pJeogq /| 0Z J8qUSAON




November 2017 Board Meeting - Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

PERSONNEL ACTIONS

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the personnel actions as recorded in
the personnel budget records of the university since the August 25, 2017, meeting of the board, including
the following reappointments:

Reappointments

Name: E. GATES GARRITY-ROKOUS

Title: Vice President, Chief Compliance Officer
Office: Legal Affairs

Term: September 25, 2017

Name: CAROLINE C. WHITACRE

Title: Senior Vice President

Office: Research

Term: September 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

141



November 2017 Board Meeting - Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

PRESIDENTIAL REVIEW AND COMPENSATION

Synopsis: Approval of changes to the president’s base compensation and the issuance of a performance
award to the president, is proposed.

WHEREAS it is best practice across higher education for a governing board to conduct an annual
performance review of the university president; and

WHEREAS under the terms of President Drake’s letter of offer, the president shall be entitled to annual
increases in his base salary as determined by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS under the terms of President Drake’s letter of offer, the president shall be eligible for an annual
performance award of up to 25% of his base salary for achieving mutually agreed-upon performance targets
and goals; and

WHEREAS pursuant to its charter, the Talent and Compensation Committee has reviewed the performance
of the president for fiscal year 2017 and believes that President Drake has demonstrated excellent progress
and achievement with regard to the performance goals set forth by the president and the Board of Trustees
last year; and

WHEREAS the Procedure for Setting and Reviewing Compensation for University Executives authorizes
the chair of the Talent and Compensation Committee to review and approve the total compensation of the
president, subject to ratification by the committee and the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS the Talent and Compensation Committee has reviewed and recommends for approval the
compensation changes set forth below:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves a base salary increase for the president
of $16,646, which amounts to 2% of his base salary; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves a performance award for the
president of $208,080, which amounts to 25% of his base salary.

142




November 2017 Board Meeting - Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF PRESIDENTIAL GOALS

Synopsis: Approval of the attached presidential goals, is proposed.

WHEREAS under the terms of President Drake’s letter of offer, each fiscal year, the president and the
Board of Trustees will set forth the president’s goals and objectives; and

WHEREAS in order to establish these goals and objectives, the president is submitting the attached for
review and approval by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS once approved by the Board of Trustees, the attached goals and objectives will serve to
evaluate the president during this review period:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the attached goals and objectives to align
with the university’s strategic plan and the following five pillars of focus: teaching and learning; access,
affordability and excellence; research and creative expression; academic healthcare; and operational
excellence and resource stewardship, and to move the university forward as a leading flagship public
research university in the 21st century.

143




November 2017 Board Meeting - Talent and Compensation Committee Meeting

University Goals
Fiscal Year 2018

Teaching and Learning — Ohio State will be a leading public university for best
teaching, which will contribute to measureable improvement in student outcomes.

Access, Affordability and Excellence — Ohio State will be a leading public university in
offering an excellent and affordable education and in promoting access, building on our
leadership in the American Talent Initiative and University Innovation Alliance.

Research and Creative Expression — Ohio State will be among the top public
universities for its national and international standing in research and creative expression,
both across the institution and in targeted fields, driving breakthrough advances for
important societal issues.

Academic Healthcare - Ohio State Wexner Medical Center will be a leading Academic
Medical Center that enables breakthrough healthcare solutions to improve people’s lives.

Operational Excellence and Resource Stewardship — Ohio State will be a leading
public university for resource stewardship with known leadership for operational
effectiveness, efficiency, risk management, and innovation.

1|Page

144



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

Location: Recreation and Physical Activity Center (RPAC) Time:

© N o o

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017
ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING

November 3, 2017

Erin P. Hoeflinger
Alan VanderMolen
Clark C. Kellogg
Cheryl L. Krueger
Brent R. Porteus
Alexander R. Fischer
Abigail S. Wexner
Alan A. Stockmeister
Lydia A. Lancaster
Nancy J. Kramer
Craig S. Bahner
Barbara J. Tootle
Georganne M. Shockey
James F. Dietz
Gifford Weary
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

Connect Engage Foster: The Ohio State Alumni Magazine - Ms. Shockey,
Ms. Tootle

Partnerships in Philanthropy (verbal) - Dr. Weary, Mr. Dietz
Mirror Lake Restoration - Ms. Keyes

Advancement Scorecard and Marketing Dashboard - Mr. Eicher and Ms. Nazon

ITEMS FOR ACTION
University Foundation Report - Mr. Eicher
Naming of the Evan Turner Hallway - Mr. Bergfeld
Naming of Spaces in the Pre-Clinic - Mr. Bergfeld

Naming of Internal Spaces: William T. and Jane C. McConnell Residence Hall -
Mr. Bergfeld

Naming of CTL Engineering Lab - Mr. Bergfeld

Executive Session

10:00-11:30am

10:00-10:10am

10:10-10:20am
10:20-10:30am
10:30-10:35am

10:35-10:40am
10:40-10:45am

10:45-11:30am

145




ol

aa)Iwwon

210¢ AON ¢0 | s33lsnydl 40 qyvod JuswivdueApy

auizebey
luwnjy ajejs olyoayl

d41S04
JOVONS
1IJ04dNNOD

Bunasy 99IWIWOY JUSWSdURAPY - Bunas|y pieog /10Z JoquaroN




29)3IWwon
JUBWddURAPY

/102 AON ¢0 | S331sSNdl 40 advod

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN




8yl

aa)Iwwon
210z AON 20 | $331SN¥L 40 a¥vosg JUSWISOUBAPY

"‘PlIOM 33U} wiojsueld) pue ‘swajgoud
9A|OS ‘sjuapn)s o9jeonpe 0} SlMOld S,9)els
oIYO Y}M spuallj pue luwnje Jo suoissed ay)
S]09UU0D

uoI}o3UUO0D pue
juswabebua UwNnje adueyua

juwnje jo Jaqwnu Buisealoulr ue abebugy

39VI1S
dH1 ONIL13S

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



6yl

/102 AON ¢0 | S331sSNdl 40 advod

29)3IWwon
JUBWddURAPY

™ —n‘.ﬂ- o | INTIVIOWTS IKICTIY i lt‘-n-l--
005 uey, 2ucpy

Pisueyg

SIES By 0 wabe umo
Asan ano se WIY 0 qU | assanun sy
. Inoge suopsanb inok siamsur uedxe ino
PURY 1@ 35010 ‘asoyy AxwieB e u) ‘anss) Sy

1spIsKydoxse
“onng ey

TN OL T

aouapIsay uj .
AAIT | 9I9YAA -

...—._.w I .v.-.:._ : ‘_.
y 192 1y,

30VdS

34VS ‘ATANIRIS

V NI NOILVSYH3ANOD
A13AIT ASVOMOHS

2OUIPISIY U] |wserm

ANIZVOVIN INWNTV 31VLS OIHO 3H1

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



0s1

99)IWIwo)
ZL0C AON 20 | s331sndl 40 ayvod JuswiddUeApY
oy
-
ot oyt
s e 2 e s e e
o e, e vy .|““.u“..u.lf..ﬂﬂnﬂ
i L] z
isuoartvo. | Ob wa sy ooy | G
.........
ke e
« o o b oot i
B e e T o g Sy - W
o e L T
MR S I O IADT T Frpe—
0l JO Jamod - a Y e | 6 | s A SRR | ¥
= = {' W RN g e & e e g
- i) o) 000¢ Hnddey oy
iy |1 poog PR PO S K] (S LIH AL
oy Suaney Soovay. | B ~ NOOONVI AR A0 Asan AL | ©
= Wpnsin e A S o T, W L]
et o1y v e o e e e e ot
o — ] i e £ g s
o . e r.ﬂsu___mﬂr_..ﬁ
- . o h ey ey by
——— [pure o) SHer £ NVIRIHVH
SHOL1O3INNOD e e
B el dd
i oo o Py e 0 sy AR S
m — m ot Lot o | TP e A W Sy
o, gy snom e alaﬂll.r“
iy, P ( NIV 08 AL .| B
R, ROLLO) “__“:...”.Hua._u, 9 sl 3|1 4 0T A0 ANTN

SV A0 A3HL 1VHM 40
JH0ON HLIM LN3INTOVONS
SH3AAVIYH 3OVHINOINS

woeiap|suea Jnok o)

i BSaL] SHEUILIOU 3H

| wiu 03 aesg A 1EURIN
pun) WapSald PAHSE 3M

; 1417 (vyd s yuapisaad YL

ANIZVOVIN INWNTV 31VLS OIHO 3H1

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



LGl

aa)Iwwon
/102 AON 20 | S33LSN¥L 40 a¥vod

_ JusWadUBAPY

- S o
aanjpr) Mats saapea] WS g 4
ns 0 rE...r_:.r_.. aan e s any
“paaadt S
«“t

s ———— 1 Suisoddo
T . auor premipam ] B et
] ; s e ey i ST jo ey
- E ] wnd g v _u.s_...__.,"..."_x......n._....d." pue paey Apms
: e o g 2 Y e
Spoouut ] ] » .—...E_.—‘____._ebw
SIAIO o) =
dpy o
mo aum et s
st QT R
EL
- b NPT v
; 1| e g b | S s o Senh
e S| e | meno
£ 3 . v ) unt s | !

N, s e e | ot s oppon, | BUIO23WON
e oct ravave Ehﬂ_ufhu_...._”mﬂu woy ‘uoseas auj
Juop puy — e i Y 0 o e .__moomw._w_..u ay o)

-psey 44 . : oo e 0w 3 Al s Hang
=n +aq 0] JUBA nok | oz o 1ol por) P8 n“._al._.“n.lz ‘awosam
n -y woq ue wpupg m u-_.hu.!.j w20 dares s oo o 2
w B D—.—iaﬁﬂﬂ.—.—.&ﬂ—u W n.%._.:..r._nﬂ..ﬂn_.!...._.u.u._ 0 0 ) ) o v
- ymon saEsT e e sanapd £ 9 WL
& oyl FPT
aup Aol * ya | o oy T
- o

il e e s
g e st

b SemEs | s SR

et meon 1
) dmod g 1 S A 5
; s ey o TSN ﬁx .m..- u
= ....swuu.tu.t SUNOL NOINAIY ONIWO23IWOH ST
B Y.—h—-wuﬂid-_._ g a:-u—“—u..- 2N 1 ..-‘.-—_ f-..-—_.- l‘.ﬂﬂ.ﬂ i ! : ; ’ - .u
" 5 apdoad " ;— . .
et e sndua v PO - WL ONL I8 130 iy 0}
c-...:.rﬁ.t.a:._.s ;.. ..a r —_—

Jayjen .
EETT

S3D10A ANVIN
ONONY NOILOVYILNI ANV
NOILVdIDILdVd JAILOV FHIdSNI

v
3unne ouy

LLL 2R3 _ |

ANIZVOVIN INNNTTV 31V1S OIHO 3HL

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



413

aa)Iwwon
210z AON 20 | $331SN¥L 40 a¥vosg JUSWISOUBAPY

T

< i e e avm .
. o i s 1)
o o ALY, ki ¥ 081 Jpes s e :-.__n
i P uinpen e oo g -4

TN ot oy e gy s e e e
a8 i

oy, oo vy o g
WA g g £y gy _t..____.._ .u_...riaﬁixns..r..e
i S g ) s, oo e s ‘s

5 U i g ey s s e sy ey
T 1 i e s e gy v o
B e s L L B LY

] 0% 30U wem sanian

A AU NG St 10 [ papLanad sy
A3y “dus e a3uwp o3 pasoy
4SO “Bokivg] Uy woq nem
el Apog) paunm pe v “pyuom
s offe el amwaxan ax

umprpangy; g iy

A10)s ainjea} wnequaoyss Apeg .

§ 7 1eH o)
18I

ONITI3LANOLS
JIdOJHLNV1IHd
40 43MOd FHL ONIMOHS

ANIZVOVIN INNNTV 31VLS OIHO 3H1

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



€6l

aa)Iwwon

210¢ AON ¢0 | s33lsnydl 40 qyvod JuswivdueApy

auizebey
luwnjy 9jejs olyo ayl

NOA MNVHL

Bunasy 99IWIWOY JUSWSdURAPY - Bunas|y pieog /10Z JoquaroN



121

uoI}el0)}soy

o) e] JO.MIN

ALISYAAIN(N ALVLS OIHO FTH] @

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



GGl

‘Aofua 031 AJlunwiwod AJISISAIUN BY] PUB SIUSPNIS J0O) S2IN1EDJ J119Y1Sak J9Y10 pue
suapJed ‘sianed ‘sayouaq Se Yyons sainieaj Mau apnjoul osje suejd ayl ‘Spuejiam |einieu
Yam sapis Suiddols pue wo11oqg Aejd e Yyim ‘aye| |elnleu 210w e 2in1ed} ||IM UoI1el01sal ayl

L 5 iR T
oA ol d..‘ % { 9 %t
N S G s
1 ..- . .u&\
r o
P ¥ k5
.l’..‘...\‘.. e
EESTNANY
— ' 2n =
B Es T : 2
" N = S A
« g R b
._1.4. “r o \ -~
¥ 5 2%
LY g :
5 % ™
R :
e r A
l- r
K. ol _
o YIRS T

ALISYAAIN) FLVLS OIHQO FH]L

-

DbuNoa|\ 98)ILULLIO)) JUSWSOUBAPY - bull@a|\ Peog / | 0g JoqUIBAON



9G1

HAV'I MOMNNE @

thEﬁcm_ akayong e jo tmm%m |

SIaned pue syolig
SYIH aWl-auQ
sanlunyioddp suiwep
sulieys AJoas

saljiunjioddQ juswasdesu]

Bunes|y 881)IWIWO) JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoquaAoN



LGl

: (.

P4 MOOTHIA0 INN3AY 13N

N0 W HALVIHLIHIWY
S | ONINMOYS

3S¥Hd Junind
S50 N30BVO NOLLYY LSNOW3

e N unwnodivm

e, N,
ﬂ._ N= ;'.

N v
, ﬁ‘..l+’

@5YHd 3¥nind)
NI0H VD Y34INOD OIHO

\_?.. r ._- . 2
. 1 Fid ” h. ‘ J . _-.1” .
S3ILINNLY0ddO ¥ONOQ

B

Bunes|y 881)IWIWO) JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoquaAoN



8G1

L4I9 ¥V INYN ABOWIW HNOA JHTHS AJNE ¥V ISYHOUNd

‘uopipes) a43xang sy jo ped aq 0} asueyd INoA S| MON

sndwed jo eaue 02 pue Apes ue se adueseadde

Guwuielas apuym A

DUR SIUMQIT “#IUTI 2; PUR SIUPDNIS JO; SIUdL U d] WepowWw #8810 0] palesou H8Q 51 1IN

i *NET M0IRN YL

WITW 51 asedy 0] vonesaualb |

Méu

289 DUIMORE — DRINDUS SEU 38T 101 W0 dnjeu 3 OM &l dpUM U0 » ) 99 N

DUR WO SARY SUOIUDEIL UMAS DUR SHOIND 'S

Ay AburiuaiD aul woly u padwnd jajem 4o S Syl AeUIURi® O] 50961 24l Ui DApDe SEM &

Buiueaid 1sed D) SMIIG UUM 1I9AD DAA oq pnw

a4} 30561 i Buung wWeluUNo4 IPUOWaK IFISL pUe AR OF

u padd

€12 U} 'SOZ6l Ul w Ap

IS 06l bue g2 +JChs S U

ob o1 Bunuds syl pasr

> USUM 917 )

0% “SIEA UL J9AD DN

apew asam — Lojsiy alaxong pue — UDISIDE8D AU

O35 puv iyl amil Buuds @ wouy Aeme uswyang ¢ 1ab 01 puey

Sl ‘Dies pue Jalem 9yl O] IXau 189S P uaNe] SABY Of paD

$1 Jane) JO aweu aul Ag aaisng ueuwsed ¢ Iy Sy Burpuup JeyY

Bunds
IeWs & Wwou SxuLp 1003 '‘Buoy [riasss fofua oy paddals Aaw

Auedoid ays papsa 98 )

Wau ayi 10} swoy jdaued

DU WM D&

LR U 20080 S108) U DI U0 JRyl SINE Jundis Duysays)

UL DUB “‘aNET JOLNN O] Swueyl ABDO] 80D § alauMm SUs
.-vn...m...w.‘.._x__.u.::._..,...I._:_.L.u...,._:.”_..u.;

Cwed sNQW

M 30 AIOISHY JURIGIA Y] O} IBQUasSa a2 (SHanD pue) Junds j0oyds ‘aao) Bunod

‘Hiewpue| aLaxang U0 UR U0 XiewW JNoA aaea| 0] Ajunpoddo SwWwnaji-e-u-aduo @ 1aA02s510

UONRIO)SDY e JOMI |

21IS |eusig

ALISYAAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FH]L

Bunes|y 881)IWIWO) JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoquaAoN



6G1

86. ueg-

‘Aleslanluue Buippam il

Ino pajeliqaleo am Jaquiaydeg
}sed syl ‘aw ypm a4l Jay jo
1saJ ay) puads 0} Jay payse |
awn sy} AjuQ axeT JouI je
youag awes ayj le uiebe 194
SOA|9SIN0 puUNO) aM - 2002

0] pJemloy} yse|d "lejem ay)

1e Buoo| youaq swes eyl
uo sn Jo om} 8y} Jo ainjoid

e pajuied | ‘4ajuim ey |
‘sinoy 10) Buiyje) Jeyjem ay)
Buyoo[laA0 youaq e uo ‘ayeT
Jou 1e Buiuels -Buluans
yoapad ay} psuueld | ‘8661
JO Jawwns ayj ul alne oW |

A

xtiswaAIN 2vis oo L. ()

DbuNoa|\ 98)ILULLIO)) JUSWSOUBAPY - bull@a|\ Peog / | 0g JoqUIBAON



091

* %06> I

* ’ %616 -%06 [N
aN3 HLINOW 1V d3ATIHOV TVLOL 40 % Ad € 1SV * %596 =< I
1394Vl Ad SNOINATYd OL AIIVdINOD 1394V1 TVOIRIOLSIH OL A34VdINOD
o/ | R 2 1L | vL | 2L | L9]  340DS ¥ILOWOHd LAN FOVHIAY T
ooo'se ||IIE 2N S9v'9 | £69'G | 006LE | GZ8ZE | 3IONVANILLY ININLILSNOD INOINN L
SIN3IAI Q)
ooovel | | L9S'ES | 8067 | 08L°€€l | S€9'6lL | SYONOA AFHINOIVIY / AFIINODV ‘9
oooeel ||IR 2| 18629 | £16'G9 | vereel | 9€6'S2l | SYONOA aMINITY 'V
ooo'esz || R 2N 8vS'1Zl | 5z8°0¢l | vLTLIT | LLS'SYT | SYONOQ V1Ol '€
Nzl & | NE6ZIS | N9'60L$ | WEOY$ | WI'8SES | HSVO T
wosss | 2 W8'9LL$ | ING'89L$ | W9'ZESS | WZvSt$ | S39037d ANV SL14I19 7

SFANSVIN dVIA TVOSId e
TVOO 81 AH SN1vis Tm\m Ol 8bAd 0E/60L Lk Ad L10Z 0€ d3S HONOJYHL Vviva

L10C d3dINIAON | ONILIINW S331lSN¥L 40 qivosd ALISYAAIN( FLVLS OIHQ FHL ﬁD _

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



L9l

“USIA 0JRUON
1O 92Ul PUB SMOUS awiyiey
pueg Jo abeianod seak

1se| Yum pajeposse Bulieys
[e190s Jaquia1das uj auipeq

%V '9LC

€69°l

otz oroe/t/or

o005y

00005

‘spouiew Janag
ajeblsaAul 0} Buinuiuod

AQ uaALp su
pue e o} Aulige paywr]

ozt nozfve ozfefe

NOILOVSNVYL ONIAID INITNO

oo 00z
o000t
et oor
‘Buleys jo swnjoA Jaybiy . o0
BuipjaiA ‘weiboid syybisuj
oot o0
ooo0E oot
ooo'se
sanunRuod Buueys gam oozt
o000r

oost

o091

SNOILOV 1V.LOL 9

uado-01-2112 %/9+) Bunsal
aAneasn o} anp Buioidw
[[RISA0 SSBUBAIDSYS |IRWS
“I9AIMOH "yaune| suizebew
iuwnje mau Bunioddns
2ouspe |lews uj abueyd o}
anp 8lAL Ul JUSS S|ieWwa 1oma4

‘seoualadxe

usgam pazijeuosiad

yum swabebus spoiduwn
0} Ayunpoddo sapinoid
Ud1UM ‘%EY AG gam 03 SYdI
paseaul Bupssiew 1USIUod
uo sndoj ‘IenemoH ‘Bunsod
Juids, uo snooj paseainsp
01 pal) Juswabebus

|e120s ul asealdag

AYVNWNS

%8°'0¢C-

mozs  couts ol e

AA - %C 6L

0/L‘81L8

moyys oyt ooe oot

6LS°L86

&SN yum bupoesdul aydoad a1y

LNIWIOVONI TVID0S 9

ozt owefifer stoz/TL  Svoz/v/or

LIN3WIOVON3T TV.LOL 9

LNINIOVONI

"SMBN X0 pue dv
WoJy suonuaW JaNIM] 01 dNp
padwn( suoissaidwi pauie3

JUSIU0D
1o Xiw [ewndo puy o1 J9pIo
ul (yoseasal ‘diysiopes|
ybnouy) Bunaxiew

USU0 O} PajedIPapP
Bunsod [eo0os jo uoniodoid
126187 %00gade Uo
(smoys awnyey pueq “69)
s1sod uids, jama) Bunnies)
Jaquwaidas o1 anp pauljpap
suoissaidwi paumo

AYVNWNS

¥20‘8SL'LS

cbugaysew ino buiaas ajdoad ary

AYVINNNS cobessouw 1o bupeaids 3jdoad a1y AJVOooAav AUVIWINS 51006110 0} pajejes uoye Bupyel jdoad a1y NOILOV
POPNIOUL 0 Elep AIYSIMOIA VSd o
3
oGO0 ¥ NOILJWNSNOD LNJLNOD 83M
3 3
AINIWIOVONT NIV 9 mwm omw F suojssaldw| pausey
‘(o104

suojssaidw psumo

SNOISS3ddNI

ssanzavmv I

AJVIOAQYV <<< NOILIV <<< LNIWIDOVONI <<< SSINTIVMV

AQYVOEHSVA ONILINYVIN

81L0T GIA Ad

8L0ZAd AOI¥3d ONILIOdIY

MIINDY /10T 19quardas

ALISYTAIN() HLVIS OIHQ FH], @

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



29l

Jaquinu 19b.ey Ajyjuow e a1elausb 03 SLIUOI Z| AQ PapIAIQ S|RIO| JBS A JO pug 108[01d 0} YIUO Uyoe3 saiepdn 1yl [SPOIA SADIPSId paulaq aly S|e0S MOH
dgl agl payoeay ajdoad
suolssaidwi (1o1IM] Woly a|gejieAe Ajuo)

Jeuonippe Bunelausb pue eipaw INo Buixe) S| 9ouUsIpne INo ||9M MOH juaiu0d pled pue dlueblio woly pajessusb am jeym puokaq pauieh am ey} suoissaldul suoissaiduw| pause3
agd.l agl suolssaidw| paumQ
agl agl slaouanyu|

mmz_);U@ @C_\/_\_U\CO:U@ __@ FO >>®,> U@E__QE,W wmﬂv_\/o\k& Arnavipial AA 11IAAIIN A 1AM 1IN €aNIIAINAP eNAlIBA AA S110on1p 10 sadf s ,D_:_JG_”_ Il __”“M mCOZU( _@wa_r

SJUSA® IUWN|Y O} UONNQLIUOD S BunaxIel\ SMOYS QgL uonehisibay uang

uaWyINIDal JUspNs aAndadsold uo edul s,Bunaxie s19)ey agl uondwnsuoD UaU0D gam
S92IAI9S Juawi|olug Buipoddns 03 uonnNquIuoD s Bunad.ep agl salinbu| uspnig

auoyd pue [lew 10811 8i| S|pUURYD
aul|yo Buneiodiooul M3IA [N} B SIA-B-SIA DllaW Axold 9|qISssadoe ue SallAIoR Bullexielp 0} paingune suondesuel) BulAIb suljuo Jo usdlad suonoesuel] BulAl9 aulluQ
sI BuIAIb auluo  BulAlb suljuo uo 1oedwl s,Bunadiey JO MBIA SOPIAOIY

sanIAoe BulAup-luswabebus e Jo malA paylidwis e SOpIACld sjuswabebus [lewa pue [e120s JO WNS juswabebug |e10]

aJow peals 0} Juem a|doad pue JUBASISI S| JUSILOD BY] JUSUOD 19119ISMAN BUIzeBR|A [UWN|Y PUB J18)18ISMON 109UU0D SpN[oul S|IeWT ) Uo

1IN0 Yyum uopoelalul Jadaap BUIALP Ul [lewd JO ADBDIYS SUl SMOUS  PaydI0 pue Bunasieiy AUSIaAiun Woly 1a1a|smau [jewa ue pauado oym ajdoad jo jaquinN uedo 011D JINSISMEN [1eU3

S9JRUOSD DAIRSID Bunuawwod pue Buleys se yons ‘suopoe Loya-ybiy

1IN0 1BY} PUB SN YYIM 10RISIUI SIBNPIAIPUL 1YY SMOUS 0} UBAIB 1YBIam 810N "SI9MO||0} JO Jaquinu AQ PapIAIP SUORDRIIUI [BID0S Palyblom Jo JUNoD uawabebug jeos

eIpaW pauiea BUIPN|DUL ‘SHOYS UORNGLISIP INO JO SWNJOA SU} SMOUS ORI} UBD OM JRUM UO PasB( ‘Usas alom sabessalu Bunayiew 1o sawi} jo Jaquuny suoissaidw|

SN ST1131 LI LVHM NOILINId3a ORILIN

AUVSSOTO QAVOEHSVYA ONILINYVIN

ALISHIAIN( ALVLS OITHQ TH]L

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN




November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION REPORT

Synopsis: Approval of the University Foundation Report as of September 30, 2017, is proposed.

WHEREAS monies are solicited and received on behalf of the university from alumni, industry, and various
individuals in support of research, instructional activities, and service; and

WHEREAS such gifts are received through The Ohio State University Development Fund and The Ohio
State University Foundation; and

WHEREAS this report includes the establishment one (1) endowed chair: the Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair
in Rheumatology and Immunology; one (1) endowed professorship: The Ohio State University Nephrology
Endowed Professorship for Kidney Research; three (3) designated professorships: the Berry Designated
Professorship, the Fisher College of Business Designated Professorship, the Fisher College of Business
Designated Professorship; one (1) professorship fund: the Emerging Surgical Scholar Research
Professorship Fund; one (1) endowed scholarship from a loyal donor family: the McCoy Family Athletic
Scholars Program; one (1) endowed program support fund from emertis dean and his wife: the W.K. Kellogg
Foundation and Bobby Moser Food Security and Sustainability Learning Community; and sixteen (16)
additional named endowed funds; and the revision of four (4) named endowed funds:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves The Ohio State University Foundation
Report as of September 30, 2017.

163



Y9l

(leoo [enuuy juaun)) , (PUd Yluow je paAsIyoe |ejo} JO % A4 € IseT) = 1abie]

leriovm jobiem  A4iseTm jenoym  196ielm A4 1Sem

L8 [enovm 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ /% €v$ 656 ey
Gzl$ 1ebie| m 95$ 9¢e$ ev$ 8¢$ 6v$ 623 12$ 99% ) 9¢e$ 6¢$ 05$ 1ebie ]
891$ Adisem 9e$ ve$ ees 8z$ 128 9z$ 8% v0L$ 9z$ z8$ 9r$ LL$  Adised
Jaquisydes 08 aunp Ae ady “Je\ ‘o4 ‘uep -08Q “AON 190 1deg ‘Bny AInp o8
0z$ _ _ —
0z$
ovs$
09%
or$
08$
00L$ 09%
0zL$
08$
ovLS$
091
00L$
08L$
00z$ 0zL$
s|e10] 8AleINWNYD [Bnjoy "SA 186Je] "SA A4 1SeT - AlAnoY A|Yluo

/102/0€/6 ybnoauy 2102/L/.

>=>_“o<>_£:o_>_ »Emzmb_zﬁ_mbﬁmommomﬂmh O
Hoday Ayanoy Buisielpung maN 810ZA4 :

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



suoneziuesiQ JayiO M suolzepunod

%CT
198v€8°0TS

%TT

%CS

%S

Suo11el0dJ0) M [UWN|Y-UON | UWn|y

€20°SSY'T6$

suoneziuesiQ Jayi0 M suolepunoy

suo1el0dJ0) M [UWN|Y-UON M Iuwn|y

%0L
TTL'Y8

%9T

769'086'9€$ stV VBEES et %T %0 %E
78L'6TT'8TS 12 Job 950
siej|og sJjouo
%S %L G9.'v9v‘89L$ 655°0Z1 G08‘v2.'9/1$ wLE‘LTL |ejol pueio
%t %L £66°CSE'VLLS £02'S 6VZ'656'8LL$ 0SZ'S suoneziuebio
%€EL- %%V 0/£'652'028 L0z Z8l'6LL'8Ls 12/ suoneziuebiQ J8yi0
%18 %01 €€6'20L'vv$  9cv v 78¢'8$ 19v suoljepuno4
%68 %0 069°988'8¥$  9/0% €20'GSY'26$  9S0‘Y suoljesodio)
suoneziuebiQ
%L %1 CLL'0LL'YSS  9SE'SLL GGG'GL8°.G$  ¥90°OLL sjenplAipuj
%L1 %€ 2sv'vsy'eey  98z'z8 198802 CLLV8 luwn|yy-uoN
%L %S~ 02€'969'0€$  0.0°ce ¥69°086'9¢$ 2SE‘LE luwnjy
s|enplAlpuj
sJejjoq sJouo( siejjog  sJouoQ siejjog  sJouoQ
abuey) o, 9102/0€/6 - 9L0C/LIL 2102/0€/6 - L10Z/LIL

2102/0€/6 Yybnoiuy £102/L/.1
adA] iouoq Aq AyAnoy
Hoday Ayanoy Buisielpung moN 810ZA4

ALISHAAIN(] HIVLS OIHQ dH L 7

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



991

€T°0S €C0S S8TS 89SS VSIS slouoq AjuQ eluolo|ad
T00S €00S S90S 9€0S 6C0S BlU030|3d 01 § - siouo(q lor 8¢ 60C TS8'C 9€€'9S 86¥°CT
100S TI¥0S SOCS 8STS TTIS NSO 01§ - siouoq ulor 9 [4s IST  0Ev'C (4] A4
86'LTS C¢L'LS 06°L8S TTETS V6'EES siouoq Ajuo NSO 6V 9T ¥SO'T 9¥6'ST 70L9T
s810 spu4 sdio) uwn)y  luwnpy s3J0 spu4 sdio) luwnly  luwnpy
/Y10 -UON 494310 -UON
siouoq AjuQ eluolojad BIUOJO|9d 01 § - sIouo( ulof s10u0Q AJuQ eluoI0jad s10U0Q JUIOf
suolIw s NSO 03 $ - slouoq uior m siouog Alupo NSO m ) ) ) ) )
000°00T 00008 000°09 000°0%  000°0C 0
00T$ 065 085 0% 09$ 0SS O 0€$ 0TS 0TS 0%
I suonezjuediQ JAYi10
. suoliepuno4
sie||o@ siouoqQ

ssouoQ AjuQ eluoio|ad
siouo( julof
siouod Ajup NSO

siouogAluponsom

suoneziuesiQ JaYy10

suoliepuno4

suopesodio)

juwn|y-uon

uwnyy

/102/0€/6 Ubnoauy £1.0z/L/.
joeduw| eluojojad - adA] touoq Aq AjAnoy
Hoday Ayanoy Buisiespung meN 81L0ZAH

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN

ALISYHAIN() A1VLS OIHQ FH], |



%0¢) %011 %001} %06

/102/0€/6 ubnoiyy £10z/L/.L
ssaibold - yun Aq AjIAnoy
Hoday Ayanoy Buisiespuny meN 810ZAH

191

(le0o |enuuy Juaung) , (pPus yjuow e paralyoe [e1o} 40 % A4 € ise) = 1ebie|

19018 | e 190JE] PUlyO mmmm  }00lJE] JO pEOYY mmmm

%08 %01 %09 %0S %01 %0€ %0¢ %01 %0

%LE

sab9]j0D S20UBI0S Y)eaH

%.LE J8)U8Y) [BOIPBIA JOUXBAA

%8¢ sjun Hoddng olwepeoy

%LE sesndwe) |euoibay

%¥veC seba||0D Alsianiun

ssalboud - yun Aq AlAnoy

ALISHAAIN()] 4LVLS OIHQ 3FH L hd_

-—

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



891

S|e303 Ul 93U0 PAUN0I Ajuo ase 1ng sadAl 118 ajdiynw y3nouys aA18 Aew siouop :31ON

%62} %SS 9LZ'sSL'vZ$  0.€ €9Y'162'65$ €15 lejo] puein
%S9l %61 ¥S'€9/'6L$ €01 v18'227'29$ €21 Ayanoy maN |ejol
%001 %61 eve'LIE Ll 96 0LY'069'vE€$ VLI SjuBWHWWOD 8)eys3
0$ 0 906'6/6'9L$ € spun4 pasiapy JouoQ Buipuig
%69~ %E€E" LIG'LSY'ZS 6 8Gt'2S/$ 9 salnuUY YO @ SIsniL d|qeleyd
SyI9 pauue|d
%SG E- %69 292°'16S'v$ 19T 680'698°'2%  LS¥ Aoy maN |ejol
%b2 %221 906'G/LL$ 691 609°102°2$  9.¢ pUIM-UI-SYID
0$ 0 0$ 0 ajejs3 [eay
%L~ %42- 968'G19'c$ 66 08%°299% 8. SEIMTES
sy9 ybLNO
sJiejjog siouoq sJiejjoqg siouoq sJiejjoqg siouoq
abuey) 9% 9102/0€/6 - 910Z/1/L L102/0€/6 - LLOZ/LIL
/102/0€/6 ubnoauy £1.02/L/.
Buinig xajdwo9 - AjAoy
Moday ApAnoy Buisieipung meN 8L0ZAL ALISHAAIN( ALVLS OTHO 3H L O

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



691

(le0o |enuuy Juaung) , (pPus yjuow e paralyoe [e1o} 40 % A4 € ise) = 1ebie|

19018 | e 190JE] PUlyO mmmm  }00lJE] JO PEOYY mmmm

%0cCL %0L L %001 %06 %08 %01 %09 %08 %0% %0¢€ %02 %01 %0
%¢€C (Jo ab3)j0D) suIDIpa|N AleuLIB}oA
%62 (10 abs]100) yesH 21and
%S| I (J0 o63)|00) Aoewieyd
%8¢ (3o absjj0D) Anowio}do

%} | I (J0 969||00) BuisinN
%] I (J0 a63)j00) Ansnuag
%LE I S95Ua15S YI[eaH
%1 d I SO0USI0S0INSN
%<ZZ | I (10 5659]|0D) suIdIpay
%G I (JoUuXxa\\) Jejua) |edIpa
%9 EEEEE (SSOY) JesH
%vS (anojog / sswer) Jeoue)
%LE T3]US7) [E31PaIN JOUXSM
46| SN 5UoNjelS 1|dnd NSOM
%8 NN s)1y oy) o} JOJus)) JBUXSAN
%LS Buisieipun apim-Ajisianiun
%E HEE )7 )uspns
%S| N 1oddng juspnig pue diysiejoyos
%S8 sauelqr]
%@ I SO1)9|YlY
%0| NN UOI}B|O0SSY luwn|y
%8¢ Sjiun yoddng djwiapedy
%LE sasndwie) [euoiboy
%/, HEEEE (jo 569||0D) YIOAA [BIO0S
%Z M (jo 8b8||0D UUL|S Uyor) sielyy dlland
%€ EE (10 560|100 ZJUOW T [PBUDIN) MET
%8¢ **0JIAUT pue |einynoLIBy ‘poo-
%€l N (0 569|00) Hunesuibul
%8 HEEEEE (650|093 UBWNH PUE UOI}EINP]
%9¢ (10 @Bs)j0D JoYsI4) SSBuUISNg
%6¢€ (10 8b9)j0D) s9OUBIOS puE SLY
%¥vC sabo|j0)

ssalboud - yun Aq AlAnoy

,10Z/0€/6 ybnoauy £102/1/.L 3
ssaiboud - yun Aq Ajaoy XLISHAAINN 31vis otHO 35 | B
Hoday Ayanoy Buisiespuny meN 810ZAH -

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



0Ll

¥ 40 € 98ed
L11$ 20L$ 65$ 8 0 e
[A%T 967$ 2lv$ 6EV$ LIY$ €8¢$ 1G€$ 662$ G61$ 891$ LLL$ LL$ ANA]
1Gv$ SLv$ Gges €GeS €LES 6£2$ 0ze$ €G1$ GLLS 18$ 15$ €$ 91 Qg wmm
26€$ 62€$ 262% 6v2$ 122$ 861$ 0L1$ 9L1$ 26$ 99¢% 05$ 12$ GO wm—
aunp Aep judy yalep Aenige Aenuep J19quisds( | JaqWBAON 1840120 Jaquisydeg 1snbny Anp 0%
- 00L$
00¢$
00€$
oov$
\ 00s$
009%

£102/0€/6 ybnoiuy £102/1/L

aAlje|nwng
Hoday Ajaioy Buisielpung maN /L0ZAL

ALISHAAIN()] d3LVLS OITHQ dIH ]

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN

suoljjiw ¢



VL

(leoo [enuuy juaun)) , (PUd Yluow je paAsIyoe |ejo} JO % A4 € IseT) = 1abie]

leriovm jobiem  A4iseTm jenoym  196ielm A4 1Sem

6c1$ [enovm 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ G/ ve$ | 0z$ | lenpy
26$% 1obiel m 6v% 8z$ A 8z$ Le$ Ges 8% Le$ 6¢$ €e$ ees [Z$  1ebiey
0Li$ Adisem Zrs 8L$ 1z$ 6¢$ ze$ ees 11$ 8z$ €z$ s 1€$ 928  Adisel]
Jaquisydes 08 aunp Ae ady 1B ‘o4 ‘uep -08Q “AON 190 1deg ‘Bny AInp o8
028 0L$
0z$
or$
0c$
09% ov$
Oww Ommw
09%
00L$
0/$
0zL$
08$
orL$ 06$
s|e10] 8AleINWNYD |Bnjoy ‘SA 186Je] "SA A4 1SeT - sidieoay AJYluop

/102/0€/6 ybnoauy 2102/L/.

mao__oomm;_ﬁ:os_ wtm:mb_zﬁ_mﬁﬁmoEOm:h O
Joday sydisosy oldoiyiueliyd gLOZAd _

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



suoljezjue8JQ JaY10 W SUOIIEPUNO{ M SUOIEJ0dI0) M [UWN|Y-UON B uwn|y
%19
L8L'TYT'8LS

%8

899'€0L'6
%0T s

cll

suoljezjuesJQ JaY10 W SUOIIepUNO4 M SUOI1eJ0dIO) M UWN|Y-UON B UWN|y

%0L
70878

%9T

0Ev'€6E'ET ‘
* s KL BT %0 %€
9T0'SPS'0TS IVEIVY'LTS ge/ 8% L0y
siej|og siouoq
%81 %l 9.Z'v5S'60L$  828°0Z1 ovz'oce'6ZL$ €5S°1ZL [ejol pueid
%C€ %0 £8€°ZPS'6L$  S9T'S 108°16£°G0L$ 062°S suopezjuebio
%EL- % 9€5'966'6L$  €2L ave'ory' LIS  8eL suoneziuefio Jaylo
%6¢- %6 096°28S'€L$  ObY 899°€0.°6$ 18y suolepuno
%0. %= 188°200°9¥$  20L'v 181°Vv2'8L$  LLO0Y suonelodiod
suonezjuebip
%0¢- %l £68°110°0$  €9S°SLL Svp'8e6°'ccs  €9Z°9L1L S|enplAlpu]
%EL- %€ evo'eey'sls  6vvCs ocy'cee’cl$  208'v8 IluwN|yy-UuoN
%8¢- %S~ 0GZ'885'vL$  vii'ee 910°'G¥S'0LS  LOv'LE luwnpy
S[enplAlpu]
siejjoq siouoq siejjoq siouoq siejjoq siouo(q
abuey9 % 9102/0€/6 - 9102/1L/L 1102/0¢€/6 - LL0OZ/LIL

2102/0€/6 Yybnoiuy £102/L/.1
adA] Jouoq Aq s)dieosay
Hoday sidisoay oldoiyiue|iyd 81L0ZA

ALISHAAIN(] HIVLS OIHQ dH L 7

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



€L

(le0o |enuuy Juaung) , (pPUs yjuow e paralyoe [B10} 40 % A4 € ise) = 1ebie|

100/E | emmme  1061E] pUYO mmmm  }96JE] JO PESYY mmmm

%0CL %011 %001 %06 %08 %04 %09 %08 %0v %0€ %0¢ %01 %0

%22 $969]|00 $90USIOS U)eaH

%.L2T 18)U8Y) [BOIPBIA JOUXBAA

-

%Y sjpun poddng olwepesy

%04 sesndwe) |euoibay

sab9)|0D Alisiaaiun

°
N~
-~

ssalboud - yiun Aq sydisdoay

2102/0€/6 ybnoayy £102/1/.L

ssaiboid - yun Aq sydiasay XLISHAAIN(] LVLS OTHQ THL h
yoday sydieoay oldoiyjueliyd 810ZA4

"

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



Vil

S|e303 Ul 93U0 PAUN0I Ajuo ase 1ng sadAl 118 ajdiynw y3nouys aA18 Aew siouop :31ON

%Eh- %65 PG '9SELLS  §Z¢ Ze6'€/¥'9$  9LS lejol puein
%8~ %L 08.'796'9¢  8S £¥8'v09°'c$  S9 sydiaoay |ejol
%LE- %81 89Z'¢lS'v$  0S G8e'cG8'Z$ 65 sjuswWWOo) s8jeisy
0% 0 0% 0 spun4 pasiApy Jouoq Buipuig
%69- %€ge- LLGLSY'2S 6 861'25/.$ 9 seljInuuy YO B sisni| s|qejey)
SYI9 pauue|d
%GE- %69 29L'16€v$ 19T 680'698°C$ LSY syd1a09y |ejol
%¥Z %22zl 906'G/.°1$ 691 609°L02'2$  9/¢ puIM-uI-sIO
0% 0 0% 0 ajejs3 |esy
%P L- %Le- 068'GL9'Z$ 66 08¥°299% 8/ senunoss
sy19 ybyno
sJiejjog siouoq siejjoa siouoq sJiejjoa siouoq
abuey9 %, 9102/0€/6 - 9L0Z/L/L 2102/0€/6 - LLOZ/VIL
2102/0€/6 ybnoauy £1.02/1/.
BuiAali9 xajdwo) - sydiosay
Hoday sydieoay oidoiyjuejiud g10ZA4 ALISHIAIN( FLVLS OITHQ FHL O

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN



Gll

(le0o |enuuy Juaung) , (pPUs yjuow e paralyoe [B10} 40 % A4 € ise) = 1ebie|

190JE | e }00le] pUlyOg mmmm  }O6uE] JO PEOUY mmmm

%0ZL  %O0LL %00l %06 %08 %0. %09 %08 %0 %0€ %02 %01 %0
%1Z | (J0 965||00) suIoIpa| AleulIBOA
%y (Jo #69]100) uyesH aland
%8| NI (jo 969||0D) Aoewieyd
%Ly (1o eb9)j09) Anowoydo

%6| I (JO 96s||0D) BuisinN
% (Jo ab9j0D) Ansuaq
%ee S35UI9S YleaH
%LC $90UBI0S0INBN
%p| I (j0 965|00) suIdIpay
©9] I (JoUXd\\) Jajua) |edIpa
%9 NN (SSOY) MesH

%9¢ (anojos / sawer) Joouen
%LC ENERYEETERER S

%7 NN SUOlelS dllgnd NSOM
%1l | N SV 9y} JOj JSJUSD JOUXIN
Buisieipung apim-Alsianiun
©9] I ©)7uspnis
%Y mmm VHoddngjuepnig pue diysieloyos
%EE saueIqI]
%L sone|UY
09| N U0)jeI00SSY luwn|y
%9% s}iun poddng Siwapedy
%04 Sesndwie) [euoiboy
%4,| I (10 969]|0D) IO [B100S
%0 N (0 a63|j0D UUd|D uyor) siely alignd
%0] mmmm—— (0 969100 ZJUOW T [9BYDIN) MeT
“*0JIAUT pue [edn}nolBY ‘poo4
o1/ I (J0 869)|0)) Buussuibug
%G HEEm /60j003 uewnH pue uoneonp3
%E7 mj—— (10 969]|00 Joys!4) sseuisng
°%Z| mEmmmm (Jo 969)|0D) s8ouaI0g pue SUY
ALl I saba||0)

ssalboud - yun Aq sidiaosay

-—

%licl

%S¢T

£102/0€/6 YBnoiuy £1.0z/L/.2 P

ssalboud - 1un Aq sydissay XL1ISHAAIND 31vis orHo a5 |}
Hoday sjdieoay didoiyjueliyd 81L0ZAd A

Bunes|y 881IWWIOY JUSWSIUBAPY - Bunes|y pieog /10 J8qWSAON



9/l

¥ 40 € 98ed

621$

¥5$

0z$

8|0 em—

€0v$

19¢e$

£pes

zze$

€62$

122$

8€C$

191$

zelLs

oLL$

£9%

9z$

L1 e

96€$

z5¢$

8ze$

90€$

S8¢$

6€C$

9le$

zelLs

€0L$

€.$

8v$

9z$

910 e

¥9¢€$

L1€$

[4:14'

65¢$

S€C$

812$

08L$

8LL$

£6$

L9$

05$

T4

A

aunp

Aepy

[dy

yolep

Aenige

Arenuer

JaquiaoaQ

JaquianoN

1890100

Jaquisydeg

1snbny

Anp

0$

05$

00L$

0SL$

00z$

0S2$

00¢$

0s€$

00v$

0S¥$

00S$

/102/0€/6 Ubnoayy 210Z/L/2
aAlje|nwINg

uoday sydieoay oidosyjueiyd 81L0ZAL

ALISYIAIN() 3LVLS OTHQ dH L

Bunes| 881)IWIWOY JUSWSdUBADPY - Bunesyy pieog /L0Z JoqueAoN

suoyjiw ¢



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

Establishment of Named Endowed Chair (University)

Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair in Rheumatology and Immunology
Established November 3, 2017, with revenue support from the
Division of Rheumatology-Immunology of the Department of Internal
Medicine in honor of the career and leadership of Dr. Whisler; used
for a chair position in the Division of Rheumatology-Immunology, in
the Department of Internal Medicine in the College of Medicine,
supporting a nationally or internationally recognized physician or
Ph.D. faculty member specializing in immunology research involving
rheumatic autoimmune diseases.

Establishment of Named Endowed Professorship (University)

The Ohio State University Nephrology Endowed Professorship for
Kidney Research

Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer from the Division
of Nephrology given by the faculty members to promote basic,
translational and clinical research in kidney diseases at The Ohio
State University Wexner Medical Center; used for a professorship
position in the Division of Nephrology in the Department of Internal
Medicine, supporting a nationally or internationally recognized
physician faculty member in the field of Nephrology.

Establishment of Named Designated Professorship (University)

Berry Designated Professorship

Established November 3, 2017, with the reallocation of annual
distribution from The Berry Chair of New Technologies in Marketing
as requested by John W. Berry Jr; used to provide a professorship
position in the Max M. Fisher College of Business.

Fisher College of Business Designated Professorship

Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the Max M.
Fisher College of Business of a gift from the estate of William L.
Meyer; used to provide a professorship position in the Max M. Fisher
College of Business.

Fisher College of Business Designated Professorship

Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the Max M.
Fisher College of Business of a gift from the estate of William L.
Meyer; used to provide a professorship position in the Max M. Fisher
College of Business.

Establishment of Named Endowed Funds (University)

WOSU Student Experience Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by WOSU of a
gift from FCC Spectrum Auction/Federal Government; used to
support student experiences including internships, fellowships, and
other student experiences in WOSU Public Media.

177

November 3, 2017

Amount
Establishing Total
Endowment* Commitment
$2,000,000.00 $2,000,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$250,000.00

$225,000.00

$225,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$250,000.00

$225,000.00

$225,000.00

$1,000,000.00



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

Merit Scholarship Initiative Endowed Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the University
Honors & Scholars Center of a gift from the estate of Isabel H. Perry
(BS 1943); used to support the Merit Scholarship Initiative.

College of Veterinary Medicine Endowed Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the College
of Veterinary Medicine of an unrestricted gift from the estate of
William L. Ingalls (DVM 1942, MS 1947); used at the discretion of
the dean of the College of Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee.

Emerging Surgical Scholar Research Professorship Fund
Established November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer of unrestricted
gifts and other support from the Department of Surgery; and with
gifts from alumni, colleagues, grateful patients and other advocates;
given to foster growth and excellence in the surgical specialties, in
research endeavors and to advance its faculty recruitment and
retention efforts; Until June 30, 2022, unless the gifted endowment
principal reaches $1,000,000 prior to said date, the annual
distribution may be used for medical research, operational support
and strategic initiatives at the discretion of the chairperson of the
Department of Surgery, with preference towards research awards to
young investigators and/or junior faculty in a surgical specialty. If the
gifted endowment principal does not reach $1,000,000 by said date,
the fund name shall be revised to the Surgery Early Stage Research
Endowment Fund. If the gifted endowment principal balance
reaches $1,000,000 by June 30, 2022, the fund name shall be
revised to the Emerging Surgical Scholar Research Professorship
and the annual distribution shall be used for a professorship position
in the Department of Surgery in the College of Medicine to support
a tenured or tenure-tracked physician faculty member in one of the
surgical specialties. After June 30, 2022, the fund may be revised to
an endowed professorship when the gifted endowment principal
balance reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for
an endowed professorship position.

Michael R. Tucker Memorial Scholarship Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with a transfer of gifts from friends
and family of Michael R. Tucker (JD 2009); used to provide a
scholarship to a student in his/her second year of law school who is
transferring to the Michael E. Moritz College of Law.

Change in Name and Description of Named Endowed Fund

(University)

From: The Millard M. Cummins Weights and Scale Collection
Support Fund
To: The Millard M. Cummins Fund

From: Dr. Lee Hebert Endowed Professorship
To: Dr. Lee A. Hebert Distinguished Professorship in Nephrology

Establishment of Named Endowed Funds (Foundation)

178

$495,638.13

$100,000.00

$55,500.00

$50,000.00

November 3, 2017

$495,638.13

$100,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$50,000.00



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

McCoy Family Athletic Scholars Program

Established November 3, 2017, with a grant recommended by John
B. McCoy and Virginia B. McCoy from the John G. and Jeanne B.
McCoy Fund of The Columbus Foundation; used to provide tuition
scholarships for ten student-athletes, five male and five female who
are current student-athletes, enrolled as full-time undergraduates
and have a 3.4 minimum grade point average.

W.K. Kellogg Foundation and Bobby Moser Food Security and
Sustainability Learning Community

Established November 3, 2017, with grants from the Future Fund of
the Columbus Foundation, a donor-advised fund at The Columbus
Foundation established by the W. K. Kellogg Foundation in honor of
Bobby Moser’s service as a W.K. Kellogg Foundation trustee, and
recommended by Pat and Bobby Moser; used to support the Food
Security and Sustainability Learning Community at the College of
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences as part of the Pat
and Bobby Moser Scholars Program.

The Betty M. Edwards Scholarship Fund in the Max M. Fisher
College of Business

Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from the estate of Betty
M. Edwards (BS 1939, MA 1960); used to benefit the Max M. Fisher
College of Business at The Ohio State University and used to
provide a scholarship(s) to business students with preference given
to students from Licking County, Ohio, and/or those preparing for
business education careers.

The Betty M. Edwards Scholarship Fund in the College of Education
and Human Ecology

Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from the estate of Betty
M. Edwards (BS 1939, MA 1960); used to benefit the College of
Education and Human Ecology at The Ohio State University and be
used to provide a scholarship(s) to students with preference given
to students from Licking County, Ohio, and/or those preparing to
teach business education and vocational education, respectively.

The Betty M. Edwards Scholarship Fund in the College of Food,
Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences

Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from the estate of Betty
M. Edwards (BS 1939, MA 1960); used to benefit the College of
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences at The Ohio State
University with first preference given to students from Licking
County, Ohio, and then to any qualified student(s). Funds may be
used for, but not limited to, students interested in vocational
agriculture and the enhancement of leadership.

John Anast Cancer Endowed Fund

Established November 3, 2017,with gifts from the estate of John
Anast; used to support cancer research.

179

$1,000,000.00

$700,000.00

$414,666.66

$207,333.33

$207,333.33

$170,440.07

November 3, 2017

$3,000,000.00

$700,000.00

$414,666.66

$207,333.33

$207,333.33

$170,440.07



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

Omer K. Masud and Asifa Omer International Scholarship Fund
Established November 3, 2017, with gifts from Omer K. Masud (MS
2002, MBA 2005) and Asifa Omer as part of The Joseph A. Alutto
Global Leadership Initiative; used to provide scholarships to
undergraduate or graduate students enrolled in the Max. M. Fisher
College of Business to support critical, action-based, learning
experiences around the world.

Jeannie and Sanford Kayne Family Endowed Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from Stanley B. Kayne
(BA 1974), in memory of his parents; split to support the following
funds as follows: forty percent to support The Barry A. Pfaff Lewy
Body Dementia Research Fund, twenty percent to support the
endowed principal of the Louis H. Mendelson, M.D. '23 Award Fund,
forty percent to support the Jeannie and Sanford Kayne Family
Accounting Scholarship Fund.

The Norman K. Booth Endowed Scholarship Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with gifts from the Knowlton School
of Architecture Landscape Architecture Alumni and friends; used to
provide one or more scholarships to undergraduate students
enrolled in the Austin E. Knowlton School of Architecture who are
bachelor's degree candidates in the Landscape Architecture
program. Eligible scholarship candidates shall be in their junior or
senior year, have demonstrated financial need, and strong academic
and design credentials. Criteria for selection shall include that
recipients show leadership as advocates of Landscape Architecture
and great potential to serve as an inspiration to others in the field.

The Tom W. Davis Rowing Scholarship Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from Tom W. Davis; ten
percent of the annual distribution shall be reinvested in the
endowment principal and the remaining annual distribution shall be
used to supplement the grant-in-aid costs for a student-athlete who
is a member of the rowing team.

Irene and James Lawhun Family Endowed Scholarship Fund
Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from Gerald L. Lawhun
(BS 1954); used to provide tuition-only scholarships to
undergraduate students enrolled in the Max M. Fisher College of
Business.

Dean E. LeBeau Endowed Scholarship

Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from Joan M. LeBeau;
used to provide scholarships to students enrolled in the College of
Veterinary Medicine who are pursuing their DVM and who are from
the State of Ohio. First preference will be given to candidates from
Stark County.

180

$70,000.00

$58,356.40

$50,600.00

$50,000.00

$50,000.00

$50,000.00

November 3, 2017

$100,000.00

$80,000.00

$50,600.00

$150,000.00

$50,000.00

$50,000.00



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

The Dr. Andrew T. Maccabe Endowed Scholarship Fund
Established November 3, 2017, with a gift from Dr. Andrew T.
Maccabe (BS 1981, DVM 1985); used to provide one scholarship to
a student who is enrolled in the Doctor of Veterinary Medicine
program, is ranked as a third or fourth year student, and
demonstrates financial need and excellent leadership abilities. First
preference shall be given to candidates who show an interest in
public policy. Second preference shall be given to candidates who
show an interest in public health.

Robert M. Krivoshey Fund

Established November 3, 2017, with memorial gifts from friends,
family, and colleagues; used at the discretion of the dean of the
Michael E. Moritz College of Law. When the gifted endowment
principal reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for
a restricted endowed fund, the fund name shall be changed to the
Robert M. Krivoshey Clinic Scholarship Fund. Thereafter, the annual
distribution shall be used to support scholarships for students
enrolled in the Michael E. Moritz College of Law with preference for,
but not limited to, those who have demonstrated an interest in
studying criminal law.

Change in Name of Named Endowed Fund (Foundation)

From: The William S. Stinson Jr. Scholarship Endowment Fund
To: The Ruby Roush Stinson and William S. Stinson Jr. Scholarship
Endowment Fund

Change in Description of Named Endowed Fund (Foundation)

The Raymond G. and Helen Mossbarger Vawter Family Fund
TOTAL

*Amounts establishing endowments as of September 30, 2017.

181

$50,000.00

$40,550.00

$8,520,417.92

November 3, 2017

$50,000.00

$50,000.00



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair in Rheumatology and Immunology

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair in
Rheumatology and Immunology effective November 3, 2017, with revenue support from the Division of
Rheumatology-Immunology of the Department of Internal Medicine in honor of the career and leadership
of Dr. Whisler.

Dr. Whisler became emeritus professor in 2009 after a dedicated career as a specialist in rheumatology
and immunology in the Department of Internal Medicine, having joined the faculty in 1977, became
professor in 1985 and served as director of its Division of Rheumatology-Immunology (1980-2009). He is
an Ohio State alumnus, earning an MD in 1968 and completed his internship and residency training at Ohio
State in 1973.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used for a chair position in the Division of Rheumatology-
Immunology, in the Department of Internal Medicine in the College of Medicine, supporting a nationally or
internationally recognized physician or Ph.D. faculty member specializing in immunology research involving
rheumatic autoimmune diseases. Appointment to the position shall be recommended to the Provost by the
dean of the college, in consultation with the director of the division and the chairperson of the department;
and approved by the University’s Board of Trustees. The activities of the chair holder shall be reviewed no
less than every four years by the dean of the college to determine compliance with the intent of the donors
as well as the academic and research standards of the University.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the division director, in
consultation with the department chairperson.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however, (1) in consultation
with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve,
or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking
such modification, the University shall consult the director of the Division of Rheumatology-Immunology,
chairperson of the Department of Internal Medicine and the dean of the College of Medicine. Modifications
to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance with the policies
of the University.

The Ohio State University Nephrology Endowed Professorship for Kidney Research

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish The Ohio State University Nephrology
Endowed Professorship for Kidney Research effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer from the
Division of Nephrology given by the faculty members to promote basic, translational and clinical research
in kidney diseases at The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used for a professorship position in the Division of Nephrology
in the Department of Internal Medicine, supporting a nationally or internationally recognized physician
faculty member in the field of Nephrology. The professorship holder shall be appointed by the University’s
Board of Trustees as recommended and approved by the dean of the College of Medicine, in consultation
with the department chairperson and division director. The activities of the professorship holder shall be
reviewed no less than every four years by the dean to determine compliance with the intent of the donors,
as well as the academic and research standards of the University.

182



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The professorship may be revised to an endowed chair position when the endowment principal balance
reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for an endowed chair position. Alternatively, at the
discretion of the division director and approved by the department chair and college dean, the professorship
may be closed and its principal balance transferred to the Dr. Lee A. Hebert Distinguished Professorship in
Nephrology, which may be revised to an endowed chair position when the endowment principal balance
reaches the minimum level required at that date for an endowed chair position.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. If in the future the field of renal medicine ceases to exist, then another use, as nearly aligned
with the original intent of the contribution as good conscience and need dictate, shall be designated by the
University. In seeking such modification, the University shall consult the chair of the Department of Internal
Medicine, director of the Division of Nephrology and the dean of the College of Medicine. Modifications to
endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance with the policies of
the University.

Berry Designated Professorship

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Berry Designated Professorship
effective November 3, 2017, with the reallocation of annual distribution from The Berry Chair of New
Technologies in Marketing as requested by John W. Berry Jr.

This fund provides a professorship position in the Max M. Fisher College of Business. Appointment to the
position for a five-year term shall be recommended to the Provost by the dean of the college and approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees. The activities of the professorship shall be reviewed by the dean of
the college to determine compliance with the academic and research standards of the University.

This designated professorship position shall cease to exist five years from the date it is established unless
another funding source is identified.

Fisher College of Business Designated Professorship

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Fisher College of Business
Designated Professorship effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the Max M. Fisher College
of Business of a gift from the estate of William L. Meyer.

This fund provides a professorship position in the Max M. Fisher College of Business. Appointment to the
position for a five-year term shall be recommended to the Provost by the dean of the college and approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees. The activities of the professorship shall be reviewed by the dean of
the college to determine compliance with the academic and research standards of the University.

This designated professorship position shall cease to exist five years from the date it is established unless
another funding source is identified.
Fisher Designated Professorship

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Fisher Designated Professorship

effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the Max M. Fisher College of Business of a gift from
the estate of William L. Meyer.

183



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

This fund provides a professorship position in the Max M. Fisher College of Business. Appointment to the
position for a five-year term shall be recommended to the Provost by the dean of the college and approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees. The activities of the professorship shall be reviewed by the dean of
the college to determine compliance with the academic and research standards of the University.

This designated professorship position shall cease to exist five years from the date it is established unless
another funding source is identified.

WOSU Student Experience Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the WOSU Student Experience Fund
effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by WOSU of a gift from FCC Spectrum Auction/Federal
Government.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support student experiences including internships,
fellowships, and other student experiences in WOSU Public Media. Expenditures shall be approved by the
general manager of WOSU, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the general manager of
WOSU or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however, (1) in consultation
with the donor/donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to
achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In
seeking such modification, the University shall consult the general manager of WOSU or his/her designee.
Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance
with the policies of the University.

Merit Scholarship Initiative Endowed Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Merit Scholarship Initiative Endowed
Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the University Honors & Scholars Center of a gift
from the estate of Isabel H. Perry (BS 1943).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support the Merit Scholarship Initiative. Expenditures
shall be approved by the director of the University Honors & Scholars Center or his/her designee.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the director of the University
Honors & Scholars Center or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

184



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

It is the desire of the University Honors & Scholars Center that the endowment established herein should
benefit the University in perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided
that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the
University shall consult the director of the University Honors & Scholars Center or his/her designee.
Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance
with the policies of the University.

College of Veterinary Medicine Endowed Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the College of Veterinary Medicine
Endowed Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer by the College of Veterinary Medicine of
an unrestricted gift from the estate of William L. Ingalls (DVM 1942, MS 1947).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used at the discretion of the dean of the College of Veterinary
Medicine or his/her designee.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the College of
Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the College of Veterinary Medicine that the endowment established herein should benefit
the University in perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however,
if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such
fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University
shall consult the dean of the college or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance with the policies of the University.

Emerging Surgical Scholar Research Professorship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Emerging Surgical Scholar Research
Professorship Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a fund transfer of unrestricted gifts and other support
from the Department of Surgery; and with gifts from alumni, colleagues, grateful patients and other
advocates; given to foster growth and excellence in the surgical specialties, in research endeavors and to
advance its faculty recruitment and retention efforts.

Until June 30, 2022, unless the gifted endowment principal reaches $1,000,000 prior to said date, the
annual distribution may be used for medical research, operational support and strategic initiatives at the
discretion of the chairperson of the Department of Surgery, with preference towards research awards to
young investigators and/or junior faculty in a surgical specialty. If the gifted endowment principal does not
reach $1,000,000 by said date, the fund name shall be revised to the Surgery Early Stage Research
Endowment Fund.

If the gifted endowment principal balance reaches $1,000,000 by June 30, 2022, the fund name shall be
revised to the Emerging Surgical Scholar Research Professorship and the annual distribution shall be used
for a professorship position in the Department of Surgery in the College of Medicine to support a tenured
or tenure-tracked physician faculty member in one of the surgical specialties. First preference shall be given
to an early stage investigator ranked as an assistant or associate professor (or equivalent position) during
which time the appointed faculty member can build his/her research portfolio. Second preference on
appointee eligibility shall be a faculty member of any rank undertaking the early stages of novel research

185



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

to allow more dedicated time towards promising medical research. At the discretion of the department
chairperson, in consultation with the dean and as specified with the appointee, this appointment may be
limited to a four-year, non-renewable term (or for other duration or renewal terms) with the intent to provide
temporary funding for the professorship position.

Appointment to the position shall be recommended to the Provost by the dean of the College of Medicine,
in consultation with the chairperson of the Department of Surgery; and approved by the University’s Board
of Trustees. The activities of the professorship holder shall be reviewed no less than every four years (or
the duration specified to appointee) by the dean of the college to determine compliance with the intent of
the donors as well as the academic and research standards of the University.

After June 30, 2022, the fund may be revised to an endowed professorship when the gifted endowment
principal balance reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for an endowed professorship
position.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the chairperson of the
Department of Surgery or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however, (1) in consultation
with the donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to
achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In
seeking such modification, the University shall consult the chairperson of the Department of Surgery and
the dean of the College of Medicine. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s
Board of Trustees, in accordance with the policies of the University.

Michael R. Tucker Memorial Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Michael R. Tucker Memorial
Scholarship Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a transfer of gifts from friends and family of Michael R.
Tucker (JD 2009).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide a scholarship to a student in his/her second
year of law school who is transferring to the Michael E. Moritz College of Law. Recipients will be selected
by the dean of the college or his/her designee, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the Michael E.
Moritz College of Law or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

186



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however, (1) in consultation
with the donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to
achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In
seeking such modification, the University shall consult the dean of the Michael E. Moritz College of Law or
his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees,
in accordance with the policies of the University.

The Millard M. Cummins Fund

The Millard M. Cummins Weights and Scale Collection Support Fund was established December 6, 1996,
by the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University with a gift to The Ohio State University Development
Fund from Millard M. Cummins (BIE 1961), of Columbus, Ohio. Effective November 3, 2017, the fund name
and description shall be revised.

The annual distribution shall support the maintenance, security and other expenses related to the Millard
M. Cummins Weights and Scale Collection and the acquisition, preservation, or display of rare books and
materials in the Rare Books and Manuscripts Library as recommended by the curator and approved by the
director of University Libraries.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however, (1) in consultation
with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve,
or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking
such modification, the University shall consult the director of University Libraries or his/her designee.
Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance
with the policies of the University.

Dr. Lee A. Hebert Distinguished Professorship in Nephrology

The Dr. Lee Hebert Endowed Professorship in Nephrology was established August 29, 2014, by the Board
of Trustees of The Ohio State University, with gifts given in honor of Dr. Lee A. Hebert from colleagues and
grateful patients including gifts from OSU Internal Medicine, LLC, Division of Nephrology and Casto-Ohio
Properties LTD. Effective November 3, 2017, the fund name and description shall be revised.

Dr. Hebert joined the Department of Internal Medicine faculty in 1979 and was director of the Division of
Nephrology (1979-2004) as well as professor of pathology. He became faculty emeritus in July 2007. An
internationally recognized expert in the role of complement in kidney disease, lupus nephritis, hypertension,
and preservation of kidney function in chronic kidney disease patients, Dr. Hebert has authored more than
178 peer-reviewed original scientific publications, 30 book chapters, and 48 review articles. Principal
investigator of 8 NIH grants (including the department’s first Program Project), 7 NIH multi-center trials, and
multiple non-NIH clinical trials, he also served on numerous editorial boards and NIH study sections. In
addition to his engagement in basic, translational, and clinical research, he conducted an active clinical
practice. Dr. Hebert was a role model for nephrology trainees and junior faculty and shared his wisdom with
generations of interns, residents, and fellows.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used for a professorship position in the Division of Nephrology
in the Department of Internal Medicine, supporting a nationally or internationally recognized physician
faculty member in the field of Nephrology with a focus on research in the immunology of kidney diseases.
The professorship holder shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University as
recommended and approved by the dean of the College of Medicine, in consultation with the department

187



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

chair and division director. The activities of the professorship holder shall be reviewed no less than every
four years by the dean to determine compliance with the intent of the donors as well as the academic and
research standards of the University. The professorship may be revised to an endowed chair position when
the endowment principal balance reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for an endowed
chair position.

Should the field of renal medicine cease to exist due to medical discoveries that lead to the prevention and
cure of renal disease, the professorship (or chair) position may be directed towards other diseases in the
Department of Internal Medicine as nearly aligned with the original intent of the contribution as good
conscience and need dictate.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, however, (1) in consultation
with the donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to
achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In
seeking such modification, the University shall consult the chair of the Department of Internal Medicine,
director of the Division of Nephrology, and dean of the College of Medicine. Modifications to endowed funds
shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance with the policies of the University.

McCoy Family Athletic Scholars Program

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the McCoy Family Athletic
Scholars Program effective November 3, 2017, with a grant recommended by John B. McCoy and Virginia
B. McCoy from the John G. and Jeanne B. McCoy Fund of The Columbus Foundation.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide tuition scholarships for ten student-athletes,
five male and five female. Candidates must be current student-athletes, enrolled as full-time
undergraduates and have a 3.4 minimum grade point average. Recipients, who will be known as McCoy
Athletic Scholars, will be selected by the director of the Department of Athletics or his/her designee, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid. Scholarships are renewable as long as recipients continue to meet
the selection criteria.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the director of the
Department of Athletics or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

188



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the director of the Department of Athletics or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds shall
be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.

W.K. Kellogg Foundation and Bobby Moser
Food Security and Sustainability Learning Community

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the W.K. Kellogg Foundation
and Bobby Moser Food Security and Sustainability Learning Community effective November 3, 2017, with
grants from the Future Fund of the Columbus Foundation, a donor-advised fund at The Columbus
Foundation established by the W. K. Kellogg Foundation in honor of Bobby Moser’s service as a W.K.
Kellogg Foundation trustee, and recommended by Pat and Bobby Moser.

Lifelong experience in food production, professional dedication to the College of Food, Agricultural, and
Environmental Sciences (CFAES), service on the W.K. Kellogg Foundation Board, and a desire to pay
forward inspired Pat and Bobby Moser to direct funding for the Food Security and Sustainability Learning
Community (the LC) to address a critical societal need concerning state and global food security issues
while creating an experience for students from across Ohio State. It is their vision that students in the LC
will gain a holistic understanding of the food system, community engagement, and will explore food
production in Ohio, across the United States, and globally with particular attention given to how and why
our many food production systems each play a critical role in feeding the world. Additionally it is the Moser’s
desire for students to develop critical leadership skills needed for success after graduation, gain greater
self-awareness and develop skills that will improve their effectiveness in leading change, working in teams,
engaging community partners, and creating a compelling vision for the future.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support the Food Security and Sustainability Learning
Community at the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences as part of the Pat and Bobby
Moser Scholars Program. Expenditures will be recommended by the program director and approved by the
associate dean for Academic Programs in the college. Expenditures may include; but are not limited to;
expenses related to welcome week and enrichment activities, resident advisor programing, field trips
including Washington DC, a community engagement project, and invited speakers, as well as salary and
benefits for the director of the learning community. Students will be invited to apply for the LC as part of the
application process to the University and will be selected by the program director for the LC, in consultation
with the associate dean for Academic Programs in the college and the Office of Admissions, in consultation
with Student Financial Aid.

If the purpose of the fund should cease to exist, the proceeds may be used to support the Moser Scholars
Program.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the College of
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

189



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donors and advisors named above, or (2) if such purposes become
unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for
the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the dean of the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences or his/her designee, in
consultation with the college’s associate dean of Academic Affairs or his/her designee. Modifications to
endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of
Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and the Foundation.

The Betty M. Edwards Scholarship Fund in the Max M. Fisher College of Business

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Betty M. Edwards
Scholarship Fund in the Max M. Fisher College of Business effective November 3, 2017, with a gift from
the estate of Betty M. Edwards (BS 1939, MA 1960).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to benefit the Max M. Fisher College of Business at
The Ohio State University and used to provide a scholarship(s) to business students. Preference shall be
given to students from Licking County, Ohio, and/or those preparing for business education careers.
Selection will be made by the college’s scholarship committee, in consultation with Student Financial Aid
and approved by the dean of the college.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the Max M.
Fisher College of Business or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that this fund should benefit the University in perpetuity. If the need for this fund
should cease to exist or so diminish as to provide unused distribution, then another use shall be designated
by the Board of Trustees as recommended by the dean of the Max M. Fisher College of Business or his/her
designee in order to carry out the desire of the donor.

The Betty M. Edwards Scholarship Fund in the College of Education and Human Ecology

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Betty M. Edwards
Scholarship Fund in the College of Education and Human Ecology effective November 3, 2017, with a gift
from the estate of Betty M. Edwards (BS 1939, MA 1960).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to benefit the College of Education and Human Ecology
at The Ohio State University and be used to provide a scholarship(s) to students. Preference shall be given
to students from Licking County, Ohio, and/or those preparing to teach business education and vocational
education, respectively. Selection will be made by the college’s scholarship committee, in consultation with
Student Financial Aid and approved by the dean of the college.

190



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the College of
Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

Itis the desire of the donor that this fund should benefit the University in perpetuity. If the need for this fund
should cease to exist or so diminish as to provide unused distribution, then another use shall be designated
by the Board of Trustees as recommended by the dean of the College of Education and Human Ecology or
his/her designee in order to carry out the desire of the donor.

The Betty M. Edwards Scholarship Fund in the
College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Betty M. Edwards
Scholarship Fund in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences effective November 3,
2017, with a gift from the estate of Betty M. Edwards (BS 1939, MA 1960).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to benefit the College of Food, Agricultural, and
Environmental Sciences at The Ohio State University. First preference shall go to students from Licking
County, Ohio, and then to any qualified student(s). Funds may be used for, but not limited to, students
interested in vocational agriculture and the enhancement of leadership. Scholarship(s) may be used for
educational support, program enhancement or any other expense related to a degreed program in the
college. Selection will be made by the college’s scholarship committee, in consultation with Student
Financial Aid and approved by the dean of the college.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the College of
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that this fund should benefit the University in perpetuity. If the need for this fund
should cease to exist or so diminish as to provide unused distribution, then another use shall be designated
by the Board of Trustees as recommended by the dean of the College of Food, Agricultural, and
Environmental Sciences or his/her designee in order to carry out the desire of the donor.

191



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

John Anast Cancer Endowed Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the John Anast Cancer
Endowed Fund effective November 3, 2017, with gifts from the estate of John Anast.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support cancer research. Expenditures shall be
approved by the chief executive officer of The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove
Research Institute and director of Comprehensive Cancer Center.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the chief executive officer
of The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove Research Institute and director of the
Comprehensive Cancer Center or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided
that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the
University shall consult the chief executive officer of The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J.
Solove Research Institute and director of the Comprehensive Cancer Center or his/her designee.
Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the
Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and the Foundation.

Omer K. Masud and Asifa Omer International Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Omer K. Masud and Asifa
Omer International Scholarship Fund effective November 3, 2017, with gifts from Omer K. Masud (MS 2002,
MBA 2005) and Asifa Omer as part of The Joseph A. Alutto Global Leadership Initiative.

Omer K. Masud and Asifa Omer, both originally from Pakistan, live in New York with their two daughters,
Minal and Anya and are proud supporters of The Ohio State University, Max M. Fisher College of Business.
Omer is a two time graduate of the University, and he along with his family believe in giving back to the
University and community that offered him tremendous opportunity to grow personally and professionally.
They want to make sure that students at Fisher who come from all different backgrounds are offered the
opportunity to learn and enjoy their college careers and are welcomed to The Ohio State University family.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide scholarships to undergraduate or graduate
students enrolled in the Max. M. Fisher College of Business to support critical, action-based, learning
experiences around the world. Recipients shall be selected by the college’s scholarship committee, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University may modify
any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in part, to be
contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes

192



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the Max. M.
Fisher College of Business or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the dean of the Max. M. Fisher College of Business. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.

Jeannie and Sanford Kayne Family Endowed Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Jeannie and Sanford Kayne
Family Endowed Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a gift from Stanley B. Kayne (BA 1974), in memory
of his parents.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be split to support the following funds as follows:
e Forty percent (40%) to support The Barry A. Pfaff Lewy Body Dementia Research Fund (#315715).
e Twenty percent (20%) to support the endowed principal of the Louis H. Mendelson, M.D. '23 Award
Fund (#604875).
o Forty percent (40%) to support the Jeannie and Sanford Kayne Family Accounting Scholarship
Fund (#315955).

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the dean of the Max M. Fisher College of Business and the dean of the College of Medicine (or their
designees). Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and
the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

193



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The Norman K. Booth Endowed Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Norman K. Booth Endowed
Scholarship Fund November 3, 2017, with gifts from the Knowlton School of Architecture Landscape
Architecture Alumni and friends.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide one or more scholarships to undergraduate
students enrolled in the Austin E. Knowlton School of Architecture who are bachelor’s degree candidates
in the Landscape Architecture program. Eligible scholarship candidates shall be in their junior or senior
year, have demonstrated financial need, and strong academic and design credentials. Criteria for selection
shall include that recipients show leadership as advocates of Landscape Architecture and great potential
to serve as an inspiration to others in the field. Recipients shall be selected by Student Financial Aid, in
consultation with the OSU Landscape Architecture faculty.

In the event that the Landscape Architecture program ceases to exist at the University, the fund shall be
used for scholarships for students in the City and Regional Planning program. In the event that the
Landscape Architecture program is transferred to another school or college within the University, the
purpose of the fund shall be to provide scholarships for students in the Landscape Architecture program in
the new school or college in which the Landscape Architecture program is housed.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
distribution from this endowed fund shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the director of the Austin E. Knowlton School of Architecture and the section head of Landscape
Architecture. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and
the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

The Tom W. Davis Rowing Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Tom W. Davis Rowing
Scholarship Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a gift from Tom W. Davis.

Ten percent (10%) of the annual distribution from this fund shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.
The remaining annual distribution shall be used to supplement the grant-in-aid costs for a student-athlete
who is a member of the rowing team. Recipients will be selected by the director of the Department of
Athletics or his/her designee, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

Per the request of donor, any unused distribution from this endowed fund shall be reinvested in the
endowment principal.

194



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the director of the Department of Athletics or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds shall
be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.

Irene and James Lawhun Family Endowed Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Irene and James Lawhun
Family Endowed Scholarship Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a gift from Gerald L. Lawhun (BS
1954).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide tuition-only scholarships to undergraduate
students enrolled in the Max M. Fisher College of Business. Recipients will be selected by the dean of the
college or his/her designee, in consultation with Student Financial Aid. Scholarships are renewable as long
as the recipients are in good standing with the college.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the Max M.
Fisher College of Business or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the dean of the Max M. Fisher College of Business or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed
funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in
accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

Dean E. LeBeau Endowed Scholarship
The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the

Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Dean E. LeBeau (1967 BS,
1970 DVM) Endowed Scholarship effective November 3, 2017, with a gift from Joan M. LeBeau.

195



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide scholarships to students enrolled in the
College of Veterinary Medicine who are pursuing their DVM and who are from the State of Ohio. First
preference will be given to candidates from Stark County. If there are no candidates from Stark County,
candidates from Summit County shall be considered. If there are no candidates from either county,
deserving candidates from any county in Ohio shall be considered. Recipients will be selected by the
college’s scholarship committee, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the College of
Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the dean of the College of Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds
shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in
accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

The Dr. Andrew T. Maccabe Endowed Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Dr. Andrew T. Maccabe
Endowed Scholarship Fund effective November 3, 2017, with a gift from Dr. Andrew T. Maccabe (BS 1981,
DVM 1985).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide one scholarship to a student who is enrolled
in the Doctor of Veterinary Medicine program, is ranked as a third or fourth year student, and demonstrates
financial need and excellent leadership abilities. First preference shall be given to candidates who show an
interest in public policy. Second preference shall be given to candidates who show an interest in public
health. Recipients will be selected by the scholarship committee of the College of Veterinary Medicine, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the College of
Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board

196



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donor named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult the dean of the College of Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds
shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in
accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

Robert M. Krivoshey Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Robert M. Krivoshey Fund
effective November 3, 2017, with memorial gifts from friends, family, and colleagues.

Robert Martin Krivoshey earned his BA from Yeshiva University and a MA and PhD from the University of
Chicago before earning his JD at The Ohio State University. He started teaching at Ohio State in 1988 and
was the founding professor of the Criminal Defense Clinic, as well as the initiator of the Criminal Prosecution
Clinic. Krivoshey, a clinical professor of law, was a legend at the Michael E. Moritz College of Law. His
dedication for students and passion for justice were an inspiration.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used at the discretion of the dean of the Michael E. Moritz
College of Law.

When the gifted endowment principal reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for a
restricted endowed fund, the fund name shall be changed to the Robert M. Krivoshey Clinic Scholarship
Fund. Thereafter, the annual distribution shall be used to support scholarships for students enrolled in the
Michael E. Moritz College of Law with preference for, but not limited to, those who have demonstrated an
interest in studying criminal law. Recipients will be selected by the dean of the college or his/her designee,
in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the purposes
of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the Michael E.
Moritz College of Law or his/her designee.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with the donors named above, or (2) if such purposes become unlawful,
impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the
University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall
consult t the dean of the Michael E. Moritz College of Law or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed
funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in
accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

197



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The Ruby Roush Stinson and William S. Stinson Jr. Scholarship Endowment Fund

The William S. Stinson Jr. Scholarship Endowment Fund was established June 1, 2007, by the Board of
Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors
of The Ohio State University Foundation, with gifts from Dr. William S. Stinson Jr. (BS 1961, MS Horticulture
1964; PhD 1966) of Lakeland, Florida. Effective November 3, 2017, the fund name shall be revised.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support scholarships for undergraduate and/or
graduate students enrolled in the Department of Food Science and Technology in the College of Food,
Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences. Scholarship recipients will be selected by the vice president for
agricultural administration and University Outreach, and executive dean for Food, Agricultural, and
Environmental Sciences, in consultation with the Office of Student Financial Aid.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that this fund should benefit the University in perpetuity. If, in the future, the
need for this fund should cease to exist or so diminish as to provide unused distributions, then another use
shall be designated by the Board of Trustees and Foundation Board as recommended by the vice president
for agricultural administration and University Outreach, and executive dean for Food, Agricultural, and
Environmental Sciences. Any such alternate distributions shall be made in a manner as nearly aligned with
the original intent of the donor as good conscience and need dictate.

The Raymond G. and Helen Mossbarger Vawter Family Fund

The Raymond G. and Helen Mossbarger Vawter Family Fund was established June 24, 2011, by the Board
of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, with a gift from Helen Mossbarger Vawter (BS 1955)
and Raymond G. Vawter made in honor of Helen’s parents, Emerson and Odessa Mossbarger for their
support and encouragement. Effective __/ / , the fund description shall be revised.

Upon graduation from Jackson High School in Jackson, Ohio, in 1951, Helen Mossbarger was encouraged
by her parents, both teachers, to continue her education and attend college. As a resident in what has
historically been an economically depressed area, she was one of a very small minority from her high school
class that had the opportunity to do so. Helen capitalized on that opportunity and attributes much of her
success throughout her lifetime to the experiences she had as a student at The Ohio State University.

The annual distribution from this fund shall provide a need-based scholarship to students who graduated
from Jackson High School located in Jackson County, Ohio. Preference shall be given to candidates in the
order listed below.
e enrolled in the College of Education and Human Ecology and majoring in areas of study related to
human ecology
enrolled in any college and majoring in areas of study related to human ecology
e enrolled in any college and minoring in areas of study related to human ecology within the College
of Education and Human Ecology
o enrolled in the College of Education and Human Ecology or the Max M. Fisher College of Business
e enrolled in any college

Scholarship recipients shall be selected by the College of Education and Human Ecology, in consultation

with Student Financial Aid. Scholarships shall be split between two semesters each year and may be used
for tuition, books, and room and board.

198



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any selection criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole
or in part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board
of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’'s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund,
however, (1) in consultation with Helen Mossbarger Vawter, Raymond G. Vawter, Gary Vawter, or their
designees (2) if such purposes become unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful,
provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s charitable purposes. In seeking such
modification, the University and the Foundation shall consult the dean of the College of Education and
Human Ecology or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s
Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University
and Foundation.

199



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF THE EVAN TURNER HALLWAY

IN THE JEROME SCHOTTENSTEIN CENTER

Synopsis: Approval for naming of the basketball practice facility hallway in the Jerome Schottenstein
Center, located at 555 Borror Drive on the Columbus campus as the Evan Turner Hallway, is proposed.

WHEREAS the basketball practice facility, located within the Athletics District on the Columbus campus,
provides the men’s and women’s basketball programs with a state-of-the-art practice facility, offices and
other spaces for student-athletes; and

WHEREAS the basketball practice facility allows the Ohio State men’s and women’s basketball teams to
excel in education, recruiting, and training; and

WHEREAS through generous philanthropy, Evan Turner has made a lasting impact at The Ohio State
University by creating opportunities for outstanding student-athletes to hone their talents; and

WHEREAS Evan Turner has provided significant contributions to the Department of Athletics to support the
men’s basketball program:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule

3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that the basketball practice facility hallway be named the Evan
Turner Hallway.

200




November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF SPACES IN THE PRE-CLINIC

IN FRY HALL, COLLEGE OF OPTOMETRY

Synopsis: Approval for naming of the pre-clinic spaces in Fry Hall, located at 352 West Tenth Avenue on
the Columbus campus, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Optometry is dedicated to providing eminence in optometric education, vision
research, and eye care; and

WHEREAS the College of Optometry Pre-Clinic provides a new and technologically-updated facility in
which students attend lectures and receive education on how to provide a comprehensive eye examination
and how to use basic optometric equipment; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the College of Optometry Pre-
Clinic:

e Class of 1992: Honoring Dr. Christopher O’Brien
e Edward Crum OD, MBA, SPE

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule
3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that the pre-clinic spaces in Fry Hall be named the following:

e Room 203, the Edward Crum OD, MBA, SPE Injections Room

e Room 217, the Dr. Christopher O’Brien Pre-Clinic Examination Room, supported by the Class of
1992

201




November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF INTERNAL SPACES

IN THE WILLIAM T. AND JANE C. MCCONNELL RESIDENCE HALL

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of internal spaces in the William T. and Jane C. McConnell Residence
Hall, located at 929 Sharon Valley Road, on The Ohio State University at Newark campus, is proposed.

WHEREAS the newly constructed McConnell Residence Hall is an example of the dedication and
generosity of The Ohio State University at Newark community; and

WHEREAS the residence hall provides living and learning spaces for 120 students, enhances access and
diversity on the Newark campus, and helps create the extraordinary student experience; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the building funds used to
construct the new residence hall:

e Dr. Donald G. and Patsy P. Jones

J. Gilbert & Louella H. Reese, The Gilbert Reese Family Foundation, and Dr. John H. & Sarah R.
Wallace

Lowell S. and Barbara G. Anstine

[ ]
e David A. and Carole B. Brooks
e The Englefield Foundation
e Geraldine D. Marston
NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule
3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that internal spaces in the McConnell Residence Hall at The Ohio
State University at Newark shall be named the following:

The Dr. Donald G. and Patsy P. Jones Event Center
The Reese-Wallace Grand Lounge

The Lowell S. and Barbara G. Anstine Study Lounge
The David A. and Carole B. Brooks Study Lounge
The Bill and Janet Englefield Study Lounge

The Geraldine Marston Study Lounge

202



November 2017 Board Meeting - Advancement Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF CTL ENGINEERING LAB

IN HITCHCOCK HALL, COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Geotechnical Lab (room 050) in Hitchcock Hall at 2070 Neil
Avenue, as the CTL Engineering Lab, is proposed.

WHEREAS Hitchcock Hall is the home of the Department of Civil, Environmental and Geodetic Engineering
(CEGE); and

WHEREAS CEGE enrolls over 950 students from 18 different countries who aim to balance environmental
health with growing societal needs for natural resources, sustainable infrastructure, and services; and

WHEREAS CTL Engineering and its president, C.K. Satyapriya, have generously provided funds to support
the renovation of the Geotechnical Lab space in Hitchcock Hall:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule

3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that the Geotechnical Lab (room 050) in Hitchcock Hall shall be
named the CTL Engineering Lab.

203




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017

Board of Trustees

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Timothy P. Smucker
W. G. Jurgensen
Michael J. Gasser
Jeffrey Wadsworth

Hiroyuki Fujita
John W. Zeiger
H. Jordan Moseley
James D. Klingbeil
Lawrence A. Hilsheimer
Amy Chronis
Craig S. Morford
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Location: Recreation and Physical Activity Center (RPAC) Time:

Dave Griner Room, B247

ITEM FOR ACTION

1. Approval to Submit Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (Draft) to the
Auditor of State - Ms. Devine, Ms. Dewire

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
2. External Audit Update - Ms. Dewire
Compliance and Integrity Program Update - Mr. Culley, Mr. Garrity-Rokous

Audit and Compliance Committee Scorecard - Mr. Culley, Mr. Garrity-Rokous

Executive Session

10:00-11:30am

10:00-10:10am

10:10-10:15am
10:15-10:20am
10:20-10:25am

10:25-11:30am

204




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO SUBMIT AUDITED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (DRAFT) TO THE AUDITOR OF STATE

Synopsis: Approval to submit the draft audited consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State, is
proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University annually seeks an independent audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a matter of strong financial oversight; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State is required under Ohio law to audit each public office; and

WHEREAS the university is a public office and is required under Ohio law to file a financial report with the
Auditor of State for each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS the university operates on a fiscal year ended June 30 of each year; and

WHEREAS the university has produced consolidated financial statements for the 2016 and 2017 fiscal
years, in accordance with accounting principles, generally accepted in the United States; and

WHEREAS the university engages an outside auditing firm, currently PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC, to
audit its consolidated financial statements; and

WHEREAS the university management and PricewaterhouseCoopers have produced a final draft of the
audited consolidated financial statements for the 2016 and 2017 fiscal years; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State may accept the audited consolidated financial statements in lieu of the audit
required by Ohio law; and

WHEREAS the audited consolidated financial statements will not be final until approved by the Auditor of
State:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby accepts the draft audited consolidated financial
statements for the 2016 and 2017 fiscal years; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the submission of these
consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State for review and approval.

{00306363-1}

205




90¢

/10Z 'C J8qUiBAON
99)Jilwo) adueljdwo) pue lipny

Alewwng
JIPNY JUswWwalelS |eloueuld /| A

ALISHHAIN() dLVLS OIHQ HH], @

Bunes| 88niWwiWo) soueldwo) pue Jipny - Bunes|y pJeog /1 0Z J8qWSAON



10¢

'3]e1S Jo Jojipny Agq panoisdde si )i jun [eul} 89 jou [IM IPNY

'9]E]S JO J0JIpny ay)
0} SJUSWIA)L]S [eloURUI) PB)EPIIOSUOD Jjelp Jiwgns 0) [eActddy =

s99)snu} jJo pieoq Aq jJybnos uonoy

"uoluldo paijijlenbun ue sem jnsai ay| ‘Juswabeuew

AlIsJaAluUN Yyjim uoie}nsuod ul Jojipne juspuadapul

Ino AQq pajonpuod usag sey / L0z ‘0E aunr papus Jesak |eosly
ay] JoJ sjuswale)]s |eloueul) palepIjoSuUod ay) JoJ lipne uy =

sooljoeld 1seq pue 1ybisIaAo |eloueuly JO
1ed se Ajlisianiun ayj Agq 1ybnos ade sjiun 1ayjo Jo sipny =

‘Me| a)els Jad palinbal
S| pue adioeud 1s8q sI Jipne AJISIaAlun pajepljosuod 8y | =

Ajlenuue Jipne juspuadapul ue s)aas AlIsIaAlun 8y =

ALISYFIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FHL @

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON




ue|d jjsusg
J8JUa) yoieasay
uoneuodsuel] .
uoday mainay
— Ue|d yjIesH NSO -
Hoday MaIney — SUY
3} JO} J8JUDYD) JISUXDNN o
(eoueldwo)

¢e1-Vv Allew.oy)
aouepIing wloiun «

suoday Jayl0

n>>D_>DV._

Tt g W |

uoneldossy JivlulY
ajelb9||0) |euoneN e

S9.Npadon.d
uodn poaaiby

salnpadold uodn pealby pue

‘supny >:n_®>_c3

AL LAt

80¢

bunssyy ee)IWWO) eoueldwo)) pue JIpny -

(9L0z/1€/2) AAA)
Aemales [eqo|9 NSO -
BIPSIN 9lldnd NSOM -
SOI|IYIY JO Juswedaq .
"ou| ‘suelisAud NSO -
siauped sndwe) .

Jaua) yoieasay
uoneuodsuel] .

walsAg yjesH Jajua)
|e2IpP3I\ JoUXSAA NSO -
uonepuno4 NSO -
pajiWIT [BAQ -

SjuUsWaLIS
|leloueuld
auole-pue]s

sjun usuodwo)
pajuasald A|91040SI .

spun
Jusuodwo) papua|g

wa)sAs yjjesH Jajua)

[EJIPBN ISUXBAA NSO
Buipnjoul ‘Alsiaaiun «

uonnyisu| Atewild

(asvo)
sjuawalels
|eloueul
pajepljosuo)

ALISYFIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FHL @

bunes|\ pJeog /1 0g J8quBA0N




60¢

POJOU SBNSS| |0J3U0D
ueolubis oN “pe1e|dwod ||y
seale w.._._ U 3

A8y 9| Ul s|oJjuod |eusiul C_E_U<\®@®__OO

AJI180-gns s1921iO |easi
JOIUBS pue SdA ‘sueo( e

19119 uolnejuasaidal umo mucmgmu—mu—w
S} subis pue 10} a|qisuodsal
sI Aljus Buiuodal suole _m_OCNC_H_
-puels yoes Jo juswabeue|y ®C0_<|_Ucm”—m

SUEIE =S

19119 uolejuasalidal

pa)epI|osSuod e subis _m_OCNC _ H_
Pa)epI|OSUOD

Juswabeuew AJISIBAIUN

Wco_u\moz_tmo Juswsbieue|\ ALISHHAIN() ALVLS OIHQ HH] @

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON




olLe

"'Sasea| pue saljlAloe Alelonply ‘suonebijgo
Juswialnel Josse ‘sjuswaalbe jsalsalul-li|ds ajgedoralll ‘(aledy)esy aalnal Ajuewid) syyauaq
Juswalnal-1sod 1ayjo Jo buiiodal s AlisiaAiun ay) 1oedwl |[IM sSpiepuels Bbuijunodoe mau Juediiublg "

"(ZZ ©I0N) sjuswiaie)s [eloueuly ayj ul

Juane Juanbasgns e se paso|asIp S| uonoesuel} siyl "/ 1L0og ‘9 Aine uo uol|jiq 11 $ Jo JuswAed juolydn

ue paAladal AjisiaAlun 8y ‘sndwed snquuinjo) ay} 0} sadIAIas AJljiin apiaold pue welsAs Ajjnn

ay} ajelsado 0] 1ybl aAIsnjoxa ay) 1l uelb pue (siauued Abiaug a1e1s o1lyQ) Wnixy-JIONJ 03 walsAs
Ajnn s Alisiaaiun ay) ases| 0] Juswsalbe Jeak-QG e apnjoul suonoesuel) bununodoe mau Juesljiubig .

"sys1i Buiodal [eloueul) 8say) ssalppe 0] 82e(d ul S|oJjuo9 sey
Juswiabeuey “Aljigel sonoeIdjEW [BOIPAW pUR ‘S|[eIIBjep pue saljljigel| uoisuad ‘enusAal pue ¥/V
Juaned ‘SjusWSaAUl BAIJBUIS)|E J0) Sa)ewljse Buiunoooe Juedyiubis spnjoul Sjuswale)s |eloueul) ay | .

‘sasuadxe bunelado Jayjo pue asuadxa uoisuad g9 gSyo Ul sasealoul AQ 189S0 Sem Sa82IN0s

anuaAal Jay)o pue sanuaal bunjeiado walsAg yijeaH paiepljosuod Ul YIMOJS) Buwooul JUSWSOAUI

JaU jo uoljjiw | 09$ 03 enp Ajuewd ‘210z ‘0€ dunf Je uol|liq gg'G$ O} ‘uoljjiw | /G$ pasesloul
uonnusul Atewud ay) Joj uonisod j8u [B10] "puNoSs sulewal uonisod [eloueul) s AlsiaAlun ay | .

"Hun jusuodwod pajussaid Aja1aIosIp e ‘Usjual) Yyoieasay uoneuodsuel |
1e uonejuawa|dwi Wa)sAs e pue JsAaouln) Juswabeuew o) uole|al ul Aousioljep Jueolyiubls sauo
pey AlisiaAlun 8y ‘sessauyesm [elislew ou yum ‘uoluido paijijenbun ue paal@dal AJisiaAlun ay | .

ipne 4o spyBiIyBIH e s s et )

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON




"£10Z ‘0¢ sunr
Je uol||iq gGG$ 03 ‘uoljjiw | /G$ pasealoul
uonnsul Arewnd ayy Joj uonisod jau [e10 |

"SYIJO 10} (%G 2 01 %8 WOJ}) S)ed JUNOISIP Y} Ul
UoIONPal B pUB OIYO-SYH LS J10J SuINja. JusLWw)sSaAUl
pajosloid-ueyj-;emo| o} anp Ajewnd ‘uoliq /G°€$

0} ‘uoljiw |//$ paseaioul sanijigel| uoisuad JoN

'SY3IdO Joj suondwnsse |eLienjoe ul sabueyo

pue oIyO-S¥ 1S J0} suinjal Juswisanul pajoafoid
ueyj-1emol 4oy sjesajep o} snp Ajuewnd N9OL$
pasealoap suoisuad o} SMOJJUl paJlayap pue N9LES
pasealoul suoisuad 0} pajejal SMOJJIN0 paliajeq

“(uoniw 2€1$ umop) spessoid puoqg papuadxaun ul
uononpal e Aq jesyo Ajjensed si yoiym ‘(uoliw ££9$
dn) |00d juswysaau] wis | Buo ayy jo uoneroaidde

19U S}09|}8. S}OSSE JUBLINJUOU Ul 8SEaIOU|

‘weisAs yyeasH NSO 9y je suibsew Bunelado

Buous o} enp Ajewnd ‘uolliq £2°2$ 0} ‘IN6SZ$
pasea.oul sjuswisaAul Alejodwa) pue yseo |ejo |

_ _N_O:n_:L

- - s =
n

Le

€LO'PS6Y $ IS vZs’'s $
coe’LoE’L 66818.°)
b1L2°2G9°€ l¥9°6€L°€
GLZ'LE67L $ GLL'LESS $
0S1°/8G 88C°L.LY
9/L°LL6°G $ L9G°L/G9
688°'8€F°L 92£88Y°L
822°168°CL $ LZ2650vL $
GZ1 869 /E6°CLO°L
c0ELLG6 98/°v50°0}
L08°L89°C $ 866°/86'C $
(spuesnoyj ui)
91L0¢ yAYIT4

uonisod joN Jejol
a/qepusdx3y

a|qepuadxauoN
!(Aynb3) uomisod joN

SMojjuj paliagad
pue sanijiqer [e3oL

SMoyjju| paliojad
salijiqer] JualinouoN
sanljiqery jJualing

SMoInNQ paliageqg
pue sjassy |ejol

SMOINQO poalisjad
S]8SSY JU8.LINJUON

S]essy jua.ing

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON

ALISYFIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FHL




cle

L
%G YL+ Sem
[00d Juswisanu| wia | Buo ay} Joy
uinjal /10ZAd “Jeak uoud ay} ul ssO|
INL1L$ ue 0} pasedwod Se swodul
JuswisaAul J8U [N L 09$ S1o8leY
29629 $ £€6°0L8 $ uonisod jJaN ui aseaiouj
0vE'LLL 602°GS ) uonisod JoN ul sebuey9 4840
"8)s00 Buluip (822°8%) vZe'sLy S8ss07 4o sulen ‘sasuadxy
pue Buisnoy ul sesealoul pue sjenJooe ‘sanuanay 19Y)Q a4043q (SS07) awoodu|
uoisuad JIM pajeloosse i N
89 8SVO B 2GL°L6S 0ZL9L2’1 (sesuadx3)

asuadxa ul sasealoul ‘sawn|oA juaijed

ul ymoub poddns 0y sesuadxe walsAS senuasy buyessdo-uoN

UEET) U] SEEEIB) BEOibiic] [ (0£6°6£9) (962°008) (sso7) swoouj Bunesedo
uoljeuiqwod e o} anp Ajuewnd N9GG$
paseaJloul sasuadxa bunesado |ejo | LL€912°C 6£2°2/.G sosuadx3 bunesado
L8E9/SY &  EvPLLE6Y $ sanuanay bunessdo
'Sjuapn}s Jeak-puodss
0} sue|d |eaw JoO sg|es pasealoul (spuesnoyj ui)
pue 1011SI |enuapIsay YMHON ay} ul 9102 4102

spaq uj 8seauoul 0} anp Ajuewnd ‘N8Y$
dn a1em sanuanal AJeljixny "SaWN|OA
aned ul ymolb panuiuod buiyos)al
‘uol|lq G8'¢$ 01 ‘N8Z$ peseasoul
sanuaAal Wa)sAg ylleaH pajepljosuo)

| ol)ISod Ul sebueyn Jayj0O B ‘sasuadxy

anuaAay Jo Jusawalels :sybiybiy jeloueul4  ALISYAAIN[) HIVLS OTHQ HHL

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON



€le

L69°FLLe  $ 9Irsress $ uonIsod JaN [ejol
vr0'GIEY GrL066°C 668%8/°1 9jqepusdx3
L¥9°6€L°€ /¥9'6€L°€ 9jqepusdxauoN
(Aunb3) uonisod JoN
LLY'6¥6'Y  $ G/L°Lese  § smojju| paiiajag
pue sanijiqer jejol
9r6'tSH (re9L) 88Z°L.Y smojju| paiiejeq
664°900°C (29€°696°¢) L9GL2G°9 seIIqer Jua.LnduoN
92€'88¥°L 92€e'88Y°L sanijiqer] Jusun)
29L'v90°cL $ 12265071 $ pue sjessy [ejo]
8/¢€°1C (655°166) /€6°CL0°} SMOINQ palisjeg
98/¥50°01 98/¥50°01 S}eSSY JuaLINOUON
866°/86C % 866286 % Sjessy jua.n)
89 gSvo sjediajaQ pajioday sy (spuesnoyj ui)
Buipnjox3 pue sanijiqery 2102 ‘o€ aunp
.L0Z ‘o€ aunrp 89 gSV9

|BlI8jSg pue saljljiger uoisuad jeN 89 dSVO

uIpN[oxa ‘UolilISod 1eN JO Juswaiels ALISYHAIN[) H1IVLS OIHQ dH]L,

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON



vie

£6€°616 $ £€6°0LS $ uonisod JoN uf asealoau|
602°GS} 602°GS L uonisod JoN ul sebueyd 18430
veL‘v9/ veesLy S9SS07 10 sujes) ‘sasuadxy
‘sanuanay Jay)O a4049q (sso]) awoauj
0219427} 021912} (sesuadx3)
senuanay buneisdp-uonN
(9¢6°LSY) (962°008) (sso7) awoouj bupesado
6.£°€2F'S (098°8%¢€) 6€2'2/.°G sesuadx3 Buneledo
Err'LI6Y % Err'LI6'Y $ senusnsy bunelsdo
89 gSvo asuadxy pajioday sy
buipnjax3 uojsuad 21L0Z ‘o€ aunr
2102 ‘o¢ aunr 89 gSV9 buipuz 1ea
Buipuzg 1eaj

suadx3 uoisuad 89 gSVO
UuIpN[OXa ‘UoISOd 18N Ul

ALISHAAIN() HLVLS OIHQ dH],

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON



124

(0]%

‘AleAnoadsal ‘910z pue 2102

. ur uoljiw Lgg¢$ pue uoljjiw Z.¢$ &g p|jnom saijiAloe
mmwm_‘muwmc_mcmw_ﬁ\_,_mww Bunelsado woly smojy ysed jou ‘bunjesado ui
wmo ue wvmoux _w_hw\.,_c papnoul }| ‘suonerndoidde waj-aul| pue uoloNJIsul
Ysea pue y W un JO aleys aje)s Jo uoneonisse|o buizeiado-uou
0} anp Ajuewud siI mojyysed Bunesado aaneboN

"SJUBWISBAUI

Arejodway jJo seseyoind
Jau Bunosypyas ‘uoliw $81L$ z6lilee $  (cz8'vl) $ Useo ul (9seaidsp) asealoul JoN
Sem saljiAljoe Buljsaaul

Aq pasn yseo |ejo |

(zeg'10¢) (LLL'psL) safIAjoe BuiseAul ul pasn smojy Yseo J1oN
SolIpIsSgns }saJajul puog edlswy pjing |elaps) Jo 1au
. (Log'061) (v16'261) ‘sases| pue jqop |eyded uo sjuswAed jsalsyul pue [ediould
,10¢ Ul spuoq
aNssI Jou pIp AJISIBAIUN BY | sjosse [endeo 10
(996'82P) (909'v1LY) uoI3oNJISU0D Jo aseyolnd Joy sjuswAhed
rAZA TR 09 19op |eudes wouy spasdold

‘sjuswasingsip bunelsado
ul wmmm%_o%_ paoedjno L1G'oy 28628 s109(o.d [eydeo Joy syib pue suoneldosdde eude)
s)yIb pue sjoesuoo

pue sjuelb ‘sadIAIaS

pue sejes woyj sjdigoal (888'7L1) $  (685°001) $ samARoE Buiesado U pasn smoj yseo 1N

ul ymmolb se ‘uoljiw /89$
0} ‘uol|jiw 601 $ Pesea.oul 9102 1102

; SalllAlloe %c_ocmm_u_ (spuesnoy; uj) Alewwing smol4 yseo Ajsiaaiun
|ejideduou pue puijeiado

926°CS. 98628/ salIAloe Buioueuly [e)desuou Woly SMojy Ysed JoN

W04} SMOJ} Yseo 1oN

ALISYFIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FHL

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON



‘ABojopoylow uonewinss
ul sebueyo jueoiiubis oN

‘ABojopoylaw
uonewnss ul sebueys oN

‘ABojopoylow
uoneuwnss ul sebueys oN

‘ABojopoyiaw
uonewnsa ul sabueyd oN

ésabueyn Auy

9le

‘saoueleq
Jeak-ioud uo sisAjeue yoeg-3oo0|

e Jo aouewlopad pue sjuswisnipe pue
SUOI}J09||09 YSED JO MBIABJ UO paseq aJe
S9oUBMO|[B 1g8p peq pue [enjoenuo)

swa)sAs juswalnal ay) Aq papiroid
$8|NPaYDS UOIIBOO| e UO paseq Ajewlid

uonen|eA elen)oe juspuadapu

sJaulled/siabeuew JUSWISOAUI [BUISIXD
Ag papinoid AYN uo paseq Ajuewld

paulwid}ag MOH

6zeereS

8¥€'8e$

672 LLY'CS
09t'v2€$

8€6°0LLS

(69£'221)$
G29'G/9%

929'v6.'c$

008'8$

6v7'989'C$

(s.000 u1)

9102 ‘o€ aunr

L6'€GES

v/8'v¢$

1¥9'099°2$
0£5°'G.E$

098°8t€$

(zve'al)s$
6G55°166$

29£'695°c$

€25'eL$

92¢/'65.‘2$

(s.000 w)
1102 ‘o€ aunp

anuaAal 90IAI8s Jualjed JoN

¥/V @0IAI8s juaied JoN

:sueisfiyd NSO

anuaAal 8oIAIeS Jualjed JoN

Y/V 99IAI8S Juaned 19N

‘walshg yiesH NSO

sjenJdoe

89 gSVyO 01 anp asuadxa
uoisuad ul (asealosp) asealou|

suoisuad — smojjul patisje(
suoisuad — sMojjino palisja(
ey uoisuad JoN
:Ajiqer uoisuad
Auiqey sonoeldiew [esipajy

Ainba ajeaud
pue spun) abpay ‘sjosse |eay

Wway| auI Jwys eldueuly

ajewns3 uesyiubig jo Alewwung

bunSa\ 9910 eoueldwWOo)) pUe JIpNY - bulas|\ pJeog /|0 J8qUSAON

ALISYFIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FHL



yA%4

¢l

"(uoljjiw o¥1 $ "xoidde jo
saljljigel| [euoiippe pajewilsa) 198ys aduejeq 8y} Uo Sase9)
Buneisado sy |je 1nd 01 AjIsiaAluUN 8y} alinbal 0 pajoadx]

"s|eloueul) puny Aleionpiy ajeledss
ul spuny Aousby A|qissod pue sjuswlSaAUl JUSLMOPUS
uoneInosSsy Iuwnjy ussaid 01 AlisiaAlun ay) alinbal Aey

asn J1ay) JO 8SJN0D [BWIOU Ul UONIBUILIEIUOD 8SNED Jey]
S]esse Ulelad aJnal 0] sanijigel] Jo uoniubooas alinbai [jIA

‘Buiuodal jeloueuly
Ajisianiun 1oedwi 0y pajoadxa jou — 1gap JO aoueseajap
Joj Bunodals pue Buiyunoooe uo adsuepinb salyue|n

‘Buruodal [eroueul) Ausiaaiun eduwl
0] pajoadxa 10U — sanss! [B2IUYD3) SNOLIBA S8SSaIPPY

‘(Juswaalbe Jo pus }e IN220
0} uoiiubooal anuaal) sjuswaalbe swooul ajl)/Ajnuue
Joj Bununoooe uo joedwl ajelspow aAey 03 pajoadx]

‘(suoisuad 0} Jejiwis Wa})l Yses-uou -- uoljjiw 009$

Jano Apuaino si safjiqel] §3d0 18U SY1S pue SY3dO 40
aleys NSO palewnsa) 1oedwi juediiubls aney 0} pajoadx]

1 C0CAA

020CA4

610CA4d

810CAd

810CAd

810CA4

810ZA4
ajeq

9A1}O9Y3d

seses7] /8 SVO

saningoy LieronpiH4 ‘¥8 4SVO
suonebiiqo
Juswaiey J8ssy ulens) ‘€8 9SO

senss| juswysinbunx3
JqeQ ureps) ‘98 gSVO

/10Z snqiuwQ ‘G8 gSV9O

sjuswoaiby
Jseuajul-yidsS 8jqedoal| ‘L8 dSYO

suoisuad uey | 4ayjQ Sjjeusg
JuswAojdwe)sod 1oy buipiodeay
[eroueul pue Bupunoddy ‘G 4SYO

spJepuels gsyo MaN

piepuels buijunoody MapN

ALISYFIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FHL

buijes|\ @81IWWo) soueldwo) pue JIpny - bunes|\ pieog / L0Z JqUBAON




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University

(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
And Report of Independent Auditors

218



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Table of Contents

Report of Independent Auditors

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Net Position

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position

Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information on GASB 68 Pension Liabilities

Other Information on the Long-Term Investment Pool

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Acknowledgements

Board of Trustees

219

19

20

21

23

87

88

90

92

93



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

_R

pwc

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio:

We have audited the financial statements of the primary institution and of the aggregate discretely
presented component units, which collectively comprise The Ohio State University (the “University”),
appearing on pages 19 to 22, which consist of the statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and June
30, 2016, the related statements of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position and of cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the University’s basic financial statements. The University is a component unit of the State of
Ohio.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the primary institution and the aggregate discretely presented component
units of the University as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial

220



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

_R

pwc

position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 18, and the Required
Supplementary Information on GASB 68 Pension Liabilities on page 87 are required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other information on
the long-term investment pool on pages 88 through 89 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6,
2017 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2017. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 6, 2017

221



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis, or MD&A, provides an overview of the
financial position and activities of The Ohio State University (the “university”) for the year ended
June 30, 2017, with comparative information for the years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30,
2015. We encourage you to read this MD&A section in conjunction with the audited financial
statements and footnotes appearing in this report.

About The Ohio State University

The Ohio State University is the State of Ohio’s flagship research institution and one of the
largest universities in the United States of America, with over 66,000 students, 7,000 faculty
members and 25,000 staff members. Founded in 1870 under the Morrill Land Grant Act, the
university — which was originally known as the Ohio Agricultural and Mechanical College -- has
grown over the years into a comprehensive public institution of higher iearning, with over 200
undergraduate majors, 157 master’'s degree programs, 121 doctoral programs and seven
professional degree programs.

The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center is one of the the largest and most diverse
academic medical centers in the country and the only academic medical center in central Ohio.
As a part of the Wexner Medical Center, the Health System operates under the governance of
The Ohio State University Board of Trustees and is comprised of seven hospitals and a
network of ambulatory care locations. The Health System provides care across the spectrum
from primary care to quaternary specialized care. Key clinical care locations and facilities at
the Health System include:

o  University Hospital: the Medical Center’s full-service tertiary care facility that provides
care to patients throughout the region.

e  Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Solove Research Institute: one of only 41
National Cancer Institute-designated Comprehensive Cancer Centers. In fiscal 2015,
the Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Solove Research Institute opened a new
tower, which is a transformational facility that fosters collaboration and integration of
cancer research and clinical cancer care.

e Richard M. Ross Heart Hospital: The Ross is home to OSU's Heart and Vascular
program, ranked 26th out of nearly 5,000 hospitals around the country by US News
and World Report.

e OSU Harding Hospital: provides the most comprehensive behavioral healthcare
services in central Ohio.

e University Hospital East: a full service community hospital.

e Dodd Hall: a 60-bed inpatient rehabilitation facility.

e Brain and Spine Hospital: provides comprehensive neuroscience care to improve
prevention, detection and treatment of brain and spine disorders.

e  Ambulatory Services: a network of community-based primary and subspecialty care
facilities.

The Health System provided services to approximatey 61,700 adult inpatients and 1,764,000
outpatients during fiscal year 2017, 59,300 adult inpatients and 1,724,000 outpatients during
fiscal year 2016, and 58,200 adult inpatients and 1,664,000 outpatients during fiscal year 2015.

2017 Financial Report 3

222



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

The university is governed by a board of trustees who are responsible for oversight of
academic programs, budgets, general administration, and employment of faculty and staff.
The university’s 15 colleges, four regional campuses, the Wexner Medical Center and various
academic support units operate largely on a decentralized basis. The Board approves annual
budgets for university operations, but these budgets are managed at the college and
department level.

The following financial statements reflect all assets, liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows and
net position (equity) of the university, the Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center, the
Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center (OARDC) and the Ohio Technology
Consortium (OH-TECH), which is an umbrella organization that includes the Ohio Academic
Resources Network (OARnet), the Ohio Supercomputer Center and the Ohio Library and
Information Network (OhioLINK). These entities constitute the “primary government” for
financial reporting purposes. In addition, the financial statements include consolidated
financial results for a number of “component units”, which are legally separate entities that
meet the financial accountability criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus and Statement No. 80, Blending
Requirements for Certain Component Units—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.

The following component units are considered to “exclusively benefit” the university and are
shown in a blended presentation with the primary government:

e The OSU Foundation (a fundraising foundation operating exclusively for the benefit of the
university)

e OSU Health Plan (a non-profit organization — formerly known as OSU Managed Health
Care Systems -- that administers university health care bengfits)

¢ Oval Limited (captive insurer that provides medical malpractice coverage to university
hospitals and physicians)

The GASB has indicated that, under the amended consolidation standards, the “exclusive
benefit” criterion for blending is not met when a component unit provides services to parties
external to the primary government. As a result, the university presents the following
component units in a discrete presentation:

e OSU Physicians, Inc. (the practice group for physician faculty members of the Colleges
of Medicine and Public Health)

e Campus Partners for Community Urban Redevelopment (a non-profit organization
participating in the redevelopment of neighborhoods adjacent to the main Columbus
campus)

e Transportation Research Center, Inc. (an automotive research and testing facility in East
Liberty, Ohio)

o Dental Faculty Practice Association (the practice group for faculty members of the
College of Dentistry)

Condensed financial information for both blended and discretely presented component units
is provided in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The university is considered a component

4  The Ohio State University

223



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

unit of the State of Ohio and is included in the State of Ohio’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report.

About the Financial Statements

The university presents its financial statements in a “business type activity” format, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments and GASB Statement No. 35,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public
Colleges and Universities — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. In addition to this
MD&A section, the financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position, a Statement of Cash Flows and
Notes to the Financial Statements. Separate columns are presented for the primary institution
(which includes the primary government and the blended component units), discretely
presented component units and the total university. Unless otherwise specified, the amounts
presented in this MD&A are for the primary institution.

The Statement of Net Position is the university’s balance sheet. It reflects the total assets,
deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position (equity) of the university as of
litmea 20 2N17 with Aaamnarrativa infAarmatiam ae AF llhima 20 2N1 68 I imhilitine Aia withiln Ama
JUNIS JU, 2V T, WYL \.:UIII'JGIC]I.IVG ninJingauuvll o Vi Julic U, cU i, LIAiNIuGo Uuc wil i viic
year, and assets available to pay those liabilities, are classified as current. Other assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current. Investment assets are carried at fair value. Capital
assets, which include the university’s land, buildings, improvements, and equipment, are

shown net of accumulated depreciation. Net position is grouped in the following categories:

o Net investment in capital assets
o Restricted — Nonexpendable

e Restricted — Expendable

e Unrestricted

In addition to assets, liabilities and net position, the university’'s balance sheet includes
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows are similar
to assets and will be recognized as expense in future periods. Deferred inflows are similar to
liabilities and will be recognized as revenue (or reductions of expense) in future periods.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position is the
university's income statement. It details how net position has increased (or decreased) during
the year ended June 30, 2017, with comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Tuition revenue is shown net of scholarship allowances, patient care revenue is shown net of
contractual allowances, charity care and bad debt expense, depreciation is provided for capital
assets, and there are required subtotals for net operating income (loss) and net income (loss)
before capital contributions and additions to permanent endowments.

It should be noted that the required subtotal for net operating income or loss will generally
reflect a “loss” for state-supported colleges and universities. This is primarily due to the way

operating and non-operating items are defined under GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash
Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use

2017 Financial Report 5

224



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Proprietary Fund Accounting. Operating expenses include virtually all university expenses,
except for interest on long-term debt. Operating revenues, however, exclude certain significant
revenue streams that the university and other public institutions have traditionally relied upon
to fund current operations, including state instructional support, current-use gifts and
investment income.

The Statement of Cash Flows details how cash has increased (or decreased) during the year
ended June 30, 2017, with comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2016. It
breaks out the sources and uses of university cash into the following categories:

e Operating activities

¢ Noncapital financing activities
o Capital financing activities

¢ Investing activities

Cash flows associated with the university’s expendable net position appear in the operating
and noncapital financing categories. Capital financing activities include payments for capital
assets, proceeds from long-term debt and debt repayments. Purchases and sales of
investments are reflected as investing activities.

The Notes to the Financial Statements, which follow the financial statements, provide
additional details on the numbers in the financial statements. Behind the notes is a section
that provides required supplementary information related to pensions and other information on
the university's Long-Term Investment Pool.

Financial Highlights and Key Trends

Total net position for the primary institution increased $571 million in Fiscal Year 2017,
primarily due to revenue growth and increases in operating margins for the OSU Health
System and strong investment returns. University investments yielded $601 million of net
investment income, reflecting increases in fair value. On April 10, 2017, the university entered
into a 50-year comprehensive energy management agreement with Ohio State Energy
Partners and received a $1.09 billion upfront payment upon settlement on July 6, 2017.

Demand for an Ohio State education remains strong, and student outcomes continue to
improve. 66,046 students were enrolled in Autumn 2016, up 862 students compared to
Autumn 2015. 94% of the freshmen enrolled in Autumn 2015 returned to OSU in Autumn
2016. Over the past five years, four-year graduation rates have been stable at 59%, and six-
year graduation rates have increased from 80% to 84%.

The following sections provide additional details on the university’s 2017 financial results and
a look ahead at significant economic conditions that are expected to affect the university in the
future.

6 The Ohio State University

225



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Statement of Net Position

Summary Statement of Net Position (in thousands)
2017 2016 2015
Cash and temporary investments $ 2,230,609 $ 1,971,929  § 1,782,051
Receivables, inventories, prepaids and other current assets 757,389 709,872 664,402
Total current assets 2,987,998 2,681,801 2,446,453
Restricted cash 666,032 802,707 375,425
Noncurrent notes and pledges receivable 108,073 106,629 118,257
Long-term investment pool 4,253,459 3,616,562 3,659,387
Other long-term investments 143,638 132,971 93,367
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 4,883,584 4,852,433 4,803,242
Total noncurrent assets 10,054, 786 9,511,302 9,049,678
Total assets 13,042,784 12,193,103 11,496,13°
Deferred outflows 1,012,937 698,125 227,083
Total assets and deferred outflows $ 14,055,721 3 12,891,228 g 11,723,214
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 524,754 5 469,216  § 447,364
Deposits and advance payments for goods and services 223,880 216,372 261,537
Current portion of bonds, notes and lease obligations 651,984 658,418 655,919
Other current liabilities 87.708 94,883 76.788
Total current liabilities 1.488.326 1.438.889 1.441.608
Noncurrent portion of bonds, notes and lease obligations 2,640,142 2,714,842 2,186,090
Net pension liability 3,565,362 2,794,626 2,130,432
Other noncurrent liabilities 366,057 401,708 380,382
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,571,561 5,911,176 4,696,904
Total liabilities 8,059,887 7,350,065 6,138,512
Deferred inflows 471.288 587,150 693.25°
Net investment in capital assets 2,259,207 2,282,647 2,340,342
Restricted:
Monexpendable 1,480,440 1,370,064 1,355,560
Expendable 1,195,515 908,953 993,000
Unrestricted 589,384 392,349 202,549
Total net position 5,524,546 4,954,013 4,891,45°
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 3 14,055,721 5 12,891,228 3 11,723,214

During the year ended June 30, 2017, cash and temporary investment balances increased
$259 million, to $2.23 billion, primarily due to strong operating margins at the OSU Health
System. Amounts shown as restricted cash consist primarily of unspent proceeds from the
General Receipts Bonds, which are being used to fund various capital projects. Restricted
cash balances decreased $137 million, to $666 million at June 30, 2017, reflecting application
of bond proceeds to capital projects. The Statement of Cash Flows, which is discussed in more
detail below, provides additional information on sources and uses of university cash.

Accounts receivable, net of allowances, increased $63 million, to $576 million at June 30,
2017, primarily due to increases in patient care receivables of the Health System.

2017 Financial Report 7

226



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

The fair value of the university’s long-term investment pool increased $637 million, to $4.25
billion at June 30, 2017. The increase is primarily due to a combination of $552 million of net
investment income and a $250 million investment of Wexner Medical Center Health System
cash in the pool. These increases were partially offset by distributions ($167 million) and
expenses ($72 million). The long-term investment pool operates similar to a mutual fund, in
that each named fund is assigned a number of shares in the pool. It includes the gifted
endowment funds of the university, gifted endowment funds of the OSU Foundation, and
operating funds which have been internally designated to function as endowments. The pool
is invested in a diversified portfolio of equity and fixed-income securities, partnerships and
hedge funds that is intended to provide the long-term growth necessary to preserve the value
of these funds, adjusted for inflation, while making distributions to support the university’s
mission.

The university has established a securities lending program through its custodian bank for
the long-term investment pool. Securities loaned by the university are secured by collateral in
the form of cash, equity, U.S. government obligations, and foreign government/private debt.
The portion of this collateral that was received in cash totaled $16 million and $28 million at
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is reflected in the Statement of Net Position as a
current asset and a corresponding current liability.

Other long-term investments are non-unitized investments that relate primarily to gift
arrangements between donors and the OSU Foundation and long-term investments of
operating funds. These investments increased $11 million, to $144 million, at June 30, 2017.

Capital assets, which include the university's land, buildings, improvements, equipment and
library books, grew $31 million, to $4.88 billion at June 30, 2017. The university depreciates its
capital assets on a straight-line basis, using estimated useful lives ranging from 5 years (for
computer equipment and software) to 100 years (for certain building components such as
foundations).

In 2017, the university completed construction of the 116,000 square foot Jameson Crane
Sports Medicine Institute. The $38 million comprehensive sports medicine building is a state
of art facility and the largest of its kind in the Midwest. The Institute houses 15 inter-disciplinary
specialties and 160 sports medicine faculty and staff. Mount Hall underwent a 73,000 square
foot, $15 million renovation to house approximately 450 staff from the Office of the Chief
Information Officer and Office of Distance Education. Four new aircraft hangars were
constructed as part of the $5 million initial phase of a $20 million University Airport
enhancement.

Major infrastructure improvements completed in 2017 included $8 million related to the street
and bridge maintenance across campus including Defiance Drive, walkways between
buildings on West Campus, portions of Neil Avenue, Hagerty Drive, 18" Avenue, Service
Annex Drives A-B, Woody Hayes, Herrick Drive, and the Herrick Drive Bridge over the
Olentangy River.

In addition, several major construction projects are currently underway or in advanced planning
stages, including:

8 The Ohio State University

227



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

e Arts & Science Academic Buildings—The $59 million project will renovate Pomerene,
and Oxley Halls to accommodate academic programs. In addition, the Baker Commons
enabling project renovated space to accommodate the Office of Disability Services staff
who relocated from Pomerene. Pomerene and Oxley Halls are slated for completion in
the spring of 2018.

e  Covelli Multi-Sport Arena — The $50 million project will construct a new multi-sport arena
to house the men’s and women’s varsity volleyball teams, and fencing, wrestling, and
gymnastics matches. The project is in the design phase and slated for completion in the
spring of 2019.

e  Marion Science and Engineering Building — A new $15 million Science and Engineering
building completed in July 2017 replaces an older facility, expands space for the
engineering program and enhances the quality of the teaching and research on the
Marion regional campus.

e  Ohio Stadium Upgrades — The $39 million project will include power upgrades, suite
expansion and renovation, C-Deck restoration, and a suite and loge addition. The
project is currently in the design phase and slated for completion for the summer of
2018.

e  Student Athlete Development Center — The $43 million project will construct a state-of-
the-art athletic training center with new weight training and cardio conditioning for use by
most of the university’s sports programs. The project is in the design phase and slated
for completion the summer of 2018.

e  Schottenstein Center-North Expansion and Concourse Renovation — The $32 million
project will renovate the concourse walls and lighting and include an addition to the
north end of the facility. The initial phase of the project is slated for completion in
summer 2018.

University capital expenditures totaled $415 million in 2017, including $164 million of capital
expenditures for the Wexner Medical Center Health System. The university’'s estimated future
capital commitments, based on contracts and purchase orders, total approximately $262
million at June 30, 2017.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses were up $56 million, to $525 million at June 30,
2017, primarily due to increases in accrued compensation and benefits (up $33 million) and
the accrual of a $16 million fee related to the settlement of an interest-rate swap agreement
associated with the comprehensive energy management agreement. Deposits and advance
payments for goods and services increased $8 million, to $224 million. Increases in advance
payments for sponsored programs were partially offset by reduction in unearned sales and
service revenues.

University debt, in the form of bonds, notes and capital lease obligations, decreased $81
million, to $3.29 billion at June 30, 2017. The university did not issue any new bonds during
2017.

2017 Financial Report 9

228



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

The university’s plant debt includes variable rate demand bonds that mature at various dates
through 2044. GASB Interpretation 1, Demand Bonds Issued by State and Local
Governmental Entities, provides guidance on the statement of net position classification of
these bonds. Under GASB Interpretation 1, outstanding principal balances on variable rate
demand bonds may be classified as noncurrent liabilities if the issuer has entered into a “take-
out agreement” to convert bonds “put” but not resold into some other form of long-term
obligation. In the absence of such an agreement, the total outstanding principal balances for
these bonds are required to be classified as current liabilities.

Although it is the university’s intent to repay its variable rate demand bonds in accordance with
the maturities set forth in the bond offering circulars, the university does not have “take-out
agreements” in place per the GASB Interpretation 1 requirements. Accordingly, the university
has classified the total outstanding principal balances on its variable rate demand bonds as
current liabilities. These obligations totaled $588 million and $596 million at June 30, 2017
and 2016, respectively.

GASB Statement No. 68 requires governmental employers participating in defined benefit
pension plans to recognize liabilities for plans whose actuarial liabilities exceed the plan’s net
assets. These liabilities are referred to as net pension liabilities. The university participates in
two multi-employer cost-sharing retirement systems, OPERS and STRS-Ohio. Under GASB
68, the university is required to record a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liabilities of the retirement systems. The university’s share of these net pension liabilities
increased $771 million, to $3.57 billion at June 30, 2017. Total net pension liabilities increased
at OPERS primarily due to a reduction in the discount rate used in the liability calculation (from
8% to 7.5%). Total net pension liabilities increased at STRS-Ohio primarily due to lower-than-
projected investment returns. Net deferrals associated with pensions increased $422 million,
to $975 milllion at June 30, 2017. These deferrals will be recognized as pension expense in
future periods. Total pension expense recognized by the university increased $255 million, to
$664 million in 2017. Total pension expense includes $315 million of employer contributions
and $349 million in GASB 68 accruals.

It should be noted that, in Ohio, employer contributions to the state’s cost-sharing multi-
employer retirement systems are established by statute. These contributions, which are
payable to the retirement systems one month in arrears, constitute the full legal claim on the
university for pension funding. Although the liabilities recognized under GASB 68 meet the
GASB's definition of a liability in its conceptual framework for accounting standards, they do
not represent legal claims on the university’s resources, and there are no cash flows
associated with the recognition of net pension liabilities, deferrals and related expense.

Other (non-pension) deferred inflows consist primarily of the unamortized proceeds of the
parking service concession arrangement. The parking deferred inflows, which totaled $436
million at June 30, 2017, are being amortized to operating revenue on a straight-line basis over
the 50-year life of the agreement. In addition, the deferred inflows include $19 million of
deferred gains on debt-related transactions.

Prior-Year Highlights: In 2016, the university issued $600 million in taxable Fixed Rate
General Receipts Bonds and $31 million in tax-exempt Fixed Rate General Receipts Bonds.

10 The Onio State University

229



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Net pension liabilities increased $664 million, to $2.79 billion, reflecting increases in actuarial
liabilities and decreases in fiduciary net position for both STRS-Ohio and OPERS. Cash and
temporary investment balances increased $190 million, to $1.97 billion, primarily due to strong
operating margins at the OSU Health System. In 2015, the university implemented GASB
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The adoption of the new
standard resulted in a $2.16 billion reduction in the university’s opening unrestricted net
position. The net pension liability recognized by the university at June 30, 2015 was $2.13
billion. Capital assets grew $310 million, to $4.80 billion, as the university completed several
large projects and continued work on the North Residential District Transformation (NRDT).

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position

y of Rev E and Changes in Net Position (in thousands)

2017 2016 2015

Operating Revenues:

Tuition and fees, net $ 927,317 % 884,805 5 850,289
Grants and contracts 677,361 630,858 657,238
Augxiliary enterprises sales and services, net 309,497 261,761 261,35°
OSU Health System sales and services, net 2,853,177 2,625,075 2,357,824
Departmental sales and other operating revenues 204,091 173,882 181,532
Total operating revenues 4,971,443 4,576,381 4,308,234
Operating Expenses:
Educational and general 2,488,642 2,359,243 2,238,015
Awuxiliary enterprises 313,185 254,137 248,879
OSU Health System 2,595,797 2,251,030 1,970,124
Depreciation 374,615 351.901 335,88°
Total operating expenses 5,772,239 5,216,311 4,792,899
Net operating loss (800,796) (639,930) (484,665)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
State share of instruction and line-item appropriations 473,061 456,083 435,824
Gifts - current use 181,212 156,737 163,800
Net investment income (loss) 600,701 (10.513) 173,295
Grants, interest expense and other non-operating (38.854) (11,135) 25,699
MNet non-operating revenue 1,216,120 591,152 798,618
Income (loss) before other changes in net
position 415,324 (48,778) 313,953
State capital appropriations 68,270 36,381 40,868
Private capital gifts 26,762 10,422 1,688
Additions to permanent endowments 52,458 64,537 62,295
Capital confributions and other changes in net pasition 7.719 - -
Total other changes in net position 155,209 111,340 104,85
Increase in net position 570,533 62,562 418,804
Net position - beginning of year 4,954,013 4,891,451 6,637,119
Cumulative effect of accounting change - - (2,164,472)
Net position - end of year $ 5,524,546 $ 4,954,013 _$ 4,891,451

Net tuition and fees increased $43 million, to $927 million in 2017, primarily due to a 6%
increase in non-resident enroliments and a 5% increase in the non-resident surcharge.
Resident enroliments were flat. The university did not increase its undergraduate instructional
and mandatory fees for fiscal 2017.

2017 Financial Report 11

230



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Operating grant and contract revenues increased $47 million, to $677 million in 2017.
Federal grant and contract revenues were up $11 million, to $324 million, reflecting increases
in federal sponsored programs. State grants and contract revenues were up $7 million, to $77
million, reflecting increases in research grants from several state agencies. Private grant and
contract revenues increased $27 million, to $254 million, primarily due to increases in grants
to the College of Medicine.

Educational and general expenses increased $129 million, or 5%, to $2.49 billion in 2017.
Additional details are provided below.

Educational and General Expenses (in thousands)
2017 2016 2015

Instruction and departmental research $ 1,006,411 $ 994,287 $ 940,105
Separately budgeted research 497,508 444,077 434,624
Public service 175,101 160,281 131,358
Academic support 222,043 207,688 192,140
Student services 108,041 103.784 100.229
Institutional support 254,782 227157 230,749
Operation and maintenance of plant 94 68T 101,007 95,866
Scholarships and fellowships 130.069 120,962 112,844

Total 3 2,488 642 s 2359243 § 2,238,015

The overall increase in educational and general expense is related to GASB 68 pension
accruals. These accruals are allocated to functional expense lines in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position, based on pension-eligible salaries.
Excluding these accruals, total educational and general expenses were relatively flat,
increasing $8 million in 2017. Scholarships and fellowships, net of amounts shown as
reductions of tuition and auxiliary revenues, increased $9 million, to $130 million in 2017,
reflecting increases in unrestricted (university-funded) student financial aid.

Total auxiliary revenues increased $48 million, to $309 million in 2017, primarily due to an
increase in beds in the North Residential District and additional meal plans sold to second-
year students, who are now required to live in the campus dorms. Auxiliary expenses
increased $59 million, to $313 million, primarily due to increases in housing and dining costs.

Health System operating revenues grew $228 million, to $2.85 billion in 2017. Operating
expenses (excluding depreciation, interest and transfers) increased $345 million, to $2.60
billion. An in-depth look at the Health System, as presented in their stand-alone financial
statements, is provided below.

The Health System operates over 1,300 inpatient beds and serves as a major tertiary and
quaternary referral center for Ohio and the Midwest. The Wexner Medical Center delivers
superior patient care, quality outcomes, and patient safety and has been recognized by US
News and World Report for 25 consecutive years as one of “America’s Best Hospitals” and
has seven nationally ranked specialties and is one of only a handful of hospitals in the country
ranked in multiple specialties. Less than 1% of hospitals in the country achieved that honor.
The Wexner Medical Center was selected by Becker Hospital Review for its 2017 list of “100

12 The Onio State University

231



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Great Hospitals in America” for excellence in patient care and clinical research, leadership in
innovations and ranking and awards. The Health System is proud to be the first health system
in central Ohio to have a hospital achieve Magnet Recognition, one of the highest honors
awarded for nursing excellence. The Ross Heart Hospital, University Hospital, and the Arthur
G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove Research Institute are all designated Magnet
hospitals. The Health System works with a strong physician group that provides exceptional
patient care. Physicians at the Wexner Medical Center were selected by Castle Connolly
because they are among the very best in their specialties.

In fiscal 2017, the Health System continued its expansion strategy by opening Outpatient Care
Upper Arlington, The Jameson Crane Sports Medicine Institute, and the Brain and Spine
Hospital. The Outpatient Care Upper Arlington facility will provide high quality and convenient
health services from disease prevention and primary care to highly specialized women'’s health
services and beyond. The Jameson Crane Sports Medicine Institute is the Midwest's largest
and most advanced sports medicine facility and is the home of innovation and discovery in
helping people improve their athletic performance, recover from injury and prevent future
injuries. The new state of the art complex integrates research, teaching, clinical care, and
performance training under one roof. The Brain and Spine Hospital is home to central Ohio’s
top-ranked Neurology and Neurosurgery program. The new Brain and Spine Hospital
combines the talent and resources of doctors and researchers at the Wexner Medical Center's
Neurological Institute in one comprehensive hospital. It includes specialized units for stroke
care, neurotrauma and traumatic brain injuries, spinal cord injuries and spine surgery, epilepsy,
chronic pain, acute rehabilitation, and neurosurgery.

The largest development project (Medical Center Expansion) in the history of The Ohio State
University was completed in fiscal 2015. Included in Medical Center Expansion was the
construction of the new Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove Research
Institute (“The James”). The new tower is a transformational facility that fosters the
collaboration and integration of cancer research and clinical cancer care. The James is the
largest cancer hospital in the Midwest and the third largest in the nation. The new 21-level
tower opened in December of fiscal year 2015.

In 2017, the Health System continued with the Medical Center mission of "improving people’s
lives through innovation in research, education and patient care" and remained financially
sound due to solid activity levels and strong expense management. Inpatient admissions
increased 3.9% compared to the prior year. Qutpatient visits increased 2.3% and total
observation patients increased 6.5% over the previous year. Outpatient visits experienced
significant growth specific to Surgical, Radiation Oncology, Rehab Services, Radiology, and
Chemotherapy. The Health System continued its ambulatory expansion strategy with the
opening of the Upper Arlington outpatient facility in Kingsdale and The Jameson Crane Sports
Medicine Institute this year. These new locations along with the outpatient rehabilitation
program achieved significant growth of 20.7% over the prior year for Ambulatory Services.

The Health System experienced strong surgical volumes in 2017 and was 5.4% above the
prior year activity. Service lines contributing to the growth in surgical volumes in 2017 were
Cancer, Transplant, Orthopedic Surgery, Trauma/Critical Care, Burn, Ophthalmology, and

2017 Financial Report 13

232



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Urology. The growth in surgical volumes contributed to increases in admissions, revenues,
and outpatient volumes

Total operating revenues grew $225.1 million, or 8.6% from the prior year. The increases in
operating revenues are a result of strong admissions, surgical volumes, and increased
outpatient activities. Total operating revenues grew $259.9 million, or 11.0% from 2015 to
2016. The increases from 2015 to 2016 are a result of the additional volumes related to Medical
Center Expansion and the new James Cancer Hospital being open for the entire fiscal year
and strong revenues related to the Retail Pharmacy.

Approximately 93% of total operating revenues are from patient care activities. Other
operating revenues is composed of items such as reference labs, cafeteria operations, rental
agreements and other sources. To ensure appropriate access and education for outpatients,
the Health System opened the Retail Pharmacy in 2015 due to the increasing complexity and
significantly growing number of specialty oral and self-administered pharmaceuticals available
for cancer and non-cancer patients. The Retail Pharmacy contributed $92.5 million of
operating revenues in 2017, $70.3 million in 2016, and $32.7 million in 2015. To standardize
care across the Neonatal Intensive Care Units in central Ohio, the Health System shares other
revenue from Nationwide Children’s Hospital management of the unit. The Neonatal Intensive
Care Units contributed $16.4 million of operating revenues in 2017, $18.8 million in 2016, and
$14.7 million in 2015.

Operating expenses increased $300.2 million, or 12.9% from 2016 to 2017. The increase in
salaries and benefits from 2016 to 2017 is reflective of increased salaries and a larger
workforce due to the additional volumes related to Brain and Spine Hospital, Jameson Crane
Sports Medicine Institute, and Outpatient Care Upper Arlington as well as the continued growth
at the James Cancer Hospital. Strong admissions, surgical volumes, and increased outpatient
activities as well as higher Retail Pharmacy volumes contributed to the increase in supplies
and drugs. The increase in purchased services from 2016 to 2017 is reflective of increased
preventative maintenance costs for information technology and medical equipment as well as
an increase in franchise fee for the hospitals. The increase in pension expense from 2016 to
2017 is related to the reduction in the discount rate used in the liability calculation and lower-
than-projected investment returns.

Income before other changes in Net Position was $215 million in 2017 compared to $248.6
million in 2016. Pension expense was $168.1 million in 2017 compared to $63 million in 2016
reflecting annual accounting under GASB 68. Income before other changes in Net Position
for clinical activities was $383.2 million in 2017 compared to $312.3 million in 2016 reflecting
strong activities, a strong patient mix and maintaining expenses in line with activities
throughout the Health System.

The Health System’s other changes in net position for fiscal year 2017 includes Medical Center
Investments of $145.2 million reinvested back into research, education, and programs at the
Medical Center. This compares to Medical Center Investments of $125.3 million in 2016 and
$136.9 million in 2015. Additionally, other changes in net position include $17.6 million for
capital expansion and hospital projects for fiscal year 2017.

14 The Onio State University

233



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Revenues and operating expenses of OSU Physicians, Inc. (OSUP), the University’s central
practice group for physician faculty members of the College of Medicine and Public Health,
continued to grow in 2017. Total consolidated operating revenues increased $9 million, to
$496 million, reflecting increases in patient volumes. Total consolidated OSUP expenses
(excluding depreciation and interest) increased $3 million to $444 million in 2017. These
figures are included in the Discretely Presented Component Units columns of the university’s
financial statements.

Total state operating support increased $17 million, to $473 million in 2017. State share of
instruction increased $23 million, or 6%, to $385 million. This increase was partially offset by
a $6 million decrease in state line-item appropriations, to $88 million in 2017.

State capital appropriations increased $32 million, to $68 million in 2017, reflecting funding
for OH-Tech capital projects ($16 million), the Pomerene Oxley Hall renovation ($10 milllion)
and the Newark Adena Hall renovation ($3 million).

Total gifts to the university increased $29 million, to $260 million in 2017. Increases in current
use and capital gifts were partially offset by a $12 million decrease in endowment gifts. Several
colleges and support units received gifts in excess of $1 million in 2017, including Veterinary
Medicine, Food Agricultural and Environmental Sciences, the Wexner Center for the Arts, the
Comprehensive Cancer Center, the College of Medicine, the College of Arts and Sciences and
the Fisher College of Business. Gift receipts from the annual Pelotonia ride increased $1
million, to $28 million in 2017. During 2017, over 267,000 alumni and friends made gifts to the
university, up from 246,000 in 2016.

University investments yielded $601 million of net investment income in 2017. The net
investment income figure includes $124 million of interest and dividend income and a $477
million net increase in the fair value of university investments.

To start the fiscal year, the Brexit vote impacted world financial markets as the U.S. 10 year-
treasury hit a low yield of 1.37% in the flight to quality that ensued. Over the rest of the year,
world events and political uncertainty in the U.S. raised concerns about prospects for economic
growth. Despite this backdrop, structural low world interest rates combined with low equity
market volatility driven by solid corporate earnings and consumer confidence supported strong
world equity market investment returns. The All Country World Equity Index returned +19.42%
and the S&P500 generated a +17.90% for the fiscal year.

The University’s Long-Term Investment Pool (LTIP) returned +14.5% for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2017. The LTIP outperformed on a relative basis to each of its individual benchmarks
for its three major asset classes; global equities, fixed income and real assets. The LTIP is a
diversified portfolio of investments designed to provide steady growth in a risk controlled
structure.

Interest expense on plant debt increased $27 million, to $121 million in 2017, primarily due
to an increase in interest expense related to the Series 2016A and 2016B bonds and a
reduction in capitalized interest.

2017 Financial Report 15

234



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

Prior-Year Highlights: In 2016, OSU Health System operating revenues increased $267
million, to $2.63 billion, reflecting additional volumes related to the Medical Center Expansion
and the new James Cancer Hospital (2016 was the first full fiscal year of operations for these
facilities). Educational and general expenses increased $121 million, to $2.36 billion.
Approximately $64 million of the overall increase in E&G expense was related to GASB 68
pension accruals. University investments yielded an $11 million net investment loss. In 2015,
the implementation of GASB 68 reduced beginning net position by $2.16 billion. Excluding the
effect of the GASB 68 accounting change, total net position for the primary institution increased
$419 million, reflecting revenue growth and increases in operating margins for the OSU Health
System and $173 million of net investment income. Other university operating revenues and
expenses were relatively flat compared with 2014.

Statement of Cash Flows

University Cash Flows Summary (in thousands)
2017 2016 2015
Net cash flows used in operating activities 5 (100,589) 3 (174,888) $ (113,426)
Met cash flows from noncapital financing activities 787,986 752,926 715,137
Capital appropriations and gifts for capital projects 82,982 46,511 53,092
Proceeds from capital debt 6,430 618,242 300,820
Payments for purchase or construction (414,606) (428,966) (610,7786)
of capital assets
Principal and interest payments on capital debt and leases, (192,914) (190,501) (146,095)
net of federal Build America Bond interest subsidies
Net cash flows used in investing activities (184.111) (301,532) (14,974)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 3 (14,822) 3 321,792 $ 183,778

University cash and cash equivalents decreased $15 million in 2017. Net cash flows from
operating and non-capital financing activities increased $109 million, to $687 million, as growth
in receipts from sales and services, grants and contracts and gifts outpaced increases in
operating disbursements. Total cash used by capital financing activities was $518 million,
reflecting capital expenditures and payments for debt service. Total cash used by investing
activities was $184 million, reflecting net purchases of temporary investments.

Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future

In August 2017, university leadership introduced a new strategic plan “to make the next bold
leap in Ohio State’s land-grant history of excellence and impact”. The strategic plan sets forth
five pillars of focus:

e Teaching and Learning — Ohio State will be an exemplar of the best teaching,

demonstrating leadership by adopting innovative, at-scale approaches to teaching
and learning to improve student outcomes.

16 The Onio State University

235



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

e Access, Affordability and Excellence — Ohio State will further our position as a
leading public university offering an excellent, affordable education and promoting
economic diversity.

e Research and Creative Expression — Ohio State will enhance our position among
the top national and international public universities in research and creative
expression, both across the institution and in targeted fields — driving significant
advances for critical societal challenges.

e Academic Health Care — The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center will
continue our ascent as a leading academic medical center, pioneering breakthrough
health care solutions and improving people’s lives.

e  Operational Excellence and Resource Stewardship — Ohio State will be an
exemplar of best practices in resource stewardship, operational effectiveness, and
efficiency and innovation.

The strategic plan reinforces and builds on the priorities set in the 2020 Vision, which President
Michael V. Drake established in 2015 to achieve inclusive excellence. Among other goals, the
2020 Vision established financial goals of generating $400 million in support for the academic
mission, including $200 million in administrative efficiencies and $200 million in new revenue
from sources other than tuition or taxpayers.

The major themes for the university’s 2018 budget are access, affordability and excellence.

The university introduced the Ohio State Tuition Guarantee for new first-year students, which
provides incoming undergraduates with more certainty about college costs by setting rates for
in-state tuition, mandatory fees, room and board for four years. For incoming freshmen on the
Columbus campus, in-state tuition and mandatory fees increased 5.5%, but those rates will
not change during a four-year education. Meanwhile, the university continued to freeze in-state
tuition and mandatory fees for continuing students, who have not experienced an increase
since 2012-13. The Board of Trustees also approved a 6% increase in housing rates and a
3% increase in dining fees.

At the same time, Ohio State has expanded financial aid by committing $25 million to the
President's Affordability Grant Program for 2017-18 and increasing the value of the Land Grant
Opportunity Scholarship to cover the full cost of attendance. The President’s Affordability
Grants are funded through the university’s administrative efficiency program.

Based on what is now known regarding the university’s financial outlook, university
management anticipates that Ohio State will maintain its sound financial position in Fiscal Year
2018. However, the university does face certain financial challenges, including a slowing state
economy and uncertainties related to future federal funding for research. Despite these
challenges and uncertainties, the university remains committed to executing its long-range

2017 Financial Report 17

236



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) - continued

strategic plan. By doing so, we believe that The Ohio State University will continue its progress
towards becoming the world’s preeminent comprehensive public university.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain information provided by the university, including written as outlined above or oral
statements made by its representatives, may contain forward-looking statements as defined
in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements, other than statements
of historical facts, which address activities, events or developments that the university expects
or anticipates will or may occur in the future contain forward-looking information.

In reviewing such information, it should be kept in mind that actual results may differ materially
from those projected or suggested in such forward-looking information. This forward-looking
information is based upon various factors and was derived using various assumptions. The
university does not undertake to update forward-looking information contained in this report or
elsewhere to reflect actual results, changes in assumptions or changes in other factors
affecting such forward-looking information.

18 The Onio State University

237



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016
(in thousands)

Primary Discretely Presented Total
Institution Component Units University
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 584,928 $ 463,075 $ 125725 $ 87,001 $ 710,653 $ 550,076
Temporary investments 1,645,681 1,508,854 9,216 7,050 1,654,897 1,515,904
Accounts receivable, net 575,875 512,631 47,736 52,715 623,611 565,346
Notes receivable - current portion, net 25,231 22,798 84 2,780 25,315 25,578
Pledges receivable - current portion, net 33,718 35,322 - - 33,718 35,322
Accrued interest receivable 20,058 19,295 - - 20,058 19,295
Inventories and prepaid expenses 99,223 111,388 3,628 3,784 102,851 92,316
Investments held under securities lending program 15,949 27,589 - - 15,949 27,589
Amounts due from (to) primary institution (12,665) (19,151) 12,665 19,151 - -
Total Current Assets 2,987,998 2,681,801 199,054 172,481 3,187,052 2,831,426
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash 666,032 802,707 - - 666,032 802,707
Notes receivable, net 35723 41,083 2,664 443 38,387 41,526
Pledges receivable, net 72,350 65,546 - - 72,350 65,546
Long-term investment pool 4,253,459 3,616,562 - - 4,253,459 3,616,562
Other long-term investments 143,638 132,97 1,550 4,766 145,188 137,737
Capital assets, net 4,883,584 4.852.433 122,167 117.965 4,982,987 4,970,398
Total Noncurrent Assets 10,054,786 9,511,302 126,381 123,174 10,158,403 9,634,476
Total Assets 13.042,784 12,193,103 325435 295,655 13,345,455 12,465,902
Deferred Outflows:
Pension 991,559 675,709 155 124 991,714 675,833
Other deferred outflows 21,378 22,416 - - 21,378 22,418
Total Deferred Outflows 1,012,937 698,125 155 124 1,013,082 698,249
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 14,055,721 § 12,891,238 § 325590 § 295779 $ 14368547 § 1318415
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 524,754 $ 469,218 $ 25,204 $ 23,116 $ 549,958 $ 492,332
Deposits and advance payments for goods and services 223,880 216,372 1,718 23,327 225,598 216,843
Current portion of bonds, notes and leases payable 63,624 61,983 946 811 64,570 62,794
Long-term bonds payable, subject o remarketing 588,360 596,435 - - 588,360 596,435
Liability under securities lending program 15.949 27.589 - - 15.949 27.589
Other current liabilities 93,357 91,977 - 1,980 93,357 93,957
Amounts due to (from) primary institution - current (21,598) (24,683) 21,598 24,683 - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,488,326 1,438,889 49,466 73.917 1,537,792 1,489,950
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds, notes and leases payable 2,640,142 2,714,842 15,738 14,735 2,655,880 2729577
Net pension liability 3,565,362 2,794,626 382 366 3,565,744 2,794,992
Compensated absences 164,584 159,874 - - 164,504 150,874
Self-insurance accruals 81,239 94.616 - - 81,239 94,616
Amounts due to third-party payors - Health System 38,032 42,745 - - 38,032 42,745
Obligations under annuity and life income agreements 30,473 29,276 - - 30,473 20,276
Refundable advances for Federal Perkins loans 31,714 32,110 - - 31,714 32110
Other noncurrent liabilities 101.702 113.057 23.566 405 102,504 113462
Amounts due to (from) primary institution - nencurrent (81,697) (69.970) 81,697 69,970 - -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6.571.561 5.911.176 121,383 85476 6,670,180 5,996.652
Total Liabilities 8,050,887 7,350,065 170,849 159,393 8,207,972 7,486,602
Deferred Inflows:
Parking service concession arrangement 435,807 445,439 - - 435,807 445,439
Pension 16,342 122,369 10 7 18,352 122,378
Other deferred inflows 19,139 19,342 - - 19,139 19,342
Total Deferred Inflows 471,288 587,150 10 7 471,298 587,157
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,259,207 2,282,647 105,430 100,068 2,364,637 2,382,715
Restricted: - -
Nonexpendable 1,480,440 1,370,064 - - 1,480,440 1,370,064
Expendable 1,195,515 908,953 - - 1,195,515 908,953
Unrestricted 589,384 392,349 49,301 36,311 638,685 428,660
Total Net Position 5,524,546 4,954,013 154,731 136,379 5,679,277 5,090,392
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position $ 14,055,721 $ 12,891,228 $ 325,590 $ 295779 $ 14,358,547 $ 13,164,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2017 Financial Report 19

238



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016
(in thousands)

Operating Revenues:
Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship
allowances of $179,071 and $180,828, respectively
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Private grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational departments
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises (net of scholarship
allowances of $31,016 and $25,133, respectively
Sales and services of the OSU Health System, net
Sales and services of OSU Physicians, Inc., net
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Educational and General:
Instruction and departmental research
Separately budgeted research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Operation and maintenance of plant
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
OSU Health System
OSU Physicians, Inc.
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):

State share of instruction and line-item appropriations

Federal subsidies for Build America Bonds interest

Federal non-exchange grants

State non-exchange grants

Gifts

Net investment income (loss)

Interest expense on plant debt

Other i [{
Net Non-gperating Revenue

Income {Loss) before Other Changes in Met Position

Other Changes in Net Position

State capital appropriations

Private capital gifts

Addditis to permanent

Capital contributions and other changes in net position
Total Other Changes in Net Position

Increase in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Year
Net Position - End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

20 The Ohio State University

Primary Discretely Presented Total
ituti C Units University
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
927,317 $ 884,805 - - 927,317 $ 884,805
324,462 313,906 12,517 11,963 336,979 325,869
77,139 70,499 - - 77,139 70,499
21,427 18,701 - - 21,427 18,701
254,333 227,752 47,182 40,988 301,515 268,740
145,994 138,502 8,935 8,757 154,929 147,259
309,497 261,761 - - 309,497 261,761
2,853,177 2,625,075 - - 2,844,327 2,625,075
- - 496,364 487.429 496,364 487,429
58,007 35,380 - - 58,087 35,380
4,971,443 4,576,381 564,998 549,137 5,527,591 5,125,518
1,008,411 994,287 6,081 5452 1,012,492 999,739
497.508 444,077 21.566 26479 519,074 470,556
175,101 160,281 10,780 9,815 185,881 170,096
222,043 207,688 = - 222,043 207 688
108,041 103,784 - - 108,041 103,784
254,782 227157 17,360 10,118 272,142 237,275
94,687 101,007 7.489 7.454 102,176 108,46
130,069 120,962 - - 130,069 120,962
33,185 254 137 - - 313,185 254,137
2,595,797 2,251,030 - - 2,595,797 2,242,256
- - 444,361 441,333 444,361 441,333
374,615 351,901 7.138 6,425 381,753 358,326
5,772,239 5,216,311 514,775 507,076 6,287,014 5,714,613
(800,796) (639,930) 50,223 42,061 (759,423) (589,085)
473,081 456,063 - - 473,081 456,063
10,561 10,523 - - 10,561 10,523
54,0862 55,684 - - 54,062 55,684
9,434 9,643 - - 9,434 9,643
181,212 156,737 - - 181,212 156,737
600,701 (10,513) 481 {169) 601,162 (10,376)
(121,071) (93,885) (1,584) (1.610) (122,655) (95,495)
7.261 6,890 (30,768) (8,550 (14,657) (6,951)
1.216.121 501.152 (31.871) (10.329) 1.193.100 575,838
415,325 (48,778) 18,3562 31,732 433677 (13,257)
68,270 36,381 - - 68,270 36,38
26,761 10,422 - - 26,761 10,422
52,458 64,537 - - 52,458 64,537
7.719 - - 3,789 7.719 -
155,208 111,340 - 3,789 155,208 111,340
570,533 62,562 18,352 35,521 588,885 98,083
4,954,013 4.891.451 136.379 100,858 5,090,392 4,992,309
5,524,546 $ 4,954,013 154,731 136,379 5,679,277 $ 5,090,392

239



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016
(in thousands)

Primary Discretely Presented Total
Institution Component Units University
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Tuition and fee receipts $ 808,684 $ 795,196 $ - $ - $ 808,684 $ 795,196
Grant and contract receipts 688,946 632,073 61,254 73,351 750,200 705,424
Receipts for sales and services 3,250,797 2,975,167 517,885 487,945 3,759,832 3,463,112
Payments to or on behalf of employees (2,237,758) (2,214,578) (324,012) (306,613) (2,561,770) (2,521,191)
University employee benefit payments (595,410) (619,964) (78,703) (76,190) (674,113) (696,154)
Payments to vendors for supplies and services (1,941,533) (1,674,593) (108,548) (119,918) (2,050,081) (1,785,737)
Payments to students and fellows (121,109) (112,465) - - (121,109) (112,465)
Student loans issued (9,305) (7,074) - - (9,305) (7,074)
Student loans collected 10,166 10,406 - - 10,166 10,406
Student loan interest and fees collected 1.369 2,407 - - 1,369 2,407
Other receipts 44,564 38,537 - - 44,564 38,537
Met cash provided (used) by operating activities (100,589) (174,888) 67.876 58,575 (41,563) (107,539)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State share of instruction and line-item appropriations 473,081 456,083 - - 473,081 456,083
Non-exchange grant receipts 64,396 65,337 - - 64,396 65,337
Gift receipts for current use 188,579 158,991 - - 188,579 158,99
Additions to permanent endowments 52.458 64,537 - - 52,458 64,537
Drawdowns of federal direct loan proceeds 322,405 321,661 - - 322,405 321,66
Disbursements of federal direct loans to students (323.813) (321,1486) - - (323,813) (321,146)
Repayment of loans from related organization 667 2193 - - 667 2,193
Amounts received for annuity and life income funds 2.567 5913 - - 2,567 5813
Amounts paid to annuitants and life beneficiaries (1,700) (1.,632) - - (1,700} (1,632)
Agency funds receipts 4,893 4,626 - - 4,893 4,626
Agency funds disbursements (4.,645) (4,412) - - (4,645) (4,412)
Other receipts (payments) 9,118 795 (17,169) 2,995 799 (4,984)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities TB7.986 752,926 (17,169) 2,995 779,667 747,147
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:
Proceeds from capital debt 6.430 618,242 150 - 6,580 618,242
State capital appropriations 67,662 36,783 - - 67,662 36,783
Gift receipts for capital projects 15,320 9,728 - - 15,320 9,728
Payments for purchase or construction of capital assets (414,6086) (428,966) (21,254) (44,479) (435,860) (473,445)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 9,172 - 9,172 -
Principal payments on capital debt and leases (79.528) (94,308) (1,058) (823) (80,586) (95,131)
Interest payments on capital debt and leases (124,267 (106,654) (458) (1.610) (124,725) (108,264)
Federal subsidies for Build America Bonds interest 10,881 10,461 - - 10,881 10,46°
Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities (518,108) 45,286 (13.448) (46.912) (531,556) (1.626)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net (purchases) sales of temporary investments (137,323) (294,511) (2,168) (159) (139,489) (294,670)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of long-term investments 1,866,011 1.578.221 3.215 - 1.869.226 1.578.22°
Investment income 123,274 95,927 416 (168) 123,690 95,758
Purchases of long-term investments (2.036.073) (1.681,169) - (4.030) (2.036,073) (1.685,199)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (184,111) (301,532) 1,465 (4,358) (182,646) (305,890)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (14,822) 321,792 38,724 10,300 23,902 332,092

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,265,782 943,990 87.001 76,701 1,352,783 1,020,69°

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period $ 1,250,960 $ 1,265,782 $ 125,725 $ 87,001 $ 1,376,685 $ 1,352,783

2017 Financial Report 21

240



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Cont'd
Years Ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016
(in thousands)

Reconciliation of Net Operating Loss (Income) to Net

Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Operating loss (income)

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss (income)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Impairment and demolition expense

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net

Notes receivable, net

Accrued interest receivable

Inventories and prepaid expenses

Amounts due toffrom primary institution
Deferred outflows

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Self-insurance accruals

Amounts due to third-party payors - Health System
Deposits and advanced payments
Compensated absences

Refundable advances for Federal Perkins loans
MNet pension obligation

Deferred inflows

Other liabilities

Met cash provided (used) by operating aclivities
Non Cash Transactions:

Construction in Process in Accounts Payable
Stock Gifts

Met Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments

Primary Discretely Presented Total
Institution Component Units University
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
(800,796) $ (639,930) $ 50,223 $ 42,061 (759,423) $ (589,095)
374,615 351,901 7,138 6,425 381,753 358,326
- - 1,675 - 1,675 -
(52,801) (28,621) 5,044 (3,473) (47,757) (32,094)
861 2,783 473 (1,806) 1,334 977
(344) (77 - - (344) 77
12,165 (28,454) 156 1,852 12,321 (26,602)
(15,128) 14,119 2,450 (14,119) (12,678) -
(315,850) (456,724) (31) (84) (315,881) (456,808)
57,049 49,653 1,154 3,603 58,203 53,256
(13,377) (13,258) - = (13,377) (13,258)
(4,713) (1,423) - - (4,713) (1,423)
2,932 (26,218) (21,608) 22,385 (18,674) (3,833)
4,720 7.990 - - 4,720 7,990
(396) (118) - - (396) (118)
770,736 664,194 16 70 770,752 664,264
(115,659) (105,897) 2 2 (115,657) (105,895)
(4.803) 35,192 21,182 1,659 16,579 38,85
(100,589) $ (174,888) S 67,876 § 58,575 (41,563) $ (107,539)
17.442 § 30,355 § 3885 § - 21327 § 30,355
21,723 20,746 - - 21,723 20,746
477,006 (105,312) - - 477,006 (105,312)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

22 The Ohio State University

241



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES
Organization

The Ohio State University (the “university”) is a land grant institution created in 1870 by the
Ohio General Assembly under provisions of the Morrill Act. The university is one of several
state-supported universities in Ohio. It is declared by statute to be a body politic and corporate
and an instrumentality of the State.

The university is governed by a Board of Trustees which is granted authority under Ohio law
to do all things necessary for the proper maintenance and continual successful operation of
the university. Trustees are appointed by the governor, with the advice and consent of the
state Senate. In 2005, the Ohio General Assembly voted to expand the Board from 11 to 17
members. The standard term for voting members of the Board is nine years. However, as
part of the transition to a larger board membership, the additional trustees appointed in 2005
and 2006 will serve terms ranging from four to eight years. The Board also includes two non-
voting student trustees who are appointed to two-year terms.

In 2009, the Board appointed its first charter trustee, which expanded the Board to 18
members. A maximum of three charter trustees may be appointed and removed by a vote of
the Board. Charter trustees, who must be non-Ohio residents, are appointed to three-year
terms and do not have voting privileges.

The Board of Trustees has responsibility for all the university’s financial affairs and assets.
The university operates largely on a decentralized basis by delegating this authority to its
academic and support departments. The Board must approve the annual budgets for
unrestricted academic and support functions, departmental earnings operations and restricted
funds operations, but these budgets are managed at the department level.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements present the accounts of the following entities, which
constitute the primary government for financial reporting purposes:

o The Ohio State University and its hospitals and clinics
e Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center
e The Ohio Technology Consortium (OH-TECH)

In addition, these financial statements include component units -- legally separate
organizations for which the university is financially accountable. Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended
by Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus and Statement No. 80,
Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 14., defines financial accountability. The criteria for determining financial accountability
include the following circumstances:

2017 Financial Report 23

242



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

e Appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing authority and the
ability of the primary government (i.e. the university) to either impose its will on
that organization or the potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, or;

e An organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government and provides
specific financial benefits to, or imposes specific financial burdens on, the primary
government.

The university’s component units and the reasons for their inclusion in the university’s
financial statements are described below:

e The Ohio State University Foundation — The fiscal dependency criteria apply
to this not-for-profit fundraising organization, which operates exclusively for the
benefit of The Ohio State University.

e OSU Health Plan, Inc. — The university appoints a voting majority of the board
for this organization, which provides medical benefit plan administration services
to the university and its faculty and staff.

o Oval Limited — The university holds all of the voting stock of this captive
insurance entity, which was established by the university to provide medical
malpractice coverage to physicians in the university’'s medical center.

The component units listed above provide services entirely, or almost entirely, to the
university or otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefit the university. Therefore,
the transactions and balances for these organizations have been blended with those of the
university.

In addition to the blended component units described above, the university’s financial
statements include the following discretely presented component units:

¢ The Ohio State University Physicians, Inc. — The university appoints a voting
majority of the board of the medical practice group for physician faculty members
in the Colleges of Medicine and Public Health.

e Campus Partners for Community Urban Redevelopment, Inc. — This non-
profit organization, which participates in the redevelopment of neighborhoods
adjacent to the Columbus campus, is fiscally dependent on the university.

e Transportation Research Center of Ohio, Inc. — The university appoints a
voting majority of the board for this automotive research and testing facility in East
Liberty, Ohio.

o Dental Faculty Practice Association, Inc. — The university appoints a voting
majority of the board for the dental practice group for faculty in the College of
Dentistry.

Summary financial statement information for the university’s blended and discretely presented
component units is provided in Notes 19 and 20. Audited financial statements for the discretely

presented component units considered to be material to the university may be obtained from
the Office of the Controller. A total university column in the financial statements is provided as

24 The Ohio State University

243



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

memorandum only for purposes of additional analysis by users. The total university column
reflects eliminations of transactions between the primary institution and the discretely
component units. These transactions consist primarily of (a) discretionary subsidies and
contributions which are presented as either non-operating activities or capital additions at
the component unit level and (b) exchanged-based goods and services that support the
operations of the entity, which are presented as operating revenues and expenses at the
component unit level. The impact of these transactions on the statement of revenues,
expenses and other changes in net position was $8,850 and $3,709 for the years ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The university, as a component unit of the State of Ohio, is included as a discrete entity in the
State of Ohio’'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the university have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by
the GASB. The university is reporting as a special purpose government engaged in
business type activities (BTA) on the accrual basis. Business type activities are those that
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services.
In accordance with BTA reporting, the university presents Management’s Discussion and
Analysis; Statements of Net Position; Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Other
Changes in Net Position; Statements of Cash Flows; and Notes to the Financial
Statements. In the Financial Statements, separate columns are presented for the primary
institution (which includes the primary government and the blended component units),
discretely presented component units and the total university. The Notes to the Financial
Statements include separate disclosures for the primary institution and the discretely
presented component units, where relevant and material. Unless otherwise specified, the
amounts presented in MD&A are those of the primary institution.

The university’'s financial resources are classified for accounting and reporting purposes
into the following four net position categories:

e Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, cash restricted for capital projects and outstanding principal
balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

e Restricted - nonexpendable: Amounts subject to externally-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained in perpetuity and invested for the purpose of
generating present and future income, which may either be expended or added
to the principal by the university. These assets primarily consist of the university’s
permanent endowments.

2017 Financial Report 25

244



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

o Restricted - expendable: Amounts whose use is subject to externally-imposed
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the university pursuant to those
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time.

¢ Unrestricted: Amounts which are not subject to externally-imposed stipulations.
Substantially all unrestricted balances are internally designated for use by
university departments to support working capital needs, to fund related
academic or research programs, and to provide for unanticipated shortfalls in
revenues and deviations in enroliment.

Under the university’s decentralized management structure, it is the responsibility of individual
departments to determine whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available.

For internal financial management purposes, the university classifies financial resources into
funds that reflect the specific activities, objectives or restrictions of the resources.

Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of petty cash, demand deposit accounts, money
market accounts, savings accounts and investments with original maturities of ninety days or
less at the time of purchase. Such investments consist primarily of U.S. Government
obligations, U.S. Agency obligations, repurchase agreements and money market funds.
Restricted cash consists of bond proceeds restricted for capital expenditures. For purposes
of the Statement of Cash Flows, “cash” is defined as the total of these two line items.

Investments are carried at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, as
amended by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The average
cost method is used for purposes of determining gains and losses on the sale of investments.
The specific identification method is used for purposes of determining gains and losses on the
sale of gifted securities.

The university holds investments in limited partnerships, private equity and other investments,
which are carried at estimated fair value provided by the management of these limited
partnerships. The purpose of this alternative investment class is to increase portfolio
diversification and reduce risk due to the low correlation with other asset classes. Investments
in these limited partnerships are fair valued based on the university’s proportional share of the
net asset value of the total fund. Because these investments are not readily marketable, the
estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ from the value that would
have been used had a ready market for the investments existed, and such differences could
be material. As of June 30, 2017, the university has made commitments to limited partnerships
totaling $1,161,359 that have not yet been funded. These commitments may extend for a
maximum of ten years.

Investment income is recognized on an accrual basis. Interest and dividend income is
recorded when earned.

26 The Ohio State University

245



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Endowment Policy

All endowments are invested in the university’s Long Term Investment Pool, which consists of
more than 5,464 Board authorized funds and 260 pending funds. Each named fund is
assigned a number of shares in the Long Term Investment Pool based on the value of the
gifts, income-to-principal transfers, or transfers of operating funds to that named fund. For
donor restricted endowments, the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA), as adopted in Ohio, permits the university’s Board of Trustees to appropriate an
amount of realized and unrealized endowment appreciation as the Board deems prudent. The
UPMIFA, as adopted in Ohio, establishes a 5% safe harbor of prudence for funds appropriated
for expenditure. Net realized and unrealized appreciation, after the spending rule distributions,
is retained in the Long Term Investment Pool, and the associated net position is classified as
restricted-expendable, unless otherwise restricted by the donor.

Annual distributions to named funds in the Long Term Investment Pool are computed using
the share method of accounting for pooled investments. The annual distribution per share is
4.25% of the average fair value per share of the Long Term Investment Pool over the most
recent seven year period. In 2016, the Board of Trustees approved an increase in the
distribution rate to 4.5%, effective fiscal year 2017.

At June 30, 2017, the fair value of the university’s gifted endowments is $1,939,582, which is
$327,343 above the historical dollar value of $1,612,239. Although the fair value of the gifted
endowments in total exceeds the historical cost at June 30, 2017, there are 1,347 named funds
that remain underwater. The fair value of these underwater funds at June 30, 2017 is $492,695,
which is $47,823 below the historical dollar value of $540,518.

At June 30, 2016, the fair value of the university’s gifted endowments is $1,740,505, which is
$183,572 above the historical dollar value of $1,556,933. Although the fair value of the gifted
endowments in total exceeds the historical cost at June 30, 2016, there are 2,729 named funds
that remain underwater. The fair value of these underwater funds at June 30, 2016 is $822,501,
which is $99,527 below the historical dollar value of $922,028.

The depreciation on non-expendable endowment funds is recorded as a reduction to restricted
non-expendable net position. Recovery on these funds is recorded as an increase in restricted
non-expendable up to the historical value of each fund. Per UPMIFA (§ 1715.53(D)(C), the
reporting of such deficiencies does not create an obligation on the part of the endowment fund
to restore the fair value of those funds.

Gift Pledges Receivable

The university receives pledges and bequests of financial support from corporations,
foundations and individuals. Revenue is recognized when a pledge representing an
unconditional promise to pay is received and all eligibility requirements have been met. In the
absence of such promise, revenue is recognized when the gift is received. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions,
endowment pledges are not recorded as assets until the related gift is received. An allowance

2017 Financial Report 27

246



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

for uncollectible pledges receivable is provided based on management’s judgment of potential
uncollectible amounts and includes such factors as prior collection history, type of gift and
nature of fundraising.

Inventories

The university’s inventories, which consist principally of publications, general stores and other
goods for resale by earnings operations, are valued at the lower of moving average cost or
market. The inventories of the Health System, which consist principally of pharmaceuticals
and operating supplies, are valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.

Capital Assets and Collections

Capital assets are long-life assets in the service of the university and include land, buildings,
improvements, equipment, software and library books. Capital assets are stated at cost or
acquisition value at date of gift. Depreciation of capital assets (excluding land and construction
in progress) is provided on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Type of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Improvements other than buildings 20 years
Buildings 10 to 100 years
Moveable equipment, software and furniture 5to 15 years
Library books 10 years

The university does not capitalize works of art or historical treasures that are held for exhibition,
education, research and public service. These collections are neither disposed of for financial
gain nor encumbered in any way. Accordingly, such collections are not recognized or
capitalized for financial statement purposes.

Advance Payments for Goods and Services

Advance payments for goods and services primarily consist of receipts relating to tuition, room,
board, grants, contracts and athletic events received in advance of the services to be provided.
Tuition and fees relating to the summer academic term are recorded as revenue in the year to
which they pertain. The university will recognize revenue to the extent these services are
provided over the coming fiscal year.

28 The Ohio State University

247



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Derivative Instruments

The university accounts for all derivative instruments on the statement of net position at fair
value. Changes in the fair value (i.e., gains or losses) of the university’s interest rate swap
investments and futures investments are recorded each period in the statement of revenues,
expenses and other changes in net position as a component of other non-operating expense.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

The university defines operating activities, for purposes of reporting on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Other Changes in Net Position, as those activities that generally
result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing services and
payments made for goods or services received. With the exception of interest expense on
long-term indebtedness, substantially all university expenses are considered to be operating
expenses. Certain significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as non-
operating revenues, as defined by GASB Statement No. 35, including state appropriations,
current-use gifts and net investment income.

Tuition, Room and Board

Student tuition and residence hall fees are presented net of scholarships and fellowships
applied to student accounts. Stipends and other payments made directly to students are
presented as scholarship and fellowship expense. Fee authorizations provided to graduate
teaching, research and administrative associates as part of an employment arrangement are
presented in instruction, research and other functional categories of operating expense.

State Support

The university is a state-assisted institution of higher education which receives a student
enroliment-based instructional subsidy from the State of Ohio. This subsidy, which is based
upon a formula devised by the Ohio Board of Regents, is determined annually and is adjusted
to state resources available.

The state also provides line-item appropriations which partially support the current operations
of various activities, which include clinical teaching expenditures incurred at The Ohio State
University Health System and other health sciences teaching facilities, The Ohio State
University Extension, the Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center, and the Center
for Labor Research.

In addition to current operating support, the State of Ohio provides the funding for and
constructs major plant facilities on the university’s campuses, and this funding is recorded as
state capital appropriations. The funding is obtained from the issuance of revenue bonds by
the Ohio Public Facilites Commission (OPFC) which, in turn, initiates the construction and
subsequent lease of the facility by the Ohio Board of Regents.

Such facilities are reflected as buildings or construction in progress in the accompanying
statement of net position. Neither the obligations for the revenue bonds issued by OPFC nor

2017 Financial Report 29

248



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

the annual debt service charges for principal and interest on the bonds are reflected in the
university’s financial statements. Debt service is funded through appropriations to the Ohio
Board of Regents by the General Assembly.

These facilities are not pledged as collateral for the revenue bonds. Instead, the bonds are
supported by a pledge of monies in the Higher Education Bond Service Fund and future
payments to be received by such fund, which is established in the custody of the Treasurer of
State.

Government Grants and Contracts

Government grants and contracts normally provide for the recovery of direct and indirect costs
and are subject to audit by the appropriate government agency. Federal funds are subject to
an annual OMB Uniform Guidance audit. Recovery of related indirect costs is generally
recorded at fixed rates negotiated for a period of one to three years.

The university generally considers grants, contracts and non-capital appropriations to be
exchange transactions. Under these arrangements, the university provides a bargained-for
benefit, typically in the form of instruction, research or public service programs, either directly
to the funding entity or to its constituents. The overall scope and nature of these program
activities is determined by the level of funding and the requirements set forth by these resource
providers.

OSU Health System Revenue

Net patient service revenue represents amounts received and the estimated realizable
amounts due from patients and third-party payors for services rendered net of contractual
allowances, charity care and bad debt expenses. Revenue received under third-party cost
reimbursement agreements (primarily the federal Medicare and Medicaid programs) are
subject to examination and retroactive adjustments by the agencies administering the
programs. In the normal course of business, the Health System contests certain issues
resulting from examination of prior years' reimbursement reports. The accompanying financial
statements include provisions for estimated retroactive adjustments arising from such
examinations and contested issues. The Health System recognizes settlements of protested
adjustments or appeals upon resolution of the matters.

OSU Physicians Revenue

Net patient service revenue represents amounts received and the estimated realizable
amounts due from patients and third-party payors for services rendered net of contractual
allowances, charity care, self-pay discounts and bad debt expenses. OSU Physicians (OSUP),
a discretely presented component unit of the university, provides care to patients under various
reimbursable agreements, including governmental and commercial payors (third party payors).
These arrangements provide for payment for covered services at agreed-upon rates and under
certain fee schedules and various discounts from charges. Provisions have been made in the
financial statements for estimated contractual adjustments, representing the difference

30 The Ohio State University

249



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

between the customary charges for services rendered and related reimbursements, and for
administrative adjustments.

Charity Care and Community Benefit

Care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is classified as charity
care in accordance with policies established by the OSU Health System and OSUP. Because
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care are not pursued, such amounts are
written off and not reported as gross patient service revenue. OSU Health System and OSUP
maintain records to identify and monitor the level of charity care provided, including the amount
of charges foregone for services rendered. Net charity care costs for the OSU Health System
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are $42,710 and $36,020, respectively, after
applying an additional expense of $12,416 and $12,380, respectively, for support received
under the Health Care Assurance Program (HCAP). HCAP is administered by the State of
Ohio to help hospitals cover a portion of the cost of providing charity care. Charity care costs
for OSUP for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are $9,362 and $6,022, respectively.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles, generally
accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures
during the reporting period. Disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements may also be affected. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Implementation of GASB Statement No. 72

In fiscal year 2016, the university implemented GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application. GASB Statement No. 72 expands the guidance on valuation
of university investments and requires new disclosures of fair value measurements grouped
by level and allows Net Asset Value (NAV) to be used for valuation of certain investments. In
addition, the new standard requires additional disclosures related to investments valued at
NAYV, including information on unfunded commitments and a general description of redemption
terms and related restrictions. These disclosures are provided in Note 3.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This standard, which is the companion to
Statement 74, establishes new reporting requirements for employers participating in OPEB
plans. Similar to Statement 68, it will require employers in cost-sharing, multi-employer plans
to record a liability (and related deferrals) for the employer’s pro-rata share of net OPEB
liabilities. It also expands disclosure and supplementary reporting requirements for employers
participating in OPEB plans. The standard is effective for periods beginning after June 15,
2017 (FY2018).

2017 Financial Report 31

250



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, /rrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.
This standard requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable
split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the
inception of the agreement. It also requires that a government recognize assets representing
its beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third
party, if the government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. In
general, revenue recognition related to these agreements will be delayed until a specified
event occurs (such as the death of the lead beneficiary). This standard is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2016 (FY2018).

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.
This standard establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a
liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations.
The deferred outflow is recognized as expense over the life of the related asset. The
determination of when the liability is incurred is based on the existence of external laws,
regulations, contracts, or court judgments, together with the occurrence of an internal event
that obligates a government to perform asset retirement activities. Internal obligating events
include the occurrence of contamination, placing into use a tangible capital asset that is
required to be retired, abandoning a tangible capital asset before use begins, or acquiring a
tangible capital asset that has an existing asset retirement obligation. This standard is effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2018 (FY2019).

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This standard
establishes criteria for identifying and reporting fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is whether a government is controlling the
assets of the fiduciary activity and the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.
Governments with activities meeting the criteria are required to present these activities in a
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. An
exception to this requirement is provided for a business-type activity that expects to hold assets
in a custodial fund for three months or less. This standard is effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2018 (FY2020).

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This standard addresses
a variety of practice issues identified during implementation and application of certain GASB
statements. It provides guidance on blending of component units (confirming limited
applicability of blended presentation for BTAs), accounting for goodwill acquired prior to the
issuance of GASB 69, accounting for real estate held for investment by insurance entities,
clarification of circumstances in which money-market investments may be valued at amortized
cost, and various technical corrections related to the implementation of the new OPEB
standards. This standard is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017 (FY2018).

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. This
standard provides guidance on in-substance defeasance of debt, in which a government uses
its existing resources (not the proceeds of refunding debt) to establish an irrevocable trust for
the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. The accounting, reporting and disclosures for
defeasance transactions, including reporting of gains and losses, generally will be consistent,

32 The Ohio State University

251



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

regardless of the source of the funds used to defease the debt. This standard is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2017 (FY2018).

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard establishes
accounting and reporting for leases, based on the foundational principle that all leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset for a period of time. Lessees will record an
intangible right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability. Lessors will record a lease
receivable and a corresponding deferred inflow of resources. The standard provides an
exception for short-term leases with a maximum possible term of 12 months or less. This
standard is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (FY2021).

University management is currently assessing the impact that implementation of GASB
Statements No. 75, 81, 83, 84, 85, 86 and 87 will have on the university's financial statements.

Other

The university is exempt from income taxes as an instrumentality of the State of Ohio under
internai Revenue Code §115 and internai Revenue Service reguiations. Any unreiated
business income is taxable.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the primary institution’s cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash is $1,250,960 as compared to bank balances of $1,265,022. The differences
in carrying amount and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks and deposits in
transit. Of the bank balances, $53,569 is covered by federal deposit insurance and $1,211,453
is uninsured but collateralized by pools of securities pledged by the depository banks and held
in the name of the respective banks.

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the primary institution’s cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash is $1,265,782 as compared to bank balances of $1,324,013. The differences
in carrying amount and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks and deposits in
transit. Of the bank balances, $53,280 is covered by federal deposit insurance and $1,270,733
is uninsured but collateralized by pools of securities pledged by the depository banks and held
in the name of the respective banks.

At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the discretely presented component units’ cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash is $125,725 as compared to bank balances of $122,850. The
differences in carrying amount and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks and
deposits in transit. Of the bank balances, $5,121 is covered by federal deposit insurance and
$117,729 is uninsured but collateralized by pools of securities pledged by the depository banks
and held in the name of the respective banks.

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the discretely presented component units’ cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash is $87,001 as compared to bank balances of $79,794. The
differences in carrying amount and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks and

2017 Financial Report 33

252



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

deposits in transit. Of the bank balances, $4,911 is covered by federal deposit insurance and
$74,883 is uninsured but collateralized by pools of securities pledged by the depository banks
and held in the name of the respective banks.

NOTE 3 — INVESTMENTS

University investments are grouped into three major categories for financial reporting
purposes: Temporary Investments, the Long-Term Investment Pool and Other Long-Term
Investments.

Temporary Investments are amounts available for current operations. The target is to
maximize value while protecting the liquidity of the assets. Temporary Investments include
the following instruments with varying maturities: obligations of the U. S. Treasury and other
federal agencies and instrumentalities, municipal and state bonds, corporate bonds,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, money market funds and
mutual funds.

The Long-Term Investment Pool is a unitized investment pool consisting of gifted endowment
funds of the university, gifted endowment funds of the OSU Foundation, and quasi-endowment
funds which are internally designated funds that are to function as endowments. The Long-
Term Investment Pool operates with a long-term investment goal of preserving and
maintaining the real purchasing power of the principal while allowing for the generation of a
predictable stream of annual distribution. The university's Board of Trustees approved the
following thematic asset classes, allocation ranges and benchmarks for the Long-Term
Investment Pool:

34 The Ohio State University

253



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Asset Class Range Benchmark
Global Equities 40-80% MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI)
Global Credit 10-50% Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index
Real Assets 5-20% U.S. Consumer Price Index (CPI) + 5%

The Global Equities category includes domestic equity, international equity, emerging market
equity, hedged funds and private equity. The Global Credit category includes global fixed
income and relative value/macro, credit oriented managers and private credit. The Real Assets
category includes real estate and infrastructure funds.

Other Long-Term Investments are non-unitized investments that relate primarily to gift
arrangements between donors and the OSU Foundation. Included in this category are
charitable remainder trust assets invested in mutual funds, OSU Foundation interests in
unitrust, gift annuities, annuity trust and pooled income agreements, life insurance policies for
which the OSU Foundation has been named owner and beneficiary, and certain real estate
investments. Also included in this category are other private equity investments and
investments in certain organizations that are affiliated with the OSU Health System.

U. S. Government and Agency securities are invested through trust agreements with banks
who keep the securities in their safekeeping accounts at the Federal Reserve Bank in "book
entry" form. The banks internally designate the securities as owned by or pledged to the
university. Common stocks, corporate bonds and money market instruments are invested
through trust agreements with banks who keep the investments in their safekeeping accounts
at Northern Trust and BNY Mellon in "book entry" form. The banks internally designate the
securities as owned by or pledged to the university.

The cash and cash equivalents amount represents cash held in the Long-Term Investment
Pool by various investment managers. Such amounts were generated by gifts received
throughout the fiscal year and sales of investments in the Long-Term Investment
Pool. Subsequently, the cash and cash equivalents will be used to purchase long-term
investments.

2017 Financial Report 35

254



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Total university investments by major category for the primary institution at June 30, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

Primary Institution

2017 2016
Temporary Investments S 1,645,681 |$ 1,508,854
Long-Term Investment Pool:
Gifted Endowment - University 1,062,321 977,173
Gifted Endowment - OSU Foundation 877,261 763,332
Quasi Endowment - Operating 1,299,779 1,203,959
Quasi Endowment - Designated 1,014,098 672,098
Total Long-Term Investment Pool 4,253,459 3,616,562
Securities Lending Collateral Investments 15,949 27,589
Other Long-Term Investments 143,638 132,971
Total Investments S 6,058,727 |S 5,285,976

36 The Ohio State University

255



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

Total university investments by investment type for the primary institution at June 30, 2017

are as follows:

Primary Institution

Other Securities
Temporary Long-Term Long-Term Lending Collateral
Investments Investment Pool Investments Investments Total
U.S. equity S - S 214,328 S - S - S 214,328
International equity - 160,680 - - 160,680
Equity mutual funds 84,674 536,226 23,810 - 644,710
U.S. government obligations 162,870 367,909 352 - 531,131
U.5. government agency
obligations 130,557 - - 130,557
Repurchase agreements - - - - -
Corporate bonds and notes 1,073,319 - - - 1,073,319
Bond mutual funds 88,106 - 16,831 - 104,937
Foreign government bonds 30,212 - - - 30,212
Real assets 8,347 674,729 25,930 - 709,006
Hedge funds - 1,399,392 - - 1,399,392
Private equity - 588,281 59,047 - 647,328
Commercial paper 46,028 - - - 46,028
Cash and cash equivalents - 311,914 - - 311,914
Other 21,568 - 17,668 - 39,236
Securities Lending Collateral Assets:
Repurchase agreements - - - 10,621 10,621
Variable rate notes - - - 890 890
Commercial paper - - 1,410 1,410
Certificates of deposit - - 3,044 3,044
Cash and other adjustments - - - (16) (16)
$ 1645681 S 4,253,459 S 143,638 S 15,949 $ 6,058,727

256

2017 Financial Report 37



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Total university investments by investment type for the primary institution at June 30, 2016 are
as follows:

Primary Institution

Other Securities
Temporary Long-Term Long-Term Lending Collateral
Investments Investment Pool Investments Investments Total
U.S. equity - S 366,931 $ - S - S 366,931
International equity - 112,199 - - 112,199
Equity mutual funds 81,371 158,936 23,407 - 263,714
U.S. government obligations 167,430 5,094 2,745 - 175,269
U.S. government agency
obligations 120,992 - - 120,992
Repurchase agreements 2,200 - - - 2,200
Corporate bonds and notes 983,399 214 - 983,613
Bond mutual funds 83,697 - 17,801 - 101,498
Foreign government bonds 6,819 - - - 6,819
Real assets 10,184 644,415 16,705 - 671,304
Hedge funds - 1,444,636 - - 1,444,636
Private equity - 514,100 56,409 - 570,509
Commercial paper 40,746 - - - 40,746
Cash and cash equivalents - 370,251 - - 370,251
Other 12,016 - 15,690 - 27,706
Securities Lending Collateral Assets:
Repurchase agreements 7,317 7,317
Variable rate notes - 17,774 17,774
Commercial paper - - 521 521
Certificates of deposit - - - -
Cash and other adjustments - - - 1,977 1,977
1,508,854 § 3,616,562 S 132,971 $ 27,589 $§ 5,285,976

The components of the net investment income and loss for the primary institution are as

follows:

Net Increase

(Decrease)

Interest and in Fair Value Net Investment

Dividends of Investments Income (Loss)

Temporary Investments S 41,653 S (496)|S 41,157
Long-Term Investment Pool 78,984 472,758 551,742
Other Long-Term Investments 3,058 4,744 7,802
Total 2017 S 123,695 |S 477,006 |$ 600,701
Total 2016 $ 94,799 [$  (105,312)$ (10,513)

38 The Ohio State University

257



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Information on Fair Value of Investments

Fair value is defined in the accounting standards as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Assets and liabilities reported at fair value are organized into a hierarchy
based on the levels of inputs observable in the marketplace that are used to measure fair
value.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and take into account the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions. Inputs may include
price information, credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors specific to the financial
instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources. In
contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s assumptions about how market participants
would value the financial instrument.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following describes the hierarchy of
inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation methodologies used for financial
instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Level 1 — Prices based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible for
identical assets or liabilities are classified as Level 1. Directly held equity securities, registered
bond and equity mutual funds, and other miscellaneous investments classified in Level 1 are
valued using prices quoted in active markets that the custodian and university have the ability
to access.

Level 2 — Quoted prices in the markets that are not considered to be active, dealer quotations
or alternative pricing sources for similar assets or liabilities for which all significant inputs are
observable, either directly or indirectly, are classified as Level 2. Level 2 investments include
US government agencies and obligations, corporate bonds, municipal bonds, foreign
government bonds, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, and other debt related
investments. The evaluated prices may be determined by factors which include, but are not
limited to, market quotations, vields, maturities, call features, ratings, institutional size trading
in similar groups of securities and developments related to specific securities.

Level 3 - Investments classified as Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all. The inputs into the determination of fair value of these investments
are based upon the best information in the circumstance and may require significant
management judgment. Investments included in Level 3 consist primarily of the university’s
ownership in real estate, limited partnerships and equity positions in private companies.

Net Asset Value (NAV) — Investments whose fair value is measured at NAV are excluded from
the fair value hierarchy. Investments in non-governmental entities that do not have a readily
determinable fair value may be valued at NAV if the NAV is determined in accordance with the
fair value measurement principles provided by the FASB standards relevant to investment
companies. Interest in investment funds with a NAV reported under an alternative basis are
reflected as Level 3 investments. Investments measured at NAV consist mainly of non-publicly

2017 Financial Report 39

258



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

traded mutual funds, hedge funds, private equity, and other alternative funds. These assets
are valued by the associated external investment manager/general partner and reviewed by
the university using the most recent audited and unaudited financial statements available.

Not Leveled — Cash is not measured at fair value and, thus, is not subject to the fair value
disclosure requirements. Cash not subject to such requirements amounted to $76,474 and
$179,177 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Investments by fair value category for the primary institution at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

U.S. equity

International equity

Equity mutual funds

U.S. government obligations

U.S. government agency
obligations

Corporate bonds and notes

Bond mutual funds

Foreign government bonds

Real assets

Hedge funds

Private equity

Commercial paper

Cash equivalents

Other

Securities Lending Collateral Assets:

Repurchase agreements
Variable rate notes
Commercial paper
Certificates of deposit
Other adjustments

Securities not leveled in investment portfolio:

Cash

40 The Ohio State University

Primary Institution

Quoted Prices Significant Significant NAV as
in Active Other Observable Unobservable Practical
Markets Inputs Inputs Expedient Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (NAV) Fair Value
$ 214,328 $ - § - - $ 214328
160,680 - = - 160,680
164,075 - - 480,635 644,710
(138) 531,269 - - 531,131
- 130,557 - - 130,557
- 1,072,324 995 - 1,073,319
104,937 - - - 104,937
- 30,212 - - 30,212
18,592 - 141,757 548,657 709,006
- - - 1,399,392 1,399,392
- - 41,084 606,244 647,328
- 46,028 - - 46,028
235,440 - - - 235,440
- 21,237 17,999 - 39,236
- 10,621 - - 10,621
890 - - 890
1,410 - 1,410
- 3,044 - - 3,044
- (16) - - (16)
s 897,914 § 1,847,576 $ 201,835 S 3,034,928 $ 5,982,253
S 76,474 S - S - - S 76,474

259



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Investments by fair value category for the primary institution at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Primary Institution

Quoted Prices Significant Significant NAV as
in Active Other Observable  Unobservable Practical
Markets Inputs Inputs Expedient Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (NAV) Fair Value
U.S. equity S 366,931 S - S - S - S 366,931
International equity 112,199 - - - 112,199
Equity mutual funds 104,779 - - 158,935 263,714
U.S. government obligations - 175,269 - - 175,269
U.S. government agency
obligations - 120,992 - - 120,992
Repurchase agreements - 2,200 - - 2,200
Corporate bonds and notes - 980,094 3,519 - 983,613
Bond mutual funds 101,498 - - - 101,498
Foreign government bonds - 6,819 - - 6,819
Real assets 15,182 - 125,357 530,765 671,304
Hedge funds - - - 1,444,636 1,444,636
Private equity - - 23,806 546,703 570,509
Commercial paper - 40,746 - - 40,746
Cash equivalents 191,074 - - - 191,074
Other - 11,685 16,021 - 27,706
Securities Lending Collateral Assets:
Repurchase agreements - 7,317 - - 7,317
Variable rate notes - 17,199 575 - 17,774
Commercial paper - 521 - - 521
Certificates of deposit - - - - -
Other adjustments - 1,977 - - 1,977

S 891,663 $ 1,364,819 $ 169,278 S 2,681,039 $ 5,106,799

Securities not leveled in investment portfolio:
Cash $ 179,177 § - 8 - 5 - 8 179,177

2017 Financial Report 41

260



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Additional Information on Investments Measured at the NAV

Additional information on fair values, unfunded commitments, remaining life and redemption
for investments measured at the NAV for the primary institution at June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Unfunded Remaining
Fair Value Commitments Life Redemption Notice Period Redemption Restrictions

Equity mutual funds - S 480,635 $ - Nolimit 1 to 30 days None

non-public international
Hedge funds - absolute 1,399,392 - No limit 30 to 90 day notice periods Lock-up provisions ranging from none

return, credit, long/short equities to 2 years; side pockets on a few funds
Private equity - private credit, 606,244 648,769 1-10 years Partnerships ineligible for Not redeemable

buyouts, venture, secondary redemption
Real assets - natural resources, 548,657 224,711 1-10 years Partnerships ineligible for Mot redeemable

real estate, intrastructure redemption

s 3,034,928 S 873,480

Additional Risk Disclosures for Investments

GASB Statements No. 3 and 40 require certain additional disclosures related to the liquidity,
interest-rate, custodial, credit and foreign currency risks associated with deposits and
investments.

Liquidity risk — The university’s private equity and real asset investments are illiquid and
subject to redemption restrictions in accordance with their respective governing documents.
Such governing documents do not provide for the university to exit these investments until their
respective terms have ended.

Interest-rate risk — Interest-rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Investments with interest rates that are fixed for longer

periods are likely to be subject to more variability in their fair values as a result of future
changes in interest rates.

42 The Ohio State University

261



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

The maturities of the university’s interest-bearing investments for the primary institution at June
30, 2017 are as follows:

Primary Institution

Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Value Less than 1 1to5 6 to 10 More than 10

U.S. government obligations S 531,131 $ 395,780 $ 107,902 $ 27,449 §$ -
U.S. government agency

obligations 130,557 12,681 55,288 16,468 46,120
Commercial paper 46,028 46,028 - - -
Corporate bonds 1,073,319 301,723 661,802 55,156 54,638
Bond mutual funds 104,937 4,862 58,284 28,182 13,609
Other governmental bonds 21,237 4,803 13,216 175 3,043
Foreign governmental bonds 30,212 22,666 7,546 - -
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase agreements 10,621 10,621 - - -

Certificates of deposit 3,044 3,044 - - -

Commercial paper 1,410 1,410 - - -

Variable rate notes 890 890 - - -
Total S 1,953,386 S 804,508 S 904,038 § 127,430 S 117,410

The maturities of the university’s interest-bearing investments for the primary institution at June
30, 2016 are as follows:

Primary Institution
Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Value Less than 1 l1to5 6to 10 More than 10

U.S. government obligations S 175,269 § 18,829 $ 157,613 § (1,173) S -
U.S. government agency

obligations 120,992 14,980 62,941 17,088 25,983
Repurchase agreements 2,200 2,200 - - -
Commercial paper 40,746 40,746 - - -
Corporate bonds 983,613 270,225 634,723 35,072 43,593
Bond mutual funds 101,498 (1,011) 66,138 27,106 9,265
Other governmental bonds 11,685 3,237 7,739 - 709
Foreign governmental bonds 6,819 1,726 5,093 - -
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase agreements 7,317 7,317 - - -

Commercial paper 521 521 - - -

Variable rate notes 17,774 17,774 - - -
Total S 1,468,434 S 376,544 § 934,247 §$ 78,093 $ 79,550

2017 Financial Report 43

262



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Custodial credit risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
custodian, university investments may not be recovered. It is the policy of the university to
hold investments in custodial accounts, and the securities are registered solely in the name of
the university. All investments are transacted with nationally reputable brokerage firms offering
protection by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.

Credit risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will
not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the investment. Credit quality information — as
commonly expressed in terms of the credit ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations such as Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings —
provides a current depiction of potential variable cash flows and credit risk.

Per GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, an amendment to
GASB Statement No. 3, securities with split ratings, or a different rating assignment, are
disclosed using the rating indicative of the greatest degree of risk.

The credit ratings of the university’s interest-bearing investments for the primary institution at
June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Primary
Total AAA Ay A BBB. BB B CCC cC C Not Rated

U.S. government

and agency obligations $ 661,688 5 4,828 5 615608 5 33,253 § - 5 - % - % - % - 5 -3 7,999
Corporate bonds 1,073,319 74,388 187,093 367,603 328,182 19,966 5,249 - - - 90,838
Bond mutual funds 104,937 69,995 5,424 18,060 8,080 1,474 619 1,272 - - 13
Foreign government bonds 30,212 3,080 2,126 12,724 2,043 - - - - - 10,239
Commercial paper 46,028 - - 10,949 - - - - - - 35,079
Other government bonds 21,237 1,325 9,964 5,259 3,688 - - - - - 1,001
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase agreements 10,621 - - 10,621

Certificates of deposit 3,044 - L 2,627 - - - - - - 417

Commercial paper 1,410 - 1,410 -

Variable rate notes 890 z 633 257 - - - - - - -
Total $ 1,953,386 5 153616 5 820,848 $ 452,142 $ 341,993 § 21440 5 5868 5 1272 § 5 $ 156,207

The credit ratings of the university’s interest-bearing investments for the primary institution at
June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Primary
Tatal AAR An A BB BB B e <4 [ Not Rated

U.S. government

and agency obligations 5 296,261 $ 289 § 292,392 & 2,518 § -5 - % - % - % - % - S 1,062
Repurchase agreements 2,200 - - - - - - - - 2,200
Corporate bonds 983,613 61,182 211,662 359,356 291,321 22,258 8313 238 - - 29,283
Bond mutual funds 101,498 62,906 7,385 16,059 12,540 870 281 1 - 1,320 136
Foreign government bonds 6,819 2,322 2,731 - 1,255 - - - 511
Commercial paper 40,746 - - - - - - - - - 40,746
Other government bonds 11,685 - 4,726 5,235 275 - 1,004 - - - 445
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase agreements 7,317 - 7,317

Commercial paper 521 521 - - -

Variable rate notes 17,774 2,015 6,029 9,730 - - - - - - -
Total S  1,468434 $ 129,235 S 524,925 S 392,898 $ 305391 $ 23,128 $ 9,598 $ 239 § - S 132 S 81,700

44  The Ohio State University

263



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Concentration of credit risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with a lack
of diversification, such as having substantial investments in a few individual issuers, thereby
exposing the university to greater risks resulting from adverse economic, political, regulatory,
geographic or credit developments.

There is no investment in issuers other than U. S. government guaranteed securities that
represents five percent or more of investments held at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016.

Foreign currency risk — Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or deposit.

2017 Financial Report 45

264



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

At June 30, 2017, exposure to foreign currency risk for the primary institution is as follows:

Primary Institution

Equity Bond Corporate Foreign Partnerships
Common Mutual Mutual Bonds and Government and Hedge
Stock Funds Funds Notes Bonds Funds

Australian dollar S 1,557 $ 12,026 $ 486 S - S - S 4,054
Bangladeshi taka - 544 - - - -
Brazilian real 2,473 7,196 183 - - -
Canadian dollar 11,022 4,644 (30) - - -
Chilean peso (1) 2,256 - - - -
Chinese yuan - 2,225 3 - - -
Columbian peso - 1,906 - - -
Czech Republic

koruna - 1,216 - - 2,185 -
Danish krone 2,891 341 8 8,543 - -
Egyptian pound - 22 - - - -
Euro 49,766 45,438 182 4,023 - 96,881
Great Britain pound

sterling 27,369 66,843 114 2,638 - 30,577
Hong Kong dollar 10,858 16,146 17 - - -
Hungarian forint - 56 - - - -
Indian rupee (5) 4,793 139 - - -
Indonesian rupiah (1) 933 141 - - -
Israeli shekel - 74 - - - -
Japanese yen 28,717 55,177 34 - 15,099 -
Kuwaiti dinar - 1,910 - - - -
Malaysian ringgit - 1,908 69 - - -
Mexican peso (2) 4,767 274 (61) - -
New Taiwan dollar (8) 6,438 (174) - -
New Turkish lira - 2,535 232 - -
New Zealand dollar - 27 (289) - - -
Norwegian krone 3,505 1,745 50 - - -
Pakistan rupee - 4,823 - - -
Peruvian nuevo sol - 6 71 - -
Philippine peso - 1,348 - - -
Polish zloty (7) 1,048 - - -
Qatarian rial - 85 - - -
Romanian new leu - 2,887 - - -
Russian ruble (2) 33 146 - - -
Singapore dollar - 7,978 (625) - - -
South African rand (4) 5,560 6 - - -
South Korean won 3,284 4,839 (183) - - -
Sri Lanka rupee - 116 - - - -
Swedish krona 773 4,711 273 - - -
Swiss franc 18,495 15,004 (262) - - 13,860
Thailand bhat - 3,232 (3) - - -
UAE dirham - 1,137 - - - -

Total $ 160,680 $ 293,973 $ 862 S 15,143 §$ 17,284 § 145,372

46 The Ohio State University

265



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

At June 30, 2016, exposure to foreign currency risk for the primary institution is as follows:

Australian dollar
Bangladeshi taka
Brazilian real
Canadian dollar
Chilean peso
Chinese yuan
Columbian peso
Czech Republic

koruna
Danish krone
Egyptian pound
Euro
Great Britain pound

sterling
Hong Kong dollar
Hungarian forint
Indian rupee
Indonesian rupiah
Israeli shekel
Japanese yen
Kuwaiti dinar
Malaysian ringgit
Mexican peso
New Taiwan dollar
New Turkish lira
New Zealand dollar
Norwegian krone
Pakistan rupee
Philippine peso
Polish zloty
Romanian new leu
Russian ruble
Singapore dollar
South African rand
South Korean won
Sri Lanka rupee
Swedish krona
Swiss franc
Thailand bhat
UAE dirham

Total

Primary Institution

Equity Bond Corporate Foreign Partnerships

Common Mutual Mutual Bonds and Government and Hedge
Stock Funds Funds Notes Bonds Funds

S 1,005 6,759 $ (60) $ - - S 11,493

- 605 - - - -

315 6,425 298 - - -

7,474 1,111 6 - - -

- 1,520 - - - -

- 342 (280) - - -

- 628 - - - -

- 974 - - - -

1,110 251 (3) - - -

- 30 - 3 - .

35,254 23,712 (456) 1,597 - 80,657

22,789 36,297 (293) 190 - 19,414

5,104 14,562 18 - - -

- 38 - - - -

- 3,986 3 - - -

- 323 5 - - -

- 82 - - - .

19,823 26,559 (55) - - -

- 443 - - - -

- 1,163 - - - -

- 1,279 130 - - -

- 4,777 (240) - - -

- 1,166 - - - -

- 39 4 - - -

1,529 1,130 1 - - -

- 1,818 - - - -

- 233 - - -

- 559 - - - -

- 1,810 - - - -

- - 150 - - -

- 6,925 (483) - - -

- 5,525 3 - - -

- 4,324 (13) - - -

- 345 - - - -

1,723 1,315 222 - - -

16,073 6,247 (218) - - 7,968

- 774 - - - -

- 107 - - - -

S 112,199 164,183 $ (1,261) $ 1,787 - S 119,532

266

2017 Financial Report 47



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Securities Lending

The university has engaged in a securities lending program through its custodian bank
of the Long-Term Investment Pool. Securities loaned at June 30, 2017 were
comprised completely of equities, and these loans were secured by collateral in the
form of cash, equities, U.S. government obligations, and foreign government/private
debt. All loans must be secured by collateral amounting to no less than 102% of the
current fair value of domestic securities loaned and no less than 105% of the current
fair value of foreign securities loaned.

As of the financial statements’ date, there was no credit risk on securities loaned due
to the fair value of the collateral held being greater than the fair value of securities on
loan to each individual broker. The university, the custodian, and the borrower each
maintain the right to terminate a loan. Upon maturity or termination of a loan
agreement, the custodian is contractually obligated to indemnify the university if the
borrowers fail to return loaned securities and if liquidation of the collateral is insufficient
to replace the value of the securities loaned. Noncash collateral cannot be pledged or
sold by the university without a borrower’s default. While earning fees received by the
university during the loan period, cash collateral is simultaneously invested in short
term, highly liquid securities in order to further increase interest earned while also
matching a weighted average maturity of loans which is not to exceed 60 days.

As of June 30, 2017, securities loaned by the university amounted to a fair value of
$26,267 and were secured by collateral in the amount of $27,745. The portion of this
collateral that was received in cash amounted to $15,949 and is reflected within the
university’s statement of net position as a current asset and a corresponding current
liability.

As of June 30, 2016, securities loaned by the university amounted to a fair value of
$38,166 and were secured by collateral in the amount of $40,139. The portion of this
collateral that was received in cash amounted to $27,589 and is reflected within the
university’s statement of net position as a current asset and a corresponding current
liability.

48 The Ohio State University

267



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

NOTE 4 — ACCOUNTS, NOTES AND PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable for the primary institution at June 30, 2017 and 2016 consist of the
following:

Primary Institution

2017 2016

Gross patient receivables - OSU Health System S 1,089,251 |$ 1,057,506
Grant and contract receivables 91,684 88,725
Tuition and fees receivable 20,176 19,508
Receivables for departmental and auxiliary sales and services 52,415 47,934
State and federal receivables 9,239 7,223
Other receivables 9,440 409

Total receivables 1,272,205 1,221,305
Less: Allowances 696,330 708,674

Total receivables, net S 575,875 |$ 512,631

Allowances consist primarily of allowances for doubtful accounts and contractual adjustments
of patient receivables of the OSU Health System.

Notes receivable consist primarily of Perkins and health professions loans and are net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $18,445 and $17,500 at June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Federal capital contributions to the Perkins loan programs represent advances
which are ultimately refundable to the federal government.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Reporting for Non-exchange
Transactions, the university has recorded $110,849 in non-endowment pledges receivable and
a related allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,781 at June 30, 2017. The university recorded
$105,671 in non-endowment pledges receivable and a related allowance for doubtful accounts
of $4,804 at June 30, 2016.

Accounts receivable for the discretely presented component units at June 30, 2017 and 2016
consist of the following:
Discretely Presented
Component Units

2017 2016
Gross patient receivables - OSU Physicians S 101,787 |S 116,489
Other receivables 13,234 14,693
Total receivables 115,021 131,182
Less: Allowances for doubtful accounts 67,285 78,467
Total receivables, net S 47,736 |S 52,715

2017 Financial Report 49

268



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Allowances consist primarily of allowances for doubtful accounts and contractual adjustments
of patient receivables of OSU Physicians.

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the primary institution for the year ended June 30, 2017 is
summarized as follows:

Primary Institution

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 85,335 § 3,474 S 307 $ 88,502
Intangibles 18,413 - - 18,413
Construction in progress 103,555 63,155 - 166,710
Total non depreciable assets 207,303 66,629 307 273,625
Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 812,055 16,374 - 828,429
Buildings and fixed equipment 6,039,509 183,276 8,246 6,214,539
Movable equipment, furniture and software 1,374,200 138,473 59,928 1,452,745
Library books 183,389 5,109 492 188,006
Total 8,409,153 343,232 68,666 8,683,719
Less: Accumulated depreciation 3,764,023 374,615 64,878 4,073,760
Total depreciable assets, net 4,645,130 (31,383) 3,788 4,609,959
Capital assets, net S 4,852,433 $ 35,246 S 4,095 S 4,883,584

The increase in construction in progress of $63,155 in fiscal year 2017 represents the amount
of capital expenditures for new projects of $318,555, net of assets placed in service of
$255,400.

50 The Ohio State University

269



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Capital assets activity for the primary institution for the year ended June 30, 2016 is
summarized as follows:

Primary Institution

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 86,915 $ 3,319 § 4,899 S 85,335
Intangibles 18,413 - - 18,413
Construction in progress 332,346 (228,791) - 103,555
Total non depreciable assets 437,674 (225,472) 4,899 207,303
Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 730,346 81,709 - 812,055
Buildings and fixed equipment 5,607,541 441,277 9,309 6,039,509
Movable equipment, furniture and software 1,300,468 109,169 35,437 1,374,200
Library books 177,753 6,165 529 183,389
Total 7,816,108 638,320 45,275 8,409,153
Less: Accumulated depreciation 3,450,540 351,901 38,418 3,764,023
Total depreciable assets, net 4,365,568 286,419 6,857 4,645,130
Capital assets, net S 4,803,242 S 60,947 $ 11,756 § 4,852,433

The decrease in construction in progress of $228,791 in fiscal year 2016 represents the
amount of capital expenditures for new projects of $349,456, net of assets placed in service of
$578,247.

Capital assets activity for the discretely presented component units for the year ended June
30, 2017 is summarized as follows:

Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 21,122 S 6,354 S 1,745 $ 25,731
Intangibles - 52 - 52
Construction in progress 25,491 (10,325) - 15,166
Total non depreciable assets 46,613 (3,919) 1,745 40,949
Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 8,510 5,663 750 13,423
Buildings and fixed equipment 72,366 41,622 11,622 102,366
Movable equipment, furniture and software 50,281 2,611 22,318 30,574
Library books - - - -
Total 131,157 49,896 34,690 146,363
Less: Accumulated depreciation 59,805 7,138 1,798 65,145
Total depreciable assets, net 71,352 42,758 32,892 81,218
Capital assets, net S 117,965 S 38,839 S 34,637 S 122,167

2017 Financial Report 51

270



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Capital assets activity for the discretely presented component units for the year ended June
30, 2016 is summarized as follows:

Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 10,844 $ 20,881 S 10,603 $ 21,122
Intangibles - - - -
Construction in progress 582 24,909 - 25,491
Total non depreciable assets 11,426 45,790 10,603 46,613
Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 8,314 1,625 1,429 8,510
Buildings and fixed equipment 67,551 8,101 3,286 72,366
Movable equipment, furniture and software 48,398 2,662 779 50,281
Library books - - - -
Total 124,263 12,388 5,494 131,157
Less: Accumulated depreciation 55,778 6,425 2,398 59,805
Total depreciable assets, net 68,485 5,963 3,096 71,352
Capital assets, net S 79,911 $ 51,753 $ 13,699 $ 117,965

NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses for the primary institution at June 30, 2017 and 2016
consist of the following:

Primary Institution

2017 2016
Payables to vendors for supplies and services S 303,026 |S 333,524
Accrued compensation and benefits 125,049 90,906
Retirement system contributions payable 49,572 45,118
Other accrued expenses 47,107 (332)
Total payables and accrued expenses S 524,754 |S 469,216

NOTE 7 — DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

Deposits and advance payments for goods and services for the primary institution at June 30,
2017 and 2016 consist of the following:

52 The Ohio State University

271



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Primary Institution

2017 2016

Current deposits and advance payments:
Tuition and fees S 40,002 |S 40,119
Departmental and auxiliary sales and services 64,546 75,686
Affinity agreements 5,068 7,901
Grant and contract advances 101,307 78,329
Other deposits and advance payments 12,957 14,337
Total current deposits and advance payments S 223,880 |S 216,372
Other non-current deposits and advance payments: S 73,289 lS 79,538

NOTE 8 — SELF-INSURANCE ACCRUALS

The university maintains self-insurance programs for professional medical malpractice,
employee health insurance and workers’ compensation. Information on each of these
programs is provided below.

Medical Malpractice

The university has established trusteed self-insurance funds for professional medical
malpractice liability claims with a $4,000 limit per occurrence and $18,000 annual aggregate.
The university self-insurance funds have insurance in excess of $4,000 per occurrence
through Oval Limited, a blended component unit of the university. Effective July 1, 2016, Oval
Limited provides coverage with limits of $85,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate.

Previous coverage levels for Oval Limited are as follows:

Gross Oval Limit
(Occurrence and Annual

Accident Period for Oval Aggregate)
7/1116 — 6/30/17 $85,000
71115 - 6/30/16 $75,000
7/1/08 — 6/30/15 $55,000
7/1/06 — 6/30/08 $40,000
7/1/05 — 6/30/06 $35,000
7/1/02—6/30/05 $25,000
7/1/197 — 6/30/02 $15,000

9/30/94 — 6/30/97 $10,000

The limits are in excess of underlying policies with limits of $4,000 per occurrence and $18,000
in the aggregate. A portion of the risks written by Oval Limited to date is reinsured by four
reinsurance companies. Oval Limited retains 50% of the first $15,000 of risk and cedes the
remainder to Berkley Medical Excess Underwriters (rated A+ by A.M. Best). The next $20,000
is fully ceded to Lexington Insurance Company (rated A by A.M. Best). The next $20,000 is
fully ceded to Endurance Specialty Insurance Ltd. (rated A by A.M. Best). Above that, Oval

2017 Financial Report 53

272



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Limited cedes the remaining $20,000 of risk to Medical Protective (rated A++ by A.M. Best).
The estimated liability and the related contributions to the trustee fund are based upon an
independent actuarial determination as of June 30, 2017. OSUP participates in the university
self-insurance fund for professional medical malpractice liability claims.

The university’s estimate of professional malpractice liability includes provisions for known
claims and actuarially determined estimates of incurred but not reported claims and incidents.
This liability at June 30, 2017 of the anticipated future payments on gross claims is estimated
at its present value of $51,626 discounted at an estimated rate of 3.0% (university funds) and
an additional $7,297 discounted at an estimated rate of 3.0% (Oval Limited).

Although actual experience upon the ultimate disposition of the claims may vary from this
estimate, the self-insurance fund assets of $184,849 (which primarily consist of bond and
equity mutual funds, money market funds and U.S. treasury notes) are more than the recorded
liability at June 30, 2017, and the surplus of $111,328 is included in unrestricted net position.

At June 30, 2016, the anticipated future payments on gross claims was estimated at its present
vaiue of $57,873 discounted at an estimated rate of 3% (university funds) and an additionai
$26,927 discounted at an estimated rate of 3% (Oval Limited). The self-insurance fund assets
of $179,198 (which primarily consist of bond and equity mutual funds, money market funds
and U.S. treasury notes) were more than the recorded liability at June 30, 2016, and the

surplus of $94,398 was included in unrestricted net position.

Employee Health Insurance

The university is also self-insured for employee health insurance. As of June 30, 2017 and
2016, $35,849 and $39,096, respectively is recorded as a liability relating to both claims
received but not paid and estimates of claims incurred but not yet reported.

Workers’ Compensation
Effective January 1, 2013, the university became self-insured for workers’ compensation. As
of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, $20,498 and $19,127 are recorded as a liability

relating to both claims received but not paid and estimates of claims incurred but not yet
reported.

54  The Ohio State University

273



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Changes in reported self-insurance liabilities for the primary institution since June 30, 2015
result from the following activities:

Malpractice Health Workers' Compensation
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Liability at beginning of fiscal year S 84,800 $ 98,578 $ 39,096 $ 37,375 S 19,127 $ 15,308
Current year provision for losses (10,307) (9,128) 325,339 343,904 (11,409) (5,492)
Claim payments (970) (4,650) (328,586)  (342,183) 12,780 9,311
Balance at fiscal year end S 73,523 $ 84,800 $ 35,849 $ 39,096 $ 20,498 S 19,127

NOTE 9 — DEBT

The university may finance the construction, renovation and acquisition of certain facilities
through the issuance of debt obligations, which may include general receipts bonds,
certificates of participation, commercial paper, capital lease obligations and other borrowings.
Debt activity for the primary institution for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Primary Institution

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Notes:
Wosu 5 2,303 |5 - s 159 |5 2,144 |5 159
OH Air Quality Note Series A 3,438 - 407 3,031 413
OH Air Quality Note Series B 2,340 - - 2,340 -
St. Stephens Church Note 2,802 - 73 2,729 76
General Receipts Bonds - Fixed Rate:
2008A, due serially through 2028 110,330 - 15,820 94,510 7,340
20104, due serially through 2020 117,190 - 38,030 79,160 38,700
2010C, due 2040 654,785 - - 654,785 -
2010D, due serially through 2032 84,625 - - 84,625
2011, due 2111 500,000 - - 500,000 -
2012A, due 2030 82,870 - 7,890 74,980 8,230
2012B, due 2033 17,135 - 1,800 15,335 1,820
2014A, due serially through 2044 133,795 - 2,235 131,560 2,315
20164, due serially through 2111 600,000 - 600,000 -
20168, due serially through 2030 28,545 - 2,610 25,935 2,680
Special Purpose General Receipts Bonds - Fixed Rate:
2013A, due 2043 337,955 - - 337,955
General Receipts Bonds - Variable Rate:
1997, due serially through 2027 17,160 - - 17,160 17,160
199981, due serially through 2029 10,765 - - 10,765 10,765
2001, due serially through 2032 53,035 - - 53,035 53,035
2003C, due serially through 2031 51,975 - 2,175 49,800 49,800
20058, due serially through 2035 71,575 - - 71,575 71,575
2008B, due serially through 2028 91,925 - 5,900 86,025 86,025
2010E, due serially through 2035 150,000 - - 150,000 150,000
20148, due serially through 2044 150,000 - - 150,000 150,000
Capital Lease Obligations 4,547 6,430 2,429 8,548 1,891
3,279,095 6,430 79,528 3,205,997 651,984
Unamortized Bond Premiums 94,165 - 8,036 86,129 -
Total outstanding debt S 3,373,260 |$ 6,430 | 87,564 |5 3,292,126 |5 651,984

2017 Financial Report 55

274



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

Debt activity for the primary institution for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Notes:
Wosu
OH Air Quality Note Series A
OH Air Quality Note Series B
St. Stephens Church Note
General Receipts Bonds - Fixed Rate:
20054, due serially through 2035
20084, due serially through 2028
2010A, due serially through 2020
2010C, due 2040
2010D, due serially through 2032
2011, due 2111
20124, due 2030
2012B, due 2033
20144, due serially through 2044
2016A, due serially through 2111
20168, due serially through 2030
Special Purpose General Receipts Bonds - Fixed Rate:
2013A, due 2043
General Receipts Bonds - Variable Rate:
1997, due serially through 2027
1999B1, due serially through 2029
2001, due serially through 2032
2003C, due serially through 2031
2005B, due serially through 2035
2008B, due serially through 2028
2010E, due serially through 2035
2014B, due serially through 2044
Capital Lease Obligations

Unamortized Bond Premiums
Total outstanding debt

Primary Institution

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
$ 2,462 |5 - s 159 |$ 2,303 159
3,839 - 401 3,438 407
2,340 - - 2,340 -
2,871 - 69 2,802 73
36,040 - 36,040 - -
124,165 - 13,835 110,330 7,070
146,040 - 28,850 117,190 38,030
654,785 - - 654,785 -
84,625 - - 84,625 -
500,000 - - 500,000 -
90,500 7,630 82,870 7,890
18,920 - 1,785 17,135 1,800
135,985 - 2,190 133,795 2,235

- 600,000 - 600,000 -

- 30,875 2,330 28,545 2,610
337,955 - - 337,955 -
17,160 - - 17,160 17,160
10,765 - - 10,765 10,765
53,035 - - 53,035 53,035
51,975 - - 51,975 51,975
71,575 - - 71,575 71,575
91,925 - - 91,925 91,925
150,000 - - 150,000 150,000
150,000 - - 150,000 150,000

6,389 - 1,842 4,547 1,709

2,743,351 630,875 95,131 3,279,095 658,418
98,658 4,745 9,238 94,165 -

$ 2,842,009 |$ 635,620 |$ 104,369 |$ 3,373,260 658,418

Debt activity for the discretely presented component units for the year ended June 30, 2017

is as follows:

Notes:
OSU Physicians - Series 2013 Health Care
Facilities Revenue Bond, due through 2035
0OSU Physicians - Term Loan Payable, due 2023
Campus Partners - Columbus Foundation Note Payable
Campus Partners - Edwards TIF Note Payable
Capital Lease Obligations
Total outstanding debt

56 The Ohio State University

Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
s 13,659 [$ - S 635 [$ 13,024 601
1,887 - 273 1,614 261
- 1,979 83 1,896 84
- 150 - 150 -
5 15,546 |5 2,129 |5 991 |5 16,684 946

275



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Debt activity for the discretely presented component units for the year ended June 30, 2016
is as follows:

Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Notes:
OSU Physicians - Series 2013 Health Care
Facilities Revenue Bond, due through 2035 S 14,228 [$ - s 569 |$ 13,659 |$ 811
OSU Physicians - Term Loan Payable, due 2023 2,136 - 249 1,887 -
Capital Lease Obligations 5 - 5 - -
Total outstanding debt S 16,369 [$ - s 823 |$ 15,546 |$ 811

Debt obligations are generally callable by the university, bear interest at fixed and variable
rates ranging from 0% to 6% and mature at various dates through 2111. Maturities and interest
on debt obligations for the next five years and in five-year periods for the primary institution are
as follows:

Primary Institution

Principal Interest Total
2018 S 651,984 S 133,483 S 785,467
2019 49,455 126,190 175,645
2020 36,441 124,307 160,748
2021 34,969 122,654 157,623
2022 36,060 121,084 157,144
2023-2027 191,588 578,941 770,529
2028-2032 150,524 539,178 689,702
2033-2037 103,653 511,595 615,248
2038-2042 790,153 398,346 1,188,499
2043-2047 411,170 235,203 646,373
2048-2052 - 170,600 170,600
2053-2057 250,000 165,540 415,540
2058-2062 120,000 120,000
2063-2067 120,000 120,000
2068-2072 120,000 120,000
2073-2077 120,000 120,000
2078-2082 120,000 120,000
2083-2087 120,000 120,000
2088-2092 120,000 120,000
2093-2097 120,000 120,000
2098-2102 120,000 120,000
2103-2107 120,000 120,000
2108-2112 500,000 96,000 596,000

$ 3205997 $ 4,523,121 $ 7,729,118

2017 Financial Report 57

276



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Maturities and interest on debt obligations for the next five years and in five-year periods for
the discretely presented component units are as follows:

Discretely Presented Component Units

Principal Interest Total

2018 S 946 S 341 S 1,287
2019 1,114 320 1,434
2020 986 299 1,285
2021 2,555 273 2,828
2022 938 243 1,181
2023-2027 3,744 871 4,615
2028-2032 3,861 482 4,343
2033-2037 2,540 87 2,627

S 16,684 S 2,916 S 19,600

General receipts bonds are backed by the unrestricted receipts of the university, excluding
certain items as described in the bond indentures.

The outstanding bond indentures do not require mandatory reserves for future payment of
principal and interest. However, the university has set aside $323,350 for future debt service
which is included in unrestricted net position.

The university has defeased various bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds into an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. The defeased
bonds for the primary institution are as follows:

Amount
Amount Outstanding at
Defeased June 30, 2017
General Receipts Bonds:

Series 2008A S 26,945 (S 20,750
Series 2010A 13,050 4,720
Series 2010D 3,710 3,710

S 43,705 |$ 29,180

Neither the outstanding indebtedness nor the related trust account assets for the above bonds
are included in the university’s financial statements.

58 The Ohio State University

277



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Special-Purpose General Receipts Bonds

In January 2013, the university issued $337,955 of Special Purpose General Receipts Bonds,
Series 2013A. These bonds are solely payable from, and secured by, a pledge of the gross
revenues of Special Purpose Revenue Facilities. Special Purpose Revenue Facilities are
defined in the Series 2013 Supplement as all housing and dining facilities and such auxiliary
facilities as shall constitute recreation facilities owned by the university. The bond indenture
agreement includes a debt covenant, requiring the university “to set rates, charges and fees
in each Fiscal Year so as to cause Special Purpose Pledged Revenues to be in an amount
not less than 1.10 times the aggregate debt service for the then-current Fiscal Year on all
Special Purpose General Receipts Obligations.” At June 30, 2017, the university is in
compliance with this covenant. Condensed financial information for the Special Purpose
Revenue Facilities is provided in Note 21.

Variable Rate Demand Bonds

Series 1997, 1999B1, 2001, 2003C, 2005B, 2008B, 2010E and 2014B variable rate demand
bonds bear interest at rates based upon yield evaluations at par of comparable securities. The
maximum interest rate allowable and the effective average interest rate from issue date to
June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Interest Rate Not Effective Average
Series: to Exceed Interest Rate
1997 12% 1.496%
1999B1 12% 1.278%
2001 12% 1.067%
2003C 12% 1.424%
2005B 12% 0.975%
2008B 12% 0.317%
2010E 8% 0.188%
2014B not specified 0.306%

At the discretion of the university, the interest rate on the bonds can be converted to a fixed
rate. The bonds may be redeemed by the university or sold by the bondholders to a
remarketing agent appointed by the university at any time prior to conversion to a fixed rate at
a price equal to the principal amount plus accrued interest.

The university’s variable rate demand bonds mature at various dates through 2044. GASB
Interpretation No. 1, Demand Bonds Issued by State and Local Governmental Entities,
provides guidance on the statement of net position classification of these bonds. Under GASB
Interpretation No. 1, outstanding principal balances on variable rate demand bonds may be
classified as non-current liabilities if the issuer has entered into a “take-out agreement” to
convert bonds “put” but not resold into some other form of long-term obligation. In the absence

2017 Financial Report 59

278



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

of such an agreement, the total outstanding principal balances for these bonds are required to
be classified as current liabilities.

Although it is the university’s intent to repay its variable rate demand bonds in accordance with
the maturities set forth in the bond offering circulars, the university does not have “take-out
agreements” in place per the GASB Interpretation No. 1 requirements. Accordingly, the
university has classified the total outstanding principal balances on its variable rate demand
bonds as current liabilities. The obligations totaled $588,360 and $596,435 at June 30, 2017
and 2016, respectively.

Capital Lease Obligations

Some university equipment items and vehicles are financed as capital leases. The original
cost and lease obligations related to these capital leases as of June 30, 2017 are $17,523 and
$8,548, respectively. The original cost and lease obligations related to these capital leases as
of June 30, 2016 are $13,338 and $4,547, respectively.

Capitalization of Interest

Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets is included in the cost of the asset
when capitalized. Total interest costs incurred for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
for the primary institution were $124,240 and $105,619, respectively. Of these amounts,
interest of $3,169 and $11,734 was capitalized in the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. The remaining amounts, $121,071 and $93,885 for the years ended June 30,
2017 and 2016, respectively, are reported as interest expense in the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position.

NOTE 10 — OPERATING LEASES

The university leases various buildings, office space, and equipment under operating lease
agreements. These facilities and equipment are not recorded as assets on the statement of
net position. The total rental expense under these agreements was $24,836 and $30,152 for

the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Future minimum payments for all significant operating leases with initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year as of June 30, 2017 are as follows:

60 The Ohio State University

279



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Primary Discretely Presented

Year Ending June 30, Institution Component Units

2018 S 18,870 S 1,894

2019 17,335 962

2020 16,621 715

2021 14,694 610

2022 14,060 552

2023-2027 50,321 1,576

2028-2032 29,529 124

2033-2037 2,360 -

2038-2042 836

2043-2047 1,077

2048-2052 1,068

2053-2057 1,368

2058-2062 1,368

2063 and beyond 1,083 -
Total minimum lease payments S 170,590 S 6,433

NOTE 11 — COMPENSATED ABSENCES
University employees earn vacation and sick leave on a monthly basis.

Classified civil service employees may accrue vacation benefits up to a maximum of three
years credit. Administrative and professional staff and faculty may accrue vacation benefits
up to a maximum of 240 hours. For all classes of employees, any earned but unused vacation
benefit is payable upon termination.

Sick leave may be accrued without limit. However, earned but unused sick leave benefits are
payable only upon retirement from the university with ten or more years of service with the
state. The amount of sick leave benefit payable at retirement is one fourth of the value of the
accrued but unused sick leave up to a maximum of 240 hours.

The university accrues sick leave liability for those employees who are currently eligible to
receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible
to receive such payments. This liability is calculated using the “termination payment method”
which is set forth in Appendix C, Example 4 of the GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for
Compensated Absences. Under the termination method, the university calculates a ratio, Sick
Leave Termination Cost per Year Worked, that is based on the university’s actual historical
experience of sick leave payouts to terminated employees. This ratio is then applied to the
total years-of-service for current employees.

2017 Financial Report 61

280



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Certain employees of the university (mostly classified civil service employees) receive
compensation time in lieu of overtime pay. Any unused compensation time must be paid to
the employee at termination or retirement.

NOTE 12 — OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liability activity for the primary institution for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Primary Institution

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Compensated absences S 171,012 5 18,808 | S 12,613 |5 177,207 |$ 12,613
Self-insurance accruals 143,023 316,403 329,556 129,870 48,631
Amounts due to third party payors 71,228 23,781 28,483 66,526 28,494
Obligations under life income agreements 33,225 2,567 1,700 34,092 3,619
Refundable advances for Federal Perkins loans 32,110 - 396 31,714 -
Other noncurrent liabilities 113,057 - 11,355 101,702 -
5 563,655 | 5 361,559 | 5 384,103 | $ 541,111 |$ 93,357

Other liability activity for the primary institution for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Primary Institution

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Compensated absences 5 166,356 | § 15,794 | § 11,138 | $ 171,012 |$ 11,138
Self-insurance accruals 151,261 338,595 346,833 143,023 48,407
Amounts due to third party payors 52,811 62,585 44,168 71,228 28,483
Obligations under life income agreements 28,944 7,721 3,440 33,225 3,949
Refundable advances for Federal Perkins loans 32,228 - 118 32,110 -
Other noncurrent liabilities 84,140 28,917 - 113,057 -
S 515,740 | S 453,612 | 5 405,697 | 5 563,655 |$ 91,977

NOTE 13 — RENTALS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The university is the lessor of certain land, buildings, office and retail space under operating
lease agreements. Future minimum rental income from non-cancelable operating leases for
the primary institution as of June 30, 2017 is as follows:

62 The Ohio State University

281



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ending June 30,

2018 S 4,868
2019 4,263
2020 3,710
2021 2,867
2022 2,449
2023-2027 8,659
2028-2032 3,991
2033-2037 3,043
2038-2042 1,868
2043-2047 158
2048-2052 53
Total minimum future rentals S 35,929

NOTE 14 — OPERATING EXPENSES BY OBJECT

In accordance with requirements set forth by the Ohio Board of Regents, the university reports
operating expenses by functional classification on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Other Changes in Net Position. Operating expenses by object for the primary institution for
the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows:

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Primary Institution

Compensation Supplies Scholarships
and and and
Benefits Services Fellowships Depreciation Total

Instruction S 888,236 S 118,175 § - $ - § 1,006,411
Separately budgeted research 340,784 156,724 - - 497,508
Public service 104,285 70,816 - - 175,101
Academic support 180,431 41,612 - - 222,043
Student services 84,593 23,448 - - 108,041
Institutional support 124,620 130,162 - - 254,782
Operation and maintenance of plant 35,143 59,544 - - 94,687
Scholarships and fellowships 7,263 1,697 121,109 - 130,069
Auxiliary enterprises 187,806 125,379 - - 313,185
OSU Health System 1,397,568 1,198,229 - - 2,595,797
Depreciation - - - 374,615 374,615

Total operating expenses S 3,350,729 $ 1,925,786 S 121,109 $ 374,615 $ 5,772,239

2017 Financial Report 63

282



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Primary Institution

Compensation Supplies Scholarships
and and and
Benefits Services Fellowships Depreciation Total

Instruction S 866,910 $ 127,377 S - S - S 994,287
Separately budgeted research 296,748 147,329 - - 444,077
Public service 90,729 69,552 - - 160,281
Academic support 169,078 38,610 - - 207,688
Student services 78,115 25,669 - - 103,784
Institutional support 117,693 109,464 - - 227,157
Operation and maintenance of plant 32,547 68,460 - 101,007
Scholarships and fellowships 6,308 2,189 112,465 - 120,962
Auxiliary enterprises 153,389 100,748 - - 254,137
0OSU Health System 1,231,265 1,019,765 - 2,251,030
Depreciation - - 351,901 351,901

Total operating expenses $ 3,042,782 S 1,709,163 S 112,465 § 351,901 $ 5,216,311

NOTE 15 — RETIREMENT PLANS

University employees are covered by one of three retirement systems. The university faculty
is covered by the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). Substantially all
other employees are covered by the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (OPERS).
Employees may opt out of STRS Ohio and OPERS and participate in the Alternative
Retirement Plan (ARP) if they meet certain eligibility requirements.

STRS Ohio and OPERS each offer three separate plans: 1) a defined benefit plan, 2) a defined
contribution plan and 3) a combined plan. Each of these three options is discussed in greater
detail in the following sections.

Defined Benefit Plans

STRS Ohio and OPERS offer statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plans. STRS Ohio and OPERS provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-
of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are
established by state statute and are calculated using formulas that include years of service
and final average salary as factors. Both STRS Ohio and OPERS issue separate, publicly
available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplemental
information. These reports may be obtained by contacting the two organizations.

64 The Ohio State University

283



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS Ohio OPERS, Attn: Finance Director

275 East Broad Street 277 East Town Street

Columbus, OH 43215-3371 Columbus, OH 43215-4642

(614) 227-4090 (614) 222-5601

(888) 227-7877 (800) 222-7377

www.strsoh.org www.opers.org/financial/reports.shtml#CAFR

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, employers participating in cost-sharing multiple-
employer plans are required to recognize a proportionate share of the collective net pension
liabilities of the plans. Although changes in the net pension liability generally are recognized
as pension expense in the current period, GASB 68 requires certain items to be deferred and
recognized as expense in future periods. Deferrals for differences between projected and
actual investment returns are amortized to pension expense over five years. Deferrals for
employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date are amortized in the following
period (one year). Other deferrals are amortized over the estimated remaining service lives of
both active and inactive employees (amortization periods range from 3 to 9 years).

The collective net pension liabilities of the retirement systems and the university's
proportionate share of these net pension liabilities as of June 30, 2017 are as follows:

STRS-Ohio OPERS Total
Net pension liability - all employers $ 33,473,014 S 22,652,226
Proportion of the net pension liability - university 4.5% 9.1%
Proportionate share of net pension liability $ 1,510,814 S 2,054,548 S 3,565,362

The collective net pension liabilities of the retirement systems and the university's
proportionate share of these net pension liabilities as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

STRS-Ohio OPERS Total
Net pension liability - all employers S 27,637,075 S$ 17,272,216
Proportion of the net pension liability - university 4.5% 9.0%
Proportionate share of net pension liability S 1,238470 $§ 1,556,156 S 2,794,626

2017 Financial Report 65

284



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for pensions were related

to the following sources as of June 30, 2017:

STRS-Ohio OPERS Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Differences between expected and actual experience S 61,044 3,296 $ 64,340
Changes in assumptions - 329,038 329,038
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 125,438 306,350 431,788
on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion of university contributions 921 1,163 2,084
University contributions subsequent to the 70,306 94,003 164,308
measurement date
Total S 257,709 733,850 $ 991,559
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Differences between expected and actual experience S - 16,279 S 16,279
Changes in proportion of university contributions - 63 63
Total S - 16,342 § 16,342

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for pensions were related

to the following sources as of June 30, 2016:

STRS-Ohio OPERS Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Differences between expected and actual experience S 56,459 $ 317 § 56,776
Net difference between projected and actual earnings - 461,637 461,637
on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion of university contributions 789 1,343 2,132
University contributions subsequent to the 67,106 88,058 155,164
measurement date
Total $ 124,354 $ 551,355 $ 675,709
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S 33,260 S 33,260
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 89,069 - 89,069
on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion of university contributions - 40 40
Total S 89,069 $ 33,300 $ 122,369

66 The Ohio State University

285



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Net deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense during the years ending June 30 as follows:

STRS-Ohio OPERS Total

2018 100,495 352,017 452,512
2019 30,189 266,590 296,779
2020 77,142 108,889 186,031
2021 49,883 (9,353) 40,530
2022 - (277) (277)
2023 and Thereafer - (358) (358)
Total $ 257,709 $ 717,508 $ 975,217

The following table provides additional details on the pension benefit formulas, contribution
requirements and significant assumptions used in the measurement of total pension liabilities
for the retirement systems.

2017 Financial Report 67

286



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS-Ohio OPERS
Statutory Ohio Revised Code Chapter 3307 Ohio Revised Code Chapter 145
Authority
Benefit The annual retirement allowance | Benefits are calculated on the basis of age,
Formula based on final average salary | final average salary (FAS), and service

multiplied by a percentage that varies
based on years of service. Effective
August 1, 2015, the calculation is
2.2% of final average salary for the
five highest years of earnings
multiplied by all years of service.
Members are eligible to retire at age
60 with five years of qualifying service
credit, or at age 55 with 26 years of
service, or 31 years of service
regardless of age. Eligibility changes
will be phased in until August 1, 2026,
when retirement  eligibility for
unreduced benefits will be five years
of service credit and age 65, or 35
years of service credit and at least
age 60.

credit. State and Local members in
transition Groups A and B are eligible for
retirement benefits at age 60 with 60
contributing months of service credit or at
age 55 with 25 or more years of service
credit. Group C for State and Local is
eligible for retirement at age 57 with 25
years of service or at age 62 with 5 years
of service. For Groups A and B, the annual
benefit is based on 2.2% of final average
salary multiplied by the actual years of
service for the first 30 years of service
credit and 2.5% for years of service in
excess of 30 years. For Group C, the
annual benefit applies a factor of 2.2% for
the first 35 years and a factor of 2.5% for
the years of service in excess of 35. FAS
represents the average of the three highest
years of earnings over a member’s career
for Groups A and B. Group C is based on
the average of the five highest years of
earnings over a member's career. The
base amount of a member's pension
benefit is locked in upon receipt of the initial
benefit payment for calculation of annual
cost-of-living adjustment.

Cost-of-Living
Adjustments

With certain exceptions, the basic
benefit is increased each year by 2%
of the original base benefit. For
members retiring Aug. 1, 2013, or
later, the first 2% is paid on the fifth
anniversary of the retirement benefit.
In April 2017, STRS-Ohio announced
that, effective July 1, 2017, it would
indefinitely suspend the annual COLA
for all retirees.

Once a benefit recipient retiring under the
Traditional Pension Plan has received
benefits for 12 months, an annual 3% cost-
of-living adjustment is provided on the
member's base benefit.

68 The Ohio State University

287




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS-Ohio

OPERS

Contribution
Rates

Employer and member contribution
rates are established by the State
Teachers Retirement Board and
limited by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio
Revised Code. Through June 30,
2016, the employer rate was 14% and
the member rate was 13% of covered
payroll. The statutory employer rate
for fiscal 2017 and subsequent years
is 14%. The statutory member
contribution rate increased to 14% on
July 1, 2016.

Employee and member contribution rates
are established by the OPERS Board and
limited by Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised
Code. For 2016, employer rates for the
State and Local Divisions were 14% of
covered payroll (and 18.1% for the Law
Enforcement and Public Safety Divisions).
Member rates for the State and Local
Divisions were 10% of covered payroll
(13% for Law Enforcement and 12% for
Public Safety).

Measurement | June 30, 2016 December 31, 2016
Date
Actuarial Valuation Date: July 1, 2016 Valuation Date: December 31, 2016

Assumptions

Actuarial Cost Method: Individual
entry age

Investment Rate of Return: 7.75%
Inflation: 2.75%

Projected Salary Increases: 2.75%
-12.25%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments: 2.00%
Simple, applied as follows: for
members retiring before August 1,
2013, 2% per year; for members
retiring August 1, 2013 or later, 2%
COLA  commences on fifth
anniversary of the retirement date.

Actuarial Cost Method: Individual entry
age

Investment Rate of Return: 7.5%
Inflation: 3.25%

Projected Salary Increases; 3.25% -
10.75%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments: 3.00%
Simple — for those retiring after January 7,
2013, 3.00% Simple through 2018, then
2.15% Simple.

288

2017 Financial Report 69



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS-Ohio

OPERS

Mortality
Rates

RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table
(Projection 2022—Scale AA) for Males
and Females. Males’ ages are set
back two years through age 89 and no
setback for age 90 and above.
Females younger than age 80 are set
back four years, one year set back
from age 80 through 89 and no set
back from age 90 and above.

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality table.
For males, Healthy Annuitant mortality
tables were used, adjusted for mortality
improvement back to the observation
period base of 2006 and then established
the base year as 2015. For females,
Healthy Annuitant Mortality tables were
used, adjusted for mortality improvements
back to the observation period base year of
2006 and then established the base year
as 2010. The mortality rates used in
evaluating disability allowances were
based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality
tables, adjusted for mortality improvement
back to the observation base year of 2006
and then established the base year as
2015 for males and 2010 for females.
Mortality rates for a particular calendar year
for both healthy and disabled retiree
mortality tables are determined by applying
the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale
to the above described tables.

Date of Last
Experience
Study

July 1, 2012

December 31, 2015

70 The Ohio State University

289




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS-Ohio OPERS
Investment The 10 year expected real rate of | The long term expected rate of return on
Return return on pension plan investments | defined benefit investment assets was

Assumptions

was determined by STRS Ohio’s
investment consultant by developing
best estimates of expected future real
rates of return for each major asset
class. The target allocation and long-
term expected real rate of return for

each major asset class are
summarized as follows:
Long Term

Target Expected
Asset Class Allocation Return*
Domestic Equity 31.0% 8.00%
International Equity 26.0% 7.85%
Alternatives 14.0% 8.00%
Fixed Income 18.0% 3.75%
Real Estate 10.0% 6.75%
Liquidity Reserves 1.0% 3.00%

Total 100%

* Returns presented as geometric means

determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage,
adjusted for inflation. The following table
displays the Board-approved asset
allocation policy for 2016 and the long-term
expected real rates of return:

Long Term
Target Expected
Asset Class Allocation Return®
Fixed Income 23.0% 2.75%
Domestic Equity 20.7% 6.34%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.75%
Private Equity 10.0% 8.97%
International Equity 18.3% 7.95%
Other Investments 18.0% 4.92%
Total 100.0%

* Returns presented as arithmetic means

290

2017 Financial Report 71




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS-Ohio OPERS
Discount Rate | The discount rate used to measure | The discount rate used to measure the total
the total pension liability was 7.75% | pension liability was 7.5% for the

as of June 30, 2016. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumes that member
and employer contributions will be
made at the statutory contribution
rates in accordance with the rate
increases described above. For this
purpose, only employer contributions
that are intended to fund benefits of
current plan members and their
beneficiaries are included. Projected
employer contributions that are
intended to fund the service costs of
future plan members and their
beneficiaries, as well as projected
contributions  from future plan
members, are not included. Based on
those assumptions, STRS Ohio's
fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected
future benefit payments to current
plan members as of June 30, 2016.
Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.75% was applied to
all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total
pension liability as of June 30, 2016.

Traditional Pension Plan, the Combined
Plan and the Member-Directed Plan. The
projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members and
those of the contributing employers are
made at the statutorily required rates.
Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of
Net Pension
Liability to
Changes in
Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase 1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%) (6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
$ 2,007,749 $ 1,510,814 $ 1,091,620 $ 3,147,036 $ 2,054,548 S 1,144,550

Changes in Assumptions between Measurement Date and Report Date

In March 2017, the STRS-Ohio Board adopted certain assumption changes, which will
impact their annual actuarial valuation prepared as of June 30, 2017. The most significant
change is a reduction in the discount rate from 7.75% to 7.45%. Also, in April 2017, the
STRS-Ohio Board voted to suspend cost of living adjustments granted on or after July 1,
2017. Although the exact amounts of these changes are not known, they are expected to
have a significant impact on net pension liabilities to be reported at June 30, 2018.

Defined Contribution Plans

ARP is a defined contribution pension plan. Full-time administrative and professional staff and
faculty may choose enroliment in ARP in lieu of OPERS or STRS Ohio. Classified civil service

72 The Ohio State University

291



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

employees hired on or after August 1, 2005 are also eligible to participate in ARP. ARP does
not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, post-retirement health care
benefits or death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are entirely dependent
on the sum of contributions and investment returns earned by each participant’s choice of
investment options.

OPERS also offers a defined contribution plan, the Member-Directed Plan (MD). The MD plan
does not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, post-retirement health
care benefits or death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are entirely
dependent on the sum of contributions and investment returns earned by each participant’s
choice of investment options.

STRS Ohio also offers a defined contribution plan in addition to its long established defined
benefit plan. Employer contributions at a rate of 9.5% and all employee contributions are
placed in an investment account directed by the employee. Disability benefits are limited to
the employee’s account balance. Employees electing the defined contribution plan receive no
post-retirement health care benefits.

Combined Plans

STRS Ohio offers a combined plan with features of both a defined contribution plan and a
defined benefit plan. In the combined plan, employee contributions are invested in self-
directed investments, and the employer contribution is used to fund a reduced defined benefit.
Employees electing the combined plan receive post-retirement health care benefits.

OPERS also offers a combined plan. This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan. In the combined
plan, employee contributions are invested in self-directed investments, and the employer
contribution is used to fund a reduced defined benefit. Employees electing the combined plan
receive post-retirement health care benefits. OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor
and post-retirement health benefits to qualifying members of the combined plan.

Summary of Employer Pension Expense

Total pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, including employer contributions
and accruals associated with recognition of net pension liabilities and related deferrals, is
presented below.

STRS-Ohio OPERS ARP Total
Employer Contributions S 70,373 S 188,762 S 56,425 S 315,560
GASB 68 Accruals 49,919 298,941 348,860
Total Pension Expense S 120,292 $ 487,703 S 56,425 $ 664,420

Total pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, including employer contributions
and accruals associated with recognition of net pension liabilities and related deferrals, is
presented below.

2017 Financial Report 73

292



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

STRS-Ohio OPERS ARP Total
Employer Contributions S 66,975 § 178,293 § 53,423 § 298,691
GASB 68 Accruals 11,006 100,197 111,203
Total Pension Expense S 77,981 S 278,490 $ 53,423 § 409,894

Pension expense is allocated to institutional functions on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Other Changes in Net Position.

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits

STRS Ohio currently provides access to health care coverage to retirees who participated in
the defined benefit or combined plans and their dependents. Coverage under the current
program includes hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs, and partial
reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums. Pursuant to ORC, STRS Ohio has
discretionary authority over how much, if any, of the associated health care costs will be
absorbed by STRS Ohio. All benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care costs in the
form of monthly premiums. Under ORC, medical costs paid from the funds of STRS Ohio are
included in the employer contribution rate. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, STRS
Ohio made no allocation of employer contributions for post-employment health care.

OPERS currently provides post-employment health care benéefits to retirees with ten or more
years of qualifying service credit. These benefits are advance-funded on an actuarially
determined basis and are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings.
OPERS determines the amount, if any, of the associated health care costs that will be
absorbed by OPERS. Under Ohio Revised Code (ORC), funding for medical costs paid from
the funds of OPERS is included in the employer contribution rate. For calendar years 2016
and 2017, OPERS allocated 2.0% and 1.0%, respectively, of the employer contribution rate to
fund the health care program for retirees.

OSU Physicians Retirement Plan

Retirement benefits are provided for the employees of OSUP through a tax-sheltered 403(b)
and 401(a) program administered by an insurance company. OSUP is required to make
nondiscretionary contributions of no less than 7.5% under the Interim Retirement Plan;
however, some subsidiaries make an additional discretionary contribution of up to 17.5%, for
a range of total employer contributions of 7.5% to 25%. Employees are allowed, but not
required, to make contributions to the 403(b) plan. OSUP’s share of the cost of these benefits
was $4,619 and $3,949 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Employee contributions were $1,745 and $1,603 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

74 The Ohio State University

293



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

NOTE 16 — CAPITAL PROJECT COMMITMENTS

At June 30, 2017, the university is committed to future contractual obligations for capital
expenditures of approximately $262,286.

These projects are funded by the following sources:

State appropriations S 72,999
Internal and other sources 189,287
Total S 262,286

NOTE 17 — CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The university is a party in a number of legal actions. While the final outcome cannot be
determined at this time, management is of the opinion that the liability, if any, for these legal
actions will not have a material adverse effect on the university's financial position.

The university is self-insured for the Health System’s professional malpractice liability,
employee health benefits, workers’ compensation and employee life, accidental death and
dismemberment benefits. Additional details regarding these self-insurance arrangements are
provided in Note 8. The university also carries commercial insurance policies for various
property, casualty and excess liability risks. Over the past three years, settlement amounts
related to these insured risks have not exceeded the university's coverage amounts.

Under the terms of federal grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be
questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such audits
could lead to reimbursements to the grantor agencies. While questioned costs may occur,
ultimate repayments required of the university have been infrequent in prior years.

NOTE 18 — PARKING LEASE AND CONCESSION AGREEMENT

On September 21, 2012, the university entered into a 50-year lease and concession
agreement with QIC Global Infrastructure (QIC GI). CampusParc LP, a QIC Gl affiliate, owns
and operates the university’s parking concession on QIC GI's behalf. Under the agreement,
CampusParc operates, maintains and retains parking revenues from the university’s parking
lots and garages. This agreement also regulates the parking rates that may be charged and
future increases in these rates. The university received lump-sum payments totaling $483,000
from QIC Gl and used the proceeds to establish endowment funds, with income distributions
internally designated to support student scholarships, faculty initiatives and research,
transportation and sustainability and the university arts district.

The lump-sum payment under this service concession arrangement is reported as a deferred
inflow of resources and is being amortized to operating revenue over the life of the agreement.
Deferred inflows related to the parking agreement were $435,807 and $445,439 at June 30,

2017 Financial Report 75

294



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

2017 and 2016, respectively. The university reports the parking lots and garages as capital
assets with a carrying amount of $124,417 and $124,985 at June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

NOTE 19 — COMBINING INFORMATION FOR BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS
As indicated in the Basis of Presentation in Note 1, the university consolidates certain
component units in a blended presentation. Condensed combining financial information for

the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 is presented below.

Condensed Combining Information — Year Ended June 30, 2017

0osu osu Ova
Foundation Health Plan Limited
Condensed statements of net position:

Current assets S 47,236 $ 6,252 $ 50,634
Capital assets, net 3,271 168 -
Other assets 1,002,456 585 -

Total assets S 1,052,963 S 7,005 § 50,634
Current liabilities S 3,748 § 2,546 § 44
Noncurrent liabilities 48,025 467 21,895
Amounts payable to the university 1,853 - -

Total liabilities 53,626 3,013 21,939

Net investment in capital assets 3,271 - -
Restricted:

Nonexpendable 824,383 - -
Expendable 158,733 - -
Unrestricted 12,950 3,992 28,695
Total net position 999,337 3,992 28,695
Total liabilities and net position S 1,052,963 § 7,005 § 50,634

76 The Ohio State University

295



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

Condensed statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position:
Operating revenues:
Other sales, services and rental income
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses, excluding depreciation
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

Net operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues and expenses:
Gifts for current use
Net investment income (loss)
Net non-operating revenue (expense)

Capital contributions and additions to
permanent endowments
Transfers from (to) the university

Change in net position

Beginning net position

Ending net position

Condensed statements of cash flows:
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents

osu osu Oval
Foundation Health Plan Limited
S 1,885 10,730 $ 1,406
1,885 10,730 1,406
22,380 10,787 193
247 - -
22,627 10,787 193
(20,742) (57) 1,213
179,912 - -
116,623 - 3,010
296,535 - 3,010
79,229 - -
(235,448) . .
119,574 (57) 4,223
879,763 4,049 24,472
S 999,337 § 3,992 § 28,695
S (19,578) S 1,817 S (1,264)
(6,519) (2,081) -
26,771 (138} .
1,195 62 3,023
1,869 (340) 1,759
2,494 5,994 1,758
S 4,363 5,654 S 3,517

296

2017 Financial Report 77



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

Condensed Combining Information — Year Ended June 30, 2016

Condensed statements of net position:
Current assets
Capital assets, net
Other assets
Amounts receivable from the university
Deferred outflows
Total assets and deferred outflows

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Amounts payable to the university
Deferred inflows

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

78 The Ohio State University

297

osu osu Oval
Foundation Health Plan Limited

S 47,947 6,764 51,449

3,518 31 -

879,169 648 -
S 930,634 7,443 51,449
S 3,881 885 50
45,442 428 26,927

1,548 2,081 -
50,871 3,394 26,977

3,518 - -

744,159 - -

121,124 - -
10,962 4,049 24,472
879,763 4,049 24,472
S 930,634 7,443 51,449




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

0osuU 0osuU Oval
Foundation Health Plan Limited
Condensed statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position:
Operating revenues:
Grants and contracts S - S - S -
Sales and services of OSU Physicians - - -
Other sales, services and rental income 1,846 12,138 759
Other operating - - -
Total operating revenues 1,846 12,138 759
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation 22,531 11,581 152
Depreciation expense 247 - -
Total operating expenses 22,778 11,581 152
Net operating income (loss) (20,932) 557 607
Non-operating revenues and expenses:
Gifts for current use 156,737 - -
Net investment income (loss) (12,441) - 502
Interest expense - - -
Other non-operating revenue (expense) - - -
Net non-operating revenue (expense) 144,296 - 502
Capital contributions and additions to 75,415 - -
permanent endowments
Transfers from (to) the university (197,297) - -
Change in net position 1,482 557 1,109
Beginning net position 878,281 3,492 23,363
Ending net position S 879,763 S 4,049 S 24,472
Condensed statements of cash flows:
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities S (19,660) S 39 § 1,198
Noncapital financing activities 29,991 1,332 -
Capital and related financing activities 10,422 104 -
Investing activities (21,536) (31) (12,295)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (783) 1,444 (11,097)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 3,276 4,551 12,854
Ending cash and cash equivalents S 2,493 S 5,995 $ 1,757

2017 Financial Report 79

298



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

NOTE 20 — COMBINING INFORMATION FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT
UNITS

As indicated in the Basis of Presentation in Note 1, the university consolidates certain
component units in a discrete presentation. Condensed combining financial information for
the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 is presented below.

Condensed Combining Information — Year Ended June 30, 2017

Transportation Denta
osu Campus Research Faculty
Physicians Partners Center Practice Plar
Condensed statements of net position:
Current assets S 164,004 $ 9,581 S 11,319 $ 1,485
Capital assets, net 24,330 88,410 9,341 86
Other assets 1,602 2,612 -
Amounts receivable from the university 8,663 - 4,002
Deferred outflows - - 155 -
Total assets and deferred outflows S 198,599 § 100,603 S 24,817 S 1,571
Current liabilities S 12,719 S 7,370 S 7,724 S 55
MNoncurrent liabilities 13,931 25,373 382
Amounts payable to the university 19,401 77,894 6,000 -
Deferred inflows - - 10
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 46,051 110,637 14,116 55
Net investment in capital assets 9,640 86,363 9,341 86
Unrestricted 142,908 (96,397) 1,360 1,430
Total net position 152,548 {10,034) 10,701 1,516
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position S 198,599 § 100,603 S 24,817 S 1,571

80 The Ohio State University

299



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Transportation Dental
osu Campus Research Faculty
Physicians Partners Center Practice Plan
Condensed statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position:
Operating revenues:
Grants and contracts S - S 12,693 S 47,007 §$ -
Sales and services of OSU Physicians 496,364 - - -
Other sales, services and rental income - - - 8,935
Total operating revenues 496,364 12,693 47,007 8,935
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation 444,362 10,779 46,417 6,079
Depreciation expense 3,740 3,121 250 27
Tatal anaratina avmaneas AAQ 1N 12 ann Ac £67 £ 1NE
Total operating expenses 448,102 13,900 46,667 5,106
Net operating income (loss) 48,262 (1,207) 340 2,829
Non-operating revenues and expenses:
Net investment income (loss) 215 103 163 -
Interest expense (369) (1,154) (61} -
Other non-operating revenue (expense) (18,605) (9,451) - (2,713)
Net non-operating revenue (expense) (18,759) (10,502) 102 (2,713)
Change in net position 29,503 {11,709) 442 116
Beginning net position 123,045 1,675 10,259 1,400
Ending net position S 152,548 § (10,034) S 10,701 $ 1,516
Condensed statements of cash flows:
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities S 58,225 S 6,596 S 174 S 2,883
Noncapital financing activities (18,604) (1,519) 5,667 (2,714)
Capital and related financing activities (5,049) (3,742) (4,587) (70]
Investing activities 1,357 39 162 (92]
Net increase (decrease) in cash 35,929 1,374 1,416 7
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 79,695 5,975 937 394
Ending cash and cash equivalents s 115,624 S 7,349 5 2,353 S 401

2017 Financial Report 81

300



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(dollars in thousands)

Condensed Combining Information — Year Ended June 30, 2016

Condensed statements of net position:
Current assets
Capital assets, net
Other assets
Amounts receivable from the university
Deferred outflows
Total assets and deferred outflows

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Amounts payable to the university
Deferred inflows
Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendahle
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

82 The Ohio State University

Transportation Dental
osu Campus Research Faculty
Physicians Partners Center Practice Plan
S 131,333 S 11,599 $ 9,029 $ 1,369

24,297 92,373 1,250 44

5,209 - - -

15,481 - 3,670 -

- - 124 -

S 176,320 S 103,972 S 14,073 S 1,413

S 14,365 S 31,413 S 3,441 S 13
15,140 - 366
23,770 70,884 -

- 1 7 -

53,275 102,297 3,814 13

6,444 92,373 1,251 -

116,601 (90,698) 9,008 1,400

123,045 1,675 10,259 1,400

$ 176,320 $ 103,972 S 14,073 $ 1,413

301



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Transportation Dental
osu Campus Research Faculty
Physicians Partners Center Practice Plan
Condensed statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position:
Operating revenues:
Grants and contracts S - $ 8,498 $ 44,456 S -
Sales and services of OSU Physicians 487,429 - - -
Other sales, services and rental income - - - 8,758
Other operating - - - -
Total operating revenues 487,429 8,498 44,456 8,758
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation 441,333 9,816 44,052 5,452
Depreciation expense 4,326 1,821 242 36
Total operating expenses 445,659 11,637 44,294 5,488
Net operating income (loss) 41,770 (3,139) 162 3,270
Non-operating revenues and expenses:
Gifts for current use - - - -
Net investment income (loss) 76 (91) (154)
Interest expense (395) (1,215) - -
Other non-operating revenue (expense) (9,422) 4,044 - (3,172)
Net non-operating revenue (expense) (9,741) 2,738 (154) (3,172]
Capital contributions and additions to - 3,789 -
permanent endowments
Change in net position 32,029 3,388 8 98
Beginning net position 91,016 (1,713) 10,251 1,302
Ending net position S 123,045 S 1,675 S 10,259 S 1,400
Condensed statements of cash flows:
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities S 28,792 S 26,882 S (374) $ 3,276
Noncapital financing activities (9,422) 15,283 306 (3,172)
Capital and related financing activities (3,703) (42,232} (977} -
Investing activities (4,079) (91) (154) (34)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 11,588 (158) (1,199) 70
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 68,107 6,134 2,139 324
Ending cash and cash equivalents S 79,695 $ 5,976 S 940 $ 394

2017 Financial Report 83

302



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

NOTE 21 — SEGMENT INFORMATION

A segment is an identifiable activity for which one or more revenue bonds are outstanding. A
segment has a specific identifiable revenue stream pledged in support of revenue bonds or
other revenue-backed debt and has related expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities that
can be identified. The university has one segment that meets the GASB reporting
requirements.

The Office of Student Life operates student housing, dining and recreational sports facilities
on the university's main and regional campuses. In January 2013, the university issued
$337,955 of Special Purpose General Receipts Bonds, Series 2013A. These bonds are solely
payable from, and secured by, a pledge of the gross revenues of Special Purpose Revenue
Facilities. Special Purpose Revenue Facilities are defined in the Series 2013 Supplement as
all housing and dining facilities and such auxiliary facilities as shall constitute recreation
facilities owned by the university. Special Purpose Pledged Revenues include all revenues,
fees, rentals, rates, charges, insurance proceeds and other moneys derived from the
ownership or operation of these facilities. Special Purpose Pledged Revenues totaled
$213,564 and $172,002 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Condensed financial information for the Special Purpose Revenue Facilities, before the
elimination of certain intra-university transactions, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017
and 2016 is as follows:

84 The Ohio State University

303



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

Segment Disclosure Information — Year Ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016

2017 2016
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Assets and deferred outflows:
Current assets S 26,022 S 24,926
Capital assets 725,840 728,836
Other assets 2,356 35,464
Total assets S 754,218 S 789,226
Liabilities and deferred inflows:
Current liabilities S 7,365 S 6,943
Amounts payable to the university 755,890 784,135
Total liabilities 763,255 791,078
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (27,695) (19,835)
Unrestricted 18,658 17,983
Total net position (9,037) (1,852)
Total liabilities and net position S 754,218 § 789,226
2017 2016
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position
Special-purpose pledged revenues - operating S 213,564 S 172,002
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation (141,323) (121,182)
Depreciation expense (32,604) (28,110)
Operating income 39,637 22,710
Nonoperating revenues, net (32,499) (33,326)
Net income (loss) before transfers 7,138 (10,616)
Transfers from (to) other university units, net (14,323) 8,366
Increase (decrease) in net position (7,185) (2,250)
Beginning net position (1,852) 398
Ending net position ) (3,037) S (1,852)
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities S 533,452 S 402,744
Capital and related financing activities (565,713) (531,575)
Investing activities 180 95
Net increase (decrease) in cash (32,081) (128,736)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 59,242 187,978
Ending cash and cash equivalents S 27,161 S 59,242

2017 Financial Report 85

304



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Notes to Financial Statements — Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollars in thousands)

NOTE 22 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 10, 2017, the university entered into a 50-year agreement to lease the university’s
utility system to Ohio State Energy Partners and grant it the exclusive right to operate the utility
system and provide utility services to the Columbus campus. The university received an
upfront payment of $1,089,875. The agreement includes the sale of certain utility-related
equipment assets, which will be recognized in Fiscal Year 2018. The majority of the remainder
of the upfront payment will be recorded as unearned revenues and amortized to revenue on a
straight-line basis over the life of the agreement.

Related to this transaction, the university entered into an interest-rate swap agreement with
Barclays Bank, PLC on April 10, 2017 for a notional amount of $397,000 to hedge interest-rate
risk prior to the closing of the utility lease and concession agreement. The university
terminated the swap on May 26, 2017 and made a $15,713 payment on July 6, 2017. This
payment was reflected in the university’s June 30, 2017 financial statements as a non-
operating loss and a corresponding current liability.

86 The Ohio State University

305



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Required Supplementary Information on GASB 68 Pension Liabilities
Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

The schedule of the university’s proportionate shares of STRS-Ohio and OPERS net pension liabilities are
presented below:

2017 2016 2015
(dollars in thousands) STRS-Ohio OPERS STRS-Ohio OPERS STRS-Ohio OPERS
University's proportion of the net pension liability
4.5% 9.1% 4.5% 9.0% 4.4% 8.8%

University's proportionate share of the net pension S 1,510,814 5 2,054,548 $ 1,238470 S 1,556,156 $ 1,070,914 $ 1,059,519
liability

University's covered payroll S 392,797 S5 1,289,346 S 388,309 S5 1,236,914 S5 381,669 S 1,188,828

University's proportionate share of the net pension 385% 159% 319% 126% 281% 89%
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 66.8% 77.4% 72.1% 81.2% 74.7% 86.5%
pension liability

The schedule of the university’s contributions to STRS-Ohio and OPERS are presented below:

2017 2016 2015

(dollars in thousands) STRS-Ohio OPERS STRS-Ohio OPERS STRS-Ohio OPERS
Contractually required contribution 5 70,373 S 188,762 S 66,975 S 178,293 S 65,738 $ 170,979
Contributions in relation to the contractually S 70,373 § 188,762 66,975 S5 178,293 5 65,738 $ 170,979
required contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess) S . S . S N S . s - S
University's covered payroll S 412,149 $ 1,334,350 S 392,797 $ 1,260,366 $ 388,309 $ 1,208,710
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

17.1% 14.1% 17.1% 14.1% 16.9% 14.1%

2017 Financial Report 87

306



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Supplementary Information on the Long-Term Investment Pool
Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

The following section of the financial report provides additional information on the
university’s Long-Term Investment Pool, including a summary of changes in market
value, investment returns and related expenses. Additional details on university
investments, including asset allocations, endowment distribution policies, investment by
type and risk disclosures, are provided in Notes 1 and 3 to the Financial Statements.

In 2017, the market value of the university’'s Long-Term Investment Pool — which
includes gifted endowments, long-term investments of university operating funds and
other funds internally designated to function as endowments — increased $637 million, to
$4.25 billion at June 30, 2017. The Long-Term Investment Pool activity for 2017 is
summarized below:

Long-Term Investment Pool Activity (in thousands)

Gifted Endowments Quasi - Endowments
University Foundation Operating Designated Total
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 977173 $ 763,332 $ 1,203,959 $ 672,008 $ 3,616,562
Net Principal: Additions/(Withdrawals) 5,966 49,557 (1,309) 269,850 324,064
Change in Fair Value 120,236 97,309 147,630 107,583 472,758
Income Earned 20,242 16,286 24,852 17,604 78,984
Distributions (42,767) (34,316) (52,604) (36,923) (166,610)
Expenses (18,529) (14,907) (22,749) (16,114) (72,299)
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 1,062,321 $ 877,261 $ 1,299,779 $ 1,014,098 $ 4,253,459

Net principal additions (withdrawals) for gifted endowments include new endowment
gifts and reinvestment of unused endowment distributions. Change in fair value
includes realized gains and losses for assets sold during the year and unrealized gains
and losses for assets held in the pool at June 30, 2017. Income earned includes
interest and dividends and is used primarily to fund distributions. Expenses include
investment management expenses ($55 million), University Development related
expenses ($16 million) and other investment related expenses ($1 million).

Investment Returns and Expenses:

The investment return for the Long-Term Investment Pool was 14.5% for fiscal year
2017. The annualized investment returns for the three-year and five-year periods were
4.7% and 7.9%, respectively. These returns -- which are net of investment
management expenses as defined by Cambridge Associates for its annual survey -- are
used for comparison purposes with other endowments and various benchmarks. In
addition to the $55 million of investment management expenses, which reduced the pool

88 The Ohio State University

307



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

by 1.5% in fiscal year 2017, the $16 million of University Development expenses and $1
million of other investment related expenses further reduced the pool by 0.5%.

Additional Information:

For more information on how the Long-Term Investment Pool is invested, please visit the
Office of Investments website at: investments.osu.edu.

Additional details on university and foundation endowments, including balances for
individual funds, are available on the Office of the Controller's website at:
go.osu.edu/EndowAdmin (click on the “Endowment Descriptions and Balances” link).

2017 Financial Report 89

308



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Placeholder for YB opinion

309



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Placeholder for YB opinion

310



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Acknowledgements

The 2017 Financial Report and the included financial statements are prepared by the staff of

the Office of the Controller.

Erica N. Armstrong
Natalie H. Darner
Christopher Davis
Thomas F. Ewing
Rachel R. Ford
Robert L. Hupp, I
Gary L. Leimbach
John C. Lister

Michelle M. McMahon

Lisa A. Plaga

Patricia M. Privette
Wei Qu

Dawn M. Romie

Julie L. Saunders
Katherine M. Seay
Timothy A. Thibodeau
Christopher R. Wagner

Mary J. Wehner

Geoffrey S. Chatas - Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Kristine G. Devine — Vice President for Operations and Deputy CFO

92 The Ohio State University

311



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Board of Trustees

The expiration date of each trustee’s term is given in parentheses.

Alex M. Shumate — Chair, Gahanna (2020)

W. G. Jurgensen — Vice Chair, Columbus (2018)

Janet B. Reid - Vice Chair, Cincinnati (2018)

Clark C. Kellogg, Westerville (2019)

Jeffrey Wadsworth, Upper Arlington (2019)

Timothy P. Smucker, Orrville (2020)

Cheryl L. Krueger, New Albany (2021)

Michael J. Gasser, Columbus (2021)

Brent R. Porteus, Coshocton County (2022)

Erin P. Hoeflinger, Springboro (2022)

Alex R. Fischer, Columbus (2023)

Abigail S. Wexner, New Albany (2023)

Hiroyuki Fujita, Pepper Pike (2024)

Alan A. Stockmeister, Jackson (2025)

John W. Zeiger, Columbus (2026)

Alan VanderMolen — Charter Trustee, Chicago, IL (2017)
James D. Klingbeil — Charter Trustee, San Francisco, CA (2018)
Lydia A. Lancaster — Student Member, Columbus (2018)
H. Jordan Moseley — Student Member, Albany (2019)

J. Blake Thompson, Upper Arlington - Secretary

312

2017 Financial Report 93



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University

Required Communications to the
Audit and Compliance Committee
of the Board of Trustees

November 2, 2017

pwc

313



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

&

pwc

Members of the Audit and Compliance Committee of
The Ohio State University

October 23, 2017
Dear Members of the Committee:

Our continuing relationship with The Ohio State University (the “University”) is an extremely
important one to our firm. We have a strong appreciation for the responsibility of management and
the Audit and Compliance Committee (“Committee”) members, and understand the importance of the
Committee’s role to the Board of Trustees and stakeholders. We also recognize that the Committee
and management place importance on the role that we play as independent auditors. We are
committed to providing the highest level of quality service to the University and we accept and affirm
our responsibility to the Committee and to the organization. We fulfill this responsibility by
performing our audit in accordance with governing professional standards in an independent and
professional manner.

Included within our report are the following:

e Overview of Audit Objectives and the Status of our Audit

¢ Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates and Management Judgments

e Other Communications Required by Auditing Standards

This report is intended solely for your information in your role as members of the Audit and
Compliance Committee and should not be referred to or distributed for any purpose to anyone who is
not a member of management, or the Board of Trustees.

We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us by the employees of the University
throughout the performance of our engagement, and we look forward to meeting with you in
November to present this report, address your questions and discuss any other matters of interest to

the Committee.

Please feel free to contact Christa Dewire, Engagement Partner, at (614) 629-5344 with any questions
you may have.

Very truly yours,

J?{WWQW UP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 41 South High Street, Suite 2500, Columbus, OH 43215
T: (614) 225-8700, F: (614) 224-1044, www.pwc.com/us

314



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Haaw
s i A u—— e -

Contents

Executive Summary

Our Audit Objectives

Status of the Audit

Fraud Procedures Performed

Critical Accounting Estimates and Management Judgment
Required Communications to the Audit and Compliance Committee
Appendix A: Status of Deliverables

Appendix B: Draft Form of Reports

Appendix C: Draft Management Representation Letter

THIS REPORT AND THE INFORMATION THAT IT CONTAINS ARE SOLELY FOR
THE BENEFIT AND RESTRICTED USE OF MANAGEMENT AND THE AUDIT AND
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE OF THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF
TRUSTEES AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO BE USED OR RELIED UPON BY ANY
OTHER PARTY.




November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

.._________________

(4
Executive Summary
Audit Objective and Status v' Audit objectives consistent with previous communications.
v" On track to sign University financial statement opinions following
Committee approval.
v See Appendix A for status of other deliverables.
Fraud Procedures v Consistent with plan — disaggregated revenue analytics, journal entry
Performed testing and review of estimates for management bias.
Critical Accounting v No significant changes in management’s estimation methodology or
Estimates and Management audit procedures performed related to significant risk areas:
Judgments — Valuation of Certain Alternative Investments
— Patient Accounts Receivables and related Allowances
v Other Critical Accounting Estimates
— Medical malpractice liability — recurring adjustment (immaterial)
— Net pension liability — changes in assumptions at Plan level
Fraud v To date, we have not identified any potential or known fraud.
Illegal acts v" To date, we have not identified any potential illegal acts.
Accounting policies and v" No significant changes in accounting policies or related disclosures.
practices, critical v" No significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas of
accounting estimates and focus for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or
significant unusual diversity in practice.
transactions v" Upcoming accounting pronouncements of note:
— GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (FY18)
— GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (FY20)
— GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (FY21)
v Critical accounting estimates — addressed above
v’ Significant unusual transactions — energy privatization agreement
(subsequent event disclosure)
Quality of the company’s v" Accounting policies are consistent with standard industry practices and
financial reporting are neither aggressive nor conservative.
v" No matters noted to be indicative of unreasonable bias; critical
accounting estimates appear reasonable.
v" Financial statements are materially consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
v" No particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures noted.
Alternative accounting v None noted.
treatments
v" No independence matters or concerns identified.

Independence re-evaluation

316



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Executive Summary

Significant issues discussed

with management prior to
appointment or retention

v

None noted.

Changes to the planned v' No significant changes to our planned audit strategy.
audit strategy
Material uncertainties v None noted.
related to events and
conditions (specifically
going concern)
Identified misstatements v No corrected misstatements identified by PwC.
v Three recurring uncorrected misstatements related to the Primary
Institution, deemed to be immaterial individually and in the aggregate:
- Overstatement of medical malpractice liability ($9.1M in FY17 /
$9.9M in FY16)
- Understatement of Health System revenue due to lag in timing of
charges ($4.6M in FY17 / $6.5M in FY16)
- Understatement of Health System revenue related to a lag in timing
of positive claims adjustments ($14.7M in FY17 / $11.7M in FY16)
v" One out of period adjustment related to Discretely Presented
Component Units — deemed immaterial in relation to both current and
prior year:
- Overstatement of current period revenue (reflected within net
operating expenses) / understatement of opening net position
($1.2M in FY17 that should have been reflected in FY16)
v See Appendix C (pg. 31) for additional detail
Identified control v Significant deficiency identified in relation to a Discretely Presented
deficiencies Component Unit (Transportation Research Center, Inc.).
— Challenges in relation to an ERP systems implementation late in the
fiscal year, coupled with significant level of management turnover
(particularly within the finance function) resulted in a number of
accounting adjustments and delays in the preparation of the financial
statements. See Appendix C (pg. 33) for additional detail.
— Deemed to be a material weakness at the stand-alone component level
v Other control deficiencies will be communicated in writing upon
completion of our fieldwork.
Other information in v" Read MD&A and other supplementary information; no inconsistencies
documents containing identified.
audited/reviewed financial
statements
Disagreements with v None noted.
management
Consultation with other v None noted.
accountants
Difficulties encountered v None noted.
during the audit
Other material written v' Engagement letter shared with Committee Chair.
communications v' Draft management representation letter — See Appendix C.

317



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Executive Summary

Departure from standard - Ungqualified reports — see Appendix B.

report

Other matters - None noted.

Assessing our performance - Feedback welcome — interactions with Committee Chair throughout the
year.

318



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

.._________________

Our Audit Objectives

Our audit objectives remain consistent with those communicated to the Committee in April.

e  Our primary objective is to opine on the University’s financial statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, which includes obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are prepared
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and are free of material
misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud.

e The financial statements subject to our opinions include the statements of net position as of June 30, 2017
and 2016, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position and of cash
flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, of both the primary
institution and the discretely presented component units.

> Additional information regarding the primary institution and discretely presented component units, as
well as separate audit opinions or attest reports that are issued in relation to certain components or
affiliates of the University are listed in Appendix A.

The audits of the financial statements do not relieve management or the Audit and Compliance Committee of their
responsibilities. The engagement letter dated May 17, 2017 summarizes the respective responsibilities of PwC and
management and has been shared with the Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee.

319



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

‘._________________

Status of the Audit

We expect to have completed our audit procedures related to the University’s financial statements by the
Committee meeting on November 2, 2017. This document outlines our results to date as well as the audit areas that
are in process as of October 23, 2017.

The following highlights the areas that are in-process of being wrapped up as of the date these materials were
prepared:

e Subsequent events and other completion procedures; and
e Receipt of management’s signed representation letters and legal letters

Our Uniform Guidance testing is in progress, however the direct cost testing performed for purposes of the
compliance report is leveraged for purposes of our University financial statement audit and that has been
completed.

The status and targeted delivery date with respect to the opinions on the University financial statements as well as
certain component units are included in Appendix A.

320



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

.._________________

Fraud Procedures Performed

We have a responsibility to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. In order to fulfill that
responsibility, we performed the following procedures to address fraud:

¢ Conducted interviews with senior management, management, internal audit and other employees regarding
the University’s fraud risks and their knowledge of any fraudulent activity.

¢ Considered the fraud risk factors present for the Board of Trustees, senior management, management and
employees to commit fraud, including key incentives, pressures and opportunities.

¢ Evaluated whether the University’s programs and controls that address identified risks of misstatement due to
fraud have been suitably designed and placed in operation.

e Incorporated unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed.
Considered the five key fraud risk areas and performed the following procedures to address identified risks:

Fraud Risk Area Procedures Performed

In order to address the risk of material misstatement due to fraud related to
revenue recognition, we performed the following procedures:

e Prepared disaggregated risk assessment analytical procedures on revenue
Revenue recognition e Performed tests of details in relation to specific revenue streams, including
patient service revenue

e Performed cutoff procedures, ensuring revenues were reported in the period in
which the recognition criteria were met

In order to address the risk of management override, we examined journal entries
and other adjustments for evidence of possible material misstatement due to fraud.
Specifically, we performed the following procedures:
Journal entries and other e  Tested the completeness of the general ledger journal entry population
adjustments e Selected journal entries for testing based on specified parameters

e Performed an analysis over selected journal entries posted by certain users, to
ensure postings appear reasonable in light of the employee’s job title and
responsibility

We reviewed supporting evidence for accounting estimates recorded by
management, including the valuation of certain alternative investments, the

Accounting estimates contractual allowance and allowance for doubtful accounts, as well as other
estimates such as self-insurance reserves. We considered whether there was any
indication of possible bias on the part of management.

On April 10, 2017, the University entered into a 50-year agreement to lease the

Significant unusual University’s utility system to ENGIE-Axium and grant it the exclusive right to
transactions operate the utility system and provide utility services to the Columbus campus. The

impact on the 2017 financial statements is limited to subsequent event disclosure.
Suspense and There were no significant suspense or unreconciled intercompany accounts
intercompany accounts identified during our audit procedures.

321



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

é

Critical Accounting Estimates and Management
Judgment

To prepare financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is required to use estimates and make
certain judgments, which often have a material effect on the financial statements. Auditing standards require
enhanced communications between the auditor and audit committees regarding such matters. Below we have
articulated those items which we believe are the University’s critical accounting estimates and judgments.

Valuation of Certain Alternative Investments

Investments are carried at fair value, based upon quoted market prices when available. Fair values for alternative
investments which include real assets, hedge funds and private equity are measured using the net asset value
(“NAV”) provided by the associated external investment manager/general partners and reviewed by the University
using the most recent audited and unaudited financial statements available. The following summarizes alternative
investments held by the University by type (this excludes investments in real estate and REITSs):

Alternative Investments by Type

(in 000’s) 6/30/17 6/30/16

Year-end Value % of Total Year-end Value % of Total
Real Assets $709,006 $671,304
Hedge Funds 1,399,392 1,444,636
Private Equity 647,328 570,509
Total Alternative Investments $2,755,726 45% $2,686,449 51%
Total Investment Portfolio $6,058,727 100% $5,285,976 100%

During our planning communications, we noted a significant risk associated with the valuation assertions relating
to certain investments within the alternative investment portfolio for which the investee funds do not follow the
measurement principles provided by the FASB’s standards on investment companies. Under GASB Statement No.
72, it is not appropriate to use NAV as a practical expedient for valuing these particular investments because the
audited financial statements of the fund are not prepared on a basis consistent with FASB standards as it relates to
fair value. As such, these investments require further consideration by management to determine fair value and
have more subjectivity and judgment involved in their valuation. Of the above, approximately 19 alternative fund
investments with fair value of $156.5 million at June 30, 2017 met the definition of our significant risk (compared
to 13 alternative fund investments with fair value of $135.5 million at June 30, 2016).

322



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

The remaining alternative investment portfolio consists of investments that follow fair value measurement
principles provided by the FASB standards on investment companies with information related to net asset value
available at period end. Further, the investee funds that follow these FASB standards often invest in marketable
investments and typically have a contractual relationship with an administrator that has a control environment
attested to by an independent auditor (i.e. an SSAE 16 report). For these reasons, we do not deem investments in
these more traditional types of funds to present a significant or elevated risk of material misstatement, although
our approach for all alternative investments is similar.

There have been no significant changes in the processes management uses to estimate fair value of these types of
investments, nor were there significant changes in the audit procedures we performed in relation to investments.
Details regarding both management’s process and our planned audit approach were shared with the Committee as
part of our audit plan in April.

Patient Accounts Receivable and Related Allowances

Health System OSU Physicians
(in 000’s) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Gross patient A/R $987,364 $964,811 $101,787 $116,489
Reserve for contractual allowances (515,077) (539,416)  (59,525) (62,760)
Reserve for bad debts (84,405) (85,843) (7,388) (15,376)
Other reserves (42,364) (32,089) - -
Other patient A/R, net 30,012 16,997 n/a n/a
Net patient service A/R $375,530  $324,460 $34,874  $38,353
Net patient service revenue $2,660,647 $2,471,249 $353,491 $343,334
Days revenue in patient accounts receivable 52 days 48 days 36 days 41 days
Bad debt expense, net $27,730 $55,886 $1,106 $19,041
As a % of net patient revenue before bad debt provision 1.0% 2.2% 0.3% 5.3%

There have been no significant changes in the processes management uses to estimate these allowances, nor were
there significant changes in the audit procedures we performed in relation to patient accounts receivable and
related allowances. Details regarding both management’s process and our planned audit approach were shared
with the Committee as part of our audit plan in April.

323



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Other Critical Accounting Estimates

The following are additional areas subject to judgment and estimate, which while not deemed to be significant risks
for purposes of our audit, are subject to specific auditing procedures:

Medical Malpractice Liability

(in 000’s) June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Liability at beginning of fiscal year $84,800 $98,578
Current year provision/(release) (10,307) (9,128)
Claim payments (970) (4,650)
Liability at fiscal year-end $73,523 $84,800

The University maintains a self-insurance program for professional medical malpractice liability, which is made up
of three funds (Fund I, Fund II and Oval) each of which provide for different levels of loss coverage. Management’s
estimate of professional medical malpractice liability is based on an independent actuarial determination and
includes provisions for known claims (case reserves) and estimates of incurred but not reported claims and
incidents (IBNR).

Key inputs and assumptions related to this liability include historical loss data (which is utilized by the third party
actuary to estimate losses) and a discount rate, which management has established at 3% (consistent with prior
year). In addition, due to the sensitivity surrounding the potential for one loss to be material, management has
historically applied an additional cost factor to the actuary’s estimate to bring the funding requirement to a 75%
confidence level (consistent with prior year). This ‘confidence level’ is reflected in the recorded liability at June 30,
2017 and 2016.

Although actual experience upon the ultimate disposition of the claims may vary from this estimate, the medical
malpractice designated fund assets as of June 30, 2017 are more than the recorded liability.

Our audit procedures are focused on the medical malpractice liability associated with Fund II (approximately 70%
of the total liability at June 30, 2017). Consistent with prior years, we engage PwC subject matter experts to assist
our engagement team in assessing the reasonableness of the methodologies and assumptions utilized by the
University’s independent actuarial consultants. In addition, we perform detailed testing in relation to the historical
loss/claims information management provides to the actuary.

With regard to management’s assumption regarding ‘75% confidence level,” we note that it is fairly common to see
universities with medical malpractice liabilities apply an additional cost factor to bring their funding requirement
to a selected confidence level. This is to address the volatility associated with such liabilities. However the factor
typically doesn’t meet the criteria for recognition as a liability. GAAP doesn’t allow for ‘risk margin’ from an
accounting standpoint unless it can be supported via a detailed analysis. Because of the University’s favorable loss
development experience, and history of settlements below the maximum risk, it is difficult to qualitatively support
the need for this additional reserve from a GAAP standpoint. This is the primary driver of the uncorrected
misstatement related to the medical malpractice liability that recurs this year.

Pension Liability

GASB Statement No. 68 (“GASB 68”) requires governments that participate in defined benefit pension plans to
report in their statement of net position a net pension liability, which is the difference between the total pension
liability and the assets set aside to pay pension benefits. The Statement also requires cost-sharing employers (such
as the University) to record a liability and expense equal to their proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability and expense for the cost-sharing plan.

324



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

The collective net pension liabilities of the retirement systems and the University’s proportionate share of these net
pension liabilities are as follows:

Net Pension

Liability STRS - Ohio OPERS Total

(in 000’s) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
All employers $33,473,014 $27,637,075 $22,652,226  $17,272,216

University’s

proportionate share 4.5% 4.5% 9.1% 9.0%

University’s $1,510,814 $1,238,470 $2,054,548 $1,556,155 $3,565,362  $2,794,626

Movements in the net pension liability for fiscal year 2017 are as follows (primary institution only):

(in 000’s) FY 2017
Net pension liability at July 1 $2,794,626
Pension expense — GASB 68 348,860
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of resources 315,850
Decrease (increase) in deferred inflows of resources 106,026
Net pension liability at June 30 $3,565,362

Key drivers of the increase in net pension liability during FY2017 are a decrease in the discount rate for OPERS
from 8% to 7.5%, combined with worse than expected investment returns on STRS pension plan assets. Pension
expense is allocated across functional categories within the financial statements but disclosed in aggregate, along
with pension expense related to employer contributions, in the footnotes.

Similar to the prior year, additional disclosures related to GASB 68 include net deferred inflows and outflows of
resources for the next five years and beyond; detail with respect to pension benefit formulas, contribution
requirements and significant assumptions used in the measurement of total pension liabilities for the retirement
systems. The benefit formulas as well as significant assumptions are determined at the Plan level and are subject to
audit by the State Plan auditors.

In March 2017, the STRS-Ohio Board adopted certain assumption changes, which will impact their annual actuarial
valuation, the most significant of which is a reduction in the discount rate from 7.75% to 7.45%. In addition, the
Board voted to suspend cost of living adjustments granted on or after July 1, 2017. Although the exact amount of
these changes are not known, they are expected to have a significant impact on net pension liabilities to be reported
at June 30, 2018.

In addition, GASB Statement No. 75 is effective for fiscal year 2018 and similar to GASB 68, will require that the
University record a liability (and related deferrals) for its pro-rata share of net OPEB liabilities, as well as expanded
disclosure and supplementary reporting requirements.

325



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Management’s Process

Management’s recognition of the liability is based on allocation schedules and reports provided by the State Plans
which are subject to audit by the State Plans’ independent audit firm. Within the allocation schedules, the
retirement systems have provided each participating employer associated with the plan, the specific net pension
liability, deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows or resources that should be recorded within their
financial statements. The University’s proportionate share is determined annually based on the contributions
made to the individual plans by each participating employer. Even though the majority of the information is
obtained from the retirement systems’ audited schedules, the University is responsible for calculating certain
significant deferrals, amortization of deferrals and pension expense.

Our Audit Procedures

As the employer auditor, it is our responsibility to audit the employer’s financial statements and, therefore, we are
responsible for determining the sufficiency and appropriateness of audit evidence necessary to reduce audit risk to
an appropriately low level. Our audit procedures with respect to the impacts of GASB 68 were focused on assessing
the competency and objectivity of the plan auditor; agreeing management’s schedules to the retirement systems’
allocation schedules; recalculating the allocation percentage; recalculating the net pension liability/ expense and
reviewing management’s disclosures.

In addition, to the extent affiliate or component stand-alone financial statements are impacted via an allocation of
the pension liability, we reviewed management’s allocation methodology to ensure it was reasonable and
consistently applied.

326



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

.._________________

|
Required Communications to the Audit and

Compliance Committee

Matter to be communicated Auditor’s response
Fraud To date, we have not identified any potential or known fraud.
Tllegal acts To date, we have not identified any potential illegal acts.

Accounting policies and practices,  Significant accounting policies and practices, including:
critical accounting estimates and

Hited > e The initial selection of and changes in significant accounting policies
significant unusual transactions

and practices or their application in the current period

o  The effect on financial statements or disclosures of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas or areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or
diversity in practice.

The significant accounting policies used by University are disclosed within
the footnotes to the financial statements. There were no newly effective
accounting principles that significantly impacted the University’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2017. There were no significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas of focus for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or diversity in
practice. There are a number of accounting pronouncements that will be
effective for the University for fiscal year 2018, for which management’s
impact assessment is in progress. These include:

e  GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

e  GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements
e GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017
e GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues

Looking further ahead, the University will be required to implement the
new GASB Statements on Asset Retirement Obligations (FY 2019),
Fiduciary Activities (FY2020) and Leases (FY2021), all of which are likely
to impact the University’s financial statements and disclosures.

327



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Matter to be communicated Auditor’s response

Critical accounting estimates, including:

e A description of the process management used to identify and develop
critical accounting estimates

e Management’s significant assumptions used in critical accounting
estimates that have a high degree of subjectivity

e Any significant changes management made to the processes used to
develop critical accounting estimates or significant assumptions, a
description of management’s reasons for the changes, and the effects
of the changes on the financial statements.

The critical accounting estimates are those that require management’s
most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently
uncertain. The University’s critical accounting estimates are addressed on
pages 7-11 of this report.

Significant unusual transactions, including:

e  Significant transactions that are outside the normal course of
business of the company or that otherwise appear to be unusual due
to their timing, size , or nature

e The policies and practices management used to account for
significant unusual transactions.

On April 10, 2017, the University entered into a 50-year agreement to lease
the University’s utility system to ENGIE-Axium and grant it the exclusive
right to operate the utility system and provide utility services to the
Columbus campus. The University received an upfront payment of $1.1
billion on July 6, 2017. The agreement includes the sale of certain utility-
related equipment assets, which will be recognized in FY2018. The
majority of the remainder of the upfront payment will be recorded as
unearned revenue and amortized over the life of the agreement. This
transaction is disclosed as a subsequent event footnote to the financial
statements.

Quality of the company’s financial =~ We are required to communicate to the Audit Committee our views about

reporting the qualitative aspects of the company’s significant accounting policies
and practices, including situations in which we identified bias in
management’s judgments about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Specifically,

e The appropriateness of the significant accounting policies to the
particular circumstances of the entity

The accounting policies are consistent with standard industry practices
and are neither aggressive nor conservative.

e The results of our evaluation of the differences between (1) estimates
best supported by the audit evidence and (ii) estimates included in the
financial statements, which are individually reasonable, that indicate
a possible bias on the part of the entity's management

With respect to the University’s financial statements, we noted no matters
that we consider to be indicative of unreasonable bias on management’s
part. Refer to pages 7-11 of this report for further discussion on estimates.

328



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Matter to be communicated

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Auditor’s response

e The basis for our conclusions regarding the reasonableness of the
critical accounting estimates

With regard to accounting estimates, we have reviewed:
e management’s identification of accounting estimates;
e management’s process for making accounting estimates;
o risks of material misstatement;
e indicators of possible management bias; and
e disclosure of estimation uncertainty in the financial statements.

Refer to pages 7-11 of this report for further discussion on estimates. The
critical accounting estimates used appear reasonable based on procedures
performed.

e The results of our evaluation of whether the presentation of the
financial statements and the related disclosures are in conformity
with the applicable financial reporting framework, including our
consideration of the form, arrangement, and content of the financial
statements (including the accompanying notes)

The form, arrangement, and content of the financial statements (including
the accompanying notes) are materially consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

e The issues involved, and related judgments made, in formulating
particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures (for example,
disclosures related to revenue recognition, going concern, subsequent
events, and contingency issues)

There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures noted.

e The potential effect on the financial statements of significant
exposures and risks, and uncertainties, such as pending litigation,
that are disclosed in the financial statements

Relevant significant exposures and risks and uncertainties are
appropriately disclosed in the financial statements.

e  Corrected misstatements, other than those that are clearly trivial
related to accounts and disclosures that might not have been detected
except through the auditing procedures performed.

There have been no such misstatements detected through the auditing
procedures performed.

Alternative accounting treatments

We have not identified any alternative treatments permissible under US
GAAP for accounting policies and practices related to material items,
including recognition, measurement, and presentation and disclosure.

Independence re-evaluation

There were no independence matters that occurred or were identified
subsequent to the date of our most recent independence communication to
the Committee.

Significant issues discussed with
management prior to appointment
or retention

There were no significant issues discussed with management in connection
with the retention of PwC.

329



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Matter to be communicated Auditor’s response

Changes to the planned audit There have been no significant changes to our planned audit strategy.
strategy

Material uncertainties related to There have been no conditions and events that we identified that indicate
events and conditions (specifically  that there is substantial doubt about the University’s ability to continue as
going concern) a going concern.

Identified misstatements In connection with our audits, we are required to report to you any

adjustments, including disclosures, that we identified as a result of our
audit procedures and proposed to the University which 1) have been
recorded in the preparation of the financial statements (‘corrected
misstatements’) and/or 2) have not been recorded but evaluated by
management for materiality (‘uncorrected misstatements’).

- There were no corrected misstatements identified by PwC.

- See page 31 of Appendix C for additional information regarding
uncorrected misstatements. Uncorrected misstatements were deemed
to be immaterial both individually as well as in the aggregate.

Identified control deficiencies We considered the internal control structure of the University to gain a
basic understanding of the accounting system in order to design an
effective and efficient audit approach, though not specifically for the
purpose of providing assurance on the internal control structure.

We are required to report to you weaknesses in internal control which are
either “significant deficiencies” or “material weaknesses,” both of which
represent deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control
structure.

- Asignificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

- A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

To date, we have identified one significant deficiency in relation to one of
the Discretely Presented Component Units. This deficiency was deemed to
be a material weaknesses at the stand-alone component reporting level.
See page 33 within Appendix C for more details. We will issue our
recommendation letter regarding other control deficiencies noted upon
finalization of our procedures.

Other information in documents Our responsibility with respect to other information in documents
containing audited/reviewed containing audited financial statements is to consider whether its content
financial statements or manner of presentation is materially inconsistent with the financial

information covered by our report or whether it contains a material
misstatement of fact.

Should there be an annual report or bond offering that contains or
references the University’s audited financial statements, we will read the
those materials to ensure there are no material inconsistencies between the
audited financial statements and the other information in the Annual
Financial Report and the bond offering documents.

330



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

Matter to be communicated

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Auditor’s response

In addition, the University prepares management’s discussion and analysis
(MD&A) as well as supplementary information related to the allocation of
pension liabilities which is included within the financial reporting package.
This supplemental information required by GASB. We read this
information to make certain it is not inconsistent with the financial
statements; however, this information is not audited.

The University also prepares other information on the long-term
investment pool that is included within the financial reporting package.
This information is not required. We read this information to make certain
it is not inconsistent with the financial statements; however, this
information is not audited.

In cases where supplemental information, such as management’s
discussion and analysis, is included in financial statements submitted by
the auditor, we are also required to include a reference in our opinion
describing the supplemental information and our responsibility thereon
and that we issue no opinion thereon.

We have read the information contained within management’s discussion
and analysis as well as supplementary information. We have not identified
any inconsistencies and/or deficiencies associated with management’s
preparation of the financial statements and the related footnotes.

Disagreements with management

There were no disagreements with management.

Consultation with other
accountants

We are not aware of any such consultations management has had with
other accountants about significant accounting or auditing matters.

Difficulties encountered during the
audit

There were no significant difficulties encountered during the audit.

Other material written
communications

In accordance with our engagement letter, we are obligated to provide The
Audit and Compliance Committee with copies of all material written
communications between us and the University.

The engagement letter has been shared with the Chair of the Committee.

A draft of the University-level management representation letter is
included within Appendix C. Please note that we receive multiple letters of
representation for each significant component (Health Systems, OSU
Physicians, Foundation, Transportation Research Center, etc.). We have
not historically provided you with copies of all of those letters, but would
be pleased to do so if desired.

Departure from standard report

There were no departures from the standard reports. Drafts of our reports
are included in Appendix B. Any significant changes in the form of report
prior to finalization will be shared with the Committee.

Other matters

There were no other matters arising from the audit that are significant to
the oversight of the University’s financial reporting process.

Assessing our performance

We will review our relationship with the Audit and Compliance Committee,
covering our performance and the Audit Committee's and evaluate whether
the two-way communication has been adequate for the purpose of the
audit.

331



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

o

|
Appendix A: Status of Deliverables

332



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

o

Status of PwC Deliverables (as of October 23, 2017)
Target
Consolidated Completion
University Components Deliverables Date
Primary General University Financial Statement Audit Nov 6
ituti Opinion (GASB
Institution OSU Wexner Medical Center Health pinion ( )
System (OSU Health System)
GAGAS Internal Controls
Discretely OSU Physicians Opinion (including
Presented . procedures to support
Component Campus Partners for Corqrgurpty Urban compliance with Ohio
: Redevelopment and Subsidiaries (Campus .
Units Revised Code)
Partners)
Transportation Research Center Inc.
Dental Faculty Practice Association, Inc.
Other
Deliverables Reporting Entity Target Completion Date
Stand-alone OSU Foundation Oct 26
Financial
Statement Audits OSU Health System Completed
Transportation Research Center Nov 15
OSU Physicians Completed
Athletics Department Nov 8
WOSU Public Media Dec 15
OSU Global Gateways Completed
Campus Partners Nov 8
Compliance
Opinion Uniform Compliance Nov 30
Review Report Wexner Center for the Arts Oct 31
OSU Health Plan Nov 10
Agreed Upon
Procedures NCAA Nov 8
Benefit Plan
Audit Transportation Research Center — Benefit Plan Completed

333



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

o

|
Appendix B: Draft Form of Reports

334



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

.._________________

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio:

We have audited the financial statements of the primary institution and of the aggregate discretely
presented component units, which collectively comprise The Ohio State University (the “University”),
appearing on pages 19 to 22, which consist of the statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and
June 30, 2016, the related statements of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position and of
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the University’s basic financial statements. The University is a component unit of the

State of Ohio.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

335



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the primary institution and the aggregate discretely presented
component units of the University as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 18, and the Required
Supplementary Information on GASB 68 Pension Liabilities on page 87 are required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other information
on the long-term investment pool on pages 88 through 89 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6,
2017 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2017. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 6, 2017

336



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

.._________________

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University
Columbus, Ohio:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the primary institution and of the aggregate discretely
presented component units, which collectively comprise The Ohio State University (the “University”), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2017, appearing on pages 19 to 22, which consist of the statement of net position, the
related statements of revenues, expenses and other changes in net position and of cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2017. The University is a component
unit of the State of Ohio.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s internal control
over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We
did identify a certain deficiency in internal control described below that we consider to be a significant deficiency:

337



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Quersight and Monitoring of Key System Implementation

Observation: Transportation Research Center, Inc., (TRC), a component unit of the University, experienced a
number of significant changes over the course of the past year throughout many facets of the organization.
Namely, TRC implemented a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system in the last quarter of fiscal 2017;
experienced significant management turnover at both the executive level and within its accounting/finance
function; and embarked on significant strategic initiatives, including new business opportunities and sizable
contract negotiations, which have required the time and attention of executive management.

The challenges management faced with its ERP system conversion coupled with the nearly simultaneous
turnover of most of its accounting/finance group resulted in a number of accounting adjustments and delays in
the preparation of the financial statements. Examples include timely generation of accurate invoices; difficulty
completing a timely month-end general ledger ‘close’ process and related account reconciliations; and difficulty
extracting data from the system to generate supporting schedules used to substantiate account balances and
prepared financial statements and disclosures.

Implication: TRC’s business operations and relationships with customers could be negatively impacted by an
inability to timely generate accurate invoices. In addition, management is ultimately responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, respective changes in net
position, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, including the appropriate
selection and application of accounting policies. Both of the above depend upon the completeness and accuracy
of data within the ERP, as well as an accounting/finance team who can perform timely account reconciliations
and rigorous analysis and review of period end financial results.

Recommendation: In the near-term we recommend management focus on implementing controls to ensure
the completeness and accuracy of financial data coming from the ERP. In addition, management should
proactively look to fill the Controller and other accounting/finance positions currently open within TRC.
Going forward, TRC should adhere to University’s project management framework, or similarly robust
standards, when implementing new systems.

Management Response: TRC is working with a third-party consultant to analyze the current state of the system
and implement the needed functionality. The University’s Office of Business and Finance will monitor the
effectiveness of the system implementation corrections and internal control implementation to ensure the
completeness and accuracy of financial data. TRC’s senior leadership team, in coordination with TRC’s Board
of Directors, is evaluating the finance department. In addition, TRC’s board of directors is managing the
executive search for a permanent Chief Financial Officer, who will in turn hire a Controller.

The University’s Response to Finding

The University’s response to the finding above identified in our audit was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

338



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s basic financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the University’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

November 6, 2017

339



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

==

v

.
|

Appendix C: Draft Management Representation Letter

340



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

[OSU Letterhead]
November 6, 2017

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
41 South High Street

Suite 2500

Columbus, OH 43215

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the financial statements of The Ohio State
University (the “University”) as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 and for the years then ended for the
purpose of expressing opinions as to whether such financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position, changes in net position and cash flows of the primary
institution and aggregate discretely presented component units of the University in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We acknowledge and confirm that we have fulfilled our responsibility, as set out in our engagement letter
of May 17, 2017, for the preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position,
respective changes in net position, and of cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, including the appropriate selection and application of accounting policies. Certain
representations in this letter are described as being limited to those matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would have been changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. Materiality used for purposes of these representations is $ 5,000,000.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of November 6, 2017, the date of your report, the
following representations made to you during your audit(s):

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), and include all disclosures
necessary for such fair presentation and disclosures otherwise required to be included therein by the
laws and regulations to which the University is subject. We have prepared the University's financial
statements on the basis that the University is able to continue as a going concern, There are no
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are
available to be issued.

2. We have made available to you:
a. All financial records and related data.

b. Unconditional access to persons within the entity from whom you have requested audit evidence.

341



10.

27

November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

c. All minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees, the Audit and Compliance Committee, the
Finance Committee and other Committees of the Board and summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. The most recent meetings held were on:

(1) Board of Trustees — November 3, 2017
(2) Audit & Compliance Committee — November 2, 2017
(3) Finance Committee — November 2, 2017

We have appropriately reconciled our books and records (e.g., general ledger accounts) underlying the
financial statements to their related supporting information (e.g., sub ledger or third-party data). All
related reconciling items considered to be material were identified and included on the reconciliations
and were appropriately adjusted in the financial statements, as necessary. There were no material
unreconciled differences or material general ledger suspense account items that should have been
adjusted or reclassified to another account balance. There were no material general ledger suspense
account items written off to a balance sheet account, which should have been written off to an income
statement account and vice versa. All consolidating entries have been properly recorded. All intra-
entity accounts have been eliminated or appropriately measured and considered for disclosure in the
financial statements.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or
deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

There are no material transactions, agreements or accounts that have not been properly recorded in
the accounting records underlying the financial statements.

The effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements and out-of-period adjustments
summarized in the accompanying schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

We acknowledge and confirm that we have fulfilled our responsibility, as set out in our engagement
letter of May 17, 2017, for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and we have disclosed to you all deficiencies in the
design or operation of internal control over financial reporting of which we are aware. We have also
disclosed to you, in the accompanying schedule, which of these deficiencies we believe are significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting,.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to
provide reasonable assurance that fraud is prevented and detected.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud and we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the University involving:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting, or

c¢. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the University received
in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

342



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

28

November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

(As to items 8, 9 and 10, we understand the term "fraud" to mean those matters described in AICPA
AU-C 240.)

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us.

We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

We have identified and disclosed to you violations (and possible violations) of laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the
financial statements, as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for auditor reporting on non-
compliance.

We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, illegal acts, and violations of provisions
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that you report.

The University has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the University's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

The following, if material, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Relationships and transactions with related-parties, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the University is contingently liable.

c. Significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are required to be
disclosed. (Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change
materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available
sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which events could occur that would
significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.)

The University has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed in the financial
statements.

The University has complied with all aspects of contractual and grant agreements that would have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent bona fide claims against debtors for
services or other charges arising on or before the balance sheet dates and are not subject to discount
except for normal cash discounts. Receivables classified as current do not include any material
amounts which are collectible after one year. All receivables have been appropriately reduced to their
estimated net realizable value.

Inventories recorded in the financial statements for the University are stated at the lower of moving
average cost or market. The inventories of the Health System are valued at, cost being determined on
the basis of first-in, first-out basis and due provision was made to reduce all slow-moving, obsolete, or
unusable inventories to their estimated useful or scrap values. Inventory quantities at the balance

343



22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

29

November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

sheet dates were determined from physical counts or from perpetual inventory records, which have
been adjusted on the basis of physical inventories taken by competent employees at various times
during the year. Liabilities for amounts unpaid are recorded for all items included in inventories at
balance sheet dates and all quantities billed to customers at those dates are excluded from the
inventory balances.

All liabilities of the University of which we are aware are included in the financial statements at the
balance sheet dates. There are no other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be
accrued or disclosed, and no unasserted claims or assessments that our legal counsel has advised us
are probable of assertion and required to be disclosed in accordance with that Topic.

We are responsible for all significant estimates and judgments affecting the financial statements.
Significant estimates and judgments and their underlying assumptions, methods, procedures and the
source and reliability of supporting data are reasonable and based on applicable guidance, are
completely and appropriately disclosed in the financial statements, and appropriately reflect
management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action, where relevant. The
procedures and methods utilized in developing assumptions, estimates and judgments are
appropriate and have been consistently applied in the periods presented. There have been no
subsequent events which would require the adjustment of any significant estimate and related
disclosures.

All borrowings and financial obligations of the University and its components have been disclosed to
you and are properly recorded and disclosed in the financial statements. Further, we appropriately
classified debt as current or non-current in the statement of net position in accordance with the
appropriate authoritative guidance.

Investments in the Long-Term Portfolio are in compliance with the University's asset allocation
policy.

We are responsible for the fair value of estimates related to temporary investments, the Long-term
Investment Pool, other long-term investments, and securities loaned by the University under its
securities lending program, including real assets, hedge funds and private equity securities, and
determined the models, methods and assumptions used by pricing services and other parties are
reasonable. In addition, the measurement of fair value and related fair value levelling hierarchy
presented within the notes to the financials is consistent with the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.

Tax-exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status

The University has properly recorded, classified and disclosed net position in accordance with GASB
Statement 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public
Colleges and Universities. Net position resulting from transactions with externally-imposed purpose
restrictions have been recorded, classified and disclosed as restricted net position until the specific
resources are used for the required purpose or for as long as the provider requires the resources to
remain intact. Restricted net position has been appropriately classified as nonexpendable or
expendable.

The University has one segment that meets the GASB reporting requirements; in that the segment has
a specific identifiable revenue stream pledged in support of revenue bonds or other revenue-backed
debt and has related expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities that can be identified. The
condensed financial information for the Special Purpose Revenue Facilities as presented in the
footnotes to the financial statements was prepared on a basis consistent with the University financial
statements.

344



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

We assume responsibility for the findings of specialists. We did not give or cause any instructions to
be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work,
and we are not aware of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of
the specialists. We adequately considered qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts
and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records related to self-
insurance reserves for medical malpractice.

We have presented, in either the statement of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position
or the notes to the financial statements, information about expenses (but not losses) reported by their
functional classification, such as major classes of program services and supporting activities.
Expenses that relate to more than one program or supporting activity, or to a combination of
programs and supporting services, have been appropriately allocated among the appropriate
functions. Administrative allocations to the functional categories were based on full cost allocations.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary information on
GASB 68 pension liabilities that are mandatory for all cost-sharing employers. We believe such
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 68, as amended. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used
in the prior period. We have informed you about any significant assumptions or interpretations
underlying the measurement or presentation of the information.

The University is exempt from taxes as an instrumentality of the State of Ohio under Internal
Revenue Code S115 and Internal Revenue Service regulations. Any unrelated business income is
taxable.

We have notified you of (i) any current or planned offerings of securities on a regulated market in a
non-U.S. country or (ii) when we have provided or plan to provide audited financial statements to a
non-U.S. regulator or government in connection with our access to its public capital markets, whether
or not we include or refer to your report or include reference to your Firm.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, except as disclosed in Note 22, no events have occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to
or disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements.

Geoffrey S. Chatas
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Kristine G. Devine
Vice-President of Financial Operations and Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

Lisa A. Plaga
Interim Controller

Thomas F. Ewing
Director of Financial Reporting

30

345



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Summary of Uncorrected Financial Statement Misstatements

The following adjustments were either (a) identified in the current year and not recorded in the financial
statements (unadjusted misstatements), or (b) identified in the current year but were related to the prior
years and corrected in the current year financial statements (out of period adjustments). Management
has determined them to be qualitatively and quantitatively immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate:

Primary Institution:

Unadjusted misstatements — FY 17:

1)

2)

3)

A current period adjustment was identified related to the medical malpractice liability accrual.
The difference between management’s estimate and the top end of the range (point estimate +
10%) is $9.1 million. The adjustment results in a decrease in liability and expense. This
adjustment is recurring in nature based on the University’s consistently conservative approach to
recording this estimate.

A current period adjustment was identified related to the cut off in Net patient service revenue of
$4.6 million, which related to services provided before 6/30/2017, but not recorded until fiscal
2018. The adjustment results in an increase in accounts receivable and revenue. This is a
recurring adjustment and as such refer to the rollover section for the rollover impact.

An estimated current period adjustment was identified related to credit balances in patient
accounts receivable of $14.7 million, that represent net patient accounts receivable balances that
have been adjusted in excess of the amount of cash collected and earned by the Health System.
These adjustments represent overstatements of contractual and bad debt expense at 6/30/2017
that are not reversed until fiscal 2018 upon investigation of the claim. The adjustment results in a
decrease to the liability (as credits within accounts receivable were reclassified) and an increase to
net patient service revenue, through a reduction of contractual and bad debt expense. This is a
recurring adjustment and as such refer to the rollover section for the rollover impact.

The total effect on the primary institution’s relevant metrics are as follows:

e Total Revenues ($19,353) / 0.30%
e Total Expenses ($9,119) / -0.15%
e Total End of Year Net Position ($28,472) / 0.52%

Out of Period Adjustments — FY 17:

1)

2)

31

An out of period adjustment was identified related to the cut off in Net patient service revenue of
$6.5 million, which related to services provided before 6/30/2016, but not recorded until fiscal
2017. As the patient revenue recorded in the current year related to services provided in fiscal
year 2016, there is an overstatement of revenue and receivables in the current year.

An estimated out of period adjustment was identified related to credit balances in patient
accounts receivable of $11.7 million, that represent net patient accounts receivable balances that
have been adjusted in excess of the amount of cash collected and earned by the Health System.
These adjustments represent overstatements of contractual and bad debt expense as of
6/30/2016 and are not reversed until fiscal 2017 upon investigation of the claim. The adjustment
for the reversal of credit balances results in a decrease to credit balance liability and increase in
net patient service revenue, through a reduction of contractual/bad debt expense. As the reversal
of these excess adjustments on patient accounts recorded in the current year relate to balances as
of 6/30/2016, there is an overstatement of net patient revenue in the current year.

346



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

The total effect on the primary institution’s relevant metrics are as follows:
e Total Revenues $18,220 / -0.28%
e Total Expenses $-/0.00%

Roll over impact of misstatement — FY 17

In addition to evaluating the uncorrected misstatements that relate to the current year and those that
relate to the prior year on an individual basis, the net rollover impact of the errors have been evaluated as
follows:

1) The net roll over impact of the net patient revenue cut-off (charge-lag) adjustments on the current
year financial statements is $1.9 million (net overstatement in current year).

2) The net roll over impact of credit balances on the current year financial statements is estimated at
$3 million (net understatement in current year).

The total effect on the primary institution’s relevant metrics are as follows:

e Total Revenues ($1,133) / -0.02%
o Total Expenses ($9,119) / -0.15%
e Total End of Year Net Position ($10,252) / 0.19%

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Unadjusted misstatements — FY 17: None noted

Out of Period Adjustment — FY 17:

1) One out of period adjustment was identified related to Discretely Presented Component Units
(specifically Campus Partners). This was deemed immaterial in relation to both current and prior year
financial statements and disclosures.

Overstatement of current period revenue (reflected within net operating expenses) / understatement
of opening net position ($1.2M in FY17 that should have been reflected in FY16)

The total effect on the discretely presented component unit’s relevant metrics are as follows:
e Total Revenues $-/0.00%
e Total Expenses $1,159 / 0.21%

32

347



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University Report to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees

Significant deficiency in internal control related to the Discretely Presented Component Units

Oversight and Monitoring of Key System Implementation

Observation: Transportation Research Center, Inc., (TRC), a component of The Ohio State University,
experienced a number of significant changes over the course of the past year throughout many facets of the
organization. Namely, TRC implemented a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system in the last quarter
of fiscal 2017; experienced significant management turnover at both the executive level and within its
accounting/finance function; and embarked on significant strategic initiatives, including new business
opportunities and sizable contract negotiations, which have required the time and attention of executive
management.

The challenges management faced with its ERP system conversion coupled with the nearly simultaneous
turnover of most of its accounting/finance group resulted in a number of accounting adjustments and delays in
the preparation of the financial statements. Examples include timely generation of accurate invoices; difficulty
completing a timely month-end general ledger ‘close’ process and related account reconciliations; and difficulty
extracting data from the system to generate supporting schedules used to substantiate account balances and
prepared financial statements and disclosures.

Implication: TRC’s business operations and relationships with customers could be negatively impacted by an
inability to timely generate accurate invoices. In addition, management is ultimately responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, respective changes in net
position, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, including the appropriate
selection and application of accounting policies. Both of the above depend upon the completeness and accuracy
of data within the ERP, as well as an accounting/finance team who can perform timely account reconciliations
and rigorous analysis and review of period end financial results.

Recommendation: In the near-term we recommend management focus on implementing controls to ensure
the completeness and accuracy of financial data coming from the ERP. In addition, management should
proactively look to fill the Controller and other accounting/finance positions currently open within TRC.
Going forward, TRC should adhere to University’s project management framework, or similarly robust
standards, when implementing new systems.

Management Response: TRC is working with a third-party consultant to analyze the current state of the system
and implement the needed functionality. The University’s Office of Business and Finance will monitor the
effectiveness of the system implementation corrections and internal control implementation to ensure the
completeness and accuracy of financial data. TRC’s senior leadership team, in coordination with TRC’s Board
of Directors, is evaluating the finance department. In addition, TRC’s board of directors is managing the
executive search for a permanent Chief Financial Officer, who will in turn hire a Controller.

348



November 2017 Board Meeting - Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting

'!liiu.’ 13 |
(B ".

© 2017 PwC. All rights reserved. PwWC refers to the US member firm or one of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and may sometimes refer to the PwC
network. Each member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.

349



0G€

SNOMNOY-ALIHYVD S31VDO
ALIdO3ILNI ANV IDONVITdINOD ALISHIAINN 40 321440

A311NID 43IHdOLSIHYHD
S¥Y1V44dv 1v5H31 40 301440

LT0OT ‘T 43qUWISAON
99 lwwo) dueljdwo) pue JHpny

O

weugold Allugalu| pue aosueljdwo)

Bunes| 88niWwiWo) soueldwo) pue Jipny - Bunes|y pJeog /1 0Z J8qWSAON




LGE

sasndwed |euoidas 1e 3uidanN0saJs papaau pue swesdosd dueldwod A1) Uuo SNJ04 =
Suiuaepn Ajwi] pue uo1309]|02 ejep anosdw) 03 ss9204d Sul3iodal YS) SUIPUNOIINS S|OJIUOD BUIjWEedNIS =
S|0J41u0d 91ewolne 01 Alljige 3yl 9ziwixew 03 303[04d 9S1dIdIUT YUM MIONN =
s9ss9204d 3uj3iodad pue ‘Sujuiesy ‘UOIIBIIHIUIPI YSD JNO IZI|EUASS PUR MIIADY =
sdals IXaN

3e94Y3 SUINUIU0I 10 SNOIJIDS e JuasaJd Jey) Sawild Jo4 sisAjeue Sujuiepp Ajpwi] Jo uonzeusawndop 3uinosdw| =
Ayiadoud sndwed-uou Jo |0J3U0D 10} B1ep JO UOI}D||0d panosdw| =
ouel|dwod 19y SaIHUNWWO) pue s|jooyds 3344 3nug Moddns 03 9417 Jusapnis yum diysiauiied pajenyiu| =
SYSD Jo 3ululesy uosiad-ul pajusawndoq =
91BUIPJO0I JO UMO SHUN 1Byl S92IN0S3J pue ‘sainpadold
‘sa1n1jod Jo |enosdde pue MaIAJ |NJ2J4ed 04 uoIle3dadxa ue Yyum ‘ssadodd jo-udis Jadxa Juajuod pajuswa|dw| =
1odaJ 9T Q¢ 1eaA Jepudje) 10} sjudwadnosduwil SS9204d

sjuawadinbaJ asay3 Suilaadiajul dduepingd aAISUIXa sapinosd uolleonpd jo Juswiedaq ay] (90N =
807 2414 pue 307 sw) Ajleqg e utejutew pue ysiignd =
(sua)vaAaoNng) s1iaje Aduadiawsa pue (S22130N Alajes 21|gnd) sSutuiem awd Ajpwiy anss| =
Jeah yoes T 49q0o320 Aq Allunwiwod sndwed 03 aInquisip pue (YSy) 1oday Ayundas jenuuy ysignd =
(sv¥SD) sanuoyiny Aunaas sndwe) pue JuswadJ0jus Me| WOy SO11S13e1S pue s1iodad awld Ajisse|d pue 309)|0) =
sjudwdJinbaa Asojen8ay

sawilio sndwpd Jo buiziodal jpnuub apnjoul 03 A1afps sndwpd ainsuz

sunuoday Alajes |enuuy 30y Aig|D

Bunes| 88niWwiWo) soueldwo) pue Jipny - Bunes|y pJeog /1 0Z J8qWSAON



41

S3U3PNIS 0OOT UBY3 SS3] YHM UOIINYIASUI 3suleSe palAa] sem auly 1sadle| ‘s3uapnis 000°ZT YiM AlsIaaiun
B SBM S3SED palJodal Ul 8yl Ul PAAJOAUL UOIINIISUI 1598.e| 9Y1 "000°0TZ$-000'0ES WoJuy 38ues ZTOZ Ul SQuUld =

91enbape S| S213S11e3S 92110391ed pue Jayied 01 SS9204d S,u01INHISUI DY JOYIDYM Ul 3S9493Ul UISeaIdU| =
pajou Ajjuanbauy aJe $21351381S WD Ul S10449 Sulpiedas s3uipul{ =

syuawaJinbau (Y)S4a) 1oV sasndwe) pue s|jooyds 9344 Snig 199w 0} aunjie{ =

S9WIJI SNOIJSS 9J0W JO UOISSIWO J0j PIAIAI| SDUIY JBYSIY — SDWIID PA1}IWO JOH =

SO13S1381S SWIJD SNOBUOJIT =

saIo1jod |euoliniiisul 939|dwodul Jo 93enbapeu|

1oday A1undss |enuuy syl aanquiasip Jo/pue ysijgnd o1 aunjie{ =

s3o| a1} Jo/pue sawd Ajlep a19|dwodul JO 91eINJJeU| =
:apnjoul JeaA siy3 9oueljdwod-uou Jo S3uipul} UOWWO) =
(91ep 03 4edA) £TOZ Ul S1H0day Mmalnay weadold 0T paysiignd sey uolleonp3 jo Juswiiedaq =

aueljdwod-uou jo sulpulj ul spua.y

Aepoy uolfjiw GS Ajueau ag pjnom aulj uol||iw t°ZS S,91.1S Uuad ‘@inionJis Ajjeuad siyy Jspun =
uone|olA Jad 000‘SSS AlJeau 01 000‘SES WO LTOT Ul PaSeasdul SJUNOWEe aul) WNWIXEIA =

sanjjeuad |epueul

JUapIdUI J14109ds e 01 uoljualle elpaw 4o ‘Aduasedsuedy Jo A}ajes 1noge syuiejdwod
JO suJanied Jo |enpialpul Sulpn|aul ‘si03oe) snosawnu Aq pasad3iil 99 Aew sypne uoneonpl jo usawiiedaq =

SMIIADJ 10} snyaduw|

SUOI1IY JUaWAI0UT 32y AI3)

Bunes| 88niWwiWo) soueldwo) pue Jipny - Bunes|y pJeog /1 0Z J8qWSAON



1%

€G¢

'suoI1e|oIA meT s,uodeapn OlyQ pue
‘ades Aio1niels ‘1s90ul ‘@aua8i|3su Ag J91ySnejsuew ‘uaydne|suew 1uasdiSau
-UOU pue JapJnw :9T Qg Ul S1odad g 01 aNp sawiId SUIMO||0) 3yl SHWO d|qe] ,

0 0 14 ST10¢
sawid ajeH
T € :14 9102
4 0 SET ST10¢
s|ed19)9y me] Snug
0 T 6S¢C 9102
0 L 19T STOC
s|ea19)9y Mmeq [oyod|y
(4 T T€E6T 910C
T 4 14 STOC
sisasly me]8nug
L 9 T€E 910C
9 0 6TT STOC
S1S344y MeT [0yOod |y
LT T €0T 910C
0 0 ST STOC
Supjeis
0 T (474 910C
4 T 6T ST0TC
asuajoip Suneq
0 [4 8T 9102
0 14 14 ST0¢
32U3|0IA d13IsdWOQ
0 [4 0T 9102
0 T €T ST0C
Suijpuoy
0 [ [44 9T0C
0 S ST ST0C
adey
0 S 19 9102
€T 0 S ST0C
Aiaqqoy
L [4 L 910C
S S € ST0C
HIYL 3]PIYap 1010\
€ 9 (4" 910C
0 (4% i ST0¢
Asej8ung
0 € 6T 9102
0 0 € ST0¢
uosay
0 0 [4 910C
T T L STOC
1 nessy paienesSsy
S T 9T 910C

sndwed uo pasnoy SluapPNISs Ul dSeaIdUl %0E Y3
Y3IM JU3SISU0d ‘@wldd sndwed jo Aso3a1ed Asana
AjJeau ul aseasoul ue sem aJay3 ‘paldadxa sy

sndwed

JJ0 pauund20 Aay) 1eyl 1n0 s|nJ 30U p|Nod

AlIs19AIUN Y1 9SNEIS( PIIUN0I 1M sadel
T9 3U3 JO HZ 18yl S9ljlIE|d YSV Ul 210U1004 =

sieahA omy 1sed ayl

J9N0 %(0€ JO 9SEAIIU| UB ‘JONPUOISIW |BNXDS

10 }jnesse [enxas JO JodaJ e ayew 0} 319yM

1noge ajqeaspaimous AJaA J0 1eymawos
2J9m AsAuns sndwed ul SJuapnis JO %// =

LHoddng=110day, 1eyl
3ui3essaw s,A}ISI9AIUN BY) pUB ‘SSDudieme
S9SE3JIUI YoIym ‘1 DJysaAaong 4o 3nsau

e se 3uilu0daJ uo 10944 935 03 SUINUIIUOD) =

adel Jo s140dau ul aseasdul jelyuelsgns

1uapIdUl
[IeH S11eM 2Y3 03 anp 1ied a3ue| ul ‘Ajjernueisgns
paseaJdul }nessy pajeAes33y pue saw) aleH
uJajueq ayi pue yI9N

‘909V ‘ALOT ‘yYdiedsiq snquinjo) Aq paano)
LT0Z/62/6 uo ausgam A1ajes aljqnd uo palsod

(4SV) 1oday Apandag jenuuy

S213S1181S W) 9T0Z NSO PV A1)

Bunespy eaniwwoy soueldwo) pue upny - Buies|y pieog /10g J8qWaAoN



1251

1odas snieis /T0z/ST/0T 9y Ul papnjoul aq 03 paJinbal
s1 1odaJ ssauSoud [eulj aUo Jaylaym 01 Se YO Wouy Jeay o} Suniemy

“oeqpas,
¥J0 Sunieme ‘pueq Suiydosew ay) 01 199dsal YUM sASAINS S1ewl|d|
Sulo8uo Suissaippe uoleusaWNd0p papnjoul Jodal sniels £10z/ST/9

Joedl ug | 9jdwo)y  913jdwo)

(#T/ST/0T 8uluuidaq) YOO 01 1odau ssaidoud Ajaarienb nwgng

‘uonejuawa|dwi SuiNuiuo)) (¥T/T/TT) suonde aA1393.40 10y 3|qelawil padolanaq

*£T0T/¥T/¥ uo asuodsal Jiay3 ul YD0 Aq panoiddy “1ioday

SN1e1s 9T/G/8 Ul WNPUSPPE B Ul SANSS| SS2IPPE 0} , S)udwanosdwy
$S320.d,, PaIJ13UBPI JO UOIIEIUBWINIOP PIRIWGNS ‘WNPUSPPE|
ST/ST/6 pue 1iodal snjes GT/£Z/¢ Ul ¥DO 03 sBulpuly pajioday|

V/N 919|dwo)y  919|dwo) (jenoadde ¥ Jo sAep Qg ulyum) swajqoad paiauapl ssappe o) uonde aleudoidde axe |

(ST/ST/1) UoneBisaAul
9|ge1nba pue 1dwoud 1o} siule|dwod Juswsseley |eNXas JO S1eaA € 15e| pamalnay

"Hodal sniels £107/ST/0T Ul 40 03 3Uas 3q ||Im AsAns

S3eWl|d £T-9TAY Y3 O S}NsaYy “Hodal snieis £T07/ST/9 Ul Uoleulwassip
ASAuns a1ewi|d £T-9TAY JO jooud paniwgns ‘810z Alenuer aiojaq|

JO UO P3IUWIQNS 3] [|IM SUOIIBPUSWWOII UdNILIM ‘uodal sniels /T/ST/T|
ul pajou sy ‘AsAins a1ewd £T-9TAY Paleulwsassip pue padojana(| (lenuue)
91eudosdde se Sululel) pue suollde |euonIppe J0) paau Ajnuapl 01 s3nsaJ Aaauns azAjeuy
(£1/01/€-S/7) Aenuns a1ewi|d |enuue pa1danpuod pue padojanag

(9T/22/P-£2/€) Aonins a1ewi|d |enuue pa1donpuod pue padojaasg

(#T/ST/2T) M3inau uo paseq ajelidoidde se suoioe papuswwodas padojaasg
(PT/ST/TT) Swuiejdwod Juawsseley [enxas Jo sieaA 7 15e| pamalnay

(#T/0€/6) Aanins ajewi|d pue x| @111 uo dnoid Supiom sndwed paysijqels3

(ST/ST/T) wea] uoieyNsuo) adU3|OIA [BNXIS 03 dAIBIUSSAIdAL YHO PAPPY

oeJj u oeJ] U 919|dwo;
19eqpa34 ¥IO| HFRLED | ety _ 2
Suiyieme ‘1odau snie1s /T/ST/T Ul S1NSaJ UO Paseq SUOIIBPUSWIWO0I3

US33IM pue ASAINS 31BWIID 9T-GTAY 4O SINSI PRGNS

‘8uiuieuy Jo pasu ul sdnoJus jeuonippe Ajuspi 03 sisAjeue]
Asnuns Buluui8aq ‘9T /zz/v — £2/€ PA19NPU0I ASAINS 31RWID 9T-GTAV

*110daJ sniels|

9T/ST/0T Ul SAaAIns 21ewid 9T-STAV PUB ST-YTAV Y1 Y109 Ul paiyiauapl
sdnoJg o1y1dads 01 papiroid Suuies) UO UOIIBIUSWINDOP PAINWIQNS (lenuue) Asains a1ewi|d ul paynuaspl sdnous oiy1oads 03 Su
(9T/0T/9) 4e2A JEpud|ed Snoinaid Sulinp palonpuod Sululel) X| 3111 [ENUUR PALJLIBA
(T/ST/TT) Ssauapnis Suiwooul oy s|elia1ew pue wetSoJd uoijelualIo PasIAal PUB PAMBINSY
(#T/ST/2T) seaAojdwa Joy sjnpow SBujulely X| 9311 payiuap|

(¥T/ST/2T) 8ulules) J01e81SaAUL pue J01eulpJoo) X| 3L padojaaaq

(#T/ST/2T) Spaepuels Juawaaldy

uol1n|osay yum Adoualsisuod ainsus 01 SuiwwesSoud 191U SSBU|[IA JUSPNIS PAIMBINSY

"340daJ SN1eIS 9T/QT/9 Ul YDO 03 Jedh Jepua|ed) SRIAWOoHESIRICWOD 19331 au0d

snoiaaud Sulnp pa3anpuod Sululeu) x| 3[31L JO SIUSPIAS PaIIWGNS

L102/¥T/Y]
uo asuodsau 419yl ul YO Aq panoidde sjelisiew Sujuies) pasinay

»}oeqpasj ¥JO Sunieme 11o0das sniels|
LT/ST/9 U1 420 03 sule|dwod £TOZ-9TOT AV UO UOIBWLIOJUI pa1IwWgns|

(£T/ST/9) ¥DO 01 Jeah ojwapede Surnp sjule|dwod UO UOIIBWIOUI [ENUUE PIRIWGNS
(9T/0T/9) ¥DO 01 JeaA djwapede SuLnp sjule|dwWod UO UOIBWIOUI [ENUUE PRRIIWGNS
speqPa3} 40 SuniEme Siodal snies (9T/ST/0T) 1odau ssaifoad Yyjuaalaulu Ul SUOIIBIIUNWIWOD >u__w.u_ JO 92UIPINS PRGNS
91/8/¥ panoidde | 0g ‘Ad1jod 1onpuodsiA |enxas

9T/0T/9 Ul YJ0 01 sjule|dwod 9TOZ-STOZ AV UO UOIIBW.IOUI PRIHIWIgNS| JoelluQ | dPedLuQ  @9|dwo) PasiAB1 3U1 YIIM 1UB]SISUOD 19NPUOY) JUIPNIS JO P07 BU1 PasIABY *(1aUIge?) s,1UdpIsald
‘Modal 13d 9T/€7/8 2A1199)J9) SN1LIS [BUI) O} WIISIUI WO U e) Adljod 19NPUOISIIA [eNXaS

snje1s 9T/ST/0T Ul Ajlunwwiod 33e1s o1y 03 pajedlunwiwiod sem Adijod (¥T/ST/0T) A2ua151SU02 Joj S3101j0d JUBWISSEIRY [ENXIS ||B PISIASL PUB PIMIIASY
palepdn moy jo jooud pajnwgns “uodad snieis 9T/5/g ul Y0 01 Adijod (¥T/ST/0T) @3sgam ad1jod sndwe) uo yul| 3 nessy |enxas Suipioday, pasinay
19NPUOISI|Al [BNX3S [EULJ PUE 19NPUOD JUSPNIS JO 9POD PISIAL PalHIWIgNS (#T/ST/0T) @1e1idoidde se auljuo 1s0d pue UOIIBUIWILIISIPUON JO I1ION PasIAaY

}J9W SsjuawWaJinbal 919|dwo)y 919|dwo)  3’|dwo) (vT/ST/2T)
sjule|dwod x| 9311 ||e 40} Ss920.d JUaWASEUBLW JUSWNIOP PIIEUIPIOOD B Paleas)

Jaw syuawadinbau 19| dwo) 919 dwo)  3d|dwo) (#T/ST/TT) Joreupiood
XI 9311 5,9181S 0IYyQ JO sanljiqisuodsas pue s3]0 ay1 Sululj3no JuaWILIS Pa|IeIap paysignd

LT 9T~ ST-¥10

snjeis sdais

Aoy

SNIDIS PUD M3BINIBAO

UBWIBIZY uolIN|osay YIO :XI AL

Bunes| 88niWwiWo) soueldwo) pue Jipny - Bunes|y pJeog /1 0Z J8qWSAON



GGe

PIpPaIdN UORIY - [E0DH MOJ2g . *950]2 A4 B3 J91Je JedA BUO [13UN dAeIUISAIdD)
_”_ Se PIM3IA 3¢ 10U 3G PNOYS eIRQ "P3SO|D 3. SN MOJ|0} ||e [1AUN 332|dw0d J0u S| JedA [RISY B J0j BlRQ,
MC_Cwm.._O\S OUCNELOtw&\quECOV_ IAU3 \_/ uonne) _H_ SUOI19B JB|IWIS JBY10 JO ‘sSuluiem ‘suoloues ‘suolieqold ‘sauly ‘supne sapnpaul,
doed] CO\@MC eyn Hcmu_u—_cm_m ON & _H_ Ajuo 221440 sp4093Y 21|qnd Aq passadoid,
mc_>OLQE_ wucm_.c‘_otmn_\ucwc._co._;cm_ /_\ |e0D SPI3IX] 10 SILS9N . LT/T/0T Y8NOIY3 LT/T/L WOy e3P SApN|ou,
puaiyl Suney ssauanndayy3 uonesimn S3LONLOO4 ® SINININOD
— — %T %I J91e| 410 dn-moj|04 pJIYl 18 paJea|d sSulpuly JeaA |BISI) PIA|OSAU JO JUDIAd T
— — %ST %ET dn-moj|0) puodas 1e paea|d sSuipuly JeaA |eIsly PIA|OSAU JO JUBIBd ‘T

, S8ulpul 3pny [eussiu) 3]

€T _ [4 _ [0 _ L _ suonoe Aioje|n3al Jusund Jo JaquinN ‘T
(s 10 1 pajey) Suony Aoren8ay -af

%0¢C %LT %CS %LE %99 s3uipul} yum suolesiisanul paso|d Jo 1A €

S ST 6T 91 91 JeaA |easly ay3 Ul Pasod suolles|IsaAul JO JAqUINN ‘T

S LT LT 0t LT Je3A |easiy ay3 ul pauado suole8insaAul Jo JaquinN ‘T

(g 40 ¢ pared) suonesisanu| [eusdiu| -

[4) 91 ST TC 1 s1sanbau spuodal ||e ||1} 01 SAep a8esany 'z

[4:3% 896 w8 69L 9.8 paso|d s1sanbaJ spiodad Jo JaquinN ‘T

,SP1033y d11gnd *g

(sa140833e2 aA0qe Ul painided jou sjuawadinbad Adjjod Jo ‘|eSs| ‘Alorein3au 198w 03 ainjiey) ddueljdwo) ‘g1
(saAnn2alqo JuawadueApy Jo ‘sdiysuonejas luwnje ‘puelq NSO Suioedwi SUSAS) JUBWBIUBAPY “TT
(3uaje1 ute1as 1o ‘dojansp ‘PdeJlIe 01 3.Njley) d4nNYN) pue udjel 0T

(sdiysuoire|a axeliye Jo ‘ANUNWWod “YUaWUIaA0S dojaASp pue JoJuOW 0) 3iNjie)) SIJeIjIHY PUE AHUNWWO) ‘QUSWUIBA0Y *

(A134es sndwed Buipnjoul ‘suoiiesado Suio3uo Sunoedwi 3uaAs Jofew !ainonJiselyul Jo sso|) jJudawuodinug |edisAyd
eul) |enueuly
(s933|00 paie|a4 pue waisAs yijeay ayi Jo dduewlopad Ul uondnpal Juedyiusis) |ealpan

NS 8N W o

(seA1109[q0 JUBWUIRILOD 1502 JO ‘BnuaAaJ ‘|enided yoeal 01 Ay

(uoniejoin yyIN uedlyiudis Suipnjaul ‘suoijesado s2138|y3y 03 uoidnisip Jo su) SINB|YIY

nwt_ JUapnis 03 SAIONPUOI JUBWUOJIAUS Uk ulejulew 0} >u___QmC_v 9417 yuapnis

(e1ep 199104d Jo ‘Nwsuesy ‘dojanap ‘a101s 01 Aljigeur) ASojouyaa) uonewsopu|

(yoJeasau oy1auaIds 10 djwapede Juedlyiudis wioylad 03 Ayjiqe 03 saduajjeyd) diyssejoyds

T12(T|T(3]<|T| (T[T

(suapnis/A3naey 10138 01 AljIge Ul WY ‘SUlpue)s JIWapPedE Ul 95eaJd9p 0} palejal sysi) uonesnpy °T

<[TTIT TS T T
<< T|T|T|T(TIT|<| TR

SS3UAAIRY] UoneSIA YsIY d1Sa1ens vy

sneis
L1-9T0C = 9T-STO0T J3L1LINWOJ IDNVITdINOD ANV LidNVY

juaLIn)

LT0Z 4390320 ysnodyl | 8TAS ALISHAAING TLVIS OIHQ TIH] o
Sunea pieog £10T 19qWINON

Bunes| 88niWwiWo) soueldwo) pue Jipny - Bunes|y pJeog /1 0Z J8qWSAON



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT LIFE COMMITTEE MEETING

Clark C. Kellogg
Cheryl L. Krueger
Janet B. Reid
Timothy P. Smucker
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Abigail S. Wexner
Hiroyuki Fujita
Alan A. Stockmeister
H. Jordan Moseley
James D. Klingbeil
Richard K. Herrmann
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Location: Recreation and Physical Activity Center (RPAC) Time: 3:00-4:45pm
Meeting Rooms 1-2, B255/B257

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
A Life in Motion: Advancing Student Success and Learning - Dr. Adams-Gaston, 3:00-3:20pm
Dr. Stenta
Student Success: Understanding the Data and Our Path Forward - Dr. McPheron, 3:20-3:50pm
Mr. Granger, Ms. Hume
Digital Flagship Swift Coding - Dr. McPheron, Mr. Tressler 3:50-4:05pm

ITEMS FOR ACTION

Faculty Personnel Actions - Dr. McPheron 4:05-4:20pm
Amendments to the Rules of the University Faculty - Dr. McPheron

Establishment of a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science Degree Program -
Dr. McPheron

Approval to Change the Name of the Department of Plastic Surgery to the
Department of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery - Dr. McPheron

Executive Session 4:20-4:45pm

356




1G€

191U SSaU||dM 1UapMS S,917 1U8PNIS JO 10128l1Q
JOIUSS Walu| pue spodg jeuolieaiday o)1 uapnis Jo Jo1oall(

AQUd ‘e1ud1§ UoQ

2J17 1UDpPNIS 10) JUDPISDId DDIA 10IUSS
QUd ‘Uolseo-swepy auneaer

ONINAV3T ANV SS3O00NS LNIAdNLS ONIONVAAV
NOILOW NI 41T V

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



8GE

‘Siopea)| se dojoAsp pue uies)

Aoyl ‘sndwed uo saniAnoe |euonealdal ul sbebua syusapnis
USUM 113D aJe S)INsal ay) pue yoieasal ay| ‘uonow uj sy e
Buial ur sjuapnms Bunioddns ybnouy) diysispes| pue bujuies)
‘S$S922NS JUapNIS BudueApE Ul Jopes| |euoneulaiul ue se
pablawa aAey am aw jey) 9oulS "obe sieal paipuny auo uey)
3J0OW UOoNLa12al JUSPN]IS U0 Pasnd0) Juawliedap pajedipap

B USI|qe1SD 0] Sal}ISIDAIUN 1S4l BY) JO SUO Sem 31e)S OIU0

‘seale asay) ul moib syuspns

diay 03 seniunyioddo ayeyioe) 0} JuUajul INo Si ) pue ‘uondadxs
ou si bujuiea| ssaujieom pue yjeay siusapnis ‘9yle sasusuadxe
1B|N211IN2-02 pue sbBuilas WooIsse|d [euonipel) Ul Jnd2o
Bujuies| pue Buiyoes) 1ey Jallaq syl si 8417 JUSPNIS JO DO
9y} JO 2100 a1 1y ‘AlIsIaAiun ay) e seouauadxa Aleuiploenxa
S1uapn)s 1no Jo syuauodwod Juesyiubis om) ‘Bujuiesa pue
Buiyoea] si ue|d d1691e1S MU S31L1S OIYO Jo Jeid 1sa1 ay |

ONINIVI1T ANV ONIHOVIL ‘ALldOldd ALISHIAINN

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



6G€

SI8Z 104 « Lyl B1ANON

AL

‘2onoeld ojul Aloay) bulAidde pue

RS FO (ISW) diysiepea jo Apmis jeuonmsul-HiniAl 9y Aq
UOREIDaY paynuap! seonoeld peduwr ybiy Bupiel ‘seocusuadxe
Ewﬁo.-dh.. 1e|n211N2-02 ybnouy) dojeAsp pue aAuLu)] 0] SJUspn)s o)
uﬂ@.ﬁhmoﬁwbwﬁ— SJUSLLLIOIIAUS [euonea1dal 0} SaLoal) Juawdoeaap
nghwﬁmwﬂ diysiepes| buifidde ul sjooyds sisisse %o0o0q ay |
jusapnis 'SONSIYIY PUD UORDSIISY Ybnouy uswdoanag
aiysiopna uspn)s JO Joyne-0d ayl Sl ejuals uoq 'iq

fresiet UIPPRION M BIED

BIUNS Y pleuod

INIFINdO 1dAdAd dIHSd3ddV3 1 -HOVOdddV dNoO

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



09¢€

uesyiubis Ajjeansnels

S| @oualayip SIYL ‘(1eak aiwspede yL0zZ-£10Z Wod)
elep) $Z'E JO SYdo abelane aAey OYM I9)}SaWas e
sawll p-1 JSIA oym sjuapnis o} pasedwod ‘ZE'€ Jo
Sydo abelane aAey 19]SaWas € sawl] 210w 10 OF
Sal|198) 1ISIA OUM Sjuapns “Apuanbal) ssa 1ISIA
oym sjuapnys uey) ‘abesane uo ‘sydo Jaybiy aaey
Auanbay) aiow sanoe) spods 29y HSIA OUM
SjUBpPN]S 91L1S OIYO 1BY) PUNoy sem 1§ ‘ajdwexs 104

19yuiny Apnis 0} juepioduwl

S| UOI}29UU0D 3] ‘|eSNED PalapISuod ag jouued
Siyl ybnoyyy (svdo) sebelany jujod apeis pue
SaI)I|10B) |BUOIRDID3) JO 9Sh JUSPN)S UdaM]a(
uonenosse aAnisod e 1sabbns uoneonpa

1aybiy Jo suonniisul aidinw e sasAjeuy

WNOOJSSVIO dHL OLNI ANV LdNOD dH1 440 ‘S114dN48 DIWN3AdVOV

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



(£10Z ‘sdnoig) snoo4 wedpiued)
sdiysuone|al pjing pue sanoeded
diysiapes| 112y} Jo ssaualeme
-J|as uieb o} Ayjiqe siayy o3
PaANQLIUOD YdIYM ‘SIejoyds
uung moj|a} yum Ajunwiwod jJo

asuas e padojenap sueddiied

19€

(G10Z ‘Aemins weddiied
‘07t "SA 86°€) sndwed uo aj|

Ajep sisyy u sidaouod diysiapes) (5107 ‘Aenuns

‘(£10Z ‘sdnois) snoo4 uedidiyed) azinn oy Aypqe payodal sayy wedpued) weiboid ayj ul
Juonow uj 3y, 2yl aA) 0} uy uopedioiued N1ay) Jo 2SIN0d saouapadxa 118y} uo paseq

ans Aay) 1eyy aaube AjBuons ayy Jano ymoib ueoiyubis S{|IS UOHEDIUNWIWOD 1By}
10 9a1be SIejoYoS UUNQ JO %96  Allednsnels asusuadxe suapnis umoib aaey Asy) podal %06

'sawoa1nQ edpied

‘s|euolssajold ainyny se sojo. Jidy) Jo Bulpuelsiapun pue uonesnpa

BupueApe ajium JuswdoAsp |euolssajold pue aouspijuod-jas ayowold ey saniAnoe diysiapes) Ul
abebus siejoyds uung ‘@xusuadxa buiuies| pue buiall Buol-ieaA papinb e ybnoiy] ‘spiel) ssau|om
pue pods ul 9|gejieAe saniunyuioddo 19aied ay) pueisiapun 1apaq syuapnys digy o) paubisap

1H0YO0D Siejoyds [epuapisal e s| welbold (SMS) siejoyas ssaujiom pue pods uung [9eydii r ayl

siejoyas ssauj|9M pue pods uung

14dOW LdOHOD

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON




c9€

‘'sjuedpnied mau alem oym sasse|d buipuayie
SjuapNs JO %9/ 9yl AQ padsuapiAe se ‘sjuapnis

10} 9|qISSa22e alow sasse|d ssauyy dnoub apew
abueyd siy| diysiequiaw [euonealdal sjuspnis
Jo 1auaq Alejuawidwod e se a|qe|ieAe usaq aAey
sasse|d ssauyll dnoib ‘zLoz Jo Bulids ayy 9ouls

‘Ajlunwiwod pjing pue syqey Ayyesy

‘Buoiayl| a1eald ‘syyvuaq Yyijesy asuauadxe
ssauyly dnoub ui aredidnied oym sjuspms
19)S9WDS Yoed $asse|d ssaull4 dnois Q0L ueyl
210W S134J0 s1odS |euonealday sa)17 uspms

SSANLId dNOYS

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



€9¢€

21N} N2 UeuwLog) Ul SeAjoswWay] asiauwlwl|

wuedidpIsg diy). “181042S LUNQ YSM OIIN - o} Ayunyioddo ayy pey pue Aojod pue sopjod

¢¢ 10Y1 OP O] /gD 8q 0} SIDUNLIOJ SOM | PUD asald 0] A1oysiy s, Auewias bunelal uoissnasip
‘i8] 9] oym a1doad jeaw 03 upy) 9o0/d D JO ul pabebus ‘wnipels J1dwA|O ayy pue e ullieg
aInjIN2 3yl JNogp UIDS| O} ADM 13))8q OU S| 213 ] 9} Se Yyons ‘sajls |nibuiueaw pajIsiA sjuspnis

1SDJXDIG BUNDS [9)0Y SY) I JO JUDIND]SSI D ID

‘UIpa) 8y} uo sydoad yum poy | 1bY] SaUSLIDAXS ‘Ao1jod pue sopijod 10}

pUD SUOIDSISAUOD 3} YSLIBYD [IM | ‘Ybnoy) |00} e se spiods Jo 1deouod ay) palpnms dnoib
DY) UDY) D10\ 19ASI0) SSLIoOWBW 3SOY] YSILDYD 9y "weiboid siejoyds ssauji M pue pods
M | puD ‘vosiad Ul S9)IS SNOWD) PUD |DIIIOISIY uunqg auy jo ued e se Aueures ‘aubojo) pue
JSIA O} [paLNS 31 punoy | [diy 8yl] Inoybnoy ] ¢ ujieg o) @ousuadxe peoiqy uoneosnp3 ue ul

sjuapnis gl P3| BluslS uoq 1Q ZLOoZ equedaq U

3ON3ld3dd X3 dvOd8V NOILVONd4
TVNOILVNAILNI LJdO0dS 40 AD1'10d ANV SOILITOd

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



o€

99)JIWWOY )17 JUSpPNIS
pue sileyy ollapesy
se9)snl] Jo pieogd

JUBPISaId 991\ WS @ﬂmﬂuQ: uel|d
Jabuel) uiop jusawi||oJu

L10Z uwuniny

Buluue|d Juswyjoiug o1bsjens

XLISYAAIN() HIVIS OIHQ IHL, [{ |

29))IWWOo) 817 WUBPNIS pue Slieyy dlwapedy - Bunas|y pieog /10g JoquanoN



Go¢

vvv'99 9¥0'99 850°'c9 L¥€'09 Juswijolus AyisisAluN [ejo]

€GG'C 881'C LSY'C 099°C sleuolfay ‘uswysal} moN
7€9'C G/E'C 06€'C G8G'C snquinjo) ‘siajsuel) MoN
ogl', G8g'/ 08l', 0LL'9 SNQWIN|o) ‘uswysaly MaN
12¥'2S 88¢ 6V G198¢ 18222 snquwinjo) ‘suonesijdde |ejo]

L10¢ L00¢

uwnyny uwnjny

Juswi||oJua pue suoledljddy

/R
ALISYAAIN() 31LVLS OIHQ dH], E

d

93)JILIWOY 817 WUBPNIS puUB Siiely JIWSPedY - DU\ pJeog /| 0g JOqUBAON



%cc

%0€

%56

%S9

0¥l

¢6¢

L10¢C

uwnyny

%81

%€€

%56

%¢€9

VL2l

l°6¢

%L1

%S¢

%68

%S

avci

'8¢

¢l0¢
uwinyny

99¢

8|qeJedwoo j1ou ejep i1sed ;1 0z BuiuuiBaqg peje.qiesss | VS,

%91

%L1

%68

%€S

0ccl

0°/L¢

L00¢

sjuapns AjlIoulin
JUSPISBIUON
Juaouad Gz do|.

Juaolad | doj

VS abelany

10V abelany

uwnyny

a|1jold uewysal} sShquinjon

93)JILIWOY 817 WUBPNIS puUB Siiely JIWSPedY - DU\ pJeog /| 0g JOqUBAON

XLISYFAIN() ALVLS OIHQ dH], || ]



19¢

/8 pajuasaidal sal3unod olyo
021y ouand “O'A + v pojussaidal seje)s

L pajuasaldal saUN0D

%S
%61 0
m_om_>_ aewsa

pajuasalidal uonelausb

olyQO [esyua) 1S} o1Sewoq UMOpxealq Jspus9

saln)es) sseo Jayl0

ALISHAAIN() ALVLS OIHQ FH] | | |

93)JILIWOY 817 WUBPNIS puUB Siiely JIWSPedY - DU\ pJeog /| 0g JOqUBAON



89¢

%E8 %18 %Z8 %L )es uonenpelb Jeak-xig
%29 %65 %19 %9Y 9)eJ uoienpelb Jeak-ino4

%v6 %16 %6 %<C6 9)el uonusial Jeak-jsii

L1102 91L0¢ L00¢

uwnny uwinjny uwniny

sajel uolenpelb pue uonusley

/ N

ALISYFAIN() SLVLS OIHQ FHL Gg

99)JILIWIOY 8)I7 JUBPN)S PUE Slieyy dIWBPEdY - bues|\ pleoq /|0g JoqUISAON



ssuolnsand

ALISYAAIN() 31LVLS OIHQO dH ], @

93)JILIWIOY 817 UBPNIS puUB Siiely JIWSPedY - DU\ pJeog /| 0g JOqUSBAON




0L€

- ISHIAIN{ TLVLIS OIHQ IH]L :

9]e]s olyQ Je soisinbul
JO Jusweda( ay) Jo Jieyo Se paAlss
SWNH "Id 110Z-900¢ WoJj Ajsnoinaid

‘pue|eaz moN
‘yoJnyolsuIYyD ul Aungiauen

Jo AlisiaAiun ay) 1e sonsinbull

JO lossajolud pue suy Jo 8bajj0D ay; Jo
|[BUOI}BUIBUI UBSP ‘SB0UBIOG |Bedllljod
pue |e1oog ‘ebenbue Jo jooyos

3y} JO peay se paAlas awnH I

‘uoljesnpg ajenpesbiapun
JO uea( pue salpn}s
ajenpelibiapuq 10} }SOAOI 9DIA

aud ‘ewnH ‘A yiaqezi|3 s

SWINH ‘A Yiegezi|3 199\

p— INJNLNIOddV

99)ILUWIOY 8 JUSPN]S PUB SJIBlY OIWSPeIY - bulea| pJeog / |0z JoqUSAON



LLE

- ISHAAIN() ALVIS OIHQ TH]L

uoipaonp3 Jouawiipdag sn ayi Aq pasn suoinuLfap pibpupnis 3D 3sayl 310N

*99433p J19Y3] pai1s|dwod oym usawysal) mau Jo 93ejuadiad ayl ua1p| SipnaA XIS

(4DA9) 91eYy uonenpess YA 9

"'93439p J19Y3 pa1ajdwod oym usawysal} mau jo adeiuadtad ayy «Jaip| Sinah uno

(Y4DAY) 91y uonenpess YA v

'93439p
J19Y1 8uinsind panuiluod oym uswysal} Mau jo agdeiuadtad ayy " 4ajp| 1bahk auQp

(YYAT) 918y UOIIUISY YA T

1191S9Was Jawwns Suipadald ay3 JO J93SaWAS uwnine ul
PaJ21ud oYM Sjuapnis aenpesdiapun Suiyaas-2a48ap JeaA ;T Mau Jo 1I0Yod 3y
USWIYSaJ4 MIN

swa) Asy] :ele ay) bulpuelsiapun
SS300NS LN3IANLS

99)ILUWIOY 8 JUSPN]S PUB SJIBlY OIWSPeIY - bulea| pJeog / |0z JoqUSAON



clE

- ISHIAIND SLVIS OIHO THL

a1eaJne|eddeq
10U JUBWUIe}Ie 93183 31e1D0SSE
01 J3jaJ sdjeJ uonenpels ayy ;910N

10oYyo02 TTNY WJ0J SIUBPNIS 44 %
HOoYyo3d ETNY WOJJ SJUIPNIS, 4
10Yyod 9TNY WoJj sjuapnis,

%IV (1oyod yTNY)
YO JA-€ %6¢€ %E8 «xx018Y uonenpels JA-g
%CC (1oyod STNV)
4O JA-Z %61 %29 918y uonenpels) “IA-{
%EL (Moyoo 91nY) %89 %6 Lo1ey uonualey UA-|
oYy JA-T
98¢ (10yod LTNV) ¥0G¢2 c0c. uswiysald MaN

UBWYSaJd4 MIN

S3ASNdINVI SNdINVD

11v/ ¥31soom TYNOIDIY sSNgGN109 AY093ILVD

slaguinu Jo joysdeug :ejeq juaiing
SS300NS LNIANLS

99)ILUWIOY 8 JUSPN]S PUB SJIBlY OIWSPeIY - bulea| pJeog / |0z JoqUSAON



€€

- ISHAAIN() AIVIS OIHQ TH]L

9ANleNIu| JUs|e] uedlBWY -
aouel||y uoneaouu| AlIsieAlun -
SoAljenlul jeuoneu ul diysiaquiafy e
Bululea pue Buiyoea] Joj ayniisu| AJISIBAIUN
UOIJUB}aY pue SS82INS JUBPNIS J0) 8a)Iwo)) Buipuels e Jo uoneal) .
Ssawooino Bujuies| Jusapn)s Bunsesw je SYoYd |NJSSadINg .
SLOYD Je|nolINd-09) .
sooeds _buiuies|, 0} uonuany e
ubisepal 8sino) .
SanAjeue ejep, se yons
sJolew ajenpelbiopun mau ysi|qelsy .
SS929NS JUapnis 0} paniwwod Anoeq .
| peoige Apnjs ‘yoleasal N ‘Buluies)
SN L IO 99IAJBS ‘siouoy :aonoeud 1oedwi ybiH .
L 0 e T\ ‘.‘ d3.LS pue aousuadxg JeaA 1Sl e

/818y 8ALIIEB BM PIp MOH :Bje( Jualn)
SS309NS INIANLS

Nk ‘o »
_WIN

i

99)ILUWIOY 8 JUSPN]S PUB SJIBlY OIWSPeIY - bulea| pJeog / |0z JoqUSAON



v.€

bBuiuieas pue
uolieodnp4g sauelsig ALISHAAIN() HIVLS OIHQ TH], | .;
10 2140

swelboid buluiea Jojoalig
J19|ssal] A1oH

ONIAQD 1LdIMS

dIHSOV'14 1VL1I9Id

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



Gl€

'SOA]

pue SQydlem ‘sOoew
‘SOOI buipnjoul we)sAsoos
a1ddy ay uiyum (sdde)
suoljeolidde aiem)os
9)eald 0] pasn SI YIMS

‘9]lUM pue
pealJ 0] JaISes ap0o ayew
Jey) sainjeaj sepnjoul jeyl

abenbue| buiwweiboud
asodind-jesauab e sI yimg

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



9/€

‘sabenbue
Buiwwelsboud Buimoib
}S8]SE} 8} JO BUO SI JIMS

‘BuIpod
0} dweJ-uo 8|qIssadde ue

eapl Abojouyos) Jo dde ue .
UM 8soy} sapiroid YImg 0@: IPOD
HIMs Aym

29])IWIWOY 817 JUSPN]S PUB SJIelY JIWapesy - Bunes|y pJeog /10Z J8quISAON



YA

‘Jels

pue A}jnoej ‘syjusapnis ale1s
OlYQ ||e 0} 8|gejieAe aq ||Im Jey)
Sa|npow 8sIn0d dojaAap pue
S92Jn0sal buljsixa Jiay) aye) 0}
9|ddy yim xuom [|im a1eis olyo

‘dde ue Jo 8]0A2 Juswdojansp
919|dwo2 8y) 0] soiskeq
|euoljepunoj ayl wody buipoo
uIea| 0] S|9A9] ||IYS ShoLleA

JO Sjuapn)s Yiim asn 0] syoogq|
JO 18S e pue spunolibAe|d
UIMG padojansp sey a|ddy

s papinoid
aq buipon
UIMS [[IM MOH

"

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



8.¢€

jojesado o) |enba JoN
Jojesado 0] jenb3
jojesado ueyy Jajeasn
uojesado uey) ssa

| S8J0]S }I 1ByM NOA

aAlS) ‘aweu annduosap e asn

) :abuajey)

SIAYIIMS IN04 'SWag syl

spunolibAe|d JIMS

29))IWWOo) 817 WUBPNIS pue Slieyy dlwapedy - Bunas|y pieog /10g JoquanoN



29))IWWOo) 817 WUBPNIS pue Slieyy dlwapedy - Bunas|y pieog /10g JoquanoN




08¢

0°LL SO! - SNid 8 suoyd|

)#031000 LMaNpPE

1uoTIo[d=0d * (paleuTUR ‘31I9Te)3

LHIMS JOII0AUODMIIA

9pPOIX Ul YIMS

29))IWWOo) 817 WUBPNIS pue Slieyy dlwapedy - Bunas|y pieog /10g JoquanoN



29))IWWOo) 817 WUBPNIS pue Slieyy dlwapedy - Bunas|y pieog /10g JoquanoN




‘winnoLLIND Buipod

siy) poddns 0] uoneoso| [eaisAyd
B SBe 9AJaS ||IM geT ubisa(
diysbe|d |eybig mau syl

‘pajsalalul asoy) Jo} Ajigixay
MO||e 0] suoijdo AlaAlBp
BuI|uUO 8ZI|NN ||IM S8SIN02 8say |

“Ylomawe.)
uoIeol}111a8d pue buljenuapald e
uIiypum bBuipon JImg uo buisnooy
S9SIN02 dojaAsp [|IIM 81e1S oIy

[421%

¢, Allunwwoo
9}els Olyo

ay) 0] papiro.d
aq buipon
HIMS [IIM MOH

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



ol

€8¢

‘81 0¢ buudg
Ul a|gejieAe aq ||IM S82Jn0sal

auI|UO puewap-uo Aleulwijaid

"JUBWUOJIAUS 8SIN02D
pPaJnjonJis e OJul WNJNJLLIND 118y}
dojanap 0] pue sdoys)iom aiow

apinoid 0] a|ddy YlIMm MIOM [|Im

9)elS oIyO 81 A4 Inoybnouyl

‘JJe]1s pue Ajjnoey ‘sjuspnis 0]
papinold usaq aney sdoysyJom
Buipoo ymg Aleulwiaid

29])IWIWOY 817 JUSPN]S PUB SJIelY JIWapesy - Bunes|y pJeog /10Z J8quISAON



L

¥8€

\|..
BujulesT s pue uoneonp3 soue)sIq JO 82O ALISYAAIN() IIVLS OIHQ FH]L @_

ENECEEIE)
0988-26¢ (19)

I[EH JUNON 2G 1
Buluiese pue uonednpg sduelsiq Jo 82140

npa‘nso@diysbejjjeybip diysbel4 jenbia
npa'nso®)g 19|SSaJ} 49|ssau] A10H

iNOA Yuey]

29])IWIWOY 8J17 JUSPN]S pue SIBYY dlWapesy - Bunas|y pieog /| 0Z J8qUSAON



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the faculty personnel actions as
recorded in the personnel budget records of the university since the August 25, 2017, meeting of the

board, including the following appointments, appointments/reappointments of chairpersons, faculty

professional leaves, and emeritus titles:

Appointments

Name: *ANITA AFZALI

Title: Assistant Professor-Clinical (The Abercrombie and Fitch Chair in Inflammatory
Bowl Disease)

College: Medicine

Term: August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2022

Name: BHAVIK R. BAKSHI

Title: Professor (Richard M. Morrow Chair in Polymer Engineering)

College: Engineering

Term: September 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021

Name: WILLIAM E. CARSON Il

Title: Professor (The John B. and Jane T. McCoy Chair in Cancer Research)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: STEVEN K. CLINTON

Title: Professor (The Robert A. and Martha O. Schoenlaub Cancer Research Chair)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: STEVEN M. DEVINE

Title: Professor (The Bertha Bouroncle M.D. and Andrew Pereny Chair of Medicine)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: *ELIZABETH V. HUME

Title: Vice Provost, Undergraduate Studies
Dean, Undergraduate Education

Office: Academic Affairs

Term: October 1, 2017 through June 30, 2022

Name: BRAD H. ROVIN

Title: Professor (The Dr. Lee Hebert Endowed Professorship in Nephrology)

College: Medicine

Effective: July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2018

*New Hire

385



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS (cont'd)

Reappointments

Name: CATALIN BUHIMSCHI

Title: Professor (The Frederick P. Zuspan, MD Chair in Obstetrics and Gynecology)

College: Medicine

Term: December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2021

Name: DAVID COHN

Title: Professor (Stuart M. Sloan - Larry J. Copeland MD Chair in Gynecologic
Oncology Initiated by a Grateful Patient)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2022

Name: WENDY L. FRANKEL

Title: Professor (The Ralph W. and Helen Kurtz Chair in Pathology)

College: Medicine

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: ANDREW H. GLASSMAN

Title: Professor-Clinical (Frank J. Kloenne Chair in Orthopedic Surgery)

College: Medicine

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: RONALD L. HARTER

Title: Professor (The Jay J. Jacoby MD, PhD Chair in Anesthesiology)

College: Medicine

Title: Chair

Department: Anesthesiology

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: M. SCOTT HERNESS

Title: Interim Vice Provost, Graduate Studies
Dean, Graduate School

Office: Academic Affairs/Graduate School

Term: September 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Name: WAEL N. JARJOUR

Title: Professor-Clinical (The Martha Morehouse Chair in Arthritis and Immunology
Research)

College: Medicine

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

386




November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017

Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS (cont'd)

Name:
Title:

College:
Term:

Name:
Title:

Unit:

Term:

Title:
College:
Title:
Department:
Term:

Name:
Title:

Unit:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
Unit:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Reappointments (cont’d)

SUSAN L. KOLETAR

Professor-Clinical (Frank E. and Mary W. Pomerene Professorship in the Prevention
and Treatment of Infectious Diseases)

Medicine

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

PETER J. MOHLER

Professor (William D. and Jacquelyn L. Wells Chair at the Dorothy M. Davis Heart
and Lung Research Institute)

Heart and Vascular Center

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2022

Vice Dean, Research

Medicine

Chair

Physiology and Cell Biology

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

RANDY J. NELSON

Professor (The Doctor John D. and E. Olive Brumbaugh Chair in Brain Research
and Teaching

Brain and Spine Hospital

August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2021

MARK D. PARTRIDGE

Professor (The C. William Swank Chair in Rural Urban Policy)
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2022

SUBHA V. RAMAN

Professor (The Joseph M. Ryan, M.D. Chair in Cardiovascular Medicine)
Heart and Vascular Center

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020

MATTHEW D. RINGEL

Professor (The Ralph W. Kurtz Chair in Hormonology)
Medicine

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

CYNTHIA J. ROBERTS

Professor (The Martha G. and Milton Staub Chair for Research in Ophthalmology)
Medicine

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020

387




November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS (cont'd)

Reappointments (cont’d)

Name: ORLANDO P. SIMONETTI

Title: Professor (The John W. Wolfe Professorship in Cardiovascular Research)

College: Medicine

Term: October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2021

Name: MICHAEL F. TWEEDLE

Title: Professor (The Stefanie Spielman Chair in Cancer Imaging)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard
J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: VICKI WYSOCKI

Title: Professor and Ohio Eminent Scholar in Macromolecular Structure and Function

College: Arts and Sciences

Term: July 1, 2017 through May 31, 2022

388




November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Appointments/Reappointment of Chairpersons

JUAN D. ALFONZO, Director, Center for RNA Biology, effective October 1, 2017 through September 30,
2021

*JOHN C. FOLTZ, Chair, Department of Animal Sciences, effective October 9, 2017 through September
30, 2021

CHRISTOPHER F. HIGHLEY, Director, Center for Medieval and Renaissance Studies (CMRS), effective
September 1, 2017 through May 31, 2018

ALLISON A. MACKAY, Chair, Department of Civil, Environmental and Geodetic Engineering, effective
September 1, 2017 through May 31, 2021

MICHAEL J. MERCIL, Interim Chair, Department of Art effective September 1, 2017 through May 31, 2018

MICHAEL J. OGLESBEE, Director, Infectious Diseases Institute, effective September 1, 2017 through
August 31, 2021

JAMES ROCCO, Interim Chair, Department of Otolaryngology - Head and Neck Surgery, effective October
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018

DAVID J. STALEY, Director, Humanities Institute, effective August 15, 2017 through May 15, 2018

*M. SUSIE WHITTINGTON, Director, Second-year Transformational Experience Program (STEP), effective
October 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020

*New Hire

Faculty Professional Leaves

LAUREEN H. SMITH, Associate Professor, College of Nursing, effective Spring Semester 2018 and
Summer Semester 2018

QINGHUA SUN, Professor, College of Public Health, effective Autumn Semester 2018

Faculty Professional Leaves - Cancelation

RUCHIKA S. PRAKASH, Associate Professor, Department of Psychology, effective Autumn Semester
2017
Emeritus Titles

HOJJAT ADELI, Department of Civil, Environmental and Geodetic Engineering with the title Professor
Emeritus, effective October 1, 2017

MICHAEL L. BLUMENFELD, Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology with the title Professor-Clinical
Emeritus, effective October 1, 2017

E. CHRISTOPHER ELLISON, Department of Surgery with the title Robert M. Zollinger Professor Emeritus,
effective October 1, 2017

389



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

JOHN C. FELLINGHAM, Department of Accounting and Management Information Systems with the title
Professor Emeritus effective January 1, 2018

RICHARD D. KASS, Department of Physics with the title Professor Emeritus, effective January 1, 2018

DAVID S. KRAYBILL, Department of Agricultural, Environmental, and Development Economics with the
title Professor Emeritus, effective October 1, 2017

LINDA C. MARTIN, Department of Animal Sciences with the title Professor Emeritus, effective October 30,
2017

DAVID G. RIEDE, Department of English with the title Professor Emeritus, effective June 1, 2018

LAWRENCE A. TOMASSINI, Department of Accounting and Management Information Systems with the
title Professor Emeritus effective January 1, 2018

YUAN F. ZHENG, Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering with the title Professor Emeritus,
effective September 1, 2017
COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

PROMOTION TO PROFESSOR
Buford, John, School of Health and Rehabilitation Sciences, effective June 8, 2017

390



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF THE UNIVERSITY FACULTY

Synopsis: Approval of the following amendments to the Rules of the University Faculty, is proposed.

WHEREAS the University Senate, pursuant to rule 3335-1-09 of the Administrative Code, is authorized to
recommend through the president to the Board of Trustees the adoption of amendments to the Rules of the
University Faculty as approved by the University Senate; and

WHEREAS the proposed changes to rule 3335-7-02, rule 3335-7-08, and to rule 3335-7-36 in the Rules of
the University Faculty were approved by the University Senate on September 7, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the attached amendments to the
Rules of the University Faculty be adopted as recommended by the University Senate.

391



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF THE UNIVERSITY FACULTY

BACKGROUND

3335-7-02 Titles.

If individual colleges, schools, and departments with clinical faculty wish to provide clinical faculty with
faculty-rank titles, then whatever title is used must be distinct from tenure-track titles (see paragraph (A) of
rule 3335-5-19 of the Administrative Code). Examples-Titles include;—but-are-net-limited-to; professor of
clinical (name of college, school, or department)—asseociate_or professor of professional practice—and
assistant-professor of-practice (name of college, school, or department). Exceptions to these titles must be
approved by the provost or his/her designee.

3335-7-08 Annual review, reappointment/nonreappointment, and promotion review procedures.

The procedures for reviewing clinical faculty annually and for reappointment/ nonreappointment and
promotion shall be set forth in the relevant college, school or department appointments, promotion, and
tenure document and shall be consistent with review procedures established for tenure-track faculty,
including those set forth in rules 3335-6-03 and 3335-6-04 of the Administrative Code with the following
exceptions:

(A) The college dean's decision shall be final with respect to reappointment and nonreappointment.-and
with-respect-to-denial-of prometionand_Decisions with respect to promotion shall be forwarded to
the executive vice president and provost, who shall review the decision consistent with the review
procedures established for tenure-track faculty including those set forth in rule 3335-6-04. Any
decision of the executive vice president and provost shall be final.

(B) nochanges

3335-7-36 Annual review, reappointment/nonreappointment, and promotion review procedures.

The procedures for reviewing research faculty annually and for reappointment/nonreappointment and
promotion shall be set forth in the relevant, tenure-track faculty approved, college, school or department
appointments, promotion and tenure document and shall be consistent with review procedures established
for tenure-track faculty including those set forth in rules 3335-6-03 and 3335-6-04 of the Administrative
Code except that the college dean’s decision shall be final with respect to reappointment and non-
reappointment-and-with-respect-to-denial-of prometion. Decisions with respect to promotion shall be
forwarded to the executive vice president and provost, who shall review the decision consistent with the
review procedures established for tenure-track faculty including those set forth in rule 3335-6-04. Any
decision of the executive vice president and provost shall be final.

392



November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

ESTABLISHMENT OF A BACHELOR OF
SCIENCE IN BIOMEDICAL SCIENCE DEGREE PROGRAM

COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval to establish a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science degree program in the College
of Medicine, is proposed.

WHEREAS the undergraduate major in Biomedical Science was established in 2005 in the now-School of
Health and Rehabilitation Sciences, in the College of Medicine, to prepare graduates for a post-
baccalaureate entry into professional and graduate program and students earned the Bachelor of Science
in Health and Rehabilitation Sciences degree; and

WHEREAS in June 2016, the College of Medicine established the Department of Biomedical Education
and Anatomy, and proposes to transfer the major program from the school to this new department and in
so doing establish a new degree title - Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science; and

WHEREAS the major continues to comply with all institutional requirements for a degree program; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Council on Academic Affairs at its meeting on
August 3, 2017; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and received a vote of approval by the University Senate on August
29, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the establishment of a Bachelor of Science
in Biomedical Science degree program.

393




November 2017 Board Meeting - Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO CHANGE THE NAME OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PLASTIC
SURGERY TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PLASTIC AND RECONSTRUCTIVE SURGERY

COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval to change the name of the Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department of Plastic
and Reconstructive Surgery, is proposed.

WHEREAS the name plastic and reconstructive surgery better reflects the department’s mission

WHEREAS aesthetic surgery is an essential part of the clinical, educational, and research services of the
department but its major focus is reconstructive surgery and

WHEREAS approximately half of academic departments in the U.S. have changed their name to this title
and the preeminent journal for the specialty is Journal of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery; and

WHEREAS the proposal has the support of the department’s faculty, the College of Medicine Council, and
the college administration and no changes to degree titles or course offerings are required; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Council on Academic Affairs at its meeting on
June 22, 2017 and by the University Senate on August 29, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the proposal to change the name of the
Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery.

394




The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

Location: Recreation and Physical Activity Center (RPAC) Time:

o > w N E

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2017
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Michael J. Gasser
Brent R. Porteus
W. G. Jurgensen
Jeffrey Wadsworth
Alexander R. Fischer
John W. Zeiger
Lydia A. Lancaster
Alan VanderMolen
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Dave Griner Room, B247

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
Fiscal Year 2018 Interim Financial Report - Ms. Devine
University Financial Scorecard - Ms. Devine
Regional Campus Update - Ms. Devine
Long-Term Investment Pool Update - Mr. Lane

Major Project Status Report - Ms. Readey

ITEMS FOR ACTION
Authorizations Regarding Professional Services - Ms. Readey

Approval for Fiscal Year 2018 Utility System Capital Improvement Projects -
Ms. Readey

Approval of 2017 Progress Report on Ohio Task Force on Affordability and
Efficiency Recommendations - Mr. Chatas

Approval for One-Time Transfer of Principal from Long-Term Operating Fund to
Enterprise Project Fund - Mr. Chatas

Approval of Discounted Rates for Summer Term Tuition and Mandatory Fees -
Mr. Chatas

Authorization for Approval of Athletic Prices and Fees - Mr. Chatas
Appointment to the Self-Insurance Board - Mr. Chatas
Purchase of Real Property - Mr. Chatas

Approval of Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund - Mr. Papadakis

Executive Session

November 3, 2017

3:00-4:45pm

3:00-3:05pm
3:05-3:10pm
3:10-3:25pm
3:25-3:30pm
3:30-3:35pm

3:35-3:40pm

3:40-3:45pm

3:45-3:50pm

3:50-3:55pm

3:55-4:00pm

4:00-4.05pm
4:05-4:10pm
4:10-4:15pm
4:15-4:20pm

4:20-4:45pm




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FINANCE COMMITTEE

TOPIC: Fiscal Year 2018 Interim Financial Report - August 31, 2017

CONTEXT: The purpose of this report is to provide an update of financial results

SUMMARY: The highlighted areas include:

Review of comparative financial statements
State Support

OSU Wexner Medical Center

Enrollment

Research

Auxiliary Operations

REQUESTED OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE: No vote required; for information only

396



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

. Summary

1. Financial Statement Review - For the two months ended August 31, 2017
A.

EMMOO®

Interim Financial Statements
Revenues

Expenses

Revenues Less Expenses
Investments

Cash Flows

Cash and Investments

lll.  Financial Highlights - For the two months ended August 31, 2017

moow>

State Support Outlook

OSU Wexner Medical Center
Enrollment

Research

Auxiliary Operations

397

November 3, 2017



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

. Summary

Consolidated revenues through the first two months of fiscal year 2018, excluding investment income, were
$991 million, representing an increase of $49 million, or 5.2% over the same period of fiscal year 2017. The
revenue increase is primarily in Healthcare revenues, which were up $40 million. Additional details on
revenue trends are provided below:

. Healthcare revenues for the OSU Health System and OSU Physicians (OSUP) increased $40 million,
or 7.4%, to $581 million. The Health System accounted for $36 million of the increase. Total outpatient
visits were 3.3% above prior year. Total inpatient visits were 3.3% above prior year and the total
number of patients treated in inpatient beds was above prior year by 3.7%.

. University revenues through the first two months of fiscal year 2018 increased by $17 million to $389
million compared to the same period in fiscal year 2017.

o Grant and contract revenues increased $19 million, or 13.1%, to $168 million, due primarily
to an increase of $10 million in federal grants from the US Department of Agriculture because
of funding delays in fiscal year 2017.

o Net student tuition and fees increased $5 million, to $63 million or 9.5% over the same period
of fiscal year 2017. Tuition revenue is allocated between fiscal years and semesters based
on credit hours and academic days. The increase in tuition is due primarily to summer
enrollment and an earlier start to classes in autumn 2007 by two days.

o Gifts decreased $13 million, to $32 million or 29.5% over prior year due primarily to decreases
in current use gifts of $11 million and decreases in permanent endowment gifts of $2 million.

. Auxiliary revenues for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 decreased $8 million, to $21 million,
primarily due to the International Champions Cup (ICC) soccer game held at Ohio Stadium in July
2016 of fiscal year 2017.

Consolidated expenses for the two months ended August 31, 2017 were $958 million, up $67 million, or
7.6%, over the same period of fiscal year 2017.

. Healthcare expenses of $484 million increased $28 million, or 6.1%, primarily due to increases in
operating costs from increases in patient volumes.

. University expenses increased $40 million to $428 million for the first two months of fiscal year 2018
compared to the same period of fiscal year 2017, primarily due to expenses associated with the
energy concession agreement.

. Auxiliary expenses for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 of $47 million are flat compared to the
same period of fiscal year 2017.

Overall, revenues grew at a quicker pace than expenses driven primarily by the strong performance of
healthcare. The year-to-date change in consolidated net position (excluding net investment income and
interest expense) decreased by $17 million, from $50 million in fiscal year 2017 to $33 million in fiscal year
2018.

Total cash, restricted cash, and temporary investments increased $973 million from June 30, 2017 due
primarily to the receipt of energy concession proceeds. Gifted endowment and other long-term investments
increased $415 million primarily due to the transfer of $354 million of the proceeds from the energy
concession agreement to the Long Term Investment Pool (LTIP), and fair market value increases of $81
million, offset by distributions of $31 million. For the two months ended August 31, 2017 (FYTD), the LTIP
earned a net of investment fee return of 1.94% versus a Policy Benchmark of 2.45%, resulting in
underperformance of 0.51%. During that period, our Global Equities returned 2.47%, followed by Global
Fixed Income at 1.30%, and Real Assets at 0.78%.

398



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

1. Financial Statement Review - For the Two Months Ended August 31, 2017
A. Interim Financial Statements (in thousands)

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - UNAUDITED
August 31, 2017 and June 30, 2017

As of August As of June Increase/Decrease
2017 2017 Dollars %
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,709,377 $ 710,647 $ 998,730 140.5%
Temporary investments 1,642,035 1,654,897 (12,862) -0.8%
Accounts receivable, net 790,777 623,024 167,753 26.9%
Notes receivable - current portion, net 22,882 22,882 - 0.0%
Pledges receivable - current portion, net 33,718 33,718 - 0.0%
Accrued interest receivable 18,777 20,057 (1,280) -6.4%
Inventories and prepaid expenses 228,499 103,776 124,723 120.2%
Investments held under securities lending program 9,966 15,949 (5,983) -37.5%
Total Current Assets 4,456,031 3,184,950 1,271,081 39.9%
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash 653,606 666,032 (12,426) -1.9%
Notes receivable, net 44,084 40,820 3,264 8.0%
Pledges receivable, net 72,350 72,350 - 0.0%
Long-term investment pool 4,665,138 4,253,459 411,679 9.7%
Other long-term investments 149,023 145,188 3,835 2.6%
Capital assets, net 5,011,166 5,005,751 5,415 0.1%
Total Noncurrent Assets 10,595,367 10,183,600 411,767 4.0%
Total Assets 15,051,398 13,368,550 1,682,848 12.6%
Deferred Outflows:
Pension 1,006,750 1,006,750 - 0.0%
Other deferred outflows 21,378 21,378 - 0.0%
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 16,079,526 $ 14,396,678 $ 1,682,848 11.7%
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 461,915 $ 534,534 $ (72,619) -13.6%
Deposits and advance payments for goods and services 808,638 225,598 583,040 258.4%
Current portion of bonds, notes and leases payable 64,570 64,570 - 0.0%
Long-term bonds payable, subject to remarketing 588,360 588,360 - 0.0%
Liability under securities lending program 9,966 15,949 (5,983) -37.5%
Other current liabilities 100,962 93,357 7,605 8.1%
Total Current Liabilities 2,034,411 1,522,368 512,043 33.6%
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds, notes and leases payable 2,655,880 2,655,880 - 0.0%
Net pension liability 3,565,744 3,565,744 - 0.0%
Compensated absences 160,845 164,594 (3,749) -2.3%
Self-insurance accruals 81,042 81,239 (197) -0.2%
Amounts due to third-party payors - Health System 35,589 38,032 (2,443) -6.4%
Obligations under annuity and life income agreements 29,969 30,473 (504) -1.7%
Refundable advances for Federal Perkins loans 31,714 31,714 - 0.0%
Unearned revenue - energy agreement 1,064,530 - 1,064,530 100.0%
Other noncurrent liabilities 124,990 125,268 (278) -0.2%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,750,303 6,692,944 1,057,359 15.8%
Total Liabilities 9,784,714 8,215,312 1,569,402 19.1%
Deferred Inflows:
Parking service concession arrangement 434,202 435,807 (1,605) -0.4%
Pension 16,352 16,352 - 0.0%
Other deferred inflows 19,139 19,139 - 0.0%
Total Deferred Inflows 469,693 471,298 (1,605) -0.3%
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,447,583 2,355,672 91,911 3.9%
Restricted:
Nonexpendable 1,542,753 1,480,440 62,313 4.2%
Expendable 1,024,440 1,195,515 (171,075) -14.3%
Unrestricted 810,343 678,441 131,902 19.4%
Total Net Position 5,825,119 5,710,068 115,051 2.0%
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position $ 16,079,526 $ 14,396,678 $ 1,682,848 11.7%

399



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION - UNAUDITED
Comparative Year-To-Date

August 31, 2017 and August 31, 2016

August August Increase/Decrease
Operating Revenues: 2017 2016 Dollars %
Student tuition and fees, net $ 62,792 $ 57,356 $ 5,436 9.5%
Federal grants and contracts 76,345 62,895 13,450 21.4%
State grants and contracts 17,472 18,348 (876) -4.8%
Local grants and contracts 4,053 2,948 1,105 37.5%
Private grants and contracts 45,652 39,841 5,811 14.6%
Sales and services of educational departments 30,571 28,971 1,600 5.5%
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 21,164 28,901 (7,737) -26.8%
Sales and services of the OSU Health System, net 501,330 465,068 36,262 7.8%
Sales and services of OSU Physicians, Inc., net 79,837 76,019 3,818 5.0%
Other operating revenues 3,982 5,238 (1,256) -24.0%
Total Operating Revenues 843,198 785,585 57,613 7.3%
Operating Expenses:
Educational and General:
Instruction and departmental research 101,154 99,993 1,161 1.2%
Separately budgeted research 86,236 82,085 4,151 5.1%
Public service 27,443 25,413 2,030 8.0%
Academic support 33,238 31,539 1,699 5.4%
Student services 14,459 15,671 (1,212) -1.7%
Institutional support 56,824 46,897 9,927 21.2%
Operation and maintenance of plant 25,898 17,287 8,611 49.8%
Scholarships and fellowships 7,197 7,243 (46) -0.6%
Auxiliary enterprises 46,560 46,874 (314) -0.7%
OSU Health System 406,801 387,511 19,290 5.0%
OSU Physicians, Inc. 76,764 68,406 8,358 12.2%
Depreciation 63,795 58,580 5,215 8.9%
Total Operating Expenses 946,369 887,499 58,870 6.6%
Operating Loss (103,171) (101,914) (1,257) 1.2%
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
State share of instruction and line-item appropriations 79,444 77,127 2,317 3.0%
Federal subsidies for Build America Bonds interest 1,887 1,887 - 0.0%
Federal non-exchange grants 24,811 24,333 478 2.0%
State non-exchange grants 3 495 (492) -99.4%
Gifts 23,578 34,499 (10,921) -31.7%
Net investment income (loss) 102,363 89,151 13,212 14.8%
Interest expense on plant debt (19,847) (20,165) 318 -1.6%
Other non-operating revenues(expenses) (12,127) (3,673) (8,454) 230.2%
Net Non-operating Revenue (Expense) 200,112 203,654 (3,542) -1.7%
Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, 96,941 101,740 (4,799) -4.7%
Expenses, Gains or Losses
Other Changes in Net Position
State capital appropriations 10,110 7,560 2,550 33.7%
Private capital gifts 990 1,722 (732) -42.5%
Additions to permanent endowments 7,010 8,561 (1,551) -18.1%
Total Other Changes in Net Position 18,110 17,843 267 1.5%
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 115,051 119,583 $ (4,532) -3.8%
Net Position - Beginning of Year 5,710,068 5,148,728
Net Position - End of Period $ 5,825,119 $ 5,268,311

400



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - UNAUDITED
Years Ended August 31, 2017 and August 31, 2016
(in thousands)

August August Incr/(Decr) to Cash
2017 2016 Dollars %
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Tuition and fee receipts $ 345953 $ 340,866 $ 5,087 1.5%
Grant and contract receipts 81,855 118,782 (36,927) -31.1%
Receipts for sales and services 705,204 638,348 66,856 10.5%
Receipt from energy agreement 1,089,914 - 1,089,914 100.0%
Payments to or on behalf of employees (449,756) (409,388) (40,368) 9.9%
University employee benefit payments (125,004) (132,588) 7,584 -5.7%
Payments to vendors for supplies and services (410,554) (316,043) (94,511) 29.9%
Payments to students and fellows (6,075) (5,917) (158) 2.7%
Student loans issued (4,719) (4,134) (585) 14.2%
Student loans collected 1,313 1,734 (421) -24.3%
Student loan interest and fees collected 286 414 (128) -30.9%
Other receipts 816 3,423 (2,607) -76.2%
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,229,233 235,497 993,736 422.0%
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State share of instruction and line-item appropriations 79,444 77,127 2,317 3.0%
Non-exchange grant receipts 24,814 24,828 (14) -0.1%
Gift receipts for current use 23,578 34,499 (10,921) -31.7%
Additions to permanent endowments 7,010 8,561 (1,551) -18.1%
Drawdowns of federal direct loan proceeds 127,500 145,000 (17,500) -12.1%
Disbursements of federal direct loans to students (148,761) (150,955) 2,194 -1.5%
Repayment of loans from related organization 70 168 (98) -58.3%
Amounts received for annuity and life income funds 279 264 15 5.7%
Amounts paid to annuitants and life beneficiaries (783) (272) (511) 187.9%
Agency funds receipts 6,110 4,715 1,395 29.6%
Agency funds disbursements (4,894) (4,632) (262) 5.7%
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 114,367 139,303 (24,936) -17.9%
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:
State capital appropriations 9,596 6,895 2,701 39.2%
Gift receipts for capital projects 990 1,722 (732) -42.5%
Payments for purchase or construction of capital assets (68,144) (83,929) 15,785 -18.8%
Interest payments on capital debt and leases (732) (395) (337) 85.3%
Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities (58,290) (75,707) 17,417 -23.0%
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net (purchases) sales of temporary investments 12,862 4,941 7,921 160.3%
Proceeds from sales and maturities of long-term investments 181,389 257,400 (76,011) -29.5%
Investment income 28,559 11,756 16,803 142.9%
Purchases of long-term investments (521,816) (289,341) (232,475) 80.3%
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (299,006) (15,244) (283,762) 1861.5%
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 986,304 283,849 $ 702,455 247.5%
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,376,679 1,352,044
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period $ 2,362,983 $ 1,635,893

B. Revenue

Consolidated revenues through the first two months of fiscal year 2018, excluding investment income, were
$991 million, representing an increase of $49 million, or 5.2% over the same period of fiscal year 2017. The
breakdown of comparative year-to-date revenues between the University, Auxiliary, and Healthcare (the
OSU Health System hospitals and OSUP) follows.

401



The Ohio State University

Board of Trustees

University

University revenues for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 were $389 million, up $17 million compared
to the first two months of fiscal year 2017. Major components of university revenues were as follows:

November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

November 3, 2017

University Revenue YTD First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

$180

$160
$140
$120 -
$100 -

$80 -

Millions

$60
$40
$20

Tuition, net

Grants & Contracts
(includes non-
exchange)

State
Appropriations

Educational
departments

Gifts

m2018

$63

168

89

31

32

=2017

$58

149

85

29

45

% Change

9%

13%

5%

7%

-29%

Net student tuition and fees increased $5 million, to $63 million or 9.5% over the same period of fiscal year
2017. Tuition revenue is allocated between fiscal years and semesters based on credit hours and academic
days. The increase in tuition is due primarily to summer enrollment and an earlier start to classes in autumn
2007 by two days.

Grant and contract revenues increased $19 million, or 13.1%, to $168 million, due primarily to increases in
in federal grants from the US Department of Agriculture because of funding delays in fiscal year 2017.

Gifts decreased $13 million, to $32 million, a 29.5% decrease over the prior two months ended August 31,

20186, reflecting decreases in current use gifts of $11 million and decreases in permanent endowment gifts
of $2 million.

Auxiliary

Auxiliary revenues for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 decreased $8 million, to $21 million, compared
to the first two months of fiscal year 2017. Major components of auxiliary revenues were as follows:

402



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Auxiliary Revenues YTD First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

$14
$12
$10
12}
S 8
s $6
$4
$2
$0 " ;
Student Life - Room and . . Other (Airport, Fawcett
Board, net Athletics Schottenstein Center The Blackwell Cnt, Ohio Union)
m2018 $11 $4 $3 $2 $1
32017 $12 $4 $10 $2 $1
% Change -8% 0% -70% 0% 0%

Schottenstein Center revenues decreased $7 million due primarily to the International Champions Cup
(ICC) soccer game held at Ohio Stadium in July 2016 of fiscal year 2017.

Healthcare

Total healthcare revenue for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 increased $40 million, or 7.4%, to $581
million, compared to the first two months of fiscal year 2017.

Healthcare Revenues YTD First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

$600
$500
$400
é $300
§ $200
$100
N 0
Health System OSU Physicians
W2018 $501 $80
@2017 $465 $76
% Change 8% 5%

Consolidated OSU Health System revenues of $501 million increased $36 million, or 7.8%, in the first two
months of fiscal year 2018 over the same period in 2017. Total outpatient visits were 3.3% above prior year
and 1.6% below budget. The total number of patients treated in inpatient beds was above prior year by
3.7%. OSU Physicians revenue increased $4 million, or 5.0%, to $80 million for the first two months of fiscal

year 2018.

C. Expenses

Consolidated expenses of $958 million for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 increased $67 million, or
7.6%, compared to the first two months of fiscal year 2017 of $891 million. The mix of expenses remained
constant between years, with salaries and benefits comprising 53% and supplies and other expenses

403



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

November 3, 2017

making up 39% of total operating expenses. The breakdown of comparative year-to-date expenses for
University, Auxiliary, and Healthcare follows.

University
University expenses for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 of $428 million were up $40 million, or
10.3% compared to the first two months of fiscal year 2017. Major categories of university expenses were
as follows:

University Expenses YTD First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

Salaries

Supplies and other

Benefits and fee
authorizations

Student aid

Depreciation

m2018

$165

136

49

14

64

32017

$163

105

49

12

59

30%

0%

17%

8%

% Change 1%

Salaries and benefits were relatively flat in the first two months of fiscal year 2018 over the comparable
period in fiscal year. Supplies and other expenses increased $27 million primarily due to the comprehensive
energy management and Workday enterprise projects. Student aid increased due to planned increases in
financial aid and the allocation of student aid based on academic days. Depreciation increased due to North
Residential District.

Auxiliary

Aucxiliary expenses for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 of $47 million were flat compared to the first
two months of fiscal year 2017. Major categories of auxiliary expenses were as follows:

Auxiliary Expenses YTD First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

$30

$25

$20
2
2 $15
2
$10
$5
0
$ Salaries Supplies and other Benefits
m2018 $16 26 5
@2017 $15 27 5
% Change 7% -4% 0%

404




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees

November 3, 2017

Healthcare
Healthcare expenses for the first two months of fiscal year 2018 of $484 million were up $28 million, or
6.1% compared to the first two months of fiscal year 2017. Major categories of healthcare expenses were
as follows:

Healthcare Expenses YTD First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

$250

$200

$150

Millions

$100

$50

$0

Salaries

Supplies and Other Benefits

m2018

$207

216

61

m2017

$192

206

58

% Change

7.8%

4.9%

5.2%

Salaries increased $15 million in the first two months of fiscal year 2018, or 7.8% over the comparable
period in fiscal year 2017 due to increases in staffing levels. Supplies and other expenses increased $10
million, or 4.9%, primarily due to increases in operating costs from increases in patient volumes. Benefits
increased $3 million or 5.2% due to salary increases.

D. Revenues Less Expenses (Margins)

Consolidated revenues, excluding investment income and interest expense, less expenses for The Ohio
State University decreased $17 million, from $50 million to $33 million, for the first two months of fiscal year
2018 compared to the first two months of fiscal year 2017. University (excluding auxiliary) margins
decreased $23 million due primarily to increases in supplies and services of $27 million, Healthcare margins
increased $13 million, and auxiliary margins decreased $7 million for the first two months of fiscal year 2018
compared to last year due primarily to a decrease in revenue from the ICC soccer game in July 2016.

Revenue Less Operating Expense by Area YTD
First Two Months Fiscal Year 2018 vs. Fiscal Year 2017

$100
$75

$50

$25
$-
$(25)

Millions

$(50)

University excluding Auxiliary *

Healthcare

Auxiliary

m2018

$(40)

$98

$(25)

2017

$(17)

$85

$(18)

% Change

-135%

15%

39%

10

405




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

* These figures exclude endowment distributions. Adjusted margins, including year-to-date distributions,
were ($10) million in 2018 and $10 million in 2017.

E. Investments

For two months ended August 31, 2017, the market value of the university’s Long-Term Investment Pool
(LTIP) increased $411.7 million to $4.67 billion. Changes in total valuation are summarized below:

2018 2017
Market Value at June 30 $ 4,253,459 $ 3,616,562
Net principal additions 360,739 61,462
Change in market value 81,231 70,349
Income earned 12,563 11,804
Distributions (30,470) (26,575)
Expenses (12,384) (12,614)
Market Value at August 31 $4,665,138 $ 3,720,988

Net principal additions include new endowment gifts ($7.0 million), reinvestment of unused endowment
distributions ($0.1 million), and the transfer of $354 million of the proceeds of the energy concession
agreement to the LTIP. Change in market value includes realized gains (losses) on the sale of investment
assets and unrealized gains (losses) associated with assets held in the pool at August 31, 2017. Income
earned includes interest and dividends and is used primarily to help fund distributions. Expenses include
investment management expenses ($9.3 million), University Development related expenses ($2.9 million)
and other administrative related expenses ($0.2 million).

LTIP Investment Returns

For two months ended August 31, 2017 (FYTD), the LTIP earned a net of investment fee return of 1.94%
versus a Policy Benchmark of 2.45%, resulting in underperformance of 0.51%. During that period, our
Global Equities returned 2.47%, followed by Global Fixed Income at 1.30%, and Real Assets at 0.78%.

The comparable two month period ended August 31, 2016 saw a net of investment fee return of 3.09%
versus a 3.10% Policy Benchmark for underperformance of 0.01%. During that period, our Global Equities
returned 4.67%, followed by Real Assets at 1.53%, and Global Fixed Income at 0.69%.

Temporary Investments

For the two months ended August 31, 2017 (FYTD) the Intermediate Investments earned a return of 0.55%
(+4.9 million) outperforming the BofA ML 1-3 Yr US Gov't/Credit benchmark (+0.46%) by 0.09%. Short-
Term Investments earned 0.24% (+$2.8 million) outperforming the 90 Day T-Bill benchmark (+0.18%) by
0.06%.

The comparable two-month period ended August 31, 2016, saw Intermediate Investments earn a return of
0.17% (+$1.4 million). Short-Term Investments returned 0.35% (+$1.8 million) for this same period.

F. Cash Flows

Cash provided by operating activities was $1.2 billion through the first two months of fiscal year 2018,
compared with net cash provided by operating activities of $235 million for the same period in fiscal year
2017. The increase in cash is due primarily to the cash receipt from the energy concession agreement.
Cash provided by noncapital financing activities was $114 million through the first two months of fiscal year

2018, compared with $139 million for the same period in fiscal year 2017. The decrease is primarily due to
decreases in current use gifts and drawdowns of federal direct loan proceeds.

11

406



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Cash used by capital financing activities was $58 million for the two months ended August 31, 2017,
primarily for payments on the construction of capital assets of $68 million. Capital expenditures consist of
$47 million for University academic, infrastructure, and auxiliary projects, $16 million for Health System
projects and equipment expenditures and University equipment purchases of $5 million.

Net cash used by investing activities was $299 million for the first two months of fiscal year 2018, compared
to net cash used by investing activities of $15 million for the comparable period in fiscal year 2017. The net
cash outflow relates primarily to purchases of long-term investments with cash from the energy agreement
payment.

G. Cash and Investments

From June 30, 2017 to August 31, 2017, total university cash and investments increased by $1,388 million,
to $8.8 billion. Cash and short-term investments increased $973 million primarily from cash receipt from the
energy concession agreement and the collection of student tuition and fees Gifted endowment and other
long-term investments increased $415 million primarily due to market value increases of $81 million and
the transfer of $354 million of the proceeds from the energy concession agreement, offset by distributions
of $30 million.

Cash and Investments ($ in millions)

$9,000

$8,000 41,971

$7,000 51040 I 0O Gifted Endowments

$6,000

$2,843

$5,000 —————— DOLong Term Investments
$2,459

$4,000 -

B Cash and Temporary
Investments

$3,000 -

$2,000 -

$1,000 -

$0 -

2018 2017

lll.  Financial Highlights - For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2017
A. State Support Outlook

The Office of Budget and Management (OBM) reports August tax receipts of $1,968.8 million, which were
$25.8 million, or 1.3%, above estimate. On a year-to-date basis, tax receipts are $23.6 million or 0.7%
above estimate. Year over year tax revenues increased $30.4 million or 1.6% over last August. The
increase from last August is due primarily to the commercial activity tax (CAT) and the income tax, which
grew 16% and 5.3%, respectively.

The Ohio unemployment rate was 5.4% in August, increasing 0.2 percentage points over July. In August
2016 the unemployment rate was 4.9%. The national unemployment rate for August was 4.4%, an increase

of .01% over July. August 2017 marks the 57th consecutive month when Ohio’s job growth was behind the
national average.

12

407



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

August disbursements for higher education were $180.1 million and were $0.2 million or 0.1% above
estimate. The slight variance was primarily attributable to disbursements for the Central State Agricultural
Research and Development and Cooperative Extension Services programs which were $1.9 million above
estimates as federal funds were provided earlier, requiring a state match. Lower disbursements for the Ohio
College Opportunity Grant Scholarship Program offset the variance by $1.1 million as a result of lower than
expected requests from higher education institutions.

While preliminary total state share of instruction (SSI) from the state stayed the same at $1.523 million in
fiscal year 2018, OSU took a slight dip from prior year, dropping $878k in total or 0.23% based on updated
enroliment trends submitted by the 14 universities receiving SSI.

B. OSU Wexner Medical Center

For the first two months of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the Wexner Health System’s Excess of
Revenue over Expense was 3.9% above budget and 24.7% above the prior year.

. Inpatient admissions were 3.3% above prior year and the total number of patients treated in inpatient
beds was above prior year by 3.7%.

Total outpatient visits were 1.6% below budget and 3.3% above prior year.

Adjusted admissions were 0.5% above budget and 1.4% above prior year.

Operating revenue per adjusted admission was 0.5% below budget and 5.9% above prior year.
Operating expense per adjusted admission was 0.9% below budget and 5.1% above prior year.
Total operating revenue of $484.9 million approximated budget and was 7.4% above prior year.
Total operating expense of $417.1 million was 0.4% below budget and 6.6% above prior year.
Operating EBIDA margin was 1.5% above budget, days cash on hand totaled 135.6 days and debt
service coverage was 2.7% above budget.

C. Enrollment

Columbus Campus

Enroliment is 1% above budget at the Columbus campus and is up 5% compared to fiscal year 2017. The
following tables are based on the combined student headcounts for summer and autumn semesters.

Fiscal Year 2018
Actual Vs. Budget Headcounts

Fiscal Years 2017 & 2018
Headcount Comparison

SUMMER &
AUTUMN

Student Level Actual Budget Change % Chg FY 2018 FY 2017 Change % Chg
Undergraduate 57,523 57,182 341 0.6% 57,523 55,309 2,214 4.0%
Graduate 17,218 16,955 263 1.6% 17,218 15,778 1,440 9.1%
Professional 4,425 4,641 (216) -4.7% 4,425 4,382 43 1.0%
Grand Total 79,166 78,778 388 0.5% 79,166 75,469 3,697 4.9%

*Headcounts include only those that generate fee revenue.

As shown below, resident enroliments increased 3% between fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2018 and are
up 1% above budget. Non-resident enroliment is 9% above fiscal year 2017 and is down 1% to budget. For
the academic year-to-date, total enrollment has increased 5% between fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year
2018 and is 1% above budget.

SUMMER & al Year 2018 Fiscal Years 2017 & 2018
AUTUMN a a Budget Headco Headcount Comparison
Residency Status a Budge ange 6 Chg 018 0 ange % Chg
Resident 56,836 56,264 572 1.0% 56,836 54,941 1,895 3.4%
Non-Resident 22,330 22,514 (184) -0.8% 22,330 20,528 1,802 8.8%
Grand Total 79,166 78,778 388 0.5% 79,166 75,469 3,697 4.9%
13

408



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017

Board of Trustees
*Headcounts include only those that generate fee revenue.

The increase in actual enroliment between fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 is due primarily
to significant increases in summer enroliment, as shown below:

I'SUF.!I.'I{:‘! Fisci 0 Fiscal Years 2017 & 2018
Headcount Comparison
.Rtsadem:v Status B 0 0
Resident 13,345 13,376 (31) 0.2% 13,345 11,603 1,742 15.0%
Non-Resident 5,984 5.958' 26 0.4% 5,984 4,384 1,600 36.5%
Grand Tonll 19,329 19,334 {SII 0.0% 19,329 15,987 3,342 20.9%
*Haadeounts includa anly thaca that sanarate fos ravenus,
AUTUMN Fisci : 0 Fiscal Years 2017 & 2018
Headcount Comparison
.Rtsldrncv Status B 0
Resident 43,491 42,888 603 1.4% 43,491 43,338 153 0.4%
Non-Resident 16,346 16,556 (210} -1.3% 16,346 16,144 202 1.3%
Grand Youll 59,837 59,444 393 0.7% 59,837 59,482 355 0.6%

*Headcounts include only those that generate fee revenue.

Regional Campuses

The following are the combined summer and autumn semester headcount enrollment figures. Overall,
regional campus enrollment increased nearly 1% from fiscal year 2017 and was closely on target with
budget. Enrollments increased for Marion and Newark campuses and decreased for Lima, Mansfield, and
ATI between fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2018. While Newark increased nearly 6%, Mansfield
decreased 8% over the same period.

Marion and Newark campuses were up from their projection for fiscal year 2018, ranging from nearly 2%
to 5%, while Mansfield and ATl were 5% or more below budget. Lima was slightly below budget (-1%).

SUMMER & Fiscal Year 2018 Fiscal Years 2017 & 2018

AUTUMN Actual Vs. Budget Headcounts Headcount Comparison

Campus Actual Budget Change % Chg FY 2018 FY 2017 Change % Chg

Lima 1,293 1,310 (17) 1,324 (31) -2.3%

Mansfield 1,387 1,471 (84) -5.7% 1,387 1,507 (120) -8.0%

Marion 1,381 1,360 21 1.5% 1,381 1,321 60 4.5%

Newark 3,046 2,907 139 4.8% 3,046 2,885 161 5.6%

ATI 840 881 (41) -4.7% 840 855 (15) -1.8%
Grand Total 7,947 7,929 18 0.2% 7,947 7,892 55 0.7%

*Headcounts include only those that generate fee revenue.

D. Research

Direct cost project expenditures in July and August 2017 are up approximately 9%, and Facilities and
Administration (F&A) recovery is up 3.2%, compared to this time last year. We should continue to see
expenditures increase, but particularly for federal dollars, reflecting a 6.1% increase in federal awards in
2017. In addition, the university’s F&A rate has increased to 55% in fiscal year 2018 and will increase again
to 56% in fiscal year 2019 and beyond. However, if federal award dollars do eventually drop as per

14

409



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

President Trump’s budget proposals, the lower base to which the rate is applied may offset the financial
benefit of the rate increase.

Awarded dollars, which can be considered a leading indicator of the state of the research enterprise are
down 17.2% overall compared to this time last year, including drops in both federal (16.6%) and non-federal
(21.2%) awards. It is likely that some of the differences by agency are real and some are just due to timing,
which can loom large this early in the fiscal year. For example:

e Adrop in NSF award dollars is an artifact of lags in reporting awards into the financial system. In
reality, awards by NSF increased 6% over the same time last year, as there was an additional $6.3
million in NSF awards in August 2017 not reported into the financial system until September 2017.

e For “other federal” awards, last year we received $14.6 million in Government Resource Center
(GRC) funding in August 2016, whereas this year the funding is allocated in the 2" quarter of fiscal
year 2018.

e Last year, we received nearly $7 million in Department of Labor funding for the National
Longitudinal Survey in August 2016, whereas this year we will receive it in September 2017.

E. Auxiliary Operations

Auxiliaries are entities that exist to furnish goods or services to students, faculty, staff, or the general public
for a fee. Auxiliary operations are essentially self-supporting. Examples at OSU include: Athletics,
Schottenstein Center, the Blackwell, Fawcett Center, Drake Union, housing and dining operations,
recreational sports and the Ohio Union. Each of these operations is discussed below.

Athletics Department
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Rewvenues $ 11,773  $ 12,634 $ (861) -6.8%
Expenses $ 29,413 $ 30,373 $ (960) -3.2%
Net Income $ (17640) $ (17,739) $ 99 -0.6%

Revenues are $861,000 lower than prior year primarily due to decreases in ticket sales, camps and
royalties. Expenses are $960,000 below prior year primarily due to reductions in capital expenditures, offset
by increases in personnel costs, travel, grants in aid, and facility repair.

Housing & Dining
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Revenues $ 13,119 $ 13,120 $ 1) 0.0%
Expenses $ 20,898 $ 19,340 $ 1,558 8.1%

Net Income $ (7,779) $ (6,220) $ (1,559) 25.1%
Housing and dining revenues are flat compared to prior fiscal year. Housing and dining expenses are up
$1.6 million from the prior year. Housing expenses are $132,000 above the prior year due to various

operating expenses. Dining expenses are $1.4 million above prior year due primarily to increased cost of
sales, supplies and debt service payment.

15

410



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Schottenstein Center
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Rewenues $ 2741 $ 10,476 $ (7,736) -73.8%
Expenses $ 2,000 $ 7,947 $  (5,947) -74.8%
Net Income $ 740 $ 2,529 $ (1,789) -70.7%

Revenues are $7.7 million lower than prior year primarily due to the International Champions Cup (ICC)
soccer game held at Ohio Stadium in July of 2016. Expenses are also down over the prior year following
the trend of event related revenues. The majority of the $5.9 million decrease in expenses is due to cost of
sales related to the events and in particular the ICC soccer match in July of last year.

Recreational Sports
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Revenues $ 3,558 $ 3,510 $ 48 1.4%
Expenses $ 2926 $ 2987 $ (61) -2.0%
Net Income $ 632 $ 523 §$ 109 20.8%

Revenues are tracking $48,000 above prior year primarily due to increases in entry fees. Expenses are
$61,000 lower than the prior year primarily due to decreases in repair and maintenance, purchased services

and personnel costs.

Ohio Union
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Rewvenues $ 2,578 $ 2,566 $ 12 0.5%
Expenses $ 2197 $ 2152 § 45 2.1%
Net Income $ 381 $ 414 $ (33) -8.0%

Revenues are $12,000 higher than prior year primarily due to higher event related income. Expenses are
$45,000 higher than prior year primarily due to higher purchased services and cost of sales.

Blackwell Inn
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Rewvenues $ 1,809 $ 1,856 $ @47 -2.5%
Expenses $ 1933 $ 1846 $ 86 4.7%
Net Income $ (124) $ 9 % (133) -1452.2%

Revenues are $47,000 lower than prior year mainly due to lower revenues in rooms, food & beverage and
Rohr Café. The room revenue decrease is due to a shortfall in occupancy of 283 rooms or 3.0 points. The
average rate of $155.27 is better than last year by $4.27; however the revenue per available room of
$110.55 is down by $1.53 due to the shortfall in occupancy. The shortfall in rooms also contributes to the
lower revenues in other areas. Expenses are $86,000 above prior year primarily due to higher staffing

levels.

16

411



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Fawcett Center
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Revenues $ 645 $ 608 $ 37 6.0%
Expenses $ 566 $ 565 $ 1 0.2%
Net Income $ 79 $ 43 3 36 82.0%

Fawcett Center revenues are up $37,000 compared to prior year. Conference revenues are $23,000 better
than last year. Office space rental revenue is up $14,000 due to all space being rented this year and the
3% annual increase. Expenses are relatively flat compared to prior year with slightly higher payroll and
benefits expenses offset by savings in utilities.

Drake Union
For the period ending August 2017
(In Thousands)

FY18 FY17 $ Change %
Rewenues $ 202 % 195 § 7 3.4%
Expenses $ 115§ 134§ (190 141%
Net Income $ 87 $ 61 $ 26 41.7%

Revenues are up $7,000 from the previous fiscal year. The increase is due to full occupancy of office space
and the annual 3% rent increase. Expenses are $19,000 below prior year due primarily to lower personnel
cost.

17

412



1994

UMOp dUBWLOMd 4 |eod Mo|3q Je4
douewJopad Ul 33ueyd oN & |e03 mojag
dn douewuopsd |, |e0d $paRIXa 40 SIIN

yJewyouag
*SA |en}dy

198png

"SA |en)dy

Vv Vv Suney upasd g
%TC'S %891 uJn1ay a8eJany |00d JUBWISIAU| WI| Suo] JedA € L
%ECTT %6T°ET uJN1ayY |00 JUBWISIAU| WJD] SuO] JBIA T "9
%880 %317’ T UJN13y |00d 1UBWISIAU| dIBIPAWIAU| *G

%.0'T UJN1aY |00d JUSWISIAU| WII] MOYS

yJewyduag
8T-LT0C

|enoy
8T-LTO0¢C

N %ET € %TC € suoilesadQ 031 9JIAJIBS 193 |BNIDY "€
J 014 €€C puey uo yse) sheq - Aupinbii 'z
J ¥'0 L0 oney anasay Alewlld - Alpinbi °1
SOLI9IA |eldueul] jeuolin}isu] °g
J 000'GCT G0698€'T 19SSy |eloueulq 19N Ul @8uey) °g
J (Lv8cT) 966'CT duewJload Juswmopua Sulpn|oxa $19SSY 19N Ul aduey)d '
J 790°T6 €0S'TCT $19ssy 19N Ul asuey) ‘g
1t GCL'000'T | T€0'SL6 sasuadx3 |e10] T
s 61V'vL6 £€79'696 9ouewJoad JusWMOpUD SUIPN|IXd SNUDAY |e10] ‘T

198png
alA 810¢

|eny
alA 810¢

(spuesnoyy ui) Joysdeus jepueuly 'y
(spuesnoyy ui )
ple22.10dg |edueul4 palepijosuo)

8102 ¥sndny ysnoayl | 810Z A4
Suno9N pleog 8TOZ 19qWIDNON

ALISHIAIN( JLVIS OIH() FH] O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




143%

UMOP JUBWIOMAY 4 |eog mojaq Jeq
douewsopad ur adueyd oN & |e03 mojag
dn souewlsopsd | |203 SPa3IXa JO S}V
J V6’ V1T 6SS°6TT JaWwiNs - SINOH HpaJ) °¢
© vEE'6T 6CE6T JaWwWNS - JuUaW|joJuy T
(Ajuo sndwe) snquinjo)) SI141BAl dUeW.IoMdd D)
J (6T6°TE) (z8L'€) duewJo}iad Juswmopua 3ulpn|oxa S19SSY 19N Ul d3uey) g
J 6GS5°LT G865 S13sSY 18N ul adueyd ‘v
J (626°0%) (92/2'81) UISJBA 19N JUBLIND '€
1t wLLY S06°SSt sasuadx3 |e10] ‘7
606'S0¥ ¥9TL0V 9JUewW.J0449d JUSWMOPUD SUIpN|IXa SNUIAIY |e10] 'T
(spuesnoys ui) Joysdeus |edueuld ‘g
N2 (92P'TE) (S¥L'92) saslidJaiu3 Adeljixny wouj uoilnglluo) 18N ‘9
91G'ST 00S‘ST suoneldosddy wal| aull 91e1sS 'g
L4 £91€9 vv6'€9 ISS 'V
J 9€9°qT LYT9T $1d1323Y YseD JUSWIDUBAPY ‘g
J €87'6€T CTLL'SYT (@8ueyoxa) syoesjuo) pue sjuedo g
J €EC'TL €88°CL $934 pue uonIny ‘T

(spuesnoyy ui) s1dA1IQ 9NUINDY 'Y
(spuesnoyy ui §)

198png 198png
'SA|enY  dl1A 810¢
8T0Z 3sn3ny ysnouayy | 8TOZ A4

SunasN pieog 8TOZ J3qWISAON

|enjoy
alA 8T0¢

pae23103S [eldueul{ AMsiaalun

ALISHIAIN() dLIVLS OIH() FH] O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



UMop aoueuLotdg 4
uewopad uraBueyr oy ¢
dn auewuosq

003 M0J3q Je4
203 Mojag

[|03 53303 0 S133N

Sy

(«\ELER

0L L 98eJano) a2IAIBS 193 €

9'TET 9'GET pueH uo yse) sheq ‘¢

%C'0¢ %5°0¢ uiSieN valgl Sunesado ‘1
SOMIBIA dduewsoyidd 'd

6ty S|svy S S9SUDAX3 JOAQ DNUBARY SSIIXT ¥

199 S]8¢L9 S suonesadp wouy ulen ‘g

L8TV S| TLIv S sasuadxd |e10] ‘¢

88y S|6V8Y S sanuanay Sunesado T
(spuesnoyy ui) yoysdeus |epueuly )

€940 S ]|985°0¢ S Hwpy paisnlpy / asuadx3 ‘g

1 _ wo've S| zee'se S 1wpy paisnipy / sanuanay unesado ¢

991°0¢ 097°0¢ suoissiwpy paisnipy ‘T
oI AlAndy g

J STT'EC TET'TT SUSIAQT 9

4 €/T'v0€ Y€2'66¢ S1ISIA Juaneding g

9Tv'L 891'L sa11984ng [e10] ‘¥

Ng 18801 96.0T sagJeydsiq ausned ‘€

4 G90°€T 006CT spag 1uanedu| ui sjuaned ‘g

4 ¥S80T €180T SuoISSIWpPY udiled T

810¢ 1sn3ny ysnoayl | 8T0Z A4
Sunea pieog £10¢ J9qWIDAON

SI9AIIQ 9NUIA”Y Y

ALISHIAIN() 41VIS§ OIH() dH] O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




oy

/10C "C J8quisAON
buljalig seajsni| Jo pleoyg

a)epdn sndwen |euoibay

ALISYFAIN( AILVLIS OIHQO THL @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



YIeMaN

ALISYAAIN[) LVLS OIHQ THL Q

Ly

Saljlunwwod |ednJt ul sebus|ieyo olwouody O
S|O0YyOSs |B2I1UYD3)} Wolj uonadwod pasealou] M
sojenpelb jooyos ybiy Jo Jequinu Buisealosq O

:opnjoul sabus|iey)

‘sasndwed [euolbal e sjuspn]s aWooUl S|ppIW pue

MO| 0} pajedlpap Ajjenuue |NG$ 1O Siuels) Aljigepioyy sjuapisald

sndwed snquinjo) ay) 1e uonajdwoo saibap

0} sAemyied Jayo pue juswijoius uado ale sasndwed |euolbal ||y

‘Awouoos s.o1yQ 404 Aliaonpoud pue ymmodb ‘Juswdojansp
JO uonelauab Jxau ayj BuIALIp - Yoleasal pue uoleonpa 0} SS8ooe

‘a|qepJoye ybnouyy ueolyQ Aleas Jo [enusjod |n) syl Buizijeay

<

uolIsI/ pue uolssij\ sndwed jeuoibay

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



5134

€ sndwe) snquinjo) 8y} UOo S8oUsI0S [BIJUSWIUOIIAUT pue [einynduby ‘poo Jo 868|070 8y 1o Jed “I81SO0AA Ul pajeso,

910'99 NSO [e3oL
Z81'6S sndwes snquinjod

2zl X 0/ »ﬁv 2 VIN N
620°L (8roe __mwmc_caov X » a1e1S sapoyy ewr
8zL'L X 07/ xa: P 91BIS [BAIUSD YLON plausue
6EL'L 2 X 2 [BOIUYOS] UOLEIN uoLe
9e5'z » (02 :»8@ P [BOIUYD3] OIYO [BAUSD SHEMON

(nso/
MH.MMF__.__ juswyjjoiuz .“M:Mo |ejo]) swuoq Bujuig Sl
jel 14 Juspnig sndwes

sndwe) pajeso1-09H

JuswijjoJud AyslaAiun [B10) Jo 98’8 Ajo1ewixoidde esudwoo sesndwed [euoibay a81e1s oy Jnoj ay |

M sa|ljold sndwe)

ALISYAAIN[) LVLS OIHQ THL

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



6Ly

v |1V Buipnjox3,

102 Ad 910C Ad Gl0C Ad 7102 Ad €10C Ad

NO0LS$
NS 0v$ INO'0C$
NO'0E$
%E" L~
™DV HAS
NO"0Y$
NWrZL$ N0 0S$
%0°0 WL LG$ : NO'098
™DV HAS INS'65$
uononJisu| Jo aleys ajeiSm s99 Alojepuel @ uolinl m NO'0.$

% 1€ sepinoid uononJsul Jo aieys ale)s ‘uonin) alenpelbispun wod) SI anusaAal Jo %69 AlJesN

ALISYAAIN() 1VLS OIHQ TH] O SONUBADY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



0cy

LT0ZM STOC W STOZE ¢IOZE €T0C W

e plausuely uoUB Jeman

005
000'T
6E0°T ) )
TET'T 6ET'T
592'T €Tt
00S'T
%2
>V UAS %82~ 000'T
0, b &)
MOV UAS kLT
AOVI HAS
06£'C 0057
96T
000'€
%S L
>V HAS

sleak G 1se| 8y} JAAO 9%,9°C pauljoap aAeY Ing WalSAS NSO |e10l Jo %6 Ajerewixoidde aie syuswijoiug

thmmw\:ZD dLVLS OIHQ dH ], O HC@E__OLCM w:QEmO _mco_mmm

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



Ly

9 suondo asoy) Buiosjes Juapnis Joy asjuelenb |1y pue sndweod [euoibal 8y} Ul papnjoul 8q OS|e PINOM S8}el pleoq pue Wooy,

S N O IS I O <o )| [ A I T I O T O

[ oA |

- 6Vl 514 uolun olyo
- - k4 x4 V109
- - ore e uoesidsy
%009 S 08 7 Auanoy Juspnig
- - cle cle 99 [eJdus9
%009 0SS 811’6 8916 994 |euononJjsu]

abueyd % abueyo (8LAd) @33uRIEND (ZLAd) yuaang

(pseoq
pue Woo.J uowwod jJsow ‘Juapisal) gL A4 Bulsjua sse|d 10y asjueIens uolIN] aje}s olyo — shndwes snquinjo)

-_—

- - 8¢ 82¢ 994 [elausg)
%009 cly 682'L 9/8'9 994 [euononisu|
abueyy % abueyo (8LAd) @sjueseny (ZLAd) yuaan

81 Ad Buliajus sseo 10} 9ajuRIENS UOI}IN] 9)B)S OIYQ - dINJISU| [B2IUYDD] [eINn}noLIBY|

%08°G cIv$ «£66'.% ovLL$ aajuesenb sndweo [euoiboy
- - 8¢cC

8¢¢ 994 |BJaud9D)
%009 ey Gee'l 2169 89 [BUONONIISU|
abueyg % abueyo (8LAd) @sjueseny (ZLAd) yuaaing

81LAd Buliajua sseo 1oy asjueiens) uoning aje}s olyQ - sasndwed jeuoibay

sSnguinjo) uey] a|gepJlole aiow %@z ulewal sesndwed [euoibal eajuelenb uoning Jsyy

ALISHAAIN() ALVLS OIHQ dH ], O @OC@UC@HH@ h.o H.woo

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



[4474

] sndwed ulew uo sieah ¢ pue |euoifal je Jeak | sswnssy,
- 9rT'9s a1e)S [esjua)
spuejaJl
90L'v$ pueja.ld NSOY suossiwpe uado
. Y9ELS 2aumeys
v66'7S 1aMo1 NO
suoissiwpe anposjes [l L2085 sk
9€0°SS Jaddn no
0£L'8$ NSMm
€LT'S uol|IWeH Jweln ,
s ! we'es opajo|
9T€'sS juowz) N 96968 ns
99'S$ 13m0 23e3S U TT0'0TS I 3uD)
‘. ‘ |
we'ss sndwe) a3e7 NSM LEO'OTS LTA4 NSO
RIS - R DY )
176'SS 983]]10D) suAep uony
90907 I 0599
010'9$ ysv anjg on
000'TTS I neuuduD
‘ Jaddn a1e15 UL
8€9'9% N 21835 U3 98TTTS uony
ovT'zs I /1 Ad [euol8aY NSO 968'TTS I NO
[ WAS B8 o9jueleng |euoiSay NSO 8S6'VTS I 1w

S99 puUD Uo[IN [puoIbay olyo

SaNISIBAILN D1gNd OIYO

LSAIISIBAIUN 9AOB[SS OIYQ
Buowe uoneonps Jeak { 10} a|qepioye }sow p,g

aajuesenb 1oy Bupjuels }so)

(steah ¥ 1o} @)el pasjuelenb ‘syuspnis
JeaA 1s11; mau 0} Ajuo pailidde)
%8’S

€6G°'.L$ ovL'L$

aajuesenb
SLAd

o9juesenb 10} 9sealdu|

9)ey LLA4

ALISYAAIN( FLVLS OIHQ THL O

suosliedwon souepuany Jo 1S0D

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



€y

snqwinjo) NSO s|euol8ay olyQ Jayi0

%LT

%Ly

spJemy [|3d

s|euol8ay NSO

%0t

snqwinjod NSO s|euoi§ay o1yQ 43410 sjeuoi8ay NSO

%L

%ET

%SE

(pjo siedA Gz Jano) |euonipes]-uoN

snqunjod NSO s|euoi8ay o1yo 49410 s|euoi8ay NSO

%61 %81 0z
‘ol

(40]0D jo syuspmis) AlisianIg

snguwinjo) uey) uonendod juspnis 8|qibi|e ||od PUB [BUONIPEII-UOU ‘OSIBAIP 8J0W B aAlI8s sesndweo [euolbay

ALISHAAIN[] HLVLS OIHQ dH],

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON

9]jold Juspnis




ey

sndwe) snqwnjod NSO sasndwe) |euoiday o1yo 42410 sasndwe) |euoi8ay NSO

suonnuysul bunuelb
aa1bap Jeak § suoissiwpe
uado Jayjo 9¢| 0} pasedwo)
Aljeuoneu gz doy ayj ul juel
YJBMBN PUB pl|alSUBA ‘UOLB|A|

%08

(YAG) sa1ey uonrenpel

sndwe) snquinjo) NSO

%176

sasndwe) |euol3ay o1yo J2Y10 sasndwe) |euol3ay NSO

%ES

%99

(4e9A puz 01 Je3A KT)
Saley uolluslay

sndweos snquinjo) ay) puiyaq

Be| |Ins 1ng [euoibay olyQ abelaae ay) uey) sejel uonenpeld pue uonuslal Jenag aaey sesndwed [euolbal NSO

ALISYAAIN[) LVLS OIHQ THL @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON

SS900NG JUBpNIS




Gy

ol

Jedaf auo jsegy je bune|dwoa iaye sesnduwied
buibueyo sjuspnys sjuasa.ida. (|1 Buipnjoxa) 00/ ‘G~ Juswijoius abeloAe |Bjo] 8jo0N

%671
0 .
(sluepnis gee'e) sndwen %169

[euoiboy NSO W Aeism

(syuepnss Lgg) suonnsul
al|qnd o1yQ JeyiO woi4m

(syuapnis 68)

(s)uapmis 96g) uonnsul
sndwen snquinjo) NSO Wol4

dland oyo #Buyio oL

(syuapnis /¢) sndwe) o\oO.@ L

JeuoiBay NSO Jualeyiq vV Woi4m (siuepnig G6v'L)

sNquinjo) NSO oL m

%0°9¢

%001

sasndwe) [euoibay o] sasndwe) |euoibay wol

Ajisi1aAiun 211gnd o1y Jeah ¢ e 03 sndweo [euolbal e wol) Jajsuel) Ajjenuue 9,4 JO sjuapnis Q0g‘z ‘@beltaae uQ

Hh_mmw\:ZD 4IVLS OIHQ dH ], o wmmcm:o w:QEmO

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



9cy

L

@&
foueroyzd B Annqepiopy  REEER

@

“ o

‘Apusiolye alow sjelado o) sesndwed
[euoibay NSO Buimojje sjeldoidde aleym aoe|d ul aie seba]|0d |E2IUYDS) PBIEIO0J-02 8] YIM Sjuswaalibe aolAIes-paleys «

‘woo ABojolajsuesy ul pauljino ale ey syuswaalbe Jajsuel)
pue uole|ndIle apIMalels ay} SJouoy Jayiel Jng ‘sesndwed paieso|-09 ay} yum swelbold 1o $8sinod aleys Jou seop NSO «

069|100 pa}eO0|-02 8y} JB Palayo 8sIN09 JudjeAinba ON aAey jey) sasndwed [euoibal NSO JNoj AQ patayo s8sIN0d Z99‘Z dy}

ul Jow Bulaqg Ayoedeo juswijolus Jo (9%G9) aAI-AIXIS Jo abelaAe ay) 0} saledwod siy| “sesndwed jeuolibal NSO JNOJ [|e usamaq

abelaAe U0 $8SIN0D 8SaY) Ul Jaw sem Ajoeded juawijolus Jo (9%g/) wuaalad Jybia Ajuaass Jo abelaae uy aba|j0o [ea1uyos)
pa1e20|-02 8y} Je paJayo 8SIn0d Jus|eAinba ue pey jey} sasndwed [euoibay NSO JN0J Y} Je Palayo S8SIN0I Q9 dI9M aIdy] <«

:uonejuswajdwy

‘eale olydeiboab InoA ul sanisiaAlun pue saba|j0d Jayjo 1e
pajeol|dnp sweiboid ajepljosuod pue swelbold pue sasIN0d Pa||0JUDS-MO| SSaIPPE PUB MBIABI PINOYS SAIJISISAIUN pue s8ba||0) «

:UOIJEPUBWILIODDY

JUBIoIJe J0W 8 UBD UoneoNpa Jaybiy Jo SuonNSul paiosuods-a]e)s YoIym Ul SAem puswiLLodal pue MalAal 0) [BO9)

Hh_mmw\:ZD dLVLS OIHQ dH ], o ®OLOL.V_wml_l \AH.___QNULOL..._.aq m_I_DO

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



YXa4

¢l

sabuajjeyn
pue s)ybiybiH

ALISYAAIN( FLVLS OIHQ THL O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



8¢y

€l

sndwed snquinjo) ayj Jo Ajwixoud
ay} 0] anp sabus|leyo Juswijjoius os|e ale aiay |
‘pajepdn aq 0} paau ||Im saijljioe) Bulby :sabusjjeyn

"sJeak (| Ul uonualal Juspnis Jeah 1sii4 map 1saybiy

01 96 86 16 L0l [EO1UID B POJBIDOSSY 8y} pue (%) ymodb juswijoius Buong :ss800Ng  «
(3] €9 99 121 4 3oel] ainua)
"'sndweo snquinjo) ay) 0}
T H6ET SleT T BuiBueyo aiojeq sieak om) Joj sndwed sy} Je ulewsal
0] SJUSPN]S SLWOS MOJ[E [|IM JBY) S8SIN0D 82USI0S Jeak
GZ8'VIB'CLS 8L0'8S0FL $ ¥L8'09Z'GZS L.6'960728 LES'879°TTS Aynb3 Buipug [ejoL -puodas Jajo 0} d|qe a4 ||IM ydiym Buipjing W3 LS €
8/0'850'FL  ¥18'99Z'SZ  L.6'960'VZ  L£5'829TZ  1ZZ'L60'vT Aynb3 BuuuiBag |ejo JO uonoNJISU09 ay) Joj sebejs Buluueld uj :80uUs(|80XT <«
(psz'c6) ¢ (9g2°80Z°LL)$ v¥8'69L°L $ vEV'89¥'L $ (¥89'29F¥'L)$ uibiep JoN -sausLISdxs 1UeDMS o oLUS
(6sg'zzo'e)  (czs'see'el) (€56'194)  (v68'9ee)  (00S°1+9°2) (InO) u| sisjsuesL : u.\ phis a4} Yol
G£9'626'C  L8L'6TL'T 96€L€6'L  8ZE'G08'L  918'8LLL siajsue.] aiojeg uibiel JoN 0} Ayjij1oe} ssauyly Jooj a1enbs 000‘0} Mau e pauado
266°08€'22  99Y'0SZ'LZ  L0T8YSLZ  8LLBESLZ  6LL'GL8TZ sosn 0S|y ‘sjuspnis 00gZ 40 isiiem e yum Ajoedeo ||ny
LZ9°01€'GZ$ €GZ'086'€Z $ €09'6L'€ZS 9YO'SHE'EZS GBS V66'€Z$ $80IN0S Je Bunesado sI yoiym |ley juspisal paq 0zl e ‘N6°'EL$

L102Ad 9102Ad S10ZAd v102Ad €102Ad 10} [|BH ||[BUUODOA JO UOIONIISUOD By SS90y <«
:syybiybiH

sabua|ieyn pue sybiybiH sndwe) yiemaN

ALISHAAIN() ALVLS OTHQ TH] O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



a4

142

aoualIadxa jJuapnis ||ny
3y} 0} Juswipaduwi ue paJapIsuod si yolym buiuip pue Buisnoy
sndwed paumo AjisiaAlun Jo abeloys e si alay| :sabuajjeyd

saba||00 pajeoo|

-09 yum pue sasndweo |euolbal ssoloe (Juswalinodold pue

YH “6°8) sadiales paleys Buipnoul saloualolye |euonelado
|leuonippe 10} saniunoddo Buimealnay :salousiog <«

96 09 IZA 19 €L [EJIUIID 8 pajelossy
9€ Ge 6€ 8¢ g€ 3oel] ainus]

- swnoofmoy Jeak 1s€| 80UIS 9% Ajerewixoidde

pasealoul BuiAey ‘sjusw|joJus /| 0Z Uwniny ul yymolb

esct FelinE o|qeJapIsuos Bupusuadxe Ajjuaiund si sndwes Ymols) <«

991'686'G $ ZL¥'9/€'. $ 20T12€'TZ$ 0STL0Z'v2$ 966'851°TT$ Aynb3 Buipug |ejo)
LL¥'92€' L 20Z'lee'ce  0GZ'L0Z2've  966'8Sl'c¢  £80°190'2Z Aynb3 Buluuibag jejoy .A_>_m_._.w

U0 SNJ0J pajesuBduo9) saliioe) Buleaulbug pue adualdg
(1sz16€'L) $ (S8Lvv6'vL)$ (L90988°L) $ €52°'8¥0°CT $ €16°L6 $ uibiep 3N ®@®L®>®_ UCN WHCQUDHW 10BJ)1E 0] WENL@OLQ OOL@@U ._NO\A
(925'¢¥6) (esv'szo'vl)  (801°€G€L)  L18'0LL (118'9G1) (1nO) u| s18ysuel] . m:%cmaxm JO ssaooud ay u| ‘0S|y -sndwes uo wmc_._mto
(52L'Lv¥) (eee‘61L€) (6£6°2€S) LEV'1E6°L yzL'vse sloysuel] aioyog uibiepy JoN NaLS mc_ocmr_cm j0 ®>:O®BO a1 M Hmmbsn Jopun
LLV'LZE'SL LGV IE0'GL  8Z8'8PG'GL  SETWBE'SL  Z9Z'889'SlL sesn : A .
1v'€I8'PLS 8LL'8LLYL § 688'GLO'SLS L/9'LZE'/LS S86'TYESLS seomog  PUEB BWI-UO (NG G| $ Joj Buipjing Buliesuibug pue aousios

L10ZM 910ZAd SL0ZAd 710ZAd €10ZAd uoriey RIS alenbs 000‘€E Mau e _umwm_QEoo >_E®omm_ :9JU9||9IXg «
'sybIybIH

sabus|leyn pue spybijybiH sndwen uoley

ALISYAAIN( FLVLS OIHQ THL O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



0cy

Gl

‘abua||leyo e sulewal Jeak ,,g 0} uonualal
1NQ JUBISISU0D ALlIB) SI JusW||0Jud uewysal{ :sabuajjeyn

ymoJb olwouoos |euoibal ayowo.d

12°] 1£°] 89 29 Ly [EDIUND 8 PBJEIDOSSY
66 op Ly op zh yoeiL einus; PUE SS820E [BUOI}EONPS 9SE8IOU| O} AHUNWWOD 3|A}S-a|
LT Clusiouned oland pue ejenud ul Bujsenu :uojerouu) <

661°L voz'L jusuwiyjo.uz

‘Aoey
yoJeasal pue uoljedisuowap wlie4-oJoI|\ a|jgeuleisnsg

1G9'€Y0'S $ 686'9¥0'G $ 1G8°L99'G $ 8L8Y6L'9 $ 2G2°1€9'9 § Aynb3 Buipuz jejo)

686'9%0'S 168199'G 8L8'¥61'9 16/'1€9'9 €6/'900'8 Aynb3 Bujuuibag |ejo) ueqin mau pue sweJsboud uoljednpa b_c:EEoo
apIM-9]B]S UOoISUa)Xg NSO ‘S82In0Say |enjeN pue

(zes'e) ¢ (c98'vL9) ¢ (196'2€S) $ (6ee'oey) ¢ (L660LEl)$ wbiewiaN  |BJUSWIUOIIAUT JO [00YOS yum Bulisuned :Ajjiqeulelsng  «

(662'795'L)  (c0€'18G'L)  (geL'vpe’L) (L8¥'€l¥'L) (S08'921'2) (1nO) u| s1gysuel]

LZVL96°L  OPP'996 89/°118 8v5'9g0'L  808°LS.L sJaysuel ] aiojeg uibiep JoN .

€SOVLEEL  006'86SYL  SLTELEVL  LZL'9ZTYL  LS6LZOVL sosn weiboud Bupissuibuz olueyos Jo Jesh

080'9/8'VL$ OVE'GOS'SL $ EV0'SBL'GLS 699°79Z'SL$ 6SL'6/€'GLS seomog  pul 1840 0} 869]|0D Bje)S [BAUSD YHON Pa}eso|-00 pue

LLOZAd 910ZAd SLOZAd 710ZAd £10ZAd PIaysuep Bulieauibug jo ab9)j0D yum diysisuped B U] SS90y <«
:s)yb1yBIH

sabug|ley) pue syybijybiH sndwe) pjaljsuelp

ALISHAAIN() ALVLS OTHQ TH] O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



LEV

9l

‘eale AJUNOD (| S,ewi] apisino

10 / pue euelpu| WoJj ||oJud 1yBiw jey) syuspnis Jo Jaquinu
ay) Buniwi Ajjenusjod Buiuip sndweo papuedxse pue
Buisnoy juspnis sndwed Jo Yoe| e si alay| :sabuajieyn

8y vy ov 5§ 9G [eoIulD B PAIeIo0S Sy
9¢ 9¢ L€ I 8e %oel] 8Inua] ‘Q10Z Aenuepr uado 0}

TR paINpayOs SI OIUIO HEYBISL, SISO SSAUIBM pue

yjleaH |e1ol NSO 9y} jo Buiuado ay} uo Buneioqe|jod

L el — e aJe BuisinN jo 869||00 By} pue BwIT :UOHEIOge||0)) <«
(6se'ses) ¢ (£0L°119) ¢ (998'9) $ (eev'sll) $ #85'69L $ Aynb3 Buipuz |ejo)
(L01'119)  (998'9) (zev'sll)  $85'69L 612785 L Aynb3 Buluuibeg |ejo) ‘Aisteniun ey Aq psumo Apealje sjesse

wol} pasodindal juswdinba yym Buipjing o417 Juspnis

(zsz'vzz) ¢ (1wz'v09) ¢ 995'LLL ¢ (9L0'888) ¢ (Se9'vLe) ¢ uibaep 30N qgap Aued ayy (g1L0zZ |1ed) BuluadQ :Aousioyg «
0€0'S81 06%'50Z 680'8€0°L 768°'9¢ (61°0LY) (1nO) u| sigysuel)
(zgz'eoy)  (1£2°608) (czs'oze)  (806'v2z6)  (2¥v'vov) Siejsuel) aiojeg uibiely JoN )
8/9'98€°CL  9VB'LbY'ZL  LGE'€08'ZL  80L°TLOCL  LSY'¥SH'EL sasn OlyQ Jo Juapisai e aiam Asy) JI se puaye
96€'//6'LLS GLZZEILL $ ¥EL'Q/8'LLS 008°280°ZTLS  0LO'0SO'EL$ seomog O} SJUSPN}S SMO|[e Jey} BUBIpU| Ul SB)RUNOD Jusbunuoo

L10ZAd 910ZAd SL0ZAd v1L0ZAd €10ZAd Upm Juswaalby Ajooidioay uoning :Aljigepioyy <«
:s)YbB1yBIH

sabua|jeyn pue sybiybiH sndwen ewl

ALISHAAIN() ALVLS OTHQ TH] O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



[4%7%

/102 ‘Z 'AON | @8)1wwo) soueul

1921JO JUBWISAAU| JBIYD pue dA ‘eueT "D uyor

ajepdn [004 JUBWISBAU| WIS | -buo]

XLISYAAIN( ALVIS OIHQ TH]. @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



€ey

uol||iq G| °G$ SPOaIXd MOU g "100 JO S anjeA 1ayel\ <«
diyssauped juswabeuely ABiaug aAlsuayaldwo) wolj pa}saAul uol|iw 618¢ <«
J1vddN 8L A
uol||iq GZ 1S :9NJeA 1o)Jew pus Jesp <«
9SJoAIUN SBllISIBAIUN pue 8b63)|0) Jo) dj1iuenb 1sii4 :uosuedwod Jead <«
0L A4 Ul SJUBWI]SOAU| JO 821140 JO uondaoul doUIS %6E G+ e

LLAd 10} uinial %G yL+

1snbny ul palodal synsal Aleuiwijald uey) Jabuouis uaas sI souewlopad [eul{ <«
/L A4 Jo} sjybiybiy d11

ALISYAAIN( FLVLIS OIHQ FH], @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




ey

%10 sjessy bunepinbig
%.°€ aJnjonJiselu| %€0 |exden ainjusp
%6°G oje)sy |eay %99 S92IN0Say |elnieN
%1°0€ %001 umoloy/sinohng
%¢€°09 awoou| %691 solinb3 ajeAud
salinb3 paxi4 %20 Npai1d Buepinbi
[eqo|9 [BQ019 %C'€ upaId 8jeAld %¢g’L | sennb3 poys/buo
%L 6l uinjey anjosqy | %02y sanb3 BuoT
%0°. awoou| paxid | %EEY saninb3 oljand
suloau saninb3 jeqo|o
9Xl4 |jegqo e
%96 paxid [eqo|9
s}assy
[eay Awwccm._ 0:__0_9_30 uiyjim __Mv.

NOILVOOTIV 13ASSV

"SJUSWISBAU| JO 81O 8Y} 10} suonelado Jo Jeak ||y 1Sl 8Y) SEM Q| A

%L | %0L | %LV | %611 Yiewyouag Adljod GEL'6SY'EST'YS  GEL'6SY'EST VS anjeA ey buipug
%68 %08 Qomuv Qom..vr dilielol 908°86.°G/8°|L 25¥°90.v€S 18U ‘aW0oUul JUSWSaAU|
%6'S | %69 %G +1dO (lo1'e80'LzL)  (Lv'e9z'Zl) Bupunoooy g Juswdojereq
%9CL | %¥Sl sjessy |eay ( mothont o
07 ¢ oY __ (r¥6'108'v€0°L)  (670°0L9°991) uonnguisiq
%5¢ | (%e0) | ajLbalbby 'S’ shepieg 191'6€6'CLY'L  802'229'V.C Jou ‘suonippe Y0
%CZT | %SV awoou| paxi4 [eqo|9 heoe e "
%S | %6l MOV 19SI /€9'050°60% 609‘LvY'6Y STS)
%g v | %6l semnb3 [eqol9 0£0°19G°169'L$  98£'29G'8/G'cS anjeA 1axue| Buluuibeg

2102 AL1Ad

LL/9  1B9A G JBIA ¢

x60/1

JONVINAHOL4¥3d QAVMYUOLTION IANTVA LIMAVIN

/102 ‘0€ aunr) pus-ieaA JL A4 1e dI1T

ALISYAAIN( FLVLIS OIHQ FH],

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



Sey

/102 ‘21 190 Jo se uosuedwoo dnoub Jaad sajeloossy abplque)

%0t ) SUONEAIBSqQ
%TT
%801 U1s6
%ZT %LlCl Uig.
a|ienb ¢ %6°¢Cl uige
YET %E°Gl ys
a|ienb pug
a[ljuadled
9]e]s oIyo ot
%SVl s %0°CL uespy
0
%S ¥l 9]els oIyo
%91 aouewuoydd /L A4

asJaAlun Ayisiaalun pue sabajjon

Bunjuey Jead /10zZ JedA |edsid
a]els oIyo

aslanlun Alisiaaiun pue sabsjjo) Joy synsal /| A4

uosledwo? Jasad

ALISYAAIN( FLVLIS OIHQ FH], @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




9ty

spoaaooud ABisua
f G 1uo4ydn sepnjouy \

| !

LL/Z/0L  LZLAd  9LAd  GLAd  VvIAd  €LAd  ZLAd  LLAd  OlAd  60Ad

0%
_ _ - INO0SS
aecs$
d¢e
ago'lg o

f 901JJO Slusw)saAu| Jo uondsou) \

av$
d¢$
a6z v$
(o g9%
g51°G$ SUONNQLIIUOD AJISISAIUNE  JUSWMOPUS Palio m

(0g aunp) pua Jeah |easiy Je anjeA }a)JeN

PB]SOAUlI Usag aAeY spun) AbBJau3 (gL A4

ALISYAAIN( FLVLIS OIHQ FH], @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




YA%4

/102 1°9qQUIDSAON

NOZ$ JoAQ s1osloid

sajepdn 108loud Jolep

ALISYAAIN(N) ALVLS OIHO FH] @

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



8¢CY

wesvoson [N

C yoeJ} uo dasy 03 uaxel 3uiaq aJe suoljoe — A[9so|d Sulydlepn

3oeJ3 uQ A9y

N1 6ES A, A’ sepelbdn wnipeis olyo

INO'G6$ % Juswaoe|day |eiued djisod

INO' 29 A x9|dwo) uoIdONPOId POO- JUBSWUOIIAUT P8||0Ju0D

IN9"LGS % % | ©Seyd — uoljed0|ay sAlg uouuey

N1 '6G% N | @seyd — JOpLIOY S[eLIsle|\ peouBApY

INO'92$ % uoljeAouay/uoisuedx3 BuIp 1soM —3se3 NSO

NS LZS % A’ J81uUa] |[ED PSIEPIOSUOD — UBWIBIY 00.

WNL6v$ A A Buinsaip sbuiuusp/iods-nIngl 1jj9A0D

INO'€EV$ s 2 18juaQ Juswdolara( a38|uly-juspnis Jaxewnyos

INO"09% % % INO pPIing pag-¢/. — I18jus) |BJIPS|A\ JBUXSAA

ING'LES % % uolsuedx3 uld}susjoyos

IN6°659$ 2 2 uoljeArouay s|ieH As|xQ pue auaiswod

139dng 3FNWILNO 139dndg uod sed 103rodd

NO STVAONdY

INOZS H3IAO SL1I3r0dd — LHO0d3YH SNLVLS 1D3r0odd

i

ALISYIAIN() FLVLS OIHQ FH]L | @
4

bunes|\ @81iWLIO)) SoUBUIS - bules|\ PJEOY /| 0Z JOqWIBAON



6EY

198png up awl] up

8TOZ Y2Je|\ Ul 919]dwod 03 pa3dadxa S| auaJawod jeald Ja1uIm J0) Pa|npayds
ul-aAoW Yum [jeH AS|xQ ul pajjeasul Suiaq sl a4n3iuing ‘Aemiapun S| uoI1eI01SaU
JO1J93U1/101193X3 pue 333|dW0I e YJOM JUsWIeqge pUe Uollijowad

Uw_o_:uuo saoeds 2y} pue wuw_QrCOu S UO0I1dNJIISUO0d sUoWwWo) Jayed

31vadn 123royd
aueq|io 3SIJ 1B JaSeuew uo1INIISUOD
S91BID0SSY Y200y pJ0223J JO 1093YydJe
SINVLTINSNOD
8T/€-ST/01 uoI3dNJ3SU0d IN6°6SS }3foud |30}
v1/8 |enosdde jog NT 81S JUO0D /M UOI12NJISUOD
31NA3IHDS 103rodd 139an9g 133rodd LN3ddNd

spuny a1e1s ‘spuny Aseljixne
ONIANNL 1J33roYdd

S3JIAISS
A¥[1qesiq 4O 92140 3y Joj SUOWWOD Jxeq Ul 4S9 00S‘LT 1eAoudy

SeaJle 92UaJ94u0d/3ullPdW pue

‘592140 ‘sqe| J9Indwod ‘9oeds |euolloNIISuUl/WOo0ISSe|d apn|dul sadeds
‘Sjuswiedap sonsinsul] pue ‘Uy jo AloisiH ‘sanAjeuy eleq/sonAjeuy
ejeq |euolie|sued] 4oy s||eH AS|XQ pue auaJawod a1eAoudy

NOILVAON3Y ST1VH A31XO ANV IN3H3INOd

ALISHAAIN. ALVLS OIHO aHL || |

bunes|\ @81iWLIO)) SoUBUIS - bules|\ PJEOY /| 0Z JOqWIBAON



ovy

198png up awl] up

|euollelado si 921AJ3s 3133nys Sujied sndwed 1S9\

uol1dnJisuod
10} pasSO|d sey oAl 191uUa) |BJIPS|A pUuB aNUBAY ;¢ T UsaMla(q aAlIg uouue)

9|npayds uo pue Aemuspun aJe syafoid Suljqeus

31vadn 153royd

3uisoy 0y J010BJUOD |eJ3uUdd

U] ‘IHING pJ0234 4O 19)YdJe
SINVLINSNOD
6T/C1-L1/8 uoI32NJISU0d IN9'TSS 13foud €303
9T/T1 |enosdde | og NT tPS JUOJ/M UOI12NJISUOD
JT1NA3IHIS 133roYd 1395dNn4d 133rodd LN3¥dNd

spuny AyisJaniun
SNIANNL 133r0Yd

Suideaspue| pue seaJe UOI}BJID4 |ewlojul ‘@3pa SI9AL 3Y)
JO UOI1BI01SJ BY] SE ||9M Sse Quawdolanap a4niny aalas 03 Suidid 1no gnis pue
9ALIQ UOUUB) Pa1BI0|3J 3Y1 JaPUN SaUI| DIIAIDS AJ[1IN SPN[DUl OS|€ [|IM YJOAN

"JUBAS WO]S Jedh

-00S @Y1 woJj sndwied ayy 109310.4d [|Im ‘DAlIQ saAeH APOOAN 01 9ALIQ YOI4IBH
WwoJ} “z aseyd '[oA3] pool} JeaA-00G @Yl 9A0GE SALIQ YI1IISH PUB SNUBAY
Suly usam1ag aALIg uouue) asied ‘snquinjo) Jo A1) ay3 yum diysiauied uj

T 3SVHd — NOILVIO 0134 IAI4Ad NONNVYD

ALISHAAIN[] ZLVLS OIHQ FH]L

bunes|\ @81iWLIO)) SoUBUIS - bules|\ PJEOY /| 0Z JOqWIBAON



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into professional services contracts, as detailed in the attached materials,
is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the university desires to enter into professional
services contracts for the following project:

Prof. Serv. Total
Approval Project
Requested Cost
Health Sciences Faculty Office $0.6M $28.0M university funds

and Optometry Clinic Building auxiliary funds

WHEREAS the Capital Investment Plan (CIP) outlines capital projects recommended for funding and was
approved by the BOT on August 25, 2017; and

WHEREAS the scope and cost for the Health Sciences Faculty Office and Clinic Building was not known
at the time the CIP was approved; and

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the project listed above for
alignment with all applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has reviewed the project listed above for alignment with the Capital
Investment Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the Capital Investment Plan be
amended to include professional services for the Health Sciences Faculty Office and Clinic Building; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the president and/or senior
vice president for business and finance be authorized to enter into professional services contracts for the
project listed above in accordance with established university and State of Ohio procedures, with all actions
to be reported to the board at the appropriate time.

441



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

Project Data Sheet for Board of Trustees Approval

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building
Project Location: West 11th Ave & Neil Ave

o approval requested and amount
professional services $0.6M

o project budget

professional services $2.8M
construction w/contingency $25.2M
total project budget $28.0M

o project funding
I university debt
[ development funds
X university funds
X auxiliary funds
U state funds

o project schedule

BoT prof serv approval 11/17
design/bidding TBD
construction TBD

o project delivery method
[ general contracting
X design/build
[ construction manager at risk

o planning framework
o project programming completed October 2017
o the FY 2018 Capital Investment Plan will be amended to include the professional services
amount

o project scope
o demolish three existing buildings at the corner of W. 11th Ave and Neil Ave
o construct approximately 93,000 GSF for optometry clinics, retail, faculty offices and support
spaces
o key enabling project for the Interdisciplinary Health Sciences Center

o approval requested
o approval is requested to amend the Capital Investment Plan accordingly
o approval is requested to enter into professional services contracts

planning team project team
university planning project manager: Rebekah Gayley university project manager:TBD
AE: Ford Architects criteria AE:TBD
CM estimator: Corna Kokosing design-builder:TBD
Office of Administration and Planning November 2017

442



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018
UTILITY SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Tunnel and Utility Systems Repairs and Upgrades
Electrical System Upgrades

Synopsis: Authorization for Ohio State Energy Partners LLC to make capital improvements to the utility
system pursuant to terms of the Long-Term Lease and Concession Agreement for The Ohio State
University Utility System dated April 10, 2017, as amended, (“Agreement”), is proposed.

WHEREAS the concessionaire, Ohio State Energy Partners LLC, has requested approval of these utility
system capital improvement projects for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS the concessionaire has provided the detailed descriptions of the proposed -capital
improvements, supporting technical data, and analysis, pursuant to Section 4.3(c) of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the project will be delivered pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the capital expenditures for the approved utility system projects will be added to the variable
fee component of the utility fee pursuant to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the university will fund the non-utility systems portion of the improvements; and

WHEREAS the cost and scope of the university’s portion of the non-utility systems repairs and upgrades
were not known at the time the Capital Investment Plan was approved by the Board of Trustees on August
25, 2017; and

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the projects for alignment with all
applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has reviewed the projects for alignment with the Capital Investment
Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes Ohio State Energy Partners LLC to
proceed with the capital improvements to the utility system as outlined in the attached materials; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the funding for and approves
that the Capital Investment Plan be amended to include the university’s portion of the Tunnel and Utility
Systems Repairs and Upgrades project.

443



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the terms of the long-term lease and concession agreement for the Ohio State University utility
system dated April 10, 2017; Ohio State Energy Partners LLC (OSEP) will fund and implement capital
improvements to the utility system. Capital investments made by OSEP will be tied to the variable fee
component of the annual fee structure.

Proposed capital projects are evaluated by the university and OSEP for alignment with applicable strategic,
financial and physical plans and to ensure continued reliability, safety and compliance of the utility system.

For Fiscal Year 2018, the following projects have been conceived and developed by the university prior to
the commencement of the concession agreement. These projects have been reviewed and approved by
OSEP and require approval of the Board of Trustees.

Tunnel and Utility Systems Repairs and Upgrades

Scope: Repairs and upgrades of steam pipe, domestic water lines, and utility tunnels under
the Oval. The steam pipes, associated anchors, and supports are in poor condition.
The deteriorating condition has been monitored over several years and potential failure
is imminent. The tunnel structure itself and the domestic water lines within the tunnels
impacted by the project are non-utility systems. Improvements to non-utility systems
will be paid for by the university. OSEP will deliver the entire project pursuant to the
Concession Agreement, the associated project request, and any associated university
directive. Repairs and upgrades will improve the long-term reliability of this portion of
the utility system. It will also improve safety and structural integrity of these portions
of the utility system and tunnels.

Estimated Cost: $14.6M

Project Cost Breakdown Cost Funding Source
Utility Systems $10.8 M OSEP
Non-Ultility Systems $ 3.8M University

Electrical System Upgrades

Scope: Upgrades to a range of deferred maintenance items within the electrical distribution
system including high-voltage switches, transformers, and relays. Installation of
protection around certain equipment to prevent damage and/or unplanned outages.
OSEP will deliver the entire project pursuant to the Concession Agreement, the
associated project request, and any associated university directive.

Estimated Cost: $945,000

444



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF 2017 PROGRESS REPORT ON OHIO TASK FORCE
ON AFFORDABILITY AND EFFICIENCY RECOMMENDATIONS

Synopsis: Approval of Ohio State’s 2017 progress report on the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and
Efficiency recommendations, which will be submitted to the Chancellor of Higher Education, is proposed.

WHEREAS Governor John R. Kasich established the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency in
Higher Education in 2015 to recommend solutions for state colleges and universities to enhance
affordability and efficiency; and

WHEREAS The Ohio State University supported the goals and work of this task force, of which Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer Geoff Chatas was chairman; and

WHEREAS the task force delivered its recommendations in the report “Action Steps to Reduce College
Costs” on October 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS House Bill 49 (Section 381.550) requires the Board of Trustees of each state college and
university to approve an efficiency report based on the task force recommendations each fiscal year and
submit it to the Chancellor of Higher Education; and

WHEREAS consultations have taken place within the university to review and apply the recommendations
to Ohio State’s circumstances; and

WHEREAS Ohio State’s strategic plan is in strong alignment with task force recommendations, and the
university is committed to access, affordability, and excellence:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the university’s 2017 progress report in
response to the task force recommendations, as detailed in the attached document; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached document be delivered to the Chancellor of the Ohio
Department of Higher Education.

445




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

NIVERSITY Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1358

614-292-6359 Phone
614-292-5903 Fax

November 3, 2017 osu.edu

Chancellor John Carey

Ohio Department of Higher Education
25 South Front Street

Columbus, OH 43215

Cancellor Carey,

Ohio State is proud to be a leader in access, affordability and excellence.

These are core principles for the university, as reflected in our new strategic plan and demonstrated in
our record of accomplishment.

The university’s goals and actions are strongly aligned with the recommendations of the Ohio Task Force
on Affordability and Efficiency in Higher Education, and we are proud to deliver a 2017 report that
demonstrates Ohio State’s momentum. Among the highlights:

. Innovative funding: The university entered into a comprehensive energy management
partnership that is providing $1.165 billion in resources for our academic mission, launching
an unprecedented energy-efficiency campaign and creating opportunities for innovation in
energy and sustainability research. (go.osu.edu/cemp)

. Financial aid — tuition coverage: Starting in fall 2018, Ohio State will ensure that all in-state
students who qualify for Pell Grants receive an aid package that covers the full cost of tuition
and mandatory fees on the Columbus campus. This program is funded with an endowment
created from energy proceeds. (go.osu.edu/tuitioncoverage)

. Digital Flagship University: Through a comprehensive, university-wide digital learning
initiative, Ohio State will collaborate with Apple to support educational innovation for students
and economic development opportunities for the community. Starting in fall 2018, Ohio State
will provide each incoming first-year student with an iPad Pro learning-technology suite with a
retail value of more than $1,000. (go.osu.edu/digitalflagship)

. Financial aid — expanded support: Administrative efficiencies have funded $60 million in
President’s Affordability Grants over three years; and other strategic institutional funds are
supporting the expansion of the Land-Grant Opportunity Scholars program to cover the full
cost of admission. Both programs are for in-state students. (go.osu.edu/PAG-LGOS)

. Tuition guarantee: The new Ohio State Tuition Guarantee offers incoming students certainty
about the cost of a college education by setting rates for in-state tuition, mandatory fees,
room and board that will be frozen for four years. (go.osu.edu/tuitionguarantee)

. Summer discount: Undergraduate students saved $2.4 million a year in Summer Term 2017
through a new summer tuition discount that also provides another tool for students to reduce
their time to degree. (go.osu.edu/summerdiscount)

These reflect just a few of the accomplishments detailed in the attached report. The university continues
to build on our success, as demonstrated by our strategic plan (see Appendix 1 for a summary or
go.osu.edu/strategicplan for more information).

Ohio State remains committed to progress that benefits our students and advances our core academic
mission.

446



Lvy

‘LIOT €1
TS[OWS 03 [rewrd Aq AoAIns InoA Jruuqns ased[d ‘SEE8-87L-719 18 DIS[OJA BleS 10eju0d ases[d ‘suorisonb Aue 10

1940390 £q A0 OTYO PAIAYSIY

'SJUapN3S 10j UOBINPS Jo AYifenb ay3 03 3auaq

B pa1ajjo Ao JI 10 syusapnis 03 sSSulAesS 350D e Se pako[dapal usaq aAey S3UlAeS 93 JI 9SIAPE 1SNUW SSNISISAIUN pue S83a[[0D

2I0ULIdY}IN,] ‘SUOIEPUSUINI0ISI 33 JO IEd 10] PAAES SJe[[op [en3de ul sguiaes 1500 ‘9[qeoijdde ji ‘opiaoad 03 senIsIsArun
pue sa3ay[0J SYSE U0I3I3S ISE[ Y, - SIUIPNIS 0} S1Jauag d[qisue], % sSuiaes Jo yuowLojdopay ‘sSuiAes 1S0) :f UOI}IAS o
"92.10,] ¥Sk,[, 93 Aq papuawitodal suLioja.l Ao170d [euonippe sa.anjded uonaas sIy ], - SULIOJIY AII[0d :E UOIIIIS o

*SJUapNIS 10J uonEeINpa jJo Afenb ayy saoadwil Jeyy syyauaq aqiuel aq A[BI] [[ImM 2193 ‘sSulaes

1500 djeIpaww] £3AU0D 30U Aewl sapdijod pue sassadoad djwapese 03 syuswaA0IduWI S[IYAA 'SMI1AdL weldoad pue asInod
JTUIOPEIE PUE ‘SOATIUSIUI 92139 03 W} ‘S00(IXa) SE YONS SEATE SI9A0I UONDIIS SIY ], — SIIIRIJ IIWIPRIY :Z UOIIAS o

"A319u7 pue Teuonerad(/sARNBHSIUTUPY DGUSUWDINI0IJ SOPN[IUL SIY[, ‘SIUSpNIS 03
uo passed aq uay} ued Jey3 s3ulAes JuedyIusis p[al4 03 A[9¥1] s9onoeld saanided U013IaS 3S1Y 9Y ], — SOIDUIDIJT T UOIIAS e

ISUOI}09S IN0J 03Ul paandnais si arejdway ay,

‘Me[ £q paimbal se ‘4107 ‘T€ 1oquada( Aq 3110day 9913 1WUOY)

A10S1ApY AOUadY)H 2107 943 2onpoad 03 HHAO MOJ[E [[Im £T0Z Ted4 [edsy J1oj 110dad siyl wody painided ejep Ajsiaarun pue a3a[[0d

3y, 'uoneonpy 1aysiy jo yuauntedsq ays Aq paisjdwod aq 03 310daa [enuue ue saambal A[[euonippe me[ 9y, 'SIHSI2AIUN pUe S933[[0D
Suowre sauaY)e Ul sadnodeld 3saq aaeys pue ‘suonerado sanensiuwpe surjueas ‘saniuniioddo saoialas pateys AJruapl ‘sasndured 10j
s110dau Aouaroyge a3e1auad 03 S1 9anTwwod SIY} Jo asodand ay ], ‘senisIaArun pue sagaq[od o1qnd s,014Q Jo Yoea woj siaqual Jo pasoduwod
‘@onIuuio) A10SIApPY AJUa101jj5 Ue Urejureul o} uonednpy J1aysiy jo Jo[[aduey) ay3 sa1mbai apo) pasiasy o1yQ 3yl JO G6'SEESE UONIDS

"Aouaoyyd pue AI[Iqeployy Uo 9210, Sk, 014 a3 Aq panssI F10da1 $31507) 939[[0)

JoNpay 03 54935 U0V 9y} MalAdl ases[d ‘uonepusawiuiodal pue £10393ed Yoea uo UO[BULIOJU] [EUORIPPE 10, ‘SIUSPNIS .10J SIS0D JaMO]|
pue uoneonpa jo LA1enb ay1 yroq asorduwir 03 saondeld dTWIPEIE puk AJUSID1YJD U0 SINISISAIUN PUE SIFI[[0I SSIAPE 03 SUOIIEPUSWI0I3.I
ua) Ysm 110dal e panssi 9210, ySe [, 93 ‘1990300 U] ‘GT(Z JO 95In0d ay3 SuLInp SaW} [BI9AS I9W 9210, YSe], dY, ‘Sol[Iurej J1oyd

pue syuapnis 03 s1s02 Suiseatdap (g pue Aipenb 1ay3iy 1o [enba jo uoneonps ue 3urLIayjo a[ym (Z UonEIdUSS SNUIAII pUE JUSWRFBUBW
asuadxa ul yaoq Jusye alouw aq 03 (T sajdpurid snosueynUIS 9213 U0 pase(q SINISIdAIUN PUB S33I[[0D S,01Y(Q 03 SUONEPUSWWO0I.L
ayew 03 uoneonpy J9y3dIy ur £ousyyq pue AN[Iqep.10jJy Uo 3210, qSe], 01y aY3 pajeatd YaIsey]  uyof ‘A0n ‘7oz jo 3ed Ap1es ay ug

douepiny Sunaoday AOuany LT0ZAA

loj|j@auey?) ‘Assen uyop
10Ulan00) ‘yisey Y uyor

®
Aduaroyyq 3 AN[IqepPIoJIy % 1 uoneonp3 JoubiH | (Y
‘..\ Jo Juawedag = :O

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



(144

aded|t Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

's193ndUI0D 9J1JJO PUE INIUINJ ‘[dARI) SSdUISN( SUIA[OAUT S}OBIIUOD JO ADUIIDJD 93 9SEAIIUI 0} SOAIBIIUI paydune|
sey A}SI9AIUN 33 ‘GT A U] "S931A19S pue sponpo.d [[e ssooe Jusawaaodw snonuiuod uo pasndoy st wedo.ud yusweanooad d13a1e13s InQ

‘pIe [BIOUBUY JUSPNIS
0] Pa10AaP Sey A}ISIdAIUN U] Jey) SSUIABS U] UOI[[IW §'T$ PIP[AIA UOISUIXd J0BIIU0D GT(OZ INQ :S32NAdP uonpunynnui/1a1doy e
‘pIe [BIOUBUY JUSPNIS
Se panqgLIsIp Sem Jey} UoI[[Iw [$ SuIpnoul ‘sIeak UsaAds I9A0 SFUIABS UI UOI[[IW G$ Pap[alA 10enu0d G0z InQ :sarjddns ad1yjo o
:opnjoul sajdwexy "SIOBIIU0D SAISSIIINS 10J SIIIAISS pue
s9o11d J1amaq Sulp[al4 ‘sar108a1ed asayy ul uonisod Sunenodau s,A1SI9A1UN 93 padueyud Sey Ssa20.1d SIY,[, 'S921Adp uondunjnnu /1a1dod
pue sarjddns ao1yj0 Surpnour ‘sa110393e2 J0BIIU0I PISN-}SOW S} JO dUWIOS .10J 0,66 Suissedans saed UOMBZI[[IN PIASIYDIE SBY 93B3S OIYQ

‘'sonunyioddo
[o.Jeasal 1o sdIysu.lajul Jusapnis se Yons syijouaq dJIWaPeI. puk S[9Ad] 9d1AIS paseaoul aziseydula s3oe3uo0d Ino ‘uonippe uj ‘gumrid ssep
-u1-1s9( 91e11039u pue A10391eD JEd Ul SI0PUSA I9)SEW 0} 31BPI[OSU0D ‘SIOBIIU0D A}ISI9AIUN JO 9Fesn 9seadul 0] Uda( sey A3a3e13s InQ

"ZTAdd Ul S31B1 pajdeiuod yum pateduwod yuswaindoad

o1391e.11S Y3Nnoayy uol[[iw 1'gG$ pases AJISIaAIUN sy ‘Suofe £ T A4 U] ‘Ssyuswadueyus Ajifenb pue sguiaes ypoq aaLip 01 Jamod Suidnq

s A1s1aA1un ayy Surziin Aq uol[iw 9z$ Jo ssuiaes aanemund paonpo.d sey weidoad uswaanooad d1391e41s S,91€1S O1YQ ‘ZTAd 92UlS
*MO0[9q d1ed1pul 3sed[d ‘ZT A Ul pa.11nddo sagueyd [e[jUe)SqNS OU pue 9 A Ul pajudwadjduil A[[nj Sem UOIEPUIWW0I.I SIY] J]

3[euone. 3y} apraoad

ased[d ‘os op 03 ue[d J0u S90P pue UOIEPUIWW0II.I SIY) pajyudwd[duwi Jou sey ANsIaA1UN/333[[02 3y3 JI ;ued uonyeyuswajdur
Y3 S11eyMm ‘saf J] ;uswdjdur 03 uefd e 3.19Y3 SI ‘UOIIEPUIWWI0IJ.I STY} pajyudwajduil Jou sey A}S.IdA1UN/333[[0d Y3 J]
‘uojeuLIojul pajepdn 10j MO[aq 39S "SIL

'SOUI02IN0 A9

91} pue pasn ssa320.1d 9y} Jo MIIAIdA0 Uk Ip1ro.ad ased[d ‘saAf JI ;uonepuawiurodal s1yl pajusdwajduur Ayis.19A1un/389[[02 Y3} SeH

*A)1s19A1UN /933[[0D INOA JO sniels uonejyuswadwl ay3 yaIm
sugife 1ey3 uonIas ay3 aa[dwod asea[d -s3ulaes 10j santuniioddo 1sadre] a3 Yum sealde Yl YaIm SunIels ‘s8dialas pue spood uiseydand
10J syoe3u0D SUnSIXa asn saako[dwa s3I 3ey3 aambad 3snwt Ay1s19a1un/a8a1[0d yoey :spenjuod sndure) | yE€ uonepuawuioday

JuouIa.Indo.ad

sad1oeId AOU3DYJT [ UOIIIIS

Ay1s4aA1up) aois o1y ayJ.

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



6y

2ded| ¢

*£108918 SI) .10] 1DBIIUOD SSB[D-UI-1Sa(| B
ul pajnsal sy, 's3onpoud jo 1s1] 100 e uo puads ano Juisnooj :dnoan Juiseysand

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

NI Y3 £q pastopua ssado.d ay3 Surfojdwa Aq pue UOIBZI[[IN JDBIIU0D [BSIDATUN OoN juadwdmba
-Ieau urinsua Aq sarpddns ao1jj0 uo s3uiaes JuedYIUSIS pajelauas sey alels olyQ 2 saiddns ao1j30
‘0T UI SINISIaAIUN
o11qnd ay3 Suowre puads [enuue uoI[IW GTT$ € AQUSLIND ST JRYM UO JusdIad
/£, 3SEd[ JB SIaquIaW D[] dABS 03 pa3dadxa a.de eyl S}Oe.13u0d Ul paj[nsal sey SOA
ssaooad siy], Juawdinba e pue sarjddns oynuans 10y dno.ar Suiseyoind [[OUNo) yuswidinba
Ayis1aatu)-193u] a3 ysnoayy Ayrunyioddo 3013100 9AIIRIOGE[[0D B PA] 93e3S OIYQ % sa1jddns oynuansg
‘durddiys punogino 10j a[npayds uLId) 93e1s oIy JO 9IeIS Y3 SAZI[IN 33elS oIy S9A Surddrys punoqing
‘duiseyo.and juiof 10y Ayiunyaoddo ue dofaasp
03 ue[d uonoe aseyd-aaayy s,dnoaxn uiseydind H[ aya ur patmbaua sdais aya
9Je 9S9Y ], "10B.1IU0D SIY3 JO uonezinn saaiojdws asealour 03 gT A Ul dALIRIIUL e
ue payoune] sey pue Aueduwod JuswoSeuew [9ALI} B [JIM SHIOM AJISIDAIUN S ], SIDIAIIS [QARL]
"3[NPaYdSs ULId) 91€1S OIYQ JO 9IBIS 93 S9ZI[N 33klS OIYQ SOA dremp.rey 1anduio)
‘pardope aAeY 9Mm Jey[) S99UeIens SWN[OA JO PULY SWES 93 0] PIIIUWIWO0D dUON
'S93k.1 IB[IWIS PUIIXS 03 S[00YIS I9Y3I0 YIIM q.I0M 03 3YSNos 91€3S 01y 'SIIIAIP ON

uondunynnu pue siaurld ‘s1a1dod 10j 10B.13U0D SSB[I-UI-1S3q B Sey AJISIaAIun oy,

$921AI9S J9juLid/191do)

[0 ueld ‘ou ‘saf]

*AYym urejdxa aseaid ‘91eddn.aed 0] Jo0u s3asooyd A}s1aA1un/ag3[[0d ¢Spenuoed
Um e 16 edion, 1 o Al : U R jutof ur Sunednaed adA ], 1oenyuo)n
"‘papaau j1 219y uoneuedxa [euonippe apnpu| AusaoAnm faSoyies
9yl s|

'ssado.d 30e13U0D 33 0}

PaINQLIIUO0D OS[e 0P3[0], JO AJSIDAIU[) PUBR EUUIIUILY) JO AJISIDATU[) Y], *OIY(Q Ul sanIstaAlun o1 qnd ay3 Suowre puads [enuue uolIw STT$
e A[3Ua.LInD SI JeyM U0 Judd1ad / 3Sea[ 1e s1aquiai )] 2ALS 0] pa3dadxa a1e Jey) S}0e13u0d Ul paj[nsal sey ssadod siy], Jusawdinbs ge|
pue sariddns aynuaids 1oy dnoaxy uiseyand [1DUN0Y) AJSISAIUN-I93U] a3 ySno.ayd Ayiuniioddo 1oe1juod aAreIoqe[[0d & P 93e3S OIY(Q "SIA
11D MO[3q 3V} 319[duwiod asea[d ‘sa JI ;LT AA ul sadueyd/sajepdn Aue 91913 919\

juswdmby pue sarjddns 23130
juawdinby pue sarddng oynuaRS e
guiddiys punogqing e
S9JIAISS [9ARI], e
arempJey Jonduwio) e
sa01A19s Joyurid/1a1do) e
:sa110393e2 3UIMO[[0] a3 Ul Sjuawaade uiseyand
juro[ pauayiduais 10/pue mau ansind 3SNW SINISIDAIUN PUE SIZS[[0 S,01Y( :SIBIIU0I IANEI0OGE[[0) | € UOIEPUIWUI0IY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



0sy

oded|y Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

3[euone. 3] aprao.ad
ased[d ‘os op 03 uejd J0u S90p puE UOIEPUIWW0IAI SIY) pajuswd[duil Jou sey A}sIaA1UN/333[[02 a3 JI ;ueld uonejuawajduir
913 SI yeyMm ‘saf J] ;yudwdduul 0] ued e 9.131) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWIUI0IAI SIY) pajudwd[duil Jou sey A)is1aA1un/333[[0d 93 J|

‘suonelado pue
S19sSe A}ISISAIUN J930 Inoqe sajepdn 10j mo[aq 93§ "AUWP0/MPa NS0 03 :Je d[qe[IeA® SI 303[0.1d Juswadeue]y A31aug aalsuayaiduwor) ayy
Uuo0 uoneuwL.Iojul 310y “durosuo aJe YoIrym Joj sueld ‘Uoneroqe[[od drwapede 1oj saruniioddo Auew ayesauasd osye [[im diystaulted siy,

(spT8-duea/mpanso03) s109(oad Ajiqeureisns 110ddns 03 JuswWIULIdA0Y) JUaPNIS dlenpetdiapu) 01 000‘0S$ Jayloue pue werdoad

Surreautduy ur uswopy 9y3 ul Surwe.aso.ad Juswdo[aaap-1aaaed pue gurion) oddns 01 000‘0S$ paplaoad sey sasulled ASIauy
911S OIYQ ‘SYI8 1511 S 10, "10LIIUO0D Y] JO dJ1[ A3 J9AO0 UOI[[IW 'O $ [BI0I [[IM JBY) SSAIBNIUL paje[al-AIsIoalun o) Adoayueiyd e
JuoweaIde 1eak-(G 93 JO 91 9Y3 J9A0 SIUIPNIS (00§ ISk 1t 10f sdIiysuiaju] e

“Jeak Jod uoriu 7§ uey
aJloul 1eIauas [[Im 1By} syuapnis [euorssajoud pue syenpels ‘renpeidiopun 11oddns 03 SJUSWMOPUS ple [EIDUEBUL [EUORIPPY o

(S8eTaoA0OUORIM}/MPaNS0°05) “Ieak B UOI[[IW TT$ UBY} S.10W 3S0D pue 8107 [[B) ul sndwred snqunjo) ay3

uo 11e3s [[Im weadouad Sy, 'S99 A10jepuewl pue UonINg Jo 31502 [N Y3 S19402 Jeyd adexoed pie Ue aa193al Syuety) [[9 10j Ajifenb
OUM SJUSPNIS 93EIS-UI [[B IBY3 3.INSUD [[IM 931§ OIY( :JUsuIuod Ayjiqep.ojje pajuspadaldun ue 1oddns o3 juswumopus uy e

:s19}0 Suoure ‘syusapnis 01 syyauaq a[qiduel asayy apnpul [im diystaurred siy,

‘JJels pue £}[noej ‘syusapnis Yum suoneloqeqjod
JTWIPEIE 130 PUE 19JUID Y2.Jeasal Uol[[Iw 0S¢ e ySnoayy ‘AI[Iqeureisns Ul Iapes| [eUONIBULISIUL UE SE 9]B1S O1YQ Sulysijqeisa e
‘s1eadk 0T uryum Aouardiyye AS1aus ur yuswasorduwr Juadtad g7
Jo [eod Ayfiqeureisns .ano 39aw 0} sndwed uip[ing-5g4 Ino azrurspow 0} weadouad Aouardiyje A31ous pajuapadsardun ue uiyoune] e
‘{Ay1s19A1UN 9Y3 Je AJI[IqEUTEISNS PUE 90US[[90X ‘A}[IqEep.I0JJE
‘SS900B 90UBAPE 03 Pasn aq [[IM 3By} UOI[[Iq G9T'T$ ‘UOISSIW JTWIPEDIE S,33e1S OIYQ Ul JUSUSaAUl 3sadae] ay3 Suipiaoad e
:st diysaaurted ayearid-orqnd Sunjesiq-punods siy],

'sndwed snquinjoy) ay3 uo swajsAs uonnqrisip Jamod pue 3uijood ‘Surreay ay) ajerado 0] JuaWaa.I3e UOISSIIU0D pUk 3SEI] Jeak

-0S ®© 129014 Juswadeue|y AS1auq aarsuayaidwor) oy Sunajdwod Aq LT A Ul plemaoj dais Jolew Joyloue y003 ANSISATUN ) PUE ‘SO L
:saded [euO}IppE UO 10 MO[3( SAUI0IINO AIY] Y} PUE MIIAII 13SSE S A)1S19A1UN/3Z[[0D

913 10J pasn ssado.1d 3y} Jo maIAIaA0 Uk dplao.ad asedd ‘saf ] ;uonepusWtIodd.l SIy} payudwadjdul Ay1s1aA1un/a3a[[0d ayY) SeH

*A11S19A1UN/983[[0D

Ino4 jo snyels uonejuswa(duwl ay3 Yum suSife Jeyl uondas 9yl 939]dwiod ases[d "9[eds Jo siyauaq Jade[ dead 03 sanISI2AIUN pue S989[[0D
JOU30 YHIM SLI0JJ3 9SaY) SUIBUIP.I00) JSPISUO0I ISNUW SONISISAIUN pUe $983[[02 4sIxa santunitioddo a1ayp) ‘pasodindal asImIaY0 10 pases]
‘PIOS J1 an[eA 193Jew JI9Y] SUIULISIAP 0} S}13SSE 910JUOU S} JO JUSWISSISSE Uk JONPU0I ISNW AJISISATUN/9S[[0D [JeT :MIIAI J3SSY VI
suoneladQ pue s13ssy | ¥ uonepuaWII0ddY

suonerad( pue S}assy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



%17

aded|g Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

*Mo[aq dedipur ased[d ‘LT A Ul pa.LInddo safueyd [eryueisqns ou pue 91 x4 ul pajudwadjdurl A[[nJ Sem UOIEPUIWIUI0IAI SIY} J]

*3[euone. a3y} apraoad
ased[d ‘os op 031 ue[d J0u S30P pue UOIIEPUIWW0IA.I SIY) parudwaddwl Jou sey ANs.IA1UN/333[[02 3ay3 J] Jued uoryeyuswaduur
913 S11eym ‘saf J] ; uawadduur 03 ued e 3.131]) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWIMI0IAI ST} pajudwa[duil Jou sey A} s1aA1un /333102 aY3 JI

‘suonetado pue syasse 31odare pue gupjled ‘A3.19us Ino noqge s[Ie1ap 10j i 03 asuodsal 99§ ‘Sax
:soed [euonIppe uo .10 MO[aq SIW0IINO AdY Y} pue M3l suonjesado s A1s1aa1un/agafjoo
91} .I0J pasn ssad0.1d ay) Jo M3IAIaA0 Ue ap1ao.d asedd ‘os J] ;uonepuswoda.l sIY) pajuswajdur A}s1aA1un/a83[[02 oY) SeH

*A)1s19A1UN /983][02 IN0A Jo snjels uoneyuswadwi a3 Ym sudife 1ey3 UuonIds

a3 930[dwIod 9sea[d 'on[eA ppe ISIMIIYIO 10 IDIAISS dA0.IdW] ‘SIIOUSIIYJS SEAIOUI P[NOM SINISIIAIUN PUE SIZS[[0I SSOIJE UOIILI0qe[[0D
J91oYM dUIWLIdISP 03 palen[eas aq uayl isnw santuniioddo asay], "A1us Ja3o Jo J1ojetado aealid ‘@aneradood [euoldal e Aq Apualdlyjo
aloul uni aq Y3 Jey3 suonelado dIWIPELIB-UOU JO JUIWSSISSE UL JONPUOI ISnl A}ISISATUN/233([00 Yoed :MIIAdI suonerddQ g¥

"y0.1easal uonelAe 93pa-3umnd 03 swoy osje st 31od.are ay [, ‘a10w pue si103dadsul £19jes
‘s19][0.13u02 dlyjeny Jie ‘siadeuew J1odare ‘syofid Surpn[our ‘UoneIAE Ul SId3.ed Jo A1aLieA e 10j a1edaad sjusapni§ "SaIpnis uoneiAy
10} I13jud) S A}SIsAIUN Y3 SUIAISS A10JeI0qE] 21edsal pue Sulyoea) Atewrid a3 sI 11oddre 9y ], 'UOnEpUNO,| uoymouy ayl Aq
uoneuop e Yy3noayl papunj sem Jiey yarym jo 30afoad uolfiw gz$ e “103us) SuIuIea] UONeIAY PUE [BUIULID [, SAIINIIXH UOIMOUD]
"J unRsny ay} uo puno.us ayo.lq AISI9AIUN 9} ‘£ T0Z ISNSny U] ‘SeniAnde Juswdo[aAsp J1uou09 pue syuspnis 1oddns 03 A3110e]
a3 3urueyUS Uaaq Sey A}SIdAIUN SY) ‘UOISSIW ITWSPEIE S,93e31S OIYQ 03 [e13a3Ul Sem J1od.are ay) Jeyd SUIUIWLISIap Joyy odary e
"[00d 3USWISIAU] ULIS ,-3U0T S,A)ISISAIUN 9} JO ddUBULIOJISd JUaWISIAUL
ySnoayl GGG$ uey) a.10wW Jo an[ea 19xIew e pey ases| Supyied ayy wo.dy juswhed uoliu £8%¢ [eurdLio ay ], ‘sdiys.e[oyos
djenpediapun [[nJ PaAISdal oym SMO[[a,] dduaurwy z0T Surpnoul ‘oses| Sunjled sy 03 paje[al ple [EIDUBUL PIAISIAI SUIPNIS
00% uey aJou ‘£T-910Z uf ‘syuswesodwr Ayjiqeureisns Surpnul ‘walsAS sng ealy snduwer) ay3 Joj 11oddns anunuod 0}
pue 30L1SIp SV S,A}NSISAIUN Y3 ‘SULIIY pue JuaunInIdal Ay noej ‘sdiysiejoyos yuapms untoddns suonnqgrisip ut uol[iw §0T$
uey} alow pajelauad aaey suonelado pue sjasse gunyied s3I Jo 9sea] ZT0Z S AISI9ATUN 93 WO.JJ PAJeaId sjuswmopuy :gunjied e
:pamalaal A[snolaaad pey AlIstaAiun ayy Jeyl suonelado [etaass uo ssasdoad ajepdn o],
*Mo[3q 3edrpul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.LINIJ0 saSueyd [erjuelsqns ou pue 9 A4 ul payudwdjduir A[[nJ Sem UOIIEPUIWWIOIA.I SIYI J]

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



[4%14

oded|o9 Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

‘sdiysaauzred Auyje yimm jjels pue £3noej ‘syuapnis 11roddns 03 sAem agojdxa 03 sanunuod A3SIdAIUN Y],

Jururea] 90ULISIP 9OUBYUD 03 SYUSWSA0Id W] WOOISSE[)
weldoad £oe1ay| [eouUBUY ABID) PUB I9[IEIS Y], e
Jea4 1ad sqol Jo sdiysuaajur 09T Ueyl 2.0\ e

:10§ 310ddns apraoad swreigoad LAruyyy

‘sd1ys.e[oyds d19[YIB-UOU ‘PISeq-pasu Sapla0.ad JUSWMOPUS UOI[[IW §'Z$ V :pIe [EDURULY JUIPNIS o
'SUSPNIS .INO 10§ dduUsLIadxa Surutes] ay) aaorduwil 03 A}NIeJ YIM SHIOM [IIYM
‘@annsut ay3 Joj 31oddns fenuue uipiaoad ST jusWMOpUS UOI[[IW 0T ¥ :Sururea] pue Suiyoea ], 10§ 2InISU] ANSIdAIU[) o
'SIUapNIS JJouaq A[30alIp Jey3 JuswaaIde [N U231 1N Jo Spaado.d wo.dy pajeald a.1oM SIUSWMOPUS [e19AdS ‘LT A U]

"‘UONBID0SSE [UWN[E 913 PUE SONS[YIE ‘9J1] JUIPNIS ‘SIIBjje dIWapeoe

Guoure pa.aeys s1 A[[ed1d4) 310ddns [epueuyy ‘Syusaalde Juada.l 10, "A}ISISAIUN 33 JO TUWN[E PUE Jjels ‘AJ[NOeJ ‘Sjuapnis 03 S}jauaq
Ja130 pue syunodsip ‘sdiys.aejoyos ‘sdiysuajul ‘Sad1nosa.l [eldueuly sajelauas jeyy wetdoad Luyje 3snqo.d e pado[aaap sey aieis olyQ
*Mo[9q djed1pul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.LINII0 SaSUBYD [eyULBISqNS OU pue 9T A4 ul payudwajdurl A[[nJ Sem UOIIEPUIWIW0IA.I SIYI J]

*3[euone. 3y} apraoad
ased[d ‘os op 01 uejd J0u S90P pue UONEPUIWU0IAI SIY) parudwd[duwl Jou sey ANsIdAIUN/333[[02 33 JI ;ued uonyeyuswajduir
33 S11eYM ‘Sah J] uswdjdur 0] uefd e 3.191) ST ‘UONIEPUIWUI0IJI ST} paruawajduii Jou sey AsIaA1un /3891109 a3 J1

‘uorjeurIojul pajepdn 10j mo[aq 39S "SI L
11eyd Mo[aq 3y} uryim sdiysaosuods/sdiysiaurred AJ1Ipuapi asesd[d *SoUI0IIN0 A9y
91} pue pasn ssa20.1d 9y} Jo MIIAIdA0 Uk Ip1ro.ad ased[d ‘saAf JI ;uonepuawiuIodal s1y) pajusdwadjduur Ayis.19A1un/383[[02 Y3 SeH

*Ay1s19A1UN /9383][00 IN0A JO sniels uoneyuswadu ay3 YaIm sudie 1eyy

Uu01109s a3 919[dw0d 9sed[d "SI IUNWUIOD JI9Y) JO SI9qUIdW JSYI0 10 [UWn[e ‘Fels ‘AI[noej ‘syuapnis yaim SundauUod Ul pajsatalul age Jeyd
sennua areartd yam sapntuniioddo  uim-uim, SulfJruapr Aq $921n0sal mau ajetauad 03 sdiys.aulled jo sadA) 9say) asn UeD SINISIdAIUN
pue sagdaq[o) ‘Jje1s pue Aynoej ‘syuapnis 31oddns ued ey sdiysaosuods pue sdiysuonefa.t Aruyje 10j santuniioddo ajenfeas ‘paurelal

9 03 aJ1e Jey) suonerado pue s}asse JUTUTULIISP UO 9Snul SaNISIdAIUN pue sada[[o) :sdiysiosuods pue sdiysiaulred Auyyy D

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



1514

aded| L Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

‘sanrioLid A}ISIaAlp pue
Aqeutelsns ‘diysaapes| Sunowroad S9ATIENIUL SE [[9M Sk Sjuapnis 10j duresunod [eueuy yroddns
01 .1eak e 000‘0.ES soplaoad osre diysaaulted siy [, 99, uoruf) Juspnis sy jo uontod e 3umiasyjo
Aq s3502 3uapn3s Surnpad ‘uoru() oIy ay3 JO UONINIISU0I 3y 31oddns 03 pasn aJom spasdoad a3
Jo uol[[Iu 0T$ ‘Sygauaq JIay3lo Suouwy Juswaalde Uuol[iw £¢$ ‘1eak-0T e 01 pasade e[0)-e20) ‘8007 U] B[0)-BI0)
's3seda.0j unagpng Jualsisuod duipraoid ‘Ouwodur uISUIdI|
uo Juspuadep swiesdoad 03 Surpuny sesjueIens pue S9ZI[Iqe)s SIY], JUdWaaISe Uol[[IW /6$ ‘deak-T e
3m siaulled [re3ad pue [o1edde pasuadi] [BI1O1JO S AJISIDATUN 93 dWeIdq SCIT pUe BILIdWY [ ‘ZT0Z Ul spri/eosuewy ‘[
‘'Spooy.1oqusIau snquinjo) palasdae) ulr juawdo[paaap d1ou0ds 310ddns 03 syuswSaAUl pue
Surpus| AIuUNWWOd 10§ JUSWIWWOD UOI[[IW 0QT$ B ‘Stuswasoldur A30[0uyda) WOOoISSe[d 10§ Surpuny
pap1aoad pue 1eaf 1ad sdiysuiajur pred g noqe pajeaod sey diystaulied siy[, Yueq IowWnNsuod
[e101J0 S AJSI9AIUN 93 aw0d3( 03 diys.aulaed uolfiu Gz$ “1eak-GT e 03 paaide uojdununy ‘ZT0z UJ uojdununy
'ssoursng
Jo 983[[0) IaysI] ay3 e a3nnsu] ysry ay3 jo diysaosuods 1eak-aAl e sapnoul pue deak 1ad sdiysu.ajul
0% so9juerend diysitaurred siy3 41oddns [epueuy syl puodag Arunwwiod ASISAIUN 93 10J
Josuods souensul [BIDJJ0 Y3 9q 01 JUSWISe UOI[[IW ['£T$ ‘Teak-QT e 0] paaade spimuoneN ‘F10Z U] apIMuonEeN
‘s}jouaq 1930
Guoure ‘ure130.1d SIy3 Jo 3NSaI e Se pally Uaaq aAeY sajenpelts zILION 09 ‘10z 22ulS ‘saniunlioddo
uoneIoqe[[od Jay3o sapraoid pue a39[[02 a3 ul sdiys.ejoyds sitoddns ‘meT Jo a89[[0) ZILIO]N 33
wo.Jj sayenpe.d yuadal 10y Sururery pue saprunyioddo qol sapraoad weidoad AOUapIsay xoTpaiuf) oy, X9 pajun
'SJULAd Aylunwiwiod A}IsIaAlun Joj 1oddns Sunaxlew pue 10e.13U0d Y1 JO 31 3Y3 1aA0 sdiysuajul
06 ‘sdiys.Je[oyos yusapnis apnoul s}jauayg 'S9ARENRIUI dB|[YIe-uou 11oddns 03 paloAdp uoIIw
T¥$ Ueyl 210W YIIM ‘UOI[IW ZGZ$ UBY] S.I0W JO SN[BA [E10] B SEY UOISUSIXd JORIIU0D 9T(Z S,91e1S OIYQ NIN
uondrisag sdiysaosuods/sdiysiaulied
:LT0ZAA 10J 193339 ul sdiys.aosuods pue sdiys.iaulried AJrpuapi asea|d

Bunss|y @anIWWOY soueUld - Bunesiy pieog /10Z 19qUSAON



1214

oded|g Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

‘SIeak
9ALJ ISAO UOI[[IW 0O T$ ISe9] 3B £q pIE [BIOUBULY PISE]-Pasu 8Sea.dul 03 [e0S UOISIA 0Z0Z 243 ssed.ans 03 99ed uo st £J1SISATUN 8] ‘[[BISAQ

(‘sdrysaejoyas

9.7 JO [B103 B — Jeak Jad £unod ory( yoes wo.qj syuapnis omj 03 a[qe[reae diys.ae[oyds ay3 Sunjew “I1eas 3xou werdoad diysrejoyss

9Y3 JO 9ZIS 9y} 9[qNOP OS[e [[IM A}ISI2AIUN 3 ],) "9IUBPUIIIE JO SO0 [[NJ 33 SI19A09 31 18] 0os werdoad diysreoyos AruniioddQ juern

pue] ay3 Jo anfea ay3 Suisea.dul 03 SpuUnj [eUO[NINSUIL I9Y30 Sulsn SI 93e3S oIy ‘UORIPPE U] 'SJUSPNIS Ol SWODUI-33eIapOoWl pUE -MO[

03 pIe [epueUy saplaotd yorym ‘wesdoud sjuers AI[Iqep.aoyy S Iuspisald ay3 01 SSUIABS UI UOI[[IW (9% P210ASP SEY ASISAIUN Y] ‘D1ep O,

"UOISSIW 3102 S,33€]1S oIy 31oddns 03 pasn 3uraq a.1e SIIOUIIYJS 9SOY ], "SI/ 9Al J9A0 SSUIABS 9ANBISIUIWPE Ul UOI[[IW
002Z$ @onpoad 03 [e0S UOISIA (0Z0Z Y3 Surpnoul ‘sjeos a[qidue) uo paseq sdals uonIe SALIP 03 JISOUSEIP 3502 S} pasn Sey A}SIsAlun ay |,
*MO0[9q 91ed1pul 3sed[d ‘T A4 Ul pa.11nddo sagueyd [e1ULISqNS OU pue 9 A Ul pajuswadjduil A[[nj Sem UOIIEPUIUWIUIOIJ.I SIY] J]

*areuonel ay) apiao.ad asedrd ‘os op 03 ued Jou saop pue d1psouserp 1501 e payd[duwod Jou sey ANsIaA1UN/983[[0d
a1 J1 (ued uonejuswajduur 9y SI yeyMm ‘saA J1 ;01 ueld e 319Y] SI Orasousderp 1s0d e pasnpo.ad jou sey A)1s1aA1un/333[[0d 9Y3 JI

‘uonepulawWI0da.1 10j sanrunjioddo 3s3q ay) 13Jj0 rey) seaae AjLiorid s, A)1s19A1un/983[[02 Y3 SSNISIP
9sed|d (9A0qe S9LI0Sa1ED 3] U0 PIse( ‘SISALIP 1S0D 3} .1k JRY A\ "JUSWISSISSE 31} JO (S)Insa. ay) uo s[rerop apiaoad asead

"SISA[BUE JB} UO Paseq WNIUIWOW P[INg 03 SONUIU0I A}SISATUN Y3 MOY JO SI[AWEXS 10J MO[3( 3G "SIX
'S9UI02IN0
A9 93 pue pasn ssa320.1d 9731 Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk ap1aoad asead ‘saf Jj ;o1asousderp 1500 e paonpo.ad Ayis19A1un/3383[[02 Y3} SeH

*A31s19A1UN /983[[02 IN0A Jo sniels uonejusawaduwil ay3 Yarm sugife 1eyd uondas ayl a19[dwod aseald

{31JoU( ISOW 9} SABY P[NOM SUOIEPUSWIUWI0IAI YITYm — A}[enb Sururejureur a[Iym peayIaAo adnpal pnom jeys sdois ALIoLd e
pue ‘uonouny s, Jageuewt
a3 Aq ‘93s.19A0 A[[e21dA) s1adeuew saafojdwa Auewt Moy — A}1SI9ATUN/933[[0D 93 SSO.10k SIadeuel .10j [0.3U0D Jo uedS e
‘papuny A[[eu1a1xa a.1e Ao}
Jay3aym 10 ‘s39j pue uonny ydnoayy asayl 10j uifed ale syuspnis Joyaaym — S9SEIIIUI IS0 0} PIIIUUOD SIIINOS NUIAIY o
‘sytun Suoure pue uonesuadwod Jo sad£) Suowre Ypoq — s3s02 dako[dwa Jo uONNQLISIJ e
‘wetdo.ad srwepede pue UONDUNJ dANBISIUIIPE A] 9NUIASIL PUE S}SOD JO SIDALIP A3 e
:poriad deak-( T e ISes] 3k 1940 ‘AJrauapl isnui osougerp Sy, *sarousiolye 1oy sentuniioddo 3s9q
91 19Jj0 1B} sealde Ayr1o11d y31m SUOofe ‘SISALIP 350D S AJIauapl 03 drisougelp e aonpoad isnuwa A}sIaA1un/agds[[0d yoeq :drisousderp 1s0) v§

SUWLIOJ9.1 1S0D sANje}STUIWpY _ q uonepuswuwoday

Sodnpel] oAnenSIUIupy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



GGy

osed|6 Ayisianiun 93e1s oyo ayL

asnedaq ‘sjueld ayearid Jo [elapaj Aq papuny A[e81e] st yorym ‘uonerado yoIeasal Ino Jopisuo)) ‘uondwnsse A3[nej e stiey], ‘S;UapnIs
£q auloq aJe 53502 a3 yeyy Suid[dwi ‘papuny aue s3s0d pue suonisod sANENSIUTWPE MOY JUNOIIE 0JUI 93] J0U S0P 39S BIEP Y3 ‘OUO 10,

‘suosLIedwod axyew 0} SUnR{eas auoAue 10j SUIpea[siw aq P[NOMm 33s BIep Y3 1By} SUIaJU0D INo d)eI)a1 9M Ing ‘suoneado
Sunjrewyouaq ul pre p[nod jeyl o1y 10j ainseaws £y1anonpo.ad sanensiuiwpe ue dojpasp 03 110§J9 a9y siioddns A1s1aa1un ay,

"SIeak () 1S9 Ik Ul 9Z39.1) 9AISUaya.1dwod e uaaq
10U pey 21313 ‘Sa1eak om] ised 3say) 210j9g ‘serenpediopun 93e1s-ul 10J 9zaaay salsuayaidwod e Jurpraoad ‘Guruip pue Suisnoy 9zo.j os[e
AYISIOATUN 93 ‘£ T A PUB 9T A 10, "9seatoul ue SunuaLiadxe 1943 Inoyim saa13ap a1a1dwod 03 sasse[d Sunenpeid omy Suimoye ‘ST-2102
90Uls spuUapNIs UMURUOD J10j S93) A10JepUBUI .I0 UORIN] 91ENpeISIapuUn 3e1S-Ul pasealdul 10U Sey AJSISAIUN J3 ‘SIUaPNIS SUMNUIIU0D 10,

‘SIBaA Inoj 10j pIeoq
pUE W00 ‘S99) A10jepUEBW ‘UONIN] 91BIS-UI U0 9Z93.JJ & padjuelend aqe puoAaq pue Jeak siyl SULIajua Syuapnis Jeak 1SI1j Ma| ‘9ajuelenr)
uonIng, aeis oryQ ay3 3upnpo.aaur £q s3sod 38900 IN0qe AJUTELIAD JO [9AI] MAU B PAYSI[qeISd Sey ANSIaAlun ay3 ‘GT-,T0Z Ul Sunaeis

"I () UI SANISISAIUN SUOISSTWPR-IATNIIBAS XIS JO Y1 SE [[9Mm Se A[[euoneu s1aad ¢ a3 Suowe yjz payuel
S99] puk UOnINg S,93€1S 014 ‘ZT-9T0Z U] 'SS920NS JUIPNIS JO S[2A] YSIY puE S3S00 U0NIN} MO A[2ALE[S :an[ea SU0IIS SIDAI[DP 93BIS OIY(
‘S9INSEIW 9S9Y) A "90US[[90X3 pUE AJI[IqEP.I0JJ€ ‘SSIIE SIPN[IUI YIIYM ‘SJU3PNIS 10§ SUI[ W0I30q Y3 UO SI snooj Arewrad s AIsIaArun oy,

(‘1 xrpuaddy ur s[re3ap 99s) "0 JO w81 paxueliuapnis q 1.4 1od sasuadxa

JTWaPEIL-UOU INO PUB 7T PayUel GT-4T0Z Ul 3uapnis 41 1od sasuadxs s,03€15 014 ‘Sanistaarun jueid-puey a8.1e| o Suowry "A[jeuoneu
SUO[NIMISUL JB[TWIS 0} [[9M 31edwod am pue ‘A}SISAIUN 33 SSO.IJE ADUSIDIJJS pPUE 3DUS[[9JXd [BUONILIadO 03 paRIIWIOD ST 93€1S OIYQ

3197 JISIA

asea[d ‘aunseay ANA11INPO.Id 3Y) U0 UOIIBULIOJUI SI0W 10, I3V 3.102S d.Inseaul AAnInpo.ad 1nof maia Aew noy ;9.109S .In0A
aaoaduir 03 sued s, uorninsul 9y} 3.Ie jeym “IQ (3.103s aInseawr A}y1anonpo.ad ay) saoaduir 0] uaye) uonninsui 3y} sey sdais yeym

*SOUO oN03-y31Y 'SA SJUSWUO.IIAUD SWN[O0A-YSIY
u1 Ay1anonpouad usamiaq saoualayjip a1eridordde 1o ‘©ouelsul 10 ‘MO[[e [[Im SIY], ‘S}un st ut Ay1anonpoud jo [94a] Jadoud ay3 10j spIepuels
umo sj1 do[aAap 03 apnine| dAey p[noys AsIaArun/o89[[0 Yoea 4ualsIsuod aq p[noys a.Inseawl ay3 S[IYAA :o.Inseawt Ay1andInpoad g5

S9J1AI3S paJeys pue jusawa.Indo.ad d1daje3s ul Jusawasoldwl JuedYIugis Surews e
ue[d sygauaq s A1sI9A1un a3 Surudisapal £q S1S02 a.Jed Yi[eay Supnpal e
‘Jo3Iew 93 YIIm S1S0D udife 19319 03 Ssa00.1d uonesyIsse[d pue uonesuadwod e Suryoune| e
Aq papuodsal £1SI9AIUN Y], *SIIOUSIONJD dABIISIUTWIPE
pue quawaIndo.d ‘s800n0sat uewny :puads 9[qeSSIIPPE JO SEaJe 991U} PIA[OAUT I[}SOUSLIP 1S0I 9y} WO01J SUO[EpUauItoda Arewrid oy,

‘ueld o1393e.11S 91 JO SJUSWIS[D ISYIO U SJUSUIISIAUL
9[qiSuel yam 110ddns [eroueuy apiaoad o3 aae sdays asay ], 1e[[1d dIyspIemals 32.1n0say pue adud[[a2xH [euonetad( aya jo 3ted
SE S9I0UAIDIJe aanensiuiwpe uo siseydws Suoays sade[d (Te[ddrsarens/npanso-og 1o ‘T xipuaddy) ued 21893135 MU S ANSI9ATUN AY],

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



9G¥y

oded|or Ausianun azeas olyo syl

"S9JIAIS
paJeys pue juswaandotd quawadeuew 193]} ‘A30[0Uy29) UOIIBWLIOJUTI UO Pasndoy SI 31om uroguo siy ], ‘(3Ipnessueuiio}lod,/ MPanso-03)
ures) Jipne aoueuriolrad s,91e3S JO 10MPNY Y3 YIIM JI0M 03 AJISISATUN ISI1J 9} 3q 0} PRISAIUN[OA 3JBIS OIY( ‘UONIPPE U]

"91€1S OIYQ IN0YSN0IY) 90UI[[99Xa [euoielado Jo a1nymno 1adasp e unea.o s weal Suimols

SIYL £ TAd YSnoaya sIeak anoj ay3 ul 310M pPappe an[ea-uou Jo sanoy 000‘y6 Uey3 2.10W pajeurwi[d pue uol[[Iu {'6E$ PIPIOAE 10 PIAES
s3o9load NSO@HO “Sururen) SuroSIapun a.Je 10 PaUIeI) U8 dABY OYM S[ENPIAIPUL G§ SOPN[OUI MOU WE)} AOUSIDIYIS INO 0S ‘sanbiuyday
90Ud[[90xa [euonelado ul £)1s1sAun ay) Inoysnoay) siapes| Sururen) A[panoe st wetdoid NSO@HQ N0 ‘UOKIPPE U] HI0M .INO Op dM

MOV 9A0.1d W 9SIMISYIO 10 N[eA 3I0UW ppe ‘AoU0UW dAES UBD A}SISAIUN 93 d19ym santuniioddo AJruspr syradxa Aousioyjs pajedipap JnQ

"£31SI9AIUN 93€)S B JO JIpne soueuwriofiad 3SI1j S U0 93e3S JO Joypny
oIy 9ay3 yum Supfiom si pue werdo.rd 9ous([29xa [euonelado 9ATIOE Ue SeY Y30 9Ie1S OIY(Q 'S9X (Sassadoad s, A)sIaArun,/a8a[[0d
91} 31en[eA? 0} [00) € sk AFojopoyidw ewiSIS XIS uedT SUIZI[IIN P3I3PISU0) 10 pajudwajdurr A}ys1aA1un,/989[[00 3yl Sey

'sndures orwepede ay3 11oddns 03 1ea4 e UOI[[IW 0£$ ULY) dI10W SIPIA0Id SISV
40BJ U] "9NUIAJI 99-UOU JYI0 pUE SIES 133011 YSNnoayl papuny-j[as st yuawirieda( SORSYIV N0 ey} Ul A[[eUOlIBU [EnSnUN SI 93e3S O1YQ
‘9sImax[I'T "uonerado JuaIaIp e jo 1red A[[enioe a.ae PaleId0SSe SIS0 Y} PUE SISNIOM 3SIY} IN( ‘O[eIS JO SAIWOU0I Ino a.1eys 03 sdnosd

9say) 10] JuaSe [BISY 93 SE 10 am 9snedaq JJels 93e1s o1y A[[earuydas ate saakojdwe 119y, ‘HDAL-HO pue 193ua) Janduwo) oryQ jo
91e1G 93 Sk yons suopeziuedo 21els J10j e[[oIqUN 3y Sk S}0k je1S oIy ‘O[dwexa 10, "eyep siy} ur patnided sjrun jo £1911A € UT PaIda[Jal
SI SIY ], "SUOININISUI I3Y30 JO 9SO {I[UN UOISSIW pPue YIpea.q e Y3Im ‘0IyQ ul anbrun si 93e35 014 1BY3 SI UONLIIPISUO0D £33 Iayjouy

‘uoIuUYap SIY} Jopun ,s3S0d dANENSIUIWPE, ppe A[[eldl1Ie p[NOoM Jey ], ‘eae SIy}
mou3 03 Sunyass s 91e3s o1y ‘(Ayunurwiod Japeolq ayl 03 s}Jauaq Se [[om Se) SJUapNIS .10j 3Jauaq dlwapede ue apiaoad syoafoad yoreasal

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



1LGY

oded |11 Ausianun azeas olyo syl

‘SI1eJJy [BUONBUISIU] pUE ‘SUTUUB[] %3 UONEBLISIUTWPY ‘@dUBUl,] 73 SSaUISNY ‘S32.I1N0S9y UBWNH JO S9J1}JO

91 pUE ‘S11y 913 10J 191Ud)) JAUXIAA oY} ‘Sosnduied p[alySUB PUE BWIT 9Y3 9PN[IUI SBAJE UdASS Y[, *A}11Ndas elep SUldDUBYUD puk 3dIAISS
Suraoadwr a[iym s3s02 Sunerado [enuue ul (9% ¢z Jo 95BISAR UR) UOI[IW £'T$ JO [B10] PaUIqUIOD B SUIAES ‘91AISS AJISI9AIUN B 0] SIUN

LI suo[epuels woJj Aeme payIys dAeY SII1JJO SAIBISIUIWIPE J0 SHUN ‘Sasndured UaAaS ‘91ep 0], "S9I1AI9S pajepIjosuod ydnoayy suonerado
paul[wea.q3s pue s3sod paonpal sey jeyl weido.ud sad1alag [ ] osridisiug ue pajuswsduil sey 93e1S 0o1YQ ‘A30[0UYI9} UOBULIOJUT 10,

'$9ss900.1d pue saIndnns
[euoneziued.ao 91e1s JUa.LIND SUISSISSE pUE SI91UD 9IIAIIS 9} YIIM SUOTIORIIUT SuTurwexa s1309(oad sy, “Aoualsisuod aaoxdwi pue
QUIUIEIIS 03 JI0M SUIZIpIepuess SI 3 YoIym Ul 303(01d AI9AI[9(] 901419 YH UE U0 payIequid Sey S90In0Say Uewny [eJ1Uuad ‘UonIppe uJ

'SI1eJJy [e897 JO 921JJ0 93 YIIM ddUueUl pue ssaulsng Suruiquiod Aq (3uawaandold pue ‘joifed

“4H ‘[e9SY) 193UdD 9IIAIIS [[N] B 918310 03 SAIIS 3S.11J S} USEY OS[B dABY 9\ *9JI7T IUSPNIS PUE JUSPISAI] dY3 JO 901JJ0 dY3 ‘SlIeyjy [eda]
‘SITBJJY JUSWUISAOD) ‘9OUBUL{ PUE SSaUISNY ‘S99ISNI], JO pI0g YUSWIUBADPY ‘SIIBJJY JIWIPEIY :301jJ0 SUO0 Ul paulquiod A[snoiaaid jeyy
seade 9say} paulof yorym ‘me] jo a3a[[0) Y3 pue Suluue[d pue UONBISIUIWPY SIPN[IUI MOU 19JUdD IDIAISS paleys Jusawandold [eljuad
e ‘ojdurexa 10, "S1S0D 22NPa.l Puk SIUIIIYJS dsealoul ‘suonyelado suljureays o3 uonerado sadiAIas paleys si papuedxa sey a3e1s o1yQ

'SIe9A 9AIJ 1XU 9} 1240 Ue[d UOISIA 0Z0Z Y3 JO S9SNI0J 9} JO SUO SI SIY ], "Seale d[WIpeIeuoU aul[weaqls 03 sapruniioddo
dJaMm a9} ‘Umoa3 Apueoyrudis Jou pey AJSISATUN 3} JO 9INIONIIS ITWISPEIE Y] S[IYM Jeyd punoj d1souderp 1s0d s A}1SI9AIUN Y],
*Mo[aq ajedipul ased[d ‘LT A Ul pPa.LINdd0 sagueyd [erpuelsqns ou pue 9 A ul payudwdjduil A[[nJ Sem UOIIEPUIWIW0I.I SIY} J]

‘9[euonel a3y} apiaoad ased[d ‘os op 0] ued J0u S90p pue MIIAII B pala[duiod jJou sey A}1s19A1un /389102 3y} i ;ued
uonejuswdduir 3y3 S13eyM ‘Saf J] ;03 ue[d e 2133 SI ‘9.1NJINIIS [BUONEZIUESIO 31} PIMIIAI 10U Sey A}IS.19A1un,/33a[[0d 3y} J|

'saanenIul Suioduo Jay3jo Jnoqe uoneuLIojul payepdn 1oj mo[aq 99§

*21N30N.J3S [PUONIEZIUES.I0 N0 JO SUIUI[WESI}S SWOS U] 3[NSA [[IM OS[e dARENIUI SIY L, "YI0M JI39)B11S UO 210U SNI0J

0} seakojdue moj[e 03 Suissadso.ad [euonoesuer) 3uNpPal Se yons ‘sfem Jo £1911eA B Ul SSAUSIANDIIYJS [euonjetado ano adueape 03 309(oad
Jeak-nnua S1y3 3uIsn S| A}SIaAIUN dY ], *SWAISAS [[014ed pue UOIBULIOJUI JUSPNIS ‘S9IIN0SAT UBWINY ‘D0UBUY S,93e3S 01y arepdn [[1m
yorym 929foaq asridiayuy ay3 jo 1red se Junaodal pue sassado.ad azipaepuels 03 URLIOM ST AJISISAIUN S ‘SIAIIBNIUL JoY30 SUOWY 'S9L
"'SOWI02IN0 A3

9y} pue pasn ssad0.1d 3y} Jo MIIAIA0 Uk IpIa0.ad dsed[d ‘saf ] ;9.1n1oN.IIS [eUOHIeZIUESI0 SJI PIMIIAJI AJISIIATUN/IFI[[0D oY) SEH

‘£y1s19A1UN /3891105 An0A Jo snyeys uonejuawa[dw ay3 y3m sudife 3ey3 uonIas syl aaduwiod asea[d "ASojourdal uonLULIOJUL

pue S90IN0Sa.I UeWNY ‘S9J1AISS [BIS]) 10] — djeridoadde uaym ‘A1staaiun/a8a([00 usamiaq 10 syun Juowe — SadIAISS ssaulsng

paJeys JopISuod p[noys Smaladl A}1SISAIUN/IFI[[0D dY], "SISO 9oNpa.l pue auljweais 03 santuniioddo Ajnuapt 03 saonoeld 3saq Yarm aulf ut
9IN10N.I3S [BUONBZIUESIO S} MIIADI O13SOUSEIP 1S0D S} JO asnedaq 10 led se ‘p[noys A}sIaAun/a8a[[0d yoeyq :31n1PNn1is [euoneziuesio Hg

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



8GY

aded|zI Ausianun azeas olyo syl

S30e.13U0D gulseyd.and
SWIN[0A WOJJ paurelqo Sajel 19339q SUIZI[IIN S93) sAneSIUIWpe 10/pue swireld Jorid Supnridal Aq pajewnnsa sduiaes 3so) o
'S91k.1 .19139( UIE}qO0 03 S9IIIIUS 9JE)S J9Y0 W01} SWN[0A d.I0W 3FeI9Ad] 03 saaneloqe[[od Suiseydand ur Sunedonie e
jJusapuadap e 10j 3500 [enuue Jeak Jad Joquiawi 1ad agetaae s, ue[d ayl Aq Surdjdnnu
pue 95e.19A00 WO.1J pIAOWA.I pue J[qISI[aUl pawaap syuspuadap pataA0d Jo Jaquinu a3 Sur el £q pajewnsa ssuiAes 3so) O
‘'syuawaanbaa A11qidie
s,ue[d a3 syeow ued a.aed Yieay Aue uo juspuadap palaArod Aue Jey) 2InSuUa 03 uonedyLIvA LAIIqidi[a Juspuadap Sunonpuo) e
paleany
9q 03 sjuaned jo Jaquinu pajdafoad ayy Aq Surf[dn[nw pue ja3IeW aY3 Ul d[qe[leA. Juawlea.l) uonedpaw sunadwod ays
pue upLid Jemof paajueensd Yum Juage SAISN[IXD 93} U89MII( 1S0D Ul 90UISJJIP 93 Sunyel Aq pajeuwinsa s3UIABS 3S0) O
‘saseaJour ao11d 940 pue
sa1eqa. 3sadaap a3 urelqo 03 uonedipaw Ayerdads e 10y Adetays dais 1o Juade aAISN[OXd Ue YHM AIB[NULIO} PasO[d e Sunuawa[dw] e
10BJIU0D MU 3}
Japun sajeqa. pasoidul pue SupLid JAY JJO SIUNodsIp J193ealsd Surzijin swrepd Joid Supridal Aq pajewnnsa s3uiaes 3so) o
‘sisA[eue ay3 £q pa[eaAal SULId) 9[e.I0AE] 310U d)e10d.100Ul 03 30B.13U0D SUNSIXd SUne1089Ua.1 puk 393.Jetl JUS.LIND 03 JDB.IIU0D
dunsixa ay3 ur umrid aredwod 03 4oe1IU0D I93eUR]) JJouay AdeuLIeyd ay) ul payiuLiad se ‘sisA[eue jo3lewl e SUIWLIOJID e
9oe[d ojur nd a1am asayy
Ja3je pa.Lindul aouaLladxa swre [enjoe jsuregde Surledwod pue san.1 SuIssado.ld pue uonezLoyine jo uonejuswajdur
a3 03 1o11d paLIndul a19M ey} suonedrpauwl punoduwod 10j S3S00 a5elaAe paem.ioj Surpuall £q pajewilsa sguIABS 3s0) O
‘SUOnBIIpaU
papunoduwod 10§ 350D SWIe[d Xy Ul 9Sealdul JUedYIUSIS SSaJppe 03 sa[nt Suissadoad wire[d pue uonezrioyne Jorid Sunuawadw] e
Aodeurreyd Ayenads NSO
woJj paureiqo adL1d afesajoym agelaAe JJo syunodsip Ia3eaas Suizinn swiepd Jorad Supridat £q pajewidsa sguiaes 3s0) O
's3d110S ssaadxq yaim 1oe13u0d Iageue]y jauag Aoeurieyd Ino ysSno.ay) a[qe[leAe S| yeym
'SA pajenogdau uasq sey Surid s[qeloae) alow J1aym ‘Aoeurieyd Aerads s,NSO 38 PI[[1J 99 03 suonedipawl Ayerdads SundaIIpay e
:apn[oul sa13ajea3s JoY3(Q "USALIP J93JeUl d.Je 9M 3.INSsua 03 sagueyd sajelodiooul pue spuaty udisap uefd s1ojruowt Ae[nga.l A}sI9AIUN Y],
Pporeuwin}sa a.1om sguiaes 1502 moy urejdxa
9SBI[J (SIIIUIIIYJD d.1ed-Y}[e3Y YSno.ay) sSuiAes 1s0I [enuue pa3dadxa Aue pasaryde L}s1aAr1un/aga[[0d 9yl sey (feuondg)

sweadoid Aderatyy-dals UOIIPUOD peOo.Iq PUE UOBZLIOYINE
Jorid pue 1.10ddns uoIsap paseq-aduapiad Surpnioul ‘a.1ed Jo UoeuIp.100d pue Juswadeuew uonezijin ueid padueyuy e

sjuswague.lle sgulaes pateys / syuswided 1opiaoad pajpung juswa[dw] e
SYI0MIOU PAISI] 10 W0ISND MOLIRU JZI[IIN ‘O[qIssod 21oypy e
Ay1enb pue ao11d 10y sj003 £ouatedsuen) 3Isnqod Y3Im ‘WSLISWNSU0I Jo s3daduod atow ajerodioou] e

sayoeo.adde Suimoo] a3 SpPUIWIUI0IAL 33€IS OIYQ
*9qLIDSIP
9sed|d ¢(19pIsuod pinoys dno.as Sunfiom 3y} Jey) SULIOJI.I Ied)[edY Aue paynuapI A}s1aArun/agafjod ay3 sey (feuondq)

'$}S00 2.1ed-3}[eay uo 3jeloqe[[od 03 santuniioddo Ajpuapl pnoys dno.as SunpIom apIMalels y :S1S0D aaed-yi[esaH ds

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



65y

oded|eT Ausianun azeas olyo syl

S}9aM a1} UI SISeq Je[n3da.l e UO UOLIS 23 183G 9SN SUESp I8y [, "AIIUN0I Y3 UI 939[[0I SOUSIDS % S1IY 3S93.1e[ aY3 pue syusurredsp
0% uey3 a1ow yum sndured uo 9397[02 3sad1e] Ino ‘93e1S OIY(Q Ie SIUSIIS X SAIY 381[[0) Y3 SpNndul WaISAS Oong ay3 Jo sIas()

‘SUOI}I3S SSO.10e
O3B 103ON.IISUI-03-3UaPNIS ddUe[eq 03 SUONISS UIELISD Ul Juswi[o.1us do3s 10 ‘U0109s mau e uado ‘SuonIas awos 10y Ayoeded JusauwI[jolud
93 9seaJoul 03 I9Y3aM IN0ge SUOISIDAP pauLlojul axew 03 jjels day s[re3ap asay [, ‘adeds [edisAyd ays jo Ayoeded a3 pue sse[d yoes .10J
£yoeded Juswifjo.us ‘uonaas 1ad syuswjo.rus Jusapnis aledwod 03 eyep 310da1 UO[IIIS 2R 3BAS S9SN [00] SINAJeue Qong S, ANSIaAIUN dY ],
*Mo[aq 3jedrpul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.LINIJ0 saSueyd [e3ULBISNS OU pue 9T X ul pajyudwdjduil A[[nJ Sem UOIIEPUIWIW0D.I SIY} J]

3[euone. 3y} apraoad
asea[d ‘os op 01 uejd 10u S90P pue UONEPUIW 0D SIY) parudwd[dwl Jou sey ANsIdAIUN/933[[02 33 JI ued uoneyuswadurl
a1 S11eyMm ‘s JI udwaduur 0} uerd e 3.19Y] SI ‘UONEPUIUWIUIOIA.I ST} pajudwd[duur Jou sey A)saaArun/aga[[od ay3 JI

:saSed [euonIppe U0 .10 MO[3( JUIWISSISSE I} JO SINSAI Y] UO S[Ieap ap1aoad ases|d

"uoneuLIojul pajepdn 10y MO[aq 995 ‘SO
'SOWI02IN0 A3y
9y} pue pasn ssa20.1d 3y Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk Ip1ao.ad asea|d ‘saf J] ;uonepusawiwioddr sy} pajyudwdjdui A}s19a1un/983[[02 oY) SeH

"Ay1s1aA1uUNn /9391[02 IN0A Jo snyeys uoneyuswadwl a3 Y3im susife eyl uondas
o 91o1duwiod asea[d Aysiaarun,/a3a[[0d InoA jo snieys uonejyuswadwi ay) Y3m sudife Jeyl uondas ay3 a3a[dwod ases[d 'se9deds [earsAyd jo
uoneziwndo sageinodus ey} waisAs e Aojdwa pue sndued si1 Jo uonezijn ayl Apnis snw A}s1aa1un/a89[[0d yoeyq :uonezijin adeds Jg

"SUI9)SAS [EINILID 1930 pUE [[BUID ‘Judwadeue

Sururesy ‘Suruueld 92anosat asLidiaius 11oddns Jey3 saulydew [ed2I1SAyYd pue [enilia Jo SpaJpuny S9A[0AUI ‘GTOZ Ul paisjdwod

SeM IIYM ‘@a0w 9], *s3500 Suneado ur.Ieak e uol[[Iul T SALS 03 pue s1s02 [earded ur uolfjiut O$ ploAe 01 AJISISAIUN 9] PIMO[[e Sey
STy, ~19yua) Sunndwon) o1yQ Jo 93e1S Y3 03 SWIISAS BIEp [BIIUID S A)ISIaAIUN 33 saow 0} diystauried e uo pasigde ajels oy ‘v 10Z Ul
*M0[9q djed1pul 3sed[d ‘ZT A Ul pPa.11Inddo sagueyd [erUeISqNS OU pue 9 A ul pajudwadjduil A[[nj Sem UOIIEPUIWW0I.I SIY] J]

‘3[euonel 3y} apiaoad asea|d ‘uonepuswIuioda. siy} pajuswajdui jou sey A}isidArun/agaf[od ayy Jj ;uerd uoneyuswajduir
3y s11eym ‘sak J] ;yuswadjduri 0] uefd e 3.13Y) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWUI0IA SIY} paruswajduil Jou sey AJSIdATUN/IFI[[0d 3Y3 J]

‘uoneuLIojul payepdn 10j MO[aq 93§ "S9X
'SOUI02IN0 A9
9y} pue pasn ss320.1d 3] Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1A0.ad asea|d ‘saf J] juonepuswIuIoddr sy} payudwa[durl A}sI9A1UNn/983[[0D 9Y) SeH

*£11s19A1UN /983[[02 IN0A Jo sniels uonejuawadwil a3 Yarm sugife eyl uondas ay a1a[dwod aseald *(DHOS) J9iua) Iaanduio)
01l JO 91B1S 93 03 S.I93UdD BIEP AI9A0231 191SesIp Jo Atewirid d1ay3 aaow 03 uefd e do[aaap 3snwt A1s19A1Un/983[[07) 3y, :SI9IUID eIR( S

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



09¥

oded| v Ausianun azeas olyo syl

‘auIewWN SIy} 393w 0} A[Surp.rodde aredaad pinoys suonninsul

210J2.19Y) ‘A9A.INS 3913IWWO0)) AIOSIAPY ADUSIDIIYT 8L 93 UI papn[dul 3( [[IM uoisiro.ad siy ], -1peduod ayj jo Jynsa. e se paures
S31USBIDIJD 9} 310da.1 AOUIDJS [ENUUE IIDY) UIYHM L1I0da.I [[eYsS SaNISIdATUN pue s983[[00 {1} 6S'SHEES '’ 19d 'sweiSo.ad
pue suonjerado pageys uo A[[nJ 3.10UI LI0GR[[0I 0} SINISIIATUN pue S3F3[[0I 10J 8T0Z ‘0E dun( Aq soe[d ur juswaa.iSe

PoINIAXa UE YIIM ‘SINIS.IdAIUN pue s98a[[00 o1qnd s,01yQ Jo s}oeduiod [euo1Saa saambal 5'SHEE UONIAS IPO) PISIAY OIYQ

109(0.14 yuswaGeuey A319uy aaIsuaya.1duio) ay3 INOQE [[I9P d.10W 10J Y} W 995 "[eos eyl 199wl 03 s3a(o.ad Sunenfeas mou
SI sIaulaed A31auy 93e1S o1y 'SJIedAk (T IXau a3 190 Aduad1yjo £3.10Us Ul JuswaA0IdWI 9, G7 B ISEI] e dA3IYIEk eyl s1oa(oad uonearasuod
A319Ud 91819UdS [[IM YOIYM ‘LT A Ul 303[01d Juswadeuey AS1auy aaisuaya.rduwio) ays 10j diysiaulied e ojul 191ua 03 paatde AysIaATun ay ],

“LIeyd
Mo[9q 3y} 9[durod asea[d ‘Saf JI (LT AA ul s199{oad Louamnipys A819ud Ay1sa1aA1un/aga[[0d 03 sadueyd/sarepdn Aue 3.19Y] 919\

‘Suriojiuowr
A1mn pue ‘sed [eanjeu ‘A3011309]9 ‘swalsAs Surjood  guneay ‘swaisAs Sunysi 03 paywif 3ou Ing ‘Surpniour ‘(£319ud Jo asn U
alow ut unnsaa) £819us asn pue aando.ad 03 f1s1aa1un/ags[[0d Aq PazZI[lIn SPOYIaW S[(eUIL)SNS aUlJa.l 0] }29S SIAPUIDLYT AS19uq]

ASToug

"Spaaul pue SUORIPUOd
SuIp[Ing JUS1IND JO M31Ad. B papndul ssad0.1d SIY3 JO 1Ied "SPaaul a.1nnj pue Jua.LInd uo paseq sndured ay3 soueyua pue oziwndo 03
pausisap sI yorym ‘ssado.ad Suruuerd 1s3sew (' JI0MIUWEL] SI JO JuaWdO[9ASD Ul UOIIEULIOJUT SIY} Pasn A}ISISAIUN 33 ‘[9A3] 1ope0.1q B UQ

"A1BSS929U
se sasse[o Suiuado pue SuISo[d ‘UONONIISUT JO IS JUIIDYJS 10J AI[nde] Jo Juswiso[dap(a.) ojul SIYSISul 10J J93SaWas mau & 03 dn Suipea|

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



Lov

oded|qT Ausianun azeas olyo syl

ISUEYIET
Joj uprid rewndo ureiqo ued a[qoN ¥ sauleg eyl os a[qissod se A[1ea se sIap.o oo Jruqns 03 s10ssajo.d 10j paau ay3 uo siseydwo
[euonippe Sue[d mou st A}sIaArun ay [, *9[qIssod sj00q3xa} 1503-1S9MO][ a3 Ure3qo 03 santuniioddo pasueyus Yim 9[qON % Sauleq
‘Jou3aed 21031s¥00q Ino apraoad pue A1[Iqep.lojje J00qIxXa) ddueyua 0} paudisap uonnjosal e passed ajeuas A}SIaAIU() Y} ‘£T0Z YdoIe] U]

"$00(Q1%a) pasn jo Ayiqe[reae Japim siroddns ose uoisiaoad

SIY L Y00q3%a3} e 10j 9311d 1S9 93 3[99S 0} SUIN} dABRY SIUSPNIS SAINSUD SIY ], ‘SUsdo MOpUIM UONIEIISIZDI SUI[UO 9.10J9( SHOM 0M)

SB[ 1B $9S.IN0D 10J S}00q31Xa} AJ109ds 01 sanIsIaAluN sadmbal ya1ym ‘g1z Jo 10y ArumiioddQ uoneonpy JIaygiH ay Aq sapliqe 931e1s oiyQ
*MO0[9q 31ed1pul 3sed[d ‘T Ad Ul pPa.1Indd0 sagueyd [erlUeISqns ou pue 9 A ul pajudwadjduil A[[nj Sem UOIIEPUIWWI0IA.I SIY] J]

‘a[euonel ay} apraoad
ased[d ‘os op 031 ue[d J0u S90P pue UOIEPUIWW0I.I SIY) pajyudwd[dwl Jou sey ANsIA1UN/333[[02 33 JI ;ued uoryeyuswaduir
913 S11eym ‘saf JI ;Juawadduur 03 ueld e 3.131) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWIMI0IAI SIY) pajusdwajduil Jou sey A}sIaA1un /333102 aY3 JI

"uoneuLIojul pajepdn .10y MO[aq 995 ‘SO
'SOWI02IN0 A3
9y} pue pasn ssa20.1d 3Y) Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk Ip1ao.ad asea|d ‘saf J] ;uonepusawiwioddl sy} pajyusdwdjduii A}s19a1uNn/983[[02 oY) SeH

*£11s19A1UN/233[[00 INOA JO snjeys uoneyuawa[dwl ay3 Yam susife 1eyl uonas ayl 9a[dwod ases|d ‘S[ellaew sInod
Jo uonoa[as ayy ul AJienb pue 1500 Y30q JaPISUOD ISNW A}[NIB,] 'S3S.IN0I 3s02-YS1Y ‘Dwn[oa-ys1y yym Surn.iels ‘s[eriajew [BUONONISUL
pue $300q31%3} U0 SIUSPNIS .10J S[eap 3saq ay3 urerqo Anoej djay o3 pausisse aq 3snui s10jeo3au [eUOISS3J0.1d :1S0I 91e103aN V9

Anpiqepioyy yooqixa, | 9 uonepuswwiodsy

S3J1DkI{ JTWIPeIY :[] UONIIS

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



[4%)4

oded|91 Ausianun azeas olyo syl

'S9S.IN0D JUSW[[01Uud-Y31y pateys Ino jo g urjusiuod uado ydope pue ‘9jeand ‘93ea.dd 0}

juess uoneaouul uonedNpy Joy3iy jo Jusaundeds o1y UOI[[IW £'T§ € U0 JYNITOIYQ PUE ‘ANSISAIU ULIIUTWOQ OIYQ ‘S9583[[0) ATUNUIWO)
JO UORBID0SSY OIYQ 3Y3 ‘9383[[0) eI [el3ud) YrioN yaim diysiauired e duryoune] ade am ‘T A Ul A[[euonippy "s1oaload [euonippe

0z ueyy a1ouw punj o3 uefd am ‘gT A4 U "ZTAJ Ul UOI[[IW T$ Syuapnis paaes asoy, ‘syoafoad jueid gg Suipuny Aq uolfjiur £¢ syuapnis

000°ZT paaes Apoadip sey agueyoxy Sululea] a[qep.lojJy a3 ‘91ep 0], "0Z0Z Aq UOI[[IW QT$ UBY) SI0W SJUSPNIS JABS 0} YIB.I} UO dIe A\

“Teak orwapede L10Z-9T02

9Y3} UI SJUSWI[0.IUS 9SIN0D [10) JO JuddIad @ A[TBaU 10J PaIUNOIIE 93€IS OIY( I€ PAIajjo SasInod Jurulea] aouelsi(q 'snid ypat) agao) ut
poa3sataiul syuapnis [ooyds-y3iy J1oj yutod ssadoe juelroduwr ue apiaoid pue syuapnis a3els o1y Sunsixe 10y 92.139p 03 Wy Y3 paads ued
$9SIN02 9saY [, ‘SuInpays ur AHIfIqixaf) [euonippe yum syuapms Surpiaoid ‘pado[oasp usaq aaey S9SIN0I 5 SUI[UO OQT UBYY 310U ‘40T
9OUIS "S1UaPNIS 10§ AJ[IGE[IBAR SSEA.IDUI 0} S9S.IN0D UONEINpa [elauad tejndod 3sowr ay} jo suoisiaa aurjuo Surdojaaap uaaq sey ajeis oryQ
*Mo[aq djed1pul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.LINId0 saSuetd [EI}ULISONS OU PUE 9T A Ul pajudwd[duwil A[[nj Sem UOIIEPUIWTI0II ST J]

3[euone. 3y} apraoad
ased|d ‘os op 03 ue[d Jou S20p puE UOIIEPUIWUI0IA.I SIY} pajudwd[duwi Jou sey Ays.1aarun/agaf[od ay3 j ;ued uonejuswajduur
93 S11eyM ‘saf J] (uswdjdur 03 uefd e 3.19Y3 SI ‘UOIIEPUIWUI0IA.I SIY} payudwajduil Jou sey A}SI2A1uUn/333[[02 Y3 J|

‘uojeuLIojul pajepdn 10j MO[aq 39S "SIL
'SOUI02IN0 A9
9y} pue pasn ss320.1d 3] Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1A0.1d asea|d ‘saf J] juonepuswiuIoddr sy} payusdwad[dur A)sI9AT1UN/983[[0D 9y SeH

*£31s19A1UN /983][[0D INOA
Jo sniejs uonejuswaduwi oY) YIm sugife 3ey) Uondas ay3 939[dwod ases[d *SIUIPNIS JO JUSW[[0IUS JF.1e[ B AIIS JBY} SIS.IN0D 10] ‘SIUSUWI[D
[e}81p Surpnyoul ‘S[eLIa}EW UOWWI0I 9S00 03 sjuswlledap aSeInodus 1snwl SaNIS.I9AIUN PUE S9F9[[07) :S[ELI1BW SZIPIEpUEIS g9

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



€9y

oded| /1 Ausianun azeas olyo syl

‘syuapnjs .10j saryuniioddo

guruaea] Ayenb-y31y ‘e[qeplojje a10wW 93ea.d 03 1939303 SUONNINISUI SSO.I0E Wo. A3noej sduriq 309(oad s1y], 'S92.1n0Sa.1 [BUOTIEINDS
uado 03 SuIYDIIMS UM I9IUNOIUS SI0IDNIISUL ey} 9[0eISqO0 JUBIYIUSIS B SaA0Wa.l dwe) JUau0)) ‘Swall JUSWSSISSE PaMaIAdl-19ad
‘Ayrenb-y31y jo uonoa[[os e Surdo[aaap Ag 'sasInod ad1e[ ur Sa2.1n0sal [euoneanpa uado jo uondope ayj 310ddns Jey) syueq JUSWISSISSE
uado ‘031 SuLIoyne Ul suonNIRSUl SSo.1oe wo.y £noej syroddns yorym ‘durer) Juajuo?) paj[ed dALENIUL U U0 SUNeI0qe[[0d d.1e dUBI[[Y
Jrwspedy us ], S1g ay3 pue uiziup) ‘ojdwexs 10, ‘Jurutes] 1.1oddns 1ey} s91419s [EHSIP [BRUSSA Y3 JO S}JoUq pue $3s0d a3 Suraordur
aJe SJIoquaW UIZIU[) "WNILIOSU0D Y} 03Ul AIJUD JO [9AJ] UO paseq saldinboe 1o sdofaaap uiziuf jey) s[eriajew pue s[003 paJeys jo

9sSN ayewW Ued SIaqUIS]A "99) [enuUue Ue 10j Ulo{ Uued oIyQ Ul SANISISAIUN pue $939[[02 JoY30 ‘Ulziuf) ul dIystoquall S,a3e3S oIyQ JO aniiia Ag

‘wI0j3e[d UOWW0) B SSOJJE S[eLIdjeW aJeys A[Isea 0} [ernuazod a3 wo.j

1Jaua(q [[e [[IM S[00YIS UIZIU(] ‘U1193-3U0T 'Sjuapnis 000y INoqe pue A[ndaej o3 siyjauaq Ayjiqesn ajerpawwl uipiaoid ‘SasInod auruo .10j
seAue)) WalSAS JuswaFeuew Surules] ay) pasodap sey a3eis olyQ ‘@ouelsul 10, ‘uonesInpa 1aysiy 1oj S[00} pue sa2.1nosa.l [e3dip sdojoaap
1B} SONISIAIUN A paUMO WINKIOSUOD Jjorduou e ‘UIZiup) Jo Jaquiawl e S 9e1s oryQ ‘@anentul Aystaarun diysdel [eMsiq ayl puosag
"Mmoj[aq ajedipul asedfd ‘LT A Ul Pa.LINdI0 sagueyd [e}ULISqNS Ou pue 9T A ul pajudwadjdul A[[NJ SEM UO}EPUIWW0II STY] J]

3[euone. a3y) apraoad
asea[d ‘os op 03 uejd 10U S0P pue UOIEPUIWW0IIA.I ST} pajudwajduwul Jou sey A}ISI2A1UN/333[[02 3y} J] ;ueld uoneyuswidjdur
913 SI yeyMm ‘saf J1 ;yuawadduul 0] ued e 3.131) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWIUI0IAI SIY) pajudwdjduil Jou sey A)is1aA1un/a33[[0d 9y} J|

"S9AIIBNIUL J9Y10 JN0ge UOoeuLIOJul pajepdn 10J MO[aq 995

‘wetdoad £ouadiyje sAneISIUTWPE S,A}ISI9AIUN 9} WO) Sulpunj asn
pue ‘9yns A3o[ouyoa)-gurures] syl 10j el payunodsip e Aed [[1m AJSIaAIUN Y], "UOI[[IW QTS UBY) SIOW SI JBIA JXoU SIUIPNIS 1eaL-1S.11j [[&
J0J 9}INS 93 JO anJeA [1e3d [e103 9], 93€1S 01y Q 1€ 9J1] pue Surured] 31oddns 03 sdde se [[om Se paeoqhay] LewS pue [Puad a[ddy Surpnoul

S[001 YIIM 0. ped! Uk 9A19dal [[IM sasndwied [euolgal pue snquinjo) ay3 Je sjuapnis Jeak-1sI1j mau ‘gz uwnine ur gun.els 'syjuapnis
033502 0OU Je S9130[0UY23) SUIULIEI] JO 39S UOWWOD B 0} SS90k [estaArun apiaoad d[ay [[Im aAnBNDIUL SS920NS-IUSPNIS Y3 ‘SMO.IS I1 SY

Awouoda dde ay3 ul ssauIpeal-I9a1ed 11913 9dULYUS 03 S[[I¥S SUIp0od UIed] 03 SJUapn3s 10j santuniioddo apim-AysIsAlun e
Arunwwod 1apeodq aY) Jo SIaquIal pue sjuapnis ‘Jyess ‘A3noej Suialas sndwed snquinjoy) ay3 uo A1ojeioqe] udisap Q1 ue e
douaLIadxa £1s1aArun a3 Inoy3no.ayy A30[0uydal SuruIes] a3e.1391ul 0] dATIBIIUI SS9IINS-JUSPNIS B o

1S9pNoUl SARBRIUT SIY [, "A}UNUILIODd

a3 10j santuniioddo juswdo[aAap dTWIOU0Id pUE SJUapN)s J0J UoHEAOUU] [RUORIEINPS S)Ioddns aanentul Suruies] [eaSIp apim-A}isiaarun
‘@arsuaypaduwod s1y, -a[ddy yaim uoneloqe[[od ul aaneniul Aistaarun diysger [e3181J 9Y3 padunouue ajels oy ‘~10Z 1290320 Uf
‘s[eLId]ewl pue s[oo) [e11S1p do[aAap 01 $110JJ9 JnoA urejdxa asea|d

*A31s19A1UN /983[[0D INOA JO sniels uonejuswajduwil
91 Y31Mm suSI[e 18y} Uonoas ay) 919[dwiod asea[d ‘S[elIaleul 31s02-mo] ‘Ayfenb-y31y yum syuapnis apiaoad jey) ‘sad2a1nosal [euoneonpa uado
Surpnpur ‘sferIalews pue sjoo3 [eN31p do[eAap 03 WNMIOSUOD e jo 3Ied aqg 3snwi sanIsIaAlUN pue sagdaf[o) :saniqeded endip dopaaqg H9

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



12514

oded|g1 Ausianun azeas olyo syl

*duI[aw} SIY) 399w 03 A[Suip.aodde a.1eda.ad pinoys suorNIISUI ‘9.10J9.13Y) {A3A.INS 331}IWUIOY)

A10S1APY AOUaDIPT 8IA4 Y3 SE dUI[oUI] UOISSIWI(NS dUIES 3] U0 Inp 3 [[IM Apnis Y] Jey) 310U ISeI[d "Io[[adUury) 3]

Aq paqrsaad ajep e Aq Jo[[eoury) 33 01 APNIS Y} JIWINS PUE UOIININSUI Y} UI PI[[0.IUD SJUIPN]S .10] SY00(1X3] JO 1S0I JUI.LIND
9] SUIULIIIAP 0] APNIS € 1ONPU0I 0} SAINISIIAIUN puk s933[J02 d1[qnd s,01yQ sa.1mbaua (@) TS6 SEEE UOIDAS IPO) PISIAIY OIYQ

'S[e0d guIULIBd] pue SUIYoeal NS
01 PazZIuI03snd 3q 03 Jua3u0d Suimoie 9ySLAdod [euoniper) ueyl JoYle.l ‘OSUIdI[ SUOWWOT) SANEII) B I9pUN Pasuadl] 918 YO ISON o
‘Burures] pue Suryoeal 2dULYUD ey SISINO0D [[Nf UIAD pUB
‘SJUSWINDOP ‘S[eLId}eW 3S.IN0) ‘S}00( ‘BIpawl pasuadl| Auado J1oj Suimoife ‘d[qefreae A[92.4) a1e (YH0) S921n0say [euoneonpyg uadg e
‘woy} Surseyoand Jo nal Ul SJUIPNIS 03 PAUEBO] 3 UED Jey) S9SIN0I ANSISAIUN
00Z Uey3 a1ow SULI2A0D ‘S00QGIXal 00S UeYl 210w 03 dwoY SI323(01d ayy ApUalIn) '9AI13SaY pasol) ,SaLIelqIT Y3 BlA S9SIN0D
WNNILLIND UO[EINPH [BISUIN) 103[3S 10J S00(qIXa) palinbad jo sa1dod sepiaoad pue saseydand 309(0.1d J00qIXa[, 4D NSO YL
*Aepo3 asn ul sy00q3xa) dwos ade[da. ued Jeys s[eLajewt Aenb-y3iy o3 suondriosqns Jo spuesnoys sey SaLIBIqIT AJSIAIU[) e
:9pNOUI S1103J9 J9YIQ )9 pPUk g9 ‘Y9 01 sasuodsal a3 99§
's9onead anok wo.yy painyded saduUaY)d AJruapl asead ‘osy 9o11d s[qep.royye ue
1€ S} 00(1X3] 0] SSIIIE IABY SHUIPNIS .INSUI Jey) pajyudwa[dul sadnoe.ad [[e SSnISIP ISed[d ‘SHUIPNIS .10J SIS0I }00(1X3} SUNpa.I
Sp.1emo} S110JJ9 J19Y) 110daa 0] SanISIdAIUN pue saga[[od d1iqnd s,01yQ sa.1mbai ()56 £EEE UOIAS IPO) PISIAJY OIYQ

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



S9v

oded|e6I Ausianun azeas olyo syl

‘uopeuLnIojul 910w J0J g/ 03 asuodsau
o3 @3S ‘s1eak JNnoj ur uonyednps JIaYyl wu®~QEOU 0] SjUapnis J0J 9ANU3dUI MU E S.J9}JO 9ajuk.Jeny) uoninj, ajels oy mau ayl .COﬁ_U—um uj

‘(193sawas J1ad sanoy 3padd Z1) Juapnis awn [[nJ e a¢ 03 paldinbal wnwiuiw ay) Jo peajsur (193sawas 1ad sunoy
JIpaId GT) SPEO[ 9SIN0D [[NJ 9B} 03 SIUSPNIS 10J AU UI [eIDURUL JULIYIUSIS € sap1aodd a1n3onais uoning s,a3eis olyQ ‘9A0qe pajou sy

,iuoning Jo yrom s 1eas 911ua ue noA uiAes “19}Sawas

(OB SIN0Y 3IPatd 9aJj € 198 [[IM NOA ‘SInoY GT 93€) NoA J] “Inoy IPa.Jd A19A3 10J Aed [[Im noA ‘sanoy g1 A[uo axel noA ji oS ‘g pue

ZT U29M33q sInoy .10j pagdaeyd 1noy 3patd 1ad uonINg [BUORIPPE OU SI 913 ], *191sawias 1ad sanoy 31patd GT 1sea e Sunyel £q ssaf Aed [[1m
noy, :3uapmis ay3 03 3502 Y3 pue 9a.13ap 03 awn a3 saziseydwa y3oq wedo.ud siy, ‘steak 1noj ut 9a.13ap s,10[aydeq e 93[dwod 03 papaau
Speo| 8s51n02 a3 saziseydwa ‘S10SIAPE J[WISPEJE PUE UOIIBIUSLIO YSNO.IY) PaIdAl[dp SI YdIym SATFERTUl N0, Ul YSIUL,, S,83e1S o1yQ
"Mo[aq djedrpul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.LINIJ0 saSueyd [eryUEISqNS OU pue 9T A ul payudwdjduil A[[nJ Sem UOIIEPUIWIW0IA.I ST} J]
"a[euone. 3y} apraoad

ased[d ‘os op 031 ue[d J0u S90p pue UOIEPUIW 0D SIY) pajyuswad[duwi Jou sey ANsIaA1UN/383[[02 a3 JI ;ued uonyeyusawaduir
93 S11eym ‘saf J1 ;Juawadduwr 03 ueld e 3.131) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWIUI0IAI ST} pajudwajduil Jou sey A}sIaA1un /333102 aY3 JI

"MO[9( 995 'S9L *SIWI0IINO0 AN

9] pue pasn ss320.1d 31 Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1a0.1d asea|d ‘saf J] juonepusawiuIoddr sy} payudwdjdurt A}sI9A1UNn/983[[02 3y SEH

*£31s19A1UN,/933[[0D INOA JO sniels uoneuawadwl a3 PIIm sugife 3eyd uondas ayl a3v[dwod
ased[d ‘(sea.1dap s,10[ayde(q I1SOW 10] SIedL IN0J pue S89.139p 9ILID0SSE ISOW 10J SIEIA 0M]) SUIN} UO djeNnpe.I3 0} papasu SpPeoj 95.Inod 9y}
Inoqe sajenpeldiapun sawn-[[nJ sy a3eanps 03 udredwed pajeurplood e dojaaap 3snwt £31s19A1un/agds[[od yoeq :ugredured uoneiInpy vz

92.189(q 01 W], | £ UOIIEPUIWLIOIY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



99¥

oded|ot Ausianun azeas olyo syl

"SpJepueis Aji[enb urejurew 01 sanoy 7z T uey) aow urejurew sweldoad anoj A[uQ "'uonelIIpaIdde 10J papasu JUNOWE dY3 aJInbala
JO SINOY J9)SaWas TZT JO WNWIUIW S, A}SI2ATUN 33 9318 ad1nbau sweidoad syenperdiapun 8g8¢ s,91e3S o1y JO (%66) e A[[enHIA
*Mo[aq 3jed1pul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul pa.L1nddo sagueld [el}ULIS(NS OU pue 9T A4 Ul pajusdwa[duwl A[[nj SeMm UOIIEPUIW 0D SIY] J]

*3[euone. 3y} apraoad

ased[d ‘os op 01 ue[d 10u S90p pue UOEPUIWW0IAI SIY) pAarudwd[dwl Jou sey ANSIdAIUN/333[[02 33 JI ;ued uoneyusawadurl
93 S11eym ‘saf J] ;udwajduur 03 ueld e 3.131) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWUI0IAI SIY) pajudwa[duil Jou sey A}sIaA1UNn /333102 3Y3 JI

"S9 L

'SOWI0JIN0 A3

91} pue pasn ssa330.1d 9y} Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk Ip1ro.ad ased[d ‘saAf JI ;uonepuawiurodal s1yl pajusdwajduur Ayis.19A1un/383[[02 Y3} SeH

*A)1s19A1UN /933][[00 INOA

Jo smiels uonejuauraduir ay3 Yam susife Jey) uondas ay3 913[dwod ases[d syuauIaImbal UoneIIPaIdIe 10j pamoj[e a1e suonndadxy 'ss9|

JO SINoY patd §9 urpim paia[dwod aq ued swresdo.ud 92130p 93e10SSE pUE SSI[ IO SINOY P 97 T UIyam payajdwod aq ueo surerdoxd
9a.13ap s,I0[ayde( ISOUW Jey) OS SJUsWAIINbaI UonENpeIs SUIWEIS P[NOYS SIIISISAIUN puk s939[[0)) :93.189P 10J SHPI.ID ZIp.Iepuels )/

*Mo[aq dedipur ased[d ‘L X Ul pa.LInddo sagueyd [eryueIsqns ou pue 9T x4 ul pajusdwajdurl A[[nJ Sem UOIEPUIWIWI0IA SIY} J]

*3[euone. a3y} apraoad
ased[d ‘os op 01 uejd 10u S90p pue UOIEPUIWUI0IA.I SIY) pAarudwd[dwl Jou sey ANSIAIUN/383[[02 33 JI ;ued uonyeyuswadurr
33 S11eyM ‘Sah J] uswajdur 0] uefd e 3.191) ST ‘UONIEPUIWI0IJI ST} paruawajduii Jou sey AsIaA1un /38909 a3 J1

"SO10UAZ.IoWd AJIWE] 10 SOIDUIFISW [BIPAUW ‘DIIAIIS AIBII[IW SE ONS SIOUBISWNIII 30e) oYM 10 939[duI0d 0} SIedk Inoj
uey} aJow salinbau jeyy sweadoad ur SuUspnIs 10j pamojfe a.le suondadxd ‘sIeak Inoj ul 92.139p 119y} 99[dwod 03 SJUSPNIS 10J dALUIUL
Jayjoue sajea.d weadoad siyj “193sawas J1ad s3pad Jo Jaquinu d1y1oads e 03 panl 30U Y3Snoyl[y 'uoneInps Jeak-Inoj e 10j S9aj A1ojepuer

pue uoning sazaalj ‘2107 [[8) Ul pPa.1alus oym SJUIPNIS TBIA 1SI1J MAU 3IM PILIEIS UDIYM ‘@3jUelens uonin], 9eis ol Mau ay], 'Sox
'SaUI02IN0 A9
9Y) pue pasn ss320.1d 33 Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk Ip1a0.1d asea|d ‘saf J] juonepuawiuiodd.r siy) payudwadjdui A}s19a1un/983[[0d 9y SeH

*£31s19A1UN /9331[00 INOA JO Snyels uonejuswaduwr ay3 y3m susife 3ey3 uondas ay3 a19[dwod asea[d *191sowas Jad S3patd GT 1Ses| e ayel
01 SJUapN3S dWn-[[NJ 98eIN0IUS 0] SOAIUIUI [EIOUBUY SUIYSI[(EISd JI9PISU0D P[NOYS SOIISISATUN PUE SFS[[07) :DAIUIIUI UOTIENPRIY) g/

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



19¥

oded| 1T Ausianun azeas olyo syl

'L10¢
1sngny ur padunouue sem aAneNIUI Vi SIY ], 'siuesd uonajdwod 1oy 9[qId1[a aq [[Im uonenpeis 03 asopd ale £33 uaym sagua[eyd [erueuly

90BJ OUyM SIUSPNIS 33€1S OIYQ “1I0JJ8 1ed Jo 1ed Sy 's9a.13ap a1o[dwod syuapnis Yorym ul awl ay3 Sunpal pue ‘Ay[Iqep.Iojje pue ssadoe
Suiaoadwr 03 pajedipap sensIsAIUN YoIeasal d1jqnd [T JO WNHIOSUOI e ‘9oUB[[Y UOIBAOUU] A}ISIDAIU() 93 JO JoqUISW B SI OS[e 93e1S 01y

"‘pIem.uoj 3urod SuisiApe UsALIp-eIep Jo 9sn s3I puedxa 03 aNURU0D [[IM d3e1S OIYQ "USUIYSa]

sndured snquinjo?) [[e .10J 33&.1 SS820NS 93 03 [enba — .aeak puodas 119y} 10§ 9kl U0NUIA1 JuadIad 6 e ul paynsal weadoad A19A0031
JTWapEdE SIY [, *9ouslIadxa JoWWNS [eUSPISaL B £q pamo[[0] “193sawas uLIds Ul 9SIN0I SS820NS-3UIPNIS B 1I9MO] 10 (' JO 93e1aae
jutod-ape.s3 e pauLIes oYM SJUIPNIS PaJajjo AISIaAIun ay ], ‘'sndured snquinjo?) ay3 uo J1a3sawas 3s.1y 19y} ul pa[38n.as oym syuapnis
JTeah-3say Joj 310ddns orwapeoe [euonippe duipiao.dd jo sjyausaq SU03S 93 PIJEJISUOWSP 1A dIWaped. £T-9T(0Z Y3 Ul patajjo yofid ¥

*STeod Jre |y}

[3IM JU)SISUOD dWN) ke Ul djenpeld pue 93189p e paemos ssatdoad a[qelmns axew ‘pajjoIu Aels syuapnis ey aInsua o3 djoy [[Im sonkeue
2AndIpald jo asn papuedxy ‘9AnNBIOQR[[0) SS200NS JUPMIS S,gy4 Jo diysiauited e ySno.ay Suisiape usALIp-eIep SUIZI[iin SI 93€1S 01y
*Mo[aq djed1pul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul pa.L.1nddo saguerd [erjueIsqns ou pue 9 A Ul pajusdwdjduwii A[[nJ Sem UO[IEPUIWI0I.I STY] J]

"3[euone. ay} apraoad
ased[d ‘os op 03 ue[d Jou S90p pue UOIIEPUIWWOIA.I ST} pajudwaduil Jou sey AisaaA1un/aga[[0d ay3 Ji ;uefd uoryeryusawajdurt
93 S11eyMm ‘saf J] (uswdjdur 03 uefd e 3.19Y3 SI ‘UOIIEPUIWWI0IA.I SIY)} payudwajduil Jou sey A}SI2A1un/383[[0d Y3 J|

‘uojeurIojul pajepdn 10j MO[aq 39S "SIL
'SOUI02IN0 A9
9y} pue pasn ss320.1d 3] Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1A0.1d asea|d ‘saf J] juonepuswiuIoddr sy} payusdwad[durl A}sI9A1UN/983[[0D 9Y) SEH

*£11s19A1UN/983[[02 INOA JO sniels uonejuawadwl ay3 AIM SUSI[e Jeyl U0NIS )

91o1dwod 9SBa[d °SS92INS JUIPNIS I9PUlY Jey]) S.1030.) }SLI AJnuapl A[9anoeod Jey) swalsAs eyep pue suonelnsuod pazijeuostad Joedur
-yS1Y Yy30q WoO.J IJUa( SIUIPNIS JBY) 0S SIIIAIIS SUISIAPE DIWSPEIE 9DUBYUS P[NOYS SINISISAIUN pue S9Z3[[0) :SuISIApe UdALIP-eIed AL

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



89¥

oded|ze Ausianun azeas olyo syl

*Mo[aq djed1pul ased[d ‘LT A Ul Pa.LInddo saSuetd [erjuelsqns ou pue 9 A J Ul pajusdwadjduir A[[nj Sem UOIIEPUIWTI0II ST} J]

*3[euone. 3y} apraoad

asea[d ‘os op 03 ue[d J0u S30P puE UOIIEPUIWW0IIA.I SIY) pajyudwd[duwl Jou sey ANSI2AIUN/383[[02 3y J] (ue[d uorrejuawajduur
93 S11eyMm ‘saf J] ;uswdjduur 03 uefd e 3.19Y3 SI ‘UOIIEPUIWWI0IJ.I ST} payudwdduil Jou sey AJS.IaA1uUn/383[[02 Y3 J]

‘Puo4aq pue g1 (7 JIoaWWING 10 SNUIIUOI [[IM Weldo.1d JunodsIp uonin} ISWWNS 9y, "S93.133p 119y}

plemo) ssaado.ad A[pwn axew 03 SJUapn3s 93eIN0JUs pue ULId ], JI9WWNS 3Y3 JO UOIBZI[IIN 9SBIIOUT 03 pauSISap 9.19M SIANBIIUL 9SaY],

‘(quaotad 1 dn) awn [nJ papuslie syuapn3s a1ow pue ‘(Juadad
1'Z Aq Suiseauour) sanoy 31pald 310w 003 syuapns snduwied snquinjo?) :A}ANDE paseatdul pajdafjal £ 10z W ], JoWWNS "S.191SaWas
Surids pue [[eJ ut sanoy 31paJd s[qeredwod yum patedwod uolfiul §'z¢$ serenperdiapun snduwed snquInjo7) paAes JUNOISIP Mau Y],

*£T107Z Ul 981eD.ans JUapIsal

-UOU 9} pUE UOMIN} UO JUNOISIP %G 7 e pajuswa[duil 83e3§ o1y ‘9T (7 Ul WLI3 [, JAUIWNS JO 31n30onJ3s djurapeoe ay3 Surdureast 103y
"S3SSE[D YIdud[Noq pue puewap-y3y 10j suondo uoissas

Jauuns pappe sndured 9y} 13y31aym ssaiappe aseard ‘renonaed uj -JuawISSISSE Y] JO SINSI.I 3} UO S[ILIdP Ipiaoad aseald

*£1s19ATUN /938([00 INOA JO Snyels uoneyuswa[duwr

a3 aIMm sudife yey) uonodas ay) av[dwod asea[d ‘uonsduiod 92.13ap 10j palinbal a1e Jey} SISIN0D JIUS[II0] puk SISSe[d puewdap-ysiy
Joj suondo uoissas-Iawuins Surppe JapIsuod p[noys sanIsIaAlun pue sagaq[od ‘Ienonted uj "A)1anoe aanonpo.ld asealour 03 saruniioddo
J9PISUOD PUE UOISSIS JoUWIWNS JI0J S91ed Uonezijin ajenjeas o3 sue[d do[oaap 3snwi sanisIaAIuN pue sada[[o) :sureagoad Jowrwing J/,

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



69y

oded| et Ausianun azeas olyo syl

*91€15 o1y 1€ werdo.ad 9a.139p ajeaine[eddeq Ieak-Inoj e 03 A[SS9[WEas anunRuod pue (*239 YsISuF ‘QUaISAH [BIUa( ‘SII1AIS
uewny ‘asInp patalsiday) seade dWapeIk UlLlIa) Ul 93.139p Jeak-om] e a19[dwiod 03 Aemrpied e sa8a[[0D [BITUYIS] 3 Ik SIUIPNIS
JI9JJ0 959V ], "S939[[0D [BD1UYD3] PaIBIO[-0D 1193 [IIM SJUSWSa.ISe UOHE[NIILIE dUlU dAeY sasndued [euoida. .Inoj s,a3els oIyQ ‘UonIppe uj

"91e1S 01y 03 SIUBPNAS JO
Jopa9y o[8uis 3sad1e[ oY) 23€1S SNqUIN[O) SPEW SBY ‘SIAIBIIUI I9JSUBI) 930 YIIM 1I92U0D UI YITYM ‘988[[0) ANunwiwio)) ajeis snquinjo)
[3M JUSWI.I3e UOTIB[NONIE SAISUSIXS Uk Sey snduwed snquinjoy) InQ ‘ssadons 119y3 oddns jeys syuapnis 1oy skemyed Suneaao

0} JUSURTWWO) S, ANSISATUN 3y} SUnIa[jal ‘£ T0Z JO [[8] 9U3 Ul S989[[03 ATUNUIWOI 01y WI0.IJ SYUSIPNIS I9JSUBI} 796 PRIdBINIE 33e1S Oy
*Mo[9q dred1pul dsed[d ‘LT A Ul pa.11nddo saSueyd [er}ULISYNS OU pue 9 A Ul pajudwd[duil A[[nj Sem UOIIePUIWUI0IA.I SIY] J]

*greuonel ay) apraoad
ased[d ‘os op 01 ue[d 10U S0P pue UOIIEPUIWW0IAI ST} pajudwa[duwi Jou sey A}is1aA1un/aga[[0d ay3 JI ;uefd uoryeyuswajdui
93 s11eym ‘saf JI ;Juawajduur 03 ueld e 3.131] SI ‘UOIIEPUIWIUI0IAI ST} pajudwa[duil Jou sey A}saaA1un/a3a[[02 3y JI

'z xipuadde 935 ¢ (T+€ 10 Z+7 J9Y}I9) SONISIdAIUN pUk $989][02
oIy 13110 YIIM dAeY A}NSIdAIUN/IFI[[0D 9Y) S0P SHUdUWIIA.ITe uonenonle Auewr moy ‘refndnaed uj ‘sjrejap apiaoad ased|d

‘uoneuLIojul payepdn 10j MO[aq 99§ "S9X
'SOUI02IN0 A9
9y} pue pasn ss320.1d 3] Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1A0.1d asea|d ‘saf J] juonepuswiuIoddr sy} payusdwad[durl A}sI9A1UN/983[[0D 9Y) SEH

*A31s19A1UN /983[[0D INOA JO sniels uonejyuswadwl ay3 Yarm

suSI[e Jey) Uo1das ay3 919[dwod ases[d *SANHISISAIUN Je Wal} 339[dwod pue saga[[0d [eIUYIa) 10 AUNWWOD J& SUOeINPa 119y} UIdaq oym
sjuapnis 10j sAemiped ssajureas ajea.d Jey) sjuawaaisde do[oaap 03 aNUNUOD P[NOYS SIIHSISAIUN PUE Sa33[[07) :SHUdWIAISe Aemiied gL

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



0Ly

oded|ve Ausianun azeas olyo syl

*Mo[aq 3jedrpul ased[d ‘LT A Ul pPa.LIndd0 saSueyd [erpuelsqns ou pue 9 X ul payudwadjduil A[[nj Sem UOIIEPUIWIW0I3.I SIY} J]
'sjuapn3s urwIodur Ino Jo splepuels Y3y ay3 uo paseq WN[NILLIND Ino Surulyad A[[enURUOod a1 dM ‘pedlsu] "SUaWadueyud

J10J SN20J 1Saq 93 J0U S[ UOIedNpa paseq-Aduajadwod Jey] sI SISA[eue Ino ‘Apoq Juapnis s,83e1S oIy USALY) "d[euonel a3y} apiaoad
asea[d ‘os op 01 ue[d J0u S90p pue UOIEPUIW 0D SIY) paryudwd[dwi Jou sey ANsIaA1uUNn /983102 a3 JI ;ued uoneyuswadurr
a3 s11eym ‘saf J] (uswajduur 01 uefd e 3.19Y3 ST ‘UOIIEPUSIWWI0IAI ST} payudwdduil J0u sey AJSIaA1uUN/3389[[0d a3 J]

(9AIDS [Im sureaSo.ad uonyeanpa paseq-Aoualadurod

9} 9)ewI}Sd ANS.19A1UN/3831[02 33 SIOP syuapnis Auewr moy ‘“re[non.aed uj ‘s[rejap reuonippe apiao.ad aseard ‘djqesrjdde 1
"S3S.IN0J SUI[UO INO JO $S82INS 93 sudueyua sI yoeoadde S1y[, '9A123[qo Suruies] painbal e paaaiyoe

dABY Sjuapnls Auew Moy Je.l} 03 SI0JONIISUI MO[[e 03 S8SIN0J aul[uo ul saydeo.dde paseq-ALousjadwod sAojdws Aystaaiun ay3 Ing ‘oN
'SOUI02IN0 A9

9y} pue pasn ss320.1d 3] Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1A0.1d asea|d ‘saf J] juonepuswiuIoddr sy} payusdwad[durl A}sI9A1UN/983[[0D 9Y) SEH

*£11s19A1UN/983[[02 INOA JO sniels uonejuawadwl ay3 AIM SUSI[e Jeyl U0NIS )

jo1dwod asea[d -103lqns e Juidpnis puads sjuspnis Swil} Jo JuUNOWe Y3 Y3no.ay3 Jo peajsul sapuajoduwiod pajesisuowap Uo paseq ssanons
juapnis aanseaw Jeyy sweldoad Surpuedxa 1o Surdo[aAap J9pISU0D P[NOYS SINISIAAIUN PUE S9F3[[0) U0EINPI paseq-Aouajadwo) nz

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



VA4

oded| gt Ausianun azeas olyo syl

TI00A50[01oJSUe3 Ul paul[3no a.Je Jey) Syustaa.de
J9jSue.I} pue Uone[ndn.Ie 9PIMaIE]}S 9} Jouoy oM ‘Iayiey ‘sasnduwed pajeso[-0d oy} Yam surerdo.ad 10 S3S.In0d a.1eys 30U S90p el o1y
ZSONISIAIUN pue SAFI[[0I I9YI0 YM paJeys Suraq APua.Lind a.ae sureado.ad/sasinod jeyp :Surreys weado.ad pue 3s.Ino)
‘Ayoeded Juadaad g9 pagdelaae Jusaw[oud ‘Sndured pajed0[-0d a3 J& 9S.IN0J Pajedo[-0d Jusfealnba

OU pey 18y} S3SIN0d 799‘Z a3 10, 19wl sem Aoeded Juswi[jo1us Jo Jusdiad g/ Jo adelaae ue ‘989[[02 [EITUYID) PAILIO[-0I Y3 e PaI3JJO
$9s.1n02 Jua[eAlnba pey jey) sasnduwed [euoidal Inoj ay3 Je Palajjo SasInod L9 Yl JO ‘PUBWAP Y3 pajeisuowap sey Apnis A}sIaAlun y

'SyuUapNIs Jo

Spaau a1} }99W A3} 21nSud 03 (31emaN ‘Plysuey ‘uUoLie|y ‘ewr]) sasndwed [euoida. 1noj syt 3e s3ULI9JJ0 Saren[ead A[[enupuod ajeis oryo
*Mo[3q djedrpul dsed[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.LINII0 saSueYd [erjuUeISqNS ou pue 9 A4 ul payudwdjduir A[[nJ Sem UOIIEPUIWWIOIAI SIYI J]
3[euonie. 3y} aprao.ad

ased[d ‘os op 03 uejd 10U S90p pue UONEPUIWWO0IA.I SIY) pajudwd[duwr Jou sey AJISI9A1UN/3331[02 3y J] ;ued uoneyuswadjduur
Y3 S11eyMm ‘saf J] ;uawadjdur 03 uefd e 319y} ST ‘UOIEPUIWW0IJ.I ST} pajusdwdjduir Jou sey A}s.1aA1un/a831[02 a3 J|

‘uoneuLIojul pajepdn 10j MO[aq 33§ "SIX
*SaWI0DINO0 A3
91 pue pasn ss330.1d 3] Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk dpIro.ad asea|d ‘saf J] ;uonepuawuiodd.r sy} payuadwadjduar A)s.19A1UN/983[[0D 9Y) SEH

310daa InoA apiaoad 03 paau ou SI aJ1aY], ‘A1sIaATun/aga[[0d Inok Jo sniels uoneyuawa[dur
a3 Y1Mm suSI[e 1By} UOTII3S dY) 91eIIpUl ased[d "eaJe d1yded3doas InoL ur sansIaAIUN pue sa8a[[0d 18130 Ik pajedrdnp sweidoad
9jepIjosuod pue swe.go.ad pue $9s.Inod pPa[[0.1ud-MO[ SSAIPPE PUB MIIAS.I P[NOYS SINISISAIUN Pue saga[[0) :swe.rdo.d aanedijdng g

uoneneaj weaso.ad pue 3s.ano) | g UOEPUIWW0IIY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



cly

98ed]|og

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

'sasuadxa 4o} J934enb yoes poyiaw uollel|iouodal

9JeYS-1S02 B UO puk UuoISualIxa Aq 1502 10341p Aq auop SI SadIAIaS auoyda|al jo Sulieys 150D
‘uolie|nd|ed Jo poyiaw (314) uajeAinba awiy ||} B UO BUOP S| JJIUOI 40} Sulieys 1S0) ‘siapiroad
92IAJIDS [BUJIXD UY3IM 10BJIUO0D B YSnoayl padinosino si 3d1A1as doys 118 pue a1031syooq ay] "Jayenb
yoea poylsaw UO|3el|12u0I3J 4eys-1S0d e uo sa21A43s Sunpulud pue uiAdod paseys 404 Sulieys 3s0)
‘uolle|ndjed Jo poyiaw (314) usjeAInba awil [N} B UO SUOP S| }9BJIIUOI 40} Sulieys 150D

'SJ9PIA0Id DIIAIDS |BUIDIXD YHM 10BJIUOD B YSN0Jyl padJnos1Ino SI 32IAISS SUIPUIA pue elI1a4ed ay |

(s@21n49s suoydajay pue ‘doys

1418 pue 2103153000 sndwed ‘SIVINIDS
Sunund pue SujAdod paJeys ‘sadInISS
Suipuan pue ela194e2 sapnjoul)
$921IMDS AdelIXny

000'6STS :Ausianiun o3 sSuines pajewi}s3y «

"uoize|nojed Jo poyiaw (314)
judleAlnba awiy [N} sndwied e uo auop aJe sasuadxa uollesado pue [uuostad ay3 o) Sulieys 1s0)

(syods
|eJNWEJIUI pUB ‘UOIIEBIID ‘SD113|YIe
3UdpPNIS ‘SINAIIIR JUIPNIS SIPN[DUI)

92140 SO1I9Y1Y pue SIIAIY JUSpNIS

000's8TS$  :Ausianiun o} s3uines pajewnnsy <

‘UOoIIN}ISUl Yoea 03 anbjun sU0I193]|02 1502 12341p

Ag auop aJe 531500 U0I393]|03 AJeaq| 404 BuldeysS 3S0) "UO|3e|NJ|ed JO poylaw (314) Jusjeainbas sawn
[In} sndwed e uo suop aJe Jusawdinba pue sjela1ew ‘|duuosiad Jo) s321AI3S Aleuqi| 104 Sulieys 150D

(se14eaq1) spN|dUI)
$921AJ9S Joddng Jjwapedy

00S‘TSSS :Alstaniun 0} sulnes pajewiysy «

“JoMenb yoea poyiaw UoI1el|12U0IDJ 3IBYS-1S0I B UO UOp S| Sal|1oe) sndwed Jo Sulinpayds

J0} Sulieys 3s0) ‘uolle|nd|ed Jo poylaw 1934 aienbs 931e3a433e ue uo auop sI 3uidasyspunoud

Joj Sulieys 1s0) "uolle|Nd|ed JO poylaw 1994 alenbs Sulp|ing e Uo SUOp SI S3JIAIDS |eIPOISND sndwed
‘5921495 JUSWUOJIAUD pue dueululew 3ulp|ing ‘diysiapes| saiu|ioey) [eaisAyd 4oy Sulieys 1s0)

‘Sol|Ioey

sndwed Jo Sulnpayds pue ‘|eipoisnd
sndwed ‘S921AI9S JUSWUOIIAUD pue
9oueuajulew 3ulp|ing ‘Suidasy spunoJd
‘diyssapes) sain|ioey |eaisAyd sapnout)
suollesadQ saiu|1oe4 |ealsAyd

90110e.ad 3S3q 10 II1AIIS padeys SIY) 0} pajreja.l ssuipuly JnoA [re3ap ur urejdxa asea|d

(239 O1wapeay
‘daAnensmuIwpy ) adnoeid
1S9 .10 JIIAIS padeys Jo adA ],

UOI[[IW GO'T$ :SAIIAIIS pa.Jeys UI0.]j SSUIAES ]S0D [B]0) pajewlsy
(ewr) aday[o) a1€1S sapoyy :snduwe) pajesroj-0)

ew ] :sndured 3jels oryo

‘SUOTIN}IISUI PaILIO]

-0D }IM S3D1AIAS pateys y3no.ay) SSUIABS Ul UOI[[IW G$ pajetauasd A[9A129[[0 dAey sasndwed YIemaN pue UOLIBJy ‘P[ASUBA ‘BWIT InQ

990 AI0SIAPY AdUSIdLy Y3 03 sSurpuyy J1oy

110daa 03 paambal uay) ate sasndured pajedo[-07) ‘SJUIPNIS 10 SIS0 NPT PUE SIITAISS ISYI0 pUE dTWapede aa0.1dwl 03 I9p.Jo Ul SIIIAISS
pateys pue saonoeld 159 MalAdl A[[enuue 0} SAIISISAIUN/S9FD[[00 Paredo[-00 S,01Y(Q Sa1Mbal TG6'SEEE UONIAS 9pO)) Pasiady o1yQ
sasndure) paje’o[-0) | 6 UONIEPUIWW0IIY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




€Ly

98ed]| Lt

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

008‘8SS :Alsianiun o0} s3uines pajewlsy «

‘Ajlyluow pajoeJ] S| pUB UOIINIISUI YIBd WU}

uoiiedidized JuUapnis Uo paseq sl SI1I3[Y3e 4o} Sulieys 150D "UOIINLIASUI PAIEIOJ-00 AU 10} %GT pue
AyISI9AIUN BY3 40} %G/ SI SHOdS |einwBJIUl PUB UOI1BaId3J puk Juawadedua uapnis 4o} Sulieys 1s0)

(sonsyze

pue ‘s340ds |eanweJlu] pue uoi}easdal
“Quawadedua Juapnis sapn|oul)
S1uaA3 sndwe) pue 347 uspnis

00T‘6STS *Asianlun 0} sBulnes pajewnsy <«
*UOoIINIISUl P1LIO0|-0 3Y] JOJ pue AlISIDAIUN Y3 S04 SISeq 0S/0S e uo Ajjesauasd si s931AI9S asuodsal
Aduadiswa pue 32jj0d pue ‘|Duuossad Juswadeuew diyeJl ‘uiwpe Ayajes olgnd Joy Sulieys 150D

(sesuodsaus Aduadiawa

pue 921j0d pue ‘quawaSeuew Jljje.}
‘uonesisiuiwpe A1ajes olignd sapnjout)
A1ajes olgnd pue Ajunoas sndwe)

058‘8¢TS :AsiaAiun 03 s3ulnes pajewysy «
'siseq 0G/06 ! uiwwessoud diysuiaiul Joj Sulieys
-3500 ‘sndwed pa3led0|-02 3y} 40} %Gy pue AJSIaAIUN YL 10} %GS SI S921AIIS Aleuqi| Jo4 Sulieys 350D

(Bulwwes3oud
diysusaiul pue Aseaqi| sapnjout)
$901AJ3S 1oddng ojwiapedy

006°€6L$ :Alsianiun o3 sSuines pajewiysy «
‘uolnniisul
Pa1e20|-02 Y2ea 404 1934 aJenbs paudisse uo paseq ejnw.oy e Aq Ajjessuald padeuew si Sulieys 3s0)

(98eudis sndwed

pue juawadeuew 3d3foid ‘93e159

|eaJ pue 3uiuue|d sndwed Quawadeuew
A843ud pue S21AI3S SBIMU|1IN ‘SIDIAIDS
A1ajeS pue yijeay |eIUSWUOIIAUD
‘S921AJDS |BIPOISNI ‘@dUBUDIUIEW
Suipjing ‘uidaayspunoJd sapnjoul)
salM|1oed |edisAyd

*33110e1d 353 10 3I1AI3S paIeys SIY) 0) paje[al sSuipuly 1noA [1e3ap ul urejdxa ases|d

(*230 O1rwapeay
‘dAnje.nsIUIwpy ) ddnse1d
1599 10 JIIAIAS paleys Jo adA],

uol[[IW $¥ T$ :SIIIAIIS pPaJeys UI0.dj SSUIAES }S0D [€]0) PIjewn}sy
(preysuely) adaqio) a1els [B1IUS) YlIoN :sndue) pajedof-o0)

preysuepy :sndured ajeis oryQ

‘Adusiye

J1Wou03 pue ‘Adussedsuedy |euoljesado ‘Ayjenb ojwapede Sujusiysiay jo |eod syl yum sqissod
J9A3J3YM Jaulied pue sjuswaaJide uoljeloge||od [ewJ0o) SABY UOIINHISUI PA1BIOJ-0d pue ANSIDAIUN
9yl °s924nosaJ |auuosiad pue ‘|eaisAyd ‘|easij 91e3s JO 9SN 9AI119349 3y} s@3o0woid pue ‘sadIAISS JO
uoizedljdnp Asessadauun Supnpad ‘uoizeonpa juapnis Joj shkemyied a|di3nw 10} SMO||e UoileI0ge||0d
SIYL "SuOIINISUI Y30g JO SIUSPNIS Y3 }H}2uUaq 01 sweldoid 193UU0d pue $32IN0SdJ dJBYS

UOIIN3ISUl PA1EIOJ-02 3y} pue A}ISIaAIUN Y3 ‘pJodde [eninw Ag pue Adjjod 231e3s Yy3im 9d2Ueplodde u|

‘sndwed pa1edso|-09 3yl Y1M S3IIAISS
Sunieys 03 ssa204d pue yoeouddy

008‘SST$ :Ausianiun o3 sBulnes pajewlsy «

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



2%

98ed]| 8t

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

000°9ZT$ :Aussaniun o1 sBuines pajewnnsy «
"uol1e|nded Jo poyidw (314) usjeAINba awiy ||} JUBPNIS/}eIS/Alndey
pue (4Sy) @8e1004 auenbs ajgeusisse ue UO BUOP SI SIIIAIS 953U} 104 Sulieys 350D

(se14eaq1 sapn|dUl)
$921AJS 1oddng Jjwapedy

uoljjiw TS :AlsiaAiun 03 s3uines pajewnys3 «
‘uolle|ndjed 4o poylaw (314) wajeAinba awi ||y 1uapnis/ieis/Aynaey
pue (4Sy) 98e100) asenbs sjgeusisse ue uo auop S| SIIIAISS 3S3Y3 404 Sulieys 150D

(8eusis

sndwed pue juswadeuew dljed)

pue quswsa3euew 333[oid ‘91e3S9 |EAM
pue Sujuue|d sndwed ‘sadIAISS |BIPOISND
‘@oueualuiew 3ulp|ing ‘Suidaady spunoJd
‘diyssapes) sain|ioey |eaisAyd sapnjout)
suolesadQ sal|1oe |ealsAyd

*92130ea1d 353( 10 3D1AI3S PaIeys SIY) 0) paje[al surpury 1noA [re3ap ul ure[dxa ases|d

("230 S1wapeay
‘QAnenNSIUIWpY :H[) 901deId
1S9 .10 JIIAIS pateys Jo adA ],

UOI[[IW 6Z'T$ :SAIIAIIS pa.Jeys UI0.]j SSUIAES ]S0D [B]0) pajew}sy
agdaq[0) [ed1uyd9 ], uoLiely :sndure) pajes’o[-o)

uoLey :sndured ajels oryQ

‘Aousiiyye

21Wou023 pue ‘Aduasedsuedy [euoresado ‘Ajjenb ojwapede Sulusysiay o |eo3 ayy yum a|qissod
JaA3Jaym Jaunied pue sjuswaa.Se UOIIBIOMe||0d [BW.O0) SARY UOIINIISUl P1BI0|-00 pue A}ISISAIUN
9yl °S324n0saJ |[auuosiad pue ‘|eaisAyd ‘|easi) 91e31S 4O SN A1 Y3 SaI0Wo0.d pue ‘SaIIAIIS JO
uonesljdnp Asessadauun Sudnpad ‘uoileaNpa JU3PNIS 4o shemyied a|di3NW 10} SMO||E UOIIEI0qE||0D
SIYL "SUOIIN}ISUI Y10g 4O SIUIPNIS Y3 343U 03 swesSoud 103UU0d pue $33UN0S3J dJeYS

UOIIN}ISU| Pa1BI0|-00 3y} pue A}SIaAIUN Y3 ‘p4odde [eninw Ag pue Adljod 31e3s Yim S0UepJodde uj

‘sndwed pa1edso|-09 3yl Y1M SIIIAIDS
Sulieys 03 ssa204d pue yoeouddy

00Z‘20z$ :Aisianiun 03 sSuines pajewnysy <

*AlISIaAIUN BY3 03 SISeq 3502 B UO papiAcJd pue uoiIN}Isul pPaledo|-0d ayl Aq

pied pue padeuew aJe s321A49s Sunuiid pue SuiAdod padeys 404 350D "sjuswaA0IdW] paJeYS HDUDQ
03 pun4 Juawanoidw] sndwe) e 03 Pa3IaJIpP SIOLIIUO0I WU} SPaadosd aAeY S3IIAIDS SUuIpuaA pue
B149134) 'S1UeJ3 puk S99} J3SN WoJy palesauad sanuanad Aq parioddns si J91uad 34eIp|IYD 404 150D

(doys 118 pue

2401500 sndwed pue ‘sao1A4as Sunuld

pue SuiAdod paseys ‘S921AISS Sulpuan
pue e113134E2 ‘491U 3JBIP|IYD SApN|dul)
$921IMIBS AdelIXny

002°Z6$ -AusiaAiun 0} sSulnes pajewnsy <«

‘uonniisul

a1199ds ay3 Aq pied ale sjuUaAl/S311IAI0E J14129dS UOIIN1IISUL J0) 150D {[duu0SIad pue SJUSA3/S3INAIIE
paJeys |eninw uo 05/0s H(ds st ,Aduade,, Sunexiew paieys Joj Sulieys 3s0) ‘[suuosiad umo

s11 Joj sAed uolinyisul Yyoes ‘uoliniisul o1412ads ayl Aq pred aue SJuaAd/Sal1AIIDE J1J199dS-uoiinIsul
40} 1502 {S1UBAD/SBINIAINOE paJeys Aj|eninw UO paJeys Sl JUSWIDUBAPE JO 321440 JO4 Sulieys 150D

(,Aouase, Suneyew paseys
pue JUBWDUBAPY JO 321440 SapNn|dul)
S92IAJS SAIIBIISIUIWPY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



Sly

98ed| 6L

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

00t'vETS :Ausianiun 01 sBuines pajewnnsy «
‘uolle|ndjed Jo poyaw (314) ajeAinba awil ||} B UO BUOP S| SAIIAIBS 3SAY3 Y30 104 Sulieys 3s0)

(s@ao1n40s
AJeuql| pue sa21AJ3S J93.4ED SapN|dul)
$921AJS Joddng Jjwapedy

0Lb‘T$ :AusIaAIUN 0] sBulnes pajewnsy «
"siseq 0G/0S B UO paJeys S| S9JIAI9S 90UIJU0D 10} Sulieys 150D

(s@21A48s 92UB48JU0D SBPN|IUI)

921MJ3S 21|qnd

*a23110e1d 359 10 321AI3S paleys S} 0) paje[al sSurpury 1noA [1e3ap ul urejdxa ases|d

(233 S1wapeoy
‘dAnensiuIupy :JJ) asnde.ad
1594 .10 IIIAIIS pa.Jeys Jo adA ],
uol[[IW 8Z'T$ :SIIIAIIS PAJeys W01 SSUIAES }1S0D [B]0) PIjewnIsy
agda[[07 [eo1UYd9 [, o1y [e1ua) :sndure) pajes’of-0)

JyaemaN :sndured ajels orgyo

‘Adusiye

J1wou0d3 pue ‘Aduasedsuedy euorresado ‘Ayjenb sjwapeose Sujuaiysiay jo |eod ayl yum qissod
JaA3Jaym Jaulied pue sjuawaaide uolleloqe||0d [ew.o) dARY UOIIN1IISUI P1eI0|-03 pue ALSISAIUN
9T9YL 'S924n0SaJ [duuosiad pue ‘|edisAyd ‘|easiy 91e1s Jo ash dAI1034YD ay3 saj0woud pue ‘SaIAISS JO
uoned|dnp Asessasauun Supnpad ‘uoileanpa Juapnis 404 shemyied a|di3jnw 404 SMO||e UOIleIOqe||0
SIYL ‘suolIniisul yioq JO Siuapnis ayl 14auaq 01 swes3oad 199UU0d pue $32IN0SdJ d4eys

uoIINISUl PA1eI0|-02 31 pue AJISIaAIUN Y3 ‘paodde [eninw Ag pue Adljod 91e1s yum 9oueplodde u|

‘sndwed paledo]-0d 3yl YHM S3DINIIS
Buiieys 03 ssa204d pue yoeouddy

000°9$ :AlsiaAun 01 sSulnes pajewnsy <«
‘uolle|ndjed Jo poyiaw (314) wus|eAinba awil [Ny Juspnis/ie1s/A1noey
pue (4Sy) 98e100) asenbs ajgeusdisse ue uo dUOp S| SAIIAIDS 3S3Y3 404 Sulieys 150D

(10ddns || |e4auad pue ‘Aundas pue
SJI9AIDS ‘WLW0I3|D] pUE }J0M SapNh|dul)
$921A43S ASojouyda |

000°£8$ :Ausianiun o3 s3uines pajewnsy <«
‘uoie|nded Jo poyiaw (314) usjeainbs swi ||y 1usapnis/ieis/Aynaey
pue (4Sy) @8e1004 a4enbs sjgeusisse ue Uo SUOP S| SIIIAISS 53Y1 404 Suleys 150D

(s921n43s [1EW pue

Suinieoau pue ‘984eyd 921AI3S ‘puejwiiey
sndwed ‘doys 1413 pue 24031s)00q
sndwed ‘s321AJ3s SulpusaA sapn|aul)
$921IMIDS AdelIXny

000°p$ *Ausianiun 0} s3uines pajewnsy «
‘uolle|najed Jo poyiaw (31 4) wus|eAinba awil [Ny Jusapnis/ie1s/Alnoey
pue (4Sy) 98e100) asenbs ajgeusisse ue uo auop S| SAIIAIBS 3S3Y3 404 Sulieys 150D

(son3jyre

pue sjiods pue ‘suods [eanwedjul pue
‘uo11ealdal ‘SaIUAIIOR JUIPNIS SIPN|IUI)
921440 SIU3AT sndwe) pue 347 Juapnis

000°T9$ :AusiaAIuN 0} sBulnes pajewnsy <«
‘uolle|najed Jo poyiaw (31 4) usjeAlinba awil [Ny Jusapnis/ie1s/A1noey
pue (4Sy) 98e100) asenbs s|geusisse ue uo aUOp S| SIS 3S3Y3 404 Sulieys 150D

(S8uipueisiapun Jo wnpueiowaw e eiA
uonesisiujwpe Alajes a1gnd sapnjaul)
A1ajes oljgnd pue Ajunoas sndwe)

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




VA4

a8ed]og

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

‘Adusiye

J1Wwou0d9 pue ‘Aduasedsuedy [euorjesado ‘Ayjenb djwapeose Sujusiysiay Jo |eod ayl yum jqissod
JaA3JayMm Jaulied pue sjuawaaide uolleloqe||0d [ew.o) dABY UOIIN1IISUI P1eI0|-00 pue ALISIaAIUN
9yl 'S924nosadJ |puuossad pue ‘|eaisAyd ‘|easiy 91e3s JO 3Sn SAI109449 9Y) s10wold pue ‘SaIAISS JO
uoizedldnp Asessaasuun Suipnpad ‘uoizednps uapnis Joj shkemyied 3jdiynw 104 SMO||e uojleloqe||0d
SIYL 'SuolIn}IISul Y1og 4O SIUspnis ay3 11yauaq o1 sweaSoad 199Uu0d pue s324n0saJ dJeys

uol3N1iIsul Pa1edo|-02 3yl pue AlIsiaAlun ayl ‘pJodde [eninw Ag pue Adljod a1e1s Yyum aoueplodde uj

‘sndwed pa1edo|-0d 3yl M S3DIAIDS
8uiieys o3 ssad0.4d pue yoeouddy

005‘292$ :Asianiun 03 sSuines pajewnnsy  «
“uol3e|na|ed Jo poylaw (314) JUdeAINbS SwWi} ||y B UO BUOP S| ulieys 350D

(quawdinba |e11ded sapnoul)
peayJanQ [edausn

£90'559$ :Ausianiun 01 s3uines pajewnsy <
"uol3e|NdIed JO PoyIdW (314) JudjeAINbS SwWI [N} B UO BUOP S| SAVIAIDS 3SAY} 4O ||e 40} Sulleys 3s0D

(senjnn pue ‘uoneJisiuiwpe Alajes
a11gnd ‘|eipoisnd ‘@aueualuiew Sulp|ing
‘spunoJd ‘suonesado Ajjoe) sapnjoul)
suoljesadQ saii|1oe4 |eaisAyd

8TE'LSTS Ausianiun 03 s3uines pajewnsy <

‘uolle|ndjed Jo poylaw (314) usjeAInba awil ||n4 B UO SUOP SI SIIIAIDS

auoyda|al puk ‘Suoi1elUNWWO0I3|3] ‘491Udd SIIIAIIS ‘99111WWO0I Ju3Wdo|aAIP J4e1S ‘suolie|al
a1|gnd pue SunayJew ‘sad1A19s Aojouydal ‘Jesing ‘Suiseyasnd ‘s924nosas uewny Joj Sulieys 150D
‘uol1e|NJjed Jo poylaw 0G/0G e U0 SUOP S| J91UDI SWOI|IM pue ‘sye Sulwiopiad

‘Bununodoe ‘921440 ddueUly pUe SSAUISNQ ‘QUSWAO[IASP JO 31O ‘D140 DAIINIBXS Jo) Sulieys 150D

(s@a1n48s Duoydalal

pue ‘suoeduNWWo3|3} ‘493Ul
S3IIAIDS ‘491U SWOI|IM ‘D91IWWOD
jJuswdo|anap J4e3s ‘sye Sujwaoiad
‘suoniejas o1ignd pue SunayJew
‘s921A19s ASojouydal ‘Suinunodde ‘Jesunq
‘uiseyound ‘s24n0saJ uewny ‘921440
9JukUly pue ssaulsng ‘Quswdolansp

JO 921JJ0 ‘9214J0 9AIINIBXD S9PN|IUl)
Joddns jeuoliniisul

66L'7L$ ‘Aussanun o) sBuines pajewnsy
"uolle|nd|ed Jo PoyIaW JUNOIPEIY B UO SUOP S| SIVIAISS 3SaY) Joj Sulieys 350D

(sa21n43s Ayijigesip

pue ‘131ua2 8u3$a] ‘S$3I2NS 1UBPNIS
JOJ 191U ‘S||I%S SS9IINS JUIPNIS
‘sileyje |eanyno-13nw pue ‘syods
|eanwieJiul ‘syusna/sqnid/suoneziuesio
1UdpN3S ‘uoljedisiuiwpe

9}l JUBpN1S ‘pie |eldueuly
‘Juswadeuew JUBW||OJUD SIPN|IUL)
$921AJSS 14oddng Juapnis

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




Lly

oded]|1g Ausianun azeas olyo syl

"A[[ENUUE SJUSPNIS JO SPUBSNOY] 01 UO[IEINDA [BIDURUY SaPIA0.Id [BIDURUL]

Aean pue 1911e0S ‘suonejuasald dnous pue uoneINpa SUIUO ‘SUOISSAS SUIYIL0I Y3Noay ], "Soydeod pagpafj-[[nj Surmodaq 03 1orid 1931samwas
drwapede a3 Surnp weado.ad Juswdo[aaaq diysiapea] ay3 y3no.ay) paurel} a.de Saydeod 133 ‘SaLlas uoneonps durmnunuod 3uipusne

pue ‘suonjejuasald dnous Suiaig ‘suoissas auo-uo-auo uipes| 10j a[qisuodsal syuapnis Jeak-y1.Inoj pue -p.aiy3 ‘~puodas a.le saydeod 1994

‘'santunyroddo juswdo[aaap [euoissajoad pue ‘Yoaeasalt uonednpa [erueuly ‘suopeiussald dnoad adre[ ‘suoissas Suiyoeod
9U0-U0-3uo0 Sulpnoul ‘SWNIpaw Jo £}9LIeA B Y3No.ay3 SSau[[am [eloueulj d21sI[oy pue Aoe1al| [eloueuy sajowo.ad [eloueul Aeln pue 19[1eds

"(daLs)
we130.14 9oualiadxy [EUO[BULIOJSUEL ], 1E2A-PU0I3S 9} Ul PIA[OAU] SIUSPNIS 10J alepuell & jo 1ied se Suipn[oul ‘suoissas yoea.ino

pue Sulyoeod [enplalpul 0QS‘/ Uey) alow paplaoid Aeln pue }a[1edS “TeaA [00YDs Ise] ‘siauiled ajeroduod yym sdiysuone[al ysnoayy
A1981e] payroddns ‘€T-ZT0Z UI palead Sem 1 90UIS A[[eaniewelp umodsd sey weadoad sy, 's1aa.led 933[[02 11931 IN0YSNoIy) Syuapnis
03 S9JIAIIS SSAU[[oM [eIDUBULY JO a3INS dAISUayaIdwod e sapiaoad yeyy yoeoadde paseq-uorreonpa 19ad e si [eroueul Aeln pue 19[1eds
*Mo[aq 3jedipul ased[d ‘LT A4 Ul Pa.1anddo sagueld [el}ULIS(NS OU pue 9 A4 ul pajusawa[duwi A[[nj Sem UOIePUIW W 0D SIY] J]

‘a[euonel ay} apraoad
aseard ‘os op 03 uefd jJou S30p pue UCHIEPUIWUI0IAI ST} pajudwajduil Jou sey A}s1aarun/a83[[0d ayy J| ;uefd uonejuswajdurr
3y s11eym ‘saf J] ;uswajduai 0} uefd e 319Y) SI ‘UOIIEPUIWUI0II SIY} paruswajduil Jou sey AJISIdATUN/IFI[[0d 3y JI

"MO[9( 995 "SI L
'SOUI02IN0 A9
9Y) pue pasn ss320.1d 33 Jo MIIAIIA0 Uk 9p1a0.1d dasea]d ‘saf J] ;uonepuawiuIoddl s1y) pajyuaduwadjdurl A}sI9A1UNn/983[[02 9y SEH

*£11s19A1UN /933[[0 INOA JO sniels uoneuawa[dwl ay3 AIm sugife 3eyd uondas ayl a1v[dwod
aseald ‘uoneodnpa sjuapnis jo 1red plepuels e AdeIal| [BIOUBUY ¥y BW PINOYS S9NISIdAIUN PUk S839[[0D S,01Y( :SUISIAPE [ePURUL] VOT

suL10J9Yy £01[0d | 0T UonEPUIWL0IIY

SuLIOJ9Y AJ1[0{d :[I] UOTIIDS

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



8Ly

oded]|ee Ausianun azeas olyo syl

‘sjo03 pue sdde A3ojouyoal Suruies| jJo 39S pue pleoqhay uad ajddy ‘014 pedl Ue apn[oul [[Im d3InS SIY [, "SuluIes] pajetdajul
110ddns 03 931ns A3ojouyda) SUIULIEa] B 9AI9D3. [[IM — sasnduied [euoIZa. a) 3 pue snquinjo) ur — g1z [[eJ Ul SJUIpNIS 1eak-1s.1yj
Surwoout [y -eanentul Aysiaaruq) diysdey [e3131q ay3 jo 1led £a3] € punj 03 SIDUSIDYJS SANBIISIUTWPE 3SN [[IM 93€IS OIY( ‘UOBIPPE U]

'sndwed snquin{o) ay3 uo Jeak e uolf[iul TT$ Uey) 210w 3509 0} pajdadxa

s1 ‘pre Y13 19j0 pue syuern AunitoddQ aga[[o) o1y ‘Syuely [[9d 19k surewat Jey) ded Aue aso[d 03 pre [euonnInsul ap1aoad [[Im YyoIym
‘weadoad s1y], "sasj A10jepuEW pUuE UOKRIN] JO 3S0D [[NJ Y3 SI9A02 Jey) adexded pie Ue 9A192a1 SUeID) [[9d 10J AJ1[enb oym syuapnis ajels
-Ul [[€ JBY3 21NSud [[Im A}SIaAIUN a3 903[0.1d Juswadeuey A31ouy aalsuaya.ldwio) ay3 Wo.j paysi[qelss aq 03 JUSWMOPUS Ue SUIZI[i3[)
"SyueIY) [[9d [e19pa) 10§ AJifenb oym syuapnis yuapisal oryQ 31oddns 03 saaneniul Ayiqep.lojje Mau e youney [[Im A}SIaATUN 93 ‘GT A 104

'SIB3A IN0j 10J USZ0.1J UTRWSI JeY) pleoq pue Woo. ‘Sad)

Al0yepueul ‘UORIN} 91€IS-UI 10J S9IEI SIS 911G OIY( ‘SIUSPNIS JeaA 1S.11J MU JO SSe[d Surodu] Yoes YA "U0[eINPa 1esak-1noj e .10j S1S0D
233[[00 In0oqe A3u1e1Ia0 pue ALIB[D S10W IM SJuapnis urwodur apiaoad 03 9ajuetens) uonn[, 91eis oryQ ayl paysijqeiss Aystaaiun ay ],
*AJ1Iuapi asea[d ;uoneinpa Ayjenb pue sjqep.rojye

UE 0} SS9IJ. dARY SJUIPN]S .INSUD 0} LT A Ul payudwd[durt A)s19A1un/983[[0d JnoA sad1dead AOUanIjJd [eUONIPPE 3.19Y) Iy
S9J1pPeId [eUonIppyY

‘durpuny [eatded aje3s pue syIs ajearid se yons ‘uonini jo
9pISINO $32.1n0s urpunj [e3ided a8eaaAs] A[9A13091J0 03 A)ISI9AIUN ) MO[[E S309(0.1d d1wdspede Uo S3UIALS 3500 pue syuswaAoIdwl AoUSIdIIH

‘[[eH JUNOJA JO UOI}EAOUSI UOI[[IW $T$ 9Y3 pue ‘S[[ey A3[X( pUue aua.Iawo  JO UOBAOUS.I UOI[[IW 9% 3y} ‘Surpying (DF4GD)
Ansmuay) pue SuresurSuy Je[ndajowolg pue [ed1WaY) UOI[[IW 0ZT$ 9Y3 apnoul AemIspun a1e 10 pajo[duiod usaq asey ey syoafoad
OIWIPEIY "ULI0J.1 UOIIONIISUOD WO Pa13jauaq aaey Jeyy s1oafoad ur uor[iq §'z¢ ueys aiouwr paza[duwiod sey AISIoAIUN Y] ‘ZTOZ dIUIS

‘s1ead oAy 3sed a3 1940 s3193(0ad pajajduiod jo

SWIN[OA 93 UI 9Sea.oul ue aydsap ‘Peis yuswadeuew 309(01d Jomaj £T Sey mou A1SI2A1un 9y} ‘Ojduwexa 10, "AISAI[9p paul[Wea.1)s pue S3sod
JuswegeurW-U0[ONIISU0D paonpal ul Sunnsal ‘A[puaidyje a1ow syoafoxd ad.ae] p[ing 03 A}ISISATUN Y3 PIMO][e Sey] W.I0ja.1 U0[ONIISU0)
"ULI0J3.I SIY) Sunjuawajduur wo.ay

SJU3PN]S 03 SHJIUI( PUE ‘PIUIES SIIIUIIIYJD ‘SOUI0IINO0 Y} AQLIISIP 3sea[d ‘ZT(0Z Ul UOIIe[SISI] ULIOJIY UOIIDNIISUO) Y} YIUM

ULIOJ9Y uoninisuo)

JANsIaAun /383102 9y e sacnoead Afiqep.aojje pue SIUIYJI NqIyul ‘Aue JI ‘sypo[qpeo. £1]j0d .10 S3[d€ISqO dANIE[SIF] Iy M
"SUOIEPUIUIWIOIL 2SI} Ul PAUOISIAUS SIIDUSIDNJD 33 JIqIYUI By} 93nIeIs
Jo a[nu ‘Ao170d U1 sa[d€ISqO AUE SA0WAT 0} 23S P[NOYS .IN3E[SIS[ 93e1S 10 /pue UonedInpy Jaysiy jo yusaundeda( a1eis 9y, :sapeisqQ 90T

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



6.y

oded]|ee Ausianun azeas olyo syl

:SIe[[op [en)oe
ur A)1s19A1un /333102 9y} 03 ‘s3uiAes [enuue paldadxa Jo ‘suiaes 3s0d £ A ‘Oiqedidde J1 ‘aanided 0] mo[aq 1.1eyd 3y} asn Ised|d

‘[re1op Joyaing apiaoad o3 piayy uoneue[dxs ay) asn asea[d ‘syuswasoIduwl
weadoad Juspnis pue ‘s[00) £1[Iqep.lojje pue ADUSIDJD Ul JUSWISIAUI ‘SIIIAISS JUIPNIS ‘PIe [BIDUEBUL JUIPNIS ‘DOUBPUIIIE JO 3S0D UL
suononpal :sar10dajred 3uimor[oj ays ut A[feayy1oads ‘pasojdap a1em s3uiaes 3500 moy 03 Se [1e1ap a.lowl ap1aodd asead 9Ieyd puodas ay} 10,

(‘eoueplioae 3500 apndul LON S0P SIY} 930U 3SEI[d) 9210, Sk, 93 WI0.1J SUOIIEPUSWIUI0ID.]
93 JO yoea 10j (S3ulAes 1500 [enuue pajdadxa 10) £T(0Z Jedk [edS] 10J Suapnis 10/ pue A}ISISAIUN 10 939[[0 93 01 SSUIABS 150D
[enioe Aue ‘a[qearidde ji ‘op1ao.ad aseasyd “aeyod 3s11j ay3 10, ‘uoneWLIOUI SIY} J10da.l 03 A}1SIaAIUN/983[[0D YdoBa MO[[E S1IBYD SUIMO[[0] YL,

SjuUapnls 03 syyauay Jqisue ], 3 SSUIAES JO JudwAo[jdapay ‘sSulAes 1S0) :A] UOIIIS

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



08¥y

oded|ve Ajis1aniun 33e1s o1yo syl
‘Ssyjouaq uLial-3uof apraoad [[Im Jeyd SyuswMmopua ul pade[d aq [[Im Spunj A319ud :s3u1aeS 1507
911 JO 1SOJA ‘syudwAed SWN-aUO PUE SUONINGLASIP [eNUUE Y10q SIPN[IUI SIY,], :910N) [enuuy pe1od nmxm 2101
uoltq[iq Z'1$
VN soonoead Aouamyje [euonippy
Sjuapms 01 A303J1p SSulAeS - YN :guisiape [eroueul (YO T
VN ULI0J9Y UONINIISUO)
uol[Iu §§ sasndwed pajedo[-0d Je SAVIAIAS paTeys 6
VN swetdoad
pUE S3S.IN0J JUaW[[0JU3-MO] pue aanedidn( :8
VN uoneanpa paseq-Aouaradwo) :ny,

sjuapns 03 A[32alIp sSulaeS - YN

syuswaaide Aemuyied 4/

uor(iut ¥°z$

sweadoad Jawwing :q/

syuapnis 03 Aoallp sguiaes - yN

3uisiape uaaLlp-eleq 0L

VN

$90.13ap 10j S}PaId dZIpIepuels :)/

sjuapnis 03 APJaldip ssulaes — YN

9ANULad U] uonyenpely) g/

sjuapnis 03 Apoadip sguiaes - yN

udredwe) uoneonpy :yz

uolqru 1§

SPead0.d JusliadgtUel AS.I9Ud 9AISUIYa.1AdW0D I0) § 99S) YN

soonoead Adualdyje J00qIXal pue N9 - y9

sy09(0ad A31auq

VN uonezinn aseds ;g
uorrut 7§ SI9jud) BIR( 1S
VN S1S00 a.Jed-3[edy :d§

VN 21nPNIs [euoneziuesiQ g

VN aanseaw £31Anonpo.d :gs

VN onsougerp 1s0) S
uoru 6°01$ sdiys.aosuods pue sdiystaurred AUy D
uoriu 0g$ MIIAdY suoneladQ :g¥

‘8T A Ul pazijeuy pue /A, ul paaoidde sem diysiaulled :930N
(uonnquisip Sunjred fenuue snid ‘spssdoad A81aus Juoaydn) uol[[iq 60'T$

MBIIASY 19SSV VH

VN

S1OeJJU0Id 9ANBIOQE.[[0) &

UoI[Iu T'8S$

s3uiaes ou JI YN INd
*AJ109ds asea|d "Juapnjs 10/pue uonNIISul 3y} 03} ‘sguiaes
1S0D [enuue Paldadxa Jo ‘sGuiaes 1500 £T A4 [en1de 3] apiaoad ‘oiqesrjdde j1

sjoeajuo) mSQEmU V¢

UOIEPUIWW0IY

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



18y

oded]|qge Ausianun azeas olyo syl

UoI[[IW 6°LZ$ sSuiaes paje[ndfed jo [e10L

110ddns Jaypo pue suonisod Aynoey mau 31oddns
031 8T A UI PAYSI[qe1Sd 3 0} SJUSWMOPUS MU IpN[IUI JOU S0P SIY[,
Sururea] pue 3uryoea ], 10§ aINIISU] AJISISATU[
110ddns 03 JuaWMOpUL FH[N WO paInqLisip 000‘8vv$ e

000'8%¥$ uiyoea) pue £}[noej Ul SIUSUISIAU]

*99.13ap 03 Wil 83 paads ued sasInod 9say], ‘Sulnpayds
ur £1[1qIXa[j [eUOHPPE YHM syuapnis Suiplaodd ‘padojaaap uaaq asey | d[qe[leAe 30U [e10],
$95.INn0D uoneINpa [elauas aurpuo Jendod QT UBYY 2.10W ‘4T (Z OUIS

sweadoad Juspms anfea
-y31y/puewap-ys31y o3 syuswasordu]

'sao11d [1e39.1 Uo paseq

uol[[Iw 0 T$ UeY) 2.10W YLIoM sains AFo[ouydal Surutes] pedl 9AI92a.
[1im snduwred snquinjo?) ay3 Uo S}uUapnIs Jeak 1siyy Mau ‘6T A4 ul Sun.tels S[qE[1A® 10U [E10] Aouayje pue A1jiqeplojje
0} paje[a. S[00} Ul SJUSUISIAU]

'suonndo [eUORIEINPS SUI[UO pUE SH00qIX] [EISIP 03 SS82Jk Fulpn[dul
‘SOAIIBIIIUI PASNI0J-3usapnis Jo A1aLieA e ul paisaaul sdulaes AOUSDIH

"Sjuapn3s I10j SHyaueq o[qIsuel aaey Jeys sdiysuiaul

Se yons sad1AIas Juswdo[aaap-19a.1ed pue ‘Surureny diysiapes| 9au3ap
‘BuISIApE d1WAPEIE USALIP-BIEDP 9PN[OUI JUSUIISIAUL JO SBAIR I9YI0 | d[qe[leAe jouU [e30], | 03 sw pue uonajduwod 03 predal aim
Surpesunod Aprenoned ‘S901A19S SS920NS JUIPMIS

[epuUeUY AeID pue }18]1eds 110ddns 01 B[0)-820) WOIJ 000‘00TS

‘papnpourjou os[e
aJe SaATIB[IUI ple [eIDUBUY J9YIQ ‘S99) PUE UONIN] SI2A0D e} PIe dAeY
sjuapmys 9[qI31[a-[[2d O1YQ [[E 2INSUS 0] 6T A Ul SANENIUL AI[IqEpIOjye
Mau e 10 8T A ur sdiysaejoyos Aytunyiodd( juern-pue] pue

sjueln L[IqeploJy Suapisad jo uoisuedxs syl apnjoul Jou op asay], uoru 6°€2$
sdiys.e[oyas d1a[yIe-uou FHIN Ul paInqrasip 000°0¥$ o
sdrys.aejoyss Juawmopus Supred ul paInqgLisip uol[Iw 6'€$ o
sjuel1) AIIqepIojJy SAUSPISald LTA4 Ul UOI[[IW 0Z$ o

pIe [eoUBUY JUSPMIS

(ASo10Uy29] SE YINS — S3S0D

s109(oad a8ueyoxy Surules] s[qep.Ioyy Ul UOI[[IW [§ e S pa3e[aa .10 ‘S[eLIdleW puk Sj0o0q ‘pleoq
JUNOJSIP UOHIN] ISWIWNS WO.1J SSUIABS UL UOI[[IW 2§ o M v°es pue WOoO0. ‘S99j ‘U0[}IINY) ddUBpUIIE
J0 3502 [B103 93 03 SUORINPIY

uoneuerdxy paisaAuU] Junowy A10333e)

:uoneINpa sjuapnis jo Ayifenb ayy Joj syyauaq aqiSue) apiaoad 03 (7) 10 sjuapnis 10j 983[[0d Jo 150D
ay3 9anpai (1) 19y3d 01 paLordapaa a.1am da0qe palsi| SSUIAES 1S0D [En)de [B10] AY) MOY MOYS 0} MO[3q }IeYD Y} ZI[IIN 3sed|d

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



28ed]|og

‘uoy eADULL
pue Asuanya pue
‘sSaUAAL YD |euoyelado
‘diyspremans 22nosal ul
saoudesd 3524 Jo sedwaxe
Ue 3q [Im ;s oo

diyspiemals aaunosay pue
u3||x3 |euonesadQ

4214

ue|daibajesis/npa'nsoob JisiA ‘uejd 216aje43s By} INOge aJoLW uIed| Of

‘san| s, 2)doad

Hunoudw) pue suounjos
aied yyeay yEnonpyeasqg
Juusauvoid Iuad edipaw

Jwapese Suipea) e se

JUIISE INO INUYUOD ||IM

JIUI) |BNPSW JUXIM,
Ayssaniun ajeys olyo Ay

a1e) YyeaH
Jwapedy

‘safuajeyp ||anos
183414 J0j SIduUeApE

wesyusis Suaup — spjay

paradiey ul pue

uogMysul Ay SS0IE LRog

‘vorssaidxa aayean pue
Y2URISAI Ul SANISIAAUN
2qnd |euoneusagu)
pue jeuoneu doy 3
Suowe uoyisod Jno
DUBYUS [IIm REIS OIYO

uojssasdxy
anpeas) pue yueasay

ANSIaMP JMUOBOID
Sugowoud pue uoyeanpa
J|qepioye Ju||adx ue
Funsago Aprssamun aygnd
Suipea) e se voyisod Jno
1Byunj jim es olyo

25u3)j99x3 pue
Aiqepioyy ‘ssay

‘Aysianiun yaueasal olqnd diysbeyy jeuoneu Guipea)
e aq 0} aldse am ‘peduw) pue asua||adxa jo A1oisiy uelb-pue| 21215 o1y u| deaj pjog 1xau ayj ayew o

aJidsuf pup ilemodw3‘a|gpusy

HONVHO UNV HINIL

NVld 2193 1VddS S.31V1S OIHO

As1aA1un 33€3S O1YO BYL

‘SIWONNO JUIPMS
arosdwn 0y Sujuies) pue
Sunyoea) o) sayeosdde
J|eas-)e ‘DAl RAOUL
Suydope Aq diyssaped)
Sunensuowap Bunpeay
153q A jo Jedwaxe
ue aq || ;s oo

Jupuiea
pue Supyoeal

ALISHHAAIN[) HLIVLS OIH(D HH]. o

ue|d o1393e43S 91e31S 01y 40 Alewwng :T Xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



€8y

a8ed| L€

As1aA1un 33€3S O1YO BYL

sesuedJy JO AjisiaAlun

A11SI9AIUN 91BIS BMO|

eIqUIN|0D-LINOSSIIA JO AlISIDAIUN
1SJ9ywy-s119snyoesse|A Jo Alsianiun
Aysianiun aieis uogalo

989]|0D |ed1UBYI3IA 13 [B4NHNDIISY pue ANSISAIUN 3)E1S BUBISINOT
sul||0D 104-ANSIBAIUN 93RS OPEIO|0D
9pPISIaNIY-rIUIOHI|BD JO AYISIDAIUN

e184099 jo Ajsianlun

ANsJaAIuN 2181S U0IBUIySeAN

ANSIaAIUN 91B1S pue 3INYISU| d1UYdIIA|0d BIUISUIA
sndwe) ule|p-AlsiaAlun anpand
ujodur]-eyselqan Jo AlsIaAIuN
9[|IAXOU-99SSaUUI JO AlSIDAIUN BY L
ysia|ey 1e AlIsianlun 23e1s euljosed YUoN
Ansianiun a1eas uediydin

BUOZIIY JO AYISiaAlUn

sndwe) ule|-ANsIaAIuN 91e3S O1YyO
NaImsunag maN-Alisianiun sia8iny

y4ed 983)|00-puejAiel jo Alisianiun
uSiedwey)-eueqdn 1e sioul|| 40 Aysianlun
uoliels 38a||0D-AUSIaAIUN N 7BV SeXD L
Axoniuay jo Ausitaniun

S9I1D UIM [-BI0SBUUIIA JO ANISIDAIUN
1N21309UU0) Jo ANSIaAIUN

eplio|4 jo Aysianiun

UOSIPEIA-UISUODSIAN 4O AJISIBAIUN
Aajay4ag-eluioyi|e) jo Ajisianiun

SIAB@-EluJ041|eD JO AJISIaAIUN

ST-¥TOC Wuapnis 314 Jad sasuadxa |e10|

S91}ISIDAIUN Jues3-pue| ‘@34e| yUm uosledwod 4934 g Xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



28ed]|8g

8y

SET'TTS I

0S8'CTS I

SSL'ETS I

LTL'DTS

TEY'STS

697'OTS I

6T90TS
LESITS I
TIELTS I
STT'STS
STT'STS
TTY'OTS
GLG'ETS
OFT 0TS 1
00E'0TS
TTY'0TS
PSLI0TS
£88°0TS
OE6 0TS 1
9SO TTS
G/8'TTS I

S66'CTS

TTO"LTS

L8 LTS

GG8" (€' |1
G6" T €S
A4l
6T EES

68 6. S 1

As1aA1un 33€3S O1YO BYL

15J9Ywy-s139snydessel Jo Alsianiun
A1ISJaAIUN 9181S BMO|

eIqWIN|0D-14NOSSIIAl JO AYISiaAIUn

sesueyJy Jo Ausianiun

sndwe) ule|p-AlsiaAalun anpand
9pISIaAIY-eIUIOYI|ED JO AlISIDAIUN

sul||0D M04-ANSIaAIUN S1e1S OpRIO|0D)
983|0D |ed1UBYIBIA 18 |BINYNDIBY pue AJISISAIUN 91B1S BUBISINOT
Aysianiun aieis uo8auQ

A1ISJaAIUN 91B1S PUB 91N}ISU| J1UYIIA|0d BIUISIIA
ANsianiun 21e1s uo3dulysepn

sndwe) uie|N-ANSIaAIUN 33e1S OIYO
Ausaaniun a1e1s uediydin

131099 Jo Aysianiun

1N21393UU0) Jo ANsIaniun

ysiajey 1e AlIsIanlun 931e1S euljoJe) YHON
euozly Jo Aysianiun

9||IAXOUY|-935SaUUa] JO AJISIBAIUN BY L
ujoduI-eySeIgaN 4O AYSIaAluN

3}o1msunig MaN-Adsianlun s1aginy

y4ed 983||00-puejAielp jo Alisianiun
udredwey)-eueqdn 1e sioul||| 40 AJsiaAlun
uol3e1s 989)10D-AUSIBAIUN N BV SeXa L
S9I1D UIM [-BJOSBUUIIA JO ANISIaAIUN
sIneQ-eluJ04l|e) Jo Asianiun

epLIo|4 Jo Alisianlun

Apnyuay jo Aisianiun

As|ayuag-eluioylje) Jo Alsianiun

UOSIPBIAI-UISUOISIAN JO AJISIBAIUN

ST-yTOZ ‘uapnis 314 Jod sasuadxa dlwapede-uonN

S9I}ISIDAIUN Jues3-pue| ‘@34e| yUm uosledwod 4994 gz Xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



G8¥y

oded]| et Ayisianiun aeis olyo ayL

+C (sapnis jeqo|o | < SHY JO 91e120SSY | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9el1S snquin|o)
pue ‘leuoi3ay ‘ueqin) AydesSoso /sy Jo Jojaydeg

+T (A1L1008 | < SHY JO 91e100SsY | 983]|0) AHunwwo) 31e1S shquin|o)
pue juswuouiaul) AydesSoan/suy Jo Jojaydeg

+C (Aydea3099 | < 9IUIIDS JO 33e1P0SSY | 989]10) Allunwwo) 93e1s shquinjo)
|eaisAyd) AydeaSosn/aoualds Jo Jojaydeq

T+ (se1pnis onnew|d) Aydes8oan/asuaids Jo Jojaydeg | < 92UdI9S JO deId0ossy | 989]|0) Alunwwo) 91e3s snquinjo)

+e yousau4/suy Jo Jojayoeg | < SHY 4O 91e100sSY | 989||0) AuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)

+C S91pNIS W|l4/sHY 4O Jojdydeg | < SMY JO 91e100ssy | 989]|0) AHuNnwWwOo) 93e1S sNqWn|o)

+T A80]023 pue uol1n|oA7/a2udIdS JO Jojaydeqg | < 92UdI2S JO AeID0Ssy | 989]10) Alunwwo) 91e1S snquinjo)

+C ysl|8u3z/suy jo Jojayoeg | < SMY 4O 91e100SSY | 989]|0) AHuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)

T+ S2IWOU023/92UdIDS JO Jojaydeq | < 9JU3IDS JO AeIDossy | 989]|0) Allunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)

+e SJIWIOU0D3/SUY JO Jojaydeg | < SMY JO 91e100sSY | 989]|0) AuNnwwo) 93e1S sNqWN|o)

+C (s@ouans | < 9JU3IDS JO 33e1D0SSY | 989]10D AJlunwiwo) 93e1s shquin|od)
[e2180]099) $92UBIDS Y11e3/22ualds JO Jojaydeg

+e A3ojoulwiy /sy Jo Jojaydeg | < SHY 4O 91e100sSY | 989]|0) AHuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)

+C (uoneslunwwo) | < SHY JO 91e120Ssy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9el1S snquin|o)
21891e41S) UOIIEIIUNWWOD /SUY JO Jo|aydeg

+e ASojouyda] uonesunwwo) | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 989]|0) AHuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)
pue elpaj\ MAN) UOIIEIIUNWWOD/SHY JO J0jaydeq

+C (2130844 | < SMY JO 91e100ssy | 989]|0) Aunwwo) 93e1S sNqwn|o)
pue sisAjeuy) uollealunwwo) /sy 40 Jojaydeg

T+ S21SSe|)/SHY 4O Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e120sSy | 989||0) AHuNnwwo) 93e1S sSNqWn|o)

+C A3oj01g/22ua1ds JO JoJaydeyg | < 92U3I2S JO 9eID0Ssy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 931e31S snquuinjo)

+C $30UIDS d14aYdsowly Ul 92U3IIS JO Jojaydeg | < 92U3I2S JO eldossy | 989)|0) Alunwuwo) 931e3s snquinjo)

o+ uswadeue|A SUY/SMY JO Jojayoeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 983]|0) Aunwwo) 31e31S Shqwin|o)

+C S92U312S |ea130jodoJyluy/aduaIds JO Jojaydeq | < 92U3I9S JO 9eID0Ssy | 989]|0) Alunwwo) 93e3S snquinjo)

+e A3ojodoiyluy/suy Jo Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 989]|0) AHuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)

+C salpnis | < SMY 4O 91e120ssy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9e1S sNqun|o)
UBDLISWY-UBDIILY PUB UBDLIYY/SIY JO Jojaydeq

+C 3JUBIIS |eldeN1dY/adusIds JO Jojaydeq | < JU3IDS JO 33e1D0SSY | 989]10) AJlunwwo) 93e1s shqwin|o)

[T+€ 40 z+2 :3:1] weJsdoid/aa439p Alsianiun seal-p weJsdoid/a9439p 989]102 Aylunwwo)
adAl Aemyred 989)102 AJlunwWwod

Asi1aniun aiers olyo aylL

91€31S 01YO YHM spuawaaide uolie|ndiuy € xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




98¥y

oded|or Ayisianiun aeis olyo ayL
+C 94N30311YdJy adeaspueq ul 93uadS 4o Jojaydeqg | < 9JU3IDS JO 33e1D0SSY | 989]10D AJlunwwo) 93e1s shqwin|od)
+C Suluue|d [euoi8ay pue AyD ul 32u313S JO Jojaydeg | < 92U3I9S JO deID0ossy | 989]|0) Alunwwo) 91el1S snquinjo)
T+ 9JN1291YdJy Ul 9dUIIIS 4O Joaydeyg | < 92U3I9S JO AeIDoSsy | 989]|0) Alunwwio) 91e1s snquinjo)
+e A30j00z/92ua13S Jo Jojaydeg | < 92U3I2S JO 9eld0ssy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 931e3s snquinjo)
+C salpnis | < SHY 4O 91e120SSY | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9el1S snqun|o)
Alllenxas pue Japuso ‘s,usWOAN/SHY JO Jojaydeq
+e 9J1e3Y | /SMY JO Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 989]|0) AuNWWO) 93e1S SNQqWN|0)
+T 92Uua12§ SulieaH pue yoaads/suy Jo Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e1205sy | 989||0) AunWWOo) 9e1S sNqun|o)
+C ysiueds/suy jo Jojpyoeg | < SMY 4O 91e100ssy | 983]|0) AuNnwwo) 93e1S sNqWN|o)
o+ uoljepodsued] Jly S92USIDS |BID0S/SUY JO Joaydeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 983]|0) Alunwwo) 31e1S Shquinjo)
+C ASojo1005 /sy Jo Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 983]|0) AHunwwo) 31e31S Shqwin|o)
T+ S91pN1S snoid1ayY/SHY 40 Jojaydeg | < SMY JO 91e100ssy | 989]|0) AHunwwo) 93e1S snquin|o)
+e A3ojoyaAsd/aaualds Jo Jojaydeg | < 92U3I2S JO 9eId0Ssy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 91e31S snquinjo)
+T A3ojoydAsd /sy Jo Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e120SSY | 989||0) AHunWWOo) 91e1S snqun|o)
+e 92UI2S |B211|0d/SHY 4O Jojaydeg | < SMY 4O 91e100ssy | 983]|0) Aunwwo) 93e1S sNqwin|o)
+C Aydoso|lyd/s1y jo Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 933||0) Alunwwo) 31e31S Shqwin|o)
+e 92USI2504NIN/2IUBIIS 4O JoJaydeg | < 92U3IDS JO eID0Ssy | 989)|0) Allunwuwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
T+ S$2119U90 JB|NI3|O|A/20UaIdS JO Jojaydeg | < 92U3I2S JO MeIP0ossy | 989]|0) Alunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
+e A30]0100421|A]/92UB13S JO JojaYydeg | < 92U3I2S JO 9eID0Ssy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 931e3S snquinjo)
T+T | saIpnis @ouessieuay pue [eASIPIAI/SHY 4O Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e120SSY | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9el1S snqun|o)
+e SJ11BWYI.|A|/90UBIDS JO Jojaydeg | < SMY JO 91e100sSY | 989||0) AuNnwwo) 93e1S sNqWn|o)
+C s211sIN3ul /sy Jo Jojaydeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 933]|0) Aunwwo) 31e31S Shqwin|o)
+e ws|jeudnor | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 9839]|0) AuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)
SJ1eJY 21|gNd/WSIjeulnor ul Suy Jo Jojayaeq
7+ S9IpN1S |BUOIIBUIRIU|/SHY JO JO|aYdeg | < SHY JO 91e120SSY | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9el1S snqun|o)
+C AI01SIH/SMY JO Jojayoeg | < SHY JO 91e100SSY | 933]|0) AHunwwo) 31e31S Shqwin|o)
+C My jo AIo1SIH/sMY Jo Jojaydeg | < SMY JO 91e100ssy | 989]|0) AHunwwo) 93e1S sNqun|o)
+e uewJ9n/sHY 4O Jojaydeg | < SMY 4O 91e100sSY | 989]|0) AuNWWOo) 93e1S sNqWN|o)
+C DUIIS | < 92U3I2S JO deId0ossy | 989]|0) Alunwwo) 91els snquinjo)
uoljewJoyu] 21ydea30395 ul UIIIS 4O Jojaydeg
+T (sisAjeuy |eneds) Aydes30an/aouaids Jo Jojaydeg | < 92U3IDS JO AeIDossy | 989]|0) Allunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
[T+€ 40 2+2 :3:1] weJsdoud/aa18ap Alsianiun seal-p weJsdoid/a9439p 989102 Alunwwo)
adA] Aemyaed 939]]02 AjlUnwwod

Ayisianiun aers olyo ayL

91€31S 01YO YHM spuawaaide uolie|ndiuy € xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




18¥

oded |1y Ayisianiun aeis olyo ayL
+e diysiapeai-diysiapeal SMY JO 91e100SSY | 9839]|0) AuNWWO) 93e1S SNQqWN|0)
Ajunwwo)/a4n3nJL8y Ul 82uaIdS JO JojaYydeg
+e sojwouod3 paljddy 92U3I2S JO eId0ossy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 91e3s snquinjo)
pue ssaulsnqlidy/ain3nd18y Ul 33uUa1dS JO Jojaydeq
+C uol1eanp3 SHY JO 91e1205Sy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 93e1S snquin|o)
[e4n3 nd148y /24N N21I8Y Ul 92UaI1dS JO Jojaydeg
+C uol1eanp3 92U3I2S JO eld0ossy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) a1e3s snquinjo)
92UB12s148y/ /24N N218Y Ul 3dUIIDS JO Jo|aydeq
+C 24Nsuadl] SHY 4O 91e100ssYy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 93e1S sNqun|o)
uolleonp3 ssauisng-3uluied] pue uoileodnp3
|ed1UYI3 [ /uo11edNPT Ul 92UIJS JO JodYydeg
+C uoI1eINpP3 SADUIIIS SHY JO 91e100SSY | 933]|0) Aunwwo) 91e31S Shqwin|o)
Jawnsuo) pue Ajjwe4-3uluied) pue uojednp3
|ed1uYd3 | /uoneanp3 ul adualIds JO Jojaydeg
+e uol3edNp3 JaYdea) uoleodnp3 uoneanp3 | 939||0) Ayunwuwo) a1eis snquinjo)
|ea1sAyd-ANAIDY |ed1sAyd pue ‘uods ‘uoieanpl [e21SAyd-Sa1pnis 9s1049x3
|eaisAyd,/uoieanp3 ui aduaids Jo Jojaydeq pue syi0ds/22ualds
palddy jo ajepossy
+T 1slje1dads Suiyoeo) pue AlAIRY SMY JO 91e100ssy | 989||0) Aunwwo) 93e1S snqun|o)
|ea1sAyd-ANAnoy |ealsAyd pue ‘uods ‘uoleonp3
|eaisAyd,/uoiieanp3 ui aduaids Jo Jojaydeq
+C so1193191Q S2139191@ pue | 933||0) Alunwwo) 91e3S Shqwin|o)
ul weu3oud 2130epig/uoiiinN ul 82ualds JO Jojaydeg UoIJINN-JUSW3eue|p
AlendsoH/aaualds
palddy jo a1e1p0ssy
+e salpn1s uonneanp3 | 939|j0) Ayunwuwo) a1eis snquinjo)
YINoA pue p|iyD/uoiieanp3 ul adualds Jo Jojayoeg pue juawdo|anag
pooyp|iyd Ajiea/suy
palddy jo a1e1p0ssy
T+1 S$31pPN1S YINOA pue p|iyd/suy Jo 91e1d0ssy 3|qeol|ddy 10N | 283]|0) AHunwwo) 331e1s snquin|o)
€+C UOI3BJISIUIWIPY SSauUIsSNg U] 92U3|dS JO Jojaydeg SMY 4O 91e1205sy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 93e1S snqun|o)
€+1 UOI1BJISIUIWPY SSaUISNg Ul 92U3IDS JO Jojaydeg SMY JO 91e120ssy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9el1S snqun|o)
[T+€ 40 2+2 :3:1] weJsdoud/aa18ap Alsianiun seal-p weJsdoid/a9439p 989102 Alunwwo)
adA] Aemyaed 939]]02 AjlUnwwod

Ayisianiun aers olyo ayL

91€31S 01YO YHM spuawaaide uolie|ndiuy € xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




a8ed |y

88¥

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

+S'¢C 9udI3AH |eluaq ul 2UdIdS JO Jojaydeg ausI8AH |ewuag/aouaids | 8890 Allunwiwo) a1e1s snquinjo)
palddy jo a1epossy
+C $92U3IDS A3ojouyda] Aiojesoqe] | 939100 Allunwwo) 31eIS ShqWIN|0)
UOI3e}I|IqeyaY pue Y3jeaH ul 9dUIIS 4O Jojaydeg |EDIP3IA JO 91BID0SSY
+e 34O/ [BI20S Ul 92U3IDS JO Jojaydeg S9JIAIDS UBWNY | 983|100 AJlunwwo) 931e3S sNquin|o)
pue |elo0S/a3ualds
palddy jo ajepossy
7+ 34O\ [BID0S Ul 9IUBIIS JO Jojaydeq SHY JO 91e100SSY | 989]|0) AHuNWWO) 93L1S SNqWN|o)
+T A3o|o1D0S SMY 4O 91e1205sy | 989||0) AHunwwo) 9e1S snqun|o)
YaesH 21|qnd/y}esH dl|gnd Ul 33Ua|aS 4O Jojaydeg
+C yyjeaH olqnd 9JU3IDS JO 33e1D0SSY | 983]10) AJlunwwo) 93e1s shqwin|od)
[eluawWUOJIAUT /Yl ESH D1|gNd Ul 82U313S JO Jo|aydeg
+C SJIBJY 21|gNd Ul SHY JO Jojaydeg SMY 4O 91e100sSY | 989]|0) AHuNWWO) 93e1S sSNqWN|o)
+T (suoissajoud aJeayyesH) 9JU3IDS JO AeIDossy | 989]|0) Allunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
S9JUDIS |BII1INDIBWIBYJ Ul 92UDIIS JO Jojaydeg
+T (1uswdojanaqg pue Aianoasig 8niq) 9IU3IDS JO 33e10SSY | 989]10) AJlunwwo) 93e1s shquin|o)
S90UIIDS |BDIINBIBWIIEBY Ul 9DUIIDS 4O Jojaydeg
+C 92U3|2S SSeJdpIn]-swalsAS 92U3I2S JO eld0ossy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 91e3s snquinjo)
1ue|d 9|geuleIsns/aun N8y ul 3dUdIS JO Jojaydeq
T+ 94N} N2I}OH-SWISAS 92UdI9S JO deID0ossy | 989]|0) Alunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
1ue|d 9|geuleIsns/aunyndl8y ul 3duUaI1dS JO Jojaydeq
+T Awouoi8y-swaisAs 9JU3IDS JO 33e1D0SSY | 989)10D AJlunwwio) 93e1S Shqwin|o)
1ue|d 9|geuleIsns/ainy N8y ul 3duaIdS Jo Jojaydeq
+e A3ojoyied 1ue|d/24n1Nd18Y Ul 93U31S JO JO[aydeg 92U3I2S JO 9eId0oSsy | 989)|0) Allunwwo) 91e31S snquinjo)
+T juswadeuen 92U3I9S JO AeIPossy | 989]|0) Allunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
y1|eaH 1ue|d/an3nd1u8y ul 33uUa1dS JO Jojaydeq
o+ 92UII2S 1e3|A|/24N) NJ1I3Y Ul 3JUSIDS JO Jo|aydeq 9JU3IDS JO 33e1D0SSY | 989]10D AJlunwwo) 93e1s shqwin|od)
T+ 1uswadeuen 92UdI9S JO deId0ossy | 989)|0) Alunwwo) 91e3s snquinjo)
ssauisng poo4/21n1jna1i8y ul 92ua|dS 4O Jojaydeg
+T jJuswadeuep 1594 paljddy 92U3IDS JO AeIDoSsY | 989]|0) Allunwwo) 91e1s snquinjo)
-ASojowojuz/a4n)NJLISY Ul 82UdIdS JO Jo|aydeg
+e uoI1BINP3J UOISUDIXT SMY JO 91e100SSY | 989]|0) AuNWWO) 93e1S SNqWN|o)

pue Ajlunwwo)/a1n}NdLSY Ul 92U31dS JO Jojaydeg

[T+€ 10 2+2 :3:1]
adA] Aemyaed

weJsdoud/aa18ap Alsianiun seal-p

weJsdoid/a9439p
939]]02 AjlUnwwod

989102 Alunwwo)

Ayisianiun aers olyo ayL

91€31S 01YO YHM spuawaaide uolie|ndiuy € xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON




a8ed| ey

68¥

Aussaniun 21e1$ 01yo YL

+e

90uaId§ AJeuln) /24Ny o8y Ul 33UaIdS 4O Jojaydeg

A3ojouyda|
92u3|2s Aeuln)y/aouaids
palddy jo a1epossy

989||0) |B21UYID] OIYQ |BJ3UD)

+C

2ua18AH |eluaQ ul 22UaIdS JO Jojaydeg

auaI3AH |eluaqg/aoualIds
palddy jo alepossy

989]|0D 21€31S Sapoyy

[T+€ 10 2+2 :3:1]
adA] Aemyaed

weJsdoud/aa18ap Alsianiun seal-p

weJsdoid/a9439p
939]]02 AjlUnwwod

989102 Alunwwo)

Ayisianiun aers olyo ayL

91€31S 01YO YHM spuawaaide uolie|ndiuy € xipuaddy

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



06¥

LTAd 3y} 03 uoiss!f

9TA4 243 WOy sjeos Jeak-g s,uonmns!

4noA u uoneinap JuedyIuSIs ‘|1eIBP Ul ‘3qLISIP 03 MO|Iq BIJIE Y3 35N 35e3]d :NOISSINENS LTAd OL NOISSINGNS 9TAL INOHS STYOD ¥VIA-S NI (S)IONVHD LNVIHINDIS|

110051 9310} jse} 39|

“SJUBPN3S 0y S1S02 3InPaJ 0} IAOGE PAUIRNO S3UBUOAWIOD 310 ySe} 3} YSN0ALY Pajesauas Jo/pUE Panes aie eyl s3IN0sas [euonnisul ayy Aojdap-a1 o3 ueid noA moy ie3ap

| ‘2G11I53p 03 MO|3q B3IE 3Y) ISN 3SeI|d :SLNIANLS OL SONIAVS 30 LNIWAO1dIA-3H JI41J3dS|

— 000°095'TZE'T $ a8l a8l 000000027 $ | 000‘000°0€ $ | 000'8s€'09 ALIEYAYO044V INIANLS AIDNVHN3I HO4 SIILINNLYOJHO TYNOILLNLILSNI AINISWOD 40 TV10L
00009S‘TZT'T aaL a8l 000000°060°T $ - $ | ooo‘09s'1€ uonEIAUIY 221N0SIY MAN [€I0IGNS
Buiyoea] Joj 31nsul Ausianiun ay3 Hoddns 03 paisanul sey AlsiaAun ayy 1eyy Suipuny pue mcpmmc,m:o._kmnwk‘_mmzw 0951 095" pue fauuge 1oy naodd pue g
11oe0L 10 smnsul Aatsioniin otk ¥ 1 P21sOAUL SEY RISISNILN 343 843 ulpun) P . 1ho| 000'095'TE $ aal aal aal aal 000095"r¢ a1enjena ‘paulelal aq 0} aue 1ey) suonesado pue s1asse Sujuiwa1ap uodn|  sdiysiaued Auly o 3anosay
104 110ddns ‘sdiysuau ‘SdIsIRIOYIS YBNOIYY SIUIPNIS 10} S}JBUY SIPN|DUL UOISURIXD 19B13U0D ININ YL maN
‘gIAduaNpdAD| S ‘pasodindal asimIaYI0 10 pasea] oIl 195
awesaq diysiaupied aus pue ‘/TA4 Ui panoidde sem 19afo.d JuawaBeuey ABaug ansuayaidwon ayy | 000000060 § aal aaL 000000060 $ $ “D|0S J1 BN[BA 134JBW 113y} AUILIIZIAP O] S1ISSE 310-UOU JO JUBLUSSISSE UE 19NPUO))| sy v
(Ressadau e303gn: uondiasa uauodwo; UOIEPUAIWOI) Aiodaze;
J1'5199ys [EUOIIPPE YIE1IE) $§ UOKIEIAUID 30IN0SAY MAN JO Uoneue|dx3/aAneLieN 1a3png fes03ans 020z M 6102 A 8T0Z A ndtasea ¥ 2 Hep Y €
000000002 $ | ooo'zvz'ss $ | 000'096'2S $ | 000'000°0€ $ | 000'000°0€ $ | 0oo's6L'8T [sBuines Aduaiiyy3 |e3oigng
51500 90npaJ pUE aU[|Weans 0 Sanpnns
sanjunioddo Ajauapi 03 s2a19e1d 153G Y3IM BUl] Ul DINJINIIS [BUONEZIUEEIO MAINDY s sBujnog
5101284 J33O pue uBisapal touspu3
s)1jaUaq 33A0|dWa ‘S20IAI3S P3IRYS JO JUSLUBIUBYUS ‘SN BAIEIISUILIPE 0} UORINP3J %S € YSnoiyl| 000°000°06T $ | ooozrz'es s | 00000005 $ | 0oo‘000'0e $ | 00000008 $ | ooo'ssz'oz *AVISIBAIUN Y] SSOIJR ANUBABI PUE 150 JO SIGALIP X Ajiuapl|  ansouSelp 150D vs o
s3uines BuLn2a1 sapnjoul Jey) weiSoud AJUaIIYE BANENSIUIIPE BAISUBYIAWOD @ Sey ANSIaAIN By |
“KUB 1510 10 101e12d0 a1eAlid ‘aneIad00) [eU0Ial & AQ ARUBIIS.
Mainas suonesado ar
210W NJ 3G Y31 1ey) sUONEIAdO JIUIBPEIE-UOU JO JUAWSSBSSE UR 19NPUOD
*s1uawaa3e Suiseyaund 110 PauaYIBUS JO/PUE MU BNSIN| SIOLIIUOD AANEIOGE]|0D 9
sdiysiejoyos Juapms o1 pakoydapas| o o .
a3q 3ney 1eyy s3a1NBS Jayuid/1a1do5 pue sa1jddns 391440 1oy suonenoBau apnjaul aiep o sduies | 000°000°0T $ [oo0000's $ | oo0'036° $ o8l $ |000'0%0'7
*5921A135 puE sp0og Bulseyaand 10y 19e3U03 BuNsIXa asn 03 saakojdwa aainbay|  s1euod sndwiey ve
(Asessadau y1 s393ys |euoippe yoene) $$ sSuines Aouapiy3 jo uoneuedx3/aanelsen 128png |el01gns I} 0Z0Z Ad I} 6T0Z Ad I 8T0Z Ad LTOZ A4 9T0Z A4 uondudsag juauodwo) uonEpUAWIWOIRY AioSarey

*uoISIA 0Z0Z @Y1 paiep-aid 1eyi suioye SuloSuo Suipnjaul ‘a1e1s o1yQ 1e salIAIe diyspaemals 324nosal pue Suipuny]
SAIIEAOUUI ‘92UD|[99XD [EUOIIEIIdO JO D5UEY [|N} Y} SIIJISUOWIDP 110dD] 92104 S} Y} 03 Asudsal §,A1ISIDAIUN BY) JO A] UOIDIS :DI0N

“UOISIA 0Z0Z 343 Yum Ajjeaiyioads susije 1ueyd Suimojjo) ay||

*S3I3IAII0B UOI11eIBUSS-924N0SaI pue SSUIARS-1S0D Jay10 0} [ejuawaldul ale ueld UoISIA|
0202 243 y3nouy paresauas s3uines sdiysie|oyds Juapnis uo Juads 3q ||IM [2303 1_Y3 JO UOI||ILI O0TS 3SB3] 3V "92U3||3IX3 pue Aljiqepiole
‘55308 0} P210AIP 3 0} UOI||IW 00YS 1SE3] 1€ JO [B10) B 31e1aUd8 0} 0ZA4-9TA4 SJeah ay) Joj ueld Jeak-anly e paysi|qelss a1els olyo

NOILVYINID 32HNOSIY MIN ANV SONIAVS AIN3IJ1443 TYNOILNLILSNI 404 1VOD ¥VIA-3AI4 -2 NOILVANIWINOIIY ¥ILSYIN

Bunss|\ 88niwwo) soueuld - Bunasiy pleog /10gZ JoqUBAON



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL FOR ONE-TIME TRANSFER OF PRINCIPAL FROM
LONG-TERM OPERATING FUND TO ENTERPRISE PROJECT FUND

Synopsis: Approval for one-time transfer of principal from the Long-Term Operating Fund to the Enterprise
Project Fund, a current-use fund to be established to provide funding for the university’s enterprise system
implementation project, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Long-Term Operating Fund is a quasi-endowment fund established by the Board of
Trustees in 2004 and revised in 2008 and 2011 for the purpose of increasing the support available to the
university from the Long-Term Investment Pool by funding the university’s investment income account as
well as providing discretionary funds to be used according to the unanimous approval of the president, the
provost, and the chief financial officer and senior vice president for business and finance; and

WHEREAS the university has begun a university-wide enterprise system implementation project; and

WHEREAS in order to provide funding toward the enterprise system implementation project, the office of
business and finance has requested that $100,000,000 of the principal of the Long-Term Operating Fund
be transferred to the Enterprise Project Fund; and

WHEREAS the Enterprise Project Fund will be a current-use fund that will be established to provide funding
for the university’s enterprise system implementation project, with funds to be released only upon the
approval of the provost and the chief financial officer and senior vice president for business and finance:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the one-time transfer of $100,000,000

from the principal of the Long-Term Operating Fund to the Enterprise Project Fund to provide funding for
the university’s enterprise system implementation project.

491



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

BACKGROUND
Enterprise Project Fund

The Enterprise Project Fund is a current-use fund established with funds transferred from the principal of
the Long-Term Operating Fund, as approved by the Board of Trustees on November 3, 2017.

The fund’s purpose is to provide funding for the university’s enterprise system implementation project.
Funds shall only be released from this fund with approval by the provost and the senior vice president for
business and finance and chief financial officer.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all operating funds shall be in accordance with
university policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees and amended from time to time.

The university reserves the right to modify the purposes of this fund, provided that such fund shall only be
used for the university’s charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the university shall consult the
president, provost, and senior vice president for business and finance and chief financial officer.

Amount Establishing Fund: $100,000,000 (not gift money)

{00329871-1}

492



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF DISCOUNTED RATES FOR
SUMMER TERM TUITION AND MANDATORY FEES

Synopsis: Approval of discounted rates for summer term tuition and mandatory fees, effective for summer
term 2018, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University is committed to access, affordability, and excellence for students;
and

WHEREAS the university seeks to enhance opportunities for undergraduate students to reduce their time
to degree by taking full advantage of academic offerings throughout the calendar year; and

WHEREAS the university has offered discounted rates for the COTA, Recreation, Student Activity, and
Student Union fees on the Columbus campus for summer term since the conversion to semesters in 2012;
and

WHEREAS the COTA fee is a pass-through fee and students enjoy the same access to Central Ohio Transit
Authority services during the summer term as they do in autumn and spring semesters; and

WHEREAS the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency in Higher Education recommended that
colleges and universities consider opportunities to increase productivity during summer; and

WHEREAS the university implemented a new academic structure for summer term in 2016 to offer students
more flexibility and variety as a first step in a process to enhance summer utilization; and

WHEREAS the university introduced a tuition discount program in summer term 2018 to provide an
additional incentive for undergraduate students to make progress toward their degrees by taking advantage
of summer course offerings:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the following:

e That the summer term instructional fee, general fee, and non-resident surcharge for Columbus
campus undergraduates be discounted 25% compared with fall and spring semesters, effective
summer term 2018 (fiscal year 2019) and continuing in following years; and

e That the summer term Recreation, Student Activity, and Student Union fees for Columbus campus
undergraduates continued be offered at the historical discounted rates and the COTA fee be offered
at the full rate shown below, effective summer term 2018 (fiscal year 2019).

' Summer Rate

COTA $13.50
Recreation $82.00
Student Activity $25.00
Student Union $51.00

493




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

BACKGROUND

TOPIC: Discounted Rates for Summer Term Tuition and Mandatory Fees

CONTEXT:

The university has enhanced opportunities for students to take summer term courses and make
progress toward their degrees.

The first step, enacted in summer term 2016, created a more flexible structure for summer that allows
for a variety of 4-, 6-, 8-, and 12-week courses.

The second step, enacted in summer term 2017, discounted summer term tuition (instructional fees,
general fees and non-resident surcharge) for Columbus campus undergraduates by 25% compared
with fall and spring semesters to enhance the incentive for students to utilize the summer to make
academic progress. The discount applied to all sessions of summer other than the first four-week
session, for which a one-time 50% discount was available.

In the first year of the summer tuition discount, Columbus campus undergraduates saved $2.4 million
compared with the rates for fall and spring semester.

These action steps to transform summer align with Recommendation 7E of the Ohio Task Force on
Affordability and Efficiency in Higher Education, which calls on colleges and universities to consider
opportunities to increase productivity during the summer.

These steps also built on the discounted summer rates that the university has charged for the other
Columbus campus mandatory fees - the COTA, Recreation, Student Activity, and Student Union fees
- since the transition from quarters to semesters in 2012.

In the proposal for summer term 2018, the 25% tuition discount program would apply to all summer
term sessions for Columbus campus undergraduates. The discounted summer rates for the Recreation,
Student Activity, and Student Union fees would match the rates charged in summer term 2017. The
COTA fee, which is a pass-through fee to the Central Ohio Transit Authority that provides students
unlimited use of COTA services, would be charged at the same rate as in autumn and spring semesters
to cover the full cost of the program.

Tables 1 and 2 of this document detail the rates proposed for summer term 2018.

Note: The one-time 50% discount for the first four-week session of summer term 2017, which was
extended to all campuses and all students (undergraduate, graduate, and professional), has expired.
Students were informed prior to summer term 2017 that the larger discount would be offered for only
one year as part of a transition from a previous summer pricing model that provided up to three free
credits in the first four-week summer session.

REQUESTED OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE: Discounted rates for summer term tuition and mandatory
fees

494



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

. Background
The university’s plan to transform summer term was designed to support these goals:

e Shorten students’ time to degree
e Reduce cost for undergraduates
e Improve utilization of campus during the summer.

The new summer structure introduced in summer term 2016 (fiscal year 2017) offered students more
flexible schedules including various course lengths and timing:

12-week term

4-week sessions
6-week sessions
8-week sessions

The discounted tuition initiative enacted in summer term 2017 (fiscal year 2018) was designed to encourage
more Columbus campus undergraduate students to take advantage of summer courses.

This provided both an immediate benefit through discounted tuition and a long-term affordability benefit for
students who use summer to reduce their time to degree.

To continue the tuition discount for summer term 2018 and beyond, and to reflect the summer rates for
other mandatory fees for summer term 2018, a new summer discount resolution has been put forth.

The Recreation, Student Activity and Student Union would be offered at the same discounted rate as in
summer term 2017. The COTA fee would be charged at the same rate as in fall and spring semesters to
cover the full cost of the program. The COTA fee is a pass-through fee to the Central Ohio Transit Authority
that provides students unlimited use of COTA services.

495



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017

Board of Trustees

1. Implementation

For summer term 2018 (fiscal year 2019) and subsequent years, the summer term discount would reduce
fall/spring tuition (instructional fee, general fee, and non-resident surcharge) by 25% for Columbus campus
undergraduate students in all summer sessions. This program will apply to both the university’s traditional
tuition model and the rates set in the new Ohio State Tuition Guarantee.

Other mandatory fees (Recreation, Student Activity, and Student Union) will remain at the discounted
summer rates implemented in previous years while the COTA fee moves to the full rate. This fee is a pass-
through and provides students with unlimited use of Central Ohio Transit Authority services.

The summer term rates for the international surcharge is unchanged from the fall/spring rates, which range
from $498 to $1,464 per semester based on students’ start dates.

Table 1: Continuing Students

Per semester rates,

Fall 2017-Spring 2018

Summer Term 2018

Instructional Fee $4,584.00 $3,438.00
General Fee $186.00 $138.00
Student Activity Fee* $37.50 $25.00
Recreation Fee** $123.00 $82.00
COTA Fee * $13.50 $13.50
Student Union Fee $74.40 $51.00
Ohio resident

tuition and mandatory fees sei0isan S
Non-resident surcharge $9,552.00 $7,164.00
U.S. non-resident

tuition and mandatory fees $14,570.40 Ul

Table 2: Ohio State Tuition Guarantee Students - Tuition and Mandatory Fee Rates

Per semester rates,
Fall 2017-Spring 2018

Summer Term 2018

Instructional Fee $4,858.80 $3,644.10
General Fee $186.00 $138.00
Student Activity Fee* $40.00 $25.00
Recreation Fee** $123.00 $82.00
COTA Fee * $13.50 $13.50
Student Union Fee $74.40 $51.00
Ohio resident

tuition and mandatory fees $5,295.70 $3,953.60
Non-resident surcharge $9,552.00 $7,164.00
U.S. non-resident

tuition and mandatory fees Sl L

* Student Activity and COTA fees are flat semester rates, and are not a per credit hour rate.
** Recreation fee is flat semester rate starting at four or more credit hours, and is not a per credit hour rate.

496



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

lll.  Impact on Students

The university estimated that the summer tuition discount would save undergraduates at least $1.7 million
per year by summer term 2018, based on 2016 enroliment. Students actually saved $2.4 million in summer
term 2017 based on changing enrollment patterns.

497



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 2, 2017
Board of Trustees

AUTHORIZATION FOR APPROVAL OF ATHLETIC PRICES AND FEES

Synopsis: Approval of football ticket prices for fiscal year 2019 and golf course membership dues and fees
for calendar year 2018 at the recommended levels, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University Department of Athletics has a long history of self-sustainability in
supporting 36 world-class athletics programs and providing needed revenues back to the university for
scholarships and academic programs; and

WHEREAS Ohio State desires to continue its variable ticket pricing methodology to create a range of pricing
options for fans attending games; and

WHEREAS each year the Athletic Council reviews projections for the coming year's budget and
recommends ticket prices and golf course membership dues and fees; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council has approved football ticket pricing and golf course membership dues and
fees as shown on the attached tables; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council’'s recommendations have been reviewed and are recommended by the
appropriate university administration:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the recommended prices for football

tickets for fiscal year 2019 and for golf course membership dues and fees for calendar year 2018, be
approved.

498




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

BACKGROUND

TOPICS: Football Ticket Prices
Golf Course Membership and Daily Green Fees

CONTEXT:

The Ohio State University Department of Athletics continues to be one of only 13 self-sustaining athletic
programs across the nation. Currently, the Department of Athletics funds more than 1,100 student-athletes
in successful endeavors of academic achievement and athletics competitions, with a Graduation Success
Rate of 89%. Yearly, the Department of Athletics contributes more than $30 million back to the institution’s
academic mission. Funds generated from ticket sales are used to sustain the scholarships for over 625
student-athletes.

The Department of Athletics first introduced premier-game pricing in 2013, and beginning with the 2016
football season adopted a completely variable pricing model for all individual game tickets, while
implementing percentage discounts for public season ticket purchasers and faculty & staff season ticket
purchasers. These pricing strategies have been successful in regards to maintaining high demand for
tickets, and in positive feedback received from fans regarding the variable pricing for games. The Athletic
Council and university administrators recommend continuation of these pricing guidelines. Additionally, a
golf course membership dues and daily green fees increase is necessary to meet increased costs and
remain financially stable for fiscal year 2019.

RECOMMENDATION:
Football Tickets:

e Assign the individual game and season ticket pricing for the 2018 football season as indicated in
the attached table.

Golf Course Membership Dues and Green Fees:

e For the 2018 calendar year (FY2019), increase the Alumni, Faculty/Staff and Affiliate membership
dues by 2.5%, increase the OSU Student membership dues by 2.1%, and increase daily green
fees by $5 as indicated in the attached table.

CONSIDERATIONS:
Football Tickets:

e Variable ticket pricing is widely in use by other Big Ten institutions and various athletic programs
across the country, provides better access and affordability for fans, and has been successful at
Ohio State since first introduced for the 2013 season.

e Athletic Council utilizes a tiered pricing methodology as an administrative tool when establishing
variable ticket pricing for individual games, with regular review of the structure and pricing
methodologies.

e The current season ticket discounts of approximately 15% off the aggregate individual price for
public, and approximately 20% off the aggregate individual price for faculty and staff, will remain.

e The current student ticket price of $34 per game will not change, and will be maintained through
at least the 2020 season.

499



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Football Ticket Pricing - 2018 Season (FY2019)

Opponent Reserved Box/Club Faculty / Staff Student

Oregon State $ 95 $ 120

Rutgers $ 80 $ 105

Tulane $ 67 $ 92

Indiana $ 86 $111

Minnesota $ 96 $121

Nebraska $ 180 $ 205

Michigan $195 $ 220

Season Ticket $ 681 $ 831 $ 640 $ 238

Golf Course Membership Dues and Green Fees:

e The membership dues increase would be allocated for capital reserve/replacement and addressing
deferred maintenance and the daily fees increase would be allocated as additional operating
revenue.

e In a market comparison of daily fees and membership dues, the current rates are comparable to
local courses for the quality and amenities provided and at the high end of the competitive market
for the area.

Golf Course Membership Dues and Green Fees - 2018 Calendar Year (FY2019)

Annual Green Fees Green Fees
Category / Affiliation Membership Scarlet Twilight Gray Twilight
Student $ 715 $38 $ 30 $25 $ 20
Faculty / Staff $ 2,522 $ 65 $ 35 $ 41 $ 25

With Spouse $ 4,097

Full Family $ 4,885

Alumni / Buckeye Club $ 3,150 $ 80 $ 40 $49 $ 30
With Spouse $4,725

Full Family $5,513

Young Professional (21-26yo) $ 2,047 $ 80 $ 40 $49 $ 30
Young Professional (27-32yo0) $ 2,363 $ 80 $ 40 $49 $ 30

REQUESTED OF FINANCE COMMITTEE:

Approval

500



November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPOINTMENT TO THE SELF-INSURANCE BOARD

Synopsis: Appointment of member to the Self-Insurance Board, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees directed that a Self-Insurance Board be established to oversee the
university Self-Insurance Program; and

WHEREAS all members of the Self-Insurance Board are appointed by The Ohio State University Board of
Trustees upon recommendation of the president; and

WHEREAS the resignation of E. Christopher Ellison, MD, was effective September 30, 2017 and created a
vacancy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the following individual be appointed
as member of the Self-Insurance Board, in his role as interim president of Faculty Group Practice, effective
December 01, 2017 for the term specified below:

L. Arick Forrest, MD, term ending June 30, 2019
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this appointment entittes member to any immunity, insurance, or

indemnity protection to which officers and employees of the university are, or hereafter may become,
entitled.

501




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF THE MULTIYEAR DEBT
ISSUANCE PROGRAM ENDOWMENT FUND

Synopsis: Approval of the Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund, is proposed.

WHEREAS the university has issued certain bonds under the multiyear debt issuance program supplement
to the amended and restated trust indenture dated March 1, 2016; and

WHEREAS the university desires to invest operating funds of the university from time to time for long-term
investment in order to meet its debt service obligations on certain bonds issued under the aforementioned
multiyear debt issuance program supplement at their respective maturities or upon their earlier redemption;
and

WHEREAS the university desires to establish a new endowment fund with such operating funds for
payment of debt service as described above:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the establishment of the Multiyear Debt
Issuance Program Endowment Fund, as of November 3, 2017.

502




November 2017 Board Meeting - Finance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

BACKGROUND
Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the Multiyear Debt Issuance Program
Endowment Fund effective November 3, 2017 with a fund transfer of university operating funds.

The Fund shall be established for the purpose of payment of debt service on the Eligible Bonds. For this
purpose, “Eligible Bonds” means General Receipts Bonds of the university, the interest on which is
includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, which are issued under the Multiyear
Debt Issuance Program Supplement to Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated March 1, 2016 (the
“Multiyear Supplement”)."

The annual distribution, realized appreciation and principal, if needed, shall be used to redeem and retire
Eligible Bonds at their respective maturities or upon their earlier redemption. In any given year in which the
endowment distribution is not fully used for the payment of debt service on the Eligible Bonds, the unused
distribution from this endowment shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.

Upon retirement of the Eligible Bonds, whether upon maturity or earlier redemption, or upon provision being
made for the payment of debt service thereon in accordance with the terms of the Multiyear Supplement,
any remaining balance in the Fund will be used at the discretion of the chief financial officer and senior vice
president for business and finance (the “CFQO”) in consultation with the president of the University.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowed funds shall be in accordance with
University policies and procedures as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the Board of
Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the university’s costs of development
and fund management.

Should circumstances arise in the future that warrant a change in the use of this quasi-endowment fund,
then another use shall be designated by the university’s Board of Trustees in consultation with the CFO
and president.

Amount Establishing Endowment: $10,000,000

1 As of the date hereof, Eligible Bonds consist of the federally taxable Series 2016 A Bonds of the University,
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $600 million, composed of $350 million 3.798% Term Bonds due
December 1, 2046 and $250 million 4.048% Term Bonds due December 1, 2056. Other General Receipts Bonds of
the University may become Eligible Bonds if issued at the times and in the amounts permitted under the Multiyear
Supplement or similar document. It is not the intention of the University to establish a sinking fund relating to any
obligations when to do so would adversely affect any favorable attributes provided by federal tax law with respect
to such obligations, including, but not limited, the exclusion of interest from gross income.

503



November 2017 Board Meeting - Governance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017

Board of Trustees

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2017
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Janet B. Reid
Timothy P. Smucker
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Hiroyuki Fujita
Lydia A. Lancaster
Alan VanderMolen
Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Location: Longaberger Alumni House Time:
Mount Leadership Room

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
1. Student Trustee Selection Process (verbal) - Dr. Lancaster

2. Trustee Development (verbal) - Dr. Reid, Dr. Trower

ITEMS FOR ACTION
Appointment of a Charter Trustee - Mr. Shumate

Amendments to the Bylaws of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board
- Mr. Shumate

5. Ratification of the Appointment of Chair of the Wexner Medical Center Board -
Mr. Shumate

6. Ratification of Committee Appointments - Mr. Shumate

Executive Session

504

8:30-9:45am

8:30-8:40am
8:40-8:55am

8:55-9:00am

9:00-9:05am

9:05-9:10am

9:10-9:15am

9:15-9:45am




November 2017 Board Meeting - Governance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPOINTMENT OF A CHARTER TRUSTEE

Synopsis: Approval of the appointment of Janet Porter as a Charter Trustee to the Board of Trustees, is
proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees established the position of Charter Trustee at its meeting on February
6, 2009, acknowledging that the establishment of such a position had the potential of further
strengthening the governance capacity of the Board; and

WHEREAS the Ohio State University is one of the premier public land-grant institutions in the country
and, in execution of its mission, embraces education on a state, national, and global scale; and

WHEREAS the complex and multi-faceted nature of the University - in its mission, its character, its
constituencies, and its financing calls for extraordinary leadership at the highest levels; and

WHEREAS the governance of the University would be well served by Charter Trustees whose attributes
include but are not limited to diverse cultural, geographic, business, professional, public service and civic
backgrounds; and

WHEREAS the Board added a number of guidelines, including the following:

Charter Trustees shall be non-Ohio residents and shall be chosen on the basis of the
following attributes: Ohio State alumna/alumnus or friend of the University; success in his
or her chosen field or profession; state, national, or international prominence; ability to
advocate for higher education; expertise in areas deemed critical to the University; and
willingness and ability to offer counsel; and

WHEREAS Janet Porter of Hilton Head, South Carolina, is a distinguished alumnus of The Ohio State
University, and has a record of extraordinary service to the University through her volunteerism and
dedication to the Ohio State University Alumni Association Board of Directors; by a career of significant
accomplishment as a strategy, operational and leadership consultant to academic medical centers,
specialty hospitals, physician practices, pharmaceutical companies, and national associations; and by her
expertise in areas critical to the mission of the University and to the work of the Board of Trustees proven
to be an exemplary embodiment of all of those qualities deemed most desirable in a Charter Trustee:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, hereby approve the
appointment of Janet Porter as a Charter Trustee to serve a three-year term commencing November 3,
2017.

505




November 2017 Board Meeting - Governance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS OF THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER BOARD

Synopsis: Approval of the attached amendments to the Bylaws of the Ohio State University Wexner
Medical Center Board, is proposed.

WHEREAS the University Board of Trustees approved the creation of The Ohio State University Wexner
Medical Center Board at its August 2013 meeting; and

WHEREAS pursuant 3335-1-09 (C) of the Administrative Code the rules and regulations for the university
may be adopted, amended, or repealed by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees at any regular meeting
of the Board:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the attached amendment to the Bylaws of
the Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board.

506




November 2017 Board Meeting - Governance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

Chapter 3335-93.01 The Ohio state university Wexner medical center board
(A) - (B) no change

(C) The university Wexner medical center board shall also include the following ex-officio nonvoting
members:

(1)  The dean of the college of medicine;
(2) The chiefexecutive-officerpresident of the university faculty group practice;
(3) The chief executive officer of the Ohio state university health system; and

(4)  The chief executive officer(s) or executive director(s) of all university Wexner medical center
hospitals-;

(5)  The chief administrative officer of the Ohio state university health system;

(6) The chief clinical officer of the Ohio state university Wexner medical center; and

(7) The chief financial officer of the Ohio state university Wexner medical center.

(D) no change

Chapter 3335-95 Officers of the board
3335-95-02 Chair.

The chair shall be selected among the voting members of the university Wexner medical center board and
shall be appointed by the chair of the university board of trustees, in consultation with the university
president, and ratified by the university board of trustees. The chair shall be appointed for a tweone-year
term;-renewable-for-an-additional-term; and have specific skills and qualifications including, but not limited
to, prior experience leading a board and demonstrated experience in business management. The chair of
the university Wexner medical center board shall preside at all meetings of the board.

507



November 2017 Board Meeting - Governance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
OF THE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER BOARD

Synopsis: Ratification of the appointment of Chair of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Board, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board is the governing body responsible to
the Ohio State University Board of Trustees for the operation, oversight, and coordination of the Wexner
Medical Center; and

WHEREAS pursuant to the Wexner Medical Center Board bylaws, the officers of the University Wexner
Medical Center Board shall consist of a chair and such officers as the board may deem advisable; and

WHEREAS the Chair of the Wexner Medical Center Board shall be selected among the voting members of
the University Wexner Medical Center Board and shall be appointed by the chair of the university board of
trustees, in consultation with the university president, and ratified by the board of trustees; and

WHEREAS the chair shall be appointed for a one-year term and have specific skills and qualifications
including, but not limited to, prior experience leading a board and demonstrated experience in business
management; and

WHEREAS Leslie H. Wexner has significant experience in business management and leading governing
boards, and has served as Chair of the University Wexner Medical Center Board since 2013; and

WHEREAS in consultation with the university president, the Chair of the University Board of Trustees has
appointed Leslie H. Wexner to a third term as Chair of the University Wexner Center Board:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby ratifies the appointment of Leslie H. Wexner to a

third term as Chair of the University Wexner Medical Center Board, effective November 6, 2017 and expiring
on May 13, 2019.

508




November 2017 Board Meeting - Governance Committee Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 2017-2018

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the ratification of committee
appointments for 2017-2018 are as follows:

Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee: Audit and Compliance Committee:
Clark C. Kellogg, Chair Timothy P. Smucker, Chair
Cheryl L. Krueger, Vice Chair W. G. “Jerry” Jurgensen, Vice Chair
Janet B. Reid Michael J. Gasser
Timothy P. Smucker Jeffrey Wadsworth
Erin P. Hoeflinger Hiroyuki Fujita
Abigail S. Wexner JOHN W. ZEIGER
Hiroyuki Fujita H. Jordan Moseley
Alan A. Stockmeister James D. Klingbeil
H. Jordan Moseley Lawrence A. Hilsheimer
James D. Klingbeil Amy Chronis
Richard K. Herrmann (faculty member) Craig S. Morford
Alex Shumate (ex officio) Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Finance Committee: Governance Committee:
Michael J. Gasser, Chair Janet B. Reid, Chair
Brent R. Porteus, Vice Chair Timothy P. Smucker, Vice Chair
W. G. “Jerry” Jurgensen Erin P. Hoeflinger
Jeffrey Wadsworth Hiroyuki Fujita
Alexander R. Fischer Lydia A. Lancaster
JOHN W. ZEIGER Alan VanderMolen
Lydia A. Lancaster Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Alan VanderMolen
Alex Shumate (ex officio) Talent and Compensation:
W. G. “Jerry” Jurgensen, Chair

Advancement Committee: Janet B. Reid, Vice Chair
Erin P. Hoeflinger, Chair Michael J. Gasser
Alan VanderMolen, Vice Chair Erin P. Hoeflinger
Clark C. Kellogg Hiroyuki Fujita
Cheryl L. Krueger JOHN W. ZEIGER
Brent R. Porteus Lydia A. Lancaster
Alexander R. Fischer Alex Shumate (ex officio)
Abigail S. Wexner
Alan A. Stockmeister Master Planning and Facilities:
Lydia A. Lancaster Alexander R. Fischer, Chair
Nancy J. Kramer James D. Klingbeil, Vice Chair
Craig S. Bahner Brent R. Porteus
Barbara J. Tootle (Alumni Assn member) Alan A. Stockmeister
Georganne M. Shockey (Alumni Assn member) H. Jordan Moseley
James F. Dietz (Foundation Board member) Robert H. Schottenstein
Gifford Weary (Foundation Board member) Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Alex Shumate (ex officio)

509




The Ohio State University June 9, 2017
Board of Trustees

AGENDA SUMMARY

8:30-9:45am

10:00am

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2017

LONGABERGER ALUMNI HOUSE
2200 OLENTANGY RIVER ROAD

Governance Committee Meeting (Mount Leadership Room)

Board Meeting Reconvenes (Sanders Grand Lounge)
Student Recognition Awards - Mr. Moseley
e Kirk Forte - College of Veterinary Medicine
Transformational Experiences that Advance Student Success - Dr. Adams-Gaston
President’s Report
Committee Reports
Consent Agenda
1. Resolutions in Memoriam
2. Appointment of a Charter Trustee
3. Amendments to the Bylaws of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Board
4. Ratification of the Appointment of Chair of the Wexner Medical Center Board
5. Ratification of Committee Appointments 2017-2018
6. Personnel Actions
7. Presidential Review and Compensation
8. Approval of Presidential Goals
9. Faculty Personnel Actions
10. Amendments to the Rules of the University Faculty
11. Establishment of a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science Degree Program
12. Approval to Change the Name of the Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department
of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery
13. University Foundation Report
14. Naming of the Evan Turner Hallway
15. Naming of Spaces in the Pre-Clinic
16. Naming of Internal Spaces: William T. and Jane C. McConnell Residence Hall
17. Naming of CTL Engineering Lab
18. Authorizations Regarding Professional Services
19. Approval for Fiscal Year 2018 Utility System Capital Improvement Projects
20. Acceptance of Gift of Unimproved Real Property: 352 West Dodridge Street
21. Acceptance of Gift of Improved Real Property and Approval of Sale of Improved Real
Property
22. Approval to Submit Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (Draft) to the Auditor
of State
23. Approval of 2017 Progress Report on Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency
Recommendations
24. Approval for One-Time Transfer of Principal from Long-Term Operating Fund to
Enterprise Project Fund
25. Approval of Discounted Rates for Summer Term Tuition and Mandatory Fees
26. Authorization for Approval of Athletic Prices and Fees
27. Appointment to the Self-Insurance Board
28. Purchase of Real Property
29. Approval of Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RESOLUTIONS IN MEMORIAM

Synopsis: Approval of Resolutions in Memoriam, is proposed.

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees approves the following Resolutions in Memoriam and that
the president be requested to convey copies to the families of the deceased.

James J. ‘Jim’ Buffer Jr.

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the death on October
12, 2017, of James John “Jim” Buffer Jr., Professor Emeritus of Technology Education in the College of
Education and Human Ecology.

Professor Buffer served on the faculty from 1967 until he retired in 1989. He and his colleagues focused on
broadening the field’s perspective of industrial technology, which he said Ohio State welcomed. A key
project contributing to that broader perspective was his work on the Industrial Arts Curriculum Project
(IACP), funded by $2 million from the government, industry and business, labor unions and more, showing
widespread support.

Dr. Buffer developed several interdisciplinary graduate degree programs while at Ohio State. One was
vocational rehabilitation counseling. Another was an interdisciplinary program in neuroscience that
engaged faculty in medicine, engineering and education. He co-directed the program’s Brain Development
Research Laboratory in the College of Medicine, a pioneering initiative to understand how we learn.

As associate dean of the college’s Office of Research Services, Dr. Buffer brought prestige to Ohio State
by providing advanced training and development services to the private sector. He worked with major
manufacturing corporations, institutions of higher education, and banking, financial and sales operations
throughout the U.S., China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Indonesia.

As he enhanced these organizations’ capacity and knowledge, he expanded opportunities for graduate
students. These future leaders gained expertise as Dr. Buffer involved them in outreach and research
endeavors that included international travel. Banks and corporations recognized his excellence by inviting
him to sit on their boards and universities around the globe asked him to speak on a breadth of topics.

Dr. Buffer also served the field generously. He was president of both the Council for Technology Teacher
Education and the National Council for Industrial and Technology Teacher Education. He was a
distinguished member of the American Association of Colleges for Teacher Education, and he was a
member of three international honorary societies in education, as well as a co-trustee of Epsilon Pi Tau,
Alpha Chapter, at Ohio State. Thanks to Professor Buffer and other faculty, his program at Ohio State was
and still is ranked number one nationwide.

On behalf of the university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family of Professor James
John “Jim” Buffer, Jr. its deepest sympathy and sense of understanding of their loss. It is directed that this
resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered to his family
as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy.

511




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RESOLUTIONS IN MEMORIAM (cont'd)

Vicente Cantarino Calabuig

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow upon the death on August 7, 2017,
of Vicente Cantarino Calabuig, Professor Emeritus of Iberian Studies in the Department of Spanish and
Portuguese in the College of Arts and Sciences.

Professor Cantarino was a man of immense erudition whose interests in Medieval Spain led him to study
medieval philosophy, theology, and Arabic thought; and to travel extensively in Europe and the Middle East.
Having grown up in Valencia during the Spanish Civil War, he graduated from the Instituto ‘Luis Vives,’
before moving to Rome where he graduated with honors from Pontifical Gregorian University in 1948 having
obtained master's degrees in both philosophy and theology. In 1952, Dr. Cantarino moved to Munich,
Germany as a Lektor at the university and in 1957, he obtained his Doctorate of Philosophy from Ludwig
Maximilian University of Munich.

Prior to coming to Ohio State, Dr. Cantarino taught Arabic and Spanish at the University of North Carolina
for a few years, before serving as a professor of Spanish and Near Eastern Studies at Indiana University
(Bloomington); and later at The University of Texas in Austin, where he taught and inspired students for 17
years. In 1985 he moved to Columbus to continue his distinguished career at Ohio State until his retirement.

During his career, Dr. Cantarino published many books and articles related to Hispano-Arabic studies,
linguistics, philosophy, and Spanish civilization and culture, including Civilizacién y cultura de Espafia (first
edition 1981) - a widely-used introduction to the richness of Spanish civilization and culture that was unique
in the field for its multimedia supplemental coverage. He dedicated every Friday to update the open access
visual material of his textbook’s webpage (civycultura.osu.edu) with the immense archive he kept at his
home.

Professor Cantarino loved teaching, mentoring, writing, and sharing his perspectives about Spain, its
culture, and its influence all over the world. As a faculty member in the Department of Romance Languages
(and then Spanish and Portuguese) at OSU, he taught courses on Spanish civilization (where he piloted
new materials for Civilizacion y cultura de Espana), as well as Medieval literature. His participation was
crucial in the creation of the Department of Spanish and Portuguese. He was very active in the consolidation
of the Medieval Studies Field until his retirement. His colleagues and former advisees remember him as an
accomplished scholar and as a warm, welcoming, and kind man. He was always available to those who
wanted to stop by and chat. His self-deprecating humor made him greatly beloved.

On behalf of the university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family of Professor Vicente
Cantarino Calabuig its deepest sympathy and sense of understanding of their loss. It is directed that this
resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that copy be tendered to his family
as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy.

512



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RESOLUTIONS IN MEMORIAM (cont'd)

G. Micheal Riley

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow upon the death on August 6, 2017,
of G. Micheal Riley, Professor Emeritus of the Department of History and former Dean of the College of
Humanities.

Dean Riley held a bachelor’'s degree from Arizona State University and received his master's and PhD
degrees from the University of New Mexico. He spent his early career teaching history at Colorado State
University and Marquette University. In 1972, Dean Riley joined the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee in
both scholarly and administrative roles, first as an associate professor and Director of the Center for Latin
America, and later as the Acting Chairman for the Department of Linguistics. He came to The Ohio State
University in 1983 as the Dean of the College of Humanities, a position he held for 10 years. Dean Riley
remained at Ohio State as a Professor in the Department of History, specializing in Mexico and Latin
America, until his retirement in 2002.

As an historian, Dean Riley is known for his monograph Fernando Cortés and the Marquesado in Morelos,
1622-1547, an examination of Cortés’s vast holdings in central and southern Mexico, which were key to
colonial Mexico’s development in the aftermath of the Spanish conquest. In addition, he is the author of
numerous articles and book reviews focusing on colonial Mexico.

On behalf of the university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family of Professor G.
Micheal Riley its deepest sympathy and sense of understanding of their loss. It is directed that this resolution
be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered to his family as an
expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy.

513



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPOINTMENT OF A CHARTER TRUSTEE

Synopsis: Approval of the appointment of Janet Porter as a Charter Trustee to the Board of Trustees, is
proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees established the position of Charter Trustee at its meeting on February
6, 2009, acknowledging that the establishment of such a position had the potential of further
strengthening the governance capacity of the Board; and

WHEREAS the Ohio State University is one of the premier public land-grant institutions in the country
and, in execution of its mission, embraces education on a state, national, and global scale; and

WHEREAS the complex and multi-faceted nature of the University - in its mission, its character, its
constituencies, and its financing calls for extraordinary leadership at the highest levels; and

WHEREAS the governance of the University would be well served by Charter Trustees whose attributes
include but are not limited to diverse cultural, geographic, business, professional, public service and civic
backgrounds; and

WHEREAS the Board added a number of guidelines, including the following:

Charter Trustees shall be non-Ohio residents and shall be chosen on the basis of the
following attributes: Ohio State alumna/alumnus or friend of the University; success in his
or her chosen field or profession; state, national, or international prominence; ability to
advocate for higher education; expertise in areas deemed critical to the University; and
willingness and ability to offer counsel; and

WHEREAS Janet Porter of Hilton Head, South Carolina, is a distinguished alumnus of The Ohio State
University, and has a record of extraordinary service to the University through her volunteerism and
dedication to the Ohio State University Alumni Association Board of Directors; by a career of significant
accomplishment as a strategy, operational and leadership consultant to academic medical centers,
specialty hospitals, physician practices, pharmaceutical companies, and national associations; and by her
expertise in areas critical to the mission of the University and to the work of the Board of Trustees proven
to be an exemplary embodiment of all of those qualities deemed most desirable in a Charter Trustee:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, hereby approve the
appointment of Janet Porter as a Charter Trustee to serve a three-year term commencing November 3,
2017.

514




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS OF THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER BOARD

Synopsis: Approval of the attached amendments to the Bylaws of the Ohio State University Wexner
Medical Center Board, is proposed.

WHEREAS the University Board of Trustees approved the creation of The Ohio State University Wexner
Medical Center Board at its August 2013 meeting; and

WHEREAS pursuant 3335-1-09 (C) of the Administrative Code the rules and regulations for the university
may be adopted, amended, or repealed by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees at any regular meeting
of the Board:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the attached amendment to the Bylaws of
the Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board.

515




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
OF THE WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER BOARD

Synopsis: Ratification of the appointment of Chair of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Board, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Board is the governing body responsible to
the Ohio State University Board of Trustees for the operation, oversight, and coordination of the Wexner
Medical Center; and

WHEREAS pursuant to the Wexner Medical Center Board bylaws, the officers of the University Wexner
Medical Center Board shall consist of a chair and such officers as the board may deem advisable; and

WHEREAS the Chair of the Wexner Medical Center Board shall be selected among the voting members of
the University Wexner Medical Center Board and shall be appointed by the chair of the university board of
trustees, in consultation with the university president, and ratified by the board of trustees; and

WHEREAS the chair shall be appointed for a one-year term and have specific skills and qualifications
including, but not limited to, prior experience leading a board and demonstrated experience in business
management; and

WHEREAS Leslie H. Wexner has significant experience in business management and leading governing
boards, and has served as Chair of the University Wexner Medical Center Board since 2013; and

WHEREAS in consultation with the university president, the Chair of the University Board of Trustees has
appointed Leslie H. Wexner to a third term as Chair of the University Wexner Center Board:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby ratifies the appointment of Leslie H. Wexner to a

third term as Chair of the University Wexner Medical Center Board, effective November 6, 2017 and expiring
on May 13, 2019.

516




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 2017-2018

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the ratification of committee
appointments for 2017-2018 are as follows:

Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee: Audit and Compliance Committee:
Clark C. Kellogg, Chair Timothy P. Smucker, Chair
Cheryl L. Krueger, Vice Chair W. G. “Jerry” Jurgensen, Vice Chair
Janet B. Reid Michael J. Gasser
Timothy P. Smucker Jeffrey Wadsworth
Erin P. Hoeflinger Hiroyuki Fujita
Abigail S. Wexner JOHN W. ZEIGER
Hiroyuki Fujita H. Jordan Moseley
Alan A. Stockmeister James D. Klingbeil
H. Jordan Moseley Lawrence A. Hilsheimer
James D. Klingbeil Amy Chronis
Richard K. Herrmann (faculty member) Craig S. Morford
Alex Shumate (ex officio) Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Finance Committee: Governance Committee:
Michael J. Gasser, Chair Janet B. Reid, Chair
Brent R. Porteus, Vice Chair Timothy P. Smucker, Vice Chair
W. G. “Jerry” Jurgensen Erin P. Hoeflinger
Jeffrey Wadsworth Hiroyuki Fujita
Alexander R. Fischer Lydia A. Lancaster
JOHN W. ZEIGER Alan VanderMolen
Lydia A. Lancaster Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Alan VanderMolen
Alex Shumate (ex officio) Talent and Compensation:
W. G. “Jerry” Jurgensen, Chair

Advancement Committee: Janet B. Reid, Vice Chair
Erin P. Hoeflinger, Chair Michael J. Gasser
Alan VanderMolen, Vice Chair Erin P. Hoeflinger
Clark C. Kellogg Hiroyuki Fujita
Cheryl L. Krueger JOHN W. ZEIGER
Brent R. Porteus Lydia A. Lancaster
Alexander R. Fischer Alex Shumate (ex officio)
Abigail S. Wexner
Alan A. Stockmeister Master Planning and Facilities:
Lydia A. Lancaster Alexander R. Fischer, Chair
Nancy J. Kramer James D. Klingbeil, Vice Chair
Craig S. Bahner Brent R. Porteus
Barbara J. Tootle (Alumni Assn member) Alan A. Stockmeister
Georganne M. Shockey (Alumni Assn member) H. Jordan Moseley
James F. Dietz (Foundation Board member) Robert H. Schottenstein
Gifford Weary (Foundation Board member) Alex Shumate (ex officio)

Alex Shumate (ex officio)

517




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

PERSONNEL ACTIONS

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the personnel actions as recorded in
the personnel budget records of the university since the August 25, 2017, meeting of the board, including
the following reappointments:

Reappointments

Name: E. GATES GARRITY-ROKOUS

Title: Vice President, Chief Compliance Officer
Office: Legal Affairs

Term: September 25, 2017

Name: CAROLINE C. WHITACRE

Title: Senior Vice President

Office: Research

Term: September 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

518



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

PRESIDENTIAL REVIEW AND COMPENSATION

Synopsis: Approval of changes to the president’s base compensation and the issuance of a performance
award to the president, is proposed.

WHEREAS it is best practice across higher education for a governing board to conduct an annual
performance review of the university president; and

WHEREAS under the terms of President Drake’s letter of offer, the president shall be entitled to annual
increases in his base salary as determined by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS under the terms of President Drake’s letter of offer, the president shall be eligible for an annual
performance award of up to 25% of his base salary for achieving mutually agreed-upon performance targets
and goals; and

WHEREAS pursuant to its charter, the Talent and Compensation Committee has reviewed the performance
of the president for fiscal year 2017 and believes that President Drake has demonstrated excellent progress
and achievement with regard to the performance goals set forth by the president and the Board of Trustees
last year; and

WHEREAS the Procedure for Setting and Reviewing Compensation for University Executives authorizes
the chair of the Talent and Compensation Committee to review and approve the total compensation of the
president, subject to ratification by the committee and the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS the Talent and Compensation Committee has reviewed and recommends for approval the
compensation changes set forth below:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves a base salary increase for the president
of $16,646, which amounts to 2% of his base salary; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves a performance award for the
president of $208,080, which amounts to 25% of his base salary.

519




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF PRESIDENTIAL GOALS

Synopsis: Approval of the attached presidential goals, is proposed.

WHEREAS under the terms of President Drake’s letter of offer, each fiscal year, the president and the
Board of Trustees will set forth the president’s goals and objectives; and

WHEREAS in order to establish these goals and objectives, the president is submitting the attached for
review and approval by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS once approved by the Board of Trustees, the attached goals and objectives will serve to
evaluate the president during this review period:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the attached goals and objectives to align
with the university’s strategic plan and the following five pillars of focus: teaching and learning; access,
affordability and excellence; research and creative expression; academic healthcare; and operational
excellence and resource stewardship, and to move the university forward as a leading flagship public
research university in the 21st century.

520




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the faculty personnel actions as
recorded in the personnel budget records of the university since the August 25, 2017, meeting of the

board, including the following appointments, appointments/reappointments of chairpersons, faculty

professional leaves, and emeritus titles:

Appointments

Name: *ANITA AFZALI

Title: Assistant Professor-Clinical (The Abercrombie and Fitch Chair in Inflammatory
Bowl Disease)

College: Medicine

Term: August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2022

Name: BHAVIK R. BAKSHI

Title: Professor (Richard M. Morrow Chair in Polymer Engineering)

College: Engineering

Term: September 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021

Name: WILLIAM E. CARSON Il

Title: Professor (The John B. and Jane T. McCoy Chair in Cancer Research)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: STEVEN K. CLINTON

Title: Professor (The Robert A. and Martha O. Schoenlaub Cancer Research Chair)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: STEVEN M. DEVINE

Title: Professor (The Bertha Bouroncle M.D. and Andrew Pereny Chair of Medicine)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: *ELIZABETH V. HUME

Title: Vice Provost, Undergraduate Studies
Dean, Undergraduate Education

Office: Academic Affairs

Term: October 1, 2017 through June 30, 2022

Name: BRAD H. ROVIN

Title: Professor (The Dr. Lee Hebert Endowed Professorship in Nephrology)

College: Medicine

Effective: July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2018

*New Hire

521



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS (cont'd)

Reappointments

Name: CATALIN BUHIMSCHI

Title: Professor (The Frederick P. Zuspan, MD Chair in Obstetrics and Gynecology)

College: Medicine

Term: December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2021

Name: DAVID COHN

Title: Professor (Stuart M. Sloan - Larry J. Copeland MD Chair in Gynecologic
Oncology Initiated by a Grateful Patient)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and
Richard J. Solove Research Institute

Term: January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2022

Name: WENDY L. FRANKEL

Title: Professor (The Ralph W. and Helen Kurtz Chair in Pathology)

College: Medicine

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: ANDREW H. GLASSMAN

Title: Professor-Clinical (Frank J. Kloenne Chair in Orthopedic Surgery)

College: Medicine

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: RONALD L. HARTER

Title: Professor (The Jay J. Jacoby MD, PhD Chair in Anesthesiology)

College: Medicine

Title: Chair

Department: Anesthesiology

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: M. SCOTT HERNESS

Title: Interim Vice Provost, Graduate Studies
Dean, Graduate School

Office: Academic Affairs/Graduate School

Term: September 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Name: WAEL N. JARJOUR

Title: Professor-Clinical (The Martha Morehouse Chair in Arthritis and Immunology
Research)

College: Medicine

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

522




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017

Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS (cont'd)

Name:
Title:

College:
Term:

Name:
Title:

Unit:

Term:

Title:
College:
Title:
Department:
Term:

Name:
Title:

Unit:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
Unit:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Reappointments (cont’d)

SUSAN L. KOLETAR

Professor-Clinical (Frank E. and Mary W. Pomerene Professorship in the Prevention
and Treatment of Infectious Diseases)

Medicine

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

PETER J. MOHLER

Professor (William D. and Jacquelyn L. Wells Chair at the Dorothy M. Davis Heart
and Lung Research Institute)

Heart and Vascular Center

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2022

Vice Dean, Research

Medicine

Chair

Physiology and Cell Biology

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

RANDY J. NELSON

Professor (The Doctor John D. and E. Olive Brumbaugh Chair in Brain Research
and Teaching

Brain and Spine Hospital

August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2021

MARK D. PARTRIDGE

Professor (The C. William Swank Chair in Rural Urban Policy)
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2022

SUBHA V. RAMAN

Professor (The Joseph M. Ryan, M.D. Chair in Cardiovascular Medicine)
Heart and Vascular Center

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020

MATTHEW D. RINGEL

Professor (The Ralph W. Kurtz Chair in Hormonology)
Medicine

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

CYNTHIA J. ROBERTS

Professor (The Martha G. and Milton Staub Chair for Research in Ophthalmology)
Medicine

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020

523




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS (cont'd)

Reappointments (cont’d)

Name: ORLANDO P. SIMONETTI

Title: Professor (The John W. Wolfe Professorship in Cardiovascular Research)

College: Medicine

Term: October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2021

Name: MICHAEL F. TWEEDLE

Title: Professor (The Stefanie Spielman Chair in Cancer Imaging)

Unit: Comprehensive Cancer Center - The Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard
J. Solove Research Institute

Term: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021

Name: VICKI WYSOCKI

Title: Professor and Ohio Eminent Scholar in Macromolecular Structure and Function

College: Arts and Sciences

Term: July 1, 2017 through May 31, 2022

524




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF THE UNIVERSITY FACULTY

Synopsis: Approval of the following amendments to the Rules of the University Faculty, is proposed.

WHEREAS the University Senate, pursuant to rule 3335-1-09 of the Administrative Code, is authorized to
recommend through the president to the Board of Trustees the adoption of amendments to the Rules of the
University Faculty as approved by the University Senate; and

WHEREAS the proposed changes to rule 3335-7-02, rule 3335-7-08, and to rule 3335-7-36 in the Rules of
the University Faculty were approved by the University Senate on September 7, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the attached amendments to the
Rules of the University Faculty be adopted as recommended by the University Senate.

525



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

ESTABLISHMENT OF A BACHELOR OF
SCIENCE IN BIOMEDICAL SCIENCE DEGREE PROGRAM

COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval to establish a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science degree program in the College
of Medicine, is proposed.

WHEREAS the undergraduate major in Biomedical Science was established in 2005 in the now-School of
Health and Rehabilitation Sciences, in the College of Medicine, to prepare graduates for a post-
baccalaureate entry into professional and graduate program and students earned the Bachelor of Science
in Health and Rehabilitation Sciences degree; and

WHEREAS in June 2016, the College of Medicine established the Department of Biomedical Education
and Anatomy, and proposes to transfer the major program from the school to this new department and in
so doing establish a new degree title - Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science; and

WHEREAS the major continues to comply with all institutional requirements for a degree program; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Council on Academic Affairs at its meeting on
August 3, 2017; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and received a vote of approval by the University Senate on August
29, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the establishment of a Bachelor of Science
in Biomedical Science degree program.

526




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO CHANGE THE NAME OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PLASTIC
SURGERY TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PLASTIC AND RECONSTRUCTIVE SURGERY

COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval to change the name of the Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department of Plastic
and Reconstructive Surgery, is proposed.

WHEREAS the name plastic and reconstructive surgery better reflects the department’s mission

WHEREAS aesthetic surgery is an essential part of the clinical, educational, and research services of the
department but its major focus is reconstructive surgery and

WHEREAS approximately half of academic departments in the U.S. have changed their name to this title
and the preeminent journal for the specialty is Journal of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery; and

WHEREAS the proposal has the support of the department’s faculty, the College of Medicine Council, and
the college administration and no changes to degree titles or course offerings are required; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Council on Academic Affairs at its meeting on
June 22, 2017 and by the University Senate on August 29, 2017:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the proposal to change the name of the
Department of Plastic Surgery to the Department of Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery.

527




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION REPORT

Synopsis: Approval of the University Foundation Report as of September 30, 2017, is proposed.

WHEREAS monies are solicited and received on behalf of the university from alumni, industry, and various
individuals in support of research, instructional activities, and service; and

WHEREAS such gifts are received through The Ohio State University Development Fund and The Ohio
State University Foundation; and

WHEREAS this report includes the establishment one (1) endowed chair: the Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair
in Rheumatology and Immunology; one (1) endowed professorship: The Ohio State University Nephrology
Endowed Professorship for Kidney Research; three (3) designated professorships: the Berry Designated
Professorship, the Fisher College of Business Designated Professorship, the Fisher College of Business
Designated Professorship; one (1) professorship fund: the Emerging Surgical Scholar Research
Professorship Fund; one (1) endowed scholarship from a loyal donor family: the McCoy Family Athletic
Scholars Program; one (1) endowed program support fund from emertis dean and his wife: the W.K. Kellogg
Foundation and Bobby Moser Food Security and Sustainability Learning Community; and sixteen (16)
additional named endowed funds; and the revision of four (4) named endowed funds:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves The Ohio State University Foundation
Report as of September 30, 2017.

528



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF THE EVAN TURNER HALLWAY

IN THE JEROME SCHOTTENSTEIN CENTER

Synopsis: Approval for naming of the basketball practice facility hallway in the Jerome Schottenstein
Center, located at 555 Borror Drive on the Columbus campus as the Evan Turner Hallway, is proposed.

WHEREAS the basketball practice facility, located within the Athletics District on the Columbus campus,
provides the men’s and women’s basketball programs with a state-of-the-art practice facility, offices and
other spaces for student-athletes; and

WHEREAS the basketball practice facility allows the Ohio State men’s and women’s basketball teams to
excel in education, recruiting, and training; and

WHEREAS through generous philanthropy, Evan Turner has made a lasting impact at The Ohio State
University by creating opportunities for outstanding student-athletes to hone their talents; and

WHEREAS Evan Turner has provided significant contributions to the Department of Athletics to support the
men’s basketball program:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule

3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that the basketball practice facility hallway be named the Evan
Turner Hallway.

529




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF SPACES IN THE PRE-CLINIC

IN FRY HALL, COLLEGE OF OPTOMETRY

Synopsis: Approval for naming of the pre-clinic spaces in Fry Hall, located at 352 West Tenth Avenue on
the Columbus campus, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Optometry is dedicated to providing eminence in optometric education, vision
research, and eye care; and

WHEREAS the College of Optometry Pre-Clinic provides a new and technologically-updated facility in
which students attend lectures and receive education on how to provide a comprehensive eye examination
and how to use basic optometric equipment; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the College of Optometry Pre-
Clinic:

e Class of 1992: Honoring Dr. Christopher O’Brien
e Edward Crum OD, MBA, SPE

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule
3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that the pre-clinic spaces in Fry Hall be named the following:

e Room 203, the Edward Crum OD, MBA, SPE Injections Room

e Room 217, the Dr. Christopher O’Brien Pre-Clinic Examination Room, supported by the Class of
1992

530




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF INTERNAL SPACES

IN THE WILLIAM T. AND JANE C. MCCONNELL RESIDENCE HALL

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of internal spaces in the William T. and Jane C. McConnell Residence
Hall, located at 929 Sharon Valley Road, on The Ohio State University at Newark campus, is proposed.

WHEREAS the newly constructed McConnell Residence Hall is an example of the dedication and
generosity of The Ohio State University at Newark community; and

WHEREAS the residence hall provides living and learning spaces for 120 students, enhances access and
diversity on the Newark campus, and helps create the extraordinary student experience; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the building funds used to
construct the new residence hall:

e Dr. Donald G. and Patsy P. Jones

J. Gilbert & Louella H. Reese, The Gilbert Reese Family Foundation, and Dr. John H. & Sarah R.
Wallace

Lowell S. and Barbara G. Anstine

[ ]
e David A. and Carole B. Brooks
e The Englefield Foundation
e Geraldine D. Marston
NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule
3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that internal spaces in the McConnell Residence Hall at The Ohio
State University at Newark shall be named the following:

The Dr. Donald G. and Patsy P. Jones Event Center
The Reese-Wallace Grand Lounge

The Lowell S. and Barbara G. Anstine Study Lounge
The David A. and Carole B. Brooks Study Lounge
The Bill and Janet Englefield Study Lounge

The Geraldine Marston Study Lounge

531



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

NAMING OF CTL ENGINEERING LAB

IN HITCHCOCK HALL, COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Geotechnical Lab (room 050) in Hitchcock Hall at 2070 Neil
Avenue, as the CTL Engineering Lab, is proposed.

WHEREAS Hitchcock Hall is the home of the Department of Civil, Environmental and Geodetic Engineering
(CEGE); and

WHEREAS CEGE enrolls over 950 students from 18 different countries who aim to balance environmental
health with growing societal needs for natural resources, sustainable infrastructure, and services; and

WHEREAS CTL Engineering and its president, C.K. Satyapriya, have generously provided funds to support
the renovation of the Geotechnical Lab space in Hitchcock Hall:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves in accordance with paragraph (F) of rule

3335-1-08 of the Administrative Code, that the Geotechnical Lab (room 050) in Hitchcock Hall shall be
named the CTL Engineering Lab.

532




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

Health Sciences Faculty Office and Optometry Clinic Building

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into professional services contracts, as detailed in the attached materials,
is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the university desires to enter into professional
services contracts for the following project:

Prof. Serv. Total
Approval Project
Requested Cost
Health Sciences Faculty Office $0.6M $28.0M university funds

and Optometry Clinic Building auxiliary funds

WHEREAS the Capital Investment Plan (CIP) outlines capital projects recommended for funding and was
approved by the BOT on August 25, 2017; and

WHEREAS the scope and cost for the Health Sciences Faculty Office and Clinic Building was not known
at the time the CIP was approved; and

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the project listed above for
alignment with all applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has reviewed the project listed above for alignment with the Capital
Investment Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the Capital Investment Plan be
amended to include professional services for the Health Sciences Faculty Office and Clinic Building; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the president and/or senior
vice president for business and finance be authorized to enter into professional services contracts for the
project listed above in accordance with established university and State of Ohio procedures, with all actions
to be reported to the board at the appropriate time.

533



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018
UTILITY SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Tunnel and Utility Systems Repairs and Upgrades
Steam Capacity Upgrades to enable Postle Hall Expansion - Design Only
Postle Hall - Utility System Infrastructure
Electrical System Upgrades

Synopsis: Authorization for Ohio State Energy Partners LLC to make capital improvements to the utility
system pursuant to terms of the Long-Term Lease and Concession Agreement for The Ohio State
University Utility System dated April 10, 2017, as amended, (“Agreement”), is proposed.

WHEREAS the concessionaire, Ohio State Energy Partners LLC, has requested approval of these utility
system capital improvement projects for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS the concessionaire has provided the detailed descriptions of the proposed -capital
improvements, supporting technical data, and analysis, pursuant to Section 4.3(c) of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the project will be delivered pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the capital expenditures for the approved utility system projects will be added to the variable
fee component of the utility fee pursuant to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS the university will fund the non-utility systems portion of the improvements; and

WHEREAS the cost and scope of the university’s portion of the non-utility systems repairs and upgrades
were not known at the time the Capital Investment Plan was approved by the Board of Trustees on August
25, 2017; and

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the projects for alignment with all
applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has reviewed the projects for alignment with the Capital Investment
Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes Ohio State Energy Partners LLC to
proceed with the capital improvements to the utility system as outlined in the attached materials; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the funding for and approves
that the Capital Investment Plan be amended to include the university’s portion of the Tunnel and Utility
Systems Repairs and Upgrades project.

534



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFT OF UNIMPROVED REAL PROPERTY

.5+/- ACRES OF UNIMPROVED LAND
FRANKLIN COUNTY, OHIO

Synopsis: Authorization to accept the gift of approximately .5 acres of unimproved real property in Franklin
County, Ohio, is proposed.

WHEREAS Olentangy Village Associates V LLC desires to donate approximately .5 acres of land adjacent
to the Wilma H. Schiermeier Olentangy River Wetland Research Park at 352 West Dodridge Street,
Columbus, Ohio; and

WHEREAS pending satisfactory completion of all real estate due diligence, the appropriate university
offices believe that acceptance of this gift will be in the best interest of the university; and

WHEREAS acquisition of this property would increase the riparian protection along the east riverbank as
well as provide increased control for wetland research projects.

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that pending satisfactory evaluation of all
real estate due diligence through the standard university process, this property be accepted as a gift to The
Ohio State University from Olentangy Village Associates V LLC and that the president and/or senior vice
president for administration and planning be authorized to acquire title to this property in the name of the
state of Ohio for the use and benefit of The Ohio State University, upon such terms and conditions deemed
to be in the best interest of the university.

535




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFT OF IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY
AND APPROVAL OF SALE OF IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY

2011 REDLEAF DRIVE
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY

Synopsis: Authorization to accept the gift of approximately .26 acres of improved real property located at
2011 Redleaf Drive in Louisville, Kentucky and to negotiate the sale of property under terms and conditions
acceptable to the university, is proposed.

WHEREAS the gift is vested in the name of The Kevin M. Rabe Living Trust and upon the death of Mr.
Rabe was bequeathed to the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences of The Ohio State
University Secrest Arboretum for support and upkeep of its Garden of Roses; and

WHEREAS pending satisfactory completion of all real estate due diligence, the appropriate university
offices believe that acceptance of this gift and immediate sale is in the best interest of the university:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that pending satisfactory evaluation of all
real estate due diligence through the standard university process, this property be accepted as a gift to The
Ohio State University from The Kevin M. Rabe Living Trust and that the president and/or senior vice
president for business and finance be authorized to acquire title to this property in the name of The Board
of Trustees of The Ohio State University, upon such terms and conditions deemed to be in the best interest
of the university; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the president and/or senior vice president for business and finance be
authorized to sell the property upon such terms and conditions deemed to be in the best interest of the
university.

536




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL TO SUBMIT AUDITED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (DRAFT) TO THE AUDITOR OF STATE

Synopsis: Approval to submit the draft audited consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State, is
proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University annually seeks an independent audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a matter of strong financial oversight; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State is required under Ohio law to audit each public office; and

WHEREAS the university is a public office and is required under Ohio law to file a financial report with the
Auditor of State for each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS the university operates on a fiscal year ended June 30 of each year; and

WHEREAS the university has produced consolidated financial statements for the 2016 and 2017 fiscal
years, in accordance with accounting principles, generally accepted in the United States; and

WHEREAS the university engages an outside auditing firm, currently PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC, to
audit its consolidated financial statements; and

WHEREAS the university management and PricewaterhouseCoopers have produced a final draft of the
audited consolidated financial statements for the 2016 and 2017 fiscal years; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State may accept the audited consolidated financial statements in lieu of the audit
required by Ohio law; and

WHEREAS the audited consolidated financial statements will not be final until approved by the Auditor of
State:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby accepts the draft audited consolidated financial
statements for the 2016 and 2017 fiscal years; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the submission of these
consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State for review and approval.

{00306363-1}

537




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF 2017 PROGRESS REPORT ON OHIO TASK FORCE
ON AFFORDABILITY AND EFFICIENCY RECOMMENDATIONS

Synopsis: Approval of Ohio State’s 2017 progress report on the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and
Efficiency recommendations, which will be submitted to the Chancellor of Higher Education, is proposed.

WHEREAS Governor John R. Kasich established the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency in
Higher Education in 2015 to recommend solutions for state colleges and universities to enhance
affordability and efficiency; and

WHEREAS The Ohio State University supported the goals and work of this task force, of which Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer Geoff Chatas was chairman; and

WHEREAS the task force delivered its recommendations in the report “Action Steps to Reduce College
Costs” on October 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS House Bill 49 (Section 381.550) requires the Board of Trustees of each state college and
university to approve an efficiency report based on the task force recommendations each fiscal year and
submit it to the Chancellor of Higher Education; and

WHEREAS consultations have taken place within the university to review and apply the recommendations
to Ohio State’s circumstances; and

WHEREAS Ohio State’s strategic plan is in strong alignment with task force recommendations, and the
university is committed to access, affordability, and excellence:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the university’s 2017 progress report in
response to the task force recommendations, as detailed in the attached document; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached document be delivered to the Chancellor of the Ohio
Department of Higher Education.

538




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL FOR ONE-TIME TRANSFER OF PRINCIPAL FROM
LONG-TERM OPERATING FUND TO ENTERPRISE PROJECT FUND

Synopsis: Approval for one-time transfer of principal from the Long-Term Operating Fund to the Enterprise
Project Fund, a current-use fund to be established to provide funding for the university’s enterprise system
implementation project, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Long-Term Operating Fund is a quasi-endowment fund established by the Board of
Trustees in 2004 and revised in 2008 and 2011 for the purpose of increasing the support available to the
university from the Long-Term Investment Pool by funding the university’s investment income account as
well as providing discretionary funds to be used according to the unanimous approval of the president, the
provost, and the chief financial officer and senior vice president for business and finance; and

WHEREAS the university has begun a university-wide enterprise system implementation project; and

WHEREAS in order to provide funding toward the enterprise system implementation project, the office of
business and finance has requested that $100,000,000 of the principal of the Long-Term Operating Fund
be transferred to the Enterprise Project Fund; and

WHEREAS the Enterprise Project Fund will be a current-use fund that will be established to provide funding
for the university’s enterprise system implementation project, with funds to be released only upon the
approval of the provost and the chief financial officer and senior vice president for business and finance:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the one-time transfer of $100,000,000

from the principal of the Long-Term Operating Fund to the Enterprise Project Fund to provide funding for
the university’s enterprise system implementation project.

539



November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF DISCOUNTED RATES FOR
SUMMER TERM TUITION AND MANDATORY FEES

Synopsis: Approval of discounted rates for summer term tuition and mandatory fees, effective for summer
term 2018, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University is committed to access, affordability, and excellence for students;
and

WHEREAS the university seeks to enhance opportunities for undergraduate students to reduce their time
to degree by taking full advantage of academic offerings throughout the calendar year; and

WHEREAS the university has offered discounted rates for the COTA, Recreation, Student Activity, and
Student Union fees on the Columbus campus for summer term since the conversion to semesters in 2012;
and

WHEREAS the COTA fee is a pass-through fee and students enjoy the same access to Central Ohio Transit
Authority services during the summer term as they do in autumn and spring semesters; and

WHEREAS the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency in Higher Education recommended that
colleges and universities consider opportunities to increase productivity during summer; and

WHEREAS the university implemented a new academic structure for summer term in 2016 to offer students
more flexibility and variety as a first step in a process to enhance summer utilization; and

WHEREAS the university introduced a tuition discount program in summer term 2018 to provide an
additional incentive for undergraduate students to make progress toward their degrees by taking advantage
of summer course offerings:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the following:

e That the summer term instructional fee, general fee, and non-resident surcharge for Columbus
campus undergraduates be discounted 25% compared with fall and spring semesters, effective
summer term 2018 (fiscal year 2019) and continuing in following years; and

e That the summer term Recreation, Student Activity, and Student Union fees for Columbus campus
undergraduates continued be offered at the historical discounted rates and the COTA fee be offered
at the full rate shown below, effective summer term 2018 (fiscal year 2019).

' Summer Rate

COTA $13.50
Recreation $82.00
Student Activity $25.00
Student Union $51.00

540




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 2, 2017
Board of Trustees

AUTHORIZATION FOR APPROVAL OF ATHLETIC PRICES AND FEES

Synopsis: Approval of football ticket prices for fiscal year 2019 and golf course membership dues and fees
for calendar year 2018 at the recommended levels, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University Department of Athletics has a long history of self-sustainability in
supporting 36 world-class athletics programs and providing needed revenues back to the university for
scholarships and academic programs; and

WHEREAS Ohio State desires to continue its variable ticket pricing methodology to create a range of pricing
options for fans attending games; and

WHEREAS each year the Athletic Council reviews projections for the coming year's budget and
recommends ticket prices and golf course membership dues and fees; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council has approved football ticket pricing and golf course membership dues and
fees as shown on the attached tables; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council’'s recommendations have been reviewed and are recommended by the
appropriate university administration:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the recommended prices for football

tickets for fiscal year 2019 and for golf course membership dues and fees for calendar year 2018, be
approved.

541




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPOINTMENT TO THE SELF-INSURANCE BOARD

Synopsis: Appointment of member to the Self-Insurance Board, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees directed that a Self-Insurance Board be established to oversee the
university Self-Insurance Program; and

WHEREAS all members of the Self-Insurance Board are appointed by The Ohio State University Board of
Trustees upon recommendation of the president; and

WHEREAS the resignation of E. Christopher Ellison, MD, was effective September 30, 2017 and created a
vacancy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the following individual be appointed
as member of the Self-Insurance Board, in his role as interim president of Faculty Group Practice, effective
December 01, 2017 for the term specified below:

L. Arick Forrest, MD, term ending June 30, 2019
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this appointment entittes member to any immunity, insurance, or

indemnity protection to which officers and employees of the university are, or hereafter may become,
entitled.

542




November 2017 Board Meeting - Board Meeting

The Ohio State University November 3, 2017
Board of Trustees

APPROVAL OF THE MULTIYEAR DEBT
ISSUANCE PROGRAM ENDOWMENT FUND

Synopsis: Approval of the Multiyear Debt Issuance Program Endowment Fund, is proposed.

WHEREAS the university has issued certain bonds under the multiyear debt issuance program supplement
to the amended and restated trust indenture dated March 1, 2016; and

WHEREAS the university desires to invest operating funds of the university from time to time for long-term
investment in order to meet its debt service obligations on certain bonds issued under the aforementioned
multiyear debt issuance program supplement at their respective maturities or upon their earlier redemption;
and

WHEREAS the university desires to establish a new endowment fund with such operating funds for
payment of debt service as described above:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the establishment of the Multiyear Debt
Issuance Program Endowment Fund, as of November 3, 2017.

543




